
 

Cabinet  AGENDA 
 
 

DATE: 

 

Thursday 12 December 2013 

 

TIME: 

 

6.30 pm 

 

VENUE: 

 

Committee Rooms 1 & 2,  

Harrow Civic Centre 

 
 

 

 MEMBERSHIP       

   

 Chairman: 

 

Councillor Susan Hall (Leader of the Council and Portfolio Holder for 
Community Safety and Environment)  

 

 Portfolio Holders: 

 
Councillor Kamaljit Chana  Business and Enterprise 
Councillor Tony Ferrari Finance 
Councillor Stephen Greek  Planning, Development and Regeneration 
Councillor Manji Kara  Community and Culture 
Councillor Barry Macleod-Cullinane  Deputy Leader, Adults and Housing 
Councillor Janet Mote Children and Schools 
Councillor Paul Osborn  Communications, Performance and Resources 
Councillor Simon Williams Health and Wellbeing 
Councillor Stephen Wright Property and Major Contracts 

 

 Non Executive Cabinet Members (non voting): 

 
Councillor Thaya Idaikkadar Leader of the Independent Labour Group 
Councillor David Perry Leader of the Labour Group 
Councillor Graham Henson Labour Group  
 

(Quorum 3, including the Leader and/or Deputy Leader) 

 
 

Contact:  Daksha Ghelani, Senior Democratic Services Officer 

Tel:  020 8424 1881    E-mail:  daksha.ghelani@harrow.gov.uk 
 



 

Cabinet - Thursday 12 December 2013 

  AGENDA - PART I   
 

 1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE    
 

  To receive apologies for absence (if any). 
 

 2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 

  To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary or non pecuniary interests 
arising from business to be transacted at this meeting from: 
 
(a) all Members of the Cabinet; and 
(b) all other Members present. 
 

 3. MINUTES   (Pages 1 - 32) 
 

  That the minutes of the special Cabinet meeting held 18 November 2013 
and the ordinary meeting held on 21 November 2013 be taken as read and 
signed as a correct record. 
 

 4. PETITIONS    
 

  To receive any petitions submitted by members of the public or Councillors. 
 

 5. PUBLIC QUESTIONS *    
 

  To receive any public questions received in accordance with paragraph 16 
of the Executive Procedure Rules. 
 
Questions will be asked in the order notice of them was received and there 
be a time limit of 15 minutes. 
 
[The deadline for receipt of public questions is 3.00 pm, 9 December 
2013.  Questions should be sent to publicquestions@harrow.gov.uk    

No person may submit more than one question]. 
 

 6. COUNCILLOR QUESTIONS *    
 

  To receive any Councillor questions received in accordance with 
paragraph 17 of the Executive Procedure Rules. 
 
Questions will be asked in the order agreed with the relevant Group Leader 
by the deadline for submission and there be a time limit of 15 minutes. 
 
[The deadline for receipt of Councillor questions is 3.00 pm, 
9 December 2013]. 
 

 7. KEY DECISION SCHEDULE - DECEMBER 2013 TO FEBRUARY 2014   
(Pages 33 - 48) 

 



 

Cabinet - Thursday 12 December 2013 

 8. PROGRESS ON SCRUTINY PROJECTS   (Pages 49 - 50) 
 

  For consideration. 
 

  CHILDREN AND FAMILIES   

 
KEY 9. SCHOOL EXPANSION PROGRAMME   (Pages 51 - 80) 

 
  Report of the Corporate Director of Children and Families. 

 
  ENVIRONMENT AND ENTERPRISE   

 
KEY 10. STANMORE AND EDGWARE CONSERVATION AREAS 

SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENT   (Pages 81 - 108) 
 

  Report of the Corporate Director of Environment and Enterprise. 
 

KEY 11. LOCALLY LISTED BUILDINGS SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING 
DOCUMENT   (Pages 109 - 132) 

 
  Report of the Corporate Director of Environment and Enterprise. 

 
 12. AUTHORITY MONITORING REPORT   (Pages 133 - 140) 

 
  Report of the Corporate Director of Environment and Enterprise. 

 
  COMMUNITY, HEALTH AND WELLBEING / 

RESOURCES   

 
KEY 13. DRAFT HRA BUDGET 2014-15, DRAFT MTFS 2015-16 TO 2017-18, 

DRAFT HRA CAPITAL BUDGET 2014-15 TO 2017-18   (Pages 141 - 162) 
 

  Joint Report of the Corporate Director of Community, Health and Wellbeing 
and Resources. 
 

  RESOURCES   

 
KEY 14. CALCULATION OF COUNCIL TAX BASE FOR 2014-2015   (Pages 163 - 

170) 
 

  Report of the Corporate Director of Resources. 
 

KEY 15. CALCULATION OF  BUSINESS RATES INCOME FOR 2014 - 2015   
(Pages 171 - 180) 

 
  Report of the Corporate Director of Resources. 

 
KEY 16. DRAFT REVENUE BUDGET AND MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL 

STRATEGY 2014-15 TO 2017-18   (Pages 181 - 250) 
 

  Report of the Director of Finance and Assurance. 
 



 

Cabinet - Thursday 12 December 2013 

KEY 17. DRAFT CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2014-15 TO 2017-18   (Pages 251 - 272) 
 

  Report of the Director of Finance and Assurance. 
 

KEY 18. REVENUE AND CAPITAL MONITORING FOR QUARTER 2 AS AT 30 
SEPTEMBER 2013   (Pages 273 - 306) 

 
  Report of the Director of Finance and Assurance. 

 
KEY 19. COLLECTION FUND 2013-14   (Pages 307 - 312) 

 
  Report of the Director of Finance and Assurance. 

 
 20. HALF YEAR 2013/14 TREASURY MANAGEMENT ACTIVITY   (Pages 313 

- 330) 
 

  Report of the Director of Finance and Assurance. 
 

 21. PROCUREMENT OF BANKING SERVICES   (Pages 331 - 336) 
 

  Joint Report of the Director of Finance and Assurance and Divisional 
Director of Commercial, Contracts and Procurement 
 

 22. STRATEGIC PERFORMANCE REPORT - QUARTER 2   (Pages 337 - 370) 
 

  Report of the Corporate Director of Resources. 
 

 23. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS    
 

  Which cannot otherwise be dealt with. 
 

 24. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC    
 

  To resolve that the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the 
following item of business, on the grounds that it involves the likely 
disclosure of confidential information in breach of an obligation of 
confidence, or of exempt information as defined in Part I of Schedule 12A to 
the Local Government Act 1972: 
  
Agenda 
Item No 
 

Title Description of Exempt Information 

25. Procurement of 
Banking Services - 
appendix 

Information under paragraph 3 of 
Part I of Schedule 12A to the Local 
Government Act 1972, relating to the 
financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the 
authority holding that information). 

 
 



 

Cabinet - Thursday 12 December 2013 

  AGENDA - PART II   
 

 25. PROCUREMENT OF BANKING SERVICES   (Pages 371 - 372) 
 

  Appendix to the Joint Report of the Director of Finance and Assurance and 
Divisional Director Commercial, Contracts and Procurement 
 

  * DATA PROTECTION ACT NOTICE   
 

  The Council will record items 5 and 6 (Public and Councillor Questions) to help ensure the 
accuracy of the published minutes, which will be produced after the meeting. 
 
The recording will be retained for one month after the date of publication of the minutes, 
after which it will be destroyed. 

 
 

Deadline for questions 
 

3.00 pm on Monday 9 December 2013 
 

Publication of decisions 
 

Friday 13 December 2013 
 

Deadline for Call in 
 

5.00 pm on 20 December 2013 

Decisions implemented if not Called in 
 

21 December 2013 



This page is intentionally left blank



�

� ��������	�
������������
�� 	�
����	�

�
�
�

��������	
��������

������
�

�

�����������������
�
�
��������	� �� ��������������������
� � �
�
����
��	� �� ����������

�� ���� �������
�� ���!����"���#�
$� %��&�������
�� '�����%����(	�����������
�

�� )�����%���
�� *����+�����
�� �����,��������
�� ���!����,��-���
�

�
������������
�
���
�����
�
����
��	�
�

�� "������������
�� ������.(��##�(���
�

�� /���(�*�����
�

�� /������%������!�������
$� /�������!�-�����������(�
�
�

����� ��

������
������������
�
0������(� 1��� ��������� %��&�� ����2� *��1��� ��(��� 1�� ��������� ��(�
�������3�
�

����� ��������
���
�� ����������
�
!�"#$���	� ������� ����� ������4������(�����������1� ������������(�����
%������3�
�

Agenda Item 3
Pages 1 to 32

1



�

	�
�5��	�� ��������	�
������������
��

!�"#$���� %�&"���
�

��'�� (��)����!����*	��+�&�������,����(��)����  ���������� -�!��������.���-���
"��-�
����������
�
�������� �������(��� ��!���1� ����/�������1�6�-�����(�"������������������
������-� ��� ���� � (������� 1� ���� ����	.�� ���	��������� ������-� ���(� ��
7�����������
��1��4��-����������!����(�����(�������1�������	������������
�������� �� ������������(�������1�
8�+��������
���� ���� 9*��#��-�0����4:�
���%������� ����*��#��-�.���������;3�
�
���� 6��(��� 1� ���� ������� ��(� *��1��� ��(��� 1�� ��������� ��1���� ��(�
<������������1����(�������(�������1� ��������	������	��������2� �����(��-�
���� (��������� ��� ����� ������-3� � ���� 6��(��� 4��� 1� ���� ���4� ����� ��� 4���
����#���� ����� �������� 4��(� ������(�(� �� ����(� ���� ��-����� (������3� � ����
!��1�������4���1��������	!�����-��!�����������!����(����1���4������-�	
4�(�� 1���� !��#��-� ������2� 4����� 4��� ��� �(�������� ��!������2� ���(� ���
��!�������(3� ������((�(������ ���4������������� ��������������������� ��������
���-���4�����=!���(2����!������������������������!��������������'��-��
1� ������-(�2� ��� �(��� �� ������� ����� �� ��������� ������� 1�� ����4� 4���
����(���(� ��(� ��!�������(� ������ ���� ���-�� ��(� 1�� ���� ��-��� �������
��(���!!���(���� ����������� ������-�3� �����6��(�����#�4��(-�(� �������
���-�	4�(��1����!��#��-��������1������4����(�!��������������������(�
��(�����������������;��1�������2��4���������!������-���������=!���(����
��������������1���������(�������(�������������������43�
�
����6��(��������(����������(��������������������	.�����	�����������(�����
���!�(� �� �(����1�� �(���2� �����(��-� �4� ����� ���-��� (����� 4���� !��#��-�
������3� �>�����	!�����-��!�4��(����!�!�-����� ������ �(����4���������4���
�(����1���-���!����������������(�4���������!�������4��(�������������-���!��3��
>�������� �����4�����!!���(��������4��� ���������4��� 1�4��(� 1������4;��
����(�������(�����������3� �>� ������� �����4��� ���#�(� ������ 6������?6�������
���(���(�4�����11���(�(����������-���������������4���1�4��(���(����(�(�
������������-���(3�
�
����6��(�����-�(�%�������1� ����+!!������ ��!������!���� ��� ����!�!��(�
����	!����� -��!� �� ����� �(���� ���(� ��� (�������(� ��(� �=!���(3� � ����
��1����(�����������	���-���(����(���(������1��4��-��������:�
�

•� 4������-��(� �� 9���(�@���������������;2� ������4�������@��������� 1��
���� ����������2� �����(��-� �1� ���� ������� 4���� �� ��� ����(� ��3� � ��
����������� ��(� ����� ��#��� ��� ���� ������ 1� ���� ������� ��(��� ����
1����� �(�����������A�B3� � �4����2� ���� ��#�4��(-�(� �����
�����������4��� �� #��� ��!���� 1� ���� !�!���� ��(� ��--����(� ����� ���
4��(� ��� !��(���� �� ������ ��� ����������� ��� ������� ���-��� 1�� ����
�������1��1������!�!�����1��1����!��#��-3�������((�(�����������������
��!�������(� ����(� ��� ���-�	4�(�� �� ����� ���� ����(����� ��(�
��������������(���&����������1����1�1����!��#��-C�

�

•� 4���� ��-��(� �� 9������4��� ��� !�!�������� �� ���� (�����(� �����;2�
(������(���-�����(�1�����������!���������4������#�����!����1�������!���

2



�

��������	�
������������
�� 	�
�5
�	�

��(�(������	��#��-���(������(������������4��(�����=!�����������-�
����3��.��4���������!���������!!���������������������������4��(����
�!��������-�(� �� ���� ����(����� ��(� ���4��� ��!������ ����� ���� �!��(�
!���(�(�������1�������4�����4���������������!����1�����(������	
��#��-3� � ���� 6��(��� �������(� ����� ������ 4��� �� ���(� �� ����� (���
��-��(�������1�����������(���-�������@�������1�����(����������#��C�
�

•� ���� ������2� �1� ��!�������(2� 4��(� ��@����� ��� �((������� D�72���� ��
������������������������(� ���4��� ��!������ �� ��#�� �������!���� ����
����(������3� � .�� �������� �� ���� *������� ����-�� ������ A*���B2� ����
������ �=!����(� ��(� ����� ��#��� ���� ������� ��� ���� %�(���� �����
 ���������������-��A%� �B3� � .��4��� ��!������ ���!!��������������!�����
1������������������(�4�������������������(�������������������������2�
�����������!���������4��(����������(��������������C�
�

•� ���� 4��� ��!!������ 1� ���� !�����!��� 1� 1���� !��#��-� !���(�(� ��� 4���
������3� � ���� ������� ��� @������� 4��� ��������� ��(� ���� ��������� ���
1�1����4�����-��-����3��������4�����������4����1����������-����(��1��
�������������(���������(� �����!���(�(�4�#���(����#���!������������
���� '�������� /����!����� ����� ��(� ���� 1����� *��1��� ��(��� ���
��� ����� �=��!���4����� ��(����!�(� �� ��&�������� �������������4�
����C�
�

•� ����4��(��#����������������������4��(����#�1����!��#��-�4���������(�
4���� �� ���4� �� ���������-� ���� 1�1���� ��� ���� ���� ��!!��-� �����3� � ����
��#�4��(-�(������������4����!���������������(�4��������������-(��
���(?������� ��(� ����� ��� ��(� ��� ����� �� !������3� � ����4� �������
4��(� ���(� �� ��#�� �(&��������� �� ���� ������-(�� ���(?������� ���
�(�������#������������1��2������������#��-����4����(���������������4�
����(�����������C�
�

•� �� (�����(� ������ 4��� �� !��#��-� ������� ����� 4��� ����1������ ��
����(�������(�����������2������=!�����3��.��4��������1�����!��������
�=!�����(������(���������������������11���(�������������������(�
�����������(��1�����43�
�

������	����-���	<=����������������%����������!�(�(����1��4�:�
��

•� ����������� ��#������ ����6��(�����(������(�������������� ������������
4��� (���!!�����-3� � ��������	.�� ���	��������� ��(� �!���(� ���� �����
���������(�������(��������������(����������������(���(������-����
��(�������4��(������#���4��������������������C�

�

•� 4�������������������-������������������@����(2����4���-(�!��������
������������������4��1�����(�������(��������������(�������������������
��!����������������������(��������(���������-�����������������4�(�
��!���������������1����1�1����!��#��-�������3������(����������(����
�������(���(� ������� 1���� ��� 1������4;�� ��������������������(�
1������(������������4����!������������(�(���1����������43��
�

3



�

	�
�5��	�� ��������	�
������������
��

•� ���� ����������� 4��� ������� ����� �� ����������2� ��(� ����� ����
�(������������4����4��������������1����!��#��-��(���2������(��-�����
1���� !��#��-� ������� ��� ������-(�2� ��(� �����(�� ����� �=�����(� ���
11�����C�
�

•� ���4��� ��!������ ��������������(��������� ���� ��������� ��� 1�1����4����
���� ��������� �������2� ��� ��� ��������� ��� �������� 1� DE2���� 4��(�
��#��������(�������(�11����������������������������(����4��������
�������3��,��������1��������������!!������-2�1����!��#��-�4��(������
����� 1�� ���3� � >� 1���� !��#��-� ������� ���#�(� �� �� ����4� ���(� ��(�
!��������� ����� �=�����(� ��(� !���(� �� ��� �� �=!������� ��
��!������C�
�

•� ��(-��� !��������� 1� ��!��������-� ���� �������4���� ��� ���� ��-��� 1�
DE�2���� ��(� ����� ���� ������� �-��� �� ��� ��!�������(� ������ %�����
��
5� �� ���4� ��� ������-� �(������������ �� ��#�� �� ��-��� ����� ���4�
������1���C�
�

•� ����������� ��(� ��#��� !����� ��� ��

?
�� ��(� ���� ����(����� ��(�
��!!���(� 1���� !��#��-3� � ���� ������� 4��� ���� ����������� 1�
(�����������������������-�*��������(� ���� 1��������� ��1������� ���
���� ��!�����4�(� ����� �����������4����� ����#3� ����� 1�-����� ��� ����
��!��� ��4�(� ����� ���� ������� 4��� 1����������� ������� ��(� ����(�(�
4��������%�(��������� ���������������-��A%� �B������������������
5C�
�

•� �����&������4�����������1�����*���������������������1�����-��-�
����(� 4���� ���� ������3� � ���� ������-(�� ���(� 4��� 1��4�(3� � .�� 4���
��!������ ����� ���� ��4� �(������������ �������(� �� ���� (���������
!�����2���� ����(�������(���-���-���(� ����!�������1� 1����!��#��-����
���1�������������#���!��������3��

�
.�� ���!���2� ���� 6��(��� 1� ���� ������� ��(� ���� *��1��� ��(���� 1��
������������2�*��1���������(�0����������(�'����������(�<����!�����
�����(��������������(�(������@���������������3��%�����2�-����-�������������
������� 1� ���� ��������� ��(� ��� ���� ������ 4��(� ��� ��1���� ��(�
���!!�!������ 1�� ���� ��������-� ������3� � ����������� ��(� �� ���������-1���
��(�4����(�����(���(����������1������������4���4������������������4���
��4�#�����4����������(�����������-���������!�����������1���������������
���������������(�(������!!��3���������������1�����������(�����(���(�����
4���� ����� 1� !�!��� ����-� ����� �� ��1������� (�������3� � >((��������2� ��
1�1�������������1��F������������4��(�������������-���(������������1�����
���������������=�!������1��������-�3��.��4�����!����������(������(�����
��!���������1�(����������(�1��������	.�����	�������������-��������������
9����11�����������(�������1� 1��������� ��1������;����(������������!��������
��� �������	���������4����(� ����� 1���������(������ ���������(���(3� �������
4���������!�������������#�����4����������%������4�>�����3�
�
����6��(���1�����������������(����������11��������������(�������������(����
������(-��������4���������������#������������1����1�������4����(3������
������� ��(��� ����(������� 4��(� ���� D
�� �� ��!������� ��(� ��� 4���
��!����������#�������4����4��������������(�����!���������������4����3��

4



�

��������	�
������������
�� 	�
�5��	�

�����=!�����(������ ������������������4�����4�����4�#�����4��(������
�!��(��-�-(�������1������(3� ������((�(� �����4������ �����!!���(�(� ����
!�!���� 1�� 1���� !��#��-2� ���� ������� 4��� ��4�#����� ��(� ���� 4���
!���������������#��-����������������!�!����3��
�
����/�!����6��(����((�(���������4�����!��������!������!�������������������
4���4�#�������(������ ���4���������������1���!���������������(���!!������
��� ����3� �  ���� !��#��-� 4��� ����(���(� ��� �� ����3� � ������4��� �� ���(� ��
��!��������-�(�����(��(����������(�����������������-(�����(�����=!���(�
1������� ��(� ���#�(� �� (�������� ��� ��!�� ��(� �����������2� �����(��-� ����
!�������1�������������������(�������������4��(���#�����������������������
1�� ��!!���� ��(� �������� �������� ���!��-� �� ��-�������� �����3� � >��� !�������
4������-�(���4�#��-������������������4�#�����1����!��#��-�������������
4��(�����1�������(�������(����������������������-�3�
�
!�"#$���	������2������-�������(���(�����(�������1�������������������-�
���(� �� 
8�+������ ��
�2� ���� ��� ���>!!��(�=� �� �� ���� ��!��� ��� �������� ��
*��#��-�0����4:�����%������� ����*��#��-�.���������2�������������1�����(�������
1���������	������	��������2�������-�����(�������1��������������1����(3�
�
!���
�� �
�� ������
�	� � �� ������(��� ���� (������� 4������ 
�� ������ 4�#��-�
(���� 1� �� ��1������ ��� ���� ����	.�� ���	��������2� ��� ����(����� 4����
��������� *���(���� 0���� 5E3�3�3� � �� ������� ����� �� ���������� !��#��-�
����-���!�����4�����!�������(3�
�
����������� #���
��� �
���/���/� ��/� !�0����/	� � �� ����(� ���� (�������
��(���������������
8�+��������
�3��
�
�
������
��  �����������������
������������/�����/��.���������&������ 1�
����������
��2�����/	�����3�
�
G����	���(�������!!��H�
�

��3�� &
��
���������/��
�����������-��+�&�������,����(��)������
�
���������������(���%���2�4�������(��������1����(����������� �������������
���������������1����!��#��-3�����������(�����(���(���(�(�����(�����%����
��(� �� �������� 1� ���� �������� ��(� ����� ��������(� 1�� �������;��
����(������3�
�
!�"#$���	�����������%����������(3�
�
!���
�� �
�� ������
�	� � �� ����(��� ���-��(�� ���� ��1������ ��� ���� ����	.��
���	��������3�
�
�����������#���
����
���/���/���/�!�0����/	�����3��
�
�
������
��  �����������������
������������/�����/��.���������&������ 1�
����������
��2�����/	�����3�
�
G����	���(�������!!��H3�
�

5



�

	�
�55�	�� ��������	�
������������
��

��4�� (�����
���������/��
�����������-�������/���!
�/�����(��)���
�
���������������(���!������2�4�������(��������1����(������������������������
����������(-��0�(�����*��#3��.��4������(����������������2��������(�����
4��������������;��*�������������2���(�����(���(���(�(�����(�����!�������
��(� �� �������� 1� ���� �������� ��(� ����� ��������(� 1�� �������;��
����(������3�
�
!�"#$���	�����������!�������������(3�
�
!���
�� �
�� ������
�	� � �� ����(��� ���-��(�� ���� ��1������ ��� ���� ����	.��
���	��������3�
�
�����������#���
����
���/���/���/�!�0����/	�����3��
�
�
������
��  �����������������
������������/�����/��.���������&������ 1�
����������
��2�����/	�����3�
�
G����	���(�������!!��H3�
�
A���:������������-2������-��������(����83���!�2�����(����8357�!�B3�
�
�
�
�
�
A��-��(B��+I��.66+0��I�>���>66�
���������
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

6



�

� ��������	�
����������
���� 	��
���	�

�
�
�

����������

	��
����

�

������	��������
�
�
��������	� �� ��������������������
� � �
�
����
��	� �� ����������

�� ���� �������
�� ���!����"���#�
�� $��%�������
�� &�����$����'	�����������
�

�� (�����$���
�� )����*�����
�� �����+��������
�� ���!����+��,���
�

�
������������
�
���
�����
�
����
��	�
�

�� "������������
�� ������-'��##�'���
�

�� .���'�)�����
�

�������������	�
��
����
����
�

�� &�������!������
�� +���������'����
�

$������/
��
$������/
��

�� .������$������!�������
�
�

����� � 

�����!
���"��������
�
�����������'0�
�

����� #�������
���
!������������
�
$�%&'��#	�����������������1��2��,�����������2����'������'3�
�
4,��'��-�������	�����.�������	������56!������)�,������
���������������+�������7�)����*����7����!����+��,��7����� ������7�����
�����7� ��'� (����� $��� '������'� ��	!��������� ���������� ��� ����� ����� 2����
,�������1������������������������,�0�������2��'������������������
2�����������������2�������'���'���'����'��!�0�
�

7



�

	��
�8�	�� ��������	�
����������
����

.����,�����'�������1���������7��������������������'������'�����������'�
�����'�������,������,��'��1�������9���������2�������'�'���'�'���
����������1�����!�!����0�
�
.����,� ����'������� 1� ���� ����7���������� ������ -'��##�'��� '������'� �����
���(���  ������ ����� 2��� ��� :6���� +��'� ��'� ����� ��� 2��� ��� 1� ����
$�������2����!�������'������+��'0�
�

��(�� )���������
�
$�%&'��#	� ������������������1� ����������,����'����/�*������
���7����
��#���������'���'���,��'�����������������'0�
�

��*�� +�����
�����
�
)������,�:�1�������);
/��;���<�����2�=��2�<�)�������
�
��������� &���� ���!������ !�������'� �� !������� ��,��'� ��� �
8� !�!��7�
��>������,�������������������%���������!!��������1������,��1�����1����������
�!����������'����������0������������1�����!�������2�������1��2�3�
�
?+�7�������'����,��'7��%���� ������!������,��!!��������);
/��;��0��9���1�
������� �!���� 2���� ��#�� ������ ��!�� ��������� ��'� 2���� '���,�� ���� ��!!��,�
!���'�0�������2�������'�������������������������0@�
�
$�%&'��#	� � ����� ���� !������� ��� �������'� ��'� ��1����'� �� ���� ��!�����
.�������1�5������������'�5����!�������'�����)��1�����'���1��)������,7�
.����!�������'�:�,���������1������'������0�
�

�,-�� +�"���.�����
�����
�
$�%&'��#	�����������������1��2��,�!������>����������'�������������'3�
�
�0�
�
.�����
���	�
�

$��������!����&����2����

��/���
!	�
�

��������� &����� $����'	���������7� .�!���� 9��'��� ��'�
)��1�����'���1��4'�������'������,�
�

.�����
�	�
�

-�������1��������'��������1������2����������6��,�
����0��
-�2��'���#����#�2�2��������'����!�������+����������
)�����,� ���'��������������A�
�

0�������
���1������
.�����
����
1����"����	�

-��2�����������������'������������ ������������!��'��,�
����'�������1� �����2����'�=����,��"������!!�������0��
�������!����B����!�����'��������'������������������
��� :�,��������� 4�������� ���� �2� ����� �������'� ��'� ��
������,� 1� ���� 9�������,� ��������� ���� �2� �����
!����������� �����,�'� 1�� ��� .�������� 
���� �� �����2�
����1��'��,����'���#����'��������������="��!!�������0��

8



�

��������	�
����������
���� 	��
�/�	�

4����������,����'��������������������������'�0�
�

0�
�
.�����
���	�
�

$��������$����

��/���
!	�
�

��������� &����� $����'	���������7� .�!���� 9��'��� ��'�
)��1�����'���1��4'�������'������,�
�

.�����
�	�
�

�2� ����� ���� �!!�������� 1�� +����������  ���'�� �� ���
��,������'� ��� �� �2�� �� �����,�� ,����� ���� �����
�������'�'� 1�� ��1����7� ���'� ��� !������ ,���� ����
,��'����� ��� �� 2���� ���� +���������� ��������� ����
!����'� 2���� ������ !����� �� '����!� �� ��2� �!��� ��'�
�������� 1�������� ����� ��� ���'�'� 1�� ���� �!���� �����������7�
���,���'��'����#�7�����������,�A�

�
0�������
���1������
.�����
����
�"����	�

4� ������,� 1� ���� 9�������,� ��������� ���� �2� �����
!����������� �����,�'� 1�� ��� .�������� 
���� �� �����2�
���� 1��'��,�� ��'� �������'������ 1� ���� ���!����� ��'�
��#����'��������������="��!!�������0��4����������,����
'��������������������������'�0�

�
�0�
�
.�����
���	�
�

:��������'���%���

��/���
!	�
�

��������� &����� $����'	���������7� .�!���� 9��'��� ��'�
)��1�����'���1��4'�������'������,�
�

.�����
�	�
�

4��������'����1�����2���'��������1�������������7�-�
����� ����� ������'� 2���� ���� ���'��� !������ 1��
+���������� )�����,�  ���'�� ������ 
��C0� � ���� ���'��� 2���
!��� ��� ��� ��������������������������� ����� ����� �#��,�
1�����������!�������� ������,�� ��������0� �+��2���������
�����'� ��� ���� ����� �������� ��'� �������'� ��� ���� �������
9������������0��
�
)������ �������������&����� $����'	���������� !������
�6!����� 2��7� �1���� �!��'��,� �� ,����� '���� 1� ����� �����
��'��11��7����2�������1��2��,�����������B���������������
���� ������7� ��� ��� �2� !������,� �� ��,������ ���� ����� ��� ��
�����,��,����A�
�

���1��	� ����#��������������1������>������0��
�
4����������2���7����2�����������������'���������������7�
!��'��,� ����'������� 1� ���� �2�� ��'� =����,�� "�����
�!!�������0� ����� -��!����B�� ��!��� ��'� �������'�����
��������������������:�,���������4�������������2������
�������'���'���������,�1�����9�������,����������������
���������'�����'�����'���'��2�����������6�3��.�2��

9



�

	��
�D�	�� ��������	�
����������
����

����!������-��!����B���������'�������'������'2������
�!!�������� �� ��,������ +���������� )�����,�  ���'�� ��� ��
�����,��,�������'�2���,��������,������������!!��������
����-��!����B����!��A���
�
&������� ���� 9�������,� ��������� ��� ��������� �� >����	
%�'������ �'�7� ��� ��� ��� ��,��� 1�� ��� �� �!�������� �� ����
������1�������'�0��-�������#���!��������,����������������
��'� ���� %�',�������'�� �������0� ��7���� ���������7�2��
�������2��������������������,�1�����9�������,���������7�
2�����-���'������'��������������'���'�1�����.��������
����� ����7� ����#�� �����'����������2��������������'�
��� ������ �����#��� ����� '������7� ����������� ���� �����
����1�2��'0��
�

%�  �������
.�����
�	�
�

�� ��� ����� ����7� ��� -� 2��,� ��� ����#��,� ����� ����
�������� ����7� ?��� 2���� ��� #�!�� ��� �� �����,�� ,����@� ���
!���������������������A�
��

%�  �������
���1��	�

4��������0�

�
�0�
�
.�����
���	�
�

:�������,��������#�����

��/���
!	�
�

�������������������7�9��'���1��������������'�)��1���
��'���1�������������1������'�5����������
�

.�����
�	�
�

����+����������)�����,� ���'�����'���2���!��������������
�,� ��� ���� ������������ �������7� !������,� �� !���'��
�!���� ;��������������� �����,��'����1���������� 1�� ����
��������0��+�����������#�������������!����'���������1���'�
1�� �������� �����0� � �2� ����� ��� ���� ���#� ��� !2��� ����
���,��,���1������2�������������'A�
�

���1��	� +�� ������ ��#�� ���� '�������� ������ ����� ���� ,���
����,������9�������,���������������.�������0�������
2���� ����� �� %�',��2������� ����� ����'� ��� �!���'� �� ��0��
�� ������ ����� ����� ��� ��� >����	%�'������ ��'� 2�� ���� ���
���2�'��������������0�
�

%�  �������
���1��	�
�

4�� ���� ����� 2���� ��� 2��� ������������7� -� !�������'� ����
�������� ���'������ ��'�'��� �� ���� 1��'��,7�����������2���
�����#���1���������'�-������,������'�������������2����
��� ��� �� 2���� 2��� ,����� �� ��� 1�� ��� ����!���,� ���
���'��0������-�!��������������A�
���

%�  �������
���1��	�

�7� �����,� ���� ��� '���'�'� �� ����� !���������� !����� 1�
���'� ������ ���� 9�������,� ��������� ���� ���� ��
���.����������#�2�2������� ��� ���,��,������,���������
!�����������������2�������,��,���������0���

10



�

��������	�
����������
���� 	��
�C�	�

�
�����������.�������7���'���������������!�����1����'�
���� ��� ,����� ��� ���7� �� �������'� �!�0� � -�� ��� �� >����	
%�'�������'��������������'������2����������� �#�������� ����
���'�������'�'���'��2������!!���� �� �����!�����1� ���'�
��1���2������,�1�2��'0�
�

)��
%���/����	�

�� ���� ����� ����7� 1�� ���� ����� �� �����7� 2�������� ������ ���
��#��7� ����� 2��� ��� �����1��'� ��'� ���� 1� ����� ���� �����
2����'���������,�1�����'���0�
�

���2�	� +���� ��!!���'� ��� ���� ����������,� ����� ��� ����� ���� �����
����'����� !��� ��� ��� �!!�������� 1�� �� �2�� �����,�� ,�����
2����� ��!!�'� ���������,0� � E����� ����� ��� '��������'�
�����,� ���� ��!!��0� � -1� ��� 2��'� ��#�� �� ������� ���
��!������������'�������������,7�-�����������!!����������'�
'������� ��� 2���� ��� ���� 2�� ������ ������� �� ��� �2�
�������� ���������,� ��� ���%���� �� �� ������,� ��
���.�������0�����1������������������'���������7�-����
��!!����������'����#�����0���
�

)��
%���/����	�
�

����#�������������0��

���2�	� F������2�����0�
�
��0�
�
.�����
���	�
�

������G�������

��/���
!	�
�

��������� &����� $����'	���������7� .�!���� 9��'��� ��'�
)��1�����'���1��4'�������'������,�
�

.�����
�	�
�

-� ����� �� >������� 1�� ���� ������� ����'� �� �������,�
��1������������������������,��0�
�
4� ����2� ����'���� ����'� $������� 9�2��� ���� !���'�
������ ����� �������� �������'� �� !������ 1��� ����.�!����
9��'��� ����� +����������  ���'��+-99� ��� ��,������'� ��� ��
�2�;=����,�� ,����7� '��!���� ���� �!!�������� �� '�
�������'�������,������'�1����'��������0��5���������������
���� !��'��� �����'� ������ ����� H-1� �����,� ����7� 2�B���
��2�'� ���� '����!����� ��,��� '2�0� � +�� %���� ����� ��
�!�� ����� ���� ��������� ,��� 1�'� �!� 1� 2�����,I@��
�
-����������'����������� ����� ����������������!���� ��� ����
���,�����'�1�����J
��7���������1�����!�1��������
��,����6!��������'�������������������'�2���������,�����
�!���� ���#� ����� -� ����#����� �,���� ���� ����� �� ��!�����
2����� 1� �������'�����,�� 1�� �������� ������'7� ��'����
�����!�����������1�������������1��'�0�
�

11



�

	��
���	�� ��������	�
����������
����

�2� '��� ���� .�!���� 9��'��� !�!��� ���� ������� 2����
�������� �� 1��'� ����� ����������� 2����� �!!���� �� ���
!���������� ����,��� ��'� ��� '������ !!������ �� ���� �����
�����,7� ��!�������� ����'����,� ���� ��!���� �� ����
���������1��'�����������������������'������!�����������
1� !��'�� �27� �� ���� 1�� 2����� ���� ������� ��'� �����
������ ��#��$������� 9�2��� ���'� !���������� ��� ���'� �������
1����'����������!��A�
�

���1��	� ����#����$��G�������1������>������0�
�
-�2��'���#���������������-��������,��������������!�������
1�� $��� 9�2��B� ������� ��'� ����������� 2���� ��,��'� �� �����
����0�
�
������,���������11���������'���'�2��������'�'��',������
�!!������������� �2����'������,��,����� ����� ������2�����
!�������� ��1����� 1� ��������� ��� ���� ������� ��� ���� ���'�
2���� ��'� ���� ���� ��,������� ��������� ��'� ��� 2���
�����1������'��!!�!��������'�,'�!�������7����1��2�'�
���������������7� ����'���!������ ��>����� ���� �����������
���!����1������2����'������,��,������!!�������0���
�
-� ��� �'����'� ��� 11������ ����� ����� ��,��� ����� �� 1���
�������'� �� '���� ��� ���� ������� ��� ���� ��!�������� ���
���������� ��� ���� ��,��� 1� J8�7���0� � ���� 9�������,�
��������7�2����� -��������'� ������!����������2��7� ���
,��,� �� ��� �����2��,� ���� -��!����B�� ��!��� ��'�
�������'��������'����,��,����������#������'�������
�� 2������� �� ��� �� ,����� ���� �2�� ��'� �����,�� ,�����
�!!�������������!��'�����-��!����B���������'�����7�
2����� ��� �� ����� ���'2�0� ���'������������������'�� ��
'������'����2������������'�����������.�������0��-�������
�!�������������2���������2����'�����������������#���������
1����������������������������������������������'�1����������
�������������7������2�����������,������2��������-��!�����
���� �������'�'0� � -1� 2�� '�'� ����� ��� '2�� ����� ������
2��'� ��� ,'� ������ �� �!!���7� �������� ����� ,���
�,�����������������'������1�����-��!����0�
�

)��.�����3	� ��-����������'�'���� ���!�'���'���������2����������
��'���'�������!��������$�������9�2��0�
�

%�  �������
���1��	�

-�'�������������#��,����������!��������$�������9�2���
��'� -������ �#�'���������������������� ����� -�����������
��'�-�������1��'���������������������11���0��-�'�'��!��#����
1����� 1� ��'� ��!!��� ���� �2�� ��'� �����,�� ,�����
�!!�������� 2���� ���� ������,�� 2���� �0� � -� ��� +��'�
��������7� -� #�2� 1� ���� ���� 1� ����� ����,� ��'� -� ���,���
���7���������'������1�����,��������������1������!!�������0�
�
�2����7�-�'������������������#��,���!����������,������

12



�

��������	�
����������
���� 	��
���	�

�����'��������������������������2����2����'�����������,�0��
+��2�������!!������������������0��+��2��'������������
�����'������'�����������0��-��������������������9��'���1�
��������������������'�������������!���������������
����� 1���0� ������������� ����������������� ����������,�
!�������'������-��������'��������������0��-�'�'���!!�����0��
-����������������������������������'�-����������'�
�����,�������-�'�'���7����1������-�����������7��������#����
��������������!��������������11���0����

�
80�
�
.�����
���	�
�

�������#������

��/���
!	�
�

��������� &����� $����'	���������7� .�!���� 9��'��� ��'�
)��1�����'���1��4'�������'������,�
�

.�����
�	�
�

+�� ����� �� ����� 2�����/�� �'����� ��'� ��� ����'���� !����
����#��0�
�
*��� ���� ��� ����#�� ���� ��������� ����'���� !���� ,�����
2���� ����� ���� 1���� ������� ����� �!��'��,� �������� ����
��'�0�
��
*��� ����� ���2���� ���������� ���$�''����6� ����� ��'�����1�
����!�����������1���+������7�����27����0�
��
+�� ���'� ,���'�� 1���������� �� ������ ���� ���'�� 1� ���
!������� ��'� ���'� ���!� 1��� ����2� ������� �� 1��'� ��
���������!����0�
��
+���� ��� ����� ����� ��� ���'� 2���� ��� ��#�� ���� '�������
���������'��'�+����������)�����,� ���'�A�
�

���1��	� ����#����1������,��,��������������������������,������
+���������0� � �������� 2�� 2���� �� ,��� ���� ����� 1�� ���
����'����0� � �������� 2�� 2���� �� ������� ����� ���� ��� ����
������ 2�� ���� �2�����,� ���� ������ 1� ���� 9�������,�
��������7�2������������,������'���'���'�����!��'�����
�����'2�� ���� -��!����B�� �������'���������� ������'�
����,�������������2����'������,��,����0�
�
-1������������'�'2�������2��2���������������������2�����2��
���'���'���'��2������!!������6�0��
�

%�  �������
.�����
�	�
�

+�� ����� ����� �����,� 1�� ���� ����� /	D� ������ ����,�� ����
������� �� ,��� �� ,���'� 1�� ���2������ ���� �������� ��'�
��!!����1����������'�������������7��������������������
1��� ��� !�����,� !�!��� 2���� ,��� ���� ����1��0� � +���� ���
����'�������������������1������A�
���

%�  ������� 4������������2������������'������'������������2�����

13



�

	��
�
�	�� ��������	�
����������
����

���1��	� ����������7���'�-�����#�����	!����7�������2�����������'�
����������!!�������!����,��������������������,�0��-�
�������������2�����'��#����������������%������2��������
���� ��,��� ��>�������������� ������2������������2������
��!!��������'������,��������������2�������!��#������
�����,��7� ��������� $��%�� ����7� )��1��� ��'��� 1��
��������� ��'� �������7� 2�� ���'�� �!� �� �������� ��'�
�!���������7�2������������2������1��'���������������������
�1�+����������)�����,�  ���'�� ���� ��� ���������0� �+�������
������� 2��'� ��� �������'� �� ���� ��'� ��!!��� ���
2�������� !������� ��'� !����!��2�� ��������� �1���2��'��
��'����������,������0��

�
/0�
�
.�����
���	�
�

��-�!���

��/���
!	�
�

��������� &����� $����'	���������7� .�!���� 9��'��� ��'�
)��1�����'���1��4'�������'������,�
�

.�����
�	�
�

-� ����� ����� ����� �� ���� ,���'�3� � -� ��'������'� ��������
����� ���#��,� 2���� ���� 1� ���� ����'����� ����'�����
��,��'��,� ����+����������)�����,� ���'�7�����������'��
�����11������!��#�2��������������!������������������
��������������������'���#������2���������2����'��A�
�

���1��	� -�������!#���������1�������!����,������0��-���������
����� ��� ������� �!���1������� 2���� ���� ������ ��� ����� ��
������1� �����������������,��2�������2����!�,�����'�
��1���������������2��!�����-�2��'���������������!!����
����'2����'�����2������!!���0�
�
���������� ������ ���� ����� ���� �������� �� ��'� 1�� 1��� ����
����������������!����1������-�>�����!�����0��=�������
��'�'�11��������������������!!����'�1�������1������
�����0� � -� ����#�2����2�����'� ��'� ��� ���� ����#�������
�����2������� ��������������� 1�� ����'����7� ����������
����� ����#��,� ���� ����� ���� ��� ���� 2�'��� ��������� ��'�
��#��,����������!����,�������������!!���'����2���7����
2�����������
��������������������'��������'%������������
����0���
�
�� -� ����#� ����� 2���� ��� 2���� 2���� ��0� � -� ����#� ������� ����
2����!��������������� 1��������'������'��'� ��� ������1�
����������� ��� ���� 2�'��� ��������� ��'� ��� ���� ����� ��
!��������'���� ������ ���������,����� 1�����������1�
�����0� � -� ����#������ ��������'��������''�����'������������
������2������2�����,� 1�� ����������1� ����9�������,�
��������� �� '���'�� �� �!��'� �� ����� '2�� ����
-��!����B����!��0����
�

%�  ������� +��2��'�2����������!������'���,���2���� ����� ����

14



�

��������	�
����������
���� 	��
���	�

.�����
�	�
�

,���'�����2���7�������11������ ������1� �����!����������
���������'������������0�
�

%�  �������
���1��	�

-� ��� ���� ����� ��!!�� �� ����� �� ����� ��'� !����!��
�������������7�2������������1�����+��'����������7�
����%�����0���

�
D0�
�
.�����
���	�
�

$��+�����

��/���
!	�
�

�������������������7�9��'���1��������������'�)��1���
��'���1�������������1������'�5����������
�

.�����
�	�
�

���� ���� )��1��� ��'��� 1�� �������'� )��#��,� K���
�6!����� 2��� ���� ������� 2����� �� ��#�� ����'����� ��'�
����������� ��� 
��:�'�� LG���������7� 5',2���7� ������
��'������+��'�M���11�����������,��������!������������,�
�!!�6�������� J8D� 2���� ���11������������ ���� ���'�'� ���
������:�'������������������������A�
�
����� ��� �� ������� �� ����#� �� ������ ���� ��� G����������
+��'���'������+��'�0��
�

���1��	� ������ ���� ����7� ����� ������ ����� ��#� 1�� �������'�
)��#��,�K������'������,�������,��������'�2��,��'������
,������'�������0�
�
+��'����������������������2����������2�������'�������
����� ����'����� ����#�2�� ����'� '0� � �� �)K� ��� !��� ����
!������1�������%�����1�����!�!���������������'����2����
���!��������'���������'��������'0�
�
�2��1���������,������'������������������������!��#�'�
�!7��������'� �1���� %����!����������'�)��#��,�K���� ���
�������'�2��'������'��!���������!��#��,���'������2��'�
,� 1������0� � �� ����� 1���� 2���� 2�� ������7� ��'� ����� ���
2����2��'� ��������2���7�2�������������'�� �����������
����� ��� ���� ���� ������ ����� ����� ,�� ��'��� !��#�'� �!�
��'�7�������������6����������������#�'��1������2��'�2����
����������N����1��������������������N��0���������7��1����
�������������������1�������'�7������2����,����1������0��
������ ������� �� !���� ��� 2����� ����� 2���� ��� ,� ���
1��������������������� ��� ��������!�������0� �-�� ���2����2��
���������'���1�������7� ���2�#����'��1����������,������
���#����������'�����'����2������7������2�������,�����0���
�
+�� ����� ����� ��� ���� !���7� ���������� 2���� 2�� 2����
���!���������1��7�'������1�����'��1�����������,���'���'�
���1�������'�'����2������0������������,�����G���������7�
����� ��� %���� �� ����������� �� 1��'� ��� !�!��B�� ���2�� ��
2���������2������'���������2����������������0��

15



�

	��
���	�� ��������	�
����������
����

�
%�  �������
.�����
�	�
�

+���������'������������1�������'�7�!�!����,������'�
'���,���7� ����'����� ��� &��',�2����� "��'���� ����� ���
������������'0� �*�������1�1�&��',�2�����"��'���������
����� �������'� �� ����� ������� �������� ���� ���!���
��������7������������$��������������������#���7��1����!����
����� ������7� ��� 2���� '� ���� ����� ���1� 1� &��',�2�����
"��'���� ��'� �!���'� ��� ���'� 2����� -� ����� ��� $������
��������0� � +���� ��� ���� �����,� ��� ����� ����������� ���
1��2�'����������������������������'����1�������'0��-1�
��� �#� ��� ���� '��,����2����� -� ����� 2������7� ��� ����
���� ����� ���1� 1� ����� ��'� ��'� �� ������� 1� ������ 11�
�������4������������������1��11������������0�
�

%�  �������
���1��	�

���������� �������!����2������� ��'� ����������������
��'�������6����'������0�
�
-1���������,��������� ��,� ��'7������1���� �1� ��� ������1�
�����!�����1�2����������,��������������,7���������'�
��!� ��� ���12��0� � +�� ����� %���� '��� ����� ��� ������ 5�'�
��������2��#��2���������2��'����,���������2���'2����
����4�����7��������6��!��0�
�
-1� ��� ���� ����!!�� ����� �������,� �!���1��7� ��� #�2�
���2�������,��������1���������������11���7�-�2����������'�
,� ����,�� ��� �!���1�������2���� ������� �� '�������� �����
�������'�� ��������!������������������0� � -�� ��� %������2���1�
����������0��-1�!�!���'����2������7�2��2�������!��������0��
-���������������1� ���������2����2��'����������!�!���
����,� ��'� ���#��,� ����7� 2�� '� �� ����������� 2�����
!�!���!���������2��������#��������'���������2������������
'� �� ����� '� ��� 2���� ��0� � �� 2�� ���� ��,��� ��� ���� �����
��,�����,�1�����0�
�
-1� �����������!!�7�'�!���������� �����'����������'�
2��2����,�����,�����2�����������11���11�������������������
2�� �������,���#�'���'�2�����'� �1�2�� �������� ����� ������
���'� ��� �� �����#�� ����� 2�� 2���� ���������� �!���'� ����
>������������1������0����!������������0���
�

)��0�"3	� $�'�����������7�2����������'��������������1���2����
-������'���2����-�������!#������������11�����0�������
����� ��'� ��� �� ���� !���� ��������7� 2������ ���� �����
��2��#�7��������'�������2��'������#������� ��������1��
�����������0��������������'����-�2���,�������������������
11������ ��'��� ���� ���11��� ��������� 1� ����� ������7� ��
'�������2��'������'������������,������������0�
����

���2�	� .���������������2����,����4:�4)0��-1������� �����������
�����,��!������1��������������'����������'�����������
2������������������'�����0�

�

16



�

��������	�
����������
���� 	��
���	�

C0�
�
.�����
���	�
�

$���(����"�����������������

��/���
!	�
�

��������� (����� $��7� )��1��� ��'��� 1�� ����'���� ��'�
������ ���������������������7� 9��'��� 1� �����������
��'� )��1��� ��'��� 1�� ��������� ��1���� ��'�
5����������
�

.�����
�	�
�

-�� ���2� 1� ���� !��'����'� ��������,� ��������� ��� ���� ���'�
1�� ����� !������ ��'� ��� ���2� 1� ���� ������� 1� ������
2��'� ��� ���� ������� ����� ����� !�������� �� ��� ���'� ��
����'���2����������6!��'��6�����,������7�2����!�����
'��� ���� ������� ����� 1�� �'����1���,� ��'� !��������,� ����
���� ������� 2��'� ������ ����� ���'� ��� ��������� 1�� ��2�
������ �� 1�� ���� �6!������ 1� �6�����,� �����A� �  ��
�6��!��7�����"�����:�'�����7�.�������O������!��#���'�
���� ������ ������� ���'� ��� ������#�'� 1�� �'���������
����������������'�������'����!����0�
�

���1��	� ����#����$���"��������0�
�
5������,� ����� ������ ����'� ��� ����2� ���� �� ����� !�����
��'� ��������� �� ��,�� >������� �'������� ����� ��� �� ���������
'���0� � ����2B�� �������� ���� �,���'� )����� �� 1� ����
!��������6!������!�,��������'� �������������!������
1�� )����� 
� 2����� ���'� !���'�� �!� �� ��� �''�������
����!���� �������� ��� �6�����,� ������ ������ ����2� ���
��'��2�����'�2��2����������#��,������������������0��
�
4��!����1� ����9����)���7��������,��2� �������,��2����
,�2� ��� ���� 1�����7� ��������'������'� ��������.����������
��'� ���� )������,� �������� ����� 2�#�'� ���'� �,������ ��
�'����1�� ���� ��������� ��� !������ ����� 2��'� �''����� ����
��������'�!!����������'�'0���
�
���� !������� ����� �6!������ !�,������ ���� �����
�������'� ����,�� ���� '����!����� 1� �6�����,� �����0��
�2����7�������������������������������������'����!�'�
���� ����0� � )������,� !��������� 1�� ���� �'�#� ����� ���
+���'����� �����'�� !���'��� �� ��1��� ������ !�������
����� �� ����� ���� ����B�� �'��������� ���'� ��� 2���� ���
!���'��,��''��������!��������������'���������������0��4��
�����7� ����9����)������'�����,��,�!������,��!!��������
��#����!����1������'����!�����1����������������,�0��
$���2����7� ���� ������ 1� ����2� 9���� )���� �6!��������
�'����1���� ���� 1����� ����2� ��������B� ������� ��� ����
�������1������2�����'���������!�����0��
�
�,������ 2���� ���� �6�����,� !�,������ ����� 2�� ����
��'����#��,7� ��'� ����'� �!�� ��� �������� 1�������7� 2��
�������� ����� ���� ���'��������'�� ��� ����������1�����2�1��

17



�

	��
�8�	�� ��������	�
����������
����

��2��'���������������������&��,������'�>�������'�2����
���������1���������'0��4����������,�7������6�����,�!�������
����6!����'� �������11������0� �5�����#��,�������''�������
���'��������2����� ���!� ���� ���,�� '������� ��,���������
��'�!��!������1����������������'���'���������������0���
�

%�  �������
.�����
�	�
�

$�� ��'������'��,� 2��� ����� ������ 2���� 1�������� 1��
��������,� ��������� ��'� ����� 2�� 2��'� ���'� �� ��!���
����!��������'������6!������1��6�����,�������������
�'���7� �����,�� -� ��!!��� ��� ��������2�� ���'� ���� !������
��'������1��7�-�2��'���,��������������������2��2���
���� ������� ����� ����� 2�� ����� ���'� !���������� ��� ���'�
������� 1�� �6!��'��,� �� �������� ����� �� �� ��2� ����7� ��
�����!����1�������'���������'�11�������������'�,��������
���1���6!�����7��� ��!���'���!����1����2�������
2�����2���!��2��'�������������'��������0�
�

%�  �������
���1��	�

+��2��������������'�����0�����#�������������0�

�
�

�,��� �
����
��.�����
�����
�
$�%&'��#	������������1��2��,����������G����������'�������������'3�
�
�0�
�
.�����
���	�
�

���������+���������'����

��/���
!	�
�

��������� �����%��� �����7� )��1��� ��'��� 1�� &��������
��'�5����!�����
��������	�
��������
������
��������������������
������
�
������ ��� �
���
��
� �
���� �
�� �
�������� ������� ���
�����
�������
�

.�����
�	�
�

-������������=�'���������������� -�����'������������ ���
2���������'����������!�����2�������������!�1������!��1���,�
11����� 1� ����� ����� J
�0� �-�� ���� ���������� 1� ����
�'�����������O�� �������� ����������� ����� ��� ���� ���� 1��
��!!����,� ������ ����������� ��� ����� ���,�7� 2��'� ���
#��'�����1����2�������&��,�������'��O��������,�����
2�������!��������!��1���,�������&��,�A�
�

���1��	� 4��1������-�����������'7� �1� ����)��������������'�1������
��!��1���,7� ����� 2���� ���!�'0� � �������7� �1� ��� #�2� ����
'�11�����������!������'��������#�2���'�-�2������#�������
���������&��,�������'���#�2�����������0���
�
+��2��'�������,��!�!�������������)�����#�2��1������
��!!���0� � =���� 1���� ��!�7� �1� ��� ��� 1�� �������,� �����7�
����� '� ��� ���� !�!��� #�27� ����� '� ��� ���� ���� )�����
#�2� ��'� -� 2���� ����� '�'� �������� !����� ������ ��� ������ ��

18



�

��������	�
����������
���� 	��
�/�	�

��������'�2������'�'����������,�2����������!���0����
���1������-���������������2���7������������!�����0������
)���������'���'�2��'����0�
�

���%�

��3	�
�

����#����9��'��0� ������ �������� ���������,� ������� ����0��
4��������'�1�����'��7����1��������1�7����������0�

�

0�
�
.�����
���	�
�

���������&�������!������

��/���
!	�
�

��������� )���� *����7� )��1��� ��'��� 1��
������������7�)��1���������'�:��������
�

.�����
�	�
�

+��'� ��� �,���� ����� ���� ����������� 1� ���� �������
����'�����������������������%�����2����1�����$����������
�!���'� ��� ���� ����� ��� !�������,� ���� ��,���� 1� ��������
,��!�7���'�2��������� ������'�2����������������������,�
1� ���� ������������� :����2�+�#��,� "��!� �� ����'���
�2��������,������'�����#��,���7����!���������7�������'���
����!���'�����1�����!��'��,�����'��,��'���7���������,�
�������,�������������7�������,����������7���7�1���6��!��7�
����������������2�����'����%����0�
�

���1��	�
�

����#����1�������>������7�������������!�����0��-����
��2���� !�����'� �� ���#� ����� ���� ����������7� ��� ���
#�20�
�
�2����7� -� ��� ���� ����� #���� ����� 2�� 1��2� ��� ��'� �����
��������� ��� ��� �� >������� ����� ����� ��'��� ���� ������ 1�
�������7� ��� ����� ��'��� ������0� � �2����7� -� 2��'� ������
��#�� �� ���2��� ��7� �� �1� -����7� ���� 2�� ���!��'�����'��,�
*�'����/0�0������'��������������������2�����A����
�
P��������'�����,���'������!��'�����:���0Q�
�
-� �����!!�� ����'� ��'��'������!�����'���� �����������
������,7������������������,�1����������������:����2�
+�#��,� "��!� �� ����'��� ������� ����� ��� ���!��'��,�
����'��,�*�'���0��-�������,��������������'������2����
-� ����#� ��� ����� >������� ��� ��� �����#� �� ����$���� ��'� -�
����������2��'����2���������!�����������0�
�

%�  �������
.�����
�	�
�

-�1��'������1����������1����������������������������,�
2����2����'������!��'�����'��,�*�'�������������2�����
1������� ����� ��'� �� ��� '��7� ��� 2��� �� 1������� 1� ����
����������� ��'� -� �!�� ����� 2�� ���� �#� ��� ����� ��'�
�������� ���������������:����2�+�#��,�"��!���2��
���� ,� ���#� �� �#��,� ��� ����,�� ����� 2�� 2���� ���#��,�
������������������������7��,�����,�����,��2�����2������
��� ���� ����� 1����'��7� ��#�� �����,� ��	56��������
$������� 1� �������7� ���2��,� ���#��������� �� !����!��

19



�

	��
�D�	�� ��������	�
����������
����

����,���������������0���
�
�� ���'� -� !����!�� ��#� ����� �� ���������� 1�� ����
����������� :����2� +�#��,� "��!� �� ����� 2�� ���� ,���
����,�� ����� ��'� !����!�� �,���� ����� ��� ���� ������� ���
 ����������4!���A�
��������

%�  �������
���1��	�

-����������������!!�� ������� ���������������0� � -������
��������� ��#�'� ���� .������� 1� 9�,��� ��'� "���������
��������7� ����� �1�����7� �� �����,����������,0� � -� 2���� ����
��'�,����������,���1������������������1���7����2��'����
��������������������2�F���0���
�
���������������6!��������2��'������������������,������
���'�,������� ���������������������,0���

�
�0�
�
.�����
���	�
�

���������&�������!������

��/���
!	�
�

�������������������7�9��'���1��������������'�)��1���
��'���1�������������1������'�5����������
�

.�����
�	�
�

��������������� �����������'����#�����'� ��!�������'���
��%�� ��'� ��'����� �������� 1� ���� ������ �'�������������
����������������,��������������11�1��������
�7���'����,�����
�������1���!�����.��������������'�����'����,�����2�
���� 1� ��!����� .������� 1� :�������� ��'� �� ����,�'�
����������!� 1�� ���������������*11����7�2�������������'�
����������� ���� ��������� !��'�0�+��'� ������ �,����
����� ��� ��� ��!������ �� %�',�� ��'� ������� ���� �������� ��
����2����1��������	�,�����������1��������#��,�������
�����������������2�����������,��������1������0�
�

���1��	� -� ��� ���������� !��������� ����� �����,������ 1�� �����
������� ��'� 1�� ���������� ��6� !�����7� ��� ������ �������
"��!���'��������0���
�
+������1����'����������������!������,�����������B��
1��������1��
������'��2��'����'�2��#�2�����������2����
����������������'�11������'�������0���������������2������
�����!��!���'�����#��'�11������'�������0���
�
-�� �#�������� �� ��!������� �������������,��� ��� ���� �����
�����������0� � -� 1���� �����1��7� ��� 2��� ���������� �� ������
����������������!�!�����������������!��������������
2�� ���'� ������� ���� �����,�� 1���
���� ��'� !���'�� ����
������,� �'�����������7� 1��2��,� ����$��� �������7� 2����
���� ���� 1��6�������� �� '��������� 2���� ���������� �����
��!!��������0���
�
-� ���� ������� ��� ����� ���� �������� �� ������ !�!����7�

20



�

��������	�
����������
���� 	��
�C�	�

�����'��,� >�������� ����� ��� ����7� ���� ����,� 1�'� ���#�
���,��'�����������������!�����0��������
�

%�  �������
.�����
�	�
�

-�����#����1���������2�������-�2��'���#������#������
����#� ����� ����1����� ����� 2���� ��� ���� '��,0� �+�� �2�
����������,�������7�2������#�2�����0��+�����������%��
���,���������1��������������������,����.�����������
2���������%����������'�����������!�������'�����������
1� ���� ���11� ��� ����� �2� ��'��'� ��'� ��� ��!������� ��� ��
����������������#���'�'����-�������7�-��������'�!�!���#��!�
���#��,��������R���#�������B�������0�
�
�� -� ��#� ��7� ����#� �,���7� !��!��� ����� ���,��������7�
����,����#� ��������1�56�������� �� ��#����� ����,�� �� ����
�����������'������2������2���������������������'���'��
��'�!�!����� ������� ��������� ���,���������� ����� �����
���� ��#�� ��'� �������,��� !��� ����� ��� ����������1����� ��'�
,�����!�!������'����1����0�
����

%�  �������
���1��	�

+���7��������1�����1�������������7�2�����������'�!�!���
�����������0������������!�!��������������2������,��,�
��7���-�2�����������������!��#������������������0�
�
(�������������������������,�������7������'������,�������
���������������'�!�����������,����'�-�����#�2������'�
����#��,�������1�����0� � -1����2��2���� %�������,�����1��8�
�����0�������2�������'�����������1�����1�������11�����
,'0���
�
+����������#��������1��������1�����������0��+�������
,�� ���� ����� !������,� '�11������ ������ ����,� ����'0��
+��������������!2������$������,��,������������#��
�����������������,�0�
�
+�� ���'� ���� ����� ��'� ����'�2����� ��'���#�� ������'��
��!!������'��������2��#��!����!���������������2������
�����#��,�������������7���������7�����������������2����#��
!�!��� '�������� �� 2���� 1�2��'� ����� 2�� ���� �����
������������ ������� 1� ����7� ��6!�����B� ����7� ��'�
����,�� 2���� ��� ��1�� ��� �� !������ �� ����� �1� ��� ������,�
�'������������ ���$���2������ ������,���������,� �����2��
����� '��7� ��� ���� ��� ������� �������'� �������� �� '�
�������,������2��'�������1���0��

�
�0�
�
.�����
���	�
�

���������&�������!������

��/���
!	�
�

�������������������7�9��'���1��������������'�)��1���
��'���1�������������1������'�5����������
�

.�����
�	� ?.� ��� �,���� ����� 2����� ��� ��� !�!��'� �� ������ �� ��2�

21



�

	��
8��	�� ��������	�
����������
����

� ���=�������7� ��� ��� ��!������ ����� �����2��'����������7�
���'������'� ����'���������'���� ��1���'���'��������'0��
-�� !���������� ���'� ��� !���'�� �� ����� 1� ���� !�!����� ��
��������2����=����������������27�������!��������������
��'�����!�!��'�'����1��������0@�
�

���1��	� -� �������� ��� ����� ����� ����� �� ����� 1� 2����� ���=�
������������!�!��'0���
�
-� �����2�������,��������N�'�2����2��,���>�������� ��#��
����7�2������"��!����������� ��������� 1���� ��,� ����7�
����� ����� '��� �����,� ����� ������ ����,�� �����������
��'��������''����7�������2�������������'��,��������,A�
�
&��� �����,� ���'� ����7� ��� ���� 1�������7� -� '� ��� ���� ����
���������� �� �!���1������� ������� �� 2����� ������ ���=�
�������� ,� �������� ����� ���� ����� 1���� !��� ��� ��� ��
���!���� 1��� ����� ����'����� ��#��,� 1�� ����0� � F��
���������������2������������-������#�'��1�2������!���
���������!����������������������������,'����'�������,�
��������'��������,�������������0��)�!�����2�����������
����#� ����� ���� %���� ������ �� ��!� ������������ �� �� ,����
��������)�������������������0�����������������1������7�
����� ,'� ����� ������� ��'� ����#� ,'����� 1�� �����
�������� ���� ���� ��� +���'����� ����'�� ����� �����
����������� ��� '�����,� 2���� ���� 1� �������,��,� ����	������
��������7�������2�����7����2���������������2��������0�
�
���7�-�'������������2������'�������0��F����������'�
��� ������� ����2���� ��� 2��'� ����� '��� ��� 2���� ���
2��������9��'��7�-��������0��
�

���
%�� ����
�	�
�

���� -� %�������� -� ����#� ��� �������� ��!��������'� ��� ������1�
����,������'������������2��7�2��������,����!!����������
+��'�7�����+��'�����������������1���'0�����������������
�������'�-�����������'��������������������������!!���'����
���+��'0�
�
)�!��� ��''����� 1��'� �� ���=� ������� '��!�'� ��� ������
+��'� ��'� ��'�� #�2�� 2��0� � -� ��� ��'� ��� ��� ������ 1��
������!��!���0��-������������-������������������-�'��!��
��'� -� ����� ����� ������'� ��� ��� 1� ���� 11�����7� ��� ����
1�����7�+��'�����������2������� ��1���'�2���� ����'������
��'�'������������#��!����0�
�
-�����#����1���������2��0��

�
�0�
�
.�����
���	�
�

���������&�������!������

��/���
!	� �������������������7�9��'���1��������������'�)��1���

22



�

��������	�
����������
���� 	��
8��	�

� ��'���1�������������1������'�5����������
�

.�����
�	�
�

?+��'�����,���� ����� ���,��������� ��,���)������������
�����'��������� ����������1����=�!������'���������
��!!���'�����������'�!��'�������'����7��6��!�����������
��������!��#��,�����,������������'��,�������!��#��,�������
!�������7���'�2������������������������'��������!!��0@�
�

���1��	� )��������,��������'�11������ �����0� ��������7� �1� ���������
�����2����'� �������� 1�����2��0� ��������=7���� -������
�������'� !��������7� ���� ������� ������ 1�� �� '������
�����0�����������������������!���������������2��#�2�
������ ������������ 1�����,�1� ���� ��2�7� ���2���������� �����
2���� ,��� )���� 1�� ��0� � -1� ������ ���� ����� ��',��� �� ��27�
����� ��������������������� ��������� -�2����'���������#�
2�����������������#������������������������,��'����'��0��
�

���
%�� ����
�	�
�

*��������1�������������������������',����������������
,������)�������0�������-�2�����'�������11����7�-�%����2����
�� ��1����2������� ����� ��� �� ������� 1���0� � -� ��� ��'� �����
������ ����,�� ���� ����,� ,����� 2���� ����� ������ ����
2�������������������������',����'�-���'������'��������������
������������'����������'�������'��,���0�
�

���2�	� +���7�-�2�����#����������������������!�����0��
�
�

�,,�� 4�3�#�����
��%�������5��
���"���,-�6��
�7�����3�,-�8���
�
$�%&'��#	� � �� ���� ���� �������� 1� ���� ���� .������� ����'���� 1��
��������
���0�
�

�,6�� +�
������
��%������3�+�
9�������
�
$�%&'��#	��������������'���������!�,�����1����������!�%����0�
�

$�%&'��#��:�)%���
�

�,8�� 4�3�#�����
�� 5�;������&���������
��
!�%���"����;�����%��

�85��<�����
����%���"����7���
��%��

���
�
���� )��1��� ��'��� 1�� ����'���� ��'� ������ ����'���'� ���� ��!��7� 2�����
��,����!!����������������������� ������������'����������(����������
�� ������� ��� (�������
���0� �����)��1�����'����''�'� ����� ����������B��
4���,�������)����7�2�������>����'�,������,��'����1���!��������������
����,������ ������2���� ���,,��� �������������� ����7� ��'� ����� ���,,���'�
����������'��������1����������(������������'�������'����4�,����
���0�
�
����)��1�����'����6!�����'�����,������'�� 1�� ����2�#�������'������� ����
,������,� �'���� ��'� �����'� ����7� 1��2��,� �� �������,��,� ����������7� ����
���� ,������,� �'���� ��'� ��!!���'� ���� ����,������0� � ���� !�����'� ����

23



�

	��
8
�	�� ��������	�
����������
����

�11�������������������2�#���'���������������'����#����������,������,�
�'��������������,���'������7���'������'�'�������!������������0�
�
$�%&'��#	� �����7� �����,�'��������'� �������������!�!����� ��� �������� ��
���������  ����� ����� L�	/� F����M� ��'� ��������� (����� ����7� ���� �2�
�������������,�����'����(�������
���7���������3�
�

•� �6���'������,�����,��1���������� ����������L�	/�F����M�������������
��!������������2��������,�����,��1���������L����!���M������������
L�����8M�1�����(�������
���S�

�

•� �6!��'� ���� ��!������ 1� ���������  ����� ����� L�	/� F����M� 1���
��(�������
���S���'�

�

•� '�������������������(���������������.��������
���0�
�
$���
�� !
�� #�����
�	� � -�� ����� 2���� ���� ������B�� ����,������� !����7�
�������,� ���� �2� ������ 2��'� ,���� ���� !!�������� �� 1������� ��!����
�'�������������'��'������������,�!������,��������������2���������� ����
!������� !����� 1� ���� �������� ����������0� � -�� 2��'� ���� !���'�� �� ,�������
1��6�������� ������ ��'� ���2���� #��� ���,��0� � 4������ �� ���� 2���� !�������
����������� ��!!���'� ��'� ��1���'� 2���� ����� !������,7� ����������7�
!��������������7����07���'�!���'�'�!!����������1��2�'������11�'����!�����
��'��6!������������������1����!�������!����0�
�
����������� & ��
��� �
��������� ���� $�9�����	� � :�%���� ���� !�!����0�
4!!���� ���� !�!����� 2���� �'�1�������7� 1�� �6��!��7� ��� �������� �� ����
��!�����������'���0� �4!!���� ����!�!����� ���%���� ��������,��� ��!������
��'����0�
�
�
�!����
!� ������������������
��������������������"3���"�����)��"��� =�
#�� ������
��>������	�����0�
�

�,?�� 4�3�#�����
��5�%��

��� ����
��+�
���������
�
����)��1�����'���1������'������'�����������'���'�������!���2���������
��� ���� ������ 1� ���� ��������� ������������ �� )����� 
� 1� ���� )�������
�����56!������)�,�������,���'���������������(����
������'�!�!��'�
������6�����,��0�
�
����)��1�����'���������'�����������������!������������������������������
!���'�� ��11������� ����� !������ 1�� ���� ����� ��'� ���� 2�#� ������'� ���
!��������7� �����'��,� !�����,� �� ������,�� ��� !����0� � ���� �''�'� ����� ����� 2���
)����� 
� 1� ���� !�!����� 2����� ��'� �������'� ���'� ��!!��� ��'� ����#�'�
����� 2�� ��'� ���!�'�'� �� ���� ����������7� �����'�'� ���� ��������
�6!�����'� 2����� 2���� ����,� '�������'� 2���� �����0� � ���� ��!��� ����
�����'�'�'��,��!���� ��1������7����������!�%���������'���������'����
�����)�����)������,�������,�0�����������'�'�������!������������0�
�
���� ��	����,� ��	56�������� $������� 2�����'� ���� ��!��� 2����� ��'�
�������'� ����	!����� ��!!��7� �����'��,� ���,������ ��� �����������

24



�

��������	�
����������
���� 	��
8��	�

,���������� 1� ���� �����0� � 4� $������ ��#�'� ����� ���� ���#�� 2����7� ��� ����
!����7� ��'� ����� �''�����'� ���'�>������0� � ��� �''�'� ����� ���� ��!��� 2���
�������� �� ���� !�%���� ����,� '�������'� ��� (���� 
���� ��'� ��#�'� ����� ����
1������������#���1�����'��'�����2���������0�
�
-�����!���7� ����)��1�����'����6!�����'�����������,�����!�������'������
������ ���� ���� !������ ��'� �� ��1������� ,��!� ��'� ����� ���� �!� �� �,� ����
!�,�������'����'��������������������!������,0���������!�'�'���1�������
>����������'�������'�$���������������������������!��������������������
=��,���� ����� ��'� ����� �� ���!1��� �������,� �6������� 1�� ���� ������� ��'�
����#�� ��'� ��������� 2��'� ��� #�!�� 1�� ���� 1�����0� � -�� �������� �� ����
���!����� ����� '�'� ��� ��!!��� ���� !�!���7� ������� ���!����� ��'� �����
�������'� 1���������9���������1���!!��0� �4''��������7����4��������'�
���(��� ������=��������4�'�'���������'���	����#�'��������������������'�
2����!��!���'���������������6�����,��1�����!�����0�
�
+���� ��,��'� �� ���� ������B�� -�� �������7� ���� )��1��� ��'��� 1��
������������7� )��1������� ��'� :�������� ��1���'� �������� �����
'����������2������'��2���2��������)������,�.�!���������������������� ����
!������,� �������2��� ������ ��'�2������ ���������'�������� ���2����!�'� �����
���� ������� 2��'� ��� ����� �� ��������� �����0� � ���� )��1��� ��'��� 1��
)������,7�.����!����� ��'�:�,��������� �''�'� ����� ��!���'� �� !�������
�����7� ����)������,�.�!��������2��� ������'� ���'���������� 1�������������
�����������!�������� ����������'�����'����1��'����������������,�0��$�����7�
����� ����'����� 2���� ����,� �������'� ������ ��� ���� '���,�� ���,�0� � ������
����'��'������'��!!������������'����!�����������������������2��2���
��������'������������������'���'����!��0��
�
$�%&'��#	��������
�
L�M� ���� ������� 1� ���� ��������� ������������ �� !�!����� 1�� !�������

������6!�������������'S�
�

L
M� ����!����������1��������������������6!��'�!���������������1��2��,�
����������,���'3���

�

•� 4��2��'�)������������

•� )������+'������

•� "���,��)������������

•� ������������

•� &�����������

•� )��������'��������'���������

•� ��2��� �����������7�-�1������'�(����������

•� �������)��#�-�1������'��������������

•� �������)��#�(����������

•� +���������� ������������'���������

•� +����������(���������S�

�

L�M� �������������������9����)����������������1��2��,�����,���'3�

�

25



�

	��
8��	�� ��������	�
����������
����

•� �� �6���'� ���� ����������� !���'� 1�� ���� "������,� &'�� 1�
������9����)������������ �����!�'���������������������
�0���!���� ��'���
C���������
���S�

�

•� ��'���,���� �� ������!�����.�������1�����'������'� �������7�
��� ����������� 2���� )��1��� ��'��� 1�� ����'���� ��'� �����7�
���� '������� 2������� �� !������� ��������� !�!����� �� �6!��'�
!�����������������9����)�����������S�

�
L�M� �����������������4�����B����������)��������������'����(��� ������

�������� )������� ����7� ��� ��� �,���'� �� '���,���� �� ���� ��!�����
.������� 1� ����'���� ��'�  �������� ���� '������� 2������� �� ��#��
��!������������ �� ���� !�������'� ��������� !�!����� ��'� 1�� ����
��!����� .������� �� ������� 2���� ���� ������ ��'� ���� .������ 1�
+���������������,���������������!�����S�

�
L�M� ���� .��,��!���� -�1������� ����� :��� )�%������� 
���	
�

�

:�!���������'S�
�
L8M� ��������'���������)�����)������,�������,������!!���'0�
�
$���
�� !
�� #�����
�	� � �� ������� ���� 9���� 4�������� �� 1��1��� ���� ���������
'��������!���'����11������������!�����������������0�
�
�����������& ��
����
�������������$�9�����	��4������������������!��0�
�
�
�!����
!� ������������������
��������������������"3���"�����)��"��� =�
#�� ������
��>������	�����0�
�

�,��� �������"�� :���� 
��� 5� %������3� $����1� >�
� � $� 
��� ����
$��
��������
�����
�
�������� �������'� �� ��!��� 1� ���� ��!����� .������� 1� 5���������� ��'�
5����!����7�2����� �������'�'� ���� ������� �� ��� ��#��� ��� ���!���� �� ����
���������:����2�"��!B���������'��������4���������������!��0�
�
-������'�����2���� �����������;���������)����7� ����9��'���1� �����������
������'����������������'���$������1�����:����2�"��!����''������������0��
������
�

•� ����#�'� ����� 2�� ��'� !������!���'� ��� ���� :����2� "��!� ��'� ����
����������� ����� ��'� ����� �������'� 1��� ���� ���� ��!������ ��'�
�����!��� 1�� 9�'�� L�19M7� �����'��,� ����'����0� � ����� !������������
����#�'� ���� 4������ +'7� ����2� )������ �����!��� E�����
4��������7� 1�� ���� ����������� #�2��',�� ��'� �������7� �����'��,� ����
#�2��',��1������!����������2S�

�

•� �����'� ����� ���� '�����,� 1���� �����'� ���� :����2� 2��� ���� '�11������ ��1��
!!���������� �6!�������'� ��� !�!��� 2�� ���'� ��� ���'���� �������
�����!��� 1���������0� � 4''��������7� '����,� ���� :����2� ������� ����� ���
����,������ �� ������ ����������� ��� ��1��7�����,������ ���������'�!!�'�

26



�

��������	�
����������
���� 	��
8��	�

#����7� ��'� ���� ����� ��,���,���'0� � ������ ����,��� ����� ��� '�����
����2� ����� ���#��,�� ����� '�!!�'� #����� ���!�'0� � ����� �!�'� �����
����2� 2��'� �������� ��'� ������ 1��� ������������� ��!�������'� ���
��������,��7���'�2�����'�����!�������1������������������!�
�������20���������������1�����:����2�"��!���1����'�������������1�
��������������2	�	���	��������������'� ��������1�J���� ����#�� ���
1���������������0� ����������6!�����'� �������������������� ����������
���,��� ��'� !��� ��� !����� ��'� 2�����'� ���� ���!���� ��!��0��
�2����7� ���� 2��'� ����� ��#�'� ����������� ��'� ���,��� �� ����� �����
�����'�'0�

�
-�����!��������>���������������'�2��������!��������!�������������������,�
1��'��,7� ���� 9��'��� 1� ���� ������� �����'� ����� ���� 2��� ������,� 2���� ����
.�!���� $���� 1�� 9�'�� ��'� 2��'� ��� ������,� ���� ������ 1� �������������7�
�����'��,� ����!������� 1� 1���������� 1�� !�!���2���� '�����������7� �������2	�	
���	����� ������� ��'� ����� �������0� � ���� �!!�������'� ����� ����� ������ 1�
����2��������'�'� �������'������������7���'� ���������2����2����1� ����
���������������� ����'����������19B�����������!�%���� �������2��� ����
�����+��'0������������'�������������������������!�����2��'�1���!����1�����
'���������� 2���� ���� .�!���� $���� 1�� 9�'�� ���� 1��2��,� '��0� � 4�
��	����,� ��	56�������� $������ 2��� !�����'� �� ������ ����� ���� $���B��
11����2�������,������'���'������,,����'������ ���2������� ��!������1�� ����
������� �� ����� �� ���������� ���#� ��'� �� ������,����'� �������� !�������
����������0�
�
���� .�!���� 9��'��� 2��� 1� ���� ���2� ����� ��� 2��'� ����� ����� ���!1��� �1� ����
:����2�"��!� ��!��� ��'� ���� ��� ���� �������,��� ��'� ����� ��������'�2����
������� !�!����0� � ��� ��,,����'� ����� ���� 2�#� ����,� ������'� ��� ��� ����
���������'�+�������,�&��'�������!����1�����'������'��'����������,��������
����!����'7� ��� !���������� ���� ��!2����,� ��������� 1� ����� 2�#0� � ����
���������1� ����:����2�"��!� ���!�'�'������'������������'� ��#���!�����
�� ���� 1�����������!����7��2����� ���2����,���'���� �� �����'�� ��������� ����
1�����������!�����2��������'������'��������������������1�����0�
�
����9��'���1�������������,���'���������2�����!���������������'�������2���
,����� ��!�!���2����'������������ ���������!�����1� ����2�#�������'������� ����
������7� �����'��,� �2�������0� � ���� 2��'� ��!!��� ��'� ������,�� !�������
������ ����������0� � -�� ��������7� ���� 9��'��� ����#�'� ����$������� 1� ����
:����2�"��!�1����������!�����'���#�'�11�����������������1���������!�����
���������������������1������������,0�
�
$�%&'��#	� ������ ����������� �������'�'����11������ ��� ���!���� �� ����
�������'��������'�� ��� ����4���������������!������������:����2�"��!�
��!�������!!���'0�
�
$���
�� !
�� #�����
�	� � �� ��!���� �������������� �� ���� ���,�� �����!���
���2�#0�
�
�����������& ��
����
�������������$�9�����	�����0�
�
�
�!����
!� ������������������
��������������������"3���"�����)��"��� =�
#�� ������
��>������	�����0��

27



�

	��
88�	�� ��������	�
����������
����

�
�,��� 4�3�#�����
��5�$����1�
!������
�����:���%�  
�����:%��%��������

�
���� )��1��� ��'��� 1��  ������� ����'���'� ���� ��!��7� 2����� ��1���'�
$�������1�������>���������������'����������2�1������������'����������6�
��!!��� ������� ����'���'� �� �� 4!���� 
���0� � ��� �''�'� ����� ��,��������
��>����'������������������'���2������7�1��
���;��7���������������'�'���
���������'�����!����'0�
�
������	����,���	56����������������$���������1����'��������������2���
���� ������� ��'� ����� !��� ��� !����� 2����� 2��� �� ���!� ���� ����������� ��'�
��#�'��1������'�����������7�2�������'���������������1�����!�!�����������!���7�
��'�����,�'��������2���'������� ��,����������������������������0�������
��#�'� �1� �����'������������2��'� %��� �������!��,�������������6�����1��0��
4��������	����,���	56�����������������#�'��2������'���!��'�2��'�
����''�����'0�
�
-�����!���7�����)��1�����'���1�� ������������'����������������������1�2���
�����'�������'���������'�2��������������,������2�'0���������������'���
��� �!!���'� ��� ��'� ������ 2��� ��� ��11������� ����� ����#�� ���� ����,���
������1������'��������������'�2����'��0��4��������1�����,����������,�������
1�������� 1� ���� ������� 2��'� �����'�� ��'� ����� ������� 2��'� ��� ���'7� �1�
���������7��������������#������1�������������'0��-�����!����1�������,���
/�T��������������7����2�����������������������,��2������������2��'�����������
��������������'����2���!�0�
�
$�%&'��#	�������
�
L�M� 1�� ���� !��!���� 1� ����������,� ������ ��!!��� �����������7� ���� #���

1�,����7��������������������!��7�����!����'���������2����������������'����
����,��������S�

�
L
M� �����,�����'���'�2������� �� �����2� ����9����������7� �������,���'�

����� ������ 2��� �� ���'� �� �����2� ��7� ��'� ���� �2� ����� ������� ��6�
��!!��� � L���M� ������7� ��� ��,������� �'!��'� ��� 1���� ������� ��

��(�������
���7�����������'S�

�
L�M� ��� ��� ���'� ����� ���� ������� ��6� ��!!��� L���M� ������� 2��� 1��� 1��

!��!�����'���>����'���1��'������������,��0�
�
$���
�� !
�� #�����
�	� � ���� �������'� ������� ��6� ��!!��� L���M� �������
2��� '��������'� ��� 1���� ������� ��'� ��!�������'� �� �� 4!���� 
���� �1����
�6�������������������'���,��'���������� ����� ����'�����2����������2�2����
,���������!!�������������������'����!����!������1������������!�������0���
�
�����������'���,����'������������!������2��������'��!����������,�����
!��������1���2������������1��������������7�
���;�����'�
���;��7�����,�
���#�����'������ �������'�������,�'0� ������2��� ��������� ������2��'��1�
���������6���!!���'�'�����6���'�����,���������1��'��,���'������������
��'�1����7����1����������������!����������7������������'�,����1�����������1��
������������'�������1�������0���
�

28



�

��������	�
����������
���� 	��
8/�	�

������ ��'� ����� �� ��,��1������ 1��'�������� ����,��7� ������� ��� ������'7�
'��,��!����7� ���� ������ �� 1��'��,7� 2����� ��>����'� ���� ������� ��
����'��� �����2��,� �� ��!�����,� ���� ������� ��� '��������'� ��� 1���� ������0�
�2����7� ���� !���������� ��>����'� ��� ��1������ �!��1�� ��� ���� ��� ��� ����
'��������'�������0������2�2����!'����,�����9�����������������������
��>���������� ��'� ��� ����� 2��� �������'��,� ����� ����,��� �� ������7�
!����������7� ������������ 2���� ������'� ��� ��'��� ���� ����� ������ ��'�
�!!���'������������0�
�
�����������& ��
����
�������������$�9�����	� �����'����#���� �����2�1�
����������0�
�
�
�!����
!� ������������������
��������������������"3���"�����)��"��� =�
#�� ������
��>������	�����0��
�

�,(�� )
��
��$�!������ �
����������� 5� � �����!����������� 5�%���
��)����������
%�����������
�
�������� �������'� �� $���� �� ���� R������ $���,������ ���������B� ����� 1����
2����������������1�����56����������'�2�������'��������1����'�1���������0�
�
-�� ���!���� �� �� >������� 1����� ��	����,� ��	56��������$������ �� ����
���2��1�����56��������$�������������$���7�����9��'���1��������������'�
����)��1�����'���1��������������7�)��1���������'�:�������������'�
��������2��'�������!!�!�������������������'�����������$����2�����2���
�������%����1�����,��,������������ �������'����� ���6!���0� � -���''����7� ���
2��� ��!������ �� ���� ����� ���� 1� ����$������� ������,� �� ���� 56��������
2��'� ����� �� ��#�� '�������� �� ���� ������ 1� ���� ����������0� � ����
$������'7������1��7���������'�������'�������������'����2������!!�!������
1����������$���������,�������2���������'����������'����!�������'��������
����� !��	'��������'0� � ����� ���������� 2��'� ���'� �� ����'��� ������
!�������������'������	��#��,0�
�
���� ����� ��	����,� ��	56�������� $������ ��>����'� ����� ���� !������
1��2��,� ���������������!���'���'� ��1���'��������� ���������"��!�2��'�
��� ���������,� ������ �������0� � ��� ���� ��#�'� �2� ���� �'������������ ��'�
������'������������������7����������!������,��,�1�2��'7��2�����'�������
2��'� ��� ��'�� ��'� ��� 2�7� ��� ������� 2��� �2�����,� ���� �����0� � ����
'�������2��'����������1��������1���������11���'������'�������������,�����
����'��� ���� �����,�� ����� 2��� ����,� ����� �� ����� ��'� ���'2�#��,� ���110��
4������ ��	����,� ��	56�������� $������ ��#�'� ����� ���� ���������� ��'�
2�����������'�������2��'������#����������56����������������0������9��'���
1��������������!���'�����7�1��2��,����������������!���'7������2�2��'����
��#��� �� ����� ������0� � ���� �''�'� ����� ���� 56�������� ���'�'� �� ��#��
���!������������'���#����'�����������������,��'0�
�
4� ��	����,� ��	56�������� $������ ��#�'� 2������� ,����� ���� 1���� ����� ����
'��������������#���2�����,��1�����7���'������������������������2��������#��
!�������7�2��'�����������!!�!������1��'�������������������'�����������
��'�����������2���1�2��'��������������0��-��2�����!������������������2���
���2�'�����#����'����������������������������'�����������'�!������0�
�

29



�

	��
8D�	�� ��������	�
����������
����

����9��'���1��������������!���'����������'�������'���'�'���'����������!��7�
����������,��'���������������$���
�������'��������������'������0��-��2��'�
��� 1�� ���� ������,� �'������������ �� '���'�� 2������� ��� 2����'� �� ������� ��
���,������1������ ����� ���,��� ��'���'���0� ������������������'������������
2����'���������������'����������1�����������������2������!���'��,������������
������2�����'����0����'���������'������������'����'����������!��������
��������2����!!�!����������������'�������������6�����'�2���������������0��
���� �����'�'� ��� ������,� ����� ���� �'������������ 2��� ��� ���� ��������� 1�
��#��,��11�������'��������������������1�����0��
�
$�%&'��#	�����������$����������'0�
�
$���
�� !
�� #�����
�	� � �� ����� 2���� ���� ��>���������� ���� ��� ��� ����
�����������L�������)���'����:����M0�
�
�����������& ��
����
�������������$�9�����	�����0��
�
�
�!����
!� ������������������
��������������������"3���"�����)��"��� =�
#�� ������
��>������	�����0�
�
P����	���'�������!!��Q0�
�

�,*�� )
��
��$�!�������
�����������5�@��/�������
!��� 
3������
�
�������� �������'� �� $���� �� R&���#������,� 1� 5�!�����B7� 2����� ��'� �����
��1����'�������������������������������1����2����������������1�����56�������0��
�
���� 9��'��� 1� ����������� ������'� ���� !�!���� 1� ����$���� �� �6!����� ����
�������0������!�!����1�����$���������'������2����������!�,����'������
�������'� 1��� ���� ��!������ �������'� 1�� ������ ����������� 2���� ����
����#����� ��'� ���� ��!���� �� ���� ��'���'���� ����������� 2�#��7� ��� 2���
��!������ ����� ����������� ��'���� �������� !����� ��� !����� �� ������� ����� �����
!����������'�������%���������11���'�'�'������!!����,���0�
�
�4� ��	����,� ��	56�������� �������� $�����7� 2�� ��'� ���� ����'�'� ����
$���7��6!�����'� ����� ���� ��������'�������'��������������1������7� �����
���� -�1������� ������������ *11���� L-�*M� ��'� ���N�'� '��������� 1�
�����������2�#�������'�����������!��������������2������������'�#��!�
��� 1� ��!������� ���'�� ����� ��'� ������� ��'� ��1���� ���������� 2����� 2���
������!���������������'���'�������'���11���'0��-��2��������1�����!�����������
'������'� >�������� 2���� ��#�'� ��� ���� ������� ��� ���� !���������� ���,�� ��
������������������������,�0��
�
���� ����� $������ ���!�'�'� �� �� >������� 1��� ���� )��1��� ��'��� 1��
������������7� )��1������� ��'� :�������� ����� ���� ���� ���� 2��
�'��������������'�!����'����''������������������6!�����'0������''�'������
2������ ����������� ��'� ����� �������'� 1��� ���� ��!������ ����� �����2����
���������'�2������������#����7������'������>������������!���'�������������'����
����� ���� ����0� �4�� �� ������7� ���2��� ��,,�����,� ����� !��������� >�������� ���
��#�'���'��''�����'���� ����!�������������,�0� �����.�!����9��'�����#�'�
2�������!����'������������'��������'����#������ ����� 1������'������������

30



�

��������	�
����������
���� 	��
8C�	�

�� ������� ����� ���� ����������� �������'� ��'� ����� ����0� � ���� $������
���!�'�'���������2������������#��,�1��������������������#���1�2��'0�
�
$�%&'��#	�����������$����������'0�
�
$���
��!
��#�����
�	���������2�����������2����������>��������������������
���������������L�������)���'����:����M0�
�
�����������& ��
����
�������������$�9�����	�����0��
�
�
�!����
!� ������������������
��������������������"3���"�����)��"��� =�
#�� ������
��>������	�����0�
�
P����	���'�������!!��Q0�
�
L���3������������,7������,��������'����80���!�7�����'����D0
��!�M0�
�
�
�
�
�
L��,��'M��*E��-99*:��E�4���499�
���������
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

31



32

This page is intentionally left blank



 

- 
1

 o
f 

1
5

 -
 

 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

H
a

rr
o

w
 

K
E

Y
 D

E
C

IS
IO

N
 S

C
H

E
D

U
L

E
 (

 D
E

C
E

M
B

E
R

 2
0

1
3

 -
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
4

 )
 

M
O

N
T

H
: 

 D
e

c
e

m
b
e

r 

  T
h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 i
s
 a

 l
is

t 
o
f 

K
e

y
 D

e
c
is

io
n

s
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

s
 t

o
 t

a
k
e

 a
t 

th
e

 a
b
o

v
e

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
. 

 T
h

e
 l
is

t 
m

a
y
 c

h
a

n
g
e

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 

n
e

x
t 

fe
w

 w
e

e
k
s
. 

 A
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
n
o

ti
c
e

, 
b

y
 w

a
y
 o

f 
th

e
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
a

g
e

n
d

a
, 

w
ill

 b
e

 p
u

b
lis

h
e
d

 n
o

 l
e

s
s
 t

h
a
n

 5
 c

le
a

r 
d

a
y
s
 b

e
fo

re
 t

h
e

 d
a

te
 o

f 
th

e
 C

a
b

in
e
t 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
, 

s
h

o
w

in
g
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
l 
lis

t 
o
f 

K
e

y
 D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 a

t 
th

a
t 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
. 

  A
 K

e
y
 D

e
c

is
io

n
 i

s
 a

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 b
y
 t

h
e

 E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

: 
 (i
) 

re
s
u

lt
 i

n
 t

h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

in
c
u

rr
in

g
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 w

h
ic

h
 i

s
, 

o
r 

th
e

 m
a

k
in

g
 o

f 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
, 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
h

a
v
in

g
 r

e
g
a

rd
 t

o
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 

b
u

d
g
e

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 o
r 

fu
n

c
ti
o

n
 t
o

 w
h

ic
h

 t
h
e

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 r
e

la
te

s
; 
o

r 
 

 (i
i)

 
b

e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n
t 

in
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
it
s
 e

ff
e

c
ts

 o
n

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 l

iv
in

g
 o

r 
w

o
rk

in
g
 i

n
 a

n
 a

re
a

 o
f 

tw
o

 o
r 

m
o

re
 w

a
rd

s
 o

r 
e

le
c
to

ra
l 

d
iv

is
io

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

B
o

ro
u

g
h

. 
 

 A
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 i
s
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e

s
 o

f 
(i
) 

a
b

o
v
e

 i
f 

it
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

s
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 o

r 
th

e
 m

a
k
in

g
 o

f 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 o

f 
a

n
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
in

 e
x
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
£

1
m

 f
o

r 
c
a

p
it
a

l 
e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 o

r 
£

5
0
0

,0
0
0

 f
o

r 
re

v
e

n
u

e
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 o

r,
 w

h
e

re
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 o

r 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 a

re
 l
e

s
s
 t

h
a

n
 t

h
e

 a
m

o
u

n
ts

 s
p

e
c
if
ie

d
 a

b
o

v
e

, 
th

e
y
 

c
o

n
s
ti
tu

te
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 5
0

%
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
a
tt

ri
b
u

ta
b

le
 t

o
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
n

 q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
. 

    

Agenda Item 7
Pages 33 to 48

33



 

- 
2

 o
f 

1
5

 -
 

D
e

c
is

io
n

s
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

in
te

n
d

s
 t

o
 m

a
k

e
 i
n

 p
ri

v
a

te
 

 T
h
e

 
C

a
b

in
e

t 
h

e
re

b
y
 
g
iv

e
s
 
n

o
ti
c
e

 
th

a
t 

it
 
m

a
y
 
m

e
e

t 
in

 
p

ri
v
a

te
 
a
ft

e
r 

it
s
 
p
u

b
lic

 
m

e
e
ti
n

g
 
to

 
c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

re
p

o
rt

s
 
w

h
ic

h
 
c
o

n
ta

in
 
c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
. 
 T

h
e

 p
ri
v
a

te
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 o

f 
th

e
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
is

 o
p

e
n
 o

n
ly

 t
o

 M
e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 C

a
b

in
e

t,
 o

th
e

r 
C

o
u
n

c
ill

o
rs

 a
n

d
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
. 

 R
e

p
o

rt
s
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

w
ill

 t
a

k
e

 a
t 

it
s
 p

ri
v
a

te
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 a

re
 i

n
d

ic
a

te
d

 i
n

 t
h
e

 l
is

t 
o
f 

K
e

y
 D

e
c
is

io
n

s
 b

e
lo

w
 w

it
h

 t
h
e
 

re
a

s
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 b
e

in
g
 m

a
d
e

 i
n
 p

ri
v
a

te
 w

h
e

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
. 

 T
h
e

 S
c
h

e
d
u

le
 a

ls
o

 c
o

n
ta

in
s
 n

o
n

-K
e

y
 D

e
c
is

io
n

s
 w

h
ic

h
 i

n
v
o

lv
e

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

h
a

v
in

g
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
in

 p
ri
v
a

te
. 

A
n

y
 p

e
rs

o
n

 i
s
 a

b
le

 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

if
 h

e
/s

h
e

 b
e

lie
v
e

s
 t

h
e

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 s
h

o
u

ld
 i
n

s
te

a
d

 b
e

 m
a

d
e
 

in
 t

h
e

 p
u

b
lic

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
. 

 I
f 

y
o

u
 w

a
n

t 
to

 m
a

k
e

 s
u

c
h

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 p

le
a

s
e

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 

D
e

m
o

c
ra

ti
c
 &

 E
le

c
to

ra
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

 Y
o

u
 w

ill
 t

h
e

n
 b

e
 

s
e

n
t 

a
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 i
n

 r
e

p
ly

 t
o

 y
o

u
r 

re
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
. 

 B
o

th
 y

o
u

r 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

a
b

in
e

t’
s
/L

e
a

d
e

r’
s
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 p
u

b
lis

h
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 w

e
b

s
it
e

 h
tt
p

:/
/w

w
w

.h
a

rr
o

w
.g

o
v
.u

k
/w

w
w

2
/m

g
L

is
tP

la
n

s
.a

s
p

x
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

5
 c

le
a

r 
d
a

y
s
 b

e
fo

re
 t
h

e
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
m

e
e
ti
n

g
. 

 T
h
e

 C
a
b

in
e

t/
L

e
a

d
e

r 
w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ri
n

g
 a

 r
e
p

o
rt

 p
re

p
a

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

. 
 T

h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 a
n

y
 o

th
e

r 
d

o
c
u
m

e
n

ts
 

(u
n

le
s
s
 t

h
e

y
 c

o
n

ta
in

 e
x
e

m
p

t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
) 

w
ill

 b
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

in
s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 5

 c
le

a
r 

d
a

y
s
 b

e
fo

re
 t

h
e

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 i
s
 t

a
k
e

n
 b

y
 C

a
b

in
e

t/
L
e

a
d

e
r 

fr
o
m

 
D

a
k
s
h

a
 G

h
e

la
n

i,
 S

e
n

io
r 

D
e

m
o

c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 O

ff
ic

e
r,

 o
n
 0

2
0

 8
4

2
4
 1

8
8

1
 o

r 
b

y
 c

o
n
ta

c
ti
n

g
 d

a
k
s
h

a
.g

h
e

la
n

i@
h
a

rr
o

w
.g

o
v
.u

k
 o

r 
b

y
 w

ri
ti
n

g
 t

o
 

D
e

m
o

c
ra

ti
c
 &

 E
le

c
to

ra
l 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

H
a

rr
o

w
 C

o
u

n
c
il,

 C
iv

ic
 C

e
n

tr
e

 P
O

 B
o

x
 2

, 
S

ta
ti
o

n
 R

o
a

d
, 

H
a

rr
o

w
, 

H
A

1
 2

U
H

 o
r 

o
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 w

e
b

s
it
e

. 
 

C
o

p
ie

s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 r

e
q
u

e
s
te

d
 b

u
t 

a
 f

e
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 p
a

y
a

b
le

. 
 R

e
p
o

rt
s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 a

t 
th

e
 C

a
b

in
e

t’
s
 p

u
b

lic
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 w

e
b

s
it
e

 5
 c

le
a

r 
d

a
y
s
 b

e
fo

re
 t
h

e
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
. 

 T
h
e

 K
D

S
 l
o

o
k
s
 3

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 a

h
e

a
d

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 2
8

 c
le

a
r 

d
a

y
s
 b

e
fo

re
 t

h
e

 D
e

c
is

io
n

 D
a

te
 /

 P
e

ri
o

d
 o

f 
D

e
c
is

io
n

. 
 

34



S
u

b
je

c
t 

N
a

tu
re

 o
f 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 
D

e
c

is
io

n
 M

a
k

e
r 

D
e

c
is

io
n

 d
a

te
 /

 
P

e
ri

o
d

 o
f 

D
e

c
is

io
n

 

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

M
e

m
b

e
r 

/ 
L

e
a

d
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

O
p

e
n

 o
r 

P
ri

v
a

te
 

M
e

e
ti

n
g

 
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
D

o
c

u
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 

b
e

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 

 

- 
3

 o
f 

1
5

 -
 

 D
E

C
E

M
B

E
R

 2
0

1
3

 
  C

a
lc

u
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 B

a
s
e

 
fo

r 
2

0
1

4
-2

0
1

5
 

 

 T
o
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 B

a
s
e

 f
o

r 
2

0
1
4

-1
5

 
 

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 1
2

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 
 

 C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

T
o

n
y
 

F
e

rr
a

ri
 

 T
o
m

 W
h
it
in

g
, 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

R
e

s
o
u

rc
e

s
 

fe
rn

.s
ilv

e
ri
o

@
h

a
rr

o
w

.g
o

v
.u

k
  

T
e

l:
 0

2
0
 

8
7

3
6

 6
8

1
8

 
 

 O
p

e
n

 
        

 A
g
e

n
d

a
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
a

n
d

 a
n

y
 r

e
la

te
d

 
a

p
p
e

n
d

ic
e

s
 

 

 C
a

lc
u

la
ti
o

n
 o

f 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 R

a
te

s
 

T
a

x
 B

a
s
e

 f
o

r 
2

0
1
4

-2
0

1
5

 
 

 T
o
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 N

D
R

 
T

a
x
 B

a
s
e

 f
o

r 
2

0
1
4

-1
5

 
 

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 1
2

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 
 

 C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

T
o

n
y
 

F
e

rr
a

ri
 

 T
o
m

 W
h
it
in

g
, 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

R
e

s
o
u

rc
e

s
 

fe
rn

.s
ilv

e
ri
o

@
h

a
rr

o
w

.g
o

v
.u

k
  

T
e

l:
 0

2
0
 

8
7

3
6

 6
8

1
8

 
 

 O
p

e
n

 
        

 A
g
e

n
d

a
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
a

n
d

 a
n

y
 r

e
la

te
d

 
a

p
p
e

n
d

ic
e

s
 

 

 D
ra

ft
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 

B
u

d
g
e

t 
a

n
d
 

M
e

d
iu

m
 T

e
rm

 
F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
 2

0
1

4
-1

5
 

to
 2

0
1

7
-1

8
 

 T
o
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 

d
ra

ft
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
fo

r 
2

0
1
4

-1
5

 a
n

d
 

M
T

F
S

 f
o

r 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

 

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 1
2

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 
 

 C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

T
o

n
y
 

F
e

rr
a

ri
 

 S
im

o
n

 G
e
o

rg
e

, 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 
a

n
d

 A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 

 O
p

e
n

 
     

 A
g
e

n
d

a
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
a

n
d

 a
n

y
 r

e
la

te
d

 
a

p
p
e

n
d

ic
e

s
: 

B
u

d
g
e

t 
p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 

 

35



S
u

b
je

c
t 

N
a

tu
re

 o
f 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 
D

e
c

is
io

n
 M

a
k

e
r 

D
e

c
is

io
n

 d
a

te
 /

 
P

e
ri

o
d

 o
f 

D
e

c
is

io
n

 

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

M
e

m
b

e
r 

/ 
L

e
a

d
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

O
p

e
n

 o
r 

P
ri

v
a

te
 

M
e

e
ti

n
g

 
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
D

o
c

u
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 

b
e

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 

 

- 
4

 o
f 

1
5

 -
 

 
s
te

v
e

.t
in

g
le

@
h

a
rr

o
w

.g
o

v
.u

k
  

T
e

l:
 0

2
0
 

8
8

6
8

 8
3

4
1

 
 

   

 D
ra

ft
 C

a
p

it
a

l 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

2
0

1
4

-1
5

 t
o

 2
0

1
7

-
1

8
 

 

 T
o
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 

d
ra

ft
 C

a
p

it
a

l 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

 

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 1
2

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 
 

 C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

T
o

n
y
 

F
e

rr
a

ri
 

 S
im

o
n

 G
e
o

rg
e

, 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 
a

n
d

 A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 
s
te

v
e

.t
in

g
le

@
h

a
rr

o
w

.g
o

v
.u

k
  

T
e

l:
 0

2
0
 

8
8

6
8

 8
3

4
1

 
 

 O
p

e
n

 
        

 A
g
e

n
d

a
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
a

n
d

 a
n

y
 r

e
la

te
d

 
a

p
p
e

n
d

ic
e

s
 

 

 R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 a

n
d

 
C

a
p

it
a

l 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 f

o
r 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
 a

s
 a

t 
3

0
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1
3

 
 

 T
o
 n

o
te

 t
h

e
 

fo
re

c
a

s
t 
p

o
s
it
io

n
 

a
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e
d

 
v
ir

e
m

e
n
ts

 
 

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 1
2

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 
 

 C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

T
o

n
y
 

F
e

rr
a

ri
 

 S
im

o
n

 G
e
o

rg
e

, 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 
a

n
d

 A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 
s
te

v
e

.t
in

g
le

@
h

a
rr

o
w

.g
o

v
.u

k
  

T
e

l:
 0

2
0
 

8
8

6
8

 8
3

4
1

 
 

 O
p

e
n

 
        

 A
g
e

n
d

a
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
a

n
d

 a
n

y
 r

e
la

te
d

 
a

p
p
e

n
d

ic
e

s
 

 

 D
ra

ft
 H

R
A

 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
2

0
1
4

-1
5

, 
d

ra
ft

 M
T

F
S

 2
0

1
5

-
1

6
 t
o

 2
0

1
7

-1
8

, 

 T
o
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 

d
ra

ft
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
fo

r 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
; 
to

 
a

p
p

ro
v
e

 t
h
e

 

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 1
2

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 
 

 C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
rs

 B
a

rr
y
 

M
a

c
le

o
d

-C
u

lli
n

a
n

e
 

a
n

d
 T

o
n

y
 F

e
rr

a
ri
 

 

 O
p

e
n

 
   

 A
g
e

n
d

a
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
a

n
d

 a
n

y
 r

e
la

te
d

 
a

p
p
e

n
d

ic
e

s
: 

d
ra

ft
 

H
R

A
 b

u
d

g
e

t,
 

36



S
u

b
je

c
t 

N
a

tu
re

 o
f 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 
D

e
c

is
io

n
 M

a
k

e
r 

D
e

c
is

io
n

 d
a

te
 /

 
P

e
ri

o
d

 o
f 

D
e

c
is

io
n

 

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

M
e

m
b

e
r 

/ 
L

e
a

d
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

O
p

e
n

 o
r 

P
ri

v
a

te
 

M
e

e
ti

n
g

 
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
D

o
c

u
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 

b
e

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 

 

- 
5

 o
f 

1
5

 -
 

d
ra

ft
 H

R
A

 C
a
p

it
a

l 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
2

0
1
4

-1
5
 

to
 2

0
1

7
-1

8
 

 

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 r

e
n

t 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 f
o

r 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
; 
to

 
a

p
p

ro
v
e

 t
h
e

 
p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

s
 i
n
 f

e
e

s
 

&
 c

h
a

rg
e

s
 f
o

r 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
; 
to

 
a

p
p

ro
v
e

 t
h
e

 d
ra

ft
 

c
a

p
it
a

l 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
fo

r 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

 

P
a

u
l 
N

a
js

a
re

k
, 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir
e

c
to

r,
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 H

e
a

lt
h

 
a

n
d

 W
e
llb

e
in

g
 

d
a

v
e

.r
o

b
e

rt
s
@

h
a

rr
o

w
.g

o
v
.u

k
  

T
e

l:
 

0
2

0
 8

4
2

0
 9

6
7
8

, 
S

im
o
n

 G
e
o

rg
e

, 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 
a

n
d

 A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 
 

     

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 r

e
n

t 
in

c
re

a
s
e

; 
s
c
h

e
d
u

le
 o

f 
p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 f
e

e
s
 

a
n

d
 c

h
a

rg
e

s
; 

d
ra

ft
 H

R
A

 C
a
p

it
a

l 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

 

 C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 F

u
n

d
 

2
0

1
3

-1
4

 
 

 N
o

te
 t
h

e
 

e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 s

u
rp

lu
s
 

o
n

 C
o

lle
c
ti
o
n

 
F

u
n

d
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
 

th
e

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

to
 b

e
 

tr
a

n
s
fe

rr
e

d
 t

o
 t
h

e
 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 
F

u
n

d
 

 

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 1
2

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 
 

 C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

T
o

n
y
 

F
e

rr
a

ri
 

 S
im

o
n

 G
e
o

rg
e

, 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 
a

n
d

 A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 
h

a
s
in

a
.s

h
a
h

@
h

a
rr

o
w

.g
o

v
.u

k
  

T
e

l:
 

0
2

0
 8

4
2

4
 1

5
7
3

 
 

 O
p

e
n

 
        

 A
g
e

n
d

a
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
a

n
d

 a
n

y
 r

e
la

te
d

 
a

p
p
e

n
d

ic
e

s
 

 

 L
o

c
a

lly
 L

is
te

d
 

B
u

ild
in

g
s
 

 

 A
d

o
p
t 

L
o

c
a

lly
 

L
is

te
d

 B
u

ild
in

g
s
 

S
P

D
 

 

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 1
2

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 
 

 C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

S
te

p
h
e

n
 

G
re

e
k
 

 S
te

p
h

e
n
 K

e
lly

, 
D

iv
is

io
n

a
l 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

P
la

n
n

in
g
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

lu
c
y
.h

a
ile

@
h

a
rr

o
w

.

 O
p

e
n

 
       

 A
g
e

n
d

a
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
a

n
d

 a
n

y
 r

e
la

te
d

 
a

p
p
e

n
d

ic
e

s
: 

L
o

c
a

lly
 L

is
te

d
 

B
u

ild
in

g
s
 S

P
D

; 
S

c
h

e
d
u

le
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
u

b
lic

 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 o

v
e

r 

37



S
u

b
je

c
t 

N
a

tu
re

 o
f 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 
D

e
c

is
io

n
 M

a
k

e
r 

D
e

c
is

io
n

 d
a

te
 /

 
P

e
ri

o
d

 o
f 

D
e

c
is

io
n

 

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

M
e

m
b

e
r 

/ 
L

e
a

d
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

O
p

e
n

 o
r 

P
ri

v
a

te
 

M
e

e
ti

n
g

 
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
D

o
c

u
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 

b
e

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 

 

- 
6

 o
f 

1
5

 -
 

g
o

v
.u

k
  

T
e

l:
 0

2
0
 

8
7

3
6

 6
1

0
1

 
 

 
th

e
 d

ra
ft

 L
o

c
a

lly
 

L
is

te
d

 B
u

ild
in

g
s
 

S
P

D
 

 

 S
ta

n
m

o
re

 a
n
d

 
E

d
g
w

a
re

 
C

o
n

s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
 

A
re

a
s
 S

P
D

 
 

 T
o
 a

d
o

p
t 
th

e
 

S
ta

n
m

o
re

 a
n
d

 
E

d
g
w

a
re

 
C

o
n

s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
 

A
re

a
s
 S

P
D

 
  

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 1
2

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 
 

 C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

S
te

p
h
e

n
 

G
re

e
k
 

 S
te

p
h

e
n
 K

e
lly

, 
D

iv
is

io
n

a
l 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

P
la

n
n

in
g
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

lu
c
y
.h

a
ile

@
h

a
rr

o
w

.
g
o

v
.u

k
  

T
e

l:
 0

2
0
8

 
7

3
6

 6
1
0

1
 

 

 O
p

e
n

 
        

 A
g
e

n
d

a
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
a

n
d

 a
n

y
 r

e
la

te
d

 
a

p
p
e

n
d

ic
e

s
: 

S
ta

n
m

o
re

 a
n
d

 
E

d
g
w

a
re

 
C

o
n

s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
 

A
re

a
s
 

S
P

D
;S

c
h
e

d
u

le
 o

f 
th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 d

ra
ft

 
S

ta
n
m

o
re

 a
n
d

 
E

d
g
w

a
re

 
C

o
n

s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
 

A
re

a
s
 S

P
D

 a
n
d

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

re
s
p

o
n

s
e

s
 t

o
 t

h
is

 
 

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
E

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 -

 
W

h
it
e
fr

ia
rs

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

S
c
h

o
o

l 
 

 W
h
e
th

e
r 

to
 

p
u

b
lis

h
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 
p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 t

o
 

e
x
p

a
n

d
 

W
h
it
e
fr

ia
rs

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

S
c
h

o
o

l 
a

n
d

 t
o
 

e
x
te

n
d

 t
h

e
 a

g
e

 

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 1
2

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 
 

 C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

J
a

n
e

t 
M

o
te

 
 C

a
th

e
ri
n

e
 D

o
ra

n
, 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir
e

c
to

r,
 

C
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 
F

a
m

ili
e

s
 

jo
h

a
n
n

a
.m

o
rg

a
n
@

 O
p

e
n

 
       

 A
g
e

n
d

a
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
a

n
d

 a
n

y
 r

e
la

te
d

 
a

p
p
e

n
d

ic
e

s
 

 

38



S
u

b
je

c
t 

N
a

tu
re

 o
f 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 
D

e
c

is
io

n
 M

a
k

e
r 

D
e

c
is

io
n

 d
a

te
 /

 
P

e
ri

o
d

 o
f 

D
e

c
is

io
n

 

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

M
e

m
b

e
r 

/ 
L

e
a

d
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

O
p

e
n

 o
r 

P
ri

v
a

te
 

M
e

e
ti

n
g

 
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
D

o
c

u
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 

b
e

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 

 

- 
7

 o
f 

1
5

 -
 

ra
n

g
e

 t
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 

s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

 
 

h
a

rr
o

w
.g

o
v
.u

k
  

T
e

l:
 

0
2

0
 8

7
3

6
 6

8
4
1

 
 

 

 P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

B
a

n
k
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

(N
o

n
-K

e
y
 b

u
t 

p
a

rt
 

E
x
e

m
p

t)
 

 

 T
o
 a

g
re

e
 t
o

 t
h
e

 
a

w
a

rd
 o

f 
a

 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 

s
u

p
p

ly
 o

f 
b
a

n
k
in

g
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 
n

e
x
t 

5
/7

 y
e

a
rs

. 
 

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 1
2

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 
 

 C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

T
o

n
y
 

F
e

rr
a

ri
 

 S
im

o
n

 G
e
o

rg
e

, 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 
a

n
d

 A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 
ia

n
.t

a
lb

o
t@

h
a

rr
o

w
.

g
o

v
.u

k
  

T
e

l:
 0

2
0
 

8
4

2
4

 1
4

5
0

 
 

 P
a

rt
 e

x
e

m
p

t 
   In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 
re

la
ti
n

g
 t

o
 t
h

e
 

fi
n
a

n
c
ia

l 
o

r 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

ff
a

ir
s
 

o
f 

a
n

y
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

p
e

rs
o

n
 

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
o

ld
in

g
 

th
a

t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

) 
 

    

 A
g
e

n
d

a
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
a

n
d

 a
n

y
 r

e
la

te
d

 
a

p
p
e

n
d

ic
e

s
 

 

 J
A

N
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1

4
 

  C
o

u
n

c
il 

F
e

e
s
 a

n
d

 
C

h
a

rg
e

s
 

 

 A
g
re

e
 t

h
e
 F

e
e

s
 &

 
C

h
a

rg
e

s
 t

o
 b

e
 

im
p

le
m

e
n
te

d
 

fr
o
m

 t
h

e
 d

a
te

s
 

in
d

ic
a

te
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

re
p

o
rt

 

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 1
5

 J
a
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
1

4
 

 

 C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

T
o

n
y
 

F
e

rr
a

ri
 

 S
im

o
n

 G
e
o

rg
e

, 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 
a

n
d

 A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 

 O
p

e
n

 
     

 A
g
e

n
d

a
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
a

n
d

 a
n

y
 r

e
la

te
d

 
a

p
p
e

n
d

ic
e

s
 

 

39



S
u

b
je

c
t 

N
a

tu
re

 o
f 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 
D

e
c

is
io

n
 M

a
k

e
r 

D
e

c
is

io
n

 d
a

te
 /

 
P

e
ri

o
d

 o
f 

D
e

c
is

io
n

 

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

M
e

m
b

e
r 

/ 
L

e
a

d
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

O
p

e
n

 o
r 

P
ri

v
a

te
 

M
e

e
ti

n
g

 
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
D

o
c

u
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 

b
e

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 

 

- 
8

 o
f 

1
5

 -
 

 
s
te

v
e

.t
in

g
le

@
h

a
rr

o
w

.g
o

v
.u

k
  

T
e

l:
 0

2
0
 

8
8

6
8

 8
3

4
1

 
 

   

 H
a

rr
o

w
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
S

P
D

 
 

 T
h
a

t 
C

a
b

in
e

t 
b

e
 

re
q
u

e
s
te

d
 t
o

 
a

p
p

ro
v
e

 t
h
e

 d
ra

ft
 

S
P

D
 f

o
r 

a
 

m
in

im
u

m
 o

f 
fo

u
r 

w
e

e
k
s
 p

u
b

lic
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 
lin

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

In
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

 

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 1
5

 J
a
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
1

4
 

 

 C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

S
te

p
h
e

n
 

G
re

e
k
 

 S
te

p
h

e
n
 K

e
lly

, 
D

iv
is

io
n

a
l 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

P
la

n
n

in
g
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

m
a

tt
h

e
w

.p
a

te
rs

o
n

@
h

a
rr

o
w

.g
o

v
.u

k
  

T
e

l:
 0

2
0

 8
7

3
6
 

6
0

8
3

 
 

 O
p

e
n

 
        

 A
g
e

n
d

a
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
a

n
d

 a
n

y
 r

e
la

te
d

 
a

p
p
e

n
d

ic
e

s
:d

ra
ft

 
H

a
rr

o
w

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
S

P
D

 
 

 R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
H

a
rr

o
w

 
H

e
lp

  
&

 
E

m
e

rg
e

n
c
y
 R

e
lie

f 
S

c
h

e
m

e
 (

E
R

S
) 

 

 T
o
 n

o
te

 t
h

e
 p

ilo
t 

o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 
re

v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 a
g
re

e
 

to
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 w
it
h

 
s
c
h

e
m

e
 b

e
y
o

n
d

 
th

e
 1

 y
e

a
r 

p
ilo

t 
 

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 1
5

 J
a
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
1

4
 

 

 C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

T
o

n
y
 

F
e

rr
a

ri
 

 T
o
m

 W
h
it
in

g
, 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

R
e

s
o
u

rc
e

s
 

fe
rn

.s
ilv

e
ri
o

@
h

a
rr

o
w

.g
o

v
.u

k
  

T
e

l:
 0

2
0
 

8
7

3
6

 6
8

1
8

 
 

 O
p

e
n

 
        

 A
g
e

n
d

a
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
a

n
d

 a
n

y
 r

e
la

te
d

 
a

p
p
e

n
d

ic
e

s
 

 

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
e

b
t 

 T
o
 n

o
te

 w
o

rk
 

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 1
5

 J
a
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
1

4
 

 C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

T
o

n
y
 

 O
p

e
n

 
 A

g
e

n
d

a
 R

e
p

o
rt

 

40



S
u

b
je

c
t 

N
a

tu
re

 o
f 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 
D

e
c

is
io

n
 M

a
k

e
r 

D
e

c
is

io
n

 d
a

te
 /

 
P

e
ri

o
d

 o
f 

D
e

c
is

io
n

 

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

M
e

m
b

e
r 

/ 
L

e
a

d
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

O
p

e
n

 o
r 

P
ri

v
a

te
 

M
e

e
ti

n
g

 
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
D

o
c

u
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 

b
e

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 

 

- 
9

 o
f 

1
5

 -
 

C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 

 
d

o
n
e

 t
o
 d

a
te

 a
n

d
 

a
g
re

e
 t

h
e
 

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 d
e
b

t 
re

c
o

v
e

ry
 p

o
lic

y
 

 

 
 

F
e

rr
a

ri
 

 T
o
m

 W
h
it
in

g
, 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

R
e

s
o
u

rc
e

s
 

fe
rn

.s
ilv

e
ri
o

@
h

a
rr

o
w

.g
o

v
.u

k
  

T
e

l:
 0

2
0
 

8
7

3
6

 6
8

1
8

 
 

        

a
n

d
 a

n
y
 r

e
la

te
d

 
a

p
p
e

n
d

ic
e

s
 

 

 B
u

ild
in

g
s
 

In
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 f
o

r 
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
L

e
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 

 

 A
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
o
f 

th
e
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
 

to
 e

n
te

r 
in

to
 a

 
th

re
e

-y
e

a
r 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

b
u

ild
in

g
s
 

in
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 f

o
r 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
le

a
s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 

 

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 1
5

 J
a
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
1

4
 

 

 C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
rs

 B
a

rr
y
 

M
a

c
le

o
d

-C
u

lli
n

a
n

e
 

a
n

d
 T

o
n

y
 F

e
rr

a
ri
 

 S
im

o
n

 G
e
o

rg
e

, 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 
a

n
d

 A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 
k
a

re
n

.v
ic

k
e

ry
@

h
a

r
ro

w
.g

o
v
.u

k
  

T
e

l:
 

0
2

0
8

 4
2

4
 1

9
9
5

 
 

 P
a

rt
 e

x
e

m
p

t 
   In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 
re

la
ti
n

g
 t

o
 t
h

e
 

fi
n
a

n
c
ia

l 
o

r 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

ff
a

ir
s
 

o
f 

a
n

y
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

p
e

rs
o

n
 

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
o

ld
in

g
 

th
a

t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

) 
 

    

 A
g
e

n
d

a
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
a

n
d

 a
n

y
 r

e
la

te
d

 
a

p
p
e

n
d

ic
e

s
 

 

 H
a

rr
o

w
 M

u
tu

a
l 

S
u

p
p
o

rt
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 
C

o
n

tr
a

c
t 
A

w
a

rd
 

 

 A
g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
to

 
e

n
te

r 
in

to
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

 

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 1
5

 J
a
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
1

4
 

 

 C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

B
a

rr
y
 

M
a

c
le

o
d

-C
u

lli
n

a
n

e
 

 P
a

u
l 
N

a
js

a
re

k
, 

 P
a

rt
 e

x
e

m
p

t 
   

 A
g
e

n
d

a
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
a

n
d

 a
n

y
 r

e
la

te
d

 
a

p
p
e

n
d

ic
e

s
 

 

41



S
u

b
je

c
t 

N
a

tu
re

 o
f 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 
D

e
c

is
io

n
 M

a
k

e
r 

D
e

c
is

io
n

 d
a

te
 /

 
P

e
ri

o
d

 o
f 

D
e

c
is

io
n

 

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

M
e

m
b

e
r 

/ 
L

e
a

d
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

O
p

e
n

 o
r 

P
ri

v
a

te
 

M
e

e
ti

n
g

 
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
D

o
c

u
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 

b
e

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 

 

- 
1

0
 o

f 
1

5
 -

 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir
e

c
to

r,
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 H

e
a

lt
h

 
a

n
d

 W
e
llb

e
in

g
 

ti
m

.m
ill

e
r@

h
a

rr
o

w
.

g
o

v
.u

k
  

T
e

l:
 0

2
0
 

8
7

3
6

 6
3

3
0

 
 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 
re

la
ti
n

g
 t

o
 t
h

e
 

fi
n
a

n
c
ia

l 
o

r 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

ff
a

ir
s
 

o
f 

a
n

y
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

p
e

rs
o

n
 

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
o

ld
in

g
 

th
a

t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

) 
 

    

 R
is

k
 B

a
s
e

d
 

V
e

ri
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 (

R
B

V
) 

P
o

lic
y
 f

o
r 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

&
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 

S
u

p
p
o

rt
 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 

 

 Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
R

B
V

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

s
 t
h

e
 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 

re
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

. 
A

d
o

p
ti
n

g
 t

h
e
 

p
o

lic
y
 w

ill
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 
th

e
 n

e
c
e

s
s
it
y
 f

o
r 

b
e

n
e
fi
t 

c
la

im
a

n
ts

 
to

 p
ro

d
u

c
e
 

o
ri
g
in

a
l 

d
o

c
u
m

e
n

ts
 t
o

 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 t

h
e

ir
 

c
la

im
 a

n
d

 r
e
d

u
c
e
 

c
la

im
a

n
t 

c
o
n

ta
c
t 

 

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 1
5

 J
a
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
1

4
 

 

 C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

T
o

n
y
 

F
e

rr
a

ri
 

 T
o
m

 W
h
it
in

g
, 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

R
e

s
o
u

rc
e

s
 

fe
rn

.s
ilv

e
ri
o

@
h

a
rr

o
w

.g
o

v
.u

k
  

T
e

l:
 0

2
0
 

8
7

3
6

 6
8

1
8

 
 

 P
a

rt
 e

x
e

m
p

t 
   A

n
y
 a

c
ti
o

n
 

ta
k
e

n
 o

r 
to

 b
e
 

ta
k
e

n
 i
n

 
c
o

n
n
e

c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 
th

e
 p

re
v
e

n
ti
o

n
, 

in
v
e

s
ti
g
a

ti
o

n
 o

r 
p

ro
s
e

c
u

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
ri
m

e
. 

 
    

 A
g
e

n
d

a
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
a

n
d

 a
n

y
 r

e
la

te
d

 
a

p
p
e

n
d

ic
e

s
 

 

42



S
u

b
je

c
t 

N
a

tu
re

 o
f 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 
D

e
c

is
io

n
 M

a
k

e
r 

D
e

c
is

io
n

 d
a

te
 /

 
P

e
ri

o
d

 o
f 

D
e

c
is

io
n

 

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

M
e

m
b

e
r 

/ 
L

e
a

d
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

O
p

e
n

 o
r 

P
ri

v
a

te
 

M
e

e
ti

n
g

 
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
D

o
c

u
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 

b
e

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 

 

- 
1

1
 o

f 
1

5
 -

 

 E
n

te
ri
n

g
 i
n

to
 a

 
C

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

to
 

d
e

liv
e

r 
E

C
O

 
fu

n
d
e

d
 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e
n

ts
 t
o

 
h

o
m

e
s
 i
n

 H
a

rr
o

w
 

 

 A
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
s
o

u
g
h

t 
to

 e
n

te
r 

in
to

 a
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

w
it
h

 
B

ri
ti
s
h

 G
a

s
 t
o

 
d

e
liv

e
r 

E
C

O
 

fu
n

d
e

d
 e

n
e

rg
y
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 

m
e

a
s
u

re
s
 t
o

 
d

w
e

lli
n

g
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

 
 

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 1
5

 J
a
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
1

4
 

 

 C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
rs

 S
u

s
a

n
 

H
a

ll,
 B

a
rr

y
 

M
a

c
le

o
d

-
C

u
lli

n
a

n
e

, 
S

te
p

h
e

n
 

W
ri
g
h

t 
 C

a
ro

lin
e

 B
ru

c
e

, 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 
p

a
u

l.
m

u
lli

n
s
@

h
a

rr
o

w
.g

o
v
.u

k
  

T
e

l:
 

0
2

0
 8

4
2

4
 1

4
7
3

, 
P

a
u

l 
N

a
js

a
re

k
, 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir
e

c
to

r,
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 H

e
a

lt
h

 
a

n
d

 W
e
llb

e
in

g
 

 

 O
p

e
n

 
        

 A
g
e

n
d

a
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
a

n
d

 a
n

y
 r

e
la

te
d

 
a

p
p
e

n
d

ic
e

s
 

 

 F
E

B
R

U
A

R
Y

 2
0

1
4

 
  C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n
 -

 
2

0
1
4

/1
5

 
 

 S
e

ts
 o

u
t 
th

e
 

P
o

lic
y
 d

ir
e

c
ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 k

e
y
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 

fo
r 

th
e
 y

e
a

r 
a

h
e
a

d
. 

  

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

 

 1
3

 F
e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1
4

 
 2

0
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1
4

 
 

 C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

S
u

s
a

n
 

H
a

ll 
   T

o
m

 W
h
it
in

g
, 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

R
e

s
o
u

rc
e

s
 

a
le

x
.d

e
w

s
n

a
p

@
h
a

 O
p

e
n

 
        

 A
g
e

n
d

a
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
a

n
d

 a
n

y
 r

e
la

te
d

 
a

p
p
e

n
d

ic
e

s
 

 

43



S
u

b
je

c
t 

N
a

tu
re

 o
f 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 
D

e
c

is
io

n
 M

a
k

e
r 

D
e

c
is

io
n

 d
a

te
 /

 
P

e
ri

o
d

 o
f 

D
e

c
is

io
n

 

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

M
e

m
b

e
r 

/ 
L

e
a

d
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

O
p

e
n

 o
r 

P
ri

v
a

te
 

M
e

e
ti

n
g

 
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
D

o
c

u
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 

b
e

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 

 

- 
1

2
 o

f 
1

5
 -

 

rr
o

w
.g

o
v
.u

k
  

T
e

l:
 

0
2

0
 8

4
1

6
 8

2
5
0

 
 

 

44



 

- 
1

3
 o

f 
1

5
 -

 

H
A

R
R

O
W

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 
 C

O
N

T
A

C
T

 D
E

T
A

IL
S

 O
F

 P
O

R
T

F
O

L
IO

 H
O

L
D

E
R

S
 

 P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 
 

C
o

u
n

c
il

lo
r 

A
d

d
re

s
s

 
T

e
le

p
h

o
n

e
 n

o
. 

E
m

a
il

 

L
e

a
d

e
r,

  
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 &

 
  

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 

S
u

s
a

n
 H

a
ll 

C
o

n
s
e

rv
a

ti
v
e

 G
ro

u
p

 
  

 O
ff

ic
e
, 

R
o

o
m

 1
0

2
 

P
O

 B
o

x
 2

, 
C

iv
ic

 C
e

n
tr

e
 

S
ta

ti
o
n

 R
o

a
d

 
H

A
R

R
O

W
 

H
A

1
 2

U
H

 

M
o

b
ile

: 
 

0
7

8
6

0
 7

4
2
0

9
3

 
G

ro
u

p
 O

ff
ic

e
: 

(0
2

0
) 

8
4

2
4

 1
8
5

2
 

 

E
m

a
il:

 s
u
s
a
n
.h

a
ll@

h
a
rr

o
w

.g
o

v
.u

k
 

 

D
e

p
u

ty
 L

e
a
d

e
r,

  
A

d
u

lt
s
 &

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 

B
a

rr
y
 M

a
c
le

o
d

-
C

u
lli

n
a

n
e

 
C

o
n

s
e

rv
a

ti
v
e

 G
ro

u
p

 
  

 O
ff

ic
e
, 

R
o

o
m

 1
0

2
 

P
O

 B
o

x
 2

, 
C

iv
ic

 C
e

n
tr

e
 

S
ta

ti
o
n

 R
o

a
d

 
H

A
R

R
O

W
 

H
A

1
 2

U
H

 

M
o

b
ile

: 
 

0
7

9
7

6
 7

1
2
6

1
1

 
G

ro
u

p
 O

ff
ic

e
: 

(0
2

0
) 

8
4

2
4

 1
8
5

2
 

 

E
m

a
il:

  

b
a
rr

y
.m

a
c
le

o
d
-c

u
lli

n
a
n

e
@

h
a
rr

o
w

.g
o

v
.u

k
 

 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 &

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e
 

 

K
a

m
 C

h
a
n

a
 

C
o

n
s
e

rv
a

ti
v
e

 G
ro

u
p

 
  

 O
ff

ic
e
, 

R
o

o
m

 1
0

2
 

P
O

 B
o

x
 2

, 
C

iv
ic

 C
e

n
tr

e
 

S
ta

ti
o
n

 R
o

a
d

 
H

A
R

R
O

W
 

H
A

1
 2

U
H

 

M
o

b
ile

: 
 

0
7

7
7

9
 1

3
3
4

5
7

 
G

ro
u

p
 O

ff
ic

e
: 

(0
2

0
) 

8
4

2
4

 1
8
5

2
 

 

E
m

a
il:

 k
a
m

a
lji

t.
c
h
a
n
a

@
h

a
rr

o
w

.g
o

v
.u

k
 

 

C
h

ild
re

n
 &

 S
c
h

o
o

ls
 

J
a

n
e

t 
M

o
te

 
C

o
n

s
e

rv
a

ti
v
e

 G
ro

u
p

 
  

 O
ff

ic
e
, 

R
o

o
m

 1
0

2
 

P
O

 B
o

x
 2

, 
C

iv
ic

 C
e

n
tr

e
 

S
ta

ti
o
n

 R
o

a
d

 
H

A
R

R
O

W
 

H
A

1
 2

U
H

 

M
o

b
ile

: 
 

0
7

9
7

0
 6

7
2
9

5
8

 
G

ro
u

p
 O

ff
ic

e
: 

(0
2

0
) 

8
4

2
4

 1
8
5

2
 

E
m

a
il:

 ja
n
e
t.
m

o
te

@
h
a
rr

o
w

.g
o

v
.u

k
 

45



 

- 
1

4
 o

f 
1

5
 -

 

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 
 

C
o

u
n

c
il

lo
r 

A
d

d
re

s
s

 
T

e
le

p
h

o
n

e
 n

o
. 

E
m

a
il

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti
o

n
s
, 

  
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 

  
 R

e
s
o
u

rc
e

s
 

 

P
a

u
l 
O

s
b

o
rn

 
C

o
n

s
e

rv
a

ti
v
e

 G
ro

u
p

 
  

 O
ff

ic
e
, 

R
o

o
m

 1
0

2
 

P
O

 B
o

x
 2

, 
C

iv
ic

 C
e

n
tr

e
 

S
ta

ti
o
n

 R
o

a
d

 
H

A
R

R
O

W
 

H
A

1
 2

U
H

 

H
o

m
e

: 
(0

2
0

) 
7
6

9
2

 7
1
8

8
 

G
ro

u
p

 O
ff

ic
e

: 
(0

2
0

) 
8
4

2
4

 1
8
5

2
 

 

E
m

a
il:

 p
a
u

l.
o

s
b
o

rn
@

h
a

rr
o

w
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 &

 C
u

lt
u

re
 

M
a

n
ji 

K
a

ra
 

C
o

n
s
e

rv
a

ti
v
e

 G
ro

u
p

 
  

 O
ff

ic
e
, 

R
o

o
m

 1
0

2
 

P
O

 B
o

x
 2

, 
C

iv
ic

 C
e

n
tr

e
 

S
ta

ti
o
n

 R
o

a
d

 
H

A
R

R
O

W
 

H
A

1
 2

U
H

 

M
o

b
ile

: 
 

0
7

9
1

9
 0

1
6
5

3
5
 

G
ro

u
p

 O
ff

ic
e

: 
(0

2
0

) 
8
4

2
4

 1
8
5

2
 

E
m

a
il:

 m
a
n
ji.

k
a
ra

@
h
a
rr

o
w

.g
o

v
.u

k
 

 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 
T

o
n

y
 F

e
rr

a
ri
 

C
o

n
s
e

rv
a

ti
v
e

 G
ro

u
p

 
  

 O
ff

ic
e
, 

R
o

o
m

 1
0

2
 

P
O

 B
o

x
 2

, 
C

iv
ic

 C
e

n
tr

e
 

S
ta

ti
o
n

 R
o

a
d

 
H

A
R

R
O

W
 

H
A

1
 2

U
H

 

M
o

b
ile

: 
 

0
7

9
1

4
 9

6
1
0

3
5
 

G
ro

u
p

 O
ff

ic
e

: 
(0

2
0

) 
8
4

2
4

 1
8
5

2
 

E
m

a
il:

 t
o
n

y
.f

e
rr

a
ri

@
h
a
rr

o
w

.g
o

v
.u

k
 

 

H
e

a
lt
h

 &
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 

S
im

o
n

 W
ill

ia
m

s
 

C
o

n
s
e

rv
a

ti
v
e

 G
ro

u
p

 
  

 O
ff

ic
e
, 

R
o

o
m

 1
0

2
 

P
O

 B
o

x
 2

, 
C

iv
ic

 C
e

n
tr

e
 

S
ta

ti
o
n

 R
o

a
d

 
H

A
R

R
O

W
 

H
A

1
 2

U
H

 

M
o

b
ile

: 
 

0
7

7
9

6
 5

8
0
0

1
0

 
G

ro
u

p
 O

ff
ic

e
: 

(0
2

0
) 

8
4

2
4

 1
8
5

2
 

 

E
m

a
il:

 s
im

o
n
.w

ill
ia

m
s
@

h
a
rr

o
w

.g
o

v
.u

k
 

 

P
la

n
n

in
g
, 

D
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

&
 

  
 R

e
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 

 

S
te

p
h

e
n
 G

re
e

k
 

C
o

n
s
e

rv
a

ti
v
e

 G
ro

u
p

 
  

 O
ff

ic
e
, 

R
o

o
m

 1
0

2
 

P
O

 B
o

x
 2

, 
C

iv
ic

 C
e

n
tr

e
 

S
ta

ti
o
n

 R
o

a
d

 
H

A
R

R
O

W
 

H
A

1
 2

U
H

 

M
o

b
ile

: 
 

0
7

7
7

9
 6

3
9
4

0
8

 
G

ro
u

p
 O

ff
ic

e
: 

(0
2

0
) 

8
4

2
4

 1
8
5

2
 

 

E
m

a
il:

 s
te

p
h
e
n
.g

re
e
k
@

h
a

rr
o
w

.g
o

v
.u

k
 

 

 

46



 

- 
1

5
 o

f 
1

5
 -

 

 P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 
 

C
o

u
n

c
il

lo
r 

A
d

d
re

s
s

 
T

e
le

p
h

o
n

e
 n

o
. 

E
m

a
il

 

P
ro

p
e

rt
y
 &

 M
a

jo
r 

  
 C

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 
S

te
p
h

e
n
 W

ri
g
h

t 
C

o
n

s
e

rv
a

ti
v
e

 G
ro

u
p

 
  

 O
ff

ic
e
, 

R
o

o
m

 1
0

2
 

P
O

 B
o

x
 2

, 
C

iv
ic

 C
e

n
tr

e
 

S
ta

ti
o
n

 R
o

a
d

 
H

A
R

R
O

W
 

H
A

1
 2

U
H

 

M
o

b
ile

: 
 

0
7

8
9

9
 9

2
0
1

3
3

 
G

ro
u

p
 O

ff
ic

e
: 

(0
2

0
) 

8
4

2
4

 1
8
5

2
 

E
m

a
il:

 s
te

p
h
e
n
.w

ri
g

h
t@

h
a
rr

o
w

.g
o

v
.u

k
 

 

  N
o

n
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 M
e

m
b

e
rs

 

 
 

 
 

 

L
e

a
d

e
r 

o
f 

th
e

 
In

d
e
p

e
n
d

e
n

t 
L
a

b
o

u
r 

G
ro

u
p

 

T
h
a

y
a

 I
d

a
ik

k
a
d

a
r 

In
d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n

t 
L
a

b
o

u
r 

  
 G

ro
u
p

 O
ff

ic
e

 
M

id
d

le
s
e

x
 S

u
it
e

 N
o

rt
h
 

P
O

 B
o

x
, 

2
, 
C

iv
ic

 C
e

n
tr

e
 

S
ta

ti
o
n

 R
o

a
d

 
H

A
R

R
O

W
 

H
A

1
 2

U
H

 

H
o

m
e

: 
 

(0
2

0
) 

8
8

6
3

 2
3
7

2
 

M
o

b
ile

: 
 

0
7

8
1

2
 0

2
8
7

4
1

 
G

ro
u

p
 O

ff
ic

e
: 

(0
2

0
) 

8
4

2
4

 1
1
5

4
 

E
m

a
il:

 t
h
a

y
a
.i
d
a
ik

k
a
d
a
r@

h
a
rr

o
w

.g
o
v
.u

k
 

 

L
e

a
d

e
r 

o
f 

th
e

 L
a

b
o
u

r 
G

ro
u

p
 

D
a

v
id

 P
e

rr
y
 

L
a

b
o

u
r 

G
ro

u
p

 O
ff

ic
e

 
R

o
o

m
 1

0
9

, 
P

O
 B

o
x
 2

 
C

iv
ic

 C
e

n
tr

e
 

S
ta

ti
o
n

 R
o

a
d

 
H

A
R

R
O

W
 

H
A

1
 2

U
H

 

M
o

b
ile

: 
0
7

5
0
5

 
4

3
0
1

3
3

 
G

ro
u

p
 O

ff
ic

e
: 

(0
2

0
) 

8
4

2
4

 1
8
9

7
 

E
m

a
il:

 d
a
v
id

.p
e
rr

y
@

h
a
rr

o
w

.g
o

v
.u

k
 

 

L
a

b
o

u
r 

G
ro

u
p

 
R

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 
G

ra
h

a
m

 H
e

n
s
o

n
 

L
a

b
o

u
r 

G
ro

u
p

 O
ff

ic
e

 
R

o
o

m
 1

0
9

, 
P

O
 B

o
x
 2

 
C

iv
ic

 C
e

n
tr

e
 

S
ta

ti
o
n

 R
o

a
d

 
H

A
R

R
O

W
 

H
A

1
 2

U
H

 

M
o

b
ile

: 
 

0
7

7
2

1
 5

0
9
9

1
5

 
G

ro
u

p
 O

ff
ic

e
: 

(0
2

0
) 

8
4

2
4

 1
8
9

7
 

E
m

a
il:

 g
ra

h
a
m

.h
e
n
s
o
n
@

h
a
rr

o
w

.g
o

v
.u

k
 

 

 

47



48

This page is intentionally left blank



CABINET - 12 DECEMBER 2013 

 

PROGRESS ON SCRUTINY PROJECTS 

 

Review Methodology Type of 
report 

Expected date for 
report to Cabinet 

Comments 

Standing Review 
of the Budget 

Standing 
Review 

Regular 
update 
reports to 
O&S and 
interim, 
specific topic 
and final 
reports to 
O&S and 
Cabinet 
 

A report from the 
review’s 
consideration of the 
use of capital has 
been drafted. 

Evidence gathered during the 
lifetime of the project will be 
used to inform the Question 
and Answer session on the 
budget in January 2014. 
 
It is unlikely that further 
projects will be undertaken 
before the next election, 
however a final report will be 
prepared for the Overview and 
Scrutiny committee in 
February 2014 
 

Customer Care Light touch 
review 

Final Report 
to O&S and 
Cabinet 

January 2014 The report will be presented to 
the Overview and Scrutiny 
committee on 17th December. 
 

Accessible 
Transport 

Light touch 
review 

Final Report 
to O&S and 
Cabinet with 
reference to 
Transport for 
London 

Received in October 
2013 
Response from 
officers November 
2013 

This project is complete 
 

NHS Health 
Checks – 
supported by 
Centre for Public 
Scrutiny (CfPS) 
 

Joint light touch 
review with 
Barnet 

Final Report 
to 
O&S/Health 
and Social 
Care sub 
committee  
and Cabinet 

Estimated 
February/March 
2014 

This is a joint review between 
Harrow and Barnet which will 
look at the role of the Council 
having effective arrangements 
in place for NHS Health 
Checks.  A draft report from 
the project is being prepared 
for consideration by both 
groups. 
 
Because of the timing of the 
Question and Answer session 
on the budget in January, 
there may be a delay in 
submitting the report to 
committee 
 

Agenda Item 8
Pages 49 to 50

49



Joint Overview 
and Scrutiny 
Committee 
‘Shaping a 
Healthier Future’ 

Joint 
Committee  

Update 
reports will 
be provided 
for 
O&S/Health 
and Social 
Care sub 
committee 
and Cabinet 
(for 
information)  

As required 
 

At the last meeting of the joint 
committee in September 
councillors from across the 
seven boroughs agreed to 
continue meeting to consider 
the ongoing implementation of 
the Shaping a Healthier Future 
proposals – it is anticipated 
that full implementation will 
take up to 5 years though the 
downgrading of A&E 
departments at Central 
Middlesex and Ealing hospitals 
has been announced.  The 
implications of these changes 
on the capacity of Northwick 
Park has been identified as an 
area of concern by councillors, 
particularly if they go ahead 
before improvements have 
been made to Northwick Park 
A&E.  Councillors are 
investigating the timetabling of 
the changes. 
 
The next meeting of the Joint 
Committee took place on 3rd 
December 2013. 
 

Deletion of Chief 
Executive post 

Challenge 
panel 

Final report 
to O&S and 
the Leader of 
the Council 

January 2014 The Scrutiny Leadership 
Group wishes to contribute to 
the Leader’s consultation on 
the proposed deletion of the 
Chief Executive post.  The 
challenge panel took place on 
4th December and a report will 
be prepared for the Overview 
and Scrutiny committee as 
soon as possible. 

Child’s Journey 
Through Care 

Light touch 
review 

Final Report 
to O&S and 
Cabinet 

TBC This review has been 
postponed but councillors 
have asked that it remains on 
the scrutiny work programme 
 

 

All scrutiny projects will be completed and reported through to cabinet as early as possible in 
2014. 

 

Contact: Lynne Margetts, Service Manager Scrutiny, 020 8420 9387 

 

50



 

 

REPORT FOR: 

 

CABINET 
 

Date of Meeting: 

 

12 December 2013 

Subject: 

 

School Expansion Programme 

Key Decision: Yes   
 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Catherine Doran, Corporate Director of 
Children and Families 
  

Portfolio Holder: 

 

Councillor Janet Mote, Portfolio Holder for 
Children and Schools 

Exempt: 

 

No 
 

Decision subject to 

Call-in: 

 

Yes 

Enclosures: 

 

Appendix 1 - summary of consultation 
responses and comments 

 
 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 
This report provides details of the outcomes of the statutory consultation on 
the proposals to expand Whitefriars Community School by one form of entry 
and extend the age range to make provision for secondary aged pupils.  Also 
included is an update on Phase 2 of the Primary School Expansion 
Programme and increase the intake in the primary phase. 
 

Recommendations:  
Cabinet is requested to: 

1. Note the outcomes of the statutory consultation. 

2. Agree to the publication of statutory notices to expand permanently and 
extend the age range of Whitefriars Community School to include 
provision for secondary aged pupils. 

 

Agenda Item 9
Pages 51 to 80

51



 

Reason:  (For recommendation) 
To enable the Local Authority to fulfil its statutory duties to provide sufficient 
school places in its area. 
 

 

Section 2 – Report 
 

Introduction 
 
1. Like many boroughs, Harrow is experiencing significant growth in the 

pupil population and has a school place planning strategy to increase 
the number primary school places.  Phase 1 of the primary school 
expansion programme was implemented in September 2013 with 8 
schools in the borough permanently increasing their Reception intakes.  
In July 2013 Cabinet also agreed its Special School SEN Placements 
Planning Framework for bringing forward proposals to increase 
provision for children and young people with special educational needs.  
In November 2013 Cabinet decided the schools that will have statutory 
proposals published for determination by Cabinet in March 2014.  A 
Phase 3 will be planned to meet demand beyond 2016. 

 
2. As the additional primary pupils progress through to the secondary 

phase, there will be pressure on the number of secondary school 
places.  A Secondary School Place Planning Strategy was considered 
by Cabinet at their meeting in November 2013.  The strategy outlines 
three strands in the first phase to meet the increased demand in 
September 2018.  A second phase would be planned for in due course 
depending on developments.  The strategy recognises the contribution 
of expanding existing schools, the opportunities offered to expand 
Whitefriars Community School and to develop the Harrow Teachers’ 
Centre site, and the Government’s free school programme 

 
3. Harrow submitted a bid to the Government’s Targeted Basic Need 

Programme (TBNP) for the development of the Whitefriars Community 
School and Harrow Teachers’ Centre site by one form of entry for the 
primary school and the provision of 750 secondary places plus sixth 
form.  The bid was successful and secured £12.4m funding.  In 
accordance with the TBNP funding conditions the funding has to be 
spent and places available by September 2015.  These additional 
places will contribute to the primary school and secondary school 
expansion strategies. 

 
4. Heathland Whitefriars Governing Body have resolved that the two 

schools will become academy schools and the local authority has 

52



 

received the Academy Orders from the Department for Education 
(DfE). 

 

Options considered 
 
5. The Secondary School Place Planning Strategy identifies the need for 

additional secondary school places.  The provision of secondary places 
at the Whitefriars Community School and Harrow Teachers’ Centre 
sites would contribute to meeting a projected shortfall of places and is 
one of three strands in the first phase of the strategy to bring forward 
additional provision. 
 

6. As the commissioner of school places, Harrow Council would not 
expect to provide the school places, but to commission a provider, 
although this provider can be an existing maintained school.  There are 
several options to bring forward secondary provision on the Whitefriars 
Harrow Teachers’ Centre site.  For example, a new free school with 
DfE selected sponsor, an annexe of an existing high school, a 
successful bid from Harrow based schools to sponsor a free school, or 
the extension of the age range of Whitefriars Community School.  
 

7. The DfE previously considered the suitability of the Harrow Teachers’ 
Centre site for an all through school in conjunction with the Avanti 
House free school proposal.  It was concluded that the site was too 
small to accommodate the free school with the existing Whitefriars 
Community School.  The most appropriate response is to consider the 
site as a whole to make best use of the land and resources. 
 

8. Any proposal to invite a free school proposal for the whole site would 
require the closure of the existing Whitefriars Community School, which 
is a good school in a federation with Heathland School. 

 
9. In accordance with Harrow Council’s vision for education with a focus 

on high quality local provision and Harrow solutions for Harrow 
residents, the preferred approach would be for the local authority to 
work with Whitefriars Community School and the local high schools to 
shape the education provision. 

 
10. By developing the provision in partnership with Whitefriars Community 

School, the existing high schools and the Council, Harrow Council 
would be able to facilitate the delivery of additional places in 
accordance with the TBNP timescale. 

 
11. The delivery of the secondary places will require the complete 

redevelopment of the Whitefriars Community School site and Teachers’ 
Centre site.  This is a complex site to deliver but there is real potential 
to secure a very positive development in the area.  

 
12. There will be the opportunity to improve the current layout of 

Whitefriars Community School.  The site is disparate with some 
inadequate accommodation that would benefit from consolidation.  The 

53



 

holistic development of the site would contribute to the regeneration of 
the Wealdstone area.  

 
Heathland Whitefriars Proposed Conversion to Academy Status 
13. The governors of the Heathland Whitefriars Federation have received 

Academy Orders for the conversion of the schools to academy status.  
The governors have confirmed the planned date for the transfer is April 
2014.  The Governing Body are required to consult before the 
conversion and the consultation was held until 22 November 2013.  

 
14. As part of the academy conversion process there is a land transfer to 

the Academy Trust.  In accordance with the standard academy 
documentation, all land that the school has had sole access to for the 
last 8 years would transfer. This would mean that a large part of the 
site would transfer and there would be licence arrangements to secure 
access for the school to those shared spaces in council ownership.  In 
the event that conversion happens prior to completion of the building 
works, an alternative arrangement will need to be reached to ensure 
the primary school can operate whilst the building works progress. 

 
15. There have been several meetings with the headteacher to discuss the 

academy conversion and the school’s interest in realising their 
ambitions around expansion, secondary provision and pre-school 
provision.  The Council’s preferred approach would be for the academy 
conversion to happen after the building works were complete 
(estimated to be September 2015).  However, whilst the Council has 
confirmed this to the Heathland Whitefriars Chair of Governors and 
Headteacher and can make representations to the Department for 
Education, the decision on the conversion date lies with the 
Department for Education, upon receipt of a proposal from the 
Governing Body of the schools.  The Council has submitted a formal 
response to the Governing Body as part of the consultation and has 
confirmed that it may also write directly to the Department for 
Education in relation to a suitable conversion date. 

 
Wealdstone Community and Learning Campus Proposal 
16. It is proposed that the local authority develops the combined site as the 

Wealdstone Community and Learning Campus. The community 
campus could combine the current local authority provision of the 
Children’s Centre and the primary school places and the proposed 
secondary school provision.  The campus would be a place that offers 
provision and facilities for the community as well as education and 
learning.  
 

17. Harrow Council would commission Heathland Whitefriars Federation to 
provide an additional 210 primary, 750 secondary and 75 sixth form 
places starting in September 2015.  It would work with the school to 
develop the campus and in particular the secondary provision and 
assuring this for the future. 
 

18. As part of the commission, the Council would manage the statutory 
process to expand Whitefriars Community School by one form of entry 

54



 

and extend the age range before the conversion to academy status.  
This is the action that the local authority would be taking with the 
school to deliver the site even if the Governing Body had not resolved 
to academy conversion from April 2014.  To secure the permanent 
expansion of the School, it is necessary for this process to be 
completed and a decision made on the expansion proposal prior to the 
conversion to an academy.  With the initial proposal being to convert in 
April 2014, the timescale is very tight and the land transfer will be more 
complicated, as the Council will not be able to transfer the existing land 
on a long lease due to the proposed plans for the site.  Whilst the 
Council can negotiate an appropriate use arrangement in the interim, if 
this is not agreed, the Secretary of State has powers to compel the 
transfer of land.  The Council can make representations to the 
Department for Education to ensure that future plans are known and 
clearly understood to avoid this situation. 

 
Portfolio Holder Decision 
19. In order to meet the challenging timescales to deliver this project in 

accordance with the conditions of the Targeted Basic Need 
Programme for the new places to be available by September 2015, a 
Portfolio Holder Decision was made in October 2013 to undertake a 
statutory consultation on the proposal.to expand Whitefriars 
Community School by one form of entry and extend the age range to 
make provision for secondary aged pupils.  This decision enabled the 
timeline to be aligned to the other Phase 2 schools proposed for 
expansion and the funding timescales for the Targeted Basic Need 
Programme. 

 

Statutory consultation 
20. The statutory consultation was held from Monday 4 November for four 

weeks closing on 29 November 2013.  The consultation was wide 
ranging and conducted in accordance with the Department for 
Education School Organisation and Competitions Unit guidance.  
Consultation papers were sent to all parents, members of staff and 
governors of Whitefriars Community School and information was 
delivered to residents living close to the current school and Harrow 
Teachers’ Centre sites.  Open consultation meetings were held on 20 
November 2013 for parents and residents to present information and 
enable discussion of the proposals.  Harrow Council sent the 
consultation paper to interested parties including schools, neighbouring 
local authorities, diocesan authorities, local MPs and elected members, 
trade unions, voluntary and community organisations, and Harrow 
Youth Council. 

 

Outcomes of the Statutory Consultation 
21. 49 responses were received to the consultation.  Respondents were 

primarily parents/carers and residents.  A number of comments were 
included with the responses given and the spreadsheet setting out the 
summary of responses and comments is included in Appendix 1.  The 
full consultation responses and comments are available in Background 
Papers to this report.  The consultation responses include separate 

55



 

written responses from the Heathland Whitefriars Federation and the 
High School Heads Group.   
 

22. Two questions were asked in the consultation. They were: 
 

•  “Do you agree with the proposal to permanently expand 
Whitefriars Community School to become a three forms of entry 
primary school?” 

• “Do you agree with the proposal to extend the age range of 
Whitefriars Community School to include secondary school 
provision?” 

Both questions offered the option to respond ‘Yes’, ‘No’, or ‘Not Sure’ 
to each question.  Opportunity was given for comments to be added 
after each question if the respondent wished to do so.  
 

23. The following tables provide overall responses to the consultation 
questions. 
 

24. The overall responses to Question 1 were 
 
Question 1: “Do you agree with the proposal to permanently 
expand Whitefriars Community School to become a three forms of 
entry primary school?” 

Response Number Percentage 

Yes 31 63.27% 

No  13 26.53% 

Not Sure 05 10.20% 

Total 49 100.00% 

 
25. The overall responses to Question 2 were 

 
Question 2: “Do you agree with the proposal to extend the age 
range of Whitefriars Community School to include secondary 
school provision?” 

Response Number Percentage 

Yes 26 53.06% 

No  15 30.61% 

Not Sure 08 16.33% 

Total 49 100.00% 

 
26. The response to the statutory consultation questions by respondent 

type is as follows. 

Numbers Overall   

Harrow Resident 21 

Parent/Carer 25 

Pupil 1 

School Staff 0 

School Governor 0 

Other/Blank 2 

Total 49 

56



 

 
27. The responses by respondent type for the first consultation question 

were as follows: 
Do you agree with the proposal to permanently 
expand Whitefriars Community School to 
become a three forms of entry primary school? 

Harrow 
Resident Other 

Parent 
/ carer Pupil Total 

Yes 6 2 22 1 31 

No 10 0 3 0 13 

Not Sure 5 0 0 0 5 

Totals 21 2 25 1 49 

 
 
28. The responses by respondent type for the second consultation 

question were as follows: 
Do you agree with the proposal to extend the 
age range of Whitefriars Community School to 
include secondary school provision? 

Harrow 
Resident Other 

Parent 
/ carer Pupil Total 

Yes 4 0 21 1 26 

No 13 0 2 0 15 

Not Sure 4 2 2 0 8 

Totals 21 2 25 1 49 

 
Monitoring information 
29. When completing their responses to the consultation, respondents 

were invited to provide information about how they perceive their social 
identity to assist with monitoring the effectiveness of the consultation 
outreach.  Anonymous information was requested under the following 
categories: disability; ethnic group; and religion.  The following tables 
show the responses received under these categories. 

 

Respondents by Disability  

  Number Percentage 

Not Disabled 43 87.76% 

Yes, affecting mobility 0 0% 

Yes, affecting hearing 1 2.04% 

Yes, affecting vision 0 0% 

Yes, a learning disability 0 0% 

Yes, mental ill-health 0 0% 

Yes, another form of 
disability 0 0% 

Not Stated 5 10.20% 

 
 

Ethnic Group Number 
% of total 
response 

Asian Or Asian British 20 40.82% 

Black or Black British 2 4.08% 

Other Ethnic Group 4 8.16% 

57



 

Mixed ethnic background 1 2.04% 

White 20 40.82% 

Did Not Specify 2 4.08% 

 
 

Respondents by Religion   

  Number Percentage 

Buddhism 2 4.08% 

Christianity 21 42.86% 

Hinduism 10 20.41% 

Islam 7 14.29% 

Jainism 1 2.04% 

Judaism 1 2.04% 

Sikh 0 0% 

Zoroastrian 0 0% 

Other 0 0% 

No Religion 1 2.04% 

Not Stated 6 12.24% 

 
Themed analysis of comments received 
30. The responses made to the first consultation question (“Do you agree 

with the proposal to permanently expand Whitefriars Community 
School to become a three forms of entry primary school?”) indicate 
broad agreement with the proposal to permanently expand Whitefriars 
Community School from parents/carers to become a three forms of 
entry primary school.  There was less agreement from residents.  The 
comments made by respondents to this question include the following 
main themes:  

• The area is already congested and overcrowded; 

• Too many schools in one small area; 

• The site is too small for the numbers of children; 

• Traffic is already a problem in the area and this will be made 
worse; 

• Concerns about the quality of the education at a larger school 
and at Whitefriars Community School currently; 

• The safety of children on already busy roads. 
Comments from respondents in favour of the proposal included: 

• More places are needed to cope with the growing demand, 
including in good and outstanding schools; 

• It will be good for the community as long as the school maintains 
a very good standard. 

 
31. Half the responses made to the second consultation question (“Do you 

agree with the proposal to extend the age range of Whitefriars 
Community School to include secondary school provision?”) agreed 
with the proposal to extend the age range of Whitefriars Community 

58



 

School to include secondary school provision.  Again, there was more 
support to the proposal from parents and strong disagreement to the 
proposal from residents.  The comments made by respondents to this 
question include the following main themes (additional to those that 
were the same as made to the first question):  

• Concerns about existing traffic to commercial premises in Cecil 
Road, especially GFL; 

• There was not enough room for Avanti House, so why is this 
proposal acceptable? 

• Anti-social behaviour in the High Street is a problem; 

• Community gains need to be identified; 

• Concern about lack of secondary expertise in the ‘sponsors’ and 
whether the post-16 numbers are sustainable. 

• Existing high schools in the vicinity of the school; 

• Concern that green space would be lost as a result of the 
development. 

Some alternative suggestions were made: 

• Could the Winsor & Newton factory site be used? 

• All high schools should be expanded to cope with the extra 
demand. 

Comments from respondents in favour of the proposal included: 

• This school should cater for all age ranges due to the growing 
population; 

• As long as education standards are kept. 
 
32. A number of questions were raised by respondents, including: 

• Will the intake be for children within walking distance of the 
school? 

• Will there be serious consideration for ESL? 

• Will there be Headteachers for each section of the proposed 
school? 

• What outdoor space is envisaged? 

• Will children have a choice of secondary schools? 

• Will more public transport be provided at essential times? 
 
Response to the consultation from the High School Heads Group 
33. Response to the consultation has been received from the High School 

Heads Group and is available in Background Papers  Key points made 
in the response include: 

• Recognition of the medium term need for additional secondary 
phase places within the Borough and the appropriateness of the 
Teachers Centre as a location for additional secondary phase 
places in a borough where it is difficult to find appropriate sites. 

• The high schools would want to work with Whitefriars on the 
development of the curriculum and staffing to ensure that 
students have access to appropriate specialist teachers during 
the growth of the school when staffing may be a challenge. 

• Suggested approaches to phasing the introduction of the 
secondary phase places prior to the need for all the additional 
places in the borough. 

59



 

• The group would welcome confirmation from Whitefriars as to 
their intentions regarding over-subscription criteria.  The schools 
strongly believe that it is in parents’ interests for over-
subscription criteria for secular, co-educational provision within 
the borough to remain as consistent as possible. 

• Concern that a sixth form capacity of 75 is unsustainable, even 
with inclusion into the Sixth Form Collegiate. 

 
Response to the consultation from Heathland Whitefriars Federation 
34. The Heathland Whitefriars Federation has responded to the 

consultation as follows: “The Federation is very positive about the 
expansion proposals. Our team looks forward to being a key partner, 
with the Harrow Council, in delivering outstanding provision for more 
young people in the local community. Our children’s families tell us that 
they are very excited by this opportunity to build on the success of 
Whitefriars School since the federation with Heathland.”  

 
Officer response to the consultation comments 
35. Officer responses to the consultation comments are given below under 

five main headings that encompass the themes: Traffic; Site; Area; 
School Places; Education Standards. 
Traffic 
The concerns expressed about traffic congestion and road safety in the 
area are fully recognised and detailed response is given in the ‘Traffic 
and congestion issues’ section below. 
Site 
The Harrow Teachers’ Centre site has been identified for additional 
secondary school provision in the Council’s Area Action Plan.  The 
proposal is consistent with the planning contained in that plan which 
was the subject of extensive consultation. 
The proposal has fewer pupil numbers than would have been the case 
if Avanti House free school had been permanently located at the 
Harrow Teachers’ Centre site.  Also, taking a holistic approach to the 
development of the combined school and teacher centre sites 
maximises the opportunities to make best use of available facilities and 
land. 
Area 
The Wealdstone area is densely populated and is located in the central 
area of the borough for development.  Harrow Council is creating 
additional school places as close as possible to where the additional 
demand is and this helps to reduce the need for reliance on vehicular 
transport to and from school. 
The proposed development would seek to maximise any opportunities 
to enhance and improve facilities for local residents.  A sub-group of 
the School Expansion Stakeholder Reference Group, a representative 
group of elected member and stakeholders, is being established to 
promote community engagement in the development of the proposal to 
the benefit of the local community. 
Planning policy requirements would ensure full consideration is given 
to the preservation of green spaces in any development.  
 
  

60



 

School Places 
In November Harrow Cabinet agreed its Secondary School Place 
Planning Strategy to achieve sufficient school places to meet the 
increased demand.  There are three strands to the first phase of the 
strategy: expansion of existing high schools; support for free school 
bids to create new schools; and this proposal.  It is acknowledged that 
there are two existing high schools in the area located on the high 
street and the movement of pupils to and from the site would need to 
be planned and monitored to minimise any issues that may arise.  The 
filling of places at the all-through school would happen incrementally 
and in phases which would assist planning. 
The existing school’s over-subscription criteria relates primarily to 
distance and it is envisaged that the admission criteria for the 
secondary school would be similar.  There is no plan to allow selection 
by academic ability or by faith for the additional school places.  If the 
school converted to an academy in the future, the school would be able 
to change its admission arrangements.  However schools which do not 
have selection by academic ability are not allowed to add in this 
criteria. 
The intake to the secondary provision would be phased and increase 
over time with the first Year 7 intake occurring in September 2015.  
This is because the full number of additional secondary school places 
will not be required in 2015 and to minimise any impact on other 
secondary schools in the borough. 
Education standards 
Whitefriars Community School and Heathland School formed a 
Federated Governing Body in August 2012.  This formalised the 
cooperative working  that has been in place since January 2012 to 
bring about improvements in educational achievement.  The federation 
ensures the best practice from both schools is built upon, and has put 
in place leadership arrangements that are driving that improvement.  
The Federated Governing Body supports the proposal to expand and 
extend the age range of the Whitefriars Community School and 
representatives from the school were involved in the presentation and 
discussion at the open consultation meeting.  The Federated 
Governing Body and senior leadership of the school would develop 
more detailed planning to establish the all through school including 
curriculum and staffing arrangements. 
Whilst the all through school would have one headteacher, it would be 
possible to have deputy headteachers who focused on different phases 
of education.  Staffing decisions are generally a matter for the 
Governing Body. 

 
Traffic and congestion issues 
36. Increased traffic and congestion at the start and end of the school day 

is a characteristic of many schools and has been the major theme of 
concern in the consultation responses about expansion proposals in 
the school expansion programme consultations. The proposal for the 
all through school at the Whitefriars Community School and Harrow 
Teachers’ Centre development would generate a significant increase in 
journeys to the school with a consequent impact on the highway 
network due to the additional traffic. Particularly, there will be potential 

61



 

for increased congestion and road safety problems due to additional 
vehicle trips. 
 

37. The area around Whitefriars Community School and Harrow Teachers’ 
Centre already has a degree of traffic and congestion issues from the 
current school intake and from through traffic along Cecil Road. The 
increase would exacerbate the problems if no mitigating measures are 
taken. To minimise the impact of the additional pupils attending the 
schools proposed for expansion in Phase 2 of the school expansion 
programme including this proposal, a cross-council approach is being 
implemented. This approach brings officers together from Children and 
Families, Enterprise and Environment and Communications to co-
ordinate work.   
 

38. Additional resource is being committed to ensure an appropriate profile 
to all the Phase 2 expansion projects in particular.   

 
This additional resource will ensure: 

• Transport Assessments are undertaken at each of the schools 
proposed for expansion. The assessments will provide an 
independent view of the proposals by reviewing baseline 
information about current traffic volumes and current issues and 
make recommendations about any impact as well as setting out 
any actions required.  This assessment will take account of the 
consultation responses already received. 

• Appointment of a Transport and Travel Planner Officer for the 
expansion projects to develop and implement effective travel 
strategies in conjunction with the schools. This position will also 
coordinate inputs and actions from other council departments to 
assist the change process.  This is a key role in influencing and 
engaging with all stakeholders to change attitudes to travel 
through the review and the development of School Travel Plans 
in order to minimise the use of private car travel to the school, 
particularly by parents. This role will also liaise with the 
Highways, Traffic Management and Enforcement teams to 
ensure that any necessary engineering work and enforcement 
action, including Safer Neighbourhood Teams, is provided in 
line with the travel plans developed.  This officer will also be 
involved in the pre-planning engagement activities and input 
into the planning applications. 

• There will be a communication strategy for the Phase 2 
expansion projects to raise the profile of school travel planning.  
An additional Communications Officer will be engaged to give 
this work a high profile. 

 
39. The congestion that occurs around schools at the beginning and end of 

the school day has been a national problem over many years. Caused 
by the high use of private cars as the dominant travel choice by 
parents, it is currently an issue across most schools in the borough.  
The Council’s policies on addressing the proliferation of vehicular traffic 
and congestion are set out in the Council’s Transport Local 
Implementation Plan (LIP). The current LIP was adopted in July 2011 

62



 

in order to take account of the current London Mayor’s Transport 
strategy. 

 
40. The policies in the LIP align with current regional and national policies 

to encourage modal shift and discourage private car use. The strategy 
recognises that the capacity of the network cannot keep pace with the 
increasing levels of public car ownership and usage and, that the use 
of other transport modes is the only viable alternative. Therefore 
schools in the borough are encouraged to create a travel plan 
document. The document identifies travel behaviour and barriers that 
prevent sustainable travel modes.  A package of measures is then 
created to mitigate these barriers and can include a wide range of 
different aspects as follows: 

• Sustainable transport promotions / communications, providing 
best practice guidance from other schools. 

• Interactive workshops and theatre group shows / presentations 
with pupils, parents and teachers. 

• Road safety education and advice. 

• Cycle / Scooter training. 

• Organising walking buses, park and stride, walking reward 
schemes. 

• Provision of user friendly or tailored travel maps and public 
transport information. 

• Highway engineering improvements such as for example, 
crossing points or provision of cycle storage facilities. 

• Enforcement action against traffic / parking offences. 

• Self monitoring of travel plan performance and identifying 
improvements. 

 
41. There are on-going discussions, yet to be concluded, between 

Transport for London, London Councils and the London Boroughs 
about the impact of potential LIP funding reductions in future years.  It 
is not expected that the policies will be affected but in the event that 
there is a budget reduction the Council will need to adjust its 
programme of works accordingly.  

 
42. Given the Council’s transport policies, it is unlikely measures that 

facilitate driving would be included in the development of the schools. 
For example; drop off zones or car parks. These types of facilities 
would only exacerbate the existing problems. 

 
43. The travel plans for the proposed schools for expansion will be 

amended as part of the School Expansion Programme. The success of 
the travel plan is largely dependent on the level of engagement and 
ownership by the school and their parents. It will be extremely 
important for officers to engage proactively with Headteachers and 
their school community to encourage positive changes in travel 
choices. 

 
44. As well as encouraging changes in transport behaviour, it will also be 

necessary to regulate the highway environment to discourage 
obstructive and inconsiderate parking. It is inevitable that a proportion 

63



 

of parents will drive to school and restrict traffic flow at or near the 
school frontage. Each site will be reviewed to see where parking 
restrictions are required to limit the worst effects. Parking restrictions 
will need to be supported by an appropriate level of enforcement. It 
must be noted that as a standalone measure this would not be effective 
and can only work as a part of a package of measures identified in the 
travel plan. 
 

45. This proposal would require a substantial building programme, for 
which planning permission would be needed.  If an application is 
submitted, a decision on this will be a matter for the Planning 
Committee.  This committee will consider highways and traffic 
concerns, the use of green space and impact of the development on 
the local area.  Residents and parents who believe they are impacted 
by this decision are entitled to make representations to the planning 
committee during the statutory planning consent timescales. 

 

Next steps 
 
Statutory proposals 
46. If Cabinet decides to publish statutory proposals, these would be 

published for a six week representation period from Thursday 9 
January 2014 to Thursday 20 February 2014. 

 
Decision making 
47. A further report will be presented to Cabinet in March 2014 to 

determine the statutory proposals.  Cabinet will have the following 
options when considering the statutory proposals: 

a. Reject the proposals. 
b. Approve the proposals. 
c. Approve the proposals with modification e.g. in relation to the 

implementation date. 
d. Approve the proposals subject to meeting a separate condition. 

 
Stakeholder Reference Group 
48. A School Expansion Stakeholder Reference Group has been 

established which is a cross party representative group to provide 
advice and guidance on the implementation of the school expansion 
programme and Priority School Building Programme projects.  The first 
meeting of the reference group was held on 6 November 2013 and the 
group will meet again in January 2014. 
 

49. It is proposed to set up a sub-group of the SRG for the Whitefriars 
Community School / Harrow Teachers’ Centre development.  This 
group would help to ensure effective community engagement and 
involvement in the development of the project and help to maximise 
opportunities to enhance provision for the community and to address 
issues and concerns. The group will include representatives from the 
school, local community and ward councillors. 

 
 
 

64



 

Preparatory school expansion work  
   
50. During the publication of the statutory proposals, officers will continue 

to work with the school to plan for the potential expansion and 
extension of age range and addressing points or issues raised in the 
consultation. Officers will provide support to the Headteacher and 
Governors as required to consider school organisation and 
management issues. 
 

51. The development of the site requires the relocation of the Pupil 
Referral Unit.  Consideration will need to be given to the needs and 
location of the Pupil Referral Unit which is currently located in the 
classroom block at the Harrow Teachers’ Centre site.  Funding would 
need to be identified to implement decisions that are made because 
the Targeted Basic Need Programme allocation is specifically for the 
new school places that are created.  Other considerations include the 
position of the Harrow Teachers’ Centre staff and relocation of users of 
the office space.  
 

52. Capital building work will be needed to deliver the additional primary 
and secondary school places on the combined site.  Whitefriars 
Community School will need to continue to operate on the site during 
the construction phases with the minimal possible impact on the 
children’s learning.  The site feasibility study for these works is largely 
complete and the aim is to start design work for the project in 
December.  The urgency of the design work followed by planning 
application and construction for the scheme is twofold.   

• Firstly the need for necessary accommodation to be delivered in 
time for when the school begins to take additional classes.   

• Secondly due to grant conditions that mean much of the grant 
for the project needs to be fully spent by September 2015.  

 
53. Therefore, initial design and planning work and planning application will 

be completed in parallel to the statutory processes. This will be at a 
level of financial risk to the Council, as it is prior to the final decision 
Cabinet will make in March.  This risk is considered to be low because 
the views expressed during the statutory consultation processes in 
relation to the proposals will be taken into account. The risk will also be 
mitigated by on-going discussions where the cost is high or there is 
uncertainty about the level of support for the expansion before 
developing the designs further.  Pre-Planning community engagement 
activity will also be undertaken prior to the submission of any planning 
application.  In the event that a decision to agree the statutory 
proposals is made in advance of a planning decision, this can be made 
subject to planning permission, which means that the proposals do not 
have to be implemented if planning permission is not obtained. 

 

Update on Phase 2 of the Primary School Expansion Programme 
54. At its meeting on 21 November 2013, Cabinet approved the publication 

of statutory notices to expand permanently nine schools that had been 
subject to statutory expansion consultations.  This decision has not 
been subject to call-in and statutory proposals in relation to these 

65



 

schools will be published for a four week representation period from 
Thursday 9 January 2014 to Thursday 6 February 2014. 
 

55. The Corporate Directors of Children & Families and Environment & 
Enterprise are putting in place strong governance, programme 
management and community engagement processes for delivery of the 
programme to tight timescales and conditions.  A Programme Board 
has been established and the Children’s Capital Project Team is being 
strengthened with relevant expertise.  The School Expansion 
Stakeholder Reference Group, a representative group of elected 
members and stakeholders, held its first meeting in November and a 
sub-group for the proposal to establish an all-through school on the 
Whitefriars Community School and Harrow Teachers’ Centre sites will 
hold its first meeting in December. 
 

56. Site feasibility work is being progressed on all the proposals in the 
programme to create more mainstream and special educational needs 
places in Harrow.  The sites vary in their complexity and range of 
issues.  The expansion proposal at St Anselm’s Catholic Primary 
School, a voluntary aided school that was a successful application to 
the Targeted Basic Need Programme, is proving to be particularly 
challenging on cost, Planning and considerations relating to use of 
other land around the school site.  Discussions are continuing about 
these issues and contingency thinking is being progressed in case this 
proposal is unable to proceed. The estimated cost has risen to 
approximately £6m and despite considerable review there are few 
options to reduce this cost to a better value for money solution or 
reduce Planning concerns. 
 

57. The Governing Body of Cannon Lane Primary School responded 
formally in support of permanent expansion in 2015, and the Corporate 
Director of Children & Families, in consultation with the Portfolio Holder 
for Children and Schools, has exercised the delegation made by 
Cabinet and decided to publish statutory proposals to permanently 
expand the school. 

 

Financial implications 
 
Revenue 
58. Any school expansion will inevitably have significant financial 

implications and clarity about funding is essential to maintain 
commitment to the School Expansion Programme.  School revenue 
budgets are funded from the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG).  As the 
Department for Education (DfE) allocates DSG based on pupil 
numbers, any increase in pupil numbers results in additional revenue 
funding for the expanding school. The revenue funding is allocated to 
schools based on the Harrow Schools’ Funding Formula.  School 
budgets are based on pupil numbers in the October prior to the start of 
the financial year, so there is always a funding lag when schools 
increase their pupil numbers. To ensure that schools who agree to an 
additional class are not financially penalised, the Harrow School 
Funding Formula provides ‘Additional Class Funding’ for the period 

66



 

from September to the end of March, following which the mainstream 
funding formula will take effect. This ensures that schools have 
adequate funding for at least the average costs of a teacher. 

 
Capital 
59. Harrow received £12.4m for this project under the Government’s 

Targeted Basic Need Programme (TBNP).  In accordance with the 
grant condition, this has to be expended by September 2015.   
 

60. Officers are considering the procurement route for this project and it is 
expected the Education Funding Agency (EFA) Framework Agreement 
will be used to procure a contractor for the project. 

 
61. A feasibility study for the school is currently underway and early stage 

estimates indicate the cost of the scheme is likely to be in the region of 
£15m – £20m depending on the options chosen. This current estimate 
is above the TBNP funding of £12.4m and officers will need to ensure 
an affordable solution is achieved. The cost of the scheme will also 
need to cover the relocation costs of Harrow Tuition Service. 
 

62. If the project cannot be reduced to the TBNP level of funding, 
resources from other school funding streams will need to be identified 
so that it is affordable within the overall School Expansion Programme.  

 
63. The School Expansion Programme costs were considered as part of 

setting the Capital Programme for this financial year (13/14), but the 
Capital Programme has been subject to change following success in 
the TBNP bids. In October 2013, Cabinet agreed an increase to the 
Capital Programme for 13/14 due to additional funds being allocated by 
the EFA in this financial year. Bids have been submitted via the Capital 
Strategy capital bid process for the remainder of the school expansion 
programme which will come to Cabinet for approval in due course, 
although at that stage the feasibility study was not underway and the 
current estimate was not known, and so the bid was based on £12.4m.  
 

64. The breakdown of the indicative costs for the project and the funding is 
detailed in the table below: 

 

School 
13/14 
£,000 

14/15 
£,000 

15/16 
£,000 

Totals (initial 
cost 
estimates) 
£,000 

Whitefriars 2,250 

– 

3,000 

8,250 

– 

11,000 

4,500 

– 

6,000 

15,000  

–  

20,000 

 
 
65. At this stage the figures are indicative and provided for illustrative 

purposes. They will be refined and modified as the project is 

67



 

developed. Detailed feasibility stage cost planning is currently 
underway. If there are major site anomalies or key planning issues then 
these costs could increase. There will be close monitoring of the 
affordability of the project through the Programme Board. 
 

66. Based on current estimates for the cost of the school expansion 
projects and some basic assumptions about further yearly allocations 
from the EFA, it is still expected that it is possible to deliver the overall 
expansion programme with EFA capital grants, without the need for 
council capital funding. This will continue to be reviewed and updated 
as each scheme progresses and reported to the Programme board and 
quarterly to Cabinet. 

 

Legal implications 
 
67. The Council has a statutory duty under the Education Act 1996 to 

ensure the provision of sufficient schools for the provision of primary 
and secondary education in their area. 

 
68. There is a statutory process for permanently expanding maintained 

schools.  This process includes statutory consultation and the 
publication of proposals with a formal representation period.  The 
statutory requirements and national guidance will be followed when 
progressing any proposals of expansion of an individual school. 

 
69. The Local Authority has a statutory entitlement under Sections 15 and 

19 of the Education and Inspections Act 2006, to issue statutory 
proposals in respect of school reorganisation. 

 
70. The statutory process for making alterations to a school include 

extending the age range and size of a school and extending the upper 
age limit of a school.   
 

71. Section 6A of the 2006 Act requires a local authority to invite academy 
proposals when it has determined that there is a “need” for a new 
school.  Therefore, if there is a clear need for a new school, this should 
be done via s.6A.  In this case, the pupil projection figures show a 
possible future need for a new school for secondary provision, but 
there are places in Year 7 and 8 based on current roll numbers.  In 
addition other options to create secondary places exist, for example 
expansions of existing schools.  The Harrow Teachers’ Centre site has 
been identified in area planning for additional secondary places in the 
future and it is appropriate to consider an all through school on the 
Whitefriars Community School and Harrow Teachers’ Centre sites, 
because it is a good use of the whole site and it may address future 
need. 

 
72. The Council has good evidence that the site itself is not suitable for two 

separate schools, based on the Education Funding Agency 
assessment in relation to the previous Avanti House proposal.  For this 
reason, the most appropriate option is to seek to use the site for one 

68



 

school and based on the size of the site and the current primary 
school, an all through school is the most appropriate option.   

 
73. The added complication is the fact that the two schools in the 

Heathland Whitefriars Federation are the subject of Academy Orders.  
However, the Academies Act clearly confirms that the school does not 
convert to an academy until the academy arrangements are entered 
into and this will only happen on signing of the funding agreement (or 
similar financial arrangement).  The funding agreement is between the 
Department for Education and the Governing Body of a school and the 
Council is not a party to this.  In theory, following consultation and the 
making of an academy order, this could be signed at any time. 

 
74. During the consultation on the proposed conversion to an academy, 

the Council has had meetings and sent correspondence to Whitefriars 
Community School to seek to ensure the alignment of the timescales 
for the proposals for statutory alteration of the school, Targeted Basic 
Need Programme completion and the proposed academy conversion.  

 
75. If appropriate the Council may consider whether to ask the Secretary of 

State to consider timescales for the Academy conversion that enable 
the alteration to take place, building works to be completed and the 
enlarged school to open as academy. 

 
76. In relation to the process for alteration, as this is the first all through 

school and provides new provision for secondary education, the 
consultation should include all secondary schools in the area, as well 
as local primary schools.  Due to the constraints on the site and the 
large increase in number of pupils and complete rebuild, local residents 
and businesses should be consulted.  The residential area should 
cover any likely transport routes near the school.  The consultation 
documentation must clearly set out the statutory process for altering a 
school and the separate planning process for the building works.    
 

77. Cabinet must take account of all consultation responses when deciding 
whether to publish statutory proposals.  It should also bear in mind that 
some responses may be related to issues that should properly be 
considered as part of the planning process, such as traffic and highway 
matters.  Whilst these issues can still be taken into account, it is for the 
planning committee to determine the appropriate response to these 
matters when determining the planning application.  When considering 
consultation responses, the Council must take into account the number 
of responses, including the number for and against the proposals as 
well as the detailed comments, where relevant to the proposal.  
However, even if there is a strong response against proposals, the 
Council can still decide to proceed if it has proper policy reasons for 
doing so. 
 

78. When making public law decisions, the Council must take account of all 
relevant information, including consultation responses, equality 
implications, crime and disorder concerns, financial implications and its 
statutory duty to provide school places. 

69



 

 
79. The statutory guidance on expansion and extending the age range of 

community schools confirms matters which should be taken into 
account by local authorities when determining proposals.  This will be a 
matter for Cabinet to consider in March when it is asked to determine 
the proposals.  However, for completeness, it includes the need to 
deliver excellence and equity in school place planning, the need to 
include parents in decisions around provision of schools, the need to 
maintain and increase local standards of education, diversity of 
provision, options for extended services, journey times and travel 
options for pupils attending the school and that land, premises and 
capital are in place to implement the proposals. 
 

80. As the detailed plans for the site have not been finalised, it is not 
possible to confirm whether there is a need for any statutory consents 
in relation to any open space.  Information on this, if required, will be 
provided in the March Cabinet report. 

 
81. As the proposal is dependent on planning permission, the local 

authority can make the decision conditional on grant of planning 
permission.  It can also consider whether to make it conditional on the 
continuation of the existing federation with Heathland.  

 

Equalities implications 
 
82. Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 requires that public bodies, in 

exercising their functions, have due regard to the need to (1) eliminate 
discrimination, harassment, victimisation and other unlawful conduct 
under the Act, (2) advance equality of opportunity and (3) foster good 
relations between persons who share a protected characteristic and 
persons who do not share it. 

 
83. Equalities Impact Assessment has been undertaken on Phase 2 of the 

Primary School Expansion Programme.  The conclusion of this 
assessment is that the implications are either positive or neutral.  If 
Cabinet decides to publish statutory proposals it is proposed that a full 
Equality Impact Assessment will be undertaken on this proposal and 
include consideration of secondary provision. 

 
84. Harrow’s schools are successful, inclusive and provide a diversity of 

provision. The school expansion programme will ensure sufficient 
school places for the increasing numbers of children in Harrow and will 
build on the successful provision that already exists in Harrow’s 
schools. 

 

Performance Issues 
 
85. Schools in Harrow perform well in comparison to national and 

statistically similar local authorities.  The vast majority of primary 
schools and secondary schools are judged ‘good’ or ‘outstanding’ by 
OfSTED. 92% of Harrow’s primary and secondary schools are judged 
‘good’ or ‘outstanding’, compared to 85% in London and 78% 

70



 

nationally.  Whitefriars Community School’s most recent inspection 
resulted in a judgement of ‘Good’. 
 

86. The table below includes the 2012 Key Stage 2 results of Whitefriars 
Community School.  The table compares the school’s performance in 
English and Maths at Level 4+, English Expected Progress and Maths 
Expected Progress results to the Harrow and national averages.   

 

2012 Key Stage 2 
English & 
Maths L4+ 

KS1-KS2 
Expected 
Progress - 

English 

KS1-KS2 
Expected 
Progress - 

Maths 

Whitefriars 61% 97% 77% 

Harrow 83% 91% 90% 

National 79% 89% 87% 
Source: DfE Performance Tables 

 
87. The Schools White Paper and Education Act 2011 maintain a focus on 

driving up standards in schools, and place more of the responsibility 
with the schools directly for their improvement. The role of the Local 
Authority in measuring performance and driving improvement has 
changed significantly and is reduced from its previous level. However, 
the Local Authority maintains a strategic oversight and enabling role in 
local education, and is likely to retain some role in monitoring 
educational achievement and key measures such as exclusions and 
absence. The Local Authority is also statutorily responsible for 
supporting and improving underperforming schools. 

 
88. The Local Authority continues to monitor key education indicators. The 

indicators are used locally to monitor, improve and support education 
at both school and local authority level. They are also used within 
information provided to the DfE. 

 
89. The indicators fall within the following areas: 

• Attendance and exclusions - remain a statutory duty for the Local 
Authority to monitor and improve. 

• Underperforming schools – schools are assessed at Key Stage 2 & Key 
Stage 4 against defined floor standards. 

• Narrowing the Gap - is a fundamental part of Ofsted’s school inspection 
process, and accordingly, the Local Authority monitors the attainment of 
identified groups of pupils in its schools.  The table below includes the 
gap at key stage 2 between pupils eligible for free school meals and their 
peers and the gap between Harrow’s SEN children and their peers – 
children with a SEN provision includes School Action, School Action Plus 
or a Statement. 

 

2012 Key Stage 2 - Narrowing the Gap Harrow National 

Achievement gap between pupils eligible for free 
school meals and their peers, based on pupils 
achieving level 4 or above in both English and 
mathematics at Key Stage 2. 

16% 17% 

71



 

Achievement gap between pupils with special 
educational needs and their peers, based on pupils 
achieving level 4 or above in both English and 
mathematics at Key Stage 2. 

44% 49% 

 
90. There is a complex interrelationship between a number of other 

performance issues such as traffic congestion, road safety, traffic and 
parking enforcement and travel plan performance, as referred to earlier 
in the report, and all these considerations are taken into account in 
assessing school expansion proposals 

 

Environmental Impact 
 
91. The Council’s over-arching climate change strategy sets a target to 

reduce carbon emissions by 4% a year. Schools account for 50% of 
the council’s total carbon emissions.  Reducing emissions from schools 
is therefore a vital component in meeting the Council’s target.  Phase 2 
of the School Expansion Programme will have an impact on carbon 
emissions that will need to be carefully considered in this context. 

 
92. The RE:FIT Schools Programme will be available to retrofit existing 

school buildings to improve their energy efficiency.  For new-build 
schools, the design standards will need to ensure that they meet high 
energy use efficiency standards. 

 
93. For this proposed expansion, planning applications will be required and 

part of the application will be a school travel plan.  Through this 
process and the development of the solutions for the schools, the 
impact of the additional pupils and their travel modes will be 
addressed. 

 

Risk Management Implications 
 
94. The directorate and corporate risk management implications for the 

Council arising from school place planning are included on the 
directorate and corporate risk registers. A Programme Risk Register is 
also being formulated and this will be reviewed by the School 
Expansion Programme Board.  

 
95. The key high level risks for this programme are set out below: 
 

High Level 
Risks 

Consequences Mitigating/Control Actions 

Planning Planning 
permission not 
granted creating 
delays to project. 

Informal discussions with Planners during 
feasibility regarding planning polices. 

Planning Performance Agreement to be 
agreed. 

Community engagement through the 
statutory consultation and the pre-planning 
engagement activities.  School community 
and local residents invited to meetings and 

72



 

provided with information about the 
proposals. 

Traffic Assessment being commissioned to 
inform School Travel Plan and highways 
mitigation measures. 

Finance Costs of the 
project exceed 
the TBNP 
allocation 
leading to 
additional costs 
to Council. 

 

 

Relocation of the 
Pupil Referral 
Unit 

 

Winding down 
costs of the 
Harrow 
Teachers’ Centre 

Procurement through EFA Framework 
Agreement is being considered to ensure 
the construction meets EFA requirements. 
 
Indicative costs calculated from feasibility 
study to inform programme budget. 
 
Robust financial and programme 
monitoring through the Programme Board, 
Capital Forum and Cabinet reports. 
 
Decisions to be made about the needs and 
location of the PRU and funding identified.  
 
 
 
Planning and provision for  the position of 
the Harrow Teachers’ Centre staff and 
relocation of users of the office space 

Project delivery Delays to project 
– school places 
not available, 
additional costs. 

Capital Team established with appropriate 
skills, experience and expertise in major 
construction projects to deliver programme. 

Programme Board established with 
Corporate Director and senior officer 
membership. 

The contract with the constructor will 
safeguard the Council’s liabilities. 

Pupil 
Projections  

Over or under 
estimate of pupil 
growth leading to 
a mismatch of 
provision – 
shortage of 
places or over 
provision of 
places leading to 
high levels of 
vacancies. 

GLA commissioned to provide school roll 
projections. Review of projections against 
admissions, applications, In-Year 
movement of pupils. Close working with 
schools. 

This project is part of the school expansion 
programme planned to achieve a 
sustainable level of school places to meet 
the growth as indicated by the pupil 
projections. The additional permanent 
places are created as the demand grows 
over the years. 

The peak and variations in demand for 
school places will be met by continued use 
of temporary additional places. This 
approach will minimise the risk of having to 

73



 

remove permanent capacity in the years 
following the peak in demand. 

Community 
engagement  

 

Lack of 
understanding of 
the need for 
school places 
and of the 
proposals 
leading to delays 
and complaints. 

Letters sent to Whitefriars parents and 
1,200 resident households around the 
school and HTC sites with information and 
invitation to consultation meetings. 

Promote the vision for a Wealdstone 
community learning campus. 

Establish a sub-group of the School 
Expansion Stakeholder Reference Group. 

Communication strategy will be developed 
for the overall programme and for this 
project. 

Programme communications officer to 
develop and co-ordinate communications. 

 

Corporate Priorities 
 
96. This report incorporates the administration’s priority to deliver a 

cleaner, safer and fairer Harrow by: 

• Ensuring it fulfils its statutory duties to provide sufficient school 
places in its area. 

• Providing high quality local educational provision in schools for 
children close to where they live. 

 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name:    Jo Frost x  Chief Financial Officer 

  
Date:     22 November  2013  

   

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name:    Sarah Wilson x  Monitoring Officer 

 
Date:      2 December 2013 

   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

74



 

Section 4 – Performance Officer Clearance 
 

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name:    David Harrington x  Divisional Director 

  
Date:      21 November 2013 

  Strategic 
Commissioning 

 

Section 5 – Environmental Impact Officer 

Clearance 
 

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name:    Andrew Baker x  Corporate Director 

  
Date:      27 November 2013 

  (Environment & 
Enterprise) 

 

Section 6 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 
 

Contact:  Johanna Morgan, Education Professional Lead, Education 

Strategy and School Organisation, 020 8736 6841.  
 

Background Papers: 
• Primary School Expansion Programme report to Cabinet 21 November 2013.  Item 10 

http://www.harrow.gov.uk/www2/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=249&MId=61433&Ver=4  

• Whitefriars Community School consultation papers 
http://www.harrow.gov.uk/info/200086/nursery_school_and_college/1057/whitefriars_
community_school_proposal/2  

• Equality Impact Assessment on Phase 2 of the primary school expansion 
programme 

• Full Consultation Responses (Contact 020 8420 9270 to view the 
consultation responses) – Whitefriars HSH Consultation response is 
published with the agenda as a background paper 

 

 

Call-In Waived by the 

Chairman of Overview 

and Scrutiny 

Committee 

 

  
NOT APPLICABLE 
 
 
[Call-in applies] 

 

 

75



76

This page is intentionally left blank



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 -
 S

u
m

m
a

ry
 o

f 
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

s
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

W
h

ic
h

 

c
a

te
g

o
ry

 

d
e

s
c
ri
b

e
s
 y

o
u

 

b
e

s
t?

N
o

T
ra

ff
ic

 p
ro

b
le

m
s
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

re
a

 -
 t

h
is

 w
ill

 b
ri
n

g
 m

o
re

N
o

H
a

rr
o

w
 

re
s
id

e
n

t

N
o

T
o

o
 m

a
n

y
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 i
n

 o
n

e
 s

m
a

ll 
a

re
a

. 
W

e
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 o

v
e

r 
p

o
p

u
la

te
d

 b
y
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 a

n
d

 n
o

w
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 i
n

 a
 

v
e

ry
 s

m
a

ll 
a

re
a

. 
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 o

th
e

r 
a

re
a

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 y

o
u

 c
a

n
 p

u
t 

th
is

 s
c
h

o
o

l.
 I

t 
is

 i
n

 a
 v

e
ry

 d
a

n
g

e
ro

u
s
 

a
re

a
 w

it
h

 r
e

g
a

rd
s
 t

o
 C

e
c
il 

R
d

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 r
a

t 
ru

n
 w

e
 d

o
 n

o
t 

n
e

e
d

 a
n

y
 m

o
re

 c
a

rs
 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

. 
T

h
e

 s
it
e

 i
s
 

to
o

 s
m

a
ll 

fo
r 

th
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
. 

T
h

is
 h

a
d

 a
lr
e

a
d

y
 b

e
e

n
 d

e
c
id

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 r
e

g
a

rd
s
 t

o
 

A
v
a

n
ti
 h

o
u

s
e

 w
h

o
 h

a
d

 t
o

 g
o

 e
ls

e
w

h
e

re
. 

W
h

y
 a

re
 y

o
u

 n
o

w
 p

u
tt

in
g

 m
o

re
 c

h
ild

re
n

 o
n

 t
h

is
 s

it
e

.

N
o

T
h

e
 s

it
e

 i
s
 t

o
o

 s
m

a
ll 

a
n

d
 n

o
t 

s
a

fe
 f

o
r 

th
e

 c
h

ild
re

n
. 

It
s
 n

o
t 

fa
ir
 o

n
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
id

e
n

t 
to

 h
a

v
e

 t
o

 p
u

t 
u

p
 

w
it
h

 a
n

o
th

e
r 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
in

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

. 
T

h
e

 b
u

s
e

s
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

c
o

p
e

. 
T

h
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

n
e

e
d

s
 t

o
 s

o
rt

 o
u

t 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 p

ro
b

le
m

 w
it
h

 r
e

g
a

rd
s
 t

o
 t

ra
ff

ic
 n

o
t 

ju
s
t 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 d
a

y
 b

u
t 

a
ls

o
 i
n

 t
h

e
 e

v
e

n
in

g
 a

lo
n

g
 

C
e

c
il 

R
d

 a
n

d
 W

h
it
e

fr
ia

r 
A

v
e

H
a

rr
o

w
 

re
s
id

e
n

t

N
o

th
e

re
 i
s
 t

o
 m

u
c
h

 p
e

o
p

le
 t

ra
ff

ic
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

re
a

 a
lr
e

a
d

y
N

o
th

e
re

 i
s
 t

o
 m

u
c
h

 p
e

o
p

le
 t

ra
ff

ic
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

re
a

 a
lr
e

a
d

y
 d

u
e

 t
o

 I
s
la

m
ic

 c
e

n
tr

e
,s

c
h

o
o

l 
a

n
d

 n
e

w
 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

H
a

rr
o

w
 

re
s
id

e
n

t

N
o

N
o

P
a

re
n

t/
c
a

re
r

N
o

Y
e

s
 t

h
e

 a
re

a
 i
s
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 c

o
n

g
e

s
te

d
, 

a
n

d
 o

n
e

 m
o

re
 e

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 i
s
 n

o
t 

w
a

n
te

d
. 

T
h

e
 p

la
n

 s
h

o
w

 t
h

e
 s

c
h

o
o

l 

w
ill

 h
a

v
e

 e
x
it
s
 o

n
to

 C
e

c
il 

R
o

a
d

 ,
 t

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
c
c
id

e
n

ts
 w

a
it
in

g
 t

o
 h

a
p

p
e

n
, 

th
e

 r
o

a
d

 i
s
 V

E
R

Y
 b

u
s
y
 d

u
ri
n

g
 

ru
s
h

 h
o

u
rs

 m
o

rn
in

g
 a

n
d

 n
ig

h
t 

a
n

d
 w

h
e

n
 t

h
e

 F
re

e
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
w

a
s
 t

h
e

re
 f

o
r 

a
 w

h
ile

 i
t 

b
e

c
a

m
e

 i
m

p
o

s
s
ib

le
 .

 

J
u

s
t 

th
in

k
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 o

f 
C

e
c
il 

R
o

a
d

 w
e

 h
a

v
e

 e
n

o
u

g
h

 t
o

 p
u

t 
u

p
 w

it
h

 ,
 w

it
h

 G
F

L
 t

a
k
in

g
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 

s
tr

e
e

t 
a

n
d

 a
re

a
, 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

y
 d

o
 n

o
t 

w
o

rr
y
 a

b
o

u
t 

o
th

e
r 

m
o

to
ri
s
t 

o
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

a
lk

in
g

 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

re
a

 a
n

d
 C

e
c
il 

R
o

a
d

 i
s
 v

e
ry

 d
a

n
g

e
ro

u
s
 a

ro
u

n
d

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

 b
e

c
a

u
s
e

 t
h

e
 b

e
n

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

o
a

d
.

N
o

T
h

e
 F

re
e

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
s
h

o
w

e
d

 w
h

a
t 

it
 w

a
s
 l
ik

e
 w

it
h

 h
u

n
d

re
d

s
 o

f 
te

e
n

a
g

e
rs

 c
o

m
in

g
 a

n
d

 g
o

in
g

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
. 

o
u

r 
lif

e
 w

a
s
 m

a
d

e
 u

n
b

e
a

ra
b

le
 .

 T
h

a
t 

is
 w

h
y
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 a

re
a

 o
p

p
o

s
e

d
 t

h
is

 

s
c
h

o
o

l.
 L

o
o

k
 b

a
c
k
 a

n
d

 s
e

e
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

e
ts

 g
iv

e
n

 .

H
a

rr
o

w
 

re
s
id

e
n

t

N
o

N
o

H
a

rr
o

w
 

re
s
id

e
n

t

N
o

I 
a

g
re

e
 t

h
a

t 
w

e
 n

e
e

d
 m

o
re

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 o

r 
to

 e
x
p

a
n

d
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 o

n
e

s
 b

u
t 

in
 c

a
s
e

 o
f 

W
h

it
e

fr
ia

rs
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

S
c
h

o
o

l,
 t

h
is

 i
s
 n

o
t 

th
e

 r
ig

h
t 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 b
e

c
a

u
s
e

: 
1

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 n

o
t 

o
n

e
 o

f 
o

u
r 

to
p

 p
e

rf
o

rm
in

g
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 

e
x
p

a
n

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 s
a

m
e

 w
o

u
ld

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
e

te
ri
o

ra
te

, 
b

o
th

, 
th

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
ra

ti
n

g
. 

2
. 

T
h

e
 

lo
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

is
 s

c
h

o
o

l,
 t

h
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 r
o

a
d

s
 a

n
d

 s
u

rr
o

u
n

d
in

g
 a

re
a

 i
s
 n

o
t 

re
a

d
y
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 t
o

 c
a

te
r 

fo
r 

s
u

c
h

 a
 r

is
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
s
c
h

o
o

l 
c
h

ild
re

n
, 

te
a

c
h

in
g

 a
n

d
 n

o
n

-t
e

a
c
h

in
g

 s
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 t

ra
ff

ic
 a

n
d

 

p
a

rk
in

g
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 s
u

c
h

 a
 b

ig
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
w

o
u

ld
 g

e
n

e
ra

te
. 

3
. 

T
h

is
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 w
ill

 c
a

u
s
e

 a
 l
o

t 
o

f 

in
c
o

n
v
e

n
ie

n
c
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

ll 
a

lo
n

g
 t

h
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 r
o

a
d

s
, 

s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 o

n
 F

ri
d

a
y
s
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 

M
o

s
q

u
e

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 r

ig
h

t 
o

p
p

o
s
it
e

 t
h

e
 s

c
h

o
o

l.
 4

. 
A

 s
im

ila
r 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
b

y
 t

h
e

 "
A

v
a

n
ti
 H

o
u

s
e

" 
w

a
s
 r

e
je

c
te

d
 

re
c
e

n
tl
y
 b

y
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 i
n

s
te

a
d

 o
f 

le
a

rn
in

g
 f

ro
m

 i
t 

th
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

w
a

n
ts

 t
o

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
n

 e
x
a

c
tl
y
 

s
im

ila
r 

s
c
h

e
m

e
 a

g
a

in
 i
s
 h

ig
h

ly
 i
rr

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
.

N
o

I 
a

g
re

e
 t

h
a

t 
w

e
 n

e
e

d
 m

o
re

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 o

r 
to

 e
x
p

a
n

d
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 o

n
e

s
 b

u
t 

in
 c

a
s
e

 o
f 

W
h

it
e

fr
ia

rs
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

c
h

o
o

l,
 t

h
is

 i
s
 n

o
t 

th
e

 r
ig

h
t 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 b
e

c
a

u
s
e

: 
1

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 n

o
t 

o
n

e
 o

f 
o

u
r 

to
p

 

p
e

rf
o

rm
in

g
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 e
x
p

a
n

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 s
a

m
e

 w
o

u
ld

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
e

te
ri
o

ra
te

, 
b

o
th

, 
th

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 

e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
ra

ti
n

g
. 

2
. 

T
h

e
 l
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

is
 s

c
h

o
o

l,
 t

h
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 r
o

a
d

s
 a

n
d

 

s
u

rr
o

u
n

d
in

g
 a

re
a

 i
s
 n

o
t 

re
a

d
y
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 t
o

 c
a

te
r 

fo
r 

s
u

c
h

 a
 r

is
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
s
c
h

o
o

l 

c
h

ild
re

n
, 

te
a

c
h

in
g

 a
n

d
 n

o
n

-t
e

a
c
h

in
g

 s
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 t

ra
ff

ic
 a

n
d

 p
a

rk
in

g
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 s
u

c
h

 a
 b

ig
 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
w

o
u

ld
 g

e
n

e
ra

te
. 

3
. 

T
h

is
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 w
ill

 c
a

u
s
e

 a
 l
o

t 
o

f 
in

c
o

n
v
e

n
ie

n
c
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

ll 

a
lo

n
g

 t
h

e
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 r
o

a
d

s
, 

s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 o

n
 F

ri
d

a
y
s
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 M
o

s
q

u
e

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 r

ig
h

t 
o

p
p

o
s
it
e

 

th
e

 s
c
h

o
o

l.
 4

. 
A

 s
im

ila
r 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
b

y
 t

h
e

 "
A

v
a

n
ti
 H

o
u

s
e

" 
w

a
s
 r

e
je

c
te

d
 r

e
c
e

n
tl
y
 b

y
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 

a
n

d
 i
n

s
te

a
d

 o
f 

le
a

rn
in

g
 f

ro
m

 i
t 

th
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

w
a

n
ts

 t
o

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
n

 e
x
a

c
tl
y
 s

im
ila

r 
s
c
h

e
m

e
 a

g
a

in
 

is
 h

ig
h

ly
 i
rr

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
.

H
a

rr
o

w
 

re
s
id

e
n

t

N
o

I 
th

in
k
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

is
 s

tr
u

g
g

lin
g

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 t

h
e

 q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 W
h

it
e

fr
ia

rs
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 i
t 

b
ig

g
e

r?
 h

o
w

 

a
re

 y
o

u
 g

o
in

g
 t

o
 g

e
t 

th
e

 g
o

o
d

 q
u

a
lit

y
 t

e
a

c
h

e
rs

 t
o

 w
o

rk
 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

?

N
o

H
a

rr
o

w
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 i
d

e
a

s
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 l
ik

e
 t

h
e

 w
in

d
. 

I 
h

a
v
e

 n
o

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

c
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 m

a
d

e
. 

I 

re
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
g

h
ti
n

g
 t

o
 k

e
e

p
 W

h
it
e

fr
ia

rs
 o

p
e

n
 -

 a
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 w

is
d

o
m

 i
t 

w
a

n
te

d
 t

o
 c

lo
s
e

 t
h

e
 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
d

u
e

 t
o

 f
a

lli
n

g
 n

u
m

b
e

rs
. 

H
a

rr
o

w
 R

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 k

n
e

w
 d

if
fe

re
n

t.
 I

 t
h

in
k
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 

k
n

o
w

 w
h

a
t 

it
 i
s
 d

o
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 a

re
 m

a
d

e
 b

y
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
h

a
t 

h
a

v
e

 n
o

 i
d

e
a

 o
f 

th
e

 a
re

a
 a

n
d

 

w
h

a
t 

it
 n

e
e

d
s
!!

H
a

rr
o

w
 

re
s
id

e
n

t

N
o

W
it
h

 t
h

re
e

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 h

e
re

, 
th

e
 s

u
rr

o
u

n
d

in
g

 a
re

a
 i
s
 o

v
e

rc
ro

w
d

e
d

. 
A

c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 r

o
a

d
s
 a

n
d

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 

a
re

 v
e

ry
 l
im

it
e

d
 r

e
 p

ic
k
 u

p
 a

n
d

 d
ro

p
 o

ff
 b

y
 p

a
re

n
ts

.

N
o

A
s
 t

h
e

 F
re

e
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
w

a
s
 d

ro
p

p
e

d
, 

d
u

e
 t

o
 u

n
d

e
rs

iz
e

d
, 

h
o

w
 c

a
n

 s
a

m
e

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

e
x
tr

a
 p

la
c
e

s
 

b
e

 a
c
c
e

p
ta

b
le

?
 A

g
a

in
, 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 i
s
 p

o
o

r,
 a

n
d

 d
a

n
g

e
ro

u
s
 f

o
r 

s
m

a
ll 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

lo
n

g
 C

e
c
il 

R
o

a
d

 a
n

d
 

W
h

it
e

fr
ia

rs
 A

v
e

n
u

e
.

H
a

rr
o

w
 

re
s
id

e
n

t

N
o

T
o

o
 m

a
n

y
 k

id
s
 i
n

 a
 s

m
a

ll 
a

re
a

. 
W

e
 a

re
 o

v
e

rr
u

n
 w

it
h

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

. 
T

h
e

 t
ra

ff
ic

 w
ill

 b
e

 i
m

m
e

n
s
e

. 

T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

n
e

e
d

s
 t

o
 s

o
rt

 o
u

t 
tr

a
ff

ic
 n

o
w

.

N
o

W
h

y
 a

re
 y

o
u

 o
v
e

rc
ro

w
d

in
g

 W
e

a
ld

s
to

n
e

?
 W

e
 d

o
 n

o
t 

n
e

e
d

 a
n

o
th

e
r 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
in

 t
h

is
 v

e
ry

 s
m

a
ll 

a
re

a
. 

Y
o

u
 h

a
v
e

 a
lr
e

a
d

y
 o

v
e

rc
ro

w
d

e
d

 u
s
 w

it
h

 p
e

o
p

le
. 

It
's

 l
ik

e
 a

 b
ig

 s
o

c
ia

l 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 e

s
ta

te
.

H
a

rr
o

w
 

re
s
id

e
n

t

N
o

T
h

e
 a

re
a

 i
s
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 c

o
n

g
e

s
te

d
 w

it
h

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
. 

T
h

e
 t

ra
ff

ic
 v

o
lu

m
e

 w
ill

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

. 
It

 i
s
 a

t 
b

re
a

k
in

g
 p

o
in

t 

a
lr
e

a
d

y
. 

T
h

e
 b

u
s
e

s
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

b
e

 a
b

le
 t

o
 c

o
p

e
.

N
o

T
h

e
 g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
d

id
 n

o
t 

a
p

p
ro

v
e

 A
v
a

n
ti
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
fo

r 
th

is
 s

m
a

ll 
s
it
e

. 
W

h
y
 a

re
 y

o
u

 d
o

in
g

 t
h

e
 

s
a

m
e

?
 I

t 
is

 n
o

t 
b

ig
 e

n
o

u
g

h
 f

o
r 

th
e

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
. 

T
h

e
 t

ra
ff

ic
 w

ill
 b

e
 t

o
o

 m
u

c
h

 a
n

d
 

d
a

n
g

e
ro

u
s
 e

g
 f

a
c
to

ri
e

s
, 

G
F

L
 e

tc

H
a

rr
o

w
 

re
s
id

e
n

t

N
o

I 
c
h

a
n

g
e

d
 m

y
 c

h
ild

's
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
m

a
in

ly
 b

e
c
a

u
s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 s
m

a
lle

r 
s
iz

e
 o

f 
W

h
it
e

fr
ia

rs
. 

L
a

rg
e

r 
c
la

s
s
/y

e
a

r 
in

ta
k
e

s
 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 p
ro

v
e

n
 t

o
 h

a
v
e

 a
 n

e
g

a
ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 p
u

p
ils

.

N
o

t 
s
u

re
If

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 c
le

a
r 

s
e

g
re

g
a

ti
o

n
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 a
n

d
 s

e
c
o

n
d

a
ry

 a
s
 t

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 n
e

e
d

 f
o

r 

s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 i
n

 H
a

rr
o

w
 b

u
t 

h
o

p
e

fu
lly

 n
o

t 
to

 t
h

e
 d

e
tr

im
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

l.

P
a

re
n

t/
c
a

re
r

N
o

Y
e

s
P

a
re

n
t/

c
a

re
r

Q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
 1

 -
 D

o
 y

o
u

 a
g

re
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
to

 p
e

rm
a

n
e

n
tl
y
 e

x
p

a
n

d
 W

h
it
e

fr
ia

rs
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
to

 b
e

c
o

m
e

 a
 

th
re

e
 f

o
rm

s
 o

f 
e

n
tr

y
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

l?
 

Q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
 2

 -
 D

o
 y

o
u

 a
g

re
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
to

 e
x
te

n
d

 t
h

e
 a

g
e

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
W

h
it
e

fr
ia

rs
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
to

 

in
c
lu

d
e

 s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

?
 

77



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 -
 S

u
m

m
a

ry
 o

f 
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

s
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

W
h

ic
h

 

c
a

te
g

o
ry

 

d
e

s
c
ri
b

e
s
 y

o
u

 

b
e

s
t?

T
h

e
 a

re
a

 a
lr
e

a
d

y
 h

a
s
 t

w
o

 H
ig

h
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 c

lo
s
e

 t
o

 t
o

g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 o
n

e
 e

x
p

a
n

d
in

g
 s

o
o

n
. 

T
h

e
 l
o

c
a

l 

b
u

s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 i
s
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 f

u
ll 

w
it
h

 p
u

p
ils

 g
o

in
g

 t
o

 t
h

e
s
e

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
. 

A
s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
s
e

 t
w

o
 H

ig
h

 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
ti
 s

o
c
ia

l 
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

in
 T

h
e

 H
ig

h
 S

tr
e

e
t 

is
 a

 p
ro

b
le

m
 a

n
d

 e
x
tr

a
 r

e
c
a

o
u

rc
e

s
 b

y
 t

h
e

 

p
o

lic
e

 h
a

v
e

 t
o

 b
e

 p
u

t 
in

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 m
a

n
a

g
e

 t
h

is
. 

M
o

re
 H

ig
h

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
p

u
p

ils
 w

ill
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

p
o

lic
e

 r
e

s
c
o

u
rc

e
s
 t

o
 m

a
n

a
g

e
 t

h
is

 .
 L

o
c
a

l 
tr

a
ff

ic
 i
s
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
in

g
 a

n
d

 e
x
tr

a
 c

a
r 

jo
u

rn
e

y
s
 

b
y
 s

ta
ff

 a
n

d
 p

a
re

n
ts

 w
ill

 a
d

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 p
ro

b
le

m
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

re
a

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 i
n

 W
h

it
e

rf
ri
a

rs
 A

v
e

n
u

e
 

a
n

d
 W

h
it
e

fr
ia

rs
 D

ri
v
e

 w
h

ic
h

 f
e

e
d

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 b
u

s
ie

s
t 

ro
a

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 .

P
a

rk
in

g
 i
s
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 

c
o

n
tr

o
lle

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

re
a

 a
n

d
 f

u
tu

re
 s

ta
ff

 w
ill

 h
a

v
e

 n
o

w
 w

h
e

re
 t

o
 p

a
rk

 a
n

d
 a

s
 p

re
v
io

s
 s

a
id

 L
o

c
a

l 

p
u

b
lic

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 i
s
 o

ft
e

n
 a

t 
fu

ll 
c
a

p
a

c
it
y
. 

T
h

e
 a

re
a

 i
s
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

s
 a

 h
ig

h
 c

ri
m

e
 a

re
a

 w
it
h

 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 o
ft

e
n

 b
e

in
g

 t
h

e
 v

ic
ti
m

 s
o

 a
d

d
in

g
 m

o
re

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 t
h

e
 a

re
a

 b
y
 t

h
is

 

e
x
p

a
m

s
io

n
 w

ill
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 c

ri
m

e
 .

 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
n

 c
le

a
r 

o
n

 t
h

e
 a

d
v
a

n
ta

g
e

s
 o

f 
s
u

c
h

 a
n

 e
x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 l
o

c
a

l 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

 p
a

rt
 f

ro
m

 e
x
tr

a
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
p

la
c
e

s
 t

h
e

re
 n

e
e

d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 c

le
a

r 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 g

a
in

s
 b

e
fo

re
 a

n
y
 e

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 i
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d

S
a

m
e

 a
p

p
lie

s
 a

s
 a

b
o

v
e

 f
o

r 
Q

2
. 

If
 t

h
e

s
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 a

c
tu

a
ly

 w
e

n
t 

a
h

e
a

d
 i
n

 a
n

 a
c
c
e

p
ta

b
le

 s
h

a
p

e
 

a
n

d
 f

o
rm

, 
I 

th
in

k
 t

h
e

 e
n

ti
re

 l
e

n
g

th
 o

f 
C

e
c
il 

R
o

a
d

 a
n

d
 T

u
d

o
r 

R
o

a
d

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 i
n

to
 a

 

2
0

m
p

h
 z

o
n

e
. 

It
 i
s
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 a

 v
e

ry
 d

a
n

g
e

ro
u

s
 r

o
a

d
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

ro
a

d
 u

s
e

rs
 (

e
s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 p

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n

s
 &

 

c
y
c
lis

ts
, 

b
e

c
a

u
s
e

 m
a

n
y
 d

ri
v
e

rs
 t

re
a

t 
it
 a

s
 a

 s
h

o
rt

 c
u

t 
a

n
d

 d
ri
v
e

 a
t 

q
u

it
e

 h
ig

h
 s

p
e

e
d

s
 (

to
 a

v
o

id
 

th
e

 t
ra

ff
ic

 c
h

a
o

s
 t

h
a

t 
w

a
s
 c

re
a

te
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il'

s
 a

lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
ro

a
d

s
 i
n

 W
e

a
ld

s
to

n
e

 t
o

w
n

 

c
e

n
tr

e
).

 T
h

e
y
 s

e
e

m
 s

o
 d

e
s
p

e
ra

te
 t

o
 g

e
t 

fo
rm

 A
 t

o
 B

 t
o

 a
v
o

id
 t

ra
ff

ic
 h

o
ld

 u
p

s
, 

th
a

t 
th

e
y
 o

ft
e

n
 

d
ri
v
e

 w
it
h

o
u

t 
d

u
e

 c
a

re
 a

n
d

 a
tt

e
n

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
re

a
t 

it
 a

s
 a

 4
0

-5
0

m
p

h
 r

o
a

d
. 

W
it
h

 t
h

e
 f

o
lly

 o
f 

a
llo

w
in

g
 

H
G

V
s
 t

o
 u

s
e

 C
e

c
il 

R
o

a
d

 t
o

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 a

 f
a

c
to

ry
 /

 d
e

p
o

ts
 ,

 e
s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 i
n

 r
e

p
s
c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 G
F

L
 s

it
e

, 

w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
u

t 
o

f 
a

n
o

th
e

r 
v
e

ry
 b

a
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 d
e

c
is

o
n

. 
(I

n
c
id

e
n

ta
lly

, 
th

e
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 o

f 
n

e
a

rb
y
 

s
tr

e
e

ts
, 

in
c
lu

u
d

in
g

 m
y
 o

w
n

 (
W

ic
k
h

a
m

 R
a

o
d

) 
a

re
 n

o
w

 s
u

ff
e

ri
n

g
 f

ro
m

 h
a

v
in

g
 t

o
 p

u
t 

u
p

 w
it
h

 

G
F

L
's

 v
a

n
s
 a

n
d

 t
ru

c
k
s
 b

e
in

g
 p

a
rk

e
d

 i
n

 o
u

r 
re

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
ro

a
d

s
, 

b
e

c
a

u
s
e

 G
F

L
 u

s
e

 s
o

 m
a

n
y
 

v
e

h
ic

le
s
. 

It
 s

e
e

m
s
 t

o
 e

b
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 i
ts

 f
le

e
t,

 b
u

t 
it
 i
s
 c

a
u

s
in

g
 s

o
m

e
 p

ro
b

le
m

s
 f

o
r 

p
a

rk
in

g
. 

D
id

n
't 

th
e

c
o

u
n

c
il 

c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

th
s
i 
b

e
fo

re
 a

llo
w

in
g

 G
F

L
 t

o
 u

s
e

 t
h

e
 s

it
e

 a
s
 a

 d
e

p
o

t?
 )

 I
 s

h
a

ll 
b

e
 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 v

e
ry

 c
lo

s
e

ly
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
s
e

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
re

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

, 
a

n
d

 a
n

y
 

e
v
e

n
tu

a
l 
c
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

ti
a

l 
d

a
m

a
g

e
 /

 l
o

s
s
 o

f 
a

m
e

n
it
y
 /

 o
th

e
r 

a
d

v
e

rs
e

 e
ff

e
c
ts

 o
n

 m
y
 l
o

c
a

l 

n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

a
re

fu
lly

 n
o

te
d

, 
a

n
d

 t
h

o
s
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

th
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 d
e

c
is

o
n

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

h
e

ld
 t

o
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t.

N
o

t 
s
u

re
I 

th
in

k
 i
t's

 t
im

e
 t

h
e

 y
o

u
n

g
e

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 e

n
jo

y
e

d
 t

h
e

 m
o

d
e

rn
 b

u
ild

in
g

 (
ie

 t
h

e
 T

e
a

c
h

e
rs

' C
e

n
tr

e
) 

ra
th

e
r 

th
a

n
 

th
e

 V
ic

to
ri
a

n
 o

n
e

. 
W

h
a

t 
o

u
td

o
o

r 
s
p

a
c
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 c

h
ild

re
n

 i
s
 e

n
v
is

a
g

e
d

?
 W

ill
 t

h
e

 i
n

ta
k
e

 b
e

 f
o

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 

w
it
h

in
 w

a
lk

in
g

 d
is

ta
n

c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 s
c
h

o
o

l?
 w

ill
 t

h
e

re
 b

e
 s

e
ri
o

u
s
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

E
S

L
?

 W
ill

 t
h

e
re

 b
e

 

H
e

a
d

te
a

c
h

e
rs

 f
o

r 
e

a
c
h

 s
e

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 s

c
h

o
o

l?
 C

a
n

 y
o

u
 r

e
a

lly
 p

re
te

n
d

 t
h

is
 i
s
 'c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
' w

it
h

 

tw
o

 q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
s
, 

a
n

d
 g

lo
w

in
g

 o
m

is
s
io

n
s
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
. 

Y
o

u
 s

e
e

m
 m

o
re

 

in
te

re
s
te

d
 i
n

 e
th

n
ic

 a
n

d
 r

e
lig

io
u

s
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e

 p
e

o
p

le
 t

o
 w

h
o

m
 y

o
u

 h
a

v
e

 c
ir
c
u

la
te

d
 t

h
is

 

q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
n

a
ir
e

. 
In

te
re

s
ti
n

g
 b

u
t 

a
 l
it
tl
e

 o
p

ti
m

is
ti
c
?

N
o

t 
s
u

re
W

h
a

t 
is

 y
o

u
r 

a
rg

u
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
th

is
?

 I
s
 i
t 

a
n

 e
x
p

e
ri
e

m
e

n
t?

 O
n

 w
h

a
t 

is
 t

h
e

 i
d

e
a

 b
a

s
e

d
?

 W
h

a
t 

o
u

td
o

o
r 

s
p

a
c
e

 i
s
 e

n
v
is

a
g

e
d

?
 W

ill
 t

h
e

 c
h

ild
re

n
 b

e
 b

u
s
e

d
 o

ff
 t

o
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 (

a
lr
e

a
d

y
 w

e
ll 

s
u

b
s
c
ri
b

e
d

?
?

) 
s
p

o
rt

s
 c

e
n

tr
e

s
?

 A
t 

s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 a
g

e
, 

w
ill

 p
u

p
ils

 b
e

 o
b

lig
e

d
 t

o
 s

ta
y
 h

e
re

 o
r 

h
a

v
e

 a
 

c
h

o
ic

e
 o

f 
s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
?

 i
f 

th
e

 c
h

ild
re

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

id
in

g
 a

ro
u

n
d

 o
n

 p
u

b
lic

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 w
ill

 m
o

re
 

p
u

b
lic

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 a
t 

e
s
s
e

n
ti
a

l 
ti
m

e
s
?

 W
h

a
t 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 w
ill

 b
e

 m
a

d
e

 f
o

r 
e

a
c
h

 t
e

a
c
h

e
r 

a
rr

iv
in

g
 i
n

 a
 c

a
r?

 P
le

a
s
e

 m
a

k
e

 t
e

a
c
h

e
r 

n
u

m
b

e
rs

 a
n

d
 A

L
L

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
ta

ff
 c

le
a

r 
a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 c

h
ild

 

n
u

m
b

e
rs

. 
W

ill
 t

h
e

 p
o

lic
e

 b
e

 g
iv

e
n

 m
o

re
 p

e
rs

o
n

n
e

l 
to

 m
o

n
it
o

r 
th

e
 c

h
ild

re
n

's
 b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

o
u

ts
id

e
 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
in

 t
h

e
 w

a
y
 t

h
e

y
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 d

o
?

 P
le

a
s
e

 c
lo

s
e

 t
h

e
 T

u
d

o
r 

R
d

 e
n

tr
a

n
c
e

 t
o

 c
h

ild
re

n
, 

a
llo

w
in

g
 

c
h

ild
 e

n
tr

a
n

c
e

 t
o

 a
ll 

b
u

ild
in

g
s
 f

ro
m

 W
h

it
e

fr
ia

rs
 A

v
e

n
u

e
.

H
a

rr
o

w
 

re
s
id

e
n

t

N
o

t 
s
u

re
I 

h
a

v
e

 n
o

 o
b

je
c
ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
e

x
p

a
n

d
in

g
 a

s
 I

 k
n

o
w

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 s

h
o

rt
a

g
e

 i
n

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 p

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
M

y
 o

n
ly

 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
 i
s
 t

h
e

 t
ra

ff
ic

 i
t 

w
ill

 c
a

u
s
e

 o
n

 C
e

c
il 

R
o

a
d

. 
W

e
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 h

a
v
e

 a
 s

e
v
e

ra
l 
c
o

m
p

a
n

ie
s
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 

h
e

a
v
y
 d

u
ty

 l
o

rr
ie

s
, 

tr
u

c
k
s
, 

d
ig

g
e

rs
 c

o
m

in
g

 a
n

d
 g

o
in

g
 a

ll 
d

a
y
 l
o

n
g

 w
it
h

 n
o

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e

 t
h

e
 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
. 

C
e

c
il 

R
o

a
d

 i
s
 a

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

re
a

 a
n

d
 n

o
t 

a
n

 i
n

d
u

s
tr

ia
l 
ro

a
d

, 
s
o

 I
 c

a
n

n
o

t 
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

h
a

s
 a

llo
w

e
d

 s
u

c
h

 a
 c

o
m

p
a

n
ie

s
 t

o
 b

e
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 C

e
c
il 

R
o

a
d

 e
s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 w

h
e

n
 o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 

c
o

m
p

a
n

ie
s
 c

a
lle

d
 G

F
L

 h
a

s
 n

o
t 

s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 a

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
. 

If
 t

h
e

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

ro
u

n
d

 h
e

a
v
y
 d

u
ty

 g
o

o
d

s
 

v
e

h
ic

le
s
 b

e
in

g
 a

llo
w

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 s
it
u

a
te

d
 o

n
 C

e
c
il 

R
o

a
d

 i
s
 r

e
s
o

lv
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
re

 n
o

t 
p

e
rm

it
te

d
, 

th
e

n
 a

s
 a

 

re
s
id

e
n

t 
I 

d
o

 n
o

t 
o

b
je

c
t 

to
 t

h
e

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
e

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
.

N
o

t 
s
u

re
A

s
 a

b
o

v
e

 a
n

d
 i
f 

tr
a

ff
ic

 i
s
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 a
n

d
 s

o
m

e
 r

e
s
tr

ic
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e

 i
.e

. 
b

e
in

g
 a

b
le

 t
o

 

p
a

rk
 o

u
ts

id
e

 o
u

r 
h

o
u

s
e

s
 a

n
d

 n
o

t 
a

llo
w

in
g

 e
v
e

ry
o

n
e

 t
o

 p
a

rk
 a

s
 t

h
e

 t
im

e
 r

e
s
tr

ic
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 l
im

it
e

d
 

th
e

re
fo

re
 m

a
k
in

g
 i
t 

p
e

rm
it
 h

o
ld

e
rs

 o
n

ly
.

H
a

rr
o

w
 

re
s
id

e
n

t

N
o

t 
s
u

re
O

K
 i
n

 t
h

e
o

ry
, 

B
U

T
 I

 w
o

u
ld

 s
tr

o
n

g
ly

 o
b

je
c
t 

to
 m

o
re

 b
u

ild
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
ff

e
c
ti
n

g
 C

e
c
il 

R
o

a
d

 &
 i
ts

 

n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 -

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

re
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 N
O

 u
s
e

 o
f 

g
re

e
n

 f
ie

ld
 s

it
e

s
 u

n
d

e
r 

a
n

y
 c

ir
c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e

s
. 

T
h

e
 v

e
ry

 

p
le

a
s
a

n
t 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
fi
e

ld
, 

tr
e

e
s
 a

n
d

 v
e

g
e

ta
ti
o

n
 (

o
r 

w
h

a
t 

s
i 
le

ft
 o

f 
th

e
m

) 
m

u
s
tb

e
 p

re
s
e

rv
e

d
 a

t 
a

ll 
c
o

s
ts

. 
T

h
is

 

a
re

a
 h

a
s
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 b

e
e

n
 o

v
e

r-
d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
n

d
 s

u
ff

e
re

d
 v

e
ry

 b
a

d
ly

 a
s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
, 

w
it
h

 l
o

s
s
 o

f 
a

m
e

n
ty

/ 
tr

e
e

s
/ 

o
p

e
n

 s
p

a
c
e

 a
n

d
 e

x
tr

a
 t

ra
ff

ic
 &

 p
a

rk
in

g
 p

ro
b

le
m

s
. 

E
v
e

ry
 t

im
e

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

a
llo

w
s
 a

 "
re

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t"

 i
t 

a
lm

o
s
t 

a
lw

a
y
s
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 i
n

 c
h

a
o

s
, 

d
a

m
a

g
e

 t
o

 a
m

e
n

it
ie

s
 &

 e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t,
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 t

ra
ff

ic
 a

n
d

 p
a

rk
in

g
 

p
ro

b
le

m
s
. 

W
e

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 t

h
e

n
 h

a
v
e

 t
o

 s
u

ff
e

r 
th

e
 c

o
n

s
e

q
u

e
n

c
ie

s
. 

C
a

n
n

o
t 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 s

it
e

s
 /

 b
u

ild
in

g
s
 b

e
 

u
s
e

d
 o

r 
re

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

?
 W

h
y
 c

a
n

n
o

t 
th

e
 o

ld
 /

 d
is

-u
s
e

d
 W

in
s
o

r 
&

 N
e

w
to

n
 F

a
c
to

ry
 /

 B
u

ild
in

g
 i
n

 W
h

it
e

fr
ia

rs
 

R
d

 b
e

 u
s
e

d
 o

r 
a

d
a

p
te

d
?

N
o

t 
s
u

re
H

a
rr

o
w

 

re
s
id

e
n

t

N
o

t 
s
u

re
In

c
re

a
s
d

e
d

 t
ra

ff
ic

 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

 a
n

d
 s

a
fe

ty
 o

f 
c
h

ild
e

re
n

 w
a

lk
in

g
 i
n

 a
lr
e

a
d

y
 b

u
s
y
 r

o
a

d
s

N
o

H
a

rr
o

w
 

re
s
id

e
n

t

Q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
 1

 -
 D

o
 y

o
u

 a
g

re
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
to

 p
e

rm
a

n
e

n
tl
y
 e

x
p

a
n

d
 W

h
it
e

fr
ia

rs
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
to

 b
e

c
o

m
e

 a
 

th
re

e
 f

o
rm

s
 o

f 
e

n
tr

y
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

l?
 

Q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
 2

 -
 D

o
 y

o
u

 a
g

re
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
to

 e
x
te

n
d

 t
h

e
 a

g
e

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
W

h
it
e

fr
ia

rs
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
to

 

in
c
lu

d
e

 s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

?
 

78



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 -
 S

u
m

m
a

ry
 o

f 
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

s
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

W
h

ic
h

 

c
a

te
g

o
ry

 

d
e

s
c
ri
b

e
s
 y

o
u

 

b
e

s
t?

N
o

t 
s
u

re
O

k
 i
n

 t
h

e
o

ry
 b

u
t 

I 
w

o
u

ld
 s

tr
o

n
g

ly
 o

b
je

c
t 

to
 m

o
re

 b
u

ild
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
ff

e
c
ti
n

g
 C

e
c
il 

R
o

a
d

. 
It

 i
s
 

a
lr
e

a
d

y
 o

v
e

r-
d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 w
it
h

 c
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

ti
a

l 
lo

s
s
 o

f 
tr

e
e

s
 /

 v
e

g
e

ta
ti
o

n
 /

 o
p

e
n

 s
p

a
c
e

, 
a

n
d

 t
ra

ff
ic

 a
n

d
 

p
a

rk
in

g
 p

ro
b

le
m

s
 a

re
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 b

a
d

 e
n

o
u

g
h

. 
H

o
w

 d
o

e
s
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

in
te

n
d

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
e

s
e

 a
s
p

e
c
ts

 a
re

 

s
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
e

d
?

N
o

t 
s
u

re
A

s
 a

b
o

v
e

, 
I 

d
o

 n
o

t 
w

a
n

t 
to

 s
e

e
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
lo

s
s
 o

f 
a

m
e

n
it
y
 a

n
d

 p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
o

v
e

r-
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

in
 t

h
is

 

a
re

a
, 

e
s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 C

e
c
il 

R
o

a
d

. 
C

a
n

 t
h

e
 o

ld
 /

 d
is

u
s
e

d
 W

in
s
o

r 
&

 N
e

w
to

n
 f

a
c
to

ry
 /

 b
u

ild
in

g
 b

e
 u

s
e

d
 

/ 
a

d
a

p
te

d
 i
n

s
te

a
d

 o
f 

e
x
te

n
s
iv

e
 r

e
-b

u
ild

in
g

?
 E

v
e

ry
 t

im
e

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
u

th
o

ri
s
e

s
 o

r 
'r
e

-

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t' 

in
 t

h
is

 a
re

a
, 

it
 A

L
W

A
Y

S
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 i
n

 c
h

a
o

s
, 

d
a

m
a

g
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 a

m
e

n
it
ie

s
, 

a
n

d
 l
o

c
a

l 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t.
 P

le
a

s
e

 t
h

in
k
 V

E
R

Y
 c

a
re

fu
lly

 b
e

fo
re

 g
o

in
g

 a
h

e
a

d
!!

 I
 s

h
a

ll 
b

e
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 V

E
R

Y
 

C
L

O
S

E
L

Y
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
s
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 a

n
y
 c

o
n

s
e

q
u

e
n

ti
a

l 
d

a
m

a
g

e
 /

 l
o

s
s
 o

f 
a

m
e

n
it
y
 /

 

a
d

v
s
e

rs
e

 e
ff

e
c
ts

 o
n

 m
y
 l
o

c
a

l 
n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 h

o
ld

 t
o

 a
c
c
o

u
n

t 
th

o
s
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

a
n

y
 

lo
s
s
/i
n

c
o

n
v
e

n
ie

n
c
e

 o
r 

d
a

m
a

g
e

 s
u

ff
e

re
d

.

H
a

rr
o

w
 

re
s
id

e
n

t

Y
e

s
N

o
P

a
re

n
t/

c
a

re
r

Y
e

s
N

o
H

a
rr

o
w

 

re
s
id

e
n

t

Y
e

s
T

h
e

 s
a

m
e

 a
s
 o

th
e

r 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 w
h

ic
h

 n
e

e
d

 e
x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 t

o
 c

o
p

e
 w

it
h

 e
x
tr

a
 p

la
c
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t.

N
o

T
h

e
 a

re
a

 c
a

n
't 

c
o

p
e

 w
it
h

 a
n

o
th

e
r 

h
ig

h
 s

c
h

o
o

l.
 A

d
d

in
g

 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 C
o

lla
rt

 s
it
e

 f
o

r 

h
o

u
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 o
ff

ic
e

 s
p

a
c
e

, 
th

e
 r

o
a

d
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
 s

in
g

le
 t

ra
c
k
 d

u
e

 t
o

 p
a

rk
in

g
 o

n
 b

o
th

 

s
id

e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 b

lo
c
k
. 

A
ll 

h
ig

h
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 e
x
p

a
n

d
e

d
 t

o
 c

o
p

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 e

x
tr

a
 d

e
m

a
n

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

s
a

m
e

 w
a

y
 a

s
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
to

 e
x
p

a
n

d
 c

e
rt

a
in

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
. 

T
h

is
 w

o
u

ld
 m

o
re

 e
v
e

n
ly

 s
p

re
a

d
 

th
e

 d
e

m
a

n
d

 i
n

s
te

a
d

 o
f 

b
u

rd
e

n
in

g
 o

n
e

 a
re

.

H
a

rr
o

w
 

re
s
id

e
n

t

Y
e

s
T

h
is

 n
e

e
d

s
 t

o
 h

a
p

p
e

n
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
y
o

u
n

g
 c

h
ild

re
n

 n
o

w
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
. 

W
h

a
t 

w
ill

 h
a

p
p

e
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 C
e

n
tr

e
?

N
o

t 
s
u

re
N

o
t 

s
u

re
 h

o
w

 t
h

is
 w

ill
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 S
a

c
re

d
 H

e
a

rt
 a

n
d

 S
a

lv
a

to
ri
a

n
 C

o
lle

g
e

.
O

th
e

r

Y
e

s
N

o
t 

s
u

re
P

a
re

n
t/

c
a

re
r

Y
e

s
N

o
t 

s
u

re
C

o
n

c
e

rn
s
 a

b
o

u
t 

la
c
k
 o

f 
s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 e
x
p

e
rt

is
e

 i
n

 's
p

o
n

s
o

rs
'. 

C
o

n
c
e

rn
s
 p

o
s
t-

1
6

 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

l/
n

u
m

b
e

rs
 a

re
 u

n
w

o
rk

a
b

le
.

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

P
a

re
n

t/
c
a

re
r

Y
e

s
P

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
to

 p
e

rm
a

n
e

n
tl
y
 e

x
p

a
n

d
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
is

 g
o

o
d

.
Y

e
s

P
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
to

 p
e

rm
a

n
e

n
tl
y
 e

x
p

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 a
g

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
is

 g
o

o
d

.
P

a
re

n
t/

c
a

re
r

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

P
a

re
n

t/
c
a

re
r

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

P
a

re
n

t/
c
a

re
r

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

P
a

re
n

t/
c
a

re
r

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

P
a

re
n

t/
c
a

re
r

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

P
a

re
n

t/
c
a

re
r

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

P
a

re
n

t/
c
a

re
r

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

P
a

re
n

t/
c
a

re
r

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

P
u

p
il

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

P
a

re
n

t/
c
a

re
r

Y
e

s
T

h
a

t's
 a

 g
o

o
d

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 t
o

 c
o

p
e

 u
p

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 g

ro
w

in
g

 d
e

m
a

n
d

 o
f 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
. 

M
o

re
 n

e
w

 p
la

c
e

s
 a

re
 n

e
e

d
e

d
 i
n

 

g
o

o
d

 &
 o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
.

Y
e

s
Y

e
s
, 

th
is

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
s
h

o
u

ld
 c

a
te

r 
fo

r 
a

ll 
a

g
e

 r
a

n
g

e
s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 g
ro

w
in

g
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
.

P
a

re
n

t/
c
a

re
r

Y
e

s
It

 w
il 

g
o

o
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 a

s
 l
o

n
g

 a
s
 t

h
e

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
m

a
in

ta
in

s
 a

 v
e

ry
 g

o
o

d
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
Y

e
s

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 n
o

 o
p

e
n

 s
ta

te
s
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 v
ic

in
it
y
; 

s
o

 i
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 v
e

ry
 h

e
lp

fu
l

H
a

rr
o

w
 

re
s
id

e
n

t

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

P
a

re
n

t/
c
a

re
r

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

H
a

rr
o

w
 

re
s
id

e
n

t

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

P
a

re
n

t/
c
a

re
r

Y
e

s
A

s
 l
o

n
g

 a
s
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 a

re
 m

e
t.

Y
e

s
A

s
 l
o

n
g

 a
s
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 a

re
 m

e
t.

 A
ls

o
 m

a
k
in

g
 s

u
re

 p
ro

m
is

e
s
 a

re
 k

e
p

t.
P

a
re

n
t/

c
a

re
r

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

P
a

re
n

t/
c
a

re
r

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

P
a

re
n

t/
c
a

re
r

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

P
a

re
n

t/
c
a

re
r

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

P
a

re
n

t/
c
a

re
r

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

P
a

re
n

t/
c
a

re
r

Y
e

s
D

o
e

s
 t

h
is

 c
o

m
e

 t
o

 a
 c

o
m

p
ro

m
is

e
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 e

n
jo

y
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 W
h

it
e

fr
ia

rs
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

l?
Y

e
s

P
a

re
n

t/
c
a

re
r

Q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
 1

 -
 D

o
 y

o
u

 a
g

re
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
to

 p
e

rm
a

n
e

n
tl
y
 e

x
p

a
n

d
 W

h
it
e

fr
ia

rs
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
to

 b
e

c
o

m
e

 a
 

th
re

e
 f

o
rm

s
 o

f 
e

n
tr

y
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

l?
 

Q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
 2

 -
 D

o
 y

o
u

 a
g

re
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
to

 e
x
te

n
d

 t
h

e
 a

g
e

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
W

h
it
e

fr
ia

rs
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
to

 

in
c
lu

d
e

 s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

?
 

79



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 -
 S

u
m

m
a

ry
 o

f 
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

s
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

W
h

ic
h

 

c
a

te
g

o
ry

 

d
e

s
c
ri
b

e
s
 y

o
u

 

b
e

s
t?

Y
e

s
W

e
a

ld
s
to

n
e

 m
ix

e
d

 c
o

m
m

m
u

n
it
y
. 

T
h

e
re

fo
re

 c
h

ild
re

n
, 

a
v
e

ra
g

e
, 

b
ri
g

h
t 

a
n

d
 b

e
lo

w
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
 (

v
a

ri
o

u
s
 

re
a

s
o

n
s
).

 S
o

 t
w

o
 s

u
g

g
e

s
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 h
ig

h
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
 o

f 
s
c
h

o
o

l.
 a

) 
B

e
lo

w
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 c

h
ild

re
n

 b
e

 g
iv

e
n

 

s
p

e
c
ia

l 
tr

a
in

in
g

 t
o

 b
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

m
 a

b
o

v
e

 t
h

e
ir
 n

o
rm

a
l 
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

. 
b

) 
to

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

/s
ta

tu
s
 b

ri
g

h
t 

to
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 c

h
ild

re
n

 s
h

o
u

ld
 a

ls
o

 b
e

 g
iv

e
n

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

. 
T

h
e

y
 a

re
 t

h
e

 f
la

g
s
h

ip
 o

f 
th

e
 s

c
h

o
o

l.
 S

u
g

g
e

s
ti
o

n
 a

) 

&
 b

) 
m

ix
e

d
 i
n

 o
n

e
 c

la
s
s
 b

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
d

o
w

n
. 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

w
ill

 b
e

 w
a

s
ti
n

g
 m

o
n

e
y
 i
f 

th
a

t 
h

a
p

p
e

n
s
.

Y
e

s
H

a
rr

o
w

 

re
s
id

e
n

t

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

H
a

rr
o

w
 

re
s
id

e
n

t

Q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
 1

 -
 D

o
 y

o
u

 a
g

re
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
to

 p
e

rm
a

n
e

n
tl
y
 e

x
p

a
n

d
 W

h
it
e

fr
ia

rs
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
to

 b
e

c
o

m
e

 a
 

th
re

e
 f

o
rm

s
 o

f 
e

n
tr

y
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

l?
 

Q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
 2

 -
 D

o
 y

o
u

 a
g

re
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
to

 e
x
te

n
d

 t
h

e
 a

g
e

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
W

h
it
e

fr
ia

rs
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
to

 

in
c
lu

d
e

 s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

?
 

80



 

 

REPORT FOR: 

 

CABINET  

Date of Meeting: 

 

12 December 2013 

Subject: 

 

Stanmore and Edgware Conservation Areas 
Supplementary Planning Document 
 

Key Decision: Yes 
 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Caroline Bruce, Corporate Director of 
Environment and Enterprise  

Portfolio Holder: 

 

Councillor Stephen Greek, Portfolio Holder 
for Planning, Development and Regeneration 
 

Exempt: 

 

No 
 

Decision subject to 

Call-in: 

 

Yes 

Enclosures: 

 

Appendix 1: Schedule of Consultation 
Responses to the draft Stanmore and 
Edgware Conservation Areas SPD  
 
Appendix 2: Stanmore and Edgware 
Conservation Areas Supplementary Planning 
Document for adoption – Due to the size of 
the appendix, it has been circulated in 
hard copy to Cabinet Members and Key 
Officers only. The appendix is available 
for viewing on the website and  a hard 
copy has been placed in the Members’ 
Library 
 

 
 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 

This report summarises the responses received to consultation and how these 
have informed the final Stanmore and Edgware Conservation Areas 
Supplementary Planning Document which is proposed for adoption. 

Agenda Item 10
Pages 81 to 108

81



 

 
Recommendations:  
Cabinet is requested to: 
 

a) Adopt the Stanmore and Edgware Conservation Areas Supplementary 
Planning Document attached as appendix 2,  

 
b) Note the representations received to public consultation on the draft 

Stanmore and Edgware Conservations Areas SPD, provided at 
Appendix 1, and Council’s response to the individual comments made. 

 
c) Note that the conservation area boundaries for the Little Common 

Conservation Area and Old Church Lane Conservation Area have been 
altered, and new Article 4(2) directions have been proposed for Old 
Church Lane, Stanmore Hill, Kerry Avenue and Canons Park 
conservation areas. 

 
d) Delegate authority to the Divisional Director of Planning, in consultation 

with the Portfolio Holder for Planning and Regeneration to make 
typographical corrections and any other necessary non-material 
amendments to the SPD prior to formal publication of the SPD.   

 

Reason:  (For recommendation) 
To ensure that when adopted the Stanmore and Edgware Conservation Areas 
SPD will be a material consideration in the determination of planning 
applications The SPD will also provide useful guidance to relevant Council 
departments when dealing with issues relating to Stanmore and Edgware 
Conservation Areas (CAs).  
 
 

Section 2 – Report 
 

Introduction 
 

1. Work commenced in 2006 to prepare Supplementary Planning 
Documents (SPDs) to cover geographical clusters of Conservation Areas 
within the borough, which include appendices of conservation area appraisals 
and management strategies. Following the adoption of the Harrow on the Hill, 
and Pinner SPDs, the Stanmore and Edgware Conservation Areas SPD is 
next to be completed.  
 
2. The SPD for the Stanmore and Edgware Conservation Areas will 
ensure the special architectural and historic interest of these areas, which add 
to the attractiveness of the borough as a place to live, is conserved. 

82



 

 

Options considered 
 
3. The Council, at its Strategic Planning Advisory Panel meeting of 18 
July 2006, agreed that Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs) would be 
produced to cover the boroughs 28 Conservation Areas (CAs). To date, SPDs 
have been produced for Harrow on the Hill, and Pinner CAs. Not to produce 
an SPD for the Stanmore and Edgware CAs would be inconsistent with the 
approach adopted elsewhere and represent a gap in the guidance framework, 
with regard to these six Conservation Areas.  

 
The Stanmore and Edgware Conservation Areas  
 
4. Work on the Stanmore and Edgware CAs SPD commenced in 2012 
and covers six conservation areas: 
 

• Little Common;  

• Stanmore Hill;  

• Old Church Lane;  

• Canons Park;  

• Edgware High Street; and  

• Kerry Avenue. 
 
5. A Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Strategy (CAAMS) is 
required for each of the above areas. The new CAAMS have been revised 
and updated accordingly from the previous CAAMS that were adopted for Old 
Church Lane and Edgware High Street CAs and the older policy statements 
produced from 1990 to 2003 for the other Stanmore and Edgware CAs. 
 
6.  The Stanmore and Edgware CAs SPD intends to link all six areas by 
providing a strategic overview of the issues affecting the CAs to inform 
guidance that will assist in their preservation and enhancement. 
 

Consultation undertaken 
 
7.  In accordance with Regulation 12 of the Town and Country Planning 
(Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 the draft SPD was subject to 
public consultation.  On 14th March, 2013 Cabinet approved the draft 
Stanmore and Edgware for public consultation for a period of 6 weeks through 
June and July. This is longer than the statutory requirement of four weeks to 
encourage consultation responses on this document as the individual CAAMS 
will not be subject to a separate additional phase of consultation to the SPD.  
  
8. The consultation was undertaken in accordance with Council 
Statement of Community Involvement and included: 
 

• A public notice in the Harrow Observer newspaper; 

• Notification letters were sent to ward Councillors, amenity groups 
(including the Canons Park Residents Association, the Stanmore 
Society and the Stanmore and Harrow Historical Society), the 

83



 

Conservation Area Advisory Committee and other stakeholders, 
including the North London Collegiate School; 

• The draft SPD was published electronically on the Council’s website 
and on the Council’s consultation portal; and  

• A paper copy was placed on deposit at the Stanmore and Civic Centre 
libraries and at reception at Civic 1. 

 
9. A public meeting was also held where the conservation officer attended 
with a paper copy of the document and there was an opportunity to provide 
comments and discuss the document in person. The Conservation Team also 
offered to hold separate meetings with interested parties to discuss the 
document.  
 

Results of the Public Consultation  
 
10.  A total of 27 responses were received. These are reproduced in full, 
alongside the Council’s response, in the ‘Schedule of Consultation Responses 
at Appendix A to this report. The main issues raised are summarised below. 
 
Overarching Stanmore and Edgware Conservation Areas SPD 
 
11. There were six responses to the overarching Stanmore and Edgware 
CAs SPD. English Heritage responded to state that they support the 
document as they ‘welcome production of this SPD which will assist the 
borough in conserving and managing the conservation areas concerned’. 
Their two requests for amendments were made as they requested the 
document’s definition of setting be amended to reflect the National Planning 
Policy Framework’s definition and that reference to Conservation Area 
Consent be omitted once it was merged with Planning Permission when the 
Enterprise and Regulatory Reform Act came into force. They also confirmed 
that a Strategic Environmental Assessment is not required. 
 
12. The President of the Stanmore Society responded to provide minor 
factual corrections, which were duly made and to state he welcomed the 
document as an ‘extremely useful document’ that he agrees with. Another 
resident responded to query why Wood Lane was not referenced as a busy 
traffic route which has now been addressed.  
 
13. Two residents responded to state that breaches of planning 
enforcement need to be enforced otherwise the document is worthless. 
However, sections 8.7 to 8.14 already discuss enforcement measures and 
their importance so no further changes were required to the document. The 
list of breaches of planning control provided was passed to enforcement. 
 
Stanmore Hill Conservation Area 
 
14. There were 13 respondents about the Stanmore Hill CA. The President 
of the Stanmore Society stated that Green Lane is a very busy road. This is 
now referenced in paragraph 2.25. Concern was expressed over a 
forthcoming proposal for a supermarket near the CA. It was not considered 
necessary to amend the document since it already outlines the need and how, 
to assess proposals in terms of their impact on the setting of this CA within 

84



 

section 2.4.6. It is beyond the scope of this document to assess individual 
planning proposals. The respondent also stated that traffic lights at the bottom 
of Stanmore Hill were poorly arranged but this is well beyond the conservation 
area boundary and therefore not relevant to the consultation. Nevertheless 
the matter was referred to transport for their consideration and records.  
 
15. Three responses were received from local residents who have entered 
the Council scheme to ‘Adopt-a-Bed’ and look after public areas of green 
space. They objected to proposals for the management of the green between 
Stanmore Hill and Green Lane which were to re-site benches and change a 
hedge for the green space. They suggested alternative ways to manage this 
green. The suggestions were therefore amended in line with these requests. 
Another resident responded to state the grass at the top of Green Lane is not 
being cut. The management of green spaces is already reported as an issue 
in the document and this specific concern has been reported to parks. 
 
16. Three residents expressed concern with the proposed traffic calming 
which would affect the conservation area. The conservation team though 
considers these proposals would be sympathetic to the character of the 
conservation area and a separate consultation was carried out on this matter 
by Highways and so their responses have been forwarded to the Highways 
department to consider as part of this. Therefore no amendments were made 
to the document to address this point. Two requested the level of controls 
attached to Woolombe Cottage to be reduced as it does not have features in 
keeping with others in the area. However, the Council considers it important to 
retain the existing level of conservation area controls relating to this building 
since it is sited in the midst of the conservation area so it is very sensitive to 
any changes due to the impact this would have on the wider area. Therefore 
no amendments were made to the draft document in response to this request 
and an explanation for this was provided to the consultees that made this 
request. 
 
17. One resident made enquires as to the controls that listing have on their 
building, how to apply to de-list it and sources of funding. These comments do 
not concern the document directly and so information provided directly to 
them in response. Another responded to say that parking is an issue near the 
Abercorn which is now identified by the draft document. One resident 
expressed regret that street cleaners have been taken away from the 
Stanmore shops and another that there is not a crossing beyond the library 
and Bushey Heath. Both these matters are well beyond the conservation area 
boundaries and do not directly concern this document so no amendments 
have been made to the document. The matters have been referred to street 
cleansing and traffic as appropriate. 
 
18. One resident expressed concern that there would be proposals to 
redevelop the site of the Studio, Stanmore Hill shortly and if it was proposed 
to be converted to a dwelling house this would not be in keeping with the area 
given the need to retain the greenery. It is not considered necessary to make 
any amendments to the document in response to this as the general area is 
already identified by the document for the importance of its greenery (see 
section 2.2.8) and it is beyond the scope of this document to comment on 
specific planning proposals.  

85



 

 
19. A member of the Stanmore Society stated that there ought to be a limit 
to the height of the trees to help protect views but there is no legal limit to the 
height of trees and it is beyond the scope of this document to provide 
comment on this matter. 
 
20. Otherwise, comments received from two local residents made minor 
factual corrections (since made to the document), commented on the 
increased traffic over the years along Green Lane (now referenced within the 
document) and commented that they expect this document to have been 
drafted at great cost to the Council via external consultants. It is noted though 
that the document was created in house.  
 
Little Common Conservation Area 
 
21. Five responses were received about Little Common CA.  A member of 
the Little Common Residents Association responded to highlight various 
issues within the CA namely: potholes in the gravelled area, redundant 
signposts excessive signposts, more unauthorised satellite dishes, a picnic 
table from around the ponds being stolen on the far side near the rugby club 
and not replaced and a permanent problem of the clutter of cars parked 
around Little Common and associated request for yellow lines. These issues 
and possible solutions are now referenced within the document (sections 
1.3.2 and 1.4.2) and have been referred, where relevant, to Highways, Parks 
and Planning Enforcement teams. The picnic table is being replaced by the 
Council as part of the Green Grid project. It was also reported that concrete 
posts are missing from the grassed area outside Raw Lasan restaurant so this 
is now referenced within the document along with a recommendation for new 
timber posts. Smells from Raw Lasan restaurant were also reported. This is 
an ongoing matter with environmental health that is beyond the scope of this 
document, so no amendments were made. It was further reported that the 
former scout hut/mission hall had been broken in to and derelict for years with 
no action from the Council on an application to use the Scout Hut as an Arts 
Centre. The disuse and condition of the former scout hut/mission hall is now 
explained more thoroughly as an issue affecting the conservation area within 
section 1.3.2 and reference is now made to the need to consult with property 
services for a solution. A new hand car wash in the Raw Lasan car park was 
also reported. This is an existing planning enforcement case though so no 
amendments were made to the document. It was also reported that grass 
cutting is not well organised which has been referred to Parks. 
 
22. The President of the Stanmore Society responded to express concern 
over the proposals to move the entrance for the new RNOH redevelopment 
into Wood Lane since this would increase traffic to ‘unmanageable levels’. It is 
beyond the scope of this document to comment on specific planning 
proposals and so this issue was reported direct to the case officer. The issue 
of traffic along Wood Lane is already referenced in the draft document. He 
requested that reference be made to the Wood Farm development where the 
site has been sold off making part of the land accessible farm land which is 
now done in section 1.59.  
 

86



 

23. A representative of the Elm Park Residents Association responded to 
report some unauthorised works towards Cloisters Wood. This has been 
referred to enforcement and requires no amendment to the document. They 
also commented that they had objected to a proposal on Wood Farm which 
was approved planning permission. This comment is not relevant to the 
document so no amendment was made to the document. 
  
24. A local resident responded to request that their home be put forward 
for national listing. The document now suggests this building is considered for 
being put forward for listing to English Heritage within sections 1.3.2 and 1.4.2 
following careful research, and guidance was provided to the respondent on 
how they could put it forward directly themselves. 
 
Canons Park Conservation Area 
 
25. Five responses were received about the Canons Park Estate CA. The 
Chairman of the Canons Park Estate Association responded to state that he is 
‘broadly in agreement with the Management Proposals’. He stated he would 
prefer it if dormers were encouraged rather than skylights. However, the 
document thoroughly justifies its preference for skylights. In terms of windows 
and doors he stated his support for the proposed controls and that timber 
should be used wherever possible instead of UPVC. This support requires no 
amendment to the document. He stated that whilst replacement of garage 
doors is discouraged by implication in the document he has no objection to 
the garage doors being replaced as long as the look of the windows used to 
replace the doors is sympathetic, since many of the existing are of an 
unsuitable size. The document thoroughly explains and justifies its preference 
for the retention of garage doors. He stated that enforcement is vital and there 
are too many examples where this has not been implemented. The 
importance of enforcement is already referenced within the overarching SPD 
and this appendix. 
 
26. Two residents who are members of the Canons Park Residents 
Association responded to state they support the proposed article 4 direction 
for windows. They also requested the extension of the CA to include 
Cavendish and Dorset Drive. However, the proposed extension of the CA is 
not considered appropriate since the buildings in these areas are not as of 
good or cohesive quality as those within the CA so would undermine the CA's 
value therefore this request has not been taken forward. The residents 
requested that they be on the Canons Park Estate Association list which has 
been done.  
 
27. One resident responded to express his full support for the importance 
of conservation. However, whilst they support the proposed controls for 
removal of chimneys on Canons Drive, he stated he felt this is less relevant 
for the offshoots of Canons Drive, particularly 2 Rose Garden Close which is a 
one off Modernist design without a chimney. The document already omits 
proposals for such controls along Lake View which is most altered already but 
explains and justifies proposals for such controls within the rest of the CA. It 
specifically excludes the Modernist house on Rose Garden Close as part of 
the proposed controls for roof alterations since such controls are not relevant 
for a building of this design. The resident also suggested the existing planning 

87



 

restriction relating to hardsurfacing on Canons Drive should be retained but 
that it is less relevant for the offshoot roads since soft landscaping has been 
lost already in places. However, recent appeal decisions have supported the 
importance of this planning restriction within offshoot roads of Canons Drive 
and so this restriction remains in place. 
 
28. One resident responded to state that Canons Drive and surrounding 
roads have been spoiled by the introduction of a controlled parking zone 
which is more harmful than any building alterations and that if this is not 
addressed the area should be de-designated as a conservation area. This 
view is not supported by the Council since whilst it has brought additional 
signage and road lines these do not conflict with the CA character as this is 
kept to a minimum and is necessary for safety reasons and so no 
amendments have been made. 
 
29. Another resident responded to provide factual corrections which were 
made. 
 
Kerry Avenue Conservation Area 
 
30. Six responses were received about the Kerry Avenue CA. One local 
resident thanked the conservation team for our efforts stating also ‘It is much 
appreciated especially since we are so keen to preserve this wonderful 
conservation area’.  
 
31. Three local residents, one stating they represented 1-32 Kerry Court, 
responded to outline a problem and issue within the conservation area which 
is minicab parking because they use the area in Kerry Court and Kerry 
Avenue to dump rubbish including non-biodegradable items and use the area 
as a car park. It was stated that this is particularly true since the Station no 
longer allows the taxis to wait there and that parking restrictions are ignored 
and the traffic warden’s efforts ineffectual. It was reported that the bin nearby 
is not cleared out enough. It was suggested that the non-conservation area 
areas be used for this parking instead by restricting commercial vehicles 
parking in the conservation area. It was also reported that it of concern that 
over the last 2 years there has been a vast increase in traffic parking in Kerry 
Avenue South and Kerry Court as they introduce rubbish and create an 
eyesore about the once pretty central green that lent the conservation area a 
'boulevard' feel and also to the semi-circular green with its established trees 
on Kerry Court. It was stated that past efforts to suggest that this are might 
better be designated a discrete and separate parking zone are worthy of 
revisiting.  
 
32. One of these local residents reiterated and expanded upon these 
complaints in two further responses. She stated when there is a Wembley 
event such problems worsen and fire engines and ambulances can’t get it. 
The matter with the excessive parking has been ongoing since 2008, 
worsening over the last two years. This resident stated in her third response 
she was representing Kerry Avenue and Kerry Court residents. She stated 
that Kerry Avenue is designated a parking rank for different firms of taxis. It 
was recommended that Morecambe Gardens be used instead and that they 
be banned from the conservation area. Reference is therefore now made to 

88



 

the volume of parking, particularly taxis, and the issue of litter as an issue 
within the CA and recommendations are made for managing this in 
consultation with Highways. This matter has been referred to them. 
  
Old Church Lane Conservation Area 
 
33. A representative of the Elm Park Residents Association responded to 
state that the new doorway proposed in a recent Listed Building Consent and 
Planning Application for safety reasons is inappropriate as this is the longest 
unbroken stretch of wall around. The Listed Building Consent application for 
this was determined in line with national and local listed building and CA 
policy and public consultation and is not a matter for this document. The 
president of the Stanmore Society responded to comment that he was not 
sure if the former park shelter was originally intended as Cow Sheds or just 
intended to mimic them.  
 
Edgware High Street Conservation Area 
 
34. One resident responded to state that the fruit and vegetable store on 
the corner of Edgware High Street and Whitchurch Lane has encroached out 
onto the pavement. This matter is already with the planning enforcement team 
and the importance of the open space in front of shops is already referenced 
in the draft document, so no amendments were made in this instance. 
 

Current situation 
 
35. The SPD has been revised in line with the above feedback and 
comments used to strengthen the document. The full results of the public 
consultation and how these have been addressed in finalising the SPD are 
presented in appendix 2.  
 
36. In addition to those above, two further changes were made to the 
document. One is that in response to a listing assessment by English 
Heritage, the Old Church Lane CA is now being extended to include the old 
coach house. This is because English Heritage’s report of 11th October, 2013 
concerning the proposed listing of the coach house stated that although it was 
not worthy of national listing, the building has ‘group value’ in relation to the 
Manor House and Gate House within the CA and is itself of local interest ‘as a 
purpose-built inter-war garage and chauffeur's flat associated with the Manor 
House’. The second is that one more Article 4 direction is proposed now for 
number 147 Stanmore Hill. This would bring the planning controls for it in line 
with its neighbours to similarly protect features of interest, namely roof tiles, 
windows, front boundary treatment and its front garden.  
 
37.  Once adopted the Stanmore and Edgware Conservation Areas SPD 
will form a material consideration in the determination of planning applications 
both at planning committees and appeal proceedings. The SPD will also 
provide useful guidance to relevant Council departments when dealing with 
issues relating to Stanmore and Edgware Conservation Areas (CAs).  
 
 

89



 

Legal Implications 
 
38.  Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act (2004) 
states that, if regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of 
any determination to be made under the planning Acts, the determination 
must be made in accordance with the plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise. 
 
39. Although the proposed SPD is not a development plan document it will, 
upon adoption, be a material consideration in the determination of planning 
applications affecting the conservation areas. 
 
40. The Council is required under the Town and Country Planning ( Local 
Plan) (England) Regulations 2012 to consult on the SPD and to take into 
account all consultation responses received before adopting the SPD. Upon 
adoption, the Stanmore and Edgware Conservations Areas Supplementary 
Planning Document will form part of Harrow's formal planning policy. 
 

Financial Implication 
 
41.  The costs of adopting the SPD, and publishing it online is a relatively 
minor cost which can be adequately contained within the existing LDF budget.  

 
Performance Issues 
 
42. Harrow has a total of 28 Conservation Areas across the borough. 20 of 
these (71%), currently have an up-to-date Conservation Area Appraisal and 
Management Strategy, and are afforded weight as a material planning 
consideration. The adoption of the Stanmore and Edgware SPD will add a 
further six conservation areas to this list, bringing the figure of CAs in active 
management by the Council up to 93%. 
 

Environmental Impact 
 
Does the proposal comply with all relevant environmental legislation? Yes 
 
43. The policies that the SPD supplements have been the subject of a 
comprehensive Sustainability Appraisal, incorporating the requirements of 
Strategic Environmental Assessment, in compliance with the regulatory 
requirements for preparing local plan documents.  The government has 
confirmed that, where the parent policy has been appraised, it is not 
necessary to appraise any guidance that simply seeks to give effect to the 
policy.  
 
44. However, for completeness, in the course of preparing the SPD the 
Council undertook a screening opinion on the SPD and consulted English 
Heritage who confirmed that a Strategic Environmental Assessment was not 
required. 
 

90



 

Risk Management Implications 
 
Risk included on Directorate risk register? No  
  
Separate risk register in place? No  
 
 

Equalities implications 
 
Was an Equality Impact Assessment carried out?  No  
 
45. By definition, supplementary planning documents cannot introduce new 
policies nor modify adopted polices and do not form a part of the development 
plan. Rather, their role is to supplement a ‘parent’ policy in a development 
plan document. The SPD supplements Policy DM7 of the Local Plan, which 
has already been the subject a full equalities impact assessment at each 
formal stage in the policy’s preparation. 

 
 

Corporate Priorities 
 
46. The adoption of the Stanmore and Edgware Conservation Areas SPD 
contributes to the corporate priority of a fairer Harrow by ensuring the heritage 
assets within these six conservation areas are appropriately managed and 
conserved for future generations to enjoy and appreciate. It also brings these 
conservation areas into line with the management arrangements already in 
place for the Harrow on the Hill and Pinner conservation areas. 
 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Jessie Mann x  Chief Financial Officer 

  
Date: 14 November 2013 

   

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Abiodun Kolawole x  Monitoring Officer 

 
Date: 15 November 2013 

   
 

 
 

91



 

Section 4 – Performance Officer Clearance 
 

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Martin Randell x  Divisional Director 

  
Date: 12 November 2013 

  Strategic 
Commissioning 

 
 

Section 5 – Environmental Impact Officer 

Clearance 
 

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Andrew Baker x  Corporate Director 

  
Date: 12 November 2013 

  (Environment & 
Enterprise) 

 

Section 6 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 
 

Contact:  Lucy Haile, Principal Conservation Officer 

Tel: 020 8736 6101 
 
 

Background Papers:  14th March, 2013 Cabinet Report on the draft 

Stanmore and Edgware Conservation Areas SPD 
http://www.harrow.gov.uk/www2/documents/s104747/Stanmore%20Edg%20
CA%20-%20SPD.pdf   
 
 
 

Call-In Waived by the 

Chairman of Overview 

and Scrutiny 

Committee 

 

  
NOT APPLICABLE 

 
 
[Call-in applies] 
 
 
 

 

92



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 
D

a
te

 
re

c
e
iv

e
d
 

N
a
m

e
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 R

e
s
p
o

n
s
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e

  
C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 A

re
a
 

1
7
/0

6
/2

0
1
3
 

(b
y
 p

h
o
n

e
) 

B
e
n
ja

m
in

 
M

ir
e
  

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 s

e
v
e
re

ly
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 t
h
e
 a

p
p

e
a
ra

n
c
e
 o

f 
C

a
n
o

n
s
 D

ri
v
e
 a

n
d
 s

u
rr

o
u

n
d

in
g
 

ro
a
d
s
 w

it
h
 t
h

e
 i
n
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

P
Z

 w
it
h
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a

l 
s
tr

e
e
t 
fu

rn
it
u
re

 i
.e

. 
s
ig

n
a

g
e
 a

n
d
 

ro
a
d
 l
in

e
s
. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 d

o
in

g
 f

a
r 

m
o
re

 d
a
m

a
g
e
 t
o
 t

h
e
 l
o
n

g
e

r 
te

rm
 a

p
p
e
a
ra

n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

e
s
ta

te
 t

h
a
n

 a
n

y
 b

u
ild

in
g

 a
lt
e
ra

ti
o

n
s
. 
 E

it
h
e
r 

th
e
s
e

 s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
 o

r 
th

e
 E

s
ta

te
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e

 d
e
-r

a
te

d
 a

s
 a

 c
o

n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a
 

W
h
ils

t 
th

e
 c

o
n
tr

o
lle

d
 p

a
rk

in
g
 z

o
n
e
 h

a
s
 

b
ro

u
g

h
t 
a

d
d
it
io

n
a

l 
s
ig

n
a
g

e
 a

n
d
 r

o
a
d
 

lin
e
s
 t
h
e
s
e

 d
o
 n

o
t 
c
o

n
fl
ic

t 
w

it
h
 t

h
e
 C

A
 

c
h
a
ra

c
te

r 
a
s
 t
h

is
 i
s
 k

e
p
t 
to

 a
 m

in
im

u
m

 
a
n
d
 i
s
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 f
o
r 

s
a
fe

ty
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
. 

C
a
n
o

n
s
 

P
a
rk

 C
A

 

2
3
/0

6
/2

0
1
3
 

(b
y
 l
e
tt
e
r)

 
A

n
n

e
 a

n
d
 

E
ri
c
 M

o
rg

a
n
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 a

b
o

v
e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
o
n
 l
in

e
 a

n
d
 w

o
u
ld

 l
ik

e
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 t
h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

:-
 

P
ic

tu
re

 2
.8

 —
 t

h
is

 i
s
 w

ro
n
g

ly
 c

a
p
ti
o

n
e
d
 a

s
 1

-4
 H

ill
c
re

s
t 

—
 i
t 

a
c
tu

a
lly

 s
h

o
w

s
 1

-5
 

P
in

n
a
c
le

s
 P

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 P

a
rk

 H
o
u
s
e
, 

a
ll 

o
f 

w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 l
is

te
d
. 

P
a
ra

 2
.2

5
—

 s
ta

te
s
 t
h
a
t 

th
e

 s
o
u
th

e
rn

 p
a
rt

 o
f 

G
re

e
n
 L

a
n

e
 “

is
 n

o
t 

b
u
s
y
”.

 G
re

e
n
 L

a
n
e

 i
s
 

o
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
s
ie

s
t 
ro

a
d
s
 i
n
 S

ta
n
m

o
re

. 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 a

 p
la

n
 f

o
r 

tr
a
ff

ic
 c

a
lm

in
g
 i
n
 

th
e
 r

o
a

d
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 e

n
ta

il 
ro

a
d
 h

u
m

p
s
, 
s
p
e
e
d
 t
a
b

le
s
 a

n
d
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
ig

n
in

g
. 
T

h
e
 

p
e
rs

o
n
 i
n
 c

h
a
rg

e
 o

f 
th

is
 a

t 
th

e
 C

iv
ic

 C
e
n

tr
e
 i
s
 J

o
h
a
n

n
 A

lle
s
. 

P
ic

tu
re

 2
.3

0
—

 t
h
e
 s

m
a
ll 

g
re

e
n
 a

t 
th

e
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
G

re
e
n
 L

a
n
e
 a

n
d
 S

ta
n
m

o
re

 H
ill

 i
s
 

n
o

w
 a

d
o
p

te
d
 a

n
d

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 a

 v
o
lu

n
te

e
r 

g
ro

u
p
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 

a
re

a
 w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 i
n

 a
 n

e
g

le
c
te

d
 s

ta
te

 d
u
e
 t

o
 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
m

a
in

te
n

a
n
c
e
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

 I
t 

is
 

m
u
c
h
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 s

ta
te

 s
h
o

w
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

ic
tu

re
. 

M
u
c
h
 l
it
te

r 
is

 c
le

a
re

d
 o

n
 b

o
th

 t
h
is

 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 P

in
n
a
c
le

s
 P

la
c
e
 G

re
e
n
 b

y
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 t
o
 k

e
e
p
 i
t 

lo
o
k
in

g
 t
id

y
. 

P
a
ra

 2
.3

1
—

 w
h

a
t 
a
re

 t
h

e
 ‘
c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
u
s
e
s
’ 
a
t 
th

e
 t
o

p
 o

f 
G

re
e
n
 L

a
n

e
 t
h

a
t 

a
re

 
m

e
n
ti
o
n
e
d

?
 W

e
 k

n
o
w

 o
f 

n
o

 c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
u
s
e
s
 t
h
e
re

. 
G

re
e
n
 L

a
n

e
 i
s
 p

u
re

ly
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l.
 

P
a
ra

 2
.3

5
 —

s
h
o

p
s
 o

n
 S

ta
n

m
o
re

 H
ill

 d
o
 n

o
t 
s
u
rv

iv
e
 v

e
ry

 l
o
n
g

, 
s
u
ff

e
ri
n
g
 a

s
 t
h

e
y
 d

o
 

fr
o
m

 l
o
w

 f
o
o
tf

a
ll 

a
n

d
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 p

a
rk

in
g
 c

o
n

d
it
io

n
s
. 

In
 t

h
e
 l
a
tt
e
r 

c
a
s
e
 t

h
e
 A

b
e
rc

o
rn

 
c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 c
lo

g
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 p
a
rk

in
g
 a

t 
th

e
 t
o

p
 o

f 
G

re
e
n
 L

a
n
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 e

v
e
n
in

g
s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

d
e
tr

im
e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
te

s
id

e
n
ts

. 
D

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 d

a
y
 p

a
rk

in
g
 m

e
te

rs
 o

n
 S

ta
n
m

o
re

 H
ill

 (
re

c
e
n
tl
y
 

in
s
ta

fl
e
d
) 

a
re

 l
a
rg

e
ly

 u
n
-u

s
e
d
 a

s
 p

e
o
p

le
 p

a
rk

 a
t 
th

e
 t

o
p
 o

f 
G

re
e
n
 L

a
n
e
 f

o
r 

fr
e
e
. 

P
ic

tu
re

s
 2

.4
1

 a
n

d
 2

.4
8
 —

th
e
 t
u
rr

e
t 

o
n
 t

h
is

 b
u
ild

in
g
 h

a
s
 p

la
s
ti
c
 w

in
d
o

w
s
 —

h
o

w
 w

e
re

 
th

e
s
e
 p

e
rm

it
te

d
 t
o
 b

e
 i
n
s
ta

lle
d
?
 

P
ic

tu
re

 2
.5

5
—

 t
h
e
s
e
 a

re
 n

o
t 
C

h
a
rt

 C
o
tt
a

g
e
s
 —

 t
h
e

y
 a

re
 P

in
n

a
c
le

s
 P

la
c
e
 

2
.5

8
—

 P
a
rk

 H
o
u
s
e
 h

a
s
 o

n
e
 b

lin
d
 w

in
d
o

w
 n

o
t 
s
o
m

e
. 

P
ic

tu
re

s
 2

.6
7

 a
n

d
 2

.8
1
 a

re
 a

c
tu

a
ll
y
 i
n
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

s
id

e
-r

o
a

d
 a

n
d
 a

re
 P

a
rk

 C
o
tt
a
g

e
s
 (

th
e
re

 
a
re

 4
 c

o
tt

a
g
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
is

 s
m

a
ll 

s
tr

e
e
t)

 b
u
t 

th
e

y
 a

re
 n

o
t 

in
 G

re
e
n
 L

a
n
e

. 
U

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 t

it
le

 ‘
M

a
in

ta
in

in
g
 S

ta
n
m

o
re

 H
ill

’s
 T

o
w

n
s
c
a
p

e
 a

n
d
 B

u
ilt

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

r:
 

It
e
m

 ‘
j’ 

—
 r

e
fe

rs
 t
o
 s

a
te

lli
te

 d
is

h
e
s
 —

 w
e
 h

a
v
e
 l
e
tt

e
rs

 d
a
te

d
 2

9
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 

a
c
k
n
o
w

le
d
g

in
g

 o
u
r 

e
n
q

u
ir

y
 r

e
g
a
rd

in
g
 t

h
e
 p

la
c
in

g
 o

f 
s
a
te

lli
te

 d
is

h
e
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 f

ro
n
t 

o
f 

s
e
v
e
ra

l 
o
f 

th
e
 G

re
e
n
 L

a
n

e
 C

o
lt
 a

g
e
s
 —

 w
e
 h

a
v
e
 h

e
a
rd

 n
o
th

in
g
 s

in
c
e
. 

It
 w

o
u

ld
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 i
n
te

re
s
ti
n

g
 t

o
 k

n
o
w

 w
h
a
t 

h
a

p
p
e

n
e
d

 a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 P

o
lic

y
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

1
4
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
3
 w

h
ic

h
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 c

o
v
e
re

d
 m

a
n

y
 o

f 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 p

o
in

ts
 a

s
 t
h
e
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 
S

u
p
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t.
 T

h
is

 h
a
s
 p

re
s
u
m

a
b
ly

 b
e
e
n
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
b

y
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a

n
ts

 a
t 
s
o
m

e
 c

o
s
t 
to

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

 
U

n
fo

rt
u
n
a
te

ly
 w

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

w
a

y
 o

n
 8

 J
u
ly

 s
o
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

b
e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 a

tt
e
n

d
 t
h

e
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 

a
t 
th

e
 l
ib

ra
ry

 a
n

d
 w

e
 h

o
p
e
 o

u
r 

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 a
re

 u
s
e
fu

l.
 F

o
r 

y
o

u
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 

w
e
 h

a
v
e
 

F
a
c
tu

a
l 
c
o
rr

e
c
ti
o
n
s
 m

a
d
e
. 

U
n
a
u
th

o
ri
s
e

d
 

w
o
rk

s
 b

e
in

g
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

d
 b

y
 

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t.
 T

h
e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
w

a
s
 

c
re

a
te

d
 i
n
-h

o
u
s
e
 s

o
 c

o
s
ts

 w
e
re

 c
o
v
e
re

d
 

in
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 b

u
d
g
e

ts
. 

S
ta

n
m

o
re

 
H

ill
 C

A
 

93



b
e
e
n

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 h
e
re

 s
in

c
e

 1
9
7
6

 a
n

d
 h

a
v
e

 s
e
e
n

 t
h
e

 d
e

te
ri
o
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
lif

e
 

in
 G

re
e

n
 L

a
n
e
 d

u
e

 t
o
 t

h
e
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 t
ra

ff
ic

 u
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 l
a
n
e

 a
s
 a

 c
u
t-

th
ro

u
g

h
 t
o

 
a
v
o

id
 c

o
n
g
e
s
ti
o
n

 i
n
 C

h
u
rc

h
 R

o
a
d

. 

2
4
/0

6
/2

0
1
3
 

(e
m

a
il)

  
R

e
x
 H

o
lm

e
s
 

D
e
a
r 

s
ir
, 

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

 I
 r

e
fe

r 
to

 t
h
e
 a

b
o

v
e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
 A

p
p
e
n

d
ix

 2
 -

-P
a
g

e
 1

7
7
 

  S
p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 r
e
g

a
rd

in
g
 t

h
e
 g

re
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 S

ta
n

m
o
re

 H
ill

 a
n

d
 G

re
e
n
 L

a
n
e
: 

  T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 a
re

 (
p
a
ra

p
h
ra

s
e
d
) 

R
e
-s

it
in

g
 b

e
n
c
h
e
s
 a

n
d
 i
n

tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a

l 
h
e
d
g

e
 a

n
d
 p

ic
k
e
t 
fe

n
c
e
 

  B
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
--

I 
w

o
u

ld
 i
n

d
ic

a
te

 t
h

a
t 
I 
a
m

 a
 m

e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 g

ro
u
p

 w
h

o
 u

n
d
e
r 

A
d
o

p
t-

a
-B

e
d
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 h

a
v
e
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 T

h
e
 G

re
e
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 
2
 y

e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 w

o
u

ld
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
t 
a
s
 f

o
llo

w
s
: 

W
h
e
n
 w

e
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 t
h

is
 G

re
e
n
 i
t 

w
a
s
 i
n
 a

 v
e
ry

 n
e
g

le
c
te

d
 s

ta
te

 d
u
e

 t
o
 m

is
m

a
n
a
g
e

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 n

e
g

le
c
t 
b

y
 H

a
rr

o
w

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

o
v
e
r 

a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

y
e

a
rs

--
th

is
 n

e
g

le
c
t 

is
 s

ti
ll 

b
e
in

g
 

s
u
ff

e
re

d
 t
o
d
a

y
 -

v
iz

 t
h
e
 a

n
n

u
a
l 
w

e
e

d
s
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
le

 m
a
in

te
n

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 a

 
re

g
u
la

r 
b
a
s
is

 a
n
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 f

o
re

s
e
e
a
b

le
 f

u
tu

re
 (

7
 y

e
a

rs
 o

f 
s
e
e
d
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 g
ro

u
n
d
!!

).
  

  R
e
-s

it
in

g
 B

e
n
c
h

e
s
--

o
n
e
 o

f 
o
u
r 

m
a
jo

r 
p
ro

b
le

m
s
 i
s
 t
h
e

 i
n
c
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
g
e
n

e
ra

l 
lit

te
r 

e
x
a
c
e
rb

a
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
a
 r

u
b
b

is
h
 b

in
 (

w
h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
q

u
e
s
te

d
 o

n
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

o
c
c
a
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 n

o
t 
s
u
p

p
lie

d
 b

y
 H

a
rr

o
w

 C
o
u
n
c
il)

. 
T

h
is

 l
it
te

r 
p
ro

b
le

m
 o

c
c
u
rs

 w
it
h

 v
e
ry

 
lim

it
e
d
 p

e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 o

n
to

 t
h
e
 G

re
e

n
 -

--
 T

h
e
 r

e
-l
o
c
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
b
e

n
c
h
e
s
 w

ill
 c

e
rt

a
in

ly
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
is

 l
it
te

r 
p
ro

b
le

m
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 r

e
q
u
ir

e
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
c
le

a
ri
n

g
 u

p
 a

n
d
 d

is
p
o
s
a

l 
b

y
 

H
a
rr

o
w

. 
 

T
h
e
 r

e
-s

it
in

g
 o

f 
b
e
n
c
h
e
s
  

w
a
s
 d

is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 w

it
h
 H

a
rr

o
w

 P
a
rk

s
 D

e
p
t.
 2

 y
e
a
rs

 a
g
o
 w

h
o
 

a
g
re

e
d
 t
h

is
 w

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 

b
e
 a

 g
o
o
d

 i
d

e
a
. 

  In
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a

l 
h

e
d
g
e

 a
n

d
 p

ic
k
e
t 
fe

n
c
e
--

T
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
G

re
e
n
 i
s
 a

lr
e
a
d

y
 

d
e
lin

e
a
te

d
 b

y
 a

 l
o

w
 b

u
t 

w
id

e
 e

u
o
n

y
m

u
s
 f

o
rt

u
n
e
i 
h
e
d

g
e

 w
h
ic

h
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 s

e
p

a
ra

te
s
 

th
e
 G

re
e

n
 f

o
r 

p
e
ra

m
b
u
la

to
ry

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 p

a
v
e
m

e
n
t 
b
u
t 
c
o

n
c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 d

o
e
s
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 f

o
r 

 a
 s

p
le

n
d

id
 s

p
e
c
tr

a
  
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 b

o
th

 S
ta

n
m

o
re

 H
ill

 a
n
d
 G

re
e
n
 L

a
n
e

. 
A

 h
ig

h
 

p
y
ra

c
a
n

th
a
 h

e
d
g
e
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
s
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 G

re
e
n
 w

it
h

 N
e

w
s
a
g

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

h
o
u
s
e
. 

  T
h
e
 i
n
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a
 h

ig
h
 h

e
d
g
e

 a
n

d
 p

ic
k
e
t 
fe

n
c
e
 w

ill
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 t
u
rn

 t
h
e
 G

re
e
n
 i
n

to
 

a
n
 e

n
c
lo

s
e
d

 s
p
a
c
e
 n

o
t 

v
is

ib
le

 f
ro

m
 r

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
u
s
 d

e
s
tr

o
y
in

g
 t

h
e
 v

is
u

a
l 
b
e
n

e
fi
ts

 a
n
d
 

c
o
u
n
te

r 
p
ro

d
u
c
ti
v
e
ly

  
p
ro

v
id

in
g
  

th
e

 i
d

e
a

l 
p

la
c
e
 f

o
r 

n
e
fa

ri
o
u
s
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
.(

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 i
s
 

o
p
e
n

 2
4
 h

o
u
rs

 a
 d

a
y
) 

    I 
w

o
u

ld
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 o
b
je

c
t 
to

 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a

ls
 c

o
n
ta

in
e

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 D

ra
ft

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

  O
u
r 

P
ro

p
o
s
a

ls
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e

: 
  

T
h
e
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 d
ra

ft
 o

m
it
s
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 t
o
 

re
s
it
in

g
 t
h

e
 b

e
n
c
h
e
s
 a

n
d
 c

h
a
n
g

in
g
 t

h
e
 

h
e
d
g

e
 a

n
d
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
s
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
in

g
 w

it
h
 

P
a
rk

s
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

in
g
 w

a
y
s
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 l
it
te

r 
a
n
d
 w

e
e
d
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e

 p
o
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

a
 

lit
te

r 
b
in

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 p

o
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

s
o
m

e
 

g
e
o
te

x
ti
le

 w
it
h
 b

a
rk

 c
h
ip

p
in

g
s
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
re

s
s
 t
h
e
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
w

e
e
d
s
. 
T

h
is

 w
a
s
 

p
u
t 
fo

rw
a
rd

 t
o
 P

a
rk

s
 v

ia
 e

m
a
il 

o
n
 7

th
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r,

 2
0
1
3
. 

S
ta

n
m

o
re

 
H

ill
 C

A
 

94



-S
u
p
p

ly
 o

f 
a
  

lit
te

r 
b

in
 t

o
 b

e
 s

it
e
d
 a

d
ja

c
e
n
t 

to
 t

h
e
  

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 s

e
a
ti
n

g
 (

s
p
a
c
e
 a

lr
e
a

d
y
 

th
e
re

) 
a

n
d
 r

e
g
u
la

r 
e
m

p
ty

in
g
 b

y
 H

a
rr

o
w

 
-s

u
p
p
ly

 o
f 

s
o
m

e
 G

e
o
te

x
ti
le

 t
o
 s

u
p
re

s
s
 t
h
e

 a
n

n
u
a

l 
w

e
e
d

s
 

-s
u
p
p
ly

 o
f 

b
a
rk

 c
h
ip

p
in

g
s
 t

o
 d

is
g
u

is
e
 t

h
e
 t

e
x
ti
le

 
  In

 t
h

is
 w

a
y
 t
h

e
 G

re
e
n

 c
a
n
 b

e
 e

n
jo

y
e
d

 b
y
 a

ll 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 P

u
b
lic

 
    y
o

u
rs

 f
a
it
h
fu

ll
y
  

 

2
6
/0

6
/2

0
1
3
 

(p
h
o
n

e
 

m
e
s
s
a
g
e
) 

M
rs

 B
e
rw

a
ld

 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 c

ro
s
s
in

g
 o

n
 S

ta
n
m

o
re

 H
ill

 b
e

y
o
n

d
 t
h

e
 l
ib

ra
ry

 a
n
d
 B

u
s
h
e

y
 H

e
a
th

. 
 

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

 s
a
fe

ty
 i
s
s
u
e

 a
n

d
 w

a
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 

to
 t
ra

ff
ic

 b
y
 e

m
a
il 

o
n
 7

th
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r,

 
2
0
1
3

. 
S

ta
n
m

o
re

 
H

ill
 C

A
 

2
7
/0

6
/2

0
1
3
 

(e
m

a
il)

 
D

a
v
id

 
C

o
o
p

e
r 

J
u
s
t 
to

 s
a

y
 I

'm
 a

ls
o
 a

 v
o
lu

n
te

e
r 

fo
r 

th
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
 a

t 
th

e
 t

o
p
 o

f 
G

re
e
n
 L

a
n
e
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 p

o
in

ts
 R

e
x
 h

a
s
 r

a
is

e
d
. 
U

n
fo

rt
u
n
a
te

ly
 I
'm

 u
n
a
b
le

 t
o
 a

tt
e

n
d
 t

h
e
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
, 
a
s
 I

'm
 

n
o
t 
h

o
m

e
 u

n
ti
l 
a
ft

e
r 

7
p
m

..
..
..
w

ill
 t

h
e
s
e
 p

o
in

ts
 b

e
 r

a
is

e
d

 a
n
d
 d

is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 s

h
o

u
ld

 a
n

y
 o

f 
th

e
 t

e
a
m

 b
e
 u

n
a

b
le

 t
o
 a

tt
e

n
d
?
  

  K
in

d
 r

e
g

a
rd

s
 

  
S

e
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 a
b
o

v
e
. 

S
ta

n
m

o
re

 
H

ill
 C

A
 

1
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
3
 

(p
u
b
lic

 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
) 

M
a
rk

 a
n
d
 

M
a
n
d

y
 

B
la

n
k
-S

e
tt
le

 

W
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

o
u
r 

b
u
ild

in
g
 (

W
o
o
lo

m
b
e
 C

o
tt
a
g
e
) 

to
 n

o
t 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u

te
 t

o
 t
h

e
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 

A
re

a
's

 c
h
a
ra

c
te

r 
- 

c
o

u
ld

 t
h
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 a
tt
a
c
h

e
d
 t

o
 o

u
r 

b
u
ild

in
g

 b
e
 r

e
d
u
c
e

d
 i
n
 

lig
h
t 
o
f 

th
e
 f

a
c
t 
th

a
t 

w
e
 d

o
 n

o
t 
h
a

v
e

 a
n

y
 o

ri
g

in
a

l 
fe

a
tu

re
s
 o

r 
fr

e
a
tu

re
s
 i
n
 k

e
e
p
in

g
 w

th
 

o
th

e
rs

 i
n
 t
h

e
 a

re
a
?
 *

 G
re

e
n

 L
a
n

e
 i
s
 a

 r
a
t 
ru

n
 f

o
r 

tr
a
ff

ic
. 
P

ro
p
o
s
a

ls
 f

o
r 

tr
a
ff

ic
 c

a
lm

in
g
 

p
u
t 
d

o
w

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

ru
n
 c

o
n
tr

a
ry

 t
o
 t

h
is

. 
T

h
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
ls

 m
a
k
e
 o

n
e
 w

a
y
 a

t 
th

e
 

n
o
rt

h
 h

a
lf
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 s

p
e

e
d
 b

u
m

p
s
 a

n
d
 s

p
e

e
d
 l
im

it
 s

ig
n
s
. 
T

h
e
n
 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 
to

 l
im

it
 p

a
rk

in
g
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
u

ld
 l
e
d
 t

o
 P

a
y
 a

n
d
 D

is
p
la

y
 p

a
rk

in
g
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 a

lr
e
a

d
y
 

h
a
p
p

e
n
e

d
 a

t 
th

e
 t
o
p

 o
ff

 S
ta

n
m

o
re

 H
ill

 w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 n

o
t 

v
e
ry

 a
tt
ra

c
ti
v
e
. 

It
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
to

 r
e
ta

in
 t

h
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

C
A

 c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 r
e

la
ti
n
g
 t

o
 t

h
is

 b
u
ild

in
g
 

s
in

c
e
 i
t 

is
 s

it
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 m

id
s
t 
o
f 

th
e
 C

A
 s

o
 

it
 i
s
 v

e
ry

 s
e
n
s
it
iv

e
 t

o
 a

n
y
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 d

u
e
 

to
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
th

is
 w

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

w
id

e
r 

a
re

a
. 
T

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e

d
 t

ra
ff

ic
 

c
a
lm

in
g
 f

o
r 

G
re

e
n
 L

a
n
e
 i
s
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 a
 

s
e
p
a
ra

te
 p

u
b
lic

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 b

y
 t
h

e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il'

s
 H

ig
h

w
a

y
s
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t.
 I
t 
is

 
c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
h

a
t 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 p

ro
p
o
s
e

d
 

w
o
u
ld

 p
re

s
e
rv

e
 t

h
e
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
o
f 

th
e
 C

A
 

b
u
t 
th

e
s
e
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

fo
rw

a
rd

e
d
 t
o
 H

ig
h

w
a

y
s
. 

S
ta

n
m

o
re

 
H

ill
 C

A
 

95



1
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
3
 

(p
u
b
lic

 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
) 

R
e
x
 H

o
lm

e
s
 

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
o
n
 t

h
e
 g

re
e

n
 f

o
r 

a
 h

ig
h

e
r 

fe
n
c
e
 w

h
e
re

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 n

o
w

 a
 l
o

w
 h

e
d
g
e

 a
n

d
 t
o
 

tu
rn

 t
h

e
 s

e
a
ts

 a
ro

u
n

d
 i
s
 u

n
d
e
s
ir
a
b

le
. 

B
u

t 
w

e
 d

o
 n

e
e

d
 a

 b
in

 b
y
 t

h
a
t 
s
e

a
t.
 *

 P
a
rt

 w
a

y
 

d
o

w
n
 S

ta
n
m

o
re

 H
ill

 n
e
x
t 

to
 t

h
e
 p

a
rk

 w
a
s
 a

 s
tu

d
io

 f
o
r 

th
e
 h

o
u
s
e
 o

p
p
o
s
it
e
. 
T

h
e
 p

e
rs

o
n
 

liv
in

g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 s

tu
d
io

 r
e
c
e
n
tl
y
 d

ie
d
. 
If

 i
t 

w
a
s
 c

o
n

v
e
rt

e
d
 t
o
 a

 d
w

e
lli

n
g
 h

o
u
s
e
 i
t 

w
o

u
ld

 n
o
t 

b
e
 i
n
 k

e
e
p
in

g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
 a

s
 t
h
e
re

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

 l
o

t 
o
f 

g
re

e
n

e
ry

 h
e
re

. 
* 

A
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

h
o
u
s
e
 w

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 
b

e
 i
n
 k

e
e
p

in
g
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e

 t
h
a

t 
is

 a
n
 o

p
e
n

 a
re

a
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 p

a
v
e
m

e
n
t 
is

 
q
u
it
e
 n

a
rr

o
w

. 

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 f
o
r 

th
e
 g

re
e

n
 a

re
 n

o
w

 
o
m

it
te

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

a
m

e
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
 a

 n
e

w
 b

in
. 
T

h
e
re

 
a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 n

o
 p

ro
p
o
s
a

ls
 i
n
 t
o
 

re
d
e
v
e
lo

p
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
 o

f 
th

e
 S

tu
d
io

 o
n

 
S

ta
n
m

o
re

 H
ill

 b
u
t 

if
 a

n
d
 w

h
e
n
 t
h

e
y
 a

re
 

s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 t
h
e
s
e
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 j
u
d
g
e

d
 o

n
 

th
e
ir
 o

w
n
 m

e
ri
ts

 a
n
d

 t
h
e
re

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

p
u
b

lic
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 t
h

is
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 
u
s
u
a
l 
p
la

n
n

in
g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 
T

h
e
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
a
re

a
 i
s
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

im
p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
it
s
 g

re
e

n
e
ry

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e
 

d
ra

ft
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 i
t 

is
 n

o
t 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 t
o

 m
a
k
e
 a

n
y
 

a
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t
h
e

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

in
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o

 t
h

is
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
. 

S
ta

n
m

o
re

 
H

ill
 C

A
 

1
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
3
 

(p
u
b
lic

 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
) 

M
r 

P
e
re

tt
i 
o
f 

th
e
 

S
ta

n
m

o
re

 
S

o
c
ie

ty
 

T
h
e
re

 o
u
g
h
t 

to
 b

e
 a

 l
im

it
 t
o
 t

h
e
 h

e
ig

h
t 

o
f 

tr
e
e
s
 s

o
 t
h
a

t 
v
ie

w
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
. 

It
 i
s
 n

o
t 
p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t
o
 i
m

p
o
s
e
 a

 l
im

it
 o

n
 t
h
e

 
h
e
ig

h
t 

o
f 

tr
e
e
s
. 

S
ta

n
m

o
re

 
H

ill
 C

A
 

1
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
3
 

(p
u
b
lic

 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
) 

D
a
v
id

 
S

a
s
s
e
n
 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 n
o

t 
a
 s

y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
l 
la

y
o
u
t 

to
 t

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 a

s
 d

e
s
c
ri
b
e

d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h

e
 C

a
n
o

n
s
 

P
a
rk

 C
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 A

re
a
 A

p
p
ra

is
a

l 
a

lo
n

g
 P

o
w

e
l 
C

lo
s
e
 i
n
 p

a
ra

g
ra

p
h

 6
.3

3
. 

P
o

w
e
l 
C

lo
s
e
 

is
 s

p
e
lt
 i
n
c
o
rr

e
c
tl
y
 i
n
 t

h
e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t.
 S

e
e
 p

a
ra

g
ra

p
h

 6
.3

3
 a

n
d
 p

ic
tu

re
 6

.2
3
 

T
h
e
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 d
ra

ft
 n

o
w

 o
m

it
s
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 

to
 t
h

is
. 

C
a
n
o

n
s
 

P
a
rk

 C
A

 

1
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
3
 

(p
u
b
lic

 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
) 

R
o
b
e
rt

 
G

ra
h
a
m

 a
n
d
 

M
y
ra

 
S

te
p

h
e
n
s
 

U
n
le

s
s
 t
h

e
 r

u
le

s
 a

re
 a

p
p

lie
d
 f

o
r 

b
u
ild

in
g
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t
re

e
s
 t
h
e

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
is

 n
o
t 

w
o
rt

h
 i
t.
 W

e
 r

e
fe

r 
to

 t
h
e
 t
re

e
 r

e
m

o
v
a
l 
a

t 
3
 R

o
s
e
 G

a
rd

e
n
 C

lo
s
e
. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

a
b
o
u

t 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 g

a
ra

g
e

 a
t 
6
 R

o
s
e
 G

a
rd

e
n
 C

lo
s
e
. 

* 
W

e
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 a

b
o

u
t 
th

e
 

m
o
d
e
rn

 m
a
te

ri
a
ls

 a
t 

4
0
 C

a
n
o
n
s
 D

ri
v
e

. 
W

e
 b

e
lie

v
e
 t

h
is

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
fu

s
e
d
 a

n
d
 

p
u
b

lic
it
y
 m

a
x
im

is
e
d
 o

n
 m

a
k
in

g
 t

h
e
m

 r
e
b
u
ild

. 
W

e
 a

re
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

iv
e

 o
f 

th
is

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t.
 *

 6
 

R
o
s
e
 G

a
rd

e
n
 C

lo
s
e
 i
s
 m

e
a
n
t 
to

 p
u
t 

u
p
 a

 f
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 v

e
g
e
ta

ti
o

n
. 
W

a
te

r 
is

 n
o

w
 a

ls
o

 
le

a
k
in

g
 o

u
t 
fr

o
m

 u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 g

a
b

io
n
 w

a
ll 

to
 s

u
c
h
 a

n
 e

x
te

n
t 
th

a
t 
o

u
r 

p
a
th

 a
ro

u
n
d
 t

h
e
 l
a
k
e
 

is
 d

a
n

g
e
ro

u
s
ly

 w
a
te

rl
o

g
g
e

d
. 
S

o
m

e
th

in
g
 m

u
s
t 
b
e
 d

o
n
e
 b

y
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 o

w
n
e
r 

to
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
 t
h

is
 p

ro
b

le
m

. 
* 

5
4
 C

a
n
o

n
s
 D

ri
v
e
 w

e
re

 m
e
a
n
t 

to
 p

u
t 

w
a

ll 
b
a
c
k
 b

u
t 
a
re

 o
n
ly

 
ju

s
t 
d
o
in

g
 t
h

is
. 
T

h
e

y
 h

a
v
e
 p

a
in

te
d
 t

h
e

ir
 d

ri
v
e
 b

la
c
k
 a

n
d
 a

 c
a
s
e
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 c

re
a

te
d
 f

o
r 

th
is

. 
* 

W
e
 a

re
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

iv
e
 o

f 
th

e
 A

rt
ic

le
 4

 d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n

 f
o
r 

w
in

d
o

w
s
. 
* 

2
3
 D

u
k
e
s
 A

v
e

n
u
e

 
h
a
v
e
 a

 m
o
d
e
rn

d
o
o
r 

a
n
d
 d

ri
v
e
 i
n
s
ta

lle
d
. 

* 
W

e
 w

o
u
ld

 s
u

p
p
o
rt

 a
n
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a

 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 C

a
v
e
n

d
is

h
 a

n
d

 D
o
re

s
t.
 *

 W
e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 o

n
 t
h
e

 C
a

n
o

n
s
 

P
a
rk

 E
s
ta

te
 A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 l
is

t.
 

T
h
e
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
a
d
d
re

s
s
in

g
 

u
n
s
y
m

p
a
th

e
ti
c
, 
u
n

a
u
th

o
ri
s
e

d
 w

o
rk

s
 i
s
 

re
c
o
g
n
is

e
d
 a

s
 t

h
e
 d

ra
ft

 S
P

D
 s

ta
te

s
 t
h

a
t 

u
n
a
u

th
o
ri

s
e
d
 w

o
rk

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 

e
n
s
u
re

d
 t

h
a
t 

a
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 w

h
e
re

 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

. 
T

h
e
s
e
 u

n
a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 w

o
rk

s
 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t.
 T

h
e
 

p
ro

p
o
s
e

d
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

A
 i
s
 n

o
t 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 s
in

c
e
 t
h
e
 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
s
e
 a

re
a
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

a
s
 o

f 
g
o
o
d

 o
r 

c
o
h

e
s
iv

e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

s
 t
h
o
s
e
 w

it
h

in
 

th
e
 C

A
 s

o
 w

o
u

ld
 u

n
d
e
rm

in
e
 t
h
e

 C
A

's
 

v
a

lu
e
. 

T
h
e

y
 a

re
 a

lr
e
a
d

y
 a

ff
o
rd

e
d
 s

o
m

e
 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 a

n
y
 c

a
s
e
 b

y
 b

e
in

g
 w

it
h
in

 
th

e
 C

A
 s

e
tt

in
g

. 
T

h
e

y
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n

 a
d

d
e
d
 

to
 t
h

e
 C

a
n
o
n
s
 P

a
rk

 E
s
ta

te
 A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 

lis
t.
 

O
v
e
ra

rc
h
in

g
 S

P
D

 a
n
d
 

th
e
 C

a
n
o

n
s
 

P
a
rk

 C
A

 

96



1
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
3
 

(p
u
b
lic

 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
) 

M
r 

L
e

v
e
n

e
 

T
h
e
 g

ra
s
s
 o

n
 L

it
tl
e
 C

o
m

m
o
n
 i
s
 n

o
t 
b

e
in

g
 c

u
t.
 S

to
n
e
s
 a

re
 h

id
d
e

n
, 
p

o
s
ts

 a
re

 o
n

 t
h
e

 
fl
o
o
r 

a
n
d
 c

o
n
c
re

te
 i
s
 s

ti
c
k
in

g
 u

p
. 

T
h
e

y
 d

o
 n

o
t 
s
w

e
e

p
 u

p
 t
h
e

 g
ra

s
s
 a

n
d
 d

o
 n

o
t 

u
s
e
 a

 
s
m

a
ll 

m
o
w

e
r 

ju
s
t 
s
tr

im
m

e
r.

 *
T

h
e
 C

o
tt
a

g
e
 f

a
c
in

g
 t
h

e
 m

a
in

 r
o
a

d
 h

a
d
 a

 p
o

o
r 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 w

it
h
 r

o
o
fl
ig

h
ts

 b
e

in
g
 a

llo
w

e
d
 b

u
t 

a
 d

o
rm

e
r 

n
o
t.

 

T
h
e
 g

ra
s
s
 c

u
tt
in

g
 i
s
s
u
e
 w

a
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

o
 

p
a
rk

s
 o

n
 1

5
th

 J
u

ly
 2

0
1
3
. 
Q

u
e
s
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

o
s
ts

 i
n
c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n
 t
h

e
 C

A
A

M
S

. 
J
u
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n

 f
o
r 

e
a
c
h
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 

is
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 p

la
n
n

in
g
 r

e
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

e
a
c
h
 c

a
s
e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 v

ia
 t
h

e
 H

a
rr

o
w

 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 w

e
b

p
a
g

e
s
 a

t 
w

w
w

.h
a
rr

o
w

.g
o

v
.u

k
/p

la
n
n

in
g
 o

n
c
e
 t

h
e
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 e

n
te

re
d

 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 

s
e
a
rc

h
 e

n
g

in
e
. 

L
it
tl
e
 

C
o
m

m
o
n
 

C
A

 

1
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
3
 

(p
u
b
lic

 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
) 

C
a
ro

le
 L

is
 o

f 
th

e
 E

lm
 P

a
rk

 
R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 
A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 

* 
F

o
r 

B
e
rn

a
y
s
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 a

 n
e

w
 d

o
o
rw

a
y
 i
n
 t
h

e
 w

a
ll 

to
 t

h
e
 p

a
rk

 i
s
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 f

o
r 

s
a
fe

ty
 

re
a
s
o
n
s
. 
I 

w
o
u

ld
 o

b
je

c
t 
to

 t
h
is

 a
s
 t
h

is
 i
s
 t

h
e
 l
o
n

g
e
s
t 
u

n
b
ro

k
e
n
 s

tr
e
tc

h
 o

f 
w

a
ll 

a
ro

u
n
d
. 
* 

F
o
r 

W
o
o
d
 F

a
rm

 w
e
 f

o
u

g
h
t 
th

is
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
l 
b
u
t 

it
 w

a
s
 o

v
e
rt

u
rn

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 

in
s
p
e
c
to

ra
te

. 
It

 i
s
 o

n
 G

re
e

n
 B

e
lt
 l
a
n
d

. 
* 

T
h
in

k
 u

rb
a
n

 t
o

w
n
s
c
a
p
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
 n

e
a
r 

to
 t

h
e
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a

 s
h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 t
h
e

 W
o
o
d
 L

a
n
e
 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 

o
f 

w
ild

 f
lo

w
e
rs

. 
* 

T
o

w
a
rd

s
 

C
lo

is
te

rs
 t
h
e

y
 h

a
v
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 a

 l
o

w
 p

ic
k
e
t 
fe

n
c
e
 f

ro
m

 C
lo

is
te

rs
 W

o
o
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
la

c
e

d
 i
t 

w
it
h
 

ta
ll 

fe
n
c
e
s
. 
* 

A
lf
 P

o
rt

e
r 

th
e

 e
x
-C

h
a
ir
m

a
n
 o

f 
S

ta
n
m

o
re

 a
n
d
 H

a
rr

o
w

 H
is

to
ri
c
a

l 
S

o
c
ie

ty
 

s
a

y
s
 t
h
a

t 
a
t 

E
d

g
w

a
re

 H
ig

h
 S

tr
e
e
t 

C
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 A

re
a
 o

n
 t
h
e

 c
o
rn

e
r 

o
f 
W

h
it
c
h
u
rc

h
 

L
a
n
e

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 f
ru

it
 a

n
d
 v

e
g
e
ta

b
le

 s
to

re
 t

h
a
t 

h
a
s
 e

n
c
ro

a
c
h
e
d

 o
u
t 

b
y
 i
n
s
ta

lli
n
g
 a

 s
ta

ll 
s
e
rv

in
g
 k

e
b
a
b
s
 *

 A
t 
th

e
 b

a
c
k
 o

f 
4
 E

lm
 P

a
rk

 t
h
e

y
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 w

in
d
o

w
s
 b

a
c
k
in

g
 o

n
 

th
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a

 a
n

d
 b

u
ilt

 a
 2

 s
to

re
y
 g

a
ra

g
e
. 

T
h
e
 L

is
te

d
 B

u
ild

in
g
 C

o
n
s
e
n

t 
a
n
d

 
P

la
n
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

th
e

 n
e

w
 

d
o
o
rw

a
y
 i
n
 t

h
e
 w

a
ll 

to
 B

e
rn

a
y
s
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 

h
a
s
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 b

e
e
n

 d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
. 

S
im

ila
rl

y
 

th
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a

l 
fo

r 
W

o
o
d
 F

a
rm

 h
a
s
 

a
lr
e
a

d
y
 b

e
e
n
 a

p
p
ro

v
e

d
. 
T

h
e
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 

o
f 

a
d
d
re

s
s
in

g
 u

n
s
y
m

p
a
th

e
ti
c
, 

u
n
a
u

th
o
ri

s
e
d
 w

o
rk

s
 i
s
 r

e
c
o
g
n
is

e
d
 a

n
d
 

s
o
 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

rc
h
in

g
 S

P
D

 s
ta

te
s
 t
h
a
t 

u
n
a
u

th
o
ri

s
e
d
 w

o
rk

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 

e
n
s
u
re

d
 t

h
a
t 

a
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 w

h
e
re

 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

. 
T

h
e
 u

n
a
u
th

o
ri

s
e
d
 w

o
rk

s
 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
o
r 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
a

lt
 w

it
h
 u

n
d
e
r 

s
e
p
a
ra

te
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
. 

O
ld

 C
h

u
rc

h
 

L
a
n
e

 
C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 A

re
a
, 

E
d
g

w
a
re

 
H

ig
h

 S
tr

e
e
t 

C
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 A

re
a
, 

L
it
tl
e
 

C
o
m

m
o
n
 

C
A

 

1
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
3
 

(p
u
b
lic

 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
) 

T
o
n

y
 

R
a

y
m

o
n

d
 -

 
P

re
s
id

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

S
ta

n
m

o
re

 
S

o
c
ie

ty
 a

n
d

 
C

h
a
ir
m

a
n
 o

f 
th

e
 H

a
rr

o
w

 
E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t

a
l 
F

o
ru

m
 

* 
M

a
d
e
 a

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

 r
e
q

u
e
s
t 
fo

r 
a
 c

o
p

y
 o

f 
th

e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t.
 *

 P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
 6

.1
.1

.3
 G

re
e

n
 

L
a
n
e

 i
s
 u

s
e

d
 a

s
 a

 r
a
t 
ru

n
. 

W
it
h
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d

 n
e

w
 s

u
p

e
rm

a
rk

e
t 
th

is
 i
s
 a

 d
is

a
s
te

r 
w

a
it
in

g
 t
o
 h

a
p

p
e
n
. 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 n

e
e
d

 f
o
r 

a
n
o
th

e
r 

s
u
p

e
rm

a
rk

e
t.
 *

 A
t 
th

e
 t

o
p

 o
f 

th
e
 h

ill
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 R
N

O
H

 r
e
d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t.
 T

h
is

 i
s
 p

ro
p
o
s
in

g
 t

o
 m

o
v
e
 t
h
e
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
 i
n
to

 
W

o
o
d
 L

a
n
e
. 

T
h
is

 w
o
u

ld
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
ra

ff
ic

 t
o
 u

n
m

a
n
a
g
e
a

b
le

 l
e

v
e

ls
. 
T

h
e
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 
s
ta

y
 i
n
 B

ro
c
k
le

y
 H

ill
. 
* 

A
t 
th

e
 b

o
tt

o
m

 o
f 

S
ta

n
m

o
re

 H
ill

 t
h
e
 t
ra

ff
ic

 l
ig

h
ts

 a
re

 b
a
d

ly
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e

d
. 
C

a
n
 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

u
s
e
 t
h
e

ir
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e

 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
is

?
 

A
 p

a
p
e
r 

c
o
p

y
 o

f 
th

e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

w
a
s
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
. 
R

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 

th
e
 t
ra

ff
ic

 i
s
s
u
e
 a

lo
n

g
 G

re
e

n
 L

a
n
e
 i
n
 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
 2

.2
5

. 
C

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 o
n
 t
h
e
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a
l 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 c

a
s
e
 f

o
r 

R
N

O
H

 w
a
s
 

re
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e

 r
e
le

v
a
n
t 
c
a
s
e
 o

ff
ic

e
r.

 T
h
e
 

p
ro

p
o
s
e

d
 s

u
p
e
rm

a
rk

e
t 
w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 o

n
 i
ts

 o
w

n
 m

e
ri
ts

 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t
o
 

it
s
 a

ff
e
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 s

e
tt
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 C

A
. 

T
h
a
t 

th
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 s

e
tt
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 C

A
 i
s
 a

 
m

a
tt
e
r 

fo
r 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 

o
n
 h

o
w

 t
o

 c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
is

 i
s
 a

lr
e
a
d

y
 

c
o
v
e
re

d
 b

y
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 2

.4
.6

. 
T

h
e
 p

o
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 
o
f 

re
a
rr

a
n
g
in

g
 t
ra

ff
ic

 l
ig

h
ts

 a
t 
th

e
 b

o
tt
o
m

 
o
f 

S
ta

n
m

o
re

 H
ill

 w
a
s
 d

is
c
u

s
s
e
d
 w

it
h

 
T

ra
ff

ic
 b

u
t 
is

 n
o
t 
a

n
 i
s
s
u
e

 f
o
r 

th
e
 C

A
. 

S
ta

n
m

o
re

 
H

ill
 

C
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 A

re
a
 a

n
d
 

L
it
tl
e
 

C
o
m

m
o
n
 

C
A

 

97



1
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
3
 

(p
u
b
lic

 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
 -

 i
n

 
p
e
rs

o
n
) 

M
rs

 D
e
ly

s
 

R
o
n
s
o
n
 -

 H
ill

 
H

o
u
s
e
 

C
a
n
 H

ill
 H

o
u
s
e
 b

e
 d

e
-l
is

te
d

?
 C

a
n

 a
lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 b

e
 d

o
n

e
?

 T
re

e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
 o

v
e
rh

a
n
g
 

h
e
r 

g
a
rd

e
n
. 

Is
 S

ta
b
le

 C
o

tt
a

g
e
 i
n
 a

 c
o

n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
?
 W

h
e
re

 c
a
n
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 f

o
r 

re
p
a

ir
s
 

b
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
?
 

A
n
 e

x
p

la
n
a
ti
o
n

 w
a
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 a

s
 t
o
 h

o
w

 
to

 a
p

p
ly

 t
o
 d

e
-l

is
t 
th

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 b

u
t 
th

a
t 

it
 

w
a
s
 u

n
lik

e
ly

 t
o
 s

u
c
c
e
e

d
. 
In

 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
tr

e
e
 

q
u
e
ri

e
s
 s

h
e
 w

a
s
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o

 o
u
r 

tr
e
e

 
o
ff

ic
e
r.

 A
n
 e

x
p
la

n
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

o
u
rc

e
s
 o

f 
fu

n
d
in

g
 w

a
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
. 

S
ta

n
m

o
re

 
H

ill
 C

A
 

1
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
3
 

(p
u
b
lic

 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
 -

 i
n

 
p
e
rs

o
n
) 

M
a
x
in

e
 

F
e
rr

a
r 

* 
T

h
e
 A

b
e
rc

o
rn

 -
 p

a
rk

in
g
 i
s
 v

e
ry

 b
a

d
 a

ro
u
n
d
 t

h
e
re

. 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o
n

 f
o
r 

d
o
u
b

le
 

y
e

llo
w

 l
in

e
s
 g

o
in

g
 o

n
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
d
o

w
n
 t

h
e
 h

ill
. 

* 
S

tr
e

e
t 

c
le

a
n
e
rs

 h
a

v
e
 b

e
e

n
 t
a
k
e
n
 a

w
a

y
 

fr
o
m

 S
ta

n
m

o
re

 s
h
o
p
s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

 v
e
ry

 s
h
o

p
 t
e
rm

 v
ie

w
 t

o
 t
a
k
e
 t
h
is

 a
w

a
y
 a

s
 k

e
e
p
in

g
 

th
e
m

 t
h
e
re

 s
h
o

w
s
 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 d

o
in

g
 s

o
m

e
th

in
g
. 

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e
 i
s
 n

o
w

 m
a
d
e
 t
o
 t

h
e
 p

a
rk

in
g
 

a
s
 a

n
 i
s
s
u
e
 n

e
a
r 

th
e
 A

b
e
rc

o
rn

 a
n

d
 a

 
s
u
g
g
e
s
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

a
d

d
re

s
s
in

g
 t

h
is

 i
s
 m

a
d
e
. 

T
h
e
 m

a
tt
e
r 

o
f 

s
tr

e
e
t 
c
le

a
n
e

rs
 w

a
s
 

re
p
o
rt

e
d

 t
o
 s

tr
e
e

t 
c
le

a
n

in
g
. 

S
ta

n
m

o
re

 
H

ill
 C

A
 

1
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
3
 

(p
u
b
lic

 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
 -

 i
n

 
p
e
rs

o
n
) 

T
o
n

y
 

E
th

e
rt

o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 L

it
tl
e
 

C
o
m

m
o
n
 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 
A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 

L
it
tl
e
 C

o
m

m
o
n
 -

 S
ta

n
m

o
re

 A
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 L

o
n
d

o
n
 

B
o
ro

u
g
h
 o

f 
H

a
rr

o
w

. 
Is

s
u
e
s
: 

*p
o
th

o
le

s
 i
n
 g

ra
v
e

lle
d
 a

re
a

s
 *

 r
e
d
u

n
d
a

n
t 
s
ig

n
p

o
s
ts

 *
 

m
o
re

 s
ig

n
p
o
s
ts

 t
h
a
n

 t
h
e

 M
1
 *

 F
o

u
l 
s
m

e
lls

 f
ro

m
 R

a
w

 L
a
s
a
n
 R

e
s
ta

u
ra

n
t 
- 

o
n

g
o

in
g
 

p
ro

b
le

m
 f
o
r 

y
e
a
rs

 *
 N

e
w

 h
a

n
d
 c

a
r 

w
a
s
h
 i
n

 c
a
r 

p
a
rk

 a
t 
R

a
w

 L
a
s
a
n
 *

 S
c
o

u
t 
h

u
t 
h

a
s
 

b
e
e
n

 b
ro

k
e
n
 i
n

 t
o
. 

It
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
re

lic
t 
fo

r 
y
e
a
rs

. 
* 

T
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n

 n
o
 a

c
ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

o
n
 a

n
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 u

s
e
 t

h
e
 S

c
o
u
t 
H

u
t 
a
s
 a

n
 A

rt
s
 C

e
n
tr

e
 *

 A
 p

ic
n
ic

 t
a
b

le
 h

a
s
 

b
e
e
n

 s
to

le
n
 f

ro
m

 a
ro

u
n
d
 t
h

e
 p

o
n
d
s
 a

n
d
 s

ti
ll 

n
o
t 

b
e

e
n
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
. 
It

 w
a
s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 f

a
r 

s
id

e
 

n
e
a
r 

th
e
 r

u
g

b
y
 c

lu
b

. 
* 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n

t 
p
ro

b
le

m
 w

it
h
 c

a
rs

 p
a

rk
e
d
 a

ro
u
n

d
 L

it
tl
e
 C

o
m

m
o
n
 -

 
re

q
u
e
s
t 
fo

r 
y
e

llo
w

 l
in

e
s
 *

 M
o
re

 a
n

d
 m

o
re

 s
a
te

lli
te

 d
is

h
e
s
 a

re
 g

o
in

g
 u

p
 *

 C
o
n
c
re

te
 

p
o
s
ts

 a
re

 m
is

s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 g

ra
s
s
e
d
 a

re
a

 o
u
ts

id
e
 R

a
w

 L
a
s
a
n
 r

e
s
ta

u
ra

n
t 

- 
re

q
u

e
s
t 

fo
r 

n
e

w
 o

n
e
s
. 
* 

G
ra

s
s
 c

u
tt
in

g
 i
s
 n

o
t 

w
e

ll 
o
rg

a
n
is

e
d
. 

S
p
e
c
if
ic

 r
e
fe

re
n
c
e
 i
s
 n

o
w

 m
a
d
e
 t

o
 

p
o
th

o
le

s
 a

s
 a

n
 i
s
s
u
e
 b

u
t 

it
 i
s
 c

la
ri
fi
e
d
 

th
a
t 
th

e
 l
a
n

d
 i
n
 L

it
tl
e
 C

o
m

m
o
n
 w

h
ic

h
 

h
a
s
 p

o
th

o
le

s
 i
s
 n

o
t 
o

w
n
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il.

  
T

h
e
 p

a
th

s
 c

ro
s
s
in

g
 t
h
e

 
C

o
m

m
o
n
 a

re
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

b
u
t 
th

e
 g

ra
v
e
l 
d
ri

v
e

 i
s
 e

x
c
lu

d
e
d
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 C

o
m

m
o
n
 L

a
n
d
 a

re
a
 a

n
d
 i
s
 

u
n
a
d

o
p
te

d
 l
a
n

d
. 
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

th
e
re

fo
re

 
d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
h

a
v
e
 d

ir
e
c
t 
re

s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

th
e
 d

ri
v
e
 a

n
d
 c

a
re

 f
a
lls

 t
o
 a

ll 
u
s
e
rs

 
(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il)

. 
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 

o
n
e
 s

u
c
h
 i
n

d
iv

id
u
a

l 
b

u
t 
h

a
s
 n

o
 m

o
re

 
re

s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 t
h

e
n
 a

n
y
 o

th
e

r 
o
f 

th
e
 c

ir
c
a
 

3
0
 o

th
e
r 

u
s
e
rs

. 
T

o
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
 t

h
e
 p

o
th

o
le

s
 

th
e
re

fo
re

 t
h

e
 m

a
tt
e
r 

is
 s

ta
te

d
 t
o
 n

e
e

d
 t
o
 

b
e
 o

n
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 d

is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 a
ll 

u
s
e
rs

. 
It
 i
s
 m

e
n
ti
o
n

e
d
 t

h
o
u

g
h
 t
h

a
t,
 o

n
 a

 
n
o
n
 p

re
ju

d
ic

ia
l 
b
a
s
is

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

u
n
d
e
rt

o
o
k
  
re

m
e
d
ia

l 
w

o
rk

s
 t
o
 L

it
tl
e
 

C
o
m

m
o
n
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r 

to
 a

lli
e

v
ia

te
 t

h
e
 

p
o
th

o
le

 i
s
s
u
e
 a

t 
th

a
t 
ti
m

e
 b

u
t 
th

e
re

 
n
e
e
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
 a

s
 t

o
 t
h
e

 
o
n
g
o

in
g
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n
c
e
. 
T

h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
 o

f 
s
ig

n
p

o
s
ts

 i
s
 a

lr
e
a
d

y
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 b

y
 t
h

e
 

d
ra

ft
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
in

 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 1

.1
1
5
 a

n
d

 
g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 s

e
c
ti
o
n

 1
.1

4
5
.s

o
 n

o
 

a
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o

 t
h

is
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
, 

a
lt
h

o
u
g

h
 i
t 
h
a
s
 n

o
w

 a
ls

o
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 

to
 H

ig
h

w
a

y
s
. 
T

h
e
 m

a
tt
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 s

to
le

n
 

p
ic

n
ic

 t
a
b

le
 i
s
 n

o
w

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d

 i
n
 t

h
e
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
w

h
e
re

 i
t 

is
 s

ta
te

d
 t
h
is

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 

re
p
la

c
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 

 L
it
tl
e
 

C
o
m

m
o
n
 

C
A

 

98



G
re

e
n
 G

ri
d
 p

ro
je

c
t.
 I
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 

to
 P

a
rk

s
. 
S

m
e
lls

 a
t 
th

e
 r

e
s
ta

u
ra

n
t 

is
 a

n
 

o
n
g
o

in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
 w

it
h
 E

n
v
ir
o
n

m
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
. 
R

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 i
s
 m

a
d
e
 t

o
 t
h

e
 S

c
o

u
t 

H
u
t 
a
s
 a

n
 i
s
s
u
e

 w
it
h
in

 t
h

e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 m

a
tt
e
r 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

o
 P

ro
p
e
rt

y
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
T

h
e
 p

a
rk

in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 
re

p
o
rt

e
d

 t
o
 H

ig
h

w
a

y
s
 a

n
d
 P

a
rk

s
. 

S
p
e
c
if
ic

 r
e
fe

re
n
c
e
 i
s
 n

o
w

 m
a
d
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
a
lo

n
g
 w

it
h

 c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

th
a
t 

w
o
u

ld
 b

e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 f

o
r 

re
s
o
lv

in
g
 t
h

e
 

is
s
u
e
. 
S

a
te

lli
te

 d
is

h
e
s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
d
 a

s
 a

n
 i
s
s
u
e
 a

n
d

 i
t 
is

 s
ta

te
d

 
th

a
t 

u
n
a

u
th

o
ri

s
e
d
 w

o
rk

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 

to
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
. 
T

h
e
 g

ra
s
s
 c

u
tt
in

g
 

m
a
tt
e
r 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

o
 P

a
rk

s
. 
T

h
e
 

m
is

s
in

g
 c

o
n
c
re

te
 p

o
s
ts

 a
re

 n
o

w
 

re
fe

re
n
c
e
d
 a

s
 a

n
 i
s
s
u
e
 a

lo
n
g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o

n
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
y
 b

e
 r

e
p

la
c
e

d
. 

G
ra

s
s
 c

u
tt
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d
 t

o
 

P
a
rk

s
  

1
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
3
 

(p
u
b
lic

 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
 -

 i
n

 
p
e
rs

o
n
) 

A
n
n
 B

ilt
e
n
 

* 
T

h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o
 y

e
llo

w
 l
in

e
s
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 a
p
a

rt
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
c
h
o

o
l 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

 
g
o
o
d

 t
h

in
g
 b

u
t 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 w
o

u
ld

 a
d

d
 t
o
 t

h
is

. 
* 

T
h
e
 g

ra
s
s
 a

t 
th

e
 t

o
p
 o

f 
G

re
e
n
 

L
a
n
e

 i
s
 n

o
t 
b

e
in

g
 c

u
t.
 

A
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 h

e
ld

 b
y
 

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e

d
 p

a
rk

in
g
 

c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 n
e
a
r 

G
re

e
n
 L

a
n
e
 a

n
d
 s

o
 s

u
c
h
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n
 f

o
rw

a
rd

e
d
 t

o
 

th
e
m

. 
M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 g

re
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 

a
t 
th

e
 t
o

p
 o

f 
G

re
e
n
 L

a
n

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 a

s
 a

n
 i
s
s
u
e
 i
n

 t
h
e

 d
ra

ft
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
a
s
 a

re
 s

u
g

g
e
s
te

d
 w

a
y
s
 t
o
 

m
a
in

ta
in

 t
h
is

 a
re

a
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e

n
 

re
p
o
rt

e
d

 t
o
 P

a
rk

s
 v

ia
 e

m
a
il 

o
n
 7

th
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r,

 2
0
1
3
. 

S
ta

n
m

o
re

 
H

ill
 C

A
 

1
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
3
 

(p
u
b
lic

 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
) 

B
a
rr

y
 D

a
n
c
e
r 

* 
T

h
e
 m

in
i-
c
a
b
 c

o
m

p
a
n

y
 i
n
 S

ta
n
m

o
re

 S
ta

ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 t
h
ro

w
n
 o

u
t.

 T
h
e

y
 n

o
w

 p
a
rk

 i
n
 

K
e
rr

y
 A

v
e
n

u
e
 a

n
d
 u

ri
n

a
te

 o
n
 t
h
e

 l
a

n
d
 a

n
d
 l
e

a
v
e
 t
h

e
ir

 r
u
b
b

is
h
 o

u
t.
 F

o
r 

2
 h

o
u
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 

d
a

y
 p

a
rk

in
g
 r

e
s
tr

ic
ti
o
n
s
 s

a
y
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 c

a
n
't
 p

a
rk

 t
h
e
re

 b
u
t 
th

e
 P

a
rk

in
g
 W

a
rd

e
n
s
 s

a
y
 

th
a
t 
th

e
y
 c

a
n
't
 w

ri
te

 a
 t

ic
k
e
t 
a
s
 t
h
e

y
 g

o
 a

w
a

y
 s

tr
a

ig
h
t 
a

w
a

y
 b

u
t 

d
o
 n

o
t 

u
n
d

e
rs

ta
n
d
 t

h
is

 
- 

w
h

y
 c

a
n
't
 t
h

e
y
 i
s
s
u
e
 a

 t
ic

k
e
t?

 C
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 g
o
 t
o

 A
n

d
y
 A

p
p

le
b
e
e
. 

A
 c

o
m

p
la

in
t 
h

a
s
 

b
e
e
n

 m
a
d
e
 t
o
 C

o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 

H
u
s
s
a
in

. 
R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 p
ro

p
o
s
e
 a

 s
ig

n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 s

a
y
in

g
 n

o
 

c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
o
r 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

a
rk

in
g
 c

a
n
 b

e
 t

h
e
re

. 
* 

T
h
e
 r

o
a
d
s
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 a

 c
u
t 
th

ro
u
g

h
. 

C
o
u
ld

n
't
 G

la
n

le
a
m

 a
n
d
 V

a
le

n
c
ia

 R
o
a

d
s
 b

e
 p

a
rt

 c
lo

s
e
d

 t
o
 p

re
v
e

n
t 
th

is
. 

A
lo

n
g
 K

e
rr

y
 

A
v
e
n
u

e
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 b

e
in

g
 t

w
o
 w

a
y
s
 i
t 

s
h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 c

lo
s
e

d
 o

n
 o

n
e

 s
id

e
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 i
t 
s
a
fe

r.
 

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e
 i
s
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 t

h
e
 v

o
lu

m
e
 o

f 
p
a
rk

in
g
, 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 t
a
x
is

, 
a

n
d
 t
h

e
 i
s
s
u
e

 
o
f 

lit
te

r 
a
s
 a

n
 i
s
s
u
e
 a

n
d
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 m

a
d
e
 f

o
r 

m
a
n
a
g
in

g
 t

h
is

. 
T

h
e
 m

a
tt
e
r 

is
 o

n
e
 f

o
r 

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 a

n
d

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
 

th
e
m

. 
K

e
rr

y
 

A
v
e
n
u

e
 C

A
 

99



1
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
3
 

(p
u
b
lic

 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
 -

 
w

ri
tt
e
n

 a
n

d
 

p
h
o
to

g
ra

p
h

ic
 

s
u
b
m

is
s
io

n
) 

M
a
rc

e
a
 

K
u
p

e
rb

e
rg

, 
L
e
s
le

y
 d

e
 

M
e

z
a
 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ti
n
g
 

1
-3

2
 K

e
rr

y
 

C
o
u
rt

) 
a
n

d
 

E
v
e
lin

a
 

H
u
a
n

g
 

W
ri
tt
e
n
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
: 
M

in
ic

a
b
 p

a
rk

in
g
 i
s
 d

e
tr

im
e
n
ta

l 
to

 t
h
e
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
 

b
e
c
a
u
s
e
: 
W

h
ile

 w
a

it
in

g
 f

o
r 

fa
re

s
, 
th

e
s
e
 c

a
rs

 n
o

w
 u

s
e

 K
e
rr

y
 C

o
u
rt

/K
e
rr

y
 A

v
e

n
u

e
 a

s
 a

 
d
u
m

p
in

g
 g

ro
u
n
d
 a

n
d
 p

ri
v
a
te

 p
a
rk

in
g
 l
o
t.
 1

. 
R

u
b
b

is
h
/l
it
te

r 
is

 d
u
m

p
e
d
 b

y
 p

a
rk

e
rs

 i
n
 

K
e
rr

y
 C

o
u
rt

 a
n
d
 K

e
rr

y
 A

v
e

n
u
e
 e

.e
. 

p
a
c
k
a
g
in

g
 f

ro
m

 '
ta

k
e
-a

w
a

y
' 
fo

o
d
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 n

o
n
-

b
io

d
e
g
ra

d
a
b

le
 S

ty
ro

fo
a
m

),
 d

ri
n
k
s
 c

a
n
s
, 
p
la

s
ti
c
 b

o
tt

le
s
, 

c
ri
s
p
 p

a
c
k
e
rs

, 
s
w

e
e
t 

w
ra

p
p
e
rs

, 
c
ig

a
re

tt
e
 b

u
tt
s
, 

m
is

s
c
e
lla

n
e

o
u
s
 l
it
te

r 
w

h
e

n
 t

h
e
 d

ri
v
e
rs

 c
le

a
n
 o

u
t 

th
e
 i
n
s
id

e
 

o
f 

th
e
ir
 v

e
h

ic
le

s
. 

2
. 
T

h
is

 l
it
te

ri
n
g
 h

a
s
 g

re
a
tl
y
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

d
 s

in
c
e
 m

in
ic

a
b
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 f

o
r 

J
u
b
ile

e
 C

a
rs

, 
o
ff

ic
e
 a

t 
S

ta
n

m
o
re

 S
ta

ti
o
n

, 
h
a

v
e
 b

e
e
n
 o

u
ts

te
d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 s

ta
ti
o

n
 

fo
re

c
o
u
rt

. 
T

h
e
 b

in
 p

la
c
e
d
 i
n

 K
e
rr

y
 C

o
u
rt

 b
y
 t

h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
e
ff

e
c
tu

a
l 
a
n
d

 i
s
 

n
o
t 
c
le

a
re

d
 f

re
q
u

e
n
tl
y
, 

n
o
r 

s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
tl
y
 r

e
g
u

la
rl

y
. 

3
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 J

u
b
ile

e
 m

in
ic

a
b
 d

ri
v
e
rs

 p
a
rk

 
h
e
re

 r
e
g

a
rd

le
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
s
tr

ic
ti
o
n
s
. 
W

h
e
n
 t
h
e
 t
ra

ff
ic

 w
a
rd

e
n
 a

rr
iv

e
s
 o

n
 h

is
 m

o
to

r 
b
ik

e
, 

d
ri
v
e
rs

 o
ft

e
n
 e

x
c
h
a
n

g
e
 a

 j
o

k
e
/w

o
rd

 w
it
h
 h

im
 -

 o
c
c
a
s
io

n
a
lly

 m
o
v
in

g
 o

ff
fo

r 
a
 m

in
u
te

 -
 

re
tu

rn
in

g
 a

s
 s

o
o
n
 a

s
 t

h
e
 t
ra

ff
ic

 w
a
rd

e
n
 h

a
s
 f

o
n
e
. 
T

h
is

 a
tt
ra

c
ts

 o
th

e
r 

p
a
rk

e
rs

. 
4
. 
T

h
e
 

m
in

ic
a
b
s
 a

d
d
 t

o
 t
h

e
 e

y
e
s
o
re

 o
f 

o
th

e
r 

p
a
rk

e
d
 c

a
rs

 i
n
 t
h

is
 p

re
c
io

u
s
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a
 -

 
th

e
 s

it
u
a
ti
o
n

 i
s
 e

x
a
c
e
rb

a
te

d
 w

h
e
n

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

n
 e

v
e

n
t 

in
 W

e
m

b
le

y
. 

(W
e
m

b
le

y
 P

a
rk

 
S

ta
ti
o
n

 i
s
 o

n
ly

 4
 s

to
p
s
 f

ro
m

 S
ta

n
m

o
re

 o
n
 t
h
e
 J

u
b
ile

e
 L

in
e
).

 5
. 

M
in

ic
a

b
s
 c

o
u
ld

 j
u
s
t 

a
s
 

e
a
s
ily

 p
a
rk

 i
n
 n

e
a
rb

y
 n

o
n
-c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
s
 t
h
a

t 
c
o
m

p
ri
s
e
 Z

o
n

e
 H

 -
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e

ir
 

p
re

s
e
n
c
e
 w

o
u
ld

 n
o
t 
b

e
 s

o
 d

e
tr

im
e
n
ta

l 
to

 l
o
c
a
l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 o
r 

th
e
 a

re
a
 i
n
 g

e
n

e
ra

l.
 

S
o
lu

ti
o
n
: 

A
 c

h
e
a
p
 a

n
d

 e
a
s
y
 a

n
s
w

e
r:

 P
h
o

to
g
ra

p
h

ic
 (

m
o
c
k
-u

p
) 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
: 
A

 
s
m

a
ll 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a
l 
p
la

te
 a

d
d
e

d
 t
o
 e

a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 s

ig
n
 p

o
s
ts

 i
n
 K

e
rr

y
 C

o
u
rt

 a
n
d
 

K
e
rr

y
 A

v
e
n

u
e
 c

o
u

ld
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
s
e
 c

o
m

m
e
ri
c
a
l 
a
n
 d

p
ri
v
a

te
 h

ir
e

 v
e
h

ic
le

s
 a

re
 b

a
n
n
e

d
 

fr
o
m

 p
a
rk

in
g
 i
n
 t

h
is

 c
o

n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a
. 

N
O

T
E

: 
It

 i
s
 o

f 
c

o
n

c
e
rn

 t
h

a
t 

o
v

e
r 

th
e
 l

a
s
t 

2
 

y
e
a
rs

 t
h

e
re

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 a
 v

a
s
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 t
ra

ff
ic

 p
a
rk

in
g

 i
n

 K
e
rr

y
 A

v
e
n

u
e
 S

o
u

th
 

a
n

d
 K

e
rr

y
 C

o
u

rt
. 
Q

u
it

e
 a

p
a
rt

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 r

u
b

b
is

h
 t

h
e
s

e
 v

e
h

ic
le

s
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 

m
in

ic
a
b

s
) 

d
e
p

o
s
it

 c
re

a
ti

n
g

 a
n

 e
y
e
s
o

re
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

re
a
 -

 t
h

e
y
 a

ls
o

 r
e
p

re
s

e
n

t 
a
 l
o

g
 

ja
m

 o
f 

v
e
h

ic
le

s
 i
n

 a
n

d
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e
 o

n
c
e
 p

re
tt

y
 c

e
n

tr
a

l 
g

re
e
n

 t
h

a
t 

le
n

t 
th

e
 

c
o

n
s
e
rv

a
ti

o
n

 a
re

a
 a

 '
b

o
u

le
v

a
rd

' 
fe

e
l 
a
n

d
 a

ls
o

 t
o

 t
h

e
 s

e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u

la
r 

g
re

e
n

 w
it

h
 i
ts

 
e
s
ta

b
li
s
h

e
d

 t
re

e
s
 o

n
 K

e
rr

y
 C

o
u

rt
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 n

o
w

 l
a
rg

e
ly

 l
o

s
t 

- 
a
n

d
 p

a
s
t 

e
ff

o
rt

s
 t

o
 

s
u

g
g

e
s
t 

th
a
t 

th
is

 a
re

 m
ig

h
t 

b
e
tt

e
r 

b
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 a

 d
is

c
re

te
 a

n
d

 s
e
p

a
ra

te
 

p
a
rk

in
g

 z
o

n
e
 a

re
 w

o
rt

h
y
 o

f 
re

v
is

it
in

g
. 
If

 o
n

e
 w

is
h

e
s
 t

o
 r

e
ta

in
 a

n
d

 m
a
in

ta
in

 t
h

e
 

c
o

n
s
e
rv

a
ti

o
n

 a
re

a
 i
n

 a
 s

y
m

p
a
th

e
ti

c
 m

a
n

n
e

r,
 r

e
a
l 

e
ff

o
rt

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 m

a
d

e
 t

o
 

k
e
e
p

 i
t 

c
le

a
r 

o
f 

u
n

w
a
n

te
d

 t
ra

ff
ic

 c
o

n
g

e
s
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 d
e
ti

tu
s
 a

n
d

 d
is

re
p

a
ir

 t
h

a
t 

th
is

 b
ri

n
g

s
. 

S
e
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 a
b
o

v
e
. 

In
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
th

e
 

re
q
u
e
s
t 
th

a
t 

S
ta

n
m

o
re

 S
ta

ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 a

 l
if
t 

- 
th

is
 i
s
 n

o
t 
a

 m
a
tt
e
r 

fo
r 

th
is

 d
ra

ft
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
b
u
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
 T

F
L
. 

K
e
rr

y
 

A
v
e
n
u

e
 C

A
 

1
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
3
 

(p
u
b
lic

 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
 -

 i
n

 
p
e
rs

o
n
) 

 M
a
rc

e
a
 

K
u
p

e
rb

e
rg

 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 b

u
m

p
e
r 

to
 b

u
m

p
e
r 

c
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 w

h
e
n
 t

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 W
e
m

b
le

y
 E

v
e

n
t 

y
o
u

 c
a
n
't
 

g
e
t 
u

p
 K

e
rr

y
 A

v
e
n
u

e
 b

e
c
a
u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
rk

in
g
. 
F

ir
e
 e

n
g

in
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

m
b
u
la

n
c
e
s
 c

a
n
't
 g

e
t 

in
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 e

x
a
c
e
rb

a
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 m

in
i-
c
a
b
s
. 
J
u
b

ile
e
 c

a
rs

 u
s
e
d
 t
o

 b
e
 a

ro
u

n
d
 t

h
e
 s

ta
ti
o
n
 

c
a
r 

p
a
rk

 b
u
t 
th

e
y
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
w

 b
e
e

n
 o

u
s
te

d
. 
N

o
w

 t
h
e

y
 a

re
 p

a
rk

e
d
 o

p
p

o
s
it
e
 K

e
rr

y
 C

o
u

rt
 

a
n
d
 K

e
rr

y
 A

v
e
n

u
e
. 
T

h
e

y
 d

is
re

g
a
rd

 p
a
rk

in
g
 r

e
s
tr

ic
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d
 p

ic
n

ic
 t
h
e
re

, 
lit

te
r 

a
n
d

 
c
ig

a
re

tt
e
s
, 
c
ri
s
p
 p

a
c
k
e
ts

, 
b

o
tt
le

s
 a

n
d

 n
o

n
-b

io
d
e

g
ra

d
a

b
le

 l
it
te

r.
 T

h
e
 l
it
te

r 
b

in
 i
s
 n

o
t 

e
m

p
ti
e
d
. 
W

h
y
 c

a
n
't
 t

h
e

y
 p

a
rk

 e
ls

e
w

h
e
re

?
 W

e
 p

a
y
 f

o
r 

p
e
rm

it
s
 a

n
d
 t
a
x
e
s
 s

o
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 

m
o
re

 r
ig

h
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 t

h
e
re

 a
s
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

. 
* 

Z
o
n
e
 H

 w
a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
' 

w
is

h
e
s
. 
W

h
y
 c

a
n
't
 t

h
e
re

 b
e
 a

 s
ig

n
 t
h
e
re

 a
n

d
 m

a
k
e
 K

e
rr

y
 A

v
e

n
u
e

 a
n

d
 K

e
rr

y
 C

o
u
rt

 a
 

s
e
p
a
ra

te
 z

o
n
e
. 

T
h
is

 m
a
tt
e
r 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 o

n
g
o

in
g
 s

in
c
e

 2
0

0
8
 b

u
t 
it
 h

a
s
 g

o
t 

w
o
rs

e
 i
n
 t
h

e
 

la
s
t 
2
 y

e
a
rs

 g
iv

e
n
 o

u
t 
o
f 

b
o

ro
u
g
h
 d

ri
v
e
rs

 a
n

d
 m

o
re

 d
ri
v
e
rs

 g
e
n
e
ra

lly
. 
T

h
e

y
 a

re
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 r
u
n

n
in

g
 a

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 o

u
t 
o
f 

a
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 n

o
t 
ri

g
h

t 
a
n

d
 d

o
e
s
 

 S
e
e

 c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 a
b
o
v
e
. 

T
h
e
 l
it
te

r 
b

in
 n

o
t 

b
e
in

g
 e

m
p
ti
e

d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
 t

h
e
 

w
a
s
te

 d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t.
 

K
e
rr

y
 

A
v
e
n
u

e
 C

A
 

100



n
o
t 
p
re

s
e
rv

e
 t

h
e
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
o
f 

th
a
t 
c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n

 a
re

a
. 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 m

o
re

 t
im

e
 s

p
e
n
t 
ta

lk
in

g
 

to
 t
h

e
 d

ri
v
e
rs

 t
h

a
n
 b

o
o
k
in

g
 t

h
e
m

. 
 

2
6
/0

7
/2

0
1
3
 

(e
m

a
il)

 
J
a
c
o
b
 L

e
v
y
 

D
e
a
r 

L
u
c
y
 

 M
a

y
 I

 a
ls

o
 t
a
k
e
 t
h

is
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t
o

 t
h
a

n
k
 y

o
u
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
r 

e
ff

o
rt

s
. 

It
 i
s
 m

u
c
h
 a

p
p
re

c
ia

te
d
 e

s
p
e

c
ia

lly
 s

in
c
e
 w

e
 a

re
 s

o
 k

e
e
n
 t
o
 p

re
s
e
rv

e
 t

h
is

 w
o

n
d
e
rf

u
l 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a

. 
 R

e
g
a
rd

s
 

N
/A

 
K

e
rr

y
 

A
v
e
n
u

e
 C

A
 

2
6
/0

7
/2

0
1
3
 

(e
m

a
il)

 
M

a
rc

e
a
 

K
u
p

e
rb

e
rg

 

D
e
a
r 

L
u
c
y
, 
 

 T
h
a
n
k
 y

o
u
 a

g
a

in
 f

o
r 

ta
k
in

g
 n

o
te

 o
f 

o
u
r 

g
re

a
t 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 r

e
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 K

e
rr

y
 A

v
e
n

u
e
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a
 a

n
d
 f

o
r 

fo
rw

a
rd

in
g
 o

u
r 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 t
o
 r

e
le

v
a
n

t 
p
e
o
p

le
 i
n
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

 W
e
 v

e
ry

 m
u
c
h
 w

is
h
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 y

o
u

 t
o
 t
ry

 t
o

 p
re

s
e
rv

e
 w

h
a
t 

c
o
u
ld

 a
n
d

 s
h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

 u
n

iq
u
e
 a

n
d
 b

e
a
u

ti
fu

l 
g
e
m

 i
n
 t

h
e

 h
e
a
rt

 o
f 

S
ta

n
m

o
re

. 
 

U
n
fo

rt
u
n
a
te

ly
, 
a
s
 y

o
u
 k

n
o
w

, 
K

e
rr

y
 A

v
e

n
u
e
 a

n
d

 C
o
u
rt

 h
a
v
e

 b
e
c
o
m

e
 l
it
tl
e

 m
o
re

 t
h
a
n
 a

 
ru

b
b
is

h
 d

u
m

p
 a

n
d
 p

a
rk

in
g
 l
o
t 
fo

r 
b
u
m

p
e
r-

to
-b

u
m

p
e
r 

p
a
rk

e
rs

 a
n
d
 m

in
ic

a
b
 d

ri
v
e
rs

. 
 F

o
r 

y
o

u
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 
s
in

c
e
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

p
u
rp

le
 v

a
n
 w

it
h

 c
a
m

e
ra

s
 a

tt
a
c
h
e
d
 t
o
 i
ts

 r
o

o
f,

 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

a
rk

e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 b

e
g

in
n

in
g

 o
f 

th
e
 m

o
rn

in
g
 r

e
s
tr

ic
te

d
 h

o
u
r,

1
0
.0

0
 a

.m
. 
to

 1
1
 

a
.m

. 
m

in
ic

a
b
s
 h

a
v
e
 v

a
n

is
h

e
d
 f

o
r 

th
is

 s
h
o
rt

 p
e
ri

o
d
, 

re
tu

rn
in

g
 a

t 
1

1
 a

.m
. 
p
ro

m
p
tl
y
 -

 o
n
e
 

lo
o
k
 a

t 
th

e
 H

a
rr

o
w

 v
a

n
 i
s
 e

n
o
u
g

h
 f

o
r 

th
e
m

 (
u
n
lik

e
 t

h
e
 q

u
ic

k
 '
p
a
s
s
 b

y
' 
o
f 

th
e

 t
ra

ff
ic

 
w

a
rd

e
n
 o

n
 h

is
 b

ik
e
 a

ft
e
r 

w
h

ic
h
 t
h

e
y
 r

e
tu

rn
 w

it
h

in
 m

in
u
te

s
 i
f 

le
a

v
in

g
 a

t 
a

ll)
. 
O

f 
c
o
u
rs

e
, 

th
is

 c
a
n
 o

n
ly

 b
e
 a

 v
e
ry

 s
h

o
rt

 t
e
rm

 m
e
a
s
u
re

. 
 

 W
e
 h

a
v
e
 d

is
c
o
v
e
re

d
 t

h
a
t 

it
 i
s
 n

o
t 

o
n

ly
 m

in
ic

a
b
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 f

o
r 

th
e
 J

u
b

ile
e
 C

a
r 

o
ff

ic
e
 a

t 
S

ta
n
m

o
re

 S
ta

ti
o
n
 (

a
lt
h

o
u
g

h
 t
h
is

 c
o
n
s
ti
tu

te
s
 t
h
e

 m
a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

c
a
b
 p

a
rk

in
g
).

 W
e
 h

a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n

 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 b

y
 J

u
b

ile
e
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

 a
n
o
th

e
r 

m
in

ic
a
b
 c

o
m

p
a
n

y
 t

h
a
t 

h
a
s
 a

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

to
 p

ic
k
 u

p
 p

a
s
s
e
n
g
e
rs

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 R

o
y
a

l 
N

a
t.
 O

rt
h

o
p

a
e
d

ic
 H

o
s
p
it
a

l 
o

n
 B

ro
c
k
le

y
 H

ill
 

(o
u
ts

id
e

 Z
o
n

e
 H

),
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 i
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 i
ts

 d
ri

v
e
rs

 t
o
 p

a
rk

 i
n
 K

e
rr

y
 A

v
e

n
u

e
 a

s
 a

 '
w

a
it
-

fo
r-

a
-f

a
re

 a
re

a
' 
(!

).
 A

ls
o
 b

la
c
k
 c

a
b
s
 h

a
v
e

 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 u

s
 t
h
a
t 

K
e
rr

y
 A

v
e
n

u
e
 i
s
 a

 
d
e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 b

la
c
k
 c

a
b
 p

a
rk

in
g
 r

a
n
k
 a

s
 w

e
ll!

  
 If

 t
h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 g

e
n
u

in
e
 a

b
o
u
t 
tr

y
in

g
 i
ts

 b
e
s
t 
to

 p
re

s
e
rv

e
 t

h
is

 p
re

c
io

u
s
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 

a
re

a
, 
a

n
d
 w

e
 b

e
lie

v
e
 i
t 

is
 -

 i
n
 v

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e
 r

e
s
tr

ic
ti
o
n
s
 i
t 

p
la

c
e
s
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

b
u
ild

in
g
/d

e
c
o
ra

ti
o

n
 a

s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 
m

o
d
e
rn

is
t 
h

o
m

e
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
is

 a
re

a
 -

 w
e
 f

in
d
 i
t 

e
x
tr

a
o
rd

in
a
ry

 t
h
a

t 
h

ir
e
 c

a
rs

 a
n
d
 t

a
x
is

 a
re

 a
llo

w
e
d
 t

o
 u

s
e
 t
h

is
 a

re
a
 i
n
 t

h
is

 w
a

y
, 

b
o

th
 

w
it
h

in
 a

n
d
 o

u
ts

id
e
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
tr

ic
te

d
 t
im

e
s
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 e

v
e

n
 m

o
re

 e
x
tr

a
o
rd

in
a
ry

 w
h

e
n
 o

n
e
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
rs

 t
h

a
t 
n

e
a
rb

y
 M

o
re

c
a
m

b
e
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 i
s
 u

s
u
a

lly
 e

m
p
ty

 o
f 

c
a
rs

 w
h
e

n
 K

e
rr

y
 

A
v
e
/C

t,
 i
s
 n

e
a
rl

y
 f

u
ll.

 P
le

a
s
e
 s

e
e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 i
n
 p

h
o
to

s
 a

tt
a
c
h
e
d
. 

In
 t

h
e
 p

h
o
to

s
 i
t 
c
a

n
 b

e
 

s
e
e
n
 t
h

a
t 

K
e
rr

y
 A

v
e
n

u
e
 i
s
 e

v
e

n
 m

o
re

 f
u
ll 

w
it
h
in

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
tr

ic
te

d
 t
im

e
 t
h
a

n
 M

o
re

c
a
m

b
e
 

 S
e
e

 c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 a
b
o
v
e
. 

In
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
b
a
n
n

in
g
 t
a
x
is

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n

 
a
re

a
 i
t 
is

 n
o
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

is
 i
s
 n

o
t 
p
o
s
s
ib

le
 

a
c
c
o
rd

in
g

 t
o
 H

ig
h

w
a

y
s
. 

K
e
rr

y
 

A
v
e
n
u

e
 C

A
 

101



G
d
n
s
 i
s
, 
o

u
ts

id
e
 t
h

e
 r

e
s
tr

ic
te

d
 t

im
e
! 

 M
o
re

c
a
m

b
e
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 i
s
 n

o
t 

a
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 A

re
a
, 

it
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

h
a

v
e
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 f

ro
n
t 

th
e
 r

o
a

d
 a

n
d
 a

re
 d

is
tu

rb
e

d
 b

y
 p

a
rk

e
rs

, 
it
 i
s
 a

s
 c

lo
s
e
 a

s
 K

e
rr

y
 A

v
e
/C

t 
to

 t
h
e
 S

ta
ti
o

n
 

(b
u
t 
n
o

t 
a
s
 o

b
v
io

u
s
).

  
S

u
re

ly
 t

h
is

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e
 a

n
 i
d
e

a
l 
a
re

a
 f

o
r 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 d

e
s
ig

n
a

te
 

a
s
 a

 T
a
x
i 
C

a
b
 r

a
n
k
 f

o
r 

m
in

ic
a
b
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 f

o
r 

J
u
b
ile

e
 C

a
rs

 o
r 

o
th

e
r 

c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
 (

a
n

d
 

b
la

c
k
 c

a
b
s
).

 T
h
e
 r

a
n
k
 w

o
u
ld

 t
h
e

n
 o

p
e
ra

te
 a

s
 o

th
e
r 

ra
n

k
s
 d

o
 i
n
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
L
o

n
d
o

n
 i
.e

. 
c
a
rs

 t
a
k
e
 t
h
e
ir
 p

la
c
e
s
 o

n
 a

 f
ir
s
t 
c
o
m

e
/f
ir
s
t 
s
e
rv

e
d
 b

a
s
is

, 
m

o
v
in

g
 u

p
 t
h

e
 r

a
n
k
 i
n
 l
in

e
 

w
h
e
n
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 
c
a
r 

m
o
v
e
s
 o

u
t.
 I
n
 t

h
e
s
e
 c

ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
, 
m

in
i 
c
a
b
s
 a

n
d
 t

a
x
is

 s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 

b
a
rr

e
d
 f

ro
m

 p
a
rk

in
g
 a

t 
a

ll 
ti
m

e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e

 K
e
rr

y
 A

v
e

n
u

e
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
. 

 F
o
r 

y
o

u
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

 I
 a

tt
a
c
h

 t
w

o
 p

h
o
to

s
 t
a
k
e
n
 w

it
h

in
 2

0
 m

in
u
te

s
 o

f 
e
a
c
h

 
o
th

e
r,

 s
h

o
w

in
g
 p

a
rk

in
g
 i
n
 M

o
rc

a
m

b
e
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 (

o
n
e
 o

r 
tw

o
 c

a
rs

) 
a
n
d
 K

e
rr

y
 A

v
e
n

u
e

 
(n

e
a
rl

y
 f

u
ll)

. 
A

g
a
in

, 
n

o
te

 t
h
a

t 
K

e
rr

y
 A

v
e

n
u
e
 h

a
s
 m

o
re

 c
a
rs

 d
e
s
p
it
e
 t
h

e
 p

h
o
to

 b
e

in
g

 
ta

k
e
n
 i
n
s
id

e
 t
h

e
 r

e
s
tr

ic
te

d
 t
im

e
 t
h
a
n
 M

o
re

c
a
m

b
e
 G

d
n
s
 h

a
s
, 
ta

k
e
n
 o

u
ts

id
e

 t
h
e

 
re

s
tr

ic
te

d
 t

im
e
. 

 W
e
 u

rg
e
n
tl
y
 a

s
k
 f

o
r 

y
o
u
r 

h
e

lp
 i
n
 i
n
s
ti
g
a
ti
n
g
 a

 p
ro

p
e
r 

p
a

rk
in

g
 a

re
a
 f

o
r 

m
in

ic
a
b
s
 a

n
d

 
ta

x
is

 i
n

 M
o
re

c
a
m

b
e
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 a

ft
e
r 

w
h
ic

h
 t

im
e
, 
b
a
n
n

in
g
 t
h
e
m

 a
t 
a
ll 

ti
m

e
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 

C
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 o

f 
K

e
rr

y
 A

v
e
n
u

e
/C

t.
 

 W
e
 l
o
o
k
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 t
o
 h

e
a
ri

n
g
 f

ro
m

 y
o
u
. 

 K
in

d
 r

e
g

a
rd

s
 

 M
a
rc

ia
 K

u
p
e
rb

e
rg

 o
n
 b

e
h

a
lf
 o

f 
K

e
rr

y
 A

v
e
n

u
e
 a

n
d
 K

e
rr

y
 C

o
u
rt

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

. 
  P

h
o
to

 o
f 

K
e
rr

y
 A

v
e

n
u

e
 t
a
k
e
n
 a

t 
3
.5

2
 p

.m
. 
o
n
 W

e
d
n
e
s
d
a

y
 1

7
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1

3
. 

N
o
te

 t
h
a
t 

th
is

 s
h

o
t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 t
a
k
e
n
 i
n
s
id
e
 t

h
e
 a

ft
e
rn

o
o

n
 p

a
rk

in
g
 r

e
s
tr

ic
ti
o
n
 h

o
u
r.

 
      

P
h
o
to

 o
f 

M
o
re

c
a
m

b
e
 G

d
n
s
 t

a
k
e
n
 s

a
m

e
 d

a
y
, 

2
0

 m
in

u
te

s
 l
a
te

r,
 o
u
ts
id
e
 t

h
e
 a

ft
e
rn

o
o

n
 

p
a
rk

in
g
 r

e
s
tr

ic
ti
o

n
 h

o
u
r 

–
 4

.1
2
 p

.m
. 
v
ir
tu

a
ll
y
 f

re
e
 o

f 
c
a
rs

. 
W

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
 t

h
a
t 

p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

is
 r

o
a
d

 b
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 a

 g
e
n

e
ra

l 
c
a
b

 p
a
rk

in
g

 r
a
n

k
 a

ft
e
r 

w
h

ic
h

 t
im

e
 c

a
b

s
 a

n
d

 
m

in
ic

a
b

s
 b

e
 b

a
n

n
e
d

 a
t 

a
ll

 t
im

e
s
 f

ro
m

 p
a
rk

in
g

 i
n

 t
h

e
 K

e
rr

y
 A

v
e
n

u
e
 a

n
d

 K
e

rr
y
 

C
o

u
rt

 C
o

n
s
e
rv

a
ti

o
n

 a
re

a
. 

 

 

102



 2
6
/0

7
/2

0
1

3
 (

e
m

a
il)

 

N
ic

k
 B

is
h
o
p
, 

E
n
g

lis
h
 

H
e
ri
ta

g
e
 

T
h
a
n
k
 y

o
u
 f

o
r 

c
o
n
s
u

lt
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 H

e
ri

ta
g
e
 o

n
 t
h

e
 d

ra
ft

 S
ta

n
m

o
re

 a
n
d
 E

d
g

w
a
re

 
C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 

A
re

a
 A

p
p
ra

is
a

ls
 f

o
r 

th
e
 L

B
 H

a
rr

o
w

. 
A

s
 t
h
e
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t’
s
 a

d
v
is

e
r 

o
n
 t

h
e
 h

is
to

ri
c
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

E
n
g

lis
h
 H

e
ri
ta

g
e
 i
s
 k

e
e
n
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 h

is
to

ri
c
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 
is

 f
u
lly

 t
a
k
e
n
 i
n

to
 a

c
c
o
u

n
t 
a

t 
a
ll 

s
ta

g
e
s
 a

n
d
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
p

la
n
n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 
W

e
 w

e
lc

o
m

e
 p

ro
d
u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

is
 S

P
D

 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 a

s
s
is

t 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 i
n

 c
o
n
s
e
rv

in
g
 a

n
d
 m

a
n

a
g
in

g
 t
h

e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n

 a
re

a
s
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

e
d
. 

H
a
v
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t
h
e

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

w
e
 w

is
h
 t

o
 m

a
k
e
 t
h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 o

b
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
s
: 
P

a
g
e

 8
 

(p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
 3

.1
.2

.1
) 

–
 t

h
e
 N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
P

la
n
n
in

g
 P

o
lic

y
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 d
e
fi
n
e
s
 s

e
tt
in

g
s
 a

s
 

“t
h
e
 s

u
rr

o
u
n

d
in

g
s
 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 a

 h
e
ri

ta
g

e
 a

s
s
e
t 

is
 e

x
p
e

ri
e
n

c
e
d
.”

 I
m

p
a
c
ts

 o
n
 s

e
tt
in

g
s
, 
fo

r 
e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
in

 o
p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
ly

 s
u
rr

o
u
n
d

in
g
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a

s
, 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e

 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

n
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u

ti
o
n
 m

a
d
e
 b

y
 t
h

e
 

s
e
tt
in

g
 t
o
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
’s

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
c
e
, 
a
s
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 E

n
g

lis
h

 H
e
ri
ta

g
e
’s

 
G

u
id

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 t
h

e
 S

e
tt

in
g
 o

f 
H

e
ri
ta

g
e
 A

s
s
e
ts

. 
T

o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
th

is
 w

e
 s

u
g
g

e
s
t 
a
lt
e
ri

n
g
 

p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
 3

.1
.2

.1
 a

s
 f

o
llo

w
s
: 
A

 c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
's

 s
e
tt

in
g

 o
ft

e
n
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

s
 t
o

 i
ts

 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
o
r 

h
is

to
ri

c
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
a
n
d
 a

s
 s

u
c
h
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e
 s

e
tt

in
g
 w

ill
 b

e
 

e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

o
 r

e
s
p

e
c
t 
it
s
 q

u
a

lit
ie

s
 a

n
d

 s
p
e
c
ia

l 
in

te
re

s
t.
 T

h
e
 s

e
tt

in
g

 i
s
 d

e
fi
n
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a

l 
P

la
n
n

in
g
 P

o
lic

y
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 a
s
 t
h
e
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d

in
g
 i
n

 w
h

ic
h
 a

 h
e
ri
ta

g
e

 a
s
s
e
t 

is
 

e
x
p
e
ri
e

n
c
e
d
. 
T

h
is

 c
a
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
, 
fo

r 
e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
u
s
u
a

lly
 l
a

n
d
 w

h
ic

h
 o

b
v
io

u
s
ly

 b
o
u

n
d
s
 t

h
e
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a

 o
r 

b
u
t 
th

e
 s

e
tt
in

g
 m

a
y
 a

ls
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

re
a
s
 n

o
t 

im
m

e
d
ia

te
ly

 a
d
ja

c
e
n
t 

b
u
t 
a
re

a
s
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

a
w

a
y
 t

h
a
t 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 v

ie
w

s
 i
n
to

 o
r 

o
u

t 
o
f 

th
e
 a

re
a

.W
h
e
re

 t
h
e
 s

e
tt
in

g
 

c
a
n
 b

e
 d

e
s
c
ri
b
e

d
 a

s
 o

p
e
n

 s
p
a
c
e
 t
h

is
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 o

ff
e
r 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t
h

e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n

 
a
re

a
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
m

a
y
 n

o
t 
a

lw
a

y
s
 b

e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 i
n
 a

re
a
s
 w

h
e
re

 t
h

is
 i
s
 

th
e
 c

a
s
e
. 
O

p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 f

o
rm

in
g
 t
h

e
 s

e
tt

in
g

 o
f 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
s
 c

a
n
 o

ft
e
n

 m
a
k
e
 a

 
c
o
n
tr

ib
u

ti
o
n
 t

o
 t
h

e
ir
 h

is
to

ri
c
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
c
e

 a
n

d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

in
 s

u
c
h
 a

re
a
s
 m

a
y
 

th
e
re

fo
re

 b
e

 i
n

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

. 
P

a
g

e
 3

0
 (

p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

 6
.3

.2
.2

) 
–
 i
t 
s
h

o
u
ld

 b
e
 n

o
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 c

o
n
s
e

n
t 

is
 t
o
 

b
e
 t
o

 b
e
 m

e
rg

e
d
 w

it
h
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 o

n
c
e

 t
h
e

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
u

la
to

ry
 

R
e
fo

rm
 A

c
t 
c
o
m

e
s
 i
n
to

 f
o
rc

e
. 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
S

c
re

e
n
in

g
 O

p
in

io
n
 

P
a
g

e
 6

 (
p

a
ra

g
ra

p
h
 2

.3
.1

) 
E

n
g
lis

h
 H

e
ri

ta
g
e
 c

o
n
fi
rm

s
 t

h
a
t 
a
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(S

E
A

) 
o
f 

th
is

 S
u
p

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 D

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
is

 n
o
t 
re

q
u
ir

e
d
 s

in
c
e
 

th
e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
s
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ts

 p
o
lic

ie
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 S
E

A
. 

C
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 

W
e
 h

o
p
e
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
s
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 p
ro

v
e
 u

s
e
fu

l 
in

 s
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n
in

g
 t

h
e
 S

P
D

. 
In

 t
h
e
 

m
e
a
n
ti
m

e
 w

e
 w

o
u
ld

 l
ik

e
 t
o
 s

tr
e
s
s
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 o

p
in

io
n
 i
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 b

y
 y

o
u

. 
T

o
 a

v
o

id
 a

n
y
 d

o
u
b
t,
 t

h
is

 d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 

a
ff

e
c
t 
o
u
r 

o
b
lig

a
ti
o

n
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

a
d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
, 

p
o
te

n
ti
a

lly
, 
o

b
je

c
t 
to

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

, 
w

h
e
re

 E
n
g

lis
h
 H

e
ri
ta

g
e

 
c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

it
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 t
o
 d

o
 s

o
. 

 T
h
e
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

e
tt
in

g
 o

f 
C

A
s
 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

m
e
n
d
e

d
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 E

n
g
lis

h
 

H
e
ri
ta

g
e

’s
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 t
o
 

C
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
 C

o
n
s
e

n
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

o
m

it
te

d
. 

O
v
e
ra

rc
h
in

g
 S

P
D

 

A
u
g

u
s
t 

2
0
1
3

 (
v
ia

 
O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
) 

M
a
rc

e
a
 

K
u
p

e
rb

e
rg

 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 6

 
T

h
e
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 K

e
rr

y
 A

v
e

n
u
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

a
d
ly

 a
ff

e
c
te

d
 b

y
 

th
e
 c

o
m

m
u
te

r 
a
n
d
 e

s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 m

in
ic

a
b
 p

a
rk

in
g
 -

 b
u
m

p
e

r 
to

 b
u
m

p
e
r 

a
ro

u
n
d
 t

h
e
 K

e
rr

y
 

A
v
e
n
u

e
 I
s
la

n
d
 a

n
d

 K
e
rr

y
 C

o
u
rt

. 
R

u
b
b

is
h
 i
s
 t

h
ro

w
n
 o

n
to

 r
o
a
d
 &

 i
s
la

n
d
. 

E
x
is

ti
n
g
 

re
s
tr

ic
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
 e

ff
e
c
t 
o
n
 m

in
ic

a
b
s
 w

h
o

 a
re

 a
w

a
it
in

g
 f

a
re

s
 f

ro
m

 b
o
th

 t
h
e
 J

u
b
ile

e
 

 S
e
e

 c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 a
b
o
v
e
. 

K
e
rr

y
 

A
v
e
n
u

e
 C

A
 

103



C
a
r 

o
ff

ic
e
 a

t 
S

ta
n
m

o
re

 S
ta

ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o

u
ld

 d
e
s
ig

n
a
te

 a
 m

in
ic

a
b
 &

 t
a
x
i 
ra

n
k
 a

t 
M

o
re

c
a
m

b
e
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
, 
a

 n
o

n
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
. 

A
ls

o
 Z

o
n
e
 H

 w
a
s
 e

x
te

n
d
e

d
 t
o

 r
e
a

c
h
 

a
s
 f

a
r 

a
s
 C

a
n
o
n
s
 C

o
rn

e
r 

c
a

u
s
in

g
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
te

r 
p
a
rk

in
g
 i
n

 K
, 

A
v
e
n

u
e
. 

K
e
rr

y
 

A
v
e
n
u

e
 &

 C
o
u
rt

 s
h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

 s
e
p
a
ra

te
 Z

o
n
e
 w

it
h
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
 p

a
rk

in
g
 r

e
s
tr

ic
ti
o

n
s
 l
im

it
e
d
 

to
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 o
n
ly

, 
m

in
ic

a
b
s
 b

a
n
n

e
d
 f

ro
m

 p
a
rk

in
g
 a

t 
a
ll 

ti
m

e
s
. 

6
.1

 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 
T

ra
ff

ic
 i
n
 t
h

e
 K

e
rr

y
 A

v
e
 c

o
n

s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 h

a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 a

 g
re

a
t 

d
e

a
l 
in

 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
5

 
y
e

a
rs

 -
 c

a
u
s
e

d
 b

y
 m

in
ic

a
b
s
 n

o
 l
o
n

g
e
r 

b
e
in

g
 a

llo
w

e
d
 t

o
 p

a
rk

 i
n
 t
h
e
 S

ta
n
m

o
re

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 

fo
re

c
o
u
rt

. 
In

s
te

a
d
 t
h

e
y
 p

a
rk

 a
t 
a

ll 
ti
m

e
s
 o

f 
d
a

y
 a

n
d
 n

ig
h

t 
a
ro

u
n

d
 t
h

e
 K

e
rr

y
 A

v
e
n

u
e
 

Is
la

n
d

, 
c
a
u
s
in

g
 d

e
tr

im
e
n
t 
to

 h
is

 p
re

c
io

u
s
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a
 b

y
 t

h
e
ir
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
d
d
it
o
n
a

l 
p

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 t
h

e
 r

u
b
b

is
h
 t
h

e
y
 d

u
m

p
 w

h
ile

 w
a
it
in

g
 f

o
r 

fa
re

s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
ir
 

o
ff

ic
e
 a

t 
J
u
b
ile

e
 c

a
rs

. 
C

a
rs

 r
e
g
u
la

rl
y
 p

a
rk

 a
t 
th

e
 S

ta
ti
o
n
 e

n
d
 o

f 
K

e
rr

y
 A

v
e
n
u

e
, 

o
n
 t

h
e
 d

o
u
b

le
 y

e
llo

w
 l
in

e
s
 

w
h
ile

 w
a
it
in

g
 t
o
 c

o
lle

c
t 
p
e

o
p
le

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 S

ta
ti
o

n
 -

 c
a
u
s
in

g
 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
v
is

ib
ili

ty
 t

o
 c

a
rs

 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
in

g
 f

ro
m

 b
o
th

 s
id

e
s
 o

f 
K

e
rr

y
 C

o
u
rt

 a
n

d
 b

o
th

 s
id

e
s
 o

f 
K

e
rr

y
 A

v
e
n

u
e
 -

 a
 v

e
ry

 
d
a
n
g

e
ro

u
s
 t
ra

ff
ic

 h
a

z
a
rd

. 
6
.1

.3
 

S
ta

n
m

o
re

 S
ta

ti
o
n
 s

h
o

u
ld

 h
a
v
e

 a
 l
if
t.
 T

h
is

 i
s
 d

e
s
p

e
ra

te
ly

 n
e
e
d

e
d
 f

o
r 

th
o
s
e

 w
it
h
 

p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e
s
. 
It
 i
s
 n

o
 g

o
o

d
 a

rg
u
in

g
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

n
o
th

e
r 

ro
u
te

 v
ia

 t
h
e

 c
a
r 

p
a

rk
, 

o
r 

u
p
 t

h
e
 l
e
s
s
e
r 

s
te

p
s
 a

t 
th

e
 s

id
e

, 
a
s
 t
h

is
 i
s
 u

s
e

le
s
s
 f

o
r 

w
h
e
e

lc
h
a

ir
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n

d
 i
t 
is

 
ri
d
ic

u
lo

u
s
 t

o
 h

a
v
e
 t
o
 t

e
le

p
h

o
n
e
 (

w
h

o
?
) 

to
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 g

e
t 
a
c
c
e
s
s
. 
K

in
g
s
b
u
ry

 S
ta

ti
o
n

 
w

a
s
 g

iv
e

n
 a

 l
if
t,
 w

h
e
re

a
s
 S

ta
n
m

o
re

, 
th

e
 n

e
a
re

s
t 
s
ta

ti
o

n
 t
o
 R

N
O

H
 h

a
s
 n

o
 l
if
t!
!!

! 
P

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 e

s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 m

in
ic

a
b
 p

a
rk

in
g
 i
s
 a

 v
is

u
a

l 
e

y
e
s
o
re

 i
n

 t
h
e

 p
re

c
io

u
s
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a

 o
f 

K
e
rr

y
 A

v
e
n
u

e
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 c

a
u
s
e
d
 t

h
is

 a
re

a
 t
o
 b

e
 a

 c
a
r 

&
 m

in
ic

a
b
 

p
a
rk

in
g
 l
o

t 
a
n

d
 r

u
b

b
is

h
 d

u
m

p
. 

6
.2

 V
ie

w
s
 

T
h
e
 K

e
rr

y
 A

v
e
n
u

e
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a
 i
s
 a

 p
re

c
io

u
s
 g

e
m

 i
n
 t
h
e
 h

e
a
rt

 o
f 

S
ta

n
m

o
re

, 
b
u
t 

is
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 r

u
in

e
d
 b

y
 b

u
m

p
e
r 

to
 b

u
m

p
e
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
u
te

r 
c
a
rs

 a
n
d
 e

s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 

m
in

ic
a
b
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n

 m
o
v
e
d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 f

o
re

c
o
u
rt

 o
f 

S
ta

n
m

o
re

 S
ta

ti
o
n
. 

A
 m

in
ic

a
b
 

&
 t
a
x
i 
ra

n
k
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 i
n
s
ta

lle
d
 i
n
 n

e
a
rb

y
 M

o
re

c
a
m

b
e

 G
a
rd

e
n
s
, 
a

 n
o

n
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n

 
a
re

a
 a

s
 c

lo
s
e
 t
o
 t

h
e

 S
ta

ti
o
n

 a
s
 K

e
rr

y
 C

t/
A

v
e
, 
a

n
d
 m

in
ic

a
b
s
 &

 t
a
x
is

 s
h
o
u

ld
 t
h
e

n
 b

e
 

b
a
n
n

e
d
 f

ro
m

 K
e
rr

y
 A

v
e
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a

. 
8
.2

 D
e
v
 O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 
If

 t
h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 r

e
a

lly
 s

e
ri

o
u
s
 a

b
o

u
t 
m

a
in

ta
in

in
g
 t

h
e
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
c
h
a
ra

c
te

r 
a

n
d
 l
a

y
o

u
t 
o

f 
th

e
 b

e
a
u

ti
fu

l 
a
n
d
 u

n
iq

u
e
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
a
n

d
 r

o
a

d
 l
a

y
o

u
t 

o
f 

th
e
 K

e
rr

y
 A

v
e
n
u

e
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n

 
a
re

a
, 

it
 s

h
o

u
ld

 f
in

a
lly

 d
o
 s

o
m

e
th

in
g
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 b

u
m

p
e
r 

to
 b

u
m

p
e
r 

c
o
m

m
u
te

r 
a
n
d
 

e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d

 m
in

ic
a
b
/t
a
x
i 
p
a
rk

in
g
 a

ro
u
n
d
 t

h
e

 I
s
la

n
d
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 a

 c
a

r 
p
a
rk

 l
o
t 
a
n
d

 r
u
b
b

is
h
 d

u
m

p
in

g
 g

ro
u
n
d

 f
o
r 

m
in

ic
a
b
s
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

m
u
te

rs
. 

8
.4

 m
a
in

ta
in

in
g
 G

re
e
n
e
ry

 
K

e
rr

y
 A

v
e
n

u
e
 h

a
s
 a

 b
e
a

u
ti
fu

l 
c
e
n

tr
a
l 
is

la
n
d
 o

f 
g
ra

s
s
 a

n
d
 t
re

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 t
o
ta

lly
 

s
p
o
ilt

 b
y
 t
h

e
 b

u
m

p
e
r 

to
 b

u
m

p
e
r 

c
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

 m
in

ic
a
b
 p

a
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 c

o
n
s
e
q

u
e
n

t 
ru

b
b
is

h
 d

u
m

p
in

g
 o

n
to

 t
h

e
 i
s
la

n
d
. 

K
e
rr

y
 A

v
e

n
u
e

 a
n

d
 K

e
rr

y
 C

o
u
rt

 s
h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

 s
e
p

a
ra

te
 

z
o
n

e
. 
M

in
ic

a
b
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 m
o
v
e
d
 t
o
 a

 d
e
s
ig

n
a

te
d
 m

in
ic

a
b
 r

a
n
k
 t
o
 b

e
 p

la
c
e
d
 i
n
 

M
o
re

c
a
m

b
e
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

s
 c

lo
s
e
 t

o
 S

ta
n
m

o
re

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 a

s
 K

e
rr

y
 C

t/
A

v
e

n
u
e

. 

104



1
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
3
 

(e
m

a
il)

 
R

e
x
 H

o
lm

e
s
 

   
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
 T

h
a
n
k
 y

o
u
 f

o
r 

s
e
e
in

g
 m

e
 o

n
 T

h
u
rs

d
a

y
 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

re
s
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

h
a

ir
m

a
n
 o

f 
th

e
 S

ta
n
m

o
re

 S
o
c
ie

ty
. 

  I 
w

a
s
 p

le
a
s
e

d
 t
o
 s

e
e
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
l,
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 b

e
lo

w
, 

to
 e

n
c
lo

s
e
 T

h
e
 G

re
e
n

 a
t 
th

e
 

ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
G

re
e
n
 L

a
n
e
 a

n
d

 S
ta

n
m

o
re

 H
ill

 w
a
s
 u

n
lik

e
ly

 t
o
 p

ro
c
e
e

d
. 

  Y
o
u
 a

ls
o
 n

o
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
, 

a
s
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n
 r

e
q

u
e
s
ti
n
g

 a
 b

in
 t

o
 b

e
 s

it
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

v
a
c
a
n

t 
s
p
a
c
e
 a

d
ja

c
e
n
t 

th
e
 b

e
n
c
h
 a

n
d
 t

h
a
t 

y
o

u
 w

o
u

ld
 t

ry
 t
o
 f

a
c
ili

ta
te

. 
  

T
h
e
 a

m
e
n
d
e
d
 d

ra
ft

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
s
 a

 b
in

 
is

 i
n
s
ta

lle
d
 h

e
re

. 
S

ta
n
m

o
re

 
H

ill
 C

A
 

2
2
/0

7
/2

0
1
3
 

(e
m

a
il)

 
D

a
rr

e
n
 

S
im

o
n
s
 

H
i,
 

T
h
a
n
k
 y

o
u
 f

o
r 

th
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t
o

 r
e
s
p
o
n

d
 t
h

e
 S

ta
n
m

o
re

 a
n
d
 E

d
g

w
a
re

 C
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 

A
re

a
 S

u
p

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 P

la
n
n

in
g
 D

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

A
s
 a

 r
e
s
id

e
n
t 

o
f 

C
a
n
o

n
s
 P

a
rk

 E
s
ta

te
 I
 f

u
ll
y
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 a

v
o
id

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
m

o
d
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
s
 t

h
a
t 

d
o
 n

o
t 
s
it
 w

it
h
 t
h

e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g

 
la

y
o
u
t.

 H
o

w
e
v
e
r,

 I
 d

o
 t

h
in

k
 t
h
e
re

 n
e
e

d
s
 t
o
 b

e
 m

o
re

 s
e
g
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 g

iv
e
n

 t
o
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

p
a
rt

s
 o

f 
th

e
 e

s
ta

te
s
. 

R
e
fe

rr
in

g
 t
o

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

 p
o

in
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 A

p
p

e
n
d

ix
 6

: 
6
.1

1
1
 -

 R
e
m

o
v
a
l 
o
f 

c
h
im

n
e
y
s
 -

 t
h
is

 m
a
k
e
s
 s

e
n
s
e
 f

o
r 

C
a
n
o
n
s
 D

ri
v
e
 b

u
t 
le

s
s
 s

o
 f

o
r 

h
o
u
s
e
s
 o

n
 s

tr
e
e
ts

 o
ff

 C
a
n
o

n
s
 D

ri
v
e
 (

s
u
c
h
 a

s
 D

u
k
e
s
 A

v
e
n

u
e
, 

L
a
k
e
 V

ie
w

, 
R

o
s
e
 

G
a
rd

e
n
 C

lo
s
e
, 

w
h
e
re

 t
h

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 s

ty
le

s
 v

a
ry

 c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
ly

. 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 h
o
u
s
e
 i
n
 R

o
s
e
 

G
a
rd

e
n
 C

lo
s
e
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
, 
I 

th
in

k
, 
a
rt

 d
e
c
o
 i
n

 d
e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

p
le

te
ly

 d
if
fe

re
n
t 
to

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 e

s
ta

te
, 
fa

r 
m

o
re

 s
o
 t
h
a
n
 c

h
im

n
e

y
s
. 

M
e
n
ti
o

n
 i
s
 g

iv
e
n

 i
n

 v
a
ri
o

u
s
 p

a
rt

s
 o

f 
th

e
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
(n

o
ta

b
ly

 6
.1

1
8
) 

th
a
t 
L

a
k
e
 V

ie
w

 h
a
s
 h

a
d
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ra

b
le

 r
e

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
w

o
rk

 
o
v
e
r 

ti
m

e
 a

n
d
 I
 w

o
u

ld
 s

u
g
g

e
s
t 
c
h
im

n
e

y
s
 b

e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n
 t
h

is
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
. 

6
.1

3
4
 -

 D
ri

v
e

w
a

y
 p

a
v
in

g
 -

 a
g
a
in

, 
th

is
 m

a
k
e
s
 s

e
n
s
e
 f

o
r 

C
a
n
o

n
s
 D

ri
v
e
 b

u
t 
n

o
t 
L

a
k
e
 

V
ie

w
 w

h
ic

h
 a

lr
e
a

d
y
 a

c
c
o
m

o
d
a
te

s
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
a
rs

 a
n
d

 i
n

 m
a
n

y
 c

a
s
e
s
 (

e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 o

n
 

th
e
 n

o
rt

h
 e

a
s
te

rn
 s

id
e
 o

f 
th

e
 m

id
d
le

 s
e
c
ti
o
n
) 

h
a
s
 n

o
 g

ra
s
s
 a

re
a
 a

t 
a
ll.

 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 6

.9
5
 

re
fe

rs
 t
o
 t
h
is

 b
u

t 
I 
th

in
k
 i
t 
s
h

o
u
ld

 b
e

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 i
n
 6

.1
3
4
 a

s
 w

e
ll.

 

T
h
e
 d

ra
ft

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

m
e
n
d

e
d
 t
o

 c
la

ri
fy

 
th

a
t 

a
n
 A

rt
ic

le
 4

 D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 c

a
n
n
o

t 
re

q
u
ir
e

 p
e
rm

is
s
io

n
 f

o
r 

re
m

o
v
a

l 
o
f 

a
 

c
h
im

n
e

y
 b

u
t 
c
a
n
 d

o
 f

o
r 

a
lt
e

ra
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 

o
n
e
. 

A
ls

o
, 
s
in

c
e
 i
t 

is
 a

c
k
n
o
w

le
d

g
e
d

 t
h
a

t 
L
a
k
e
 V

ie
w

 i
s
 s

o
 a

lt
e
re

d
 i
t 
is

 n
o
t 

p
ro

p
o
s
e

d
 t
o
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
 t

h
is

 A
rt

ic
le

 4
 

d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t

h
is

 r
o
a

d
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 
c
h
im

n
e

y
s
 a

re
 s

ti
ll 

a
 c

o
m

m
o
n
 f

e
a
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 T

u
d
o
r 

R
e

v
iv

a
l 
a
n
d
 V

e
rn

a
c
u
la

r 
R

e
v
iv

a
l 
h
o
u
s
e
s
 e

ls
e

w
h
e
re

 a
n
d
 

th
e
re

fo
re

 i
t 

is
 s

ti
ll 

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 t

o
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e

 
th

e
 A

rt
ic

le
 4

 D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
s
e
, 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 

e
x
c
e
p
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 o

n
 R

o
s
e
 

G
a
rd

e
n
 C

lo
s
e
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 o

f 
M

o
d
e
rn

is
t 

d
e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 s

o
 h

a
s
 n

o
 c

h
im

n
e

y
s
. 
T

h
e
 

h
a
rd

s
u
fa

c
in

g
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
is

 a
n
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 

c
o
n
tr

o
l 
th

a
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n

 i
n

 p
la

c
e
 s

in
c
e
 

1
9
8
8

 a
n

d
 h

a
s
 h

e
lp

e
d
 t
o
 p

re
s
e
rv

e
 t
h

e
 

c
h
a
ra

c
te

r 
o
f 

th
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
. 
F

o
r 

th
o
s
e
 d

ri
v
e

w
a

y
s
 t
h

a
t 
h

a
v
e
 n

o
 s

o
ft

 
la

n
d
s
c
a
p
in

g
 l
e
ft

, 
e
n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

m
e
n
t 
c
a
n
 b

e
 

g
iv

e
n
 f

o
r 

s
o
m

e
 t
o
 b

e
 i
n
tr

o
d

u
c
e
d
 i
n
 

fu
tu

re
. 
R

e
c
e
n
t 

a
p

p
e
a

l 
d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 
th

e
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

is
 A

rt
ic

le
 4

 d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
re

fo
re

 i
t 
is

 n
o
t 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 t
o
 r

e
m

o
v
e
 t
h

is
. 
 

C
a
n
o

n
s
 

P
a
rk

 C
A

 

3
0
/0

7
/2

0
1
3
 

(l
e
tt
e
r)

 
D

r 
R

o
n
a

ld
 

C
o
rm

a
c
k
 

R
e
q
u

e
s
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

to
 p

u
t 
fo

rw
a
rd

 t
h

e
ir
 b

u
ild

in
g
 f

o
r 

n
a
ti
o
n
a

l 
lis

ti
n
g
. 
 

O
u
tl
in

e
d

 t
h
e

 p
ro

c
e
d

u
re

 f
o
r 

p
u
tt

in
g
 

fo
rw

a
rd

 b
u
ild

in
g
s
 f

o
r 

lis
ti
n

g
 t

o
 t
h

e
 

o
w

n
e
r.

 

L
it
tl
e
 

C
o
m

m
o
n
 

C
A

 

2
9
/0

8
/2

0
1
3
 

(e
m

a
il)

 
R

o
b
e
rt

 
G

ra
h
a
m

  
  

D
e
a
r 

S
ir
 

I 
a
m

 w
ri
ti
n
g
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 a

b
o

v
e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t.
 

I 
a
m

 a
 r

e
s
id

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 C

a
n
o

n
s
 P

a
rk

 E
s
ta

te
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 C

h
a
ir
m

a
n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

a
n

o
n
s
 P

a
rk

 
E

s
ta

te
 A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o

n
 (

C
P

E
A

),
 a

n
d
 I

 h
a

v
e

 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 f
o
c
u
s
s
e
d
 m

y
 a

tt
e
n
ti
o
n

 o
n

 A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 
6
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
v
e
r 

th
e
 C

a
n
o
n
s
 P

a
rk

 E
s
ta

te
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
. 

A
 p

re
fe

re
n
c
e
 f

o
r 

d
o
rm

e
rs

 o
v
e
r 

ro
o
fl
ig

h
ts

 
is

 n
o
t 

e
x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 d

ra
ft

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

s
in

c
e
 i
t 

is
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
h

a
t 
e

it
h
e
r 

c
a

n
 b

e
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 d
e

p
e

n
d
in

g
 o

n
 

c
ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h

is
 v

ie
w

 i
s
 

C
a
n
o

n
s
 

P
a
rk

 C
A

 

105



I 
a
m

 b
ro

a
d
ly

 i
n
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 t

h
e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
P

ro
p

o
s
a
ls

 (
s
e
e
 S

e
c
ti
o
n
 6

.4
.2

) 
in

 
re

la
ti
o
n
 t

o
 e

a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
b

le
m

s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
(s

e
e
 S

e
c
ti
o
n
 6

.3
.2

),
 b

u
t 

I 
w

o
u
ld

 m
a
k
e
 t
h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

: 
L
o
ft

 C
o
n

v
e
rs

io
n
s
 –

 I
f 

a
 l
o
ft

 e
x
te

n
s
io

n
 i
s
 p

e
rm

it
te

d
 I
 w

o
u
ld

 g
e
n

e
ra

ll
y
 p

re
fe

r 
d
o
rm

e
r 

w
in

d
o

w
s
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a

n
 f

la
t 
ro

o
f 

lig
h

ts
 o

r 
"V

e
lu

x
" 

w
in

d
o

w
s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 I
 w

o
u
ld

 s
u
g
g

e
s
t 
a
re

 
g
e
n
e
ra

lly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
ly

 o
u
t 
o
f 

c
h
a
ra

c
te

r.
  
I 

e
n
ti
re

ly
 a

g
re

e
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 d

o
rm

e
r 

w
in

d
o

w
s
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 n
o

t 
b
e

 t
o
o

 l
a
rg

e
 a

n
d

 t
h
a
t 

"b
o
x
y
" 

ro
o
f 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

v
o

id
e

d
 a

t 
a
ll 

c
o
s
ts

. 
 

W
in

d
o
w

s
 –

 I
 a

g
re

e
 t

h
a
t 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 w

in
d
o

w
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 u
s
e
d
 w

h
e
re

v
e
r 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
. 
 W

h
e
re

 
u
P

V
C

 w
in

d
o

w
s
 a

re
 u

s
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
s
h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 o

f 
a
 c

la
s
s
ic

 d
e

s
ig

n
 t

o
 b

le
n

d
 i
n
 a

s
 f

a
r 

a
s
 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 m

a
te

ri
a

ls
 u

s
e
 d

in
 t
h

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
. 
 T

h
e
 u

s
e
 

o
f 

d
o
u
b

le
 g

la
z
e

d
 u

n
it
s
 w

it
h

in
 o

ri
g

in
a
l 
(o

r 
re

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t)

 w
o
o
d

e
d
 f

ra
m

e
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e

 
e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
d
 a

s
 a

n
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 t

o
 u

P
V

C
. 

F
ro

n
t 
D

o
o
r 

–
 I
 a

g
re

e
 t
h
a

t 
re

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
fr

o
n
t 
d
o

o
rs

 s
h
o
u

ld
 m

a
tc

h
 t
h
e
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
a
n

d
 

d
e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
th

e
 o

ri
g

in
a
l 
p
ro

p
e

rt
y
. 
 T

h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
p
la

s
ti
c
 /
 u

P
V

C
 f

ro
n
t 
d

o
o
rs

 w
it
h
 

in
a

p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 m
o
d
e
rn

 d
o
o
r 

fu
rn

it
u
re

 s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 p

ro
h

ib
it
e
d
. 

G
a
ra

g
e
 D

o
o
rs

 –
 T

h
e
 r

e
p

la
c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

g
a
ra

g
e
 d

o
o
rs

 i
s
 d

is
c
o
u
ra

g
e
d
 b

y
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 i
n

 
th

e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
(w

it
h
 t

h
e
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
L
a
k
e
 V

ie
w

).
  

I 
d

o
n

't
 h

a
v
e
 a

 p
ro

b
le

m
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

g
a
ra

g
e
 d

o
o
r 

b
e

in
g
 r

e
p

la
c
e
d

, 
g
iv

e
n
 t
h

e
 u

n
s
u

it
a

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
m

o
s
t 
o
f 

th
e
 o

ri
g

in
a
l 
g
a
ra

g
e

s
 o

n
 

th
e
 E

s
ta

te
 d

u
e

 t
o
 t

h
e

ir
 s

m
a
ll 

s
iz

e
, 

a
s
 l
o

n
g
 a

s
 t

h
e
 l
o
o
k
 o

f 
th

e
 w

in
d
o

w
s
 a

n
d
 m

a
te

ri
a

ls
 

u
s
e
d
 t
o

 r
e
p
la

c
e
 t

h
e
 d

o
o
rs

 i
s
 s

y
m

p
a
th

e
ti
c
 t
o
 t

h
e
 l
o

o
k
 a

n
d
 f

e
e
l 
o
f 

th
e
 o

ri
g

in
a

l 
p
ro

p
e

rt
y
. 
 

It
 s

e
e
m

s
 t
o
 m

e
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 i
n
s
is

te
n
c
e
 o

n
 r

e
ta

in
in

g
 t

h
e
 d

o
o

rs
 e

v
e
n
 w

h
e

n
 t
h

e
 g

a
ra

g
e

 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n

 c
o
n

v
e
rt

e
d
 t
o
 a

 r
o
o
m

 i
s
 u

n
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

. 
D

ri
v
e

w
a

y
 p

a
v
in

g
 –

 I
 e

n
ti
re

ly
 a

g
re

e
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

 m
a
x
im

u
m

 a
m

o
u
n
t 
o
f 

s
o
ft

 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
in

g
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e

 r
e
ta

in
e

d
. 
 I

 w
o
u

ld
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

d
is

a
g
re

e
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 c
o
lo

u
r 

to
 b

e
 u

s
e
d

 o
n
 t

h
e
 h

a
rd

 
s
u
rf

a
c
in

g
 (

s
e
e
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 6

.5
.1

1
) 

s
h
o
u
ld

 g
e
n
e
ra

lly
 b

e
 "

g
re

y
, 

lig
h
t 
o
r 

n
a
tu

ra
l 
c
o

lo
u
rs

".
  

I 
th

in
k
 i
t 
d

e
p
e

n
d
s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 t
o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 b

ri
c
k
w

o
rk

. 
 W

h
e
re

 t
h
e
 b

ri
c
k
 w

o
rk

 h
a
s
 a

 s
tr

o
n
g
 

re
d
d
is

h
 t

o
n

e
, 
p

in
k
 o

r 
re

d
 p

a
v
in

g
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 m

o
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
. 
 I
 d

o
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

e
v
e
r 

a
g
re

e
 

th
a
t 

in
 a

lm
o
s
t 
a
ll 

c
ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 r

e
d
, 
b
ri

g
h
t 

o
r 

b
la

c
k
 s

u
rf

a
c
in

g
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 i
n
a

p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

. 
I 
w

o
u

ld
 a

ls
o
 m

a
k
e
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

p
o
in

t 
in

 r
e

la
ti
o
n

 t
o
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
ls

 r
e
g

a
rd

in
g
 t
h

e
 b

ri
c
k
s
 a

n
d
 

ro
o
f 

ti
le

s
 u

s
e

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
s
 i
n
 t
h

e
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
. 

I 
b
e

lie
v
e

 t
h
e
re

 s
h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

 p
re

s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
m

o
d
e
rn

 b
ri
c
k
s
 o

r 
ro

o
f 

ti
le

s
. 
 

In
 a

lm
o
s
t 
a
ll 

c
a
s
e
s
, 
th

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

o
ld

 s
to

c
k
 b

ri
c
k
s
 o

r 
o
ri
g
in

a
l 
c
la

y
 r

o
o
f 

ti
le

s
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

m
o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

. 
 M

o
d

e
rn

 s
o
-c

a
lle

d
 "

h
e
ri
ta

g
e

" 
p
ro

d
u
c
ts

 s
h
o
u
ld

 n
o
t 

b
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

s
 

a
 s

u
it
a
b
le

 r
e
p

la
c
e
m

e
n
t 
–
 t

h
e

y
 u

s
u
a
ll
y
 j
u
s
t 
lo

o
k
 l
ik

e
 m

o
d
e
rn

 p
ro

d
u
c
ts

 t
h

a
t 
a
re

 m
e
a
n
t 
to

 
lo

o
k
 o

ld
. 

  
I 
w

o
u

ld
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

lik
e
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 a

 m
o
re

 g
e
n
e
ra

l 
p

o
in

t 
a

b
o
u
t 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a

ls
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 

e
q
u
a

lly
 a

p
p

lic
a

b
le

 t
o
 t

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 p

o
lic

y
. 

T
h
e
 C

a
n
o
n
s
 D

ri
v
e
 E

s
ta

te
 i
s
 i
n
d

e
e
d

 a
n
 o

u
ts

ta
n
d

in
g

 a
re

a
 o

f 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t 
in

 
H

a
rr

o
w

 b
u

t 
th

e
 f

e
a
tu

re
s
 t

h
a

t 
m

a
k
e
 i
t 
s
o
 u

n
iq

u
e
 w

ill
 o

n
ly

 b
e
 p

re
s
e
rv

e
d
 i
f 

th
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

a
c
tu

a
ll
y
 e

n
fo

rc
e
s
 i
ts

 p
o
lic

ie
s
. 
 T

h
e
re

 a
re

 t
o
o

 m
a
n

y
 e

x
a

m
p
le

 o
f 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

E
s
ta

te
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e

 C
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n

 r
u
le

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e

n
 i
g
n
o
re

d
 a

n
d
 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
b
ly

 f
a
ile

d
 t
o
 t

a
k
e
 a

n
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 e

n
fo

rc
e
 t
h

e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

p
la

n
n

in
g
 r

e
s
tr

ic
ti
o
n
s
. 

I 
h
a

v
e
 a

tt
a
c
h

e
d
 p

h
o
to

g
ra

p
h

s
 o

f 
c
o
m

e
 r

e
c
e
n
t 
e
x
a
m

p
le

s
: 

<
<

2
 L

a
k
e
 V

ie
w

.j
p
g
>

>
  

p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 a

n
d
 j
u
s
ti
fi
e

d
. 
T

h
e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
p
re

c
lu

d
e
 t
h

e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
U

P
V

C
 b

u
t 

s
im

p
ly

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 t

h
a
t 

lik
e
 f

o
r 

lik
e
 r

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
is

 e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
d
. 
T

h
e
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
a
llo

w
s
 f

o
r 

re
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

g
a
ra

g
e
 d

o
o
rs

 b
u
t 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
s
 t
h
e
 

o
ri
g
in

a
l 
a

n
d
 t
ra

d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
ty

le
 t
o
 b

e
 

m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 w

h
e
re

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
. 

T
h
e
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
t 
th

a
t 
re

d
 o

r 
p

in
k
 d

ri
v
e

w
a

y
 

s
u
rf

a
c
e
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 i
s
 

a
c
c
e
p
te

d
. 

T
h
e
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 a

llo
w

s
 f

o
r 

th
is

 
b

y
 s

ta
ti
n

g
 t
h

a
t 
u
s
u

a
lly

 t
h

is
 i
s
 

in
a

p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 t
h
o

u
g

h
 a

s
 i
t 
c
a
n
 c

la
s
h

 o
r 

c
o
m

p
e
te

 f
o
r 

a
tt
e

n
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
. 

T
h
e
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
a
d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 

u
n
s
y
m

p
a
th

e
ti
c
, 
u
n

a
u
th

o
ri
s
e

d
 w

o
rk

s
 i
s
 

re
c
o
g
n
is

e
d
 a

n
d
 s

o
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

rc
h
in

g
 S

P
D

 
s
ta

te
s
 t
h
a

t 
u
n

a
u
th

o
ri
s
e

d
 w

o
rk

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 e

n
s
u
re

d
 t

h
a
t 

a
c
ti
o

n
 i
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 

w
h
e
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

. 

106



2
 L

a
k
e
 V

ie
w

 
• 

  
  
  

E
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 h

a
rd

 s
u
rf

a
c
in

g
 

<
<

5
 D

u
k
e
s
 A

v
e
n

u
e
.j
p
g

>
>

  
5
 D

u
k
e
s
 A

v
e

n
u

e
 

• 
  
  
  

E
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 h

a
rd

 s
u
rf

a
c
in

g
 

<
<

3
 C

h
e
s
tn

u
t 

A
v
e

n
u
e
.j
p

g
>

>
  

3
 C

h
e
s
tn

u
t 

A
v
e
n

u
e
 

• 
  
  
  

E
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 h

a
rd

 s
u
rf

a
c
in

g
 

<
<

6
 P

o
w

e
ll 

C
lo

s
e
.j
p
g

>
>

  
6
 P

o
w

e
ll 

C
lo

s
e
 

• 
  
  
  
R

e
p

la
c
e
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 o

n
 g

ra
n
d

e
r 

s
c
a
le

 t
h
a
n
 t

h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l.
  

L
a
rg

e
 d

o
rm

e
r 

w
in

d
o

w
. 

<
<

6
0
 C

a
n
o

n
s
 D

ri
v
e
.j
p
g

>
>

 <
<

6
2

 C
a
n

o
n
s
 D

ri
v
e

.j
p
g
>

>
 <

<
5

4
 C

a
n
o
n
s
 D

ri
v
e
.j
p
g

>
>

  
5
4
, 
6

0
 a

n
d
 6

2
 C

a
n
o

n
s
 D

ri
v
e
 

• 
  
  
  
R

e
p

la
c
e
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 o

n
 g

ra
n
d

e
r 

s
c
a
le

 t
h
a
n

 t
h

e
 o

ri
g

in
a
l.
 L

a
rg

e
 d

o
rm

e
r 

w
in

d
o

w
s
. 

<
<

1
8
 L

a
k
e
 V

ie
w

.j
p
g

>
>

  
1
8
 L

a
k
e
 V

ie
w

 
• 

  
  
  
U

s
e

 o
f 

in
a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 m
a
te

ri
a
ls

 t
h
a
t 

d
o
 n

o
t 
m

a
tc

h
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 o
ri
g

in
a
l 
b
ri
c
k
w

o
rk

. 
• 

  
  
  

E
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 h

a
rd

 s
u
rf

a
c
in

g
 

• 
  
  
  

u
P

V
C

 w
in

d
o

w
s
 

<
<

4
0
 C

a
n
o

n
s
 D

ri
v
e
.j
p
g

>
>

  
4
0
 C

a
n
o
n
s
 D

ri
v
e
 

• 
  
  
  
U

s
e

 o
f 

m
o
d
e
rn

 b
ri
c
k
s
 a

n
d
 r

o
o
f 

ti
le

s
 w

h
ic

h
 d

o
 n

o
t 

m
a
tc

h
 t
h
e
 o

ri
g

in
a

l 
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 

(N
B

 T
h
is

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 t

h
e
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
o
f 

a
 r

e
tr

o
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

p
la

n
n

in
g
 

p
e
rm

is
s
io

n
).

 
<

<
2
3
 D

u
k
e
s
 A

v
e

n
u
e
.j
p

g
>

>
  

2
3
 D

u
k
e
s
 A

v
e
n

u
e
 

• 
  
  
  
R

e
p

la
c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

g
a
ra

g
e
 d

o
o
rs

 w
it
h
 i
n

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 a
n
d
 u

n
s
y
m

p
a

th
e
ti
c
 m

a
te

ri
a
ls

. 
• 

  
  
  

A
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 r

e
c
e

n
tl
y
 r

e
fu

s
e
d
 f

o
r 

e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 h

a
rd

 s
u

rf
a
c
in

g
. 

U
n
le

s
s
 o

r 
u
n
ti
l 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
c
ti
v
e
ly

 e
n
fo

rc
e
s
 i
ts

 C
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n

 p
o

lic
ie

s
 a

n
d
 s

e
n

d
s
 a

 
m

e
s
s
a
g
e
 t
o
 h

o
u
s
e
 o

w
n
e
rs

 t
h
a
t 
a

p
p

lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

p
la

n
n

in
g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

b
e
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e

d
 u

n
le

s
s
 t
h

e
y
 a

re
 s

tr
ic

tl
y
 i
n

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t
h

e
 r

e
s
tr

ic
ti
o

n
s
. 

T
o
o
 o

ft
e
n
 p

la
n
n

in
g

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 (

a
n
d

 a
p

p
ro

v
e
d
) 

o
n
 a

 r
e
tr

o
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 

b
a
s
is

 –
 e

s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 f

o
r 

h
a
rd

 s
u
rf

a
c
in

g
 –

 a
ft

e
r 

th
e
 e

v
e
n

t 
a
n
 t
o

o
 o

ft
e
n
 t

h
e
s
e
 a

p
p

lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
re

 j
u
s
t 
n
o
d

d
e

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h

. 
 T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

n
e
e
d
s
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 a
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
t 
b

y
 f

o
rc

in
g
 a

 
h
o
u
s
e
h

o
ld

e
r 

to
 r

e
in

s
ta

te
 a

 s
o
ft

 s
u
rf

a
c
e
, 
o
r 

re
p
la

c
e
 r

o
o
f 

ti
le

s
, 
to

 k
m

a
k
e
 i
t 
c
le

a
r 

th
a

t 
b
re

a
c
h
e
s
 o

f 
p
o

lic
y
 w

ill
 n

o
t 
b

e
 e

n
te

rt
a
in

e
d
. 

I 
h
o
p

e
 t
h

is
 i
s
 h

e
lp

fu
l.
  

P
le

a
s
e
 l
e

t 
m

e
 k

n
o
w

 i
f 

y
o

u
 w

is
h

 t
o

 d
is

c
u
s
s
 t
h
is

 f
u
rt

h
e
r.

  
M

y
 

c
o
n
ta

c
t 
d

e
ta

ils
 a

re
 b

e
lo

w
. 

Y
o
u
rs

 s
in

c
e
re

ly
 

107



V
ia

 
O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
 

D
r 

M
ic

h
a

e
l 

F
e
n
s
te

r 

6
.1

.1
 I
t 
is

 o
d
d

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 d

o
c
u

m
e
n
t 
c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 o
n
 G

re
e
n
 L

a
n
e

, 
S

ta
n
m

o
re

, 
b
u
t 

n
o
t 

o
n

 
W

o
o
d
 l
a
n
e

. 
W

o
o
d
 l
a
n
e
 a

ls
o

 s
u
ff

e
rs

 a
s
 a

 r
a
t 
ru

n
 a

s
 t
ra

ff
ic

 a
v
o

id
s
 t
h

e
 c

o
n

g
e
s
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

S
ta

n
m

o
re

 t
o

w
n
 c

e
n
tr

e
, 

a
n

d
 a

t 
c
a
n

o
n
s
 C

o
rn

e
r,

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 p

la
n
n
e

d
 s

it
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 m

a
in

 
e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 R
N

O
H

 o
n
 W

o
o
d
 l
a
n
e

 w
ill

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t
o
 t

h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
tr

a
ff

ic
 o

n
 

b
o
th

 W
o
o
d
 L

a
n

e
 a

n
d
 G

re
e

n
 L

a
n
e
 

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e
 i
s
 n

o
w

 m
a
d
e
 t
o
 W

o
o
d
 L

a
n
e
 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 G

re
e

n
 L

a
n
e
 i
n
 t

h
is

 c
o
n
te

x
t.
 

O
v
e
ra

rc
h
in

g
 S

P
D

 

3
1

s
t  

O
c
to

b
e
r,

 
2
0
1
3
 

T
o
n

y
 

R
a

y
m

o
n

d
, 

P
re

s
id

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

S
ta

n
m

o
re

 
S

o
c
ie

ty
 

1
) 

P
a
ra

g
a
p
h

 3
.1

4
1
3

 R
e

la
ti
n
g

 t
o
 t
h
e

 o
b

e
lis

k
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 R

N
O

H
 s

it
e
. 

3
1

4
1
6
 

ta
lk

s
 a

b
o
u
t 

a
n
 a

n
c
ie

n
t 
m

o
n
u
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 t
h

e
 r

e
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 R

N
O

H
. 
T

h
is

 
s
h
o
u
ld

 n
o

t 
a
ff

e
c
t 
th

e
 B

ro
c
k
le

y
 H

ill
 S

e
tt

le
m

e
n
t.
 S

U
L
L
O

N
IC

A
E

. 
T

h
e
 R

N
O

H
 h

a
s
 

m
u
c
h
 m

o
re

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
c
e

 t
o
 t

h
e
 o

b
e
lis

k
 c

o
n
ta

in
e
d
 i
n
 3

1
4

1
4
. 
T

h
e
 O

b
e

lis
k
 i
s
 

to
w

a
rd

s
 t
h

e
 m

id
d
le

 o
f 

th
e
 R

N
O

H
 g

ro
u

n
d
s
. 

2
) 

P
2
8
. 

p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
 6

1
1
1
 m

e
n
ti
o
n
s
 i
n

 5
th
 l
in

e
 d

o
w

n
 m

e
n
ti
o

n
s
 H

o
n
e

y
p

o
t 
L

a
n
e

 t
h

is
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e

 M
a
rs

h
 L

a
n

e
. 
F

u
rt

h
e
r 

d
o

w
n
 t
h

a
t 

p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
 i
t 

m
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 H

o
n

e
y
p

o
t 

L
a
n
e

 w
h

ic
h
 i
s
 c

o
rr

e
c
t.
 

3
) 

P
.2

9
 6

1
3
2
 S

ta
n
m

o
re

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 t
h

e
 D

D
A

 b
u
t 
it
 m

a
y
 b

e
 w

o
rt

h
 m

e
n
ti
o
n
in

g
 

th
a
t 

it
 i
s
 n

o
t 

D
D

A
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t.

 
4
) 

P
.3

1
 6

3
4
1
 s

a
y
s
 g

ri
lls

 b
u
t 

it
 s

h
o
u
ld

 g
ri

lle
s
. 

5
) 

P
.3

4
 p

a
ra

g
ra

p
h
 6

7
1
 i
t 
s
a

y
s
 f

o
rm

e
r 

m
is

s
io

n
 h

a
ll 

a
n

d
 s

c
o
u
t 
h
u

t.
 

6
) 

P
.6

3
 P

a
ra

g
ra

p
h
 1

1
3
 D

o
m

e
s
d
a

y
 i
s
 t
h
e

 c
o
rr

e
c
t 

w
o
rd

. 
7
) 

P
.7

4
 o

n
w

a
rd

s
. 
W

h
e
re

 S
u
m

m
e
rl
a
n
d
 a

p
p

e
a
rs

 i
t 
s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 S

u
m

m
e
rh

ill
 

8
) 

P
.7

7
 P

a
ra

g
ra

p
h
 1

5
9
 t

o
p
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
g
e

. 
T

h
e
 w

h
o

le
 s

it
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 s

o
ld

 o
ff

 a
n
d
 

te
n
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 e

re
c
te

d
 t

h
e
re

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 l
a
n

d
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

n
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
 

o
f 

S
ta

n
m

o
re

 C
o
u
n

tr
y
 P

a
rk

. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 m
a
k
e
 i
t 
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 g

re
e
n
 b

e
lt
. 

A
c
ro

s
s
 

L
o
n
d

o
n
 t

o
 t
h

e
 D

o
w

n
s
. 
T

w
o

 o
ld

 c
o

tt
a
g

e
s
 i
n

 P
e
a
r 

W
o
o
d
 f

a
lli

n
g
 d

o
w

n
 

9
) 

P
2
1

1
 B

e
rn

a
y
s
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 i
n
 O

ld
 C

h
u
rc

h
 L

a
n
e
 C

A
. 
T

h
is

 m
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
e
 

C
o

w
s
h
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 s

h
e
lt
e
r.

 N
o
t 
s
u
re

 i
f 

it
 w

a
s
 j
u
s
t 
m

e
a
n
t 
fo

r 
c
o
w

s
 o

r 
ju

s
t 
a
 

p
a
rk

 s
h
e
lt
e
r.

 N
o

w
 s

o
ld

 o
ff

. 
1
0
) 

P
9
8
 s

e
c
ti
o
n

 1
.1

4
1
 i
t 
m

e
n
ti
o

n
s
 t
h
e
 S

ta
n
m

o
re

 A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o

n
 i
t 
s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 t
h

e
 

S
ta

n
m

o
re

 S
o
c
ie

ty
 

1
1
) 

U
n
s
u
re

 i
f 

th
e

 c
o

w
 s

h
e

d
s
 w

e
re

 o
ri
g

in
a

lly
 i
n
te

n
d

e
d
 a

s
 c

o
w

 s
h

e
d
s
 o

r 
ju

s
t 

in
te

n
d
e

d
 t
o

 m
in

ic
 t
h
e
m

. 
 T

h
e
 r

e
s
t 
I 
a
g
re

e
 w

it
h
. 
It
 i
s
 a

n
 e

x
tr

e
m

e
ly

 u
s
e
fu

l 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t.
  

 
F

a
c
tu

a
l 
e
rr

o
rs

 c
o
rr

e
c
te

d
 a

n
d
 m

in
o
r 

a
d
d

it
io

n
s
 m

a
d
e
. 

O
v
e
ra

rc
h
in

g
 S

P
D

 a
n
d
 

L
it
tl
e
 

C
o
m

m
o
n
 

C
A

 

  

108



 
 

 

REPORT FOR: 

 

CABINET 

 

Date of Meeting: 

 

12 December 2013 

Subject: 

 

Locally Listed Buildings Supplementary 
Planning Document 

Key Decision:  

 

Yes 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Caroline Bruce, Corporate Director of 
Environment and Enterprise 
 

Portfolio Holder: 

 

Councillor Stephen Greek, Portfolio Holder 
for Planning, Development and Regeneration 

Exempt: 

 

No 
 

Decision subject to 

Call-in: 

 

Yes  

Enclosures: 

 

Appendix 1: Schedule of Consultation 
Responses to the draft Locally Listed 
Buildings Supplementary Planning Document 
 
Appendix 2 – Recommendation from the LDF 
Panel  
 
Appendix 3: Locally Listed Buildings 
Supplementary Planning Document for 
adoption – Due to the size of the 
appendix, it has been circulated in hard 
copy to Cabinet Members and Key 
Officers only. The appendix is available 
for viewing on the website and  a hard 
copy has been placed in the Members’ 
Library 
 
 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 11
Pages 109 to 132

109



 

 
 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 

 
This report proposes the adoption of the Locally Listed Buildings 
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) to aid owners and occupiers of 
these buildings to conserve these important heritage assets to Harrow.  

 
Recommendations:  
 
Cabinet is requested to:  

a) Note the representations received to public consultation on the draft 
Locally Listed Buildings SPD, provided at Appendix 1, and Council’s 
response to the individual comments made. 

b) Note the LDF Panel recommendations at Appendix 2 and the 
amendments made to the SPD in response to the recommendations as 
set out in the body of this report. 

c) Adopt the Locally Listed Buildings SPD attached as Appendix 3.  

 

Reason:  (For recommendation) 
 
1. To afford weight to the SPD as a material planning consideration. 
2. To set out best practice guidance and advice to the owners and 

occupiers of locally listed buildings to acknowledge the contribution 
theses buildings make to Harrow’s character and to promote the 
continue preservation of these significant local heritage assets.  

Section 2 – Report 
 
A. Introduction  
 
1.  At the request of the Local Development Framework Panel, at its 
meeting of 15 March 2011, a supplementary planning document (SPD) on 
locally listed buildings was prepared and subsequently published for public 
consultation. Following the close of consultation, the SPD has been the 
subject of further revision to take account of the comments received and the 
recommendations of the Local Development Framework Panel of its meeting 
of 3rd October 2013. It is recommended that Cabinet now proceed to adopt 
the revised Locally Listed Buildings SPD for use as a material consideration 
when determining planning applications affecting locally listed buildings. 
 
 

110



 

 
 
Options considered 
 
2.  The option of taking no action was considered as an alternative. 
However, it was recognised that not providing the guidance note on good 
practice for the conservation and maintenance of locally listed buildings may 
put these heritage assets at risk. To ensure that the guidance note carries 
status as a ‘material consideration’ in planning decisions it is considered 
necessary to adopt it as a supplementary planning document, so publication 
of the guide as an informal document can also be discounted. 

 
B.  Locally Listed Buildings 
 
3.  A Locally Listed Building is a building, structure or feature which is 
important in the local context due to its architectural or historic interest or its 
townscape/group value. Harrow’s current Local List has over 700 entries. 
However, there is currently little local advice to owners of locally listed 
buildings about what this means for their property and the Council’s 
expectations of any planning application for extensions or alterations, yet the 
Council receives many enquiries from the owners and occupiers of such 
buildings. Following the LDF Panel meeting on 15th March 2011, officers 
have therefore prepared a draft SPD on locally listed buildings which has 
been out to 4 weeks of public consultation. The SPD will supplement the 
development plan policies relating to locally listed buildings.  
 
4.  The purpose of the SPD is to provide good practice advice for owners 
and occupiers of locally listed buildings for their maintenance and 
conservation when making decisions that affect their future, and also on the 
relevant planning controls. This is important as the purpose of locally listed 
buildings is to ensure that their special local heritage interest is recognised, 
and therefore taken into account, in decisions affecting their future wherever 
possible. 
 

C. Consultation Undertaken 
 
5.  In accordance with Regulation 12 of the Town and Country Planning 
(Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 the SPD was subject to public 
consultation.  The period for consultation commenced 18th July 2013 and 
closed on 22nd August 2013.  
  
6. The consultation was undertaken in accordance with Council 
Statement of Community Involvement and included: 
 

• A public notice in the Harrow Observer newspaper; 

• Letters to English Heritage and local groups; 

• Letters to all owners of Locally Listed Buildings within Harrow; 

• The draft SPD was published electronically on the Council’s website 
and on the Council’s consultation portal; and  

• A paper copy was placed on deposit at each of the Borough’s libraries 
and at the Civic Centre. 

 

 

111



 

 
D. Outcome of the Consultation 
 
7. There were a total of 13 responses to the consultation. These are 
reproduced in full, alongside the Council’s response, in the Schedule of 
Consultation Responses at Appendix 1 to this report. The main issues raised 
are summarised below. 
 
8. Of those who commented, two raised objections to the draft SPD, 
whilst six respondents outlined their support for the document, with a number 
of these offering comments on areas for improvement and corrections. Three 
respondents requested their locally listed building be removed from the local 
list. The remaining two respondents sought further details on the consultation 
being undertaken but did not offer further views on the draft.  
 
9. The main objection to the draft SPD was that it was perceived to 
elevate the status of a locally listed building to that of statutorily protected 
heritage assets.  The introduction to SPD has therefore been amended to 
clearly distinguish between the legal and planning status of a locally listed 
building, compared with that of a Listed Building, and the main body of the 
text has been amended to remove reference to national policy primarily 
applicable to the conservation of statutory heritage assets.    
 
10. A further objection was that the guidance provided was bias towards 
the preservation of the traditional/original fabric of locally listed buildings at the 
expense of the health and wellbeing of occupants.  The SPD is intentionally 
written this way given the contribution these buildings make to local character 
and distinctiveness and their importance to Harrow’s built heritage. However, 
in light of the comments received, the SPD was amended to acknowledge that 
it is a balance and, where necessary for the habitability of the dwelling, to 
ensure the guidance aids owners and occupiers to make informed decisions 
as to the suitability of proposed replacements and alterations.   
 
11.  A number of respondents helpfully pointed out factual errors and the 
incorrect labeling of photographs, which have now be amended. One of 
respondents queried the purpose of the SPD. In response, the introduction to 
the SPD now includes a clear statement of the purpose and aims of the SPD.  
One further respondent, who supported the SPD, felt a clear statement was 
required to clarify that, although a building is locally listed, this does not 
necessarily mean that all of the building is of architectural or historical interest. 
This is factually correct and therefore a statement to this effect has been 
added.  
 
12. One requested reference to the use of solar panels on front elevations 
of locally listed buildings as being unlikely to be acceptable. It is considered 
that on occasion solar panels might be acceptable even on front elevations of 
locally listed buildings and therefore the section on energy efficiency has been 
amended to include support for the use of microgeneration equipment where 
it will not harm special interest. 
 

112



 

Requests to de-list three properties 
 
13. Two residents requested that 24 Uxbridge Road, Stanmore, HA7 3LG 
be removed from the local list, another resident requested 66 Hutton Lane be 
removed from the local list and another response requested 40 Belmont Lane 
be removed from the local list. However, since the public consultation did not 
specifically request recommendations for amendments to the local list, since 
this was carried out during November and December last year and January 
this year, it is not possible to recommend that the local list be amended at this 
stage. The Council will therefore carry out consultation with local and national 
conservation groups and the owner/occupiers on the proposal to remove 
these buildings from the local list. 
 
 

E.  LDF Panel 3rd October, 2013 
 
14.  At the Local Development Framework panel meeting of 3rd October an 
officer recommended the SPD was improved by a clear statement in the 
introduction on the legal implications of locally listed buildings; a list of aims 
and objectives of the SPD; and that a list of locally listed buildings within the 
borough should be contained as an appendix to the SPD to ensure it can be 
given material consideration. Panel members supported the proposal to 
include the list of locally listed buildings as an appendix and emphasised the 
importance of making the guidance clear and not adversarial to the public in 
relation to locally listed buildings, where Council’s control is limited. Panel 
members also supported a deputation from the owner of a Locally Listed 
Building which requested that the document makes clear that just because a 
building is locally listed does not mean that all of it is necessarily of 
architectural interest. The document has now been amended accordingly. 
 

F. Summary and Conclusion 
 
15.  The guidance document will be valuable in providing good practice 
advice for the maintenance and conservation of locally listed buildings to 
owners and occupiers and in explaining relevant planning controls. This is 
important as the purpose of locally listing is to encourage the preservation of 
their special interest, which resident’s cherish and value. All comments 
received in response to public consultation have been taken into account, 
resulting in clearer, more streamlined and helpful planning tool and guidance. 
. 

G.  Legal Implications 
 
16.  Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act (2004) 
states that, if regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of 
any determination to be made under the planning Acts, the determination 
must be made in accordance with the plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise. 
 
17. Although the proposed SPD is not a development plan document it will, 
upon adoption, be a material consideration in the determination of planning 
applications affecting locally listed buildings. 
 

113



 

18. The Council is required under the Town and Country Planning (Local 
Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 to consult on the SPD and to take into 
account all consultation responses received before adopting the SPD. 
Upon adoption, the Locally Listed Buildings Supplementary Planning 
Document will form part of Harrow's formal planning policy. 
 

H.  Financial Implications 
 
19.  The costs of adopting the SPD, and publishing it online is a relatively 
minor cost which can be adequately contained within the existing LDF budget. 
The most resource intensive part of the work (preparation and consultation) 
has already been undertaken. 

 
I.  Performance Issues 
 
20.  There are no national or local performance indicators measuring or 
affected by the adoption of the SPD. Nevertheless, the adoption of the SPD 
will be monitored as part of the annual monitoring of the Local Plan. The 
effectiveness of the SPD will be measured against the retention of existing 
locally listed buildings on the list year upon year. However, the greatest 
benefit of adopting the SPD is that it does ensure the Local Planning Authority 
can consider buildings on the local list as a material consideration when 
determining a planning application affecting them.   
 

J.  Environmental Impact 
 
Does the proposal comply with all relevant environmental legislation? Yes 
 
21. The policy that the SPD supplements has been the subject of a 
comprehensive Sustainability Appraisal, incorporating the requirements of 
Strategic Environmental Assessment, in compliance with the regulatory 
requirements for preparing local plan documents.  The government has 
confirmed that, where the parent policy has been appraised, it is not 
necessary to appraise any guidance that simple seeks to give effect to the 
policy.  
 

K.  Risk Management Implications 
 
22.  Risk included on Directorate risk register? No 
 
Separate risk register in place? No 
 
L.  Equalities implications 
 
23.  Was an Equality Impact Assessment carried out? No 
 
24. By definition, supplementary planning documents cannot introduce 
new policies nor modify adopted polices and do not form a part of the 
development plan. Rather, their role is to supplement a ‘parent’ policy in a 
development plan document. The SPD supplements Policy DM7 of the Local 
Plan, which has already been the subject a full equalities impact assessment 
at each formal stage in the policy’s preparation. 
 

114



 

M.  Corporate Priorities 
 
25. The adoption of the Locally Listed Buildings SPD contributes to the 
corporate priority of a fairer Harrow, by ensuring that the owners or occupiers 
of locally listed buildings better understand the legal and planning status of 
the local listing and know where to get advice should they be uncertain 
whether proposed works require planning permission or not. 
 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Jessie Man  x  Chief Financial Officer 

  
Date: 12 November 2013 

   

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Abiodun Kolawole x  Monitoring Officer 

 
Date: 15 November 2013 

   
 

 
 

Section 4 – Performance Officer Clearance 
 

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Martin Randall x  Divisional Director 

  
Date: 12 November 2013 

  Strategic Commissioning 

 
 

Section 5 – Environmental Impact Officer 

Clearance 
 

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Andrew Baker x  Corporate Director 

  
Date: 11 November 2013 

  (Environment & Enterprise) 

 

115



 

Section 6 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 

Contact:   Matthew Paterson, Senior Professional Policy 
Planning, Development and Enterprise  

Tel:  020 8736 6082 

Email:          matthew.paterson@harrow.gov.uk 

  
 
 
Background Papers:   Development Management Policies Local Plan 

http://www.harrow.gov.uk/info/856/local_plan/609/
development_management_policies 

 Cabinet Report of 14 March 2013 on the Local List 
http://www.harrow.gov.uk/www2/documents/s1047
38/Local%20Listing%20-%20Main%20Report.pdf 

 
 

 

Call-In Waived by the 

Chairman of Overview 

and Scrutiny 

Committee 

 

  
NOT APPLICABLE 
 
 
[Call-in applies] 
 
 

 

 

116



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 1
 –

 C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 r
e
s
p

o
n

s
e
s
 t

o
 d

ra
ft

 L
o

c
a

ll
y
 L

is
te

d
 B

u
il
d

in
g

s
 S

P
D

 

  N
a
m

e
 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 R
e
s
p

o
n

s
e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e
  

1
) 

M
r 

J
o
h
n
 O

rc
h
a
rd

 
P

in
n
e
rw

o
o
d
 F

a
rm

 a
n
d
 P

in
n

e
rw

o
o
d
 L

o
d
g
e
 a

re
 i
n
 W

o
o
d
h
a
ll 

R
o

a
d
 

n
o
t 
W

o
o
d
h
a
ll 

G
a
te

 a
s
 i
n

d
ic

a
te

d
 b

e
lo

w
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
s
 

(5
.1

, 
5
.1

4
, 

5
.1

6
).

 

N
o
te

d
 

C
h

a
n

g
e
: 

F
a
c
tu

a
l 
c
o
rr

e
c
ti
o
n

s
 m

a
d
e
. 

2
) 

C
o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 

B
ill

 
S

te
p

h
e
n
s
o
n
 

R
e
q
u

e
s
te

d
 p

ri
n
te

d
 c

o
p

y
. 

C
o
p

y
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

. 

3
) 

M
r 

P
a
u
l 
M

y
e
rs

 
D

is
a
g
re

e
 w

it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
lis

ti
n

g
 o

f 
2
4
 U

x
b
ri
d
g

e
 R

o
a
d
 g

iv
e
n

 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 

o
f 

th
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n
t 
th

a
t 
h
a
s
 t

a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e

 n
e
a
r 

it
 

o
v
e
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
rs

. 
T

h
e
 o

n
ly

 p
e

o
p
le

 t
h

a
t 
c
a
n
 s

e
e
 t
h

is
 b

u
ild

in
g
 a

re
 i
n
 

th
e
 f

la
ts

. 

U
p
o
n
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
is

 b
u
ild

in
g

 i
s
 n

o
 l
o
n
g

e
r 

w
o
rt

h
y
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
lis

ti
n
g
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 i
ts

 s
p
e
c
ia

l 
in

te
re

s
t 

re
la

te
d
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 t
o
 i
ts

 s
e
m

i-
ru

ra
l 
s
e
tt

in
g
 a

n
d
 t

h
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 u

n
d
e
rm

in
e
d
 s

in
c
e
 l
o
c
a

l 
lis

ti
n
g
. 
 

C
h

a
n

g
e
: 

T
h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

w
ill

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
 w

it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
n

d
 n

a
ti
o

n
a
l 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 g

ro
u

p
s
 o

n
 t
h
e

 p
ro

p
o
s
a

l 
to

 d
e
-l

is
t.
 

4
) 

M
rs

 B
e

n
n
e
t 

R
e
q
u

e
s
ti
n

g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 w

h
a
t 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 a

b
o
u

t.
  

T
h
is

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
. 

5
) 

M
r 

R
e
e

d
 

O
v
e
ra

rc
h
in

g
 o

p
in

io
n
 i
s
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

is
 u

n
n
e
c
e
s
s
a

ry
 a

n
d
 

th
a
t 
th

e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
is

 t
ry

in
g

 t
o
 u

p
g
ra

d
e
 t
h

e
ir
 s

ta
tu

s
 t
o
 a

n
 

u
n
s
u
s
p
e
c
ti
n
g
 a

u
d

ie
n
c
e
 

T
h
e
 S

P
D

 i
s
 i
n

te
n

d
e
d

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 g

o
o
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 a
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 o

w
n
e
rs

 a
n

d
 o

c
c
u
p
ie

rs
 o

f 
lo

c
a
ll
y
 l
is

te
d
 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

ir
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 a
ls

o
 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

d
v
ic

e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 
p

la
n
n
in

g
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

. 
 

G
iv

e
n
 t
h

e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t
h

e
s
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 m

a
k
e
 t
o
 H

a
rr

o
w

’s
 

s
e
n
s
e
 o

f 
p
la

c
e

 a
n

d
 t
o
 l
o
c
a

l 
d
is

ti
n
c
ti
v
e
n

e
s
s
, 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

c
o
n
s
id

e
rs

 t
h

e
ir
 r

e
c
o

g
n
it
io

n
 i
n
 a

n
 S

P
D

 i
s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

, 
e
n
s
u
ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a
l 
L
is

t 
is

 a
 m

a
te

ri
a
l 
c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

 w
h
e

n
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ri

n
g
 p

la
n
n

in
g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 t
h

e
s
e

 
b
u
ild

in
g
s
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

d
o

e
s
 a

g
re

e
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 S

P
D

 
n
e
e
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

le
a
r 

a
b

o
u
t 
th

e
 s

ta
tu

s
 o

f 
a
 b

u
ild

in
g
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

L
o
c
a
l 
L
is

t.
  

C
h

a
n

g
e
: 

T
h
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t
h
e

 S
P

D
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

m
e
n

d
e
d
 

to
 c

la
ri
fy

 t
h
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 S

P
D

 a
n

d
 t
o

 d
is

ti
n
g

u
is

h
 t

h
e

 
le

g
a
l 
a
n
d
 p

la
n
n

in
g
 s

ta
tu

s
 o

f 
a
 l
o
c
a
lly

 l
is

te
d
 b

u
ild

in
g

 f
ro

m
 

th
a
t 

o
f 

a
 L

is
t 

B
u

ild
in

g
. 
 

5
) 

M
r 

R
e
e

d
 

Y
o
u
 a

lle
g
e
 t

h
a
t 

h
is

to
ri
c
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n
c
e
 r

e
p

a
ir
 a

n
d

 m
a
te

ri
a
ls

 h
e

lp
 

p
re

s
e
rv

e
 i
ts

 v
a
lu

e
 a

n
d
 I

 d
o

u
b
t 

if
 t
h
is

 c
a
n
 b

e
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a

te
d
 w

h
ic

h
 

m
ig

h
t 
le

a
d
 t
o
 l
e

g
a
l 
c
h
a
lle

n
g

e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

 

A
d
d

it
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 a

lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 t
h

a
t 
a
re

 c
le

a
rl

y
 o

u
t 

o
f 

c
h
a
ra

c
te

r 
w

it
h
 t

h
e
 h

is
to

ri
c
 f

a
b
ri
c
 o

f 
a
 b

u
ild

in
g
 c

a
n
 c

e
rt

a
in

ly
 d

im
in

is
h
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 a

e
s
th

e
ti
c
 a

p
p
e

a
l 
a
n
d

 m
a

y
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o

n
 i
ts

 
v
a

lu
e
. 

H
o

w
e
v
e
r,

 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
g
re

e
s
 t
h
a

t 
th

is
 i
s
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 t

o
 

s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
te

. 
 

C
h

a
n

g
e
: 

D
e

le
te

 r
e
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 v

a
lu

e
s
 

5
) 

M
r 

R
e
e

d
 

I 
h
o
p

e
 t
h

a
t 
H

a
rr

o
w

 C
o

u
n
c
il’

s
 d

e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

 o
f 

a
 l
o
c
a

lly
 l
is

te
d
 

b
u
ild

in
g
 i
s
 t
h

e
 s

a
m

e
 a

s
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a

l 
d

e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
. 

H
a
rr

o
w

 C
o

u
n
c
il'

s
 d

e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a
 l
o
c
a
lly

 l
is

te
d
 b

u
ild

in
g

 i
s
 

in
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 E

n
g
lis

h
 H

e
ri
ta

g
e
's

 '
G

o
o

d
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 

117



G
u
id

e
 f

o
r 

L
o
c
a
l 
L
is

ti
n
g
'.
 N

o
 c

h
a
n

g
e
  

5
) 

M
r 

R
e
e

d
 

T
h
e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

le
a
r 

a
b

o
u
t 

th
e

 l
e

g
a

l 
a
n

d
 p

la
n
n

in
g
 

s
ta

tu
s
 o

f 
lo

c
a

lly
 l
is

te
d

 b
u

ild
in

g
s
. 
It
 t

h
e
n
 c

o
u
ld

 g
iv

e
 p

ra
c
ti
c
a
l 

a
d
v
ic

e
 t

o
 o

w
n
e
rs

 o
r 

o
c
c
u
p

ie
rs

, 
b
u
t 
I 

th
in

k
 t
h
e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
is

 r
a
th

e
r 

a
 c

o
n
fu

s
e
d
 j
u
m

b
le

 o
f 

m
ix

e
d
 m

e
s
s
a
g
e
s
. 

A
g
re

e
d
. 

C
h

a
n

g
e
: 

T
h
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t
h
e

 S
P

D
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

m
e
n

d
e
d
 

to
 d

is
ti
n

g
u
is

h
 t
h
e

 l
e

g
a

l 
a

n
d
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 s

ta
tu

s
 o

f 
a
 l
o
c
a
ll
y
 

lis
te

d
 b

u
ild

in
g
 f

ro
m

 t
h
a
t 
o
f 

a
 L

is
t 

B
u
ild

in
g
. 

5
) 

M
r 

R
e
e

d
 

T
h
e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
is

 t
o
o
 l
o
n

g
 a

n
d
 c

u
m

b
e
rs

o
m

e
 t

o
 f

in
d
 t
h

e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
. 

A
g
re

e
d
. 
 

C
h

a
n

g
e
: 

T
h
e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
h
a

s
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a

lly
 r

e
v
is

e
d
, 

re
o
rg

a
n

iz
e
d
 a

n
d
 i
ts

 l
e
n

g
th

 s
h
o
rt

e
n
e

d
. 

5
) 

M
r 

R
e
e

d
 

A
re

 y
o
u
 s

a
y
in

g
 t

h
a
t 

a
 l
o
c
a
lly

 l
is

te
d

 b
u

ild
in

g
 i
s
 a

 h
e
ri
ta

g
e
 a

s
s
e
t 

a
s
 d

e
s
c
ri
b
e

d
 b

y
 N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
p

o
lic

y
?
 

C
h

a
n

g
e
: 
T

h
e
 S

P
D

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t

o
 c

la
ri

fy
 t
h
a

t 
lo

c
a
ll
y
 l
is

te
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 d

o
 n

o
t 
s
h
a
re

 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 s

ta
tu

s
 a

s
 

s
ta

tu
to

ri
ly

 d
e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 h

e
ri

ta
g
e
 a

s
s
e
ts

. 

5
) 

M
r 

R
e
e

d
 

I 
th

in
k
 t
h
e
 p

h
o
to

s
 a

re
 r

a
th

e
r 

a
rb

it
ra

ry
. 

D
is

a
g
re

e
. 
T

h
e
 p

h
o
to

s
 h

e
lp

 p
ro

v
id

e
 c

o
n
te

x
t.
 N

o
 c

h
a
n

g
e
 

5
) 

M
r 

R
e
e

d
 

T
h
e
 p

h
o
to

 o
n
 p

a
g

e
 8

 i
s
 P

in
n
e
rw

o
o

d
 C

o
tt
a
g

e
 n

o
t 
P

in
n
e

rw
o

o
d
 

F
a
rm

. 
N

o
te

d
. 

C
h

a
n

g
e
: 

C
o
rr

e
c
t 
th

e
 p

h
o
to

 c
a
p
ti
o
n
 o

n
 p

a
g
e
 8

. 

5
) 

M
r 

R
e
e

d
 

Y
o
u
 a

re
 c

o
n
s
ta

n
tl
y
 u

p
d

a
ti
n

g
 y

o
u
r 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 l
is

ti
n

g
 a

n
d
 t

h
is

 
s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e

 d
ic

ta
te

d
 b

y
 q

u
a
lit

y
. 

A
 l
o
c
a
lly

 l
is

te
d
 b

u
ild

in
g

 w
ill

 n
o

t 
b
e

 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

 i
f 

it
 i
s
 n

o
t 

w
o
rt

h
y
 a

n
d
 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 t
h
e

y
 s

h
o
u
ld

 n
o

t 
b
e
 

u
p
g
ra

d
e
d
 f

o
r 

a
n

y
 o

th
e
r 

re
a

s
o
n
 

A
g
re

e
d
. 
 

C
h

a
n

g
e
: 

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 t
o

 t
h
e

 u
p
g
ra

d
in

g
 o

f 
lo

c
a
lly

 l
is

te
d
 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 t

o
 L

is
te

d
 s

ta
tu

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
. 

5
) 

M
r 

R
e
e

d
 

P
a
g

e
 1

0
 –

 l
is

te
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 a

re
 q

u
o
te

d
 t

w
ic

e
 –

 t
h

is
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 
re

fe
r 

to
 “

lo
c
a

lly
” 

lis
te

d
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 a

n
d
 i
s
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 m
is

le
a
d

in
g
. 

T
h
e
 q

u
o
te

 w
a
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
P

la
n

 p
o

lic
y
 D

M
7
. 

A
s
 s

ta
te

d
 

a
b
o

v
e
, 

th
e
 S

P
D

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 c

la
ri
fy

 t
h

a
t 
lo

c
a
lly

 
lis

te
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 d

o
 n

o
t 
s
h
a
re

 t
h
e

 s
a
m

e
 s

ta
tu

s
 a

s
 s

ta
tu

to
ri
ly

 
d
e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 h

e
ri
ta

g
e
 a

s
s
e
ts

, 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 t
h
e
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 t
o
 

th
is

 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
P

o
lic

y
 D

M
7
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
. 

C
h

a
n

g
e
: 

D
e

le
te

 r
e
fe

re
n
c
e
 t

o
 L

o
c
a

l 
P

la
n
 p

o
lic

y
 D

M
7
 a

t 
p
a
g
e

 1
0
 o

f 
th

e
 S

P
D

. 

5
) 

M
r 

R
e
e

d
 

W
h
a
t 
re

s
e
a
rc

h
 s

h
o

w
s
 t
h
a
t 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
ta

in
 t
h

e
ir
 h

is
to

ri
c
 

fe
a
tu

re
s
 i
n
 g

o
o

d
 o

rd
e
r 

h
o

ld
 t

h
e
ir
 v

a
lu

e
 b

e
tt
e
r 

th
a
n

 t
h
o
s
e
 w

h
ic

h
 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 u

n
s
y
m

p
a
th

e
ti
c
a

lly
 a

lt
e
re

d
 o

r 
re

p
a

ir
e
d

?
 T

h
is

 s
h
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 n

o
te

d
. 
 A

ls
o
 I
 d

o
 n

o
t 

b
e

lie
v
e

 i
t 

h
o

ld
s
 t
ru

e
 i
n

 s
o
m

e
 p

a
rt

s
 o

f 
H

a
rr

o
w

 a
n

d
 I
 f

e
e

l 
it
 i
s
 a

 d
a
n

g
e
ro

u
s
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
t 
fo

r 
y
o
u
 t

o
 m

a
k
e
. 

A
d
d

it
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 a

lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 t
h

a
t 
a
re

 c
le

a
rl

y
 o

u
t 

o
f 

c
h
a
ra

c
te

r 
w

it
h
 t

h
e
 h

is
to

ri
c
 f

a
b
ri
c
 o

f 
a
 b

u
ild

in
g
 c

a
n
 c

e
rt

a
in

ly
 d

im
in

is
h
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 a

e
s
th

e
ti
c
 a

p
p
e

a
l 
a
n
d

 m
a

y
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o

n
 i
ts

 
v
a

lu
e
. 

H
o

w
e
v
e
r,

 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
g
re

e
s
 t
h
a

t 
th

is
 i
s
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 t

o
 

s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
te

. 
 

C
h

a
n

g
e
: 

D
e

le
te

 r
e
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 v

a
lu

e
s
 

5
) 

M
r 

R
e
e

d
 

P
le

a
s
e
 e

it
h

e
r 

h
a

v
e
 l
o
c
a

lly
 l
is

te
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 w

it
h
 o

r 
w

it
h
o

u
t 

c
a
p
it
a

ls
 b

u
t 
b
e

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t.
 

N
o
te

d
 

5
) 

M
r 

R
e
e

d
 

P
a
g

e
 1

4
 c

ri
te

ll 
s
h

o
u

ld
 r

e
a

d
 C

ri
tt
a

l.
 

N
o
te

d
. 
 

C
h

a
n

g
e
: 

C
o
rr

e
c
t 
th

e
 s

p
e

lli
n
g
  

5
) 

M
r 

R
e
e

d
 

P
a
g

e
 1

4
: 
S

in
c
e
 w

h
e

n
 d

id
 l
ig

h
tw

e
ig

h
t 
s
e
c
o

n
d
a
ry

 g
la

z
in

g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 i
n
 a

p
p
e

a
ra

n
c
e
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
?

 
Y

o
u
 g

iv
e
 t

o
o
 m

a
n

y
 o

p
in

io
n

s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 n
o
t 

e
n
fo

rc
e
a
b

le
. 

T
h
e
 o

p
ti
o

n
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 a

re
 n

o
t 
in

te
n

d
e
d

 t
o
 b

e
 e

n
fo

rc
e

a
b

le
 

b
u
t 
ra

th
e
r 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
s
 s

o
 t

h
a
t 

o
w

n
e
rs

 m
a

y
 

m
a
k
e
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 b

e
fo

re
 r

e
p
la

c
in

g
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 

w
in

d
o

w
s
 a

n
d
 d

o
o
rs

. 
N

o
 c

h
a
n

g
e
 

5
) 

M
r 

R
e
e

d
 

I 
d
o
 n

o
t 

a
g
re

e
 w

it
h
 5

.8
. 
T

h
e

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

c
a

n
n
o
t 

c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 o

p
ti
o

n
s
 

g
iv

e
n
 i
f 

th
e
re

 a
re

 c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 a

b
o
u

t 
th

e
 o

n
g
o

in
g
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
A

g
re

e
d
. 
 

C
h

a
n

g
e
: 

S
e
c
ti
o
n

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 d

e
le

te
d
. 
A

rt
ic

le
 4

 d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n

s
 

118



th
e
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
in

te
re

s
t 
o
f 

a
 l
o
c
a
lly

 l
is

te
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
. 

a
re

 d
e

a
lt
 w

it
h
 i
n
 t
h

e
 c

o
n
te

x
t 

o
f 

P
e
rm

it
te

d
 D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

ri
g
h
ts

. 
 

5
) 

M
r 

R
e
e

d
 

5
.9

. 
s
h

o
u
ld

 s
a

y
 t
h

a
t 
in

 s
o
m

e
 i
n
s
ta

n
c
e
s
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 i
s
 n

o
t 

re
q
u
ir
e

d
 t
o

 a
lt
e
r 

th
e
 e

x
te

ri
o

r.
 T

h
e
 o

m
is

s
io

n
 i
s
 m

is
le

a
d

in
g
. 

H
a
v
in

g
 r

e
g
a
rd

 t
o
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 c

o
m

m
e
n
t 
m

a
d
e
, 
th

is
 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
le

te
d
. 

C
h

a
n

g
e
: 

S
e
c
ti
o
n

 i
s
 d

e
le

te
d

, 
n
o
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

c
h

a
n
g

e
 i
s
 

th
e
re

fo
re

 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 

5
) 

M
r 

R
e
e

d
 

5
.1

2
 –

 A
n

y
 b

u
ild

in
g
 (

n
o
t 
ju

s
t 
lo

c
a

lly
 l
is

te
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
) 

h
a

s
 m

o
re

 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 p
ro

te
c
ti
n
g

 i
t.
 Y

o
u
r 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
is

 m
is

le
a
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 

in
te

n
d

in
g
 t

o
 f

ri
g
h
te

n
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 l
o
c
a

lly
 l
is

te
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
. 

H
a
v
in

g
 r

e
g
a
rd

 t
o
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 c

o
m

m
e
n
t 
m

a
d
e
, 
th

is
 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
le

te
d
. 

C
h

a
n

g
e
: 

S
e
c
ti
o
n

 i
s
 d

e
le

te
d

, 
n
o
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

c
h

a
n
g

e
 i
s
 

th
e
re

fo
re

 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 

5
) 

M
r 

R
e
e

d
 

P
a
g

e
 2

3
. 
W

h
a
t 
is

 t
h
is

 f
o
r?

 
It
 w

a
s
 i
n
te

n
d
e

d
 a

s
 a

 g
lo

s
s
a
ry

 b
u
t 

is
 u

n
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

. 
C

h
a
n

g
e
: 

D
e

le
te

 p
a

g
e
 2

3
 

6
) 

A
n

d
y
 T

ils
it
e
r 

G
e
n
e
ra

ll
y
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 t
h

e
 d

ra
ft

 b
u
t 

in
 m

y
 v

ie
w

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 m
a
jo

r 
o
m

is
s
io

n
 t
h
a
t 

n
e
e

d
s
 t
o
 b

e
 u

rg
e
n
tl
y
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d

. 
 I
 a

m
 a

n
 o

w
n
e
r 

o
f 

a
 l
o
c
a

lly
 l
is

te
d

 b
u

ild
in

g
 a

n
d
 I
 w

ri
te

 t
o
 y

o
u
 w

it
h
 f

ir
s
th

a
n
d
 

e
x
p
e
ri
e

n
c
e
 o

f 
s
o
m

e
o
n
e
 w

h
o
 h

a
s
 r

e
c
e
n

tl
y
 s

o
u

g
h
t 

p
la

n
n

in
g
 

p
e
rm

is
s
io

n
 t
o
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
a

 s
m

a
ll 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
. 
  
I 

c
a
n
 d

o
 n

o
 b

e
tt

e
r 

th
a
n
 a

tt
a
c
h

 t
h
e

 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

:-
 

 1
. 
P

la
n

n
in

g
  
re

fu
s
a
l 
d
a
te

 7
th

 J
u
n
e
 2

0
1

2
 

2
. 
N

o
ti
c
e
 o

f 
A

p
p
e

a
l 
d
a
te

d
 9

th
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
2
 

3
. 
R

e
p
o
rt

 o
f 

A
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
H

is
to

ri
a

n
, 
M

r 
H

a
v
e

y
 V

a
n
 S

ic
k
le

 d
a
te

d
 

J
u
ly

 2
0
1

2
 

4
. 
D

e
c
is

io
n
 o

f 
P

la
n
n

in
g

 I
n
s
p
e
c
to

r 
d
a

te
d
 1

8
th

 S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1

2
 

(A
p
p
e

a
l 
A

llo
w

e
d
) 

 It
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

le
a
r 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 a

b
o

v
e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

a
n
d
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

m
a
d
e
 a

 m
is

ta
k
e
 a

b
o
u
t 

th
e
 a

rc
h

it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
h

is
to

ry
 o

f 
m

y
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
, 

o
v
e
r 

e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t
h
e

 
e
x
te

n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
fo

rm
 o

f 
th

e
 h

o
u
s
e

 a
n

d
 a

b
o
v
e
 a

ll 
fa

ile
d
 t

o
 

a
p
p
re

c
ia

te
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

 e
n
ti
re

 r
e

a
r 

o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 (

to
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e
 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
 w

a
s
 p

ro
p
o
s
e

d
) 

w
a
s
 a

n
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 1

9
7
0
s
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
. 
  

 A
s
 

u
p
h
e

ld
 b

y
 t

h
e

 i
n
s
p

e
c
to

r,
 t

h
e
 s

m
a
ll 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
 t

o
 t
h

e
 r

e
a

r 
o
f 

th
e
 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 
h

a
d
 a

b
s
o
lu

te
ly

 n
o

 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e

 f
ro

n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 h

o
u
s
e
. 
 

 In
 m

y
 v

ie
w

, 
th

e
 b

o
th

 t
h
e
 f

o
rm

e
r 

lo
c
a
l 
p
o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 t
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
d
ra

ft
 

fa
il 

to
 h

ig
h
lig

h
t 
th

e
 f

a
c
t 
th

a
t 

ju
s
t 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 a

 b
u

ild
in

g
 i
s
 l
o

c
a
lly

 
lis

te
d
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

m
e
a
n
 t
h
a
t 

a
ll 

o
f 

it
 i
s
 o

f 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t.
  
T

h
e
 

d
ra

ft
 n

e
e
d
s
 t

o
 m

a
k
e
 t
h
is

 c
le

a
r 

a
n
d
 a

ls
o
 n

e
e
d
s
 t
o
 s

e
t 
o
u

t 
c
le

a
r 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 a

s
 t
o
 h

o
w

 t
h
is

 s
h

o
u
ld

 b
e

 d
e

a
lt
 w

it
h
. 
 I
 r

e
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 
s
u
g
g
e
s
t 
th

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 w

o
rd

in
g
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 a

d
d

e
d
: 

 It
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 n

o
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
ju

s
t 

b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 a

 b
u

ild
in

g
 i
s
 l
o
c
a

lly
 l
is

te
d

 

A
g
re

e
d
. 
 

C
h

a
n

g
e
: 

T
h
e
 S

P
D

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

m
e
n
d
e
d
 i
n
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
la

c
e
s
 t

o
 c

la
ri

fy
 t

h
a

t 
w

h
ils

t 
th

e
 w

h
o
le

 b
u

ild
in

g
 m

a
y
 b

e
 

lo
c
a
ll
y
 l
is

te
d
 t

h
e
re

 m
a

y
 b

e
 p

a
rt

s
 o

f 
it
 t
h

a
t 
a
re

 n
o

t 
o
f 

in
te

re
s
t.

 S
e
e
 n

e
w

 p
a
ra

 3
.3

 

119



th
a
t 
th

is
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 
n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ri

ly
 m

e
a
n
 t
h

e
 w

h
o
le

 o
f 

th
e

 b
u

ild
in

g
 i
s
 

o
f 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
o
r 

h
is

to
ri
c
 i
n

te
re

s
t.
 F

o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
th

e
 f

ro
n
t 

e
le

v
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 m

ig
h
t 
b
e

 V
ic

to
ri
a

n
 a

n
d
 h

a
v
e

 l
o

c
a
l 

im
p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 t

h
e
 s

tr
e
e

t 
s
c
e
n
e
 b

u
t 
th

e
 r

e
a
r 

o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 m

a
y
 

h
a
v
e
 a

lr
e
a

d
y
 b

e
e

n
 e

x
te

n
d
e

d
 o

r 
a
d

a
p
te

d
 a

t 
la

te
r 

d
a
te

s
. 

A
s
 s

u
c
h
 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o

u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 r

e
g
a
rd

 t
o

 t
h
e

 p
re

c
is

e
 n

a
tu

re
 o

f 
a
n

y
 

a
p
p

lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

a
lt
e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 o

r 
e
x
te

n
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

w
h
e
th

e
r 

th
e

y
 a

ff
e
c
t 
a
ll 

o
r 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 s

u
b
je

c
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
. 
If

 t
h
e
 

p
ro

p
o
s
a

l 
o

n
ly

 r
e
la

te
s
 t

o
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
 l
o
c
a

l 
lis

te
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
 t

h
e
 f

o
c
u
s
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e

 o
n
 t

h
a
t 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

p
e
rt

y
. 

 T
h
is

 p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 i
n
s
e
rt

e
d
 i
n
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 5

, 
p

e
rh

a
p
s
 b

e
lo

w
 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
 5

.6
. 

 I
 a

ls
o
 t
h

in
k
 i
t 

w
o
u
ld

 b
e

 s
e
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

th
e
 d

ra
ft

 t
o
 n

o
t 

o
n
ly

 p
ro

v
id

e
 g

o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 t

o
 o

w
n

e
rs

 a
n
d

 o
c
c
u
p
ie

rs
 b

u
t 

a
ls

o
 t

o
 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

it
s
e
lf
. 
 P

e
rh

a
p
s
 i
t 
s
h
o

u
ld

 r
e
q
u

ir
e
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
e
x
p

e
rt

s
 w

h
e
re

 i
t 

is
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 a
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
p
ri
a
te

 
to

 d
o

 s
o
. 
  
I 
s
a

y
 t

h
is

 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 I
 s

p
e

n
t 
c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
le

 t
im

e
 i
n
 

m
a
k
in

g
 t
h
e
 a

b
o

v
e
 a

p
p
e

a
l 
a

n
d
 i
n
c
u
rr

e
d
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
le

 e
x
p
e
n
s
e
 i
n
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

n
 e

x
p
e
rt

 r
e

p
o
rt

  
in

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 c

o
rr

e
c
t 

s
o

m
e
th

in
g
 

th
a
t 

w
a
s
 c

le
a
rl

y
 w

ro
n
g

 f
ro

m
 a

n
y
 r

e
a
s
o
n

a
b

le
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t.
 

 T
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o

n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 p

o
lic

y
 i
s
 v

it
a
lly

 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

to
 o

u
r 

n
e
ig

h
b

o
u
rh

o
o
d
 b

u
t 
th

e
 r

ig
h
t 

b
a
la

n
c
e
 m

u
s
t 
b
e
 s

tr
u
c
k
 a

n
d
 t
h
e

 
p
o
lic

y
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 m
u
s
t 
b
e
 c

le
a
r 

to
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
a

ll 
s
c
e
n

a
ri
o
s
. 

  
 P

le
a
s
e
 c

a
n
 y

o
u
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 m
y
 v

ie
w

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 t

a
k
e
n
 i
n
to

 a
c
c
o
u
n
t.
  

F
u
rt

h
e
rm

o
re

, 
I 
w

o
u

ld
 a

ls
o
 l
ik

e
 t
o
 a

tt
e
n

d
 a

t 
th

e
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

C
a
b
in

e
t 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 m

a
k
e
 m

y
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 v

e
rb

a
ll
y
 t
o
 t

h
e

 
c
o
m

m
it
te

e
. 
 P

le
a
s
e
 c

a
n
 y

o
u
 l
e

t 
m

e
 k

n
o
w

 w
h
e

n
 t
h

is
 w

ill
 b

e
. 

7
) 

M
s
 L

is
a

 J
a
c
k
s
 

R
e
q
u

e
s
te

d
 6

6
 H

u
tt
o

n
 L

a
n
e
 b

e
 r

e
m

o
v
e

d
 a

s
 t
h
e
 w

h
o

le
 h

o
u
s
e
 h

a
s
 

b
e
e
n

 d
o

u
b
le

 g
la

z
e

d
 w

it
h
 a

 n
e

w
 f

ro
n
t 
d

o
o
r 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 p

o
rc

h
 h

a
s
 

b
e
e
n

 r
e
m

o
v
e
d
 s

o
 t

h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
 i
s
 n

o
w

 t
h

e
 s

a
m

e
 a

s
 t
h
e
 w

h
o
le

 
s
tr

e
e
t 
a
n

d
 w

o
u
ld

 n
o

t 
b
e

 o
f 

h
is

to
ri
c
a

l 
in

te
re

s
t.
 

  

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 t
h

is
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 a

n
d
 i
n
 l
ig

h
t 

o
f 

re
c
e
n
t 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 r

e
m

o
v
in

g
 f

e
a
tu

re
s
 o

f 
s
p
e
c
ia

l 
in

te
re

s
t 
th

a
t 

d
id

 n
o
t 

re
q
u
ir
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 i
t 

is
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
h
a

t 
th

is
 

b
u
ild

in
g
 i
s
 n

o
 l
o
n
g

e
r 

w
o
rt

h
y
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 
lis

ti
n
g

. 
  

C
h

a
n

g
e
: 
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
 w

it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
n

d
 n

a
ti
o

n
a
l 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 g

ro
u

p
s
 o

n
 t
h
e

 p
ro

p
o
s
a

l 
to

 d
e
-l

is
t 
a

n
d
 t

h
e

n
 

m
a
k
e
 a

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t
h
e
 n

e
x
t 
L
D

F
 p

a
n

e
l.
 

8
) 

L
u
c
ia

n
a
 S

n
o

w
d

o
n
  

I 
a
m

 a
ll 

in
 f

a
v
o

u
r 

o
f 

th
is

 d
ra

ft
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
c
o
g
n

is
e
d
 –

 I
 a

m
 

o
w

n
e
r/

o
c
c
u

p
ie

r 
o
f 

a
 f

la
t 
in

 R
o
x
b
o
ro

u
g
h
 P

a
rk

. 
  

 S
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

th
e

 S
P

D
 i
s
 n

o
te

d
 a

n
d
 w

e
lc

o
m

e
d
. 

120



9
) 

M
a
s
h
a

 M
y
e
rs

 
R

e
q
u

e
s
te

d
 2

4
 U

x
b
ri

d
g

e
 R

o
a
d
 b

e
ta

k
e
n
 o

ff
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a

l 
lis

t 
a
s
 i
t 

is
 

n
o
t 

w
o
rt

h
y
. 

U
p
o
n
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
is

 b
u
ild

in
g

 i
s
 n

o
 l
o
n
g

e
r 

w
o
rt

h
y
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
lis

ti
n
g
. 
 

C
h

a
n

g
e
: 

T
h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

w
ill

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
 w

it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
n

d
 n

a
ti
o

n
a
l 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 g

ro
u

p
s
 o

n
 t
h
e

 p
ro

p
o
s
a

l 
to

 d
e
-l

is
t 
a

n
d
 t

h
e

n
 

m
a
k
e
 a

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t
h
e
 n

e
x
t 
L
D

F
 p

a
n

e
l.
 

1
0
) 

G
e
o
rg

ie
 H

o
u
s
le

y
  

I 
a
m

 w
ri
ti
n
g
 i
n
 r

e
s
p

o
n
s
e
 t

o
 y

o
u
r 

le
tt

e
r 

o
f 

1
8
 J

u
ly

, 
in

 w
h

ic
h
 y

o
u
 

a
s
k
 f
o
r 

o
p
in

io
n
s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 a

b
o

v
e
. 

A
s
 a

 r
e
s
id

e
n
t 
o
f 
W

e
s
t 
S

t,
 I
 a

m
 

to
ta

lly
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

iv
e

 o
f 

a
ll 

e
ff

o
rt

s
 t
o
 p

re
s
e
rv

e
 t

h
e
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
a
n
d
 

n
a
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 l
o
c
a

lit
y
 -

 o
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 m

a
in

 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 t

h
a
t 
I 

m
o
v
e
d
 

h
e
re

 i
n
it
ia

lly
. 

M
y
 o

n
ly

 c
o
m

m
e
n
t 
is

 t
h
a
t 
I 
th

in
k
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n

c
il 

s
h
o

u
ld

 
s
p
e
ll 

o
u
t 

in
 t
h
e

 S
P

D
 t

h
a
t 
s
o

la
r 

p
a

n
e

l 
in

s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
, 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 o

n
 

th
e
 f

ro
n
t 
e

le
v
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e

s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 w
it
h
in

 a
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n

 a
re

a
, 

a
re

 n
o
t 

p
e
rm

it
te

d
. 
I 

re
fe

r 
to

 t
h
e
 a

b
s
u
rd

 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n

 t
h
a

t 
is

 o
n
g
o

in
g
 

re
g
a
rd

in
g
 t

h
e
 s

o
la

r 
p

a
n
e

ls
 a

t 
n
o

.8
1
 W

e
s
t 
S

tr
e
e
t,
 a

n
d
 t

o
 t
h
a

t 
e
n
d
, 

I 
w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 g

ra
te

fu
l 
if
 y

o
u
 c

o
u

ld
 l
e
t 
m

e
 k

n
o
w

 t
h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n
d

e
p
e

n
d
e

n
t 
p

a
n
e

l 
re

v
ie

w
 w

h
ic

h
 t
o

o
k
 p

la
c
e
 i
n
 B

ri
s
to

l 
re

c
e
n
tl
y
 t
o

 c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 o

w
n
e
r'
s
 r

e
je

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 r

e
fu

s
a
l 

to
 g

ra
n

t 
re

tr
o
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 p

la
n
n

in
g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 s

o
la

r 
p
a
n

e
ls

. 
 

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

n
 e

n
e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 a
m

e
n

d
e
d
 

to
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
m

ic
ro

 g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 e

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t.
 I
t 

is
 c

la
ri
fi
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
s
u
c
h
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 a

re
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

d
 w

h
e
re

 
th

e
y
 d

o
 n

o
t 

h
a
rm

 s
p
e
c
ia

l 
in

te
re

s
t 
a
n
d

 t
h
a

t 
fa

c
to

rs
 s

u
c
h
 

s
c
a
le

 a
n

d
 s

it
in

g
 a

re
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 s

o
 t

h
a
t 
s
o

la
r 

p
a
n
e

ls
 o

n
 

th
e
 f

ro
n
t 
e

le
v
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
lo

c
a

lly
 l
is

te
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 a

re
 u

n
lik

e
ly

 t
o
 

b
e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

. 
 

1
1
) 

P
a
t 
C

la
rk

e
 

P
in

n
e
r 

L
o
c
a
l 
H

is
to

ry
 

S
o
c
ie

ty
 

It
 i
s
 g

o
o
d
 t

o
 h

a
v
e
 t
h

is
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 e

v
e
n
 t

h
o

u
g
h
 i
t 
s
e

e
m

s
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

o
w

n
e
r 

o
f 

a
 l
o
c
a

lly
 l
is

te
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
 c

a
n
 i
g
n

o
re

 i
t.
 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

th
e
 S

P
D

 i
s
 n

o
te

d
 a

n
d
 w

e
lc

o
m

e
d
. 

 

1
1
) 

P
a
t 
C

la
rk

e
 

P
in

n
e
r 

L
o
c
a
l 
H

is
to

ry
 

S
o
c
ie

ty
 

p
a
g
e

 4
 p

a
ra

 3
.5

  
- 

lin
e
s
 1

1
-1

6
 r

e
p

e
a
t 

lin
e
s
 5

-1
0
 

A
g

re
e

d
 -

 p
a
ra

 3
.5

 h
a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n

 r
e
p

la
c
e
d
 b

y
 a

 r
e

v
is

e
d

 
p
a
ra

 2
.1

 b
u
t 
m

u
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
c
o

n
te

n
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

o
m

it
te

d
. 

 

1
1
) 

P
a
t 
C

la
rk

e
 

P
in

n
e
r 

L
o
c
a
l 
H

is
to

ry
 

S
o
c
ie

ty
 

p
a
g
e

 7
 p

ic
tu

re
 4

.1
  

I 
c
a
n

n
o
t 

fi
n
d
 C

a
p
e
l 
G

a
rd

e
n
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
lis

t.
 

A
m

 I
 w

ro
n
g

?
 

A
g
re

e
d
. 
U

p
o
n
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

n
o
te

s
 t
h

a
t 
th

a
t 

w
a
s
 

b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 i
t 

w
a
s
 m

is
-t

y
p
e

d
 C

h
a
p
e

l 
G

a
rd

e
n
s
  

C
h

a
n

g
e
: 
C

o
rr

e
c
t 
s
p

e
lli

n
g
 t

o
 C

a
p

e
l 
G

a
rd

e
n
s
 

 

1
1
) 

P
a
t 
C

la
rk

e
 

P
in

n
e
r 

L
o
c
a
l 
H

is
to

ry
 

S
o
c
ie

ty
 

p
a
g
e

 8
 p

ic
tu

re
 5

.1
 i
s
 P

in
n
e
rw

o
o
d
 C

o
tt

a
g
e
, 

n
o
t 

P
in

n
e

rw
o
o
d
 

F
a
rm

 
N

o
te

d
  

C
h

a
n

g
e
: 

C
o
rr

e
c
t 
th

e
 p

h
o
to

 c
a
p
ti
o
n
 o

n
 p

a
g
e
 8

. 
 

1
1
) 

P
a
t 
C

la
rk

e
 

P
in

n
e
r 

L
o
c
a
l 
H

is
to

ry
 

S
o
c
ie

ty
 

5
.2

 s
e
n

te
n
c
e
 5

, 
lin

e
 6

; 
‘H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 i
f 

th
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
s
 a

 r
e

s
id

e
n
ti
a

l 
d

w
e
lli

n
g
, 

o
r 

a
 b

u
ild

in
g

 t
h

a
t 
is

 n
o
t 
a
 d

w
e

lli
n
g

 h
o

u
s
e
 o

r 
a

d
jo

in
in

g
 a

 
d

w
e
lli

n
g
 h

o
u
s
e
” 

d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
m

a
k
e
 s

e
n
s
e
. 

 

A
g
re

e
d
 -

 p
a
ra

 5
.2

 h
a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n

 r
e
p

la
c
e
d
 b

y
 a

 r
e

v
is

e
d

 
p
a
ra

 3
.2

4
, 

w
h

ic
h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 t

a
k
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 
o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
t.
 

C
h

a
n

g
e
: 

A
m

e
n
d
 p

a
ra

 5
.2

 t
o
 c

la
ri
fy

 t
h
e
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 o

n
 t
h
e

 
d
e
m

o
lit

io
n
 o

f 
L

is
te

d
 a

n
d
 l
o
c
a
lly

 l
is

te
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
. 

1
1
) 

P
a
t 
C

la
rk

e
 

P
in

n
e
r 

L
o
c
a
l 
H

is
to

ry
 

S
o
c
ie

ty
 

p
a
g
e

 9
 5

.3
 “

th
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

 H
a
rr

o
w

’s
 L

o
c
a
lll

y
 L

is
te

d
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 l
ie

 
w

it
h

in
 o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 2

8
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n

 A
re

a
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
, 

w
h

ic
h
 

m
e
a
n
s
 m

o
s
t 
lo

c
a
lly

 l
is

te
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 r

e
q
u
ir
e

 
p
e
rm

is
s
io

n
 t
o
 b

e
 s

o
u
g

h
t 
p
ri

o
r 

to
 t
h

e
ir
 d

e
m

o
lit

io
n
”.

  
Is

 n
o
t 
th

is
 a

n
 

A
g
re

e
d
. 
 

C
h

a
n

g
e
: 

A
m

e
n
d
 t
h

e
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 o

n
 d

e
m

o
lit

io
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
ly

 t
o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 g

re
a
te

r 
c
la

ri
ty

 

121



o
v
e
rs

ta
te

m
e
n
t,
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e

 y
o

u
 s

h
o

w
 3

6
9
 w

it
h
in

 c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 

a
re

a
s
, 
le

a
v
in

g
 3

5
7
 o

u
ts

id
e
 t

h
e
m

 (
to

ta
l 
g

iv
e
n
 a

s
 7

2
6

 o
n
 p

a
g
e

 3
, 

2
.2

 

1
1
) 

P
a
t 
C

la
rk

e
 

P
in

n
e
r 

L
o
c
a
l 
H

is
to

ry
 

S
o
c
ie

ty
 

5
.4

 “
W

h
e
re

 r
e
te

n
ti
o

n
 i
s
 i
m

p
o
s
s
ib

le
” 

m
e
a
n
s
, 
s
u
re

ly
, 

“i
f 

th
e
 o

w
n
e
r 

w
is

h
e
s
 t
o

 d
e
m

o
lis

h
 t

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
” 

d
o

e
s
 i
t 

n
o
t?

 
A

g
re

e
d
. 
 

C
h

a
n

g
e
: 

A
m

e
n
d
 t
h

e
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 o

n
 d

e
m

o
lit

io
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
ly

 t
o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 g

re
a
te

r 
c
la

ri
ty

 

1
1
) 

P
a
t 
C

la
rk

e
 

P
in

n
e
r 

L
o
c
a
l 
H

is
to

ry
 

S
o
c
ie

ty
 

p
a
g
e

 1
3
 

p
ic

tu
re

 5
.6

 i
s
 P

in
n

e
rw

o
o

d
 F

a
rm

, 
n
o
t 
P

in
n
e
rw

o
o
d
 L

o
d

g
e
 

N
o
te

d
  

C
h

a
n

g
e
: 

C
o
rr

e
c
t 
th

e
 p

h
o
to

 c
a
p
ti
o
n
. 

 

1
1
) 

P
a
t 
C

la
rk

e
 

P
in

n
e
r 

L
o
c
a
l 
H

is
to

ry
 

S
o
c
ie

ty
 

p
a
g
e

 1
4
 

p
ic

tu
re

 5
.8

  
  
C

ri
tt

a
ll,

 n
o
t 
c
ri
tt

e
ll 

N
o
te

d
  

C
h

a
n

g
e
: 

C
o
rr

e
c
t 
th

e
 s

p
e

lli
n
g
. 

 

1
1
) 

P
a
t 
C

la
rk

e
 

P
in

n
e
r 

L
o
c
a
l 
H

is
to

ry
 

S
o
c
ie

ty
 

p
ic

tu
re

 5
.9

 i
s
 o

f 
P

in
n
e
rw

o
o

d
 F

a
rm

, 
n
o
t 
P

in
n
e
rw

o
o
d

 C
o

tt
a
g
e
 

N
o
te

d
  

C
h

a
n

g
e
: 

C
o
rr

e
c
t 
th

e
 p

h
o
to

 c
a
p
ti
o
n
. 

 

1
1
) 

P
a
t 
C

la
rk

e
 

P
in

n
e
r 

L
o
c
a
l 
H

is
to

ry
 

S
o
c
ie

ty
 

p
a
g
e

 1
9
 

p
ic

tu
re

 5
.1

4
 i
s
 P

in
n
e
rw

o
o
d
 F

a
rm

, 
n
o
t 
P

in
n
e
rw

o
o
d
 L

o
d

g
e
 

N
o
te

d
  

C
h

a
n

g
e
: 

C
o
rr

e
c
t 
th

e
 p

h
o
to

 c
a
p
ti
o
n
. 

 

1
1
) 

P
a
t 
C

la
rk

e
 

P
in

n
e
r 

L
o
c
a
l 
H

is
to

ry
 

S
o
c
ie

ty
 

p
a
g
e

 2
0
 

5
.1

1
  

fi
rs

t 
lin

e
  
 i
m

m
in

e
n
t,
 n

o
t 
im

m
a
n
e
n
t 

 

N
o
te

d
 

C
h

a
n

g
e
: 

C
o
rr

e
c
t 
th

e
 s

p
e

lli
n
g
. 

 

122



1
2
) 

L
is

a
 H

a
w

e
s
 

F
IR

S
T

 R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

: 
I 

re
c
e
iv

e
d

 a
 l
e
tt

e
r 

fr
o
m

 y
o

u
 d

a
te

d
 1

8
th

 J
u

ly
 

2
0
1
3

. 
I 
h
a

v
e
 r

e
a
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
-r

e
a
d
 i
t.
 B

u
t 
I 

d
o

n
’t
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n
d

 w
h
a

t 
it
 i
s
 

g
o
in

g
 o

n
 a

b
o
u
t.

 H
a

v
in

g
 a

s
k
e
d
 o

th
e
r 

p
e
o
p

le
, 

th
e

y
 d

o
n

’t
 e

it
h

e
r.

  
I 
a
s
s
u
m

e
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e

 y
o

u
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 t

o
 t

h
is

 l
e
tt

e
r 

w
ill

 b
e
 l
o

w
 

a
n
d
 I

 w
a
n

te
d
 t

o
 l
e
t 

y
o

u
 k

n
o
w

 t
h
a
t 

th
is

 i
s
 b

e
c
a

u
s
e
 i
t 
is

 v
e
ry

 h
a
rd

 
to

 u
n

d
e
rs

ta
n

d
 i
t.
 T

h
e
re

 a
re

 p
e
o
p

le
 t

h
a
t 

b
e

lie
v
e
 t
h

a
t 

y
o
u

 a
re

 
d
o
in

g
 t

h
is

 d
e
lib

e
ra

te
ly

 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 p

u
ll 

th
e
 w

o
o

l 
o

v
e
r 

o
u

r 
e

y
e
s
. 

If
 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 t
o

 b
e
 s

o
m

e
th

in
g
 t

h
a
t 
a
ff

e
c
ts

 m
y
 h

o
m

e
, 
th

e
n
 I

 w
o
u

ld
 

lik
e
 t
o
 k

n
o
w

 a
b

o
u
t 

it
 a

n
d
 I

 w
o
u
ld

 l
ik

e
 a

ls
o
 t

o
 “

g
e
t 

in
v
o

lv
e
d
” 

P
le

a
s
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
 m

e
 w

it
h
 a

 l
in

k
 w

h
e
re

 I
 c

a
n
 r

e
a
d
 t

h
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

y
o

u
 a

re
 p

ro
p
o
s
in

g
. 
T

h
e
 l
in

k
 t
h
a
t 

y
o

u
 h

a
v
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 

d
o
 

s
o
 –

 i
t 

s
e
n
d
s
 m

e
 t
o
 a

 g
e
n

e
ri
c
 p

a
g

e
 a

b
o
u
t 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

H
a
rr

o
w

. 
P

le
a
s
e
 a

ls
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 m

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e

 d
a
te

 a
n
d
 v

e
n

u
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

u
b
lic

 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 a

s
 I
 w

o
u

ld
 l
ik

e
 t

o
 c

o
m

e
 a

n
d
 s

ta
te

 o
p

e
n

ly
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
 

h
a
v
e
 n

o
t 
a
c
tu

a
lly

 b
e

e
n
 c

o
n

s
u
lt
e
d

 w
it
h
 a

n
y
 d

e
g
re

e
 o

f 
tr

a
n
s
p
a
re

n
c
y
. 

 S
E

C
O

N
D

 R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

: 
T

h
a
n
k
 y

o
u
. 

It
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 g

re
a
t 
if
 i
t 

w
a
s
 c

a
lle

d
 t
h
e

 s
a
m

e
 t
h
in

g
, 
s
o
 

th
a
t 

p
e
o

p
le

 c
a
n
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n
d

. 
 

P
le

a
s
e
 c

a
n
 y

o
u
 p

ro
v
id

e
 m

e
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t/
ru

le
s
 a

s
 i
t 

w
a
s
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 s
o

 t
h
a

t 
I 
c
a
n

 u
n

d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 a

n
y
 c

h
a
n

g
e
s
 t
h

a
t 
a

re
 b

e
in

g
 

s
u
g
g
e
s
te

d
?
 A

 s
ta

n
d
-a

lo
n
e

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
is

 o
f 

n
o
 u

s
e

 t
o
 u

s
 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 –
 i
t 

is
 o

n
ly

 b
e
 c

o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 t
h
a
t 

w
e
 c

a
n
 s

e
e
 t

h
e
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

a
re

 s
u
g
g

e
s
ti
n

g
 a

n
d
 h

o
w

 t
h
e

y
 w

ill
 

im
p
a
c
t 
u
s
. 

I 
a
m

 v
e
ry

 u
p
s
e
t 

w
it
h
 m

a
n

y
 o

f 
th

e
 c

h
a
n

g
e
s
 t
h

a
t 
H

a
rr

o
w

 c
o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
v
e
 f

o
rc

e
d
 u

p
o
n
 u

s
 w

h
e
re

 w
e
 l
iv

e
, 

a
n
d
 i
t 

is
 b

e
c
o
m

in
g
 a

 m
o
re

 
a
n
d
 m

o
re

 i
n
h

o
s
p
it
a
b

le
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 c

a
ll 

h
o
m

e
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
H

a
rr

o
w

 
C

o
u
n
c
il.

 I
 k

n
o
w

 t
h
a
t 
s
e

v
e
ra

l 
o
f 
m

y
 n

e
ig

h
b

o
u
rs

 f
e
e
l 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

is
 b

e
c
o
m

in
g
 l
ik

e
 w

e
 l
iv

e
 o

n
 a

 t
in

y
 i
s
la

n
d
. 
W

e
 d

o
 n

o
t 

tr
u
s
t 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 a

c
t 
in

 o
u

r 
in

te
re

s
ts

 o
r 

e
v
e
n
 t

o
 b

e
 t
ra

n
s
p
a
re

n
t 

a
n
d
 a

llo
w

 u
s
 a

 s
a

y
. 
 

I 
d
o
 n

o
t 
k
n
o

w
 w

h
a
t 
th

e
 r

u
le

s
 w

e
re

 b
e
fo

re
. 
I 

fo
u
n
d
 y

o
u
r 

le
tt

e
r 

to
 

b
e
 v

e
ry

 u
n
-u

s
e
r-

fr
ie

n
d

ly
. 

A
n
d
, 
I 

d
o
 n

o
t 
tr

u
s
t 

H
a
rr

o
w

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

to
 

p
ro

te
c
t 
m

y
 i
n
te

re
s
ts

. 
S

o
, 
I 

w
o
u
ld

 r
e
a

lly
 l
ik

e
 t
o
 s

e
e

 t
h
e

 r
u
le

s
 

b
e
fo

re
 a

n
d
 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 s

o
 t

h
a
t 

I 
c
a
n
 s

ta
n
d
 u

p
 f

o
r 

m
y
s
e

lf
 a

n
d
 e

x
p
la

in
 t

o
 m

y
 n

e
ig

h
b
o

u
rs

 t
o
o
. 

E
m

a
ils

 o
f 

c
la

ri
fi
c
a
ti
o

n
 s

e
n
t 

b
y
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 o
n
 t
h
e
 n

a
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 r

e
q
u
e
s
te

d
 a

n
y
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 o

n
 t
h
e

 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t.
 I
t 

w
a
s
 s

ta
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

is
 i
s
 a

 f
ir
s
t 
d
ra

ft
 a

n
d

 s
o
 

th
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
t 

a
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
to

 c
o
m

p
a
re

 i
t 

w
it
h

. 
T

h
e
re

 w
a
s
 n

o
 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
o
n
 L

o
c
a
lly

 L
is

te
d
 B

u
ild

in
g
s
 b

e
fo

re
 t

h
is

 
d
ra

ft
. 
A

n
y
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 o
n
 t
h
e

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
w

e
re

 r
e

q
u
e
s
te

d
. 

 

123



1
3
) 

B
o
a
rd

 o
f 

C
a

p
e

l 
G

a
rd

e
n
s
 (

P
in

n
e
r)

 
R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 L
im

it
e
d
, 

P
le

a
s
e
 f

in
d
 b

e
lo

w
 a

n
 i
n

it
ia

l 
re

s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o

 t
h

e
 D

ra
ft

 G
u
id

a
n
c
e
 N

o
te

 
th

a
t 

is
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d
 t

o
 f

o
rm

 t
h
e
 S

u
p

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 P

la
n
n

in
g

 D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

(S
P

D
) 

th
a
t 

y
o

u
 h

a
v
e

 s
e
n
t 
fo

r 
c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 b

y
 n

o
 m

e
a
n
s
 

e
x
h
a
u
s
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 w

e
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
 t

h
e
 r

ig
h
t 
to

 r
a

is
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a

l 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

o
r 

o
b
je

c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t
h

e
 f

u
tu

re
. 

W
e
 o

b
je

c
t 
to

 t
h
e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

in
 i
ts

 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 
fo

rm
. 

 T
h
e
 B

o
a
rd

 a
n
d

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 o
f 

C
a
p
e

l 
G

a
rd

e
n
s
 a

re
 g

ra
v
e
ly

 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 c
o
n
te

n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 S

P
D

, 
b
o
th

 i
n
 i
ts

 e
n
ti
re

ty
 a

n
d

 
w

it
h
 m

a
n

y
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

s
. 
W

h
ils

t 
a
lm

o
s
t 
a
ll 

o
w

n
e
rs

 i
n
 C

a
p
e

l 
G

a
rd

e
n
s
 

c
h
o
o
s
e
 t
o

 l
iv

e
 h

e
re

 d
u

e
 t
o

 t
h
e
 h

is
to

ry
, 

lo
o
k
 a

n
d
 f

e
e
l 
o
f 

th
e
 A

rt
 

D
e
c
o
 b

u
ild

in
g
 a

n
d
 w

e
ll-

m
a
in

ta
in

e
d

 g
ro

u
n
d
s
, 

w
e
 h

a
v
e

 f
o
u
n
d

 
n
o
n
e

 w
h
o

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 i
ts

 l
o
c
a

lly
-l

is
te

d
 s

ta
tu

s
 t
o
 i
m

p
o

s
e
 a

n
 

e
x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
 o

n
 t

h
e
m

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 f

o
rc

e
d
 t
o
 l
iv

e
 i
n
 a

n
 

u
n
s
a
fe

, 
u
n

h
e
a

lt
h

y
 a

n
d
 e

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

lly
 c

o
s
tl
y
 s

it
u
a
ti
o

n
. 
In

 t
h

is
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
th

e
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n

, 
E

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e
 

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
h
a
s
 s

o
 f

a
r 

p
a

id
 n

o
 h

e
e
d

 t
o
 t

h
e
s
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 g

iv
e

n
 

s
o
le

 p
ri

o
ri
ty

 t
o
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
 e

x
te

ri
o
r 

w
ill

 a
p
p

e
a
r 

to
 a

n
y
 p

e
rs

o
n
 

w
a
lk

in
g
 b

y
 w

it
h

 t
o
ta

l 
d
is

re
g

a
rd

 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

e
o
p

le
 l
iv

in
g

 w
it
h
in

. 

A
g
re

e
d
. 
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

re
c
o
g

n
is

e
s
 a

n
d
 a

c
k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e
s
 t

h
a

t 
it
 

is
 a

 b
a
la

n
c
in

g
 a

c
t 
b

e
tw

e
e
n
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 p

re
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 w

h
ils

t 
a

ls
o
 e

n
a
b

lin
g
 o

w
n

e
rs

 t
o
 a

d
a
p

t 
th

e
m

 
to

 b
e

 m
o
re

 e
n
e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
t 

a
n
d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d

 l
iv

in
g
 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
. 
 

C
h

a
n

g
e
: 

T
h
e
 S

P
D

 h
a
s
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 b
e
e

n
 a

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t

o
 c

la
ri
fy

 
th

a
t 
th

e
 S

P
D

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 b

e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 o

n
 h

o
w

 
lo

c
a
ll
y
 l
is

te
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 a

d
a
p
te

d
 b

u
t 

d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
s
e

e
k
 

to
 i
m

p
o
s
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 b
e

y
o

n
d
 t

h
is

 w
h

e
re

 u
n
s
u
p
p

o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 p

o
lic

y
 o

r 
re

g
u
la

ti
o

n
s
. 
It
 i
s
 h

o
p

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 a

d
v
ic

e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 S

P
D

 w
ill

 a
id

 i
n
 t

h
e
 o

w
n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

o
c
c
u
p
ie

rs
 o

f 
th

e
s
e

 b
u

ild
in

g
s
 m

a
k
in

g
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 

a
s
 t
o
 t
h

e
 s

u
it
a
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

p
ro

p
o

s
e
d
 a

lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
a

ir
s
. 
 

1
3
) 

B
o
a
rd

 o
f 

C
a

p
e

l 
G

a
rd

e
n
s
 (

P
in

n
e
r)

 
R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 L
im

it
e
d
, 

In
d
e

e
d
 t

h
is

 S
P

D
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 n

o
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

e
o

p
le

 l
iv

in
g
 

in
s
id

e
 t
h

e
s
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
, 

n
o
r 

th
e
 u

n
s
a
fe

 a
n
d
 u

n
h

e
a

lt
h

y
 l
iv

in
g
 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 t
h
a
t 

s
u
c
h
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 r

e
s
tr

ic
ti
o
n
s
 p

e
rp

e
tu

a
te

. 
It

 e
v
e
n
 

s
e
e
k
s
 t
o
 e

x
te

n
d
 t
h

e
s
e
 r

e
s
tr

ic
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 a

 w
a

y
 t
h

a
t 

w
e

 b
e

lie
v
e

 i
s
 f

a
r 

b
e

y
o

n
d

 t
h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il'

s
 r

e
m

it
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 o

ri
g

in
a

l 
p

u
rp

o
s
e

 o
f 

th
e
 

lo
c
a
ll
y
-l

is
te

d
 p

o
lic

y
. 

A
g
re

e
d
. 

S
e
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 a
b
o
v
e
 

1
3
) 

B
o
a
rd

 o
f 

C
a

p
e

l 
G

a
rd

e
n
s
 (

P
in

n
e
r)

 
R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 L
im

it
e
d
, 

A
s
 a

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

 e
x
a
m

p
le

 p
o
in

t 
5
.7

 (
s
ic

) 
'd

o
u
b

le
-g

la
z
in

g
' 
(w

it
h
 w

h
ic

h
 

C
a
p
e

l 
G

a
rd

e
n
s
 i
s
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

e
d
).

 T
h
e
 r

e
q
u

e
s
t 
fo

r 
in

te
g
ra

te
d
 g

la
z
in

g
 b

a
rs

 a
n
d

 a
 c

ro
s
s
-s

e
c
ti
o
n
 d

ia
g
ra

m
 a

p
p
e
a
rs

 t
o

 
s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 a
n
d
 d

e
fi
n

it
e

ly
 e

x
c
lu

d
e
 u

P
V

C
 a

s
 a

 r
e
p

la
c
e

m
e
n
t 

o
p
ti
o
n
. 
T

h
is

 b
la

n
k
e
t 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 i
s
 u

n
te

n
a

b
le

 a
s
 e

a
c
h
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 

a
p
p

lic
a
ti
o
n

 s
h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 t
re

a
te

d
 o

n
 i
ts

 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a
l 
m

e
ri

ts
 a

n
d
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

a
ll 

o
p

ti
o

n
s
. 
W

e
 d

o
 n

o
t 

a
g
re

e
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

 N
a
ti
o

n
a
lly

-l
is

te
d

 
b
u
ild

in
g
s
 g

u
id

e
lin

e
s
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 d

ir
e
c
tl
y
 a

p
p

lie
d
 t
o

 t
h
e

 l
o

c
a
lly

-
lis

te
d
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 a

s
 t

h
is

 S
P

D
 s

u
g
g
e
s
ts

. 

N
o
te

d
. 
T

h
e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 
s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 p
re

c
lu

d
e
 t

h
e
 

u
s
e
 o

f 
d
o
u

b
le

 g
la

z
in

g
 b

u
t 
ra

th
e
r 

h
ig

h
lig

h
ts

 t
h
a
t 

d
o

u
b
le

 
g
la

z
in

g
 (

if
 d

o
n
e
 p

o
o
rl

y
) 

c
a

n
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 d

e
tr

a
c
t 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 

lo
c
a
l 
h
is

to
ri
c
 m

e
ri
t 
o
f 

th
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
. 
 

C
h

a
n

g
e
: 

T
h
e
 S

P
D

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t

o
 c

la
ri

fy
 t
h
e

 i
s
s
u
e
 

o
f 

‘d
o
u

b
le

 g
la

z
in

g
’,
 o

ff
e
ri
n
g
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d

 d
e
s
ig

n
 

m
a
tt
e
rs

 f
o
r 

o
w

n
e
rs

 c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

 i
n

 a
n
 e

ff
o
rt

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 
th

a
t 

w
h
e
re

 w
in

d
o

w
s
 a

re
 r

e
p

la
c
e
d
, 

th
e

 r
e
p

la
c
e
m

e
n
t 
is

 i
n

 
k
e
e
p
in

g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 o

ri
g

in
a
l 
w

in
d
o

w
s
. 

1
3
) 

B
o
a
rd

 o
f 

C
a

p
e

l 
G

a
rd

e
n
s
 (

P
in

n
e
r)

 
R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 L
im

it
e
d
, 

T
h
e
 B

o
a
rd

 h
a

v
e
 a

lr
e
a

d
y
 r

a
is

e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h

e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
la

n
n
in

g
, 

S
te

p
h
e
n

 K
e
lly

, 
th

e
 s

e
ri
o

u
s
 a

n
d
 u

rg
e
n

t 
is

s
u
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

o
o
r 

h
e
a

lt
h
 

a
n
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 l
iv

in
g
 e

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
is

 l
o

c
a
ll
y
-l

is
te

d
 

b
u
ild

in
g
 (

C
a
p
e

l 
G

a
rd

e
n
s
).

 H
o

w
e

v
e
r,

 w
e
 d

o
 n

o
t 
s
e
e
 t

h
a
t 
a
 s

in
g

le
 

o
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 i
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
n
 t
h

is
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t.
 I
t 
a

p
p

e
a
rs

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

d
e
fa

u
lt
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
a
ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a
lly

-l
is

te
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 

A
g
re

e
d
. 

S
e
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 a
b
o
v
e
 

124



is
 t
o
 b

e
g

in
 w

it
h
 a

 '
n

o
-c

h
a
n
g

e
' 
re

s
p
o
n
s
e
 t

o
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

p
p

lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

ra
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 n

e
e

d
, 
s
a

fe
ty

, 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
a
n

d
 e

c
o

n
o
m

ic
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
s
. 

1
3
) 

B
o
a
rd

 o
f 

C
a

p
e

l 
G

a
rd

e
n
s
 (

P
in

n
e
r)

 
R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 L
im

it
e
d
, 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 v

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
is

s
u
e
s
 i
n
v
o

lv
e

d
 w

it
h
 

re
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
in

 t
h

e
 S

P
D

 i
s
 n

a
iv

e
, 

o
n
e
-s

id
e
d
 a

n
d

 i
n
c
o
m

p
le

te
. 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 m

e
n
ti
o

n
 o

f 
lo

s
t 

e
n
e
rg

y
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 a

g
e
d
, 

d
a

m
a
g
e
d

, 
s
in

g
le

 v
s
 d

o
u

b
le

-g
la

z
e
d
 n

o
r 

ill
-f

it
ti
n

g
 w

in
d

o
w

s
. 
T

h
e
 a

d
v
ic

e
 g

iv
e
n

 
o
n
 r

e
p

a
ir
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
to

ra
ti
o
n
 i
s
 p

a
tr

o
n

is
in

g
. 
D

o
e
s
 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

n
o
t 

a
p
p
re

c
ia

te
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

 o
w

n
e
r 

w
o
u
ld

 d
o
 a

ll 
th

a
t 

th
e

y
 c

a
n
 t

o
 r

e
ta

in
 t

h
e
 

a
e
s
th

e
ti
c
s
 t
h
a
t 

th
e

y
 e

n
jo

y
 a

n
d
 w

e
re

 a
n
 i
n

te
g
ra

l 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
ir
 

p
u
rc

h
a
s
in

g
 d

e
c
is

io
n
?
 A

ll 
o
f 

th
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 w
o
u

ld
 l
o

v
e
 t

o
 k

e
e
p
 t
h
e
 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 f

it
m

e
n
ts

 b
u
t 
th

e
y
 a

re
 s

im
p
ly

 t
o

o
 d

a
n
g

e
ro

u
s
 a

n
d
 

in
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d

 a
s
 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

is
 f

u
lly

 a
w

a
re

, 
w

o
u
ld

 n
o

t 
p
a
s
s
 t
h
e
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 
e
n

v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
re

g
u
la

ti
o

n
s
. 

A
g
re

e
d
. 
 

C
h

a
n

g
e
: 

A
s
 s

ta
te

d
 a

b
o

v
e
 t

h
e
 S

P
D

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

m
e
n
d
e

d
 t
o
 

o
ff

e
r 

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
s
ig

n
 m

a
tt
e
rs

 f
o
r 

o
w

n
e
rs

 
c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 i
n
 a

n
 e

ff
o
rt

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

w
h
e
re

 w
in

d
o

w
s
 

a
re

 r
e
p

la
c
e
d
, 

th
e

 r
e
p

la
c
e
m

e
n
t 

is
 i
n
 k

e
e
p

in
g
 w

it
h
 t
h

e
 

o
ri
g
in

a
l 
w

in
d

o
w

s
. 

 

1
3
) 

B
o
a
rd

 o
f 

C
a

p
e

l 
G

a
rd

e
n
s
 (

P
in

n
e
r)

 
R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 L
im

it
e
d
, 

O
f 

g
re

a
te

r 
n
e
e

d
 i
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 s

te
m

 t
h
e
 p

ie
c
e
m

e
a
l 
a

n
d
 

p
o
o
r 

a
p
p

lic
a
ti
o
n

 o
f 

P
la

n
n

in
g
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
. 

A
s
 a

 v
e
ry

 r
e
c
e
n
t 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 t
h
e
 G

e
o
rg

e
 I

V
 P

u
b

lic
 H

o
u
s
e

 i
n
 P

in
n
e
r 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

llo
w

e
d
 t
o

 b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
ly

 d
e
m

o
lis

h
e

d
 d

e
s
p
it
e
 i
ts

 r
ic

h
 

h
is

to
ry

 t
h
a

t 
p
re

-d
a
te

s
 t

h
e
 e

n
ti
re

 M
e
tr

o
p
o

lit
a
n
 L

in
e

 a
n

d
 a

s
 a

 
C

o
a
c
h
-h

o
u
s
e
 a

n
d
 s

it
e
 o

f 
a
 W

o
rk

h
o
u
s
e
. 
In

 a
d

d
it
io

n
, 
T

h
e
 L

o
d
g
e
 

b
u
ild

in
g
, 

b
u

ilt
 a

s
 a

 p
a
rt

 o
f 

C
a
p
e

l 
G

a
rd

e
n
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 s
a
m

e
 A

rt
 D

e
c
o
 

V
e
rd

ig
ri
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

llo
w

e
d
 d

o
u
b

le
-g

la
z
in

g
 a

n
d

 t
o
 

re
p
la

c
e
 i
ts

 m
a
tc

h
in

g
 g

re
e
n
-t

ile
d
 r

o
o
f.

 I
n

d
e

e
d
 t

h
e
re

 a
re

 m
a
n

y
 

e
x
a
m

p
le

s
 i
n
 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 o

f 
s
im

ila
rl

y
 d

e
s
ig

n
e

d
 h

o
u
s
e

s
 h

a
v
in

g
 

in
s
ta

lle
d
 s

y
m

p
a

th
e
ti
c
a
ll
y
 d

e
s
ig

n
e

d
 d

o
u
b

le
-g

la
z
in

g
 t

h
a
t 

a
d
d
s
 t
o

 
th

e
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
o
f 

th
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
. 

N
o
te

d
. 
T

h
e
 m

e
ri
ts

 o
f 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
a
p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 o

u
ts

id
e

 
th

e
 s

c
o
p
e

 o
f 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t
h

is
 S

P
D

 t
o

 a
d

d
re

s
s
. 

 W
h
ile

 t
h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
c
k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e
s
 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 m
a
n

y
 g

o
o
d
 

e
x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
re

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 w
in

d
o

w
s
 b

e
in

g
 i
n
s
ta

lle
d
 i
n

 b
o
th

 
L
is

te
d

 a
n

d
 l
o
c
a
lly

 l
is

te
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 t
h
a
t 

a
re

 s
y
m

p
a
th

e
ti
c
 t

o
 

th
e
 s

ty
le

 o
f 

th
e
 o

ri
g

in
a

l 
w

in
d
o

w
s
 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 n
u
m

e
ro

u
s
 

e
x
a
m

p
le

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 w

h
e
re

 t
h

is
 i
s
 n

o
t 
th

e
 c

a
s
e
. 
  

C
h

a
n

g
e
: 

T
h
e
 a

m
e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

 c
la

ri
fy

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
s
 o

w
n
e
rs

 t
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

s
y
m

p
a
th

e
ti
c
a

lly
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 

re
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

w
in

d
o

w
s
, 

w
h

e
re

 i
t 

is
 d

e
e
m

e
d
 b

y
 t
h

e
 o

w
n
e

r 
a
s
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 t
o
 r

e
p

la
c
e
 t

h
e

 o
ri
g

in
a

l 
w

o
o
d

e
n
 o

r 
m

e
ta

l 
w

in
d

o
w

s
. 
T

h
e

y
 a

ls
o
 s

e
e
k
 t
o
 h

ig
h
lig

h
t 
th

e
 i
s
s
u
e
 w

it
h

 
u
n
s
y
m

p
a
th

e
ti
c
 r

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

w
in

d
o

w
s
, 
ty

p
ic

a
lly

 u
s
in

g
 

o
ff

-t
h
e
-s

h
e
lf
 g

e
n

e
ri
c
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
 f

ra
m

e
d
 w

in
d

o
w

s
 t
h
a

t 
re

s
u
lt
 

in
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 w
in

d
o

w
s
 l
o
o
k
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

te
ly

 o
u

t 
o
f 

p
la

c
e
 a

n
d
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 d

e
tr

a
c
ti
n
g
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a

l 
h
e
ri

ta
g
e
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 u

n
iq

u
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
. 
 

1
3
) 

B
o
a
rd

 o
f 

C
a

p
e

l 
G

a
rd

e
n
s
 (

P
in

n
e
r)

 
R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 L
im

it
e
d
, 

T
h
e
 B

o
a
rd

 h
a
s
 t
o
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e

 t
h
e
 S

P
D

's
 v

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e
 (

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
) 

v
a

lu
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a
 l
o
c
a
ll
y
-l

is
te

d
 b

u
ild

in
g
. 

It
 i
s
 c

o
n
tr

a
d

ic
to

ry
 t

o
 t
h
e

 
e
m

p
ir
ic

a
l 
e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 a

n
d

 e
x
p

e
rt

is
e
 t
h

a
t 

w
e
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f

ro
m

 
n
u
m

e
ro

u
s
 E

s
ta

te
 A

g
e

n
ts

 w
h
o
 s

ta
te

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
C

a
p
e

l 
G

a
rd

e
n
s
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 

a
p
p
re

c
ia

te
d
 i
n
 t
h

e
 l
a
s
t 
d
e
c
a

d
e
 o

r 
s
o
 i
n
 t
h
e

 
s
a
m

e
 w

a
y
 a

s
 i
ts

 e
n
v
ir
o
n
s
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

o
o
r 

q
u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
it
s
 s

in
g

le
-g

la
z
e
d
 C

ri
tt
a

l 
W

in
d
o
w

s
. 

A
d
d

it
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 a

lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 t
h

a
t 
a
re

 c
le

a
rl

y
 o

u
t 

o
f 

c
h
a
ra

c
te

r 
w

it
h
 t

h
e
 h

is
to

ri
c
 f

a
b
ri
c
 o

f 
a
 b

u
ild

in
g
 c

a
n
 c

e
rt

a
in

ly
 d

im
in

is
h
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 a

e
s
th

e
ti
c
 a

p
p
e

a
l 
a
n
d

 m
a

y
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o

n
 i
ts

 
v
a

lu
e
. 

H
o

w
e
v
e
r,

 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
g
re

e
s
 t
h
a

t 
th

is
 i
s
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 t

o
 

s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
te

. 
 

C
h

a
n

g
e
: 

D
e

le
te

 r
e
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 v

a
lu

e
s
 

125



1
3
) 

B
o
a
rd

 o
f 

C
a

p
e

l 
G

a
rd

e
n
s
 (

P
in

n
e
r)

 
R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 L
im

it
e
d
, 
 

F
in

a
lly

, 
th

e
 B

o
a
rd

 c
a
n
 f

in
d
 n

o
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 
fo

r 
p
e
rm

is
s
io

n
 t

o
 u

s
e
 t

h
e
 

p
h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
s
 4

.1
 a

n
d
 5

.8
 o

f 
C

a
p
e

l 
G

a
rd

e
n
s
 t
h

a
t 

w
e
re

 c
le

a
rl

y
 

ta
k
e
n
 f

ro
m

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e
 p

ri
v
a
te

 g
ro

u
n
d
s
. 
T

h
e
 B

o
a
rd

 m
u
s
t 
in

s
is

t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

re
m

o
v
e
 t

h
e

s
e
 i
m

a
g
e
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 S

P
D

 d
o

c
u
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 c

e
a
s
e
 a

n
d
 d

e
s
is

t 
fr

o
m

 a
ll 

fu
tu

re
 u

s
e
 u

n
le

s
s
 a

n
d

 u
n

ti
l 

p
e
rm

is
s
io

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 g

ra
n
te

d
. 

 T
h
e
 l
e
tt
e
r 

s
e

n
t 
to

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
in

d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 n

e
x
t 
s
te

p
s
 i
n
 

th
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
ra

ti
fy

in
g

 t
h

is
 G

u
id

a
n
c
e
 N

o
te

 i
n
to

 a
n

y
 S

P
D

. 
W

e
 

w
o
u
ld

 a
p
p
re

c
ia

te
 a

 d
e

ta
ile

d
 d

e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 e

n
ti
re

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

ll 
s
ta

g
e
s
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
re

 m
a

y
 b

e
 o

b
je

c
ti
o
n
s
 o

r 
c
h
a
lle

n
g

e
s
 f

ile
d
. 

 W
e
 w

o
u

ld
 a

p
p
re

c
ia

te
 a

n
 a

c
k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

re
c
e
ip

t 
in

 w
ri
ti
n
g
 

a
n
d
 a

 r
e
p

ly
 t

o
 o

u
r 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

 c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 a

t 
y
o

u
r 

e
a
rl

ie
s
t 

c
o
n
v
e

n
ie

n
c
e
. 

N
o
te

d
. 
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
p

o
lo

g
is

e
s
 f

o
r 

u
s
in

g
 t
h
e

 p
h

o
to

g
ra

p
h
s
 

o
f 

C
a
p
e
l 
G

a
rd

e
n
s
 w

it
h
o
u
t 

s
e
e
k
in

g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 

re
m

o
v
e
d
 t
h
e
s
e
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t.
  

 A
 l
e
tt
e
r 

in
d

ic
a
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 n

e
x
t 

s
te

p
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
ra

ti
fy

in
g
 

th
is

 G
u

id
a

n
c
e
 N

o
te

 i
n
to

 a
n

y
 S

P
D

 w
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
n
t 
in

 
re

s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o

 t
h

is
 r

e
q
u

e
s
t.
 

126



1
4
) 

A
n
c
ie

n
t 

M
o
n
u
m

e
n
ts

 S
o
c
ie

ty
 

W
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
d
 t
h
e
 i
n
te

n
ti
o
n
 t

o
 p

u
b
lis

h
 t
h

e
 S

P
D

 a
n
d

 c
o

m
m

e
n
t 

o
n
ly

 o
n
 m

a
tt
e
rs

 o
f 

d
e
ta

il 
  1
. 
F

ir
s
tl
y
 t

w
o
 t

y
p
o
s
 h

a
v
e
 c

re
p
t 

in
 :
 

  a
) 

P
la

te
 5

.8
. 

p
a

g
e
 1

4
 -

 "
C

ri
tt

a
ll"

 
  b
) 

5
.1

1
. 
in

 t
e
x
t 

"i
m

m
in

e
n
t"

 
  2
. 
5
.7

. 
D

e
lig

h
te

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

d
 t
h

e
 e

n
ti
re

ly
 c

o
m

m
e
n
d
a
b
le

 o
b
je

c
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 

u
P

V
C

 o
n
 p

a
g
e
 1

2
 a

n
d
 c

a
n
 s

e
e
 w

h
y
 i
t 
a
p

e
a
rs

 u
n

d
e
r 

"M
a

te
ri
a

ls
..
..

".
 H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 i
t 

is
 c

h
ie

fl
y
 u

s
e
d
 f

o
r 

w
in

d
o

w
s
 a

n
d
 

d
o
o
rs

. 
D

o
e
s
 i
t 

n
o
t 
th

e
re

fo
re

 s
it
 b

e
tt
e
r 

o
n
 p

a
g
e
 1

3
 ?

 C
e
rt

a
in

ly
 

th
e
re

 s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 c

ro
s
s
-r

e
fe

re
n
c
in

g
. 
A

n
d
 s

u
re

ly
 i
n
 t
h

e
 b

u
lle

tp
o
in

t 
p
a
ra

 p
re

s
e

n
tl
y
 o

n
 p

a
g

e
 1

2
 t

h
e
re

 s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 r
e
fe

re
n
c
e

 t
o

 m
e
ta

l 
w

in
d

o
w

s
, 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

G
e
o
rg

ia
n
 i
ro

n
 c

a
s
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
r 

2
0
th

 c
e

n
tu

ry
 

C
ri
tt
a

lls
. 
 

  3
. 
5
.1

0
 S

a
d

ly
, 

E
H

 h
a

v
e

 r
e
c
e
n
tl
y
 m

a
d
e
 i
t 

m
u
c
h
 m

o
re

 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 

a
p
p

ly
 f

o
r 

s
p
o
tl
is

ti
n
g

 -
 a

n
d
 t
h

e
 p

h
ra

s
e
 "

a
p
p

lic
a
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 g

iv
e
n
 d

u
e

 
c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
" 

is
 t
o

o
 k

in
d
 o

n
 E

H
. 

U
n

le
s
s
 t
h
e
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 i
n
 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 i
s
 t
ra

n
s
p

a
re

n
tl
y
 l
is

te
a
b

le
, 

u
n
d

e
r 

a
c
u
te

 t
h

re
a
t 
o

r 
fa

lls
 

u
n
d
e
r 

a
 p

ro
je

c
t 
p
ro

m
o
te

d
 i
n

 t
h
e
 N

P
P

F
, 
it
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
je

c
te

d
 u

jn
d
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
w

 r
e
g

im
e
. 
G

iv
e

n
 t
h

a
t,

 m
ig

h
t 
it
 b

e
 w

o
rt

h
w

h
ile

 a
s
k
in

g
 t
h

o
s
e
 

p
u
tt

in
g
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 t
o
 s

e
e
k
 t
h
e
 v

ie
w

s
 o

f 
y
o

u
rs

e
lv

e
s
 o

r 
o
n
e
 

o
r 

m
o
re

 o
f 

th
e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a

l 
A

m
e
n
it
y
 S

o
c
ie

ti
e
s
 ?

 T
h
is

 w
o
u

ld
 p

re
v
e
n
t 

w
a
s
te

d
 e

ff
o
rt

 b
u
t 
a
ls

o
 a

llo
w

 h
o
p

e
fu

l 
c
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e
d
. 
 

  4
. 
p
a

g
e
 2

2
. 
T

h
a
n
k
y
o
u
 f

o
r 

th
e
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 t
o
 t

h
e
 A

M
S

. 
M

ig
h
t 

it
 b

e
 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t
o

 a
d

d
 :
 "

(T
h
e
 A

M
S

 i
s
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

e
d
 w

it
h
 l
is

te
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 o

f 
a
ll 

a
g

e
s
 a

n
d

 a
ll 

ty
p

e
s
)"

 ?
 

      

F
a
c
tu

a
l 
c
o
rr

e
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 m

in
o
r 

a
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

 m
a
d
e
. 

127



1
5
) 

A
 L

 P
o
lla

rd
 

F
IR

S
T

 R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

: 
  In

 t
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 s

it
u
a
ti
o
n
 t

h
e
re

 s
e

e
m

s
 t
o
 m

e
 t
o
 b

e
 a

n
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

 r
is

k
 t
h
a
t 

w
h
e

n
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 o

n
 a

 l
o

c
a
lly

 l
is

te
d
 

b
u
ild

in
g
 l
e
s
s
 r

e
g

a
rd

 w
ill

 b
e

 p
a
id

 t
o
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 w

h
ic

h
 i
m

p
in

g
e
s
 o

n
 

c
o
s
t 
th

a
n
 n

o
rm

a
lly

. 
T

h
e
re

fo
re

 I
 t
h

in
k
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 S

P
D

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

s
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n
e

d
. 
A

lt
h

o
u
g

h
 i
t 
is

 i
m

p
lic

it
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
o
u
t 

th
e

 w
o
rd

 
'r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
' 
d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
s
e
e

m
 t
o
 a

p
p
e
a
r 

in
 t
h

e
 d

ra
ft

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t.
 I
 

s
u
g
g
e
s
t 
th

a
t 

in
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 
s
e
n
te

n
c
e
 a

ft
e
r 

'b
u

ild
in

g
s
' 
s
h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 

in
s
e
rt

e
d

  
'in

 c
a
rr

y
in

g
 o

u
t 
th

e
ir
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
e
s
 f

o
r'
. 

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

I 
n

o
te

 t
h
a
t 

lo
c
a

l 
lis

ti
n
g
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 
a
d

d
 a

n
y
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 b

u
t 
I 
s
u
g

g
e
s
t 

th
a
t 

 i
n
 p

a
ra

 
5
.1

 s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 a
d

d
e
d

 a
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
t 
to

 t
h
e
 e

ff
e
c
t 
th

a
t 

w
o
rk

 w
h
ic

h
 

d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
re

q
u
ir
e
 p

la
n
n

in
g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 s

h
o
u

ld
 n

o
t 

d
e
tr

a
c
t 
fr

o
m

 
th

e
 f

e
a
tu

re
s
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 w

h
ic

h
 q

u
a

lif
ie

d
 i
t 

fo
r 

lo
c
a
l 
lis

ti
n
g
. 

Ir
o
n
ic

a
lly

, 
I 
s
e

e
 t
h

a
t 
a

t 
th

e
 f

la
ts

 i
n
 C

a
p

e
l 
G

a
rd

e
n
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 f

e
a
tu

re
 

in
 2

 p
h

o
to

g
ra

p
h
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 d

ra
ft

 p
a
p

e
r,

 a
lt
h
o

u
g

h
 t
h

e
 T

V
 d

is
h
e
s
 

w
h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n

 a
d

d
e
d

 a
re

 c
o
m

p
a
ra

ti
v
e

ly
 i
n
c
o
n
s
p

ic
u

o
u
s
 t
h
e

 
c
a
b
lin

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

o
n

e
 w

it
h

 n
o
 r

e
g

a
rd

 f
o
r 

th
e
 a

rc
h
te

c
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
  

b
y
, 

fo
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
ru

n
n

in
g
 i
t 

b
e
h

in
d
 d

o
w

n
 p

ip
e

s
 o

r 
in

 
re

c
e
s
s
e
s
. 
T

h
e
 c

a
b
lin

g
 t
o
 N

o
 2

 i
s
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
 o

b
tr

u
s
iv

e
. 

 
 R

E
P

L
Y

 S
E

N
T

: 
2
3
/0

8
/2

0
1
3
 T

h
a
n
k
 y

o
u
 v

e
ry

 m
u
c
h
. 

 I 
h
a

v
e
 r

e
c
e

n
tl
y
 r

e
c
e

iv
e
d
 a

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 B

o
a
rd

 o
f 

C
a
p
e

l 
G

a
rd

e
n
s
 (

P
in

n
e
r)

 R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 L
im

it
e
d
 w

h
ic

h
 e

x
p
re

s
s
e
s
 v

ie
w

s
 t
h
a

t 
d
if
fe

r 
s
o
 I
 t
a
k
e
 i
t 
th

e
 b

o
a
rd

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 m
a
n

y
 b

u
t 
n

o
t 
a

ll 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

. 
 

 A
ll 

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 t
a
k
e
n
 i
n
to

 a
c
c
o
u
n
t.
 

 S
E

C
O

N
D

 R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

: 
S

e
n
t:
 2

3
 A

u
g
u
s
t 

2
0
1

3
  

T
h
e
 B

o
a
rd

 o
f 

C
a
p
e

l 
G

a
rd

e
n
s
 d

id
 n

o
t 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
 t
h

e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 

fl
a
ts

 n
o
r 

h
a

v
e
 t

h
e

y
 a

d
v
is

e
d

 u
s
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 s
o
 y

o
u
 a

re
 

u
n
d
o

u
b
te

d
ly

 c
o
rr

e
c
t 

in
 a

s
s
u
m

in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 v

ie
w

s
 d

o
 n

o
t 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ri
ly

 
re

p
re

s
e
n
t 
th

o
s
e
 o

f 
a
ll 

th
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

. 
  

S
in

c
e

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 l
e
g
a

l 
re

q
u

ir
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 c
a
re

 f
o
r 

a
 l
o
c
a
lly

 
lis

te
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
c
id

e
d
 n

o
t 
to

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 

to
 '
re

s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 l
o

c
a
lly

 l
is

te
d

 b
u

ild
in

g
s
'.
 T

h
e
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
c
la

ri
fi
e
s
 t
h

a
t 

w
o
rk

s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

th
a
t 

a
re

 
u
n
s
y
m

p
a
th

e
ti
c
 t
o
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
o
f 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
lly

 l
is

te
d
 b

u
ild

in
g

 
u
n
d
e
rm

in
e
 t
h

e
ir
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
in

te
re

s
t.
 

1
6
) 

J
 R

a
n
s
o

n
  

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 d

ra
ft

 S
P

D
 d

o
c
u

m
e
n
t.
 V

e
ry

 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
to

 h
a

v
e
 i
t.
 

  

128



1
7
) 

M
r 

J
a
m

e
s
 

M
c
a
n
d
re

w
  

 W
e
 d

o
 n

o
t 
fe

e
l 
4
0
 B

e
lm

o
n
t 
L
a
n
e

 w
a
rr

a
n
ts

 b
e
in

g
 l
o
c
a

lly
 l
is

te
d
. 

T
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
c
ri
te

ri
a

 i
s
 t
o

o
 b

ro
a
d
. 
O

u
r 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 i
s
 n

o
t 
o
f 

h
is

to
ri
c
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
c
e

 t
o
 w

a
rr

a
n
t 

it
. 

• 
T

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c

ri
te

ri
a

 f
o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
lis

ti
n

g
 a

re
 

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

w
it
h
 t
h

o
s
e
 h

e
ld

 s
in

c
e
 2

0
0
4

 b
y
 t
h

e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
e

n
tl
y
 s

u
p
e
rs

e
d
e

d
 H

a
rr

o
w

 
U

n
it
a
ry

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
. 

T
h
is

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
w

a
s
 

s
u
p
e
rs

e
d
e

d
 i
n
 M

a
y
 t

h
is

 y
e

a
r 

b
y
 t

h
e
 H

a
rr

o
w

 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
o

lic
ie

s
 L

o
c
a

l 
P

la
n
 

w
h
ic

h
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 
c
o
n

ta
in

 c
ri
te

ri
a
 f

o
r 

L
o
c
a

l 
L

is
ti
n

g
 

s
in

c
e
 s

u
c
h
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p

la
c
e
 o

f 
th

is
 d

ra
ft

 L
o
c
a
l 

L
is

ti
n
g
 S

P
D

. 
T

h
e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 

s
in

c
e
 a

n
d
 a

re
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 r

e
m

a
in

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 
a
s
 t
h
e

y
 a

re
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t
h

e
 E

n
g

lis
h
 H

e
ri
ta

g
e
's

 
‘G

o
o
d

 P
ra

c
ti
c
e
 G

u
id

e
 f

o
r 

L
o
c
a
l 
H

e
ri
ta

g
e
 L

is
ti
n
g

’ 
M

a
y
 2

0
1
2
 b

u
t 

h
a

v
e
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n
 e

x
p

a
n
d

e
d
 i
n
 l
in

e
 

w
it
h
 t

h
is

 E
n
g

lis
h
 H

e
ri

ta
g

e
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 t

o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 t

h
e
 

m
o
re

 r
e
le

v
a
n

t 
‘a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
fa

c
to

rs
’ 
fo

r 
c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

s
u
c
h
 a

s
 r

a
ri
ty

, 
th

e
ir
 r

e
la

ti
o
n

s
h
ip

 t
o
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 

la
n

d
s
c
a
p
e
s
, 
e

v
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
v
a

lu
e
 a

n
d
 t
e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
c
e

. 
 

• 
T

h
is

 b
u
ild

in
g
’s

 l
o
c
a

l 
lis

t 
d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o

n
 r

e
a

d
s
: 
‘b

ri
c
k
 

re
n
d
e
re

d
 b

u
ild

in
g
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d

 i
n
 1

9
1

2
 b

y
 G

o
d

d
a
rd

 
o
f 

G
o
d
d
a
rt

, 
P

a
g

e
t 
a

n
d
 G

o
d

d
a
rd

. 
T

h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
 h

a
s
 

a
n
 u

n
u
s
u
a

l 
s
o
u
th

 e
le

v
a
ti
o

n
 w

it
h
 a

rc
h
e
d
 w

in
d
o

w
 t

o
 

e
n
d
 g

a
b

le
d

 w
a

ll 
o
n
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
s
ts

 a
 w

id
e
 c

h
im

n
e

y
. 

C
a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
 w

it
h
 v

e
rt

ic
a

l 
ti
lin

g
 t
o

 u
p

p
e
r 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

g
a
b

le
 a

n
d
 s

ix
 p

a
n

e
d
 t

im
b
e
r 

c
a
s
e
m

e
n
t 
w

in
d
o

w
s
’.
 

T
h
is

 l
o
c
a
l 
lis

t 
d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 s

h
o

w
s
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
re

 w
a
s
 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t 
in

 t
h
e

 s
it
e
. 

A
 r

e
c
e
n
t 

s
it
e
 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 i
n
 t
a
c
t 

a
n
d

 
th

e
re

fo
re

 t
h

e
 l
o
c
a
l 
in

te
re

s
t 
re

m
a
in

s
. 
It
 i
s
 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 
c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

is
 b

u
ild

in
g
 s

ti
ll 

m
e
e
ts

 t
h
e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 

fo
r 

lo
c
a
l 
lis

ti
n
g
. 
 

 

• 
 T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 c
o
n
s
u

lt
 w

it
h
 l
o
c
a

l 
a

n
d
 n

a
ti
o
n

a
l 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 g

ro
u

p
s
 o

n
 t
h
e

 p
ro

p
o
s
a

l 
to

 d
e
-l

is
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
n

 m
a
k
e
 a

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n

 t
o
 t

h
e
 n

e
x
t 

L
D

F
 p

a
n
e

l.
 

  

129



1
8
) 

M
r.

 J
im

 M
o
ir
 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 d

ra
ft

 S
P

D
 d

o
c
u

m
e
n
t.
 T

h
e
 L

a
w

n
 E

lm
 P

a
rk

 R
o
a
d
. 

It
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e

 L
a

w
n
 s

in
g
u

la
r 

n
o

t 
p
lu

ra
l 
o
n
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a

l 
lis

t 
o
f 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 o

n
lin

e
. 
 

F
a
c
tu

a
l 
c
o
rr

e
c
ti
o
n

 m
a
d
e
 t
o
 t

h
e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t.
 

1
9
) 

M
r 

A
n
th

o
n

y
 H

 
W

o
o
d
le

y
 

T
h
a
n
k
 y

o
u
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
r 

le
tt

e
r 

1
8

.7
.1

3
. 
P

le
a
s
e

 k
e
e
p
 m

e
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 o

n
 

th
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 a

s
 I
 a

m
 t
h
e
 o

w
n

e
r 

o
f 

a
 l
o
c
a

lly
 

lis
te

d
 b

u
ild

in
g
. 

W
ill

 u
p
d
a
te

 r
e
s
p
o
n

d
e
e
 a

c
c
o
rd

in
g
ly

 i
n
 d

u
e
 c

o
u
rs

e
. 

1
9
) 

M
rs

 R
u
ff

 
I 
a
m

 p
le

a
s
e
d
 t

o
 n

o
te

 w
e
 a

re
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a

lly
 l
is

te
d
 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 l
is

t.
 I

 h
o

p
e
 y

o
u
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

Q
u
a
d
ra

n
g

le
 M

e
w

s
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 i
n
 

B
e
lm

o
n
t 
L

a
n
e
. 

N
o
te

d
. 

 

130



 

 Local Development Framework Panel - 3 October 2013 - 1 - 

 
APPENDIX 2  

 

LOCAL DEVELOPMENT 

FRAMEWORK PANEL   

MINUTES 

 

3 OCTOBER 2013 
 
 
Chairman: * Councillor Stephen Greek 
   
Councillors: * Marilyn Ashton 

* Keith Ferry 
* Thaya Idaikkadar  
 

* Bill Phillips 
* Navin Shah 
* Simon Williams 
 

* Denotes Member present 
  

RECOMMENDED ITEMS   
 

114. Locally Listed Buildings   
 
The Panel received a report which set out the results of a public consultation 
over the proposed draft Locally Listed Buildings Supplementary Planning 
Document. 
 
The Panel firstly received a Deputation from Mr Andy Tillsiter.  He explained 
that he had personal experience in trying to obtain planning permission for his 
dwelling which was a locally listed building.  He had encountered difficulties 
with applying for planning permission, which he was finally awarded having 
appealed to the Secretary of State. 
 
He believed that mistakes had been made by officers about the architectural 
history of the property and the extent of the original form of the house.  
 
Whilst he welcomed the current draft of the Locally Listed Buildings 
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD), he believed that further work was 
still required.  The current draft had failed to highlight the fact that just 
because a building is locally listed, this did not mean that the entire building 
was of architectural interests.  The draft needed to make this point clear and 

131



 

- 2 -  Local Development Framework Panel - 3 October 2013 

he had provided suggested wording to include in the SPD as contained in the 
report. 
 
An officer addressed the Panel and made the following comments: 
 

• It would be helpful if the SPD contained a clear statement in the 
introduction on the legal implications of locally listed buildings; 
 

• the aims and objectives of the SPD could be set out more clearly; 
 

• the list of locally listed buildings within the borough should be contained 
as an appendix to the SPD. 
 

Members of the Panel then made the following comments: 
 

• it was important to ensure that the SPD gave clear guidance to the 
public in relation to locally listed buildings.  The SPD had to be more 
clear; 
 

• the points raised in the deputation were correct and it was important 
that the SPD was used to support members of the public rather than be 
adversarial; 
 

• the list of locally listed buildings contained within the SPD was a good 
suggestion; 
 

• the SPD had been produced to inform people inhabiting locally listed 
buildings on what they should be considering.  It was originally 
intended that this would be circulated to all relevant inhabitants; 
 

• the SPD already made it clear what a locally listed building was and 
details regarding planning permission; 
 

• whilst the document did contain all the relevant information it still had to 
be drafted in a manner which was clear for members of the public to 
interpret. 
 

The Chair concluded the debate and commented that there was a consensus 
that the issues raised in the deputation had to be taken into account in the 
SPD.  It was important that consideration be given to this in addition to looking 
at ways to make the SPD more clear and including a list of locally listed 
buildings.  In light of that he proposed that changes be made to the SPD in 
consultation with him as the Chair and the nominated Members before 
submitting to Cabinet for approval. 
 
RESOLVED:  That changes be made to the Locally Listed Buildings SPD in 
consultation with the Chair and nominated Members prior to submission to 
Cabinet for approval. 

132



 

 

REPORT FOR: 

 

CABINET 
 

Date of Meeting: 

 

12 December 2013 

Subject: 

 

Authority Monitoring Report 

Key Decision: No 
  

Responsible Officer: 

 

Caroline Bruce, Corporate Director of 
Environment and Enterprise 
 

Portfolio Holder: 

 

Councillor Stephen Greek, Portfolio Holder 
for Planning, Development and Regeneration 
 

Exempt: 

 

No 
 

Decision subject to 

Call-in: 

 

Yes  

Enclosures: 

 

Appendix 1 – Authority Monitoring Report 
2012/13 - Due to the size of the appendix, 
it has been circulated in hard copy to 
Cabinet Members and Key Officers only. 
The appendix is available for viewing on 
the website  and  a hard copy has been 
placed in the Members’ Library 
 
 

 
 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 

 
This report presents the Authority’s Monitoring Report (AMR) for the period 1 
April 2012 to 31 March 2013.  The AMR monitors the effectiveness of the 
implementation of local planning policies and production of Harrow’s new 
Local Plan.  
 

 

Agenda Item 12
Pages 133 to 140

133



Recommendations:  
Cabinet is requested to: 
 

1. Approve the Authority Monitoring Report 2012/13, as attached at 
Appendix 1, for publication on the Council’s website. 

2. Recommend that authority be delegated to the Divisional Director of 
Planning, in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Planning and 
Regeneration, to make further minor changes to the Authority’s 
Monitoring Report prior to publication. 

 

Reason:  (For recommendation)  
To enable the Council to comply with the requirement under the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended). 
 

 

Section 2 – Report 
 
1. In accordance with the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 

2004 (as amended), the Council is required to prepare monitoring 
reports at least once a year and to make these available to the public. 
The Authority Monitoring Report (AMR) 2012/13, attached as Appendix 
1, and the recommendation to publish the report on the Council’s 
website, seeks to fulfil this statutory requirement.    
 

2. The preparation of the AMR will assist the Council to meet its corporate 
priorities by monitoring the statutory planning policy framework put in 
place to help deliver a cleaner, fairer and safer Harrow. 

 
 

Options considered   
 
3. This year’s Authority Monitoring Report (formerly known as the Annual 

Monitoring Report) is the first to monitor Harrow’s Core Strategy 
monitoring indicators which were adopted in February 2012. Existing 
indicators from previous reports which monitored saved Unitary 
Development Plan policies are included where relevant to the 
monitoring of the Local Plan.   

 
4. Council’s are required, under the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 

Act (2004) (as amended), to prepare reports on progress made in 
preparing the Local Plan and on the extent to which the policies set out 
in the Local Plan are being achieved, and to make such reports 
available to the public. The Localism Act gives flexibility as to when and 
how often such reports are prepared. For consistencies sake, it was 

134



 

decided to keep with established reporting timescales (yearly from 1 
April to 31 March) to enable continuing comparisons on key indicators 
over the years. New regulations enable the Council to produce an 
Authority Monitoring Report covering whatever timescale they prefer, 
as long as one is produced at least once a year. The existing 
arrangements were therefore selected over commencing a new 
monitoring regime. 

 

 
Background  
 
5. This is the ninth AMR that the Council has prepared.  All previous 

reports are made available to view and download from the Council’s 
website: http://www.harrow.gov.uk/planning 

 
6. The purpose of the AMR is to monitor the effectiveness of 

implementing local planning policies.  Progress is measured against a 
series of adopted local indictors from the Core Strategy as well as long 
established local monitoring targets. 

  

This years AMR 
 
7. The latest AMR provides an analysis of performance for the period 1 

April 2012 to 31 March 2013.  In doing so, it also draws upon the data 
gathered since 2005 where indicators are similar to the ones used to 
monitor Harrow’s saved UDP policies, which enables trends to be 
identified and conclusions to be reached about whether individual 
policies are achieving their intended outcomes or whether they, or our 
processes, need to be modified or revisited. The AMR also monitors 
the Council’s progress in preparing its Local Plan documents. 

 

Summary of key findings from this years AMR 
 
8.  The following provides a brief summary of the main findings in the 

2012/13 AMR: 
 

• Most indicators are being met, or are on target to be met 

• 736 net new homes were completed last year, well over the target of 
350 per annum.  

• Large sites delivering housing were Honeypot Lane (a further 163 
units), Peel Road (45 Units), Neptune Point (146 Units), Railway 
Approach (34 Units), Goodwill to All (42 Units), Mill Farm Close (63 
units), Rayners Lane Estate phase F (27 Units), Douglas Close (31 
Units) and Strongbridge Close (40 Units). 

• 330 affordable units were delivered against a plan target of 140 per 
annum. Of all residential dwellings delivered over the year, 45% were 
affordable housing. 

• Over the plan period to date Harrow has delivered 2,127 units against 
a cumulative London Plan target of 1,500. Over the same period 819 
were affordable - this equates to 39% of all units. 

135



 

• There continues to be a loss of office space in the Borough of -
3,220m2, as older stock gets redeveloped. The level of office loss is 
likely to increase significantly in the next monitoring period due to office 
to residential Permitted Development coming into effect in May 2013. 

• Since 2009 (the beginning of the plan period), there has been a net 
increase in retail floorspace of 5,623 sqm of which 1,992 was 
completed in the last year 

• North Harrow centre which was previously the centre with the 
Boroughs highest vacancy rate at over 40%, has dramatically 
improved, and now has a vacancy rate at around 6% which is the 
Borough average. 

• All key Green Grid projects for last year were completed successfully 

• Public Transport improvements including bus stop and priority lanes, 
and work on key junctions are underway  

• There has been no loss of Green Belt or Metropolitan Open Land 
contrary to Local Plan objectives 

• Local Plan documents and Community Infrastructure Levy adopted in 
accordance with the Local Development Scheme timetable 

 

Further Editorial Requirements 
 
9. In preparing the draft AMR for Cabinet’s consideration, officers have 

focused on ensuring all required data fields are as complete as 
possible. This year’s AMR necessarily includes a new document 
structure than previous AMR’s as this is the first to report on the new 
set of Local Plan indicators. Resource constraints have meant that it 
has not be possible to undertaken the normal illustration of the new 
data through the production of graphs and maps. Prior to publishing 
the document, officers will therefore populate the document with 
graphics and maps to aid in the visual interpretation of the data 
provided and also intend to add photos to enhance the appearance of 
the document. Where necessary, further minor amendments to a 
number of the indictors may still be required as better data becomes 
available. 

 
Implications of the Recommendation 
 

Legal Implications 
 
10.  Pursuant to Section 35 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 

2004 (as amended), and Regulation 34 of the Town and Country 
Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 the Council is 
required to prepare reports monitoring the Council’s performance in 
preparing its new Local Plan and on the extent to which local plan 
policies are being achieved. The Council is also required to make its 
monitoring reports available to the public.   

 

136



 

Financial Implications 
 
11.  Costs associated with preparing the AMR 2012/13 relate to staff time 

and are contained within existing budgets. There are no additional 
costs involved with making the AMR available on the Council’s website. 

 
Performance Issues 
 
12. The AMR reports on Council’s performance against new and existing 

local indicators but does not itself impact on these. However, the 
primary role of the AMR is to highlight areas of challenge through data 
analysis, and is therefore a key to informing and underpinning Council 
decisions as to whether or not action needs to be taken to address 
areas of concern. 

  
13. The monitoring data, including the analysis of trends, is also widely 

used by different service areas, for example as background justification 
supporting bids for external funding and for use in determining likely 
levels of grant based upon matters such as housing completions for 
New Homes Bonus. Many external organisations also rely on the data 
to inform regional or national studies regarding the health of town 
centres or area comparisons, such as changes in office and industrial 
floorspace. These can often help inform the investment decisions of the 
private sector but are primarily used to inform changes to national and 
regional planning policy. 

  

Environmental Impact 
 
14. The AMR reports on the state of Harrow’s environment, highlighting 

performance against targets and the achievement of policy outcomes.  
However, there are no environmental impacts associated with its 
production or publication on the Council’s website. 

 

Risk Management Implications 
 
Risk included on Directorate risk register?  Yes 
  
Separate risk register in place?  Yes 
  
15. The only implication of the AMR is where year-on-year data shows 

that the Council is unlikely to achieve a specific target.  In such 
circumstances there will be an expectation that the Council will take 
action to address the situation.  Where local indicators are concerned, 
the preparation or revision through plan review of the emerging Local 
Plan affords this opportunity.   

 

Equalities implications 
 
Was an Equality Impact Assessment carried out?  No  
 

137



 

16. The AMR does not in itself contain any policies.  Issues regarding 
equalities and diversity are to be considered in the context of preparing 
local planning policies but are not relevant to the AMR, which merely 
monitors the performance of implementing such policies.  

 

Priorities 
 
17. The AMR does not propose policies or actions that give effect to the 

corporate priorities.  However, it does collate data gathered by the 
Council and its partners that is useful in monitoring performance 
associated with: 

 

• a safer Harrow – including transport initiatives aimed at reducing 
incidents of road accidents and casualties, including 20mph zones and 
the completion of school travel plans. 

• a fairer Harrow – including deprivation indices, market and affordable 
housing delivery, estates renewal and the expansion of community 
facilities. 

• a cleaner Harrow – including air quality, waste management, the use of 
renewable energy, biodiversity and environmental protection.  

 
 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Jessie Mann X  Chief Financial Officer 

  
Date: 18 November 2013 

   

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Abiodun Kolawole X  Monitoring Officer 

 
Date: 18 November 2013 

   
 

 

Section 4 – Performance Officer Clearance 
 

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Martin Randell X  Divisional Director 

  
Date: 18 November 2013 

  Strategic 
Commissioning 

 
 

138



 

Section 5 – Environmental Impact Officer 

Clearance 
 

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Andrew Baker X  Corporate Director 

  
Date: 18 November 2013 

  (Environment & 
Enterprise) 

 

Section 6 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 
 

Contact:  Matthew Paterson, Senior Professional Policy Planning, 

Environment and Enterprise  
Tel: 020 8736 6082 
 
 

Background Papers:  The AMR’s for the periods 2004/05, 2005/06, 

2006/07, 2007/08, 2008/09, 2009/10, 2010/11 and 2011/12.  These are all 
made available to view and download from the Council’s website: 

www.harrow.gov.uk/planning  

 

Call-In Waived by the 

Chairman of Overview 

and Scrutiny 

Committee 

 

  
NOT APPLICABLE 
 
 
[Call-in applies] 
 
 

 

 

139



140

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

1 
 

REPORT FOR: CABINET 
  

Date of Meeting: 

 

12 December 2013 

Subject: 

 

Draft Housing Revenue Account Budget 
2014-15 and Medium Term Financial 
Strategy 2015-16 to 2017-18 
 

Key Decision:  Yes 
 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Simon George, Director of Finance and 
Assurance 
Paul Najsarek, Corporate Director of 
Community, Health and Wellbeing  
 

Portfolio Holder: 

 

Councillor Barry Macleod-Cullinane, Deputy 
Leader and Portfolio Holder for Adults and 
Housing 
Councillor Tony Ferrari, Portfolio Holder for 
Finance 
 

Exempt: No 
 

Decision subject to 

Call-in: 

 

Yes 

Enclosures: 

 

Appendix 1 – HRA Budget 2014-15 
Appendix 2 – Average Rents & Service 
Charges (Tenants) 
Appendix 3 – Garage & Parking Space 
Charges  
Appendix 4 – Facility Charges 
Appendix 5 – Water charges 
Appendix 6 – Community Centre Charges 
Appendix 7 – Capital Programme 
Appendix 8 – Performance data 
 

 

Agenda Item 13
Pages 141 to 162

141



2 
 

 
Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 

 
This report sets out the Draft Housing Revenue Account (“HRA”) Budget for 
2014-15 and Medium Term Financial Strategy (“MTFS”) for 2015-16 to 2017-18. 
 
Recommendations: 
 

1) That Cabinet approves the draft HRA Budget for consultation; 
2) That cabinet approves, for consultation, the proposed increase of 5.1% to 

housing rent charges for 2014-15, resulting in an average rent of £112.43 
per week for 2014-15; 

3) That Cabinet approves for consultation the proposed increases in facility 
and water charges set out in appendix 4 and 5;  

4) That cabinet approves the draft four year capital programme for 
consultation.  
 

Final approval will be sought from Cabinet and Council in February. 
  

5) That Cabinet notes the government’s proposals to change national rent 
policy from 2015-16 onwards.  

 
Reason:  (For recommendation) 
To publish the draft HRA budget and capital programme for consultation 
 

 

Section 2 – Report 
 
Introductory paragraph 
 
The Council has a statutory obligation to agree and publish the HRA budget for 2014-15, 
and approval for this will be sought in February 2014. This report sets out the draft 
budget proposals along with the draft MTFS to 2017-18, which sets out the indicative 
income and expenditure for the HRA for this period and shows how the income collected 
will be spent in the management and maintenance of the Council’s stock and in meeting 
its landlord obligations.  The draft MTFS indicates a sustainable position in the medium 
term, consistent with the 30 year HRA business plan approved by Cabinet in June 2013. 
 
Background 
 

1. Cabinet received a report in June 2013 that set out the 30-year business 
plan for the HRA. The business plan was supported by a draft Asset 
Management Strategy and an Affordable Housing strategy, and set out a 
30-year forecast of the income and expenditure anticipated to occur within 
the HRA, based on an agreed set of assumptions.  
 

2. The starting point for the business plan was the HRA budget and MTFS 
approved by Cabinet in February 2013, and the first four years of the plan 
mirrored the MTFS. Thereafter, a set of fairly prudent assumptions were 
used to project income and expenditure for the remainder of the 30-year 
period. The cash flows resulting from the projections indicated that the 
HRA was in a very sound position and was forecast to generate significant 

142



3 
 

balances over the life of the business plan. Following a review of options 
available to the Council to deliver new affordable housing, in the light of the 
forecasts a decision was therefore taken to commence a modest 
development programme of new housing within the HRA.  

 
3. The business plan was intended to form a framework within which future 

budgets would be set, and the draft budget and MTFS information 
contained within this report are largely in line with the forecasts contained 
within the business plan approved in June. Some minor variations have 
resulted from changes in inflation used to calculate rent increases, 
additional Right-to-Buy sales above the levels previously assumed 
(resulting from significantly increased discounts), and from pressures within 
some of the budgets. This is to be expected, as the business plan should 
be a guide to future budgets, and must retain the ability to flex to meet 
changing requirements. 

 
4. A further change that has the potential to impact on the HRA is the 

government consultation currently underway in respect of proposed 
changes to national rent-setting policy. The proposals were first announced 
as part of the 2013 Spending Review, and the consultation papers were 
published on 31st October 2013. The proposals are to change the basis of 
the annual rent increase from Retail Prices Index (RPI) + 0.5% + £2 to 
Consumer Prices Index (CPI) + 1% from 2015-16 onwards. This has a two-
fold effect: 

 

• Firstly it means that the rent convergence process that has been 
going on since 2001 will cease after the 2014-15 increase. For Harrow this 
will mean that we will be collecting less money than would otherwise have 
been the case over the short to medium term as we will not be able to 
complete our convergence process which was assumed to continue in the 
business plan.  
 

• Secondly, there could be a long-term impact depending on the 
differential between RPI and CPI. The government is basing its 
assumptions on a differential of 0.5%, but historically the differential has 
been more along the lines of 0.8%. The government has commissioned 
some work to review the respective calculations of RPI and CPI with a view 
to removing any elements that would otherwise skew the indices, but until 
the outcome of this is clear there is a risk that this could impact on our 
projections 
 
It should be noted that we had already assumed that some form of 
reduction in the long-term inflation uplift would in all probability be 
implemented by the government and so had used fairly pessimistic 
assumptions in constructing the business plan. In addition, we had 
assumed an RPI figure of 2.5% for 2014-15 whereas the actual figure to be 
used is 3.2%. The combined impact of these this is that we are not nearly 
as badly affected as we might otherwise be, and the HRA remains in a 
sound position. For the purposes of this draft budget, we have however 
used the least-favourable of the alternative rent scenarios modelled so far, 
but will be consulting on which of the various scenarios currently modelled, 
or indeed any alternatives should be used in our forecasts.  
 
 

143



4 
 

 
5. As a result of the improvement in the annual finances, it has been possible 

to invest more than £2m to date in delivering the following benefits to 
tenants:  

 

• Further investment in operational services  

• Further investment in the stock  

• Works to improve the energy efficiency of the Council’s stock 

• The ability to maintain safe balances 

• To commence a development programme of new affordable Housing 
within the HRA 

• Over the longer term, to consider the repayment of HRA debt. 
 

6. The draft HRA budget and MTFS detailed in Appendix 1, is based on these 
principles, and is consistent with the approved 30 year business plan for 
the HRA approved by Cabinet in June 2013.  The HRA budget proposed 
reflects the costs of delivering services at current levels and takes account 
of areas of identified pressures and savings.  

 
7. The key assumptions that continue to underpin the financial strategy are set 

out in the following sections. 
 

Consultation 
 

8. Under s.105 of the Housing Act 1985, the Council is required to maintain 
arrangements as it considers appropriate to enable secure tenants to be 
informed and consulted about housing management matters which 
substantially affect them.  However, rent and other charges for facilities are 
specifically excluded from the definition of housing management; therefore 
there is no statutory requirement to consult secure tenants on proposed 
rent changes. The Council has however, always consulted through the 
Tenants Leaseholders and Residents Consultative Forum (TLRCF). 

 
9. The Tenants’ Leaseholders and Residents Consultative Forum (TLRCF) 

have the remit to consider and submit observations to Cabinet on the 
annual HRA budget and in particular on the consequent rent implications. 
We will therefore be submitting a report to TLRCF setting out the draft 
budget and proposals for rents to seek their views. 

 

Balances 
 

10. HRA Balances are currently forecast to be £3.8m at the end of March 
2014. The draft budget estimates that balances in the region of £4.6m will 
remain at the end of March 2015, partly due to the assumed use of receipts 
from RTB sales to fund capital expenditure, which has resulted in a 
reduced need for contributions from revenue. In addition, increased 
depreciation charges in the last two years have already had the effect of 
moving resources out of the revenue account and into the Major Repair 
Reserve for capital funding purposes, meaning less contributions from 
revenue are now required.  

 
11. Over the period of the draft MTFS, balances are estimated to increase to 

around £6.6m, or 20% of gross annual income. Decisions regarding future 
levels of balances need to be taken in conjunction with considerations 

144



5 
 

around future levels of capital investment, availability of Right-to-Buy 
receipts for use in the HRA, the Council’s plans for new affordable housing 
as these become more developed, and the potential impact of welfare 
reform as the proposals are phased in. It is felt that a prudent minimum 
level of balances would be in the region of 5-7% of gross income, 
approximately £1.5 - £2.0m in today’s prices, though this will depend on the 
level of risk at any given point and will need to be reviewed periodically.  

 
Income 
 
Dwelling rents 

 
12. Current Government policy intends that by the end of 2015-16 similar 

properties in the same area will have similar rents even if owned by 
different social landlords. The aim is to deliver fairer rents, and greater 
transparency and choice for tenants. This is generally referred to as rent 
convergence. The government, however, is currently consulting on 
proposals to change national rent policy from 2015-16 onwards, and 
therefore 2014-15 may be the last year that rents continue to be set on the 
current basis. 

 
13. The rental strategy approved by Cabinet and Council in March 2011, was 

based on a continuation of Government rent policy which assumes 
individual rents will increase annually by no more than RPI + 0.5% + £2, 
and we have assumed that this would apply for 2014-15, though this will be 
subject to consultation. At the time that this year’s budget was set, it was 
assumed that RPI would be 2.5%, but the September 2013 RPI figure 
which must be used to set 2014-15 rents was actually 3.2%. 

 
14. As indicated above, we have assumed that current rent policy would be 

followed for 2014-15, i.e. rent convergence. This results in an average rent 
increase of 5.1% in 2014-15, meaning an average rent of £112.43 per 
week (the 2013-14 current average is £107.00). Average rents and service 
charges under the existing strategy are detailed in appendix 2. 

 

Alternative Rent Options 
 

15. Given that the government is consulting on proposals to change the way in 
which rent increases are calculated in the future, and to stop rent 
convergence before all properties have achieved rent convergence (but 
allow re-lets to be at target rent), alternative options for rent setting in 2014-
15 have not yet been considered as we have been focusing on 2015-16 
and beyond. 
 

16. As indicated above, the HRA business plan approved by Cabinet on 20th 
June 2013 was formulated on the basis of a prudent long term inflation 
figure, which was 2%, with rents being forecast to continue convergence, 
but then to increase by this lower figure plus 0.5%. On this basis the HRA 
was forecast to generate cumulative balances of £168m by year 30 of the 
plan.  

 
17. In the light of the consultation, it is clear that, subject to whether the 

government is successful in closing the RPI/CPI differential to 0.5%, we 
could now potentially afford to be less pessimistic in our rental inflation 

145



6 
 

assumptions. We have therefore modelled a range of scenarios based on 
the approved business plan to illustrate the potential financial impact of 
changes to national rent policy as follows: 
 

• Continuation of current rent policy, i.e. convergence with target rents 
using an updated September 2013 RPI figure of 3.2% (previously 
2.5%), and assuming a long-term RPI figure of 2.5% instead of the 
2% used previously; 

 

• Cessation of rent convergence after 2014-15, but assuming long 
term increases of RPI + 0.5%; 

 

• Full implementation of the proposed rent policy, assuming the 
RPI/CPI differential is reduced to 0.5%; and 

 

• Full implementation of the proposed rent policy assuming it is not 
possible to reduce the RPI/CPI differential to 0.5%, i.e. assuming a 
figure of 0.8%. 

 
The potential impact of the above changes is set out in the table below: 

Rental assumptions 
HRA 

balance at 
year 5 

HRA 
balance at 

year 10 

HRA 
balance at 

year 30 

Variance 
to 20 
June 

balance 

Variance 
to revised 

balance 

 
Business plan 20 June 
2013 

£6.4m £16.8m £167.8m Nil Nil 

Continue current 
policy: 
Sept RPI = 3.2% 
Long-term RPI = 2.5% 

£7.6m £22.8m £268.8m +£101.0m Nil 

Cease rent 
convergence 
Long-term RPI 2.5% 

£6.3m £19.0m £254.2m +£86.4m -£14.6m* 

Implement proposed 
rent policy 
Wedge = 0.5% 

£6.3m £18.9m £251.7m +£83.9m -£17.1m* 

Implement proposed 
rent policy 
Wedge = 0.8% 

£5.7m £15.2m £189.1m +£21.3m -£79.7m* 

* variance relative to scenario 1 – continuation of current policy with revised inflation 

assumptions 
 

18. It should be noted that the figures above are illustrative and have been 
included here to demonstrate the potential impact of the government’s 
proposals. The business plan will be re-stated once the budget is more 
certain and the final impact on the plan can then be assessed. It should, 
however, not differ significantly from the figures shown above. 
 

19. It can be seen from the above that relatively small variations in inflation 
assumptions, if they are sustained, can have a significant impact on 
balances over the life of the business plan. Indeed, just revising our original 
business plan assumptions for the September 2013 RPI figure and a 0.5% 
higher RPI figure is projected to increase the year-30 balance by £101m.  

146



7 
 

 
20. Removing rent convergence but assuming a continuation of rent increases 

at RPI + 0.5% would lead to a reduction in the year-30 balance in the region 
of £14.6m from the above position, due to the cumulative effect of being 
unable to achieve rent convergence. 
 

21. Implementation of the full terms of the proposed new rent policy would 
reduce year 30 balances by £17.1m if we assume that the government was 
successful in reducing the CPI/RPI differential from its long-term historic 
average of 0.8% to 0.5%. If, however, it was unsuccessful in reducing the 
wedge, the year 30 balance would be reduced by just under £80m. 

 
22. It is clear that HRA is still in a very healthy state, and would be even after 

the proposed changes to rent policy, assuming they are implemented.The 
consultation is not due to end until 24th December 2013, and so we will not 
know the final outcome until the final budget report has been drafted. We 
therefore need to make a decision about the strategy we should adopt 
pending the outcome of the consultation. 
 

23. Whilst some on the scenarios are projected to have a significant impact on 
the business plan, because of the assumptions we had previously used, we 
are not projected to be any worse off over the long-term, and only slightly 
worse off over the short term if we assume the most pessimistic of the 
scenarios. Even under this scenario we would still be able to deliver on the 
new-build proposals currently in development.  
 

24. For the purposes of producing a draft budget, the recommendation is that 
we use the most pessimistic of the above scenarios (new policy, RPI/CPI 
differential = 0.8%) as a starting point for further discussion and 
consultation around rental strategies as this effectively represents a worst-
case scenario. It may be that there are alternative scenarios which could to 
be considered, and these can be developed over the next month or so. 

 
Right-to-Buy sales 
 

25. There have been eleven sales under Right-to-Buy so far in 2013-14 as a 
result of new discounts and a further nine sales are anticipated by the year 
end. A stock level of 4,931 at the start of April 2014 is therefore assumed.  It 
is envisaged the HRA will continue to be viable if Right-to-Buy sales 
continue at these levels. There is potentially a risk issue if we experience a 
sustained increase in sales and this is referenced in the risk section at 
paragraph 50. 

 
Service charges: Tenants & Leaseholders 

 
26. Tenants who benefit from specific estate based services will pay a charge 

to the Council on a weekly basis in addition to their weekly rent charge.  
This service charge will increase by 3.7% on average resulting in an 
average weekly charge of £2.85 (2013-14 current service charge £2.75), an 
increase of £0.10 on the current weekly charge.   

  
27. Leaseholders are no longer charged an estimated service charge but are 

invoiced annually by the end of September for the previous financial year, 
based on actual recovery of costs (resulting in the leasehold financial year 

147



8 
 

spanning the 30th Sept to 31st August rather than the financial year of 1st 
April to 31st March)  Leaseholders are required to settle these invoices 
within 30 days, but in practice the challenge process and the payment 
options available to leaseholders results in some leaseholders not settling 
their accounts until well into the following  financial year. The total income 
expected to be recovered from leaseholders in 2014-15 (excluding s20 
income in relation to capital schemes) is £489k and reflects the recovery of 
costs associated with estate based costs, communal lighting, repairs, 
ground maintenance, insurance premiums and administration charges.  

 
Other income 

 
28. Historically other rental income from garages, car parking, and facilities 

charges are recommended to increase by an annual percentage, consistent 
with fees & charges across the Council.  The charge for garage rents has 
been held since 2011-12 pending finalisation of the Garage Strategy 
Review. Given that the review has been stalled for some time (with the 
exception of developing infill opportunities), we are proposing to continue 
this policy by freezing rents for HRA garages and car parking pending 
finalisation of the review. We anticipate that the outcome of the Garage 
Strategy Review may include alternative pricing strategies for garages and 
car parking, and that a further report will be presented following completion 
of this work. 
 

29. Details of the proposed rents for garages and parking, facility charges and 
charges for community centres are set out in appendices 3, 4, 5 and 6 
respectively. 

 
Expenditure 
 
Employee Costs 
 

30.  The HRA budgets are based on the staffing establishment, and assume a 
pay increase of 1% in 2014/15, and 2% annually thereafter.  
 

31. Salary allocations between the HRA and the General Fund have been 
reviewed but no changes are currently necessary. 

 

Utility Costs 
 

32. These budgets have been uplifted in 2013-14 by 10%, 5% subsequently, as 
this is the corporate assumption on the general level of increases for utilities 
costs. 

 
Central Recharges 

 
33. The costs of central recharges have currently been assumed to increase by 

1.5% pending finalisation of the recharges figures.  
 

Repairs  
 

34. Repairs budgets are largely unchanged from the original estimates, with 
some minor virements between budgets.  

 

148



9 
 

Charges for Capital  
 

35. Capital charges to the HRA are assumed to continue to be charged at the 
rate of 4.2978% of the HRA borrowing from the General Fund of £149.6m.   
 

36. As part of the ongoing business planning activity, consideration will be given 
to the ability to repay debt, and to reduce capital charges to the HRA. 
Interest rate risk is one of the key risks associated with the longer term 
planning of the HRA finances, and whilst the risk is relatively small as the 
loans pool is predominantly comprised of long-term fixed rate loans, the 
main risk will be as a result of the rates available as existing loans are re-
financed on maturity.  
 

37. Interest on HRA balances, including the Major Repairs Reserve are 
expected to be earned at a rate of 0.73% for 2014-15. 
 

Capital Investment 
 

38. The HRA capital programmes for 2014-15 to 2016-17 are as approved by 
Cabinet in February 2013, with the addition of the budgets for new 
affordable housing approved by Cabinet in June 2013. The capital 
programme for 2017-18 is as per the approved business plan (Cabinet June 
2013), and the draft four-year programme is attached as Appendix 7. 
 

39. To ensure an element of flexibility within the housing investment 
programme, Housing Services propose to use the scheme of delegation to 
implement variations to the HRA Capital programme within agreed limits 
and following appropriate consultation, to meet the requirements of the 
Housing Asset Management Strategy and ensure delivery against 
programme can be maximised. As is currently the case, the HRA Capital 
programme would continue to be funded from HRA revenue resources, and 
therefore any such variations would not affect the Council’s borrowing 
position or General Fund resources.  

 
Impairment Allowance 
 

40. Current tenant arrears continue to reduce. However, whilst a number of 
payment arrangements have been agreed for former tenant arrears, former 
tenant arrears remain high and require a significant level of provision. The 
continuing welfare benefit changes are likely to have an impact on arrears, 
although it is difficult to quantify at this stage.  The annual provision is 
budgeted to rise from its 2013-14 level of £300k to £400k in 2014-15 to 
reflect the expected impact of the welfare changes, then dropping to £300k 
per annum in subsequent years. 

 
General Contingency 
 

41. In addition to the HRA balances, an annual amount of £200k is set aside to 
cover unforeseen expenditure that may arise in the management and 
maintenance of the housing stock.   

 
Variation to MTFS 2014-15 
 

42. The MTFS approved by Cabinet and Council in March 2013 estimated an in 
year surplus of £0.300m for 2014-15. The proposed budget changes result 

149



10 
 

in a surplus of £0.852m. The increase in surplus of £0.552m is explained 
below : 

 

• -£0.223m - Dwelling rents & service charges increased, due largely to the  
 application of the September RPI of 3.2% as opposed to the 2.5% assumed 
in the original estimate 

 

• -£0.058m – SSCs reduced due largely to the reduction in recharges from  
 the Council’s anti-fraud unit as a result of changes in the way sub letting is  
 combatted 
 

• -£1.180m – revenue contributions to the capital programme have reduced  
 from original estimates due to an increased capacity of the Major Repairs 
Reserve (MRR) to finance capital expenditure. This is largely the result of 
technical changes in the treatment of depreciation agreed with the Council’s 
auditors which requires an increased depreciation charge which is 
transferred into the MRR. 

 

• +0.485m – depreciation charge increased as a result of technical changes  
 agreed with Council’s auditors (see above). 
 

• +0.300m – expenditure for affordable housing programme to be delivered  
 over next two years expected to be higher than originally estimated. 

 

• +0.081m – increased incentives for downsizing are required for 2014-15 to  
 build in greater flexibility in the available dwelling stock for larger families 
 

• +0.068m – increased expenditure on estates and sheltered accommodation  
 as a result of increased utilities charges, grounds maintenance and 
caretaking costs 

 
Summary 
 

43. The HRA Budget and MTFS detailed in Appendix 1 continues to reflect the 
significantly improved position reported in last year’s budget as a result of 
HRA reform. The 30-year HRA business plan approved by Cabinet in June 
2013 has been used as the framework within which this budget has been 
developed, and the outcome of the budget process will be used to re-state 
the business. Current forecasts suggest that significant balances are likely 
to be generated within the HRA over the period of the business plan, 
depending on expenditure and income decisions made in the future, with 
current levels of projected investment expenditure being fully funded over 
this period. This remains an extremely positive position for the Council to be 
able to report and will enable the Council to meet both the challenges faced 
by the service from the Government changes and the increasing 
expectations of its tenants and Members.  

 

Legal Implications 
 
44.  Section 105 of the Housing Act 1985 requires a landlord authority to 

maintain such arrangements as it considers appropriate to enable those 
secure tenants who are likely to be substantially affected by matters of 
housing management, to be informed and consulted about them, and 
before deciding on the matter, the landlord authority has to consider any 

150



11 
 

representations made.  However, rent and other charges for facilities are 
specifically excluded from the definition of housing management and 
therefore there is no statutory requirement to consult secure tenants on 
proposed rent changes.  However, as noted earlier in this report, the 
Council has historically consulted the Tenants Leaseholders and Residents 
Consultative Forum (TLRCF) and intends to do so again.  

 

Equalities Implications 
 

45. Pursuant to the Equality Act 2010 (“the Act”), the council, in the exercise of 
its functions, has to have ‘due regard’ to (i) eliminating discrimination, 
harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is prohibited by or 
under the Act; (ii) advancing equality of opportunity between those with a 
relevant protected characteristic and those without; and (iii) fostering good 
relations between those with a relevant protected characteristic and those 
without.  The relevant protected characteristics are age, race, disability, 
gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, religion or belief, sex and 
sexual orientation.  The duty also covers marriage and civil partnership, but 
to a limited extent. 
 

46. When making decisions, the Council must take account of the equality duty 
and in particular any potential impact on protected groups.  The equality 
impacts of the recommended rent increase option will be assessed via an 
Equalities Impact Assessment being undertaken, and the results being 
incorporated in the February Cabinet report following consultation with our 
tenant, leaseholder and resident representative groups on the proposal. 
This will take account of the ongoing implications for tenants of welfare 
reform and the single room subsidy benefit changes. Overall there is no 
proposed change to the current rent policy.  

 

Financial Implications 
 

47. Financial matters are integral to this report 

 
Performance Implications 
 

48. During Q2 of 2013/14 we have successfully sustained, and in many areas 
improved performance despite the impacts of welfare reform beginning to 
bite.  We continue to proactively work with those most affected by the 
welfare reform changes to mitigate where possible, the impact and to 
manage budgetary demands arising from the reforms as well as customer 
needs and expectations. A snapshot of the Q2 performance data for HRA 
related services is attached as Appendix 8.   

 

Environmental Impact 
 

49. The HRA Budget 2014-15 includes investment in a number of areas that 
will improve the energy efficiency of the Council’s housing stock and thus 
make a contribution towards delivering the Council’s Climate Change 
Strategy. The Asset Management Strategy action plan that is being 
developed is intended to address elements of the “Delivering Warmer 
Homes” (HECA) strategy which was reported to DECC in March 2013. The 
investment, and additionally will take account of the potential impact of the 
ECO funding deal currently being finalised negotiated with British Gas and 

151



12 
 

any other initiatives impacting on the energy performance of the Council’s 
housing stock. 

 

Risk Management Implications 
 

50. The key risks which should be highlighted, and which are referenced in the 
main body of the report, are those associated with the changes in the RTB 
arrangements and, for the longer HRA business plan, interest rate risk.  
Whilst these are real risks to the HRA these are not considered to be 
significant in the short term. 
 

51. These risks are detailed on the Housing risk register. 

 
Corporate Priorities 
 
The report is in line with Corporate Priorities.  
 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name:  Simon George X  Chief Financial Officer 

  
Date: 15 November 2013 
 

   

    
on behalf of the 

Name: Paresh Mehta X  Monitoring Officer 

 
Date: 19 November 2013 

   
 

 

Section 4 – Performance Officer Clearance 
 

  
 

 
 

 
On behalf of the  

Name: Martin Randall X  Divisional Director 

  
Date: 29 November 2013 

  Strategic Commissioning 

 

Section 5 – Environmental Impact Officer Clearance 
 

 
 

   
On behalf of the  

Name: Andrew Baker X  Corporate Director 

  
Date: 29 November 2013 

  (Environment & Enterprise) 

152



13 
 

 

Section 6 - Contact Details and Background Papers 
 

Contact:   
Dave Roberts, Finance Business Partner – Housing Services 
Tel: 0208 420 9678 (Ext 5678) 
 

Background Papers:  
• Housing Business Plan Report to Cabinet June 2013 

 

 

Call-In Waived by the 

Chairman of Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee 

 
 

  
NOT APPLICABLE 
 
 
[Call-in applies] 
 
 

 

153



14 
 

Appendix 1 
HRA Budget 2014-15 and MTFS 2015-16 to 2017-18 – Expenditure 
 

All figures in £s Budget 
2014-15 
(proposed) 

Budget 
2015-16 
(proposed) 

Budget 
2016-17 
(proposed) 

Budget 
2017-18 
(proposed) 

Operating Expenditure:        

Employee Costs 2,435,160 2,461,850 2,489,060 2,516,800 

Supplies & Services 913,260 844,020 858,900 874,080 

Utility cost (Water & Gas) 642,000 669,550 698,380 728,560 

Estate & Sheltered 
Services 

2,744,290 2,870,650 2,934,640 3,000,300 

Central Recharges 3,439,750 3,522,580 3,607,400 3,694,270 

Operating Expenditure 10,174,460 10,368,650 10,588,380 10,814,010 

Repairs Expenditure:         

Repairs - Voids 874,390 881,770 899,410 917,400 

Repairs - Responsive 3,192,790 3,257,900 3,323,060 3,389,520 

Repairs – Other 2,380,430 2,430,360 2,481,250 2,533,110 

Repairs Expenditure 6,447,610 6,570,030 6,703,720 6,840,030 

Other Expenditure:         

Contingency - General 236,280 233,310 234,170 238,850 

Investment in Services 223,750 208,780 193,560 197,430 

Impairment allowance 400,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 

RCCO - - 1,871,930 2,437,360 

Affordable Housing 300,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 

Grants to Move 162,870 161,450 159,320 157,130 

Charges for Capital 6,399,900 6,400,420 6,375,700 6,331,680 

Depreciation 6,588,880 6,562,260 6,535,640 6,509,020 

Other Expenditure  14,311,680 13,966,220 15,770,320 16,271,470 

      

Total Expenditure 30,933,750 30,904,900 33,062,420 33,925,510 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

154



15 
 

Appendix 1 (continued) 
HRA Budget 2014-15 and MTFS 2015-16 to 2017-18 - Income 
 

All figures in £s Budget 
2014-15 
(proposed) 

Budget 
2015-16 
(proposed) 

Budget 
2016-17 
(proposed) 

Budget 
2017-18 
(proposed) 

Income         

Rent Income – Dwellings (28,604,450) (29,268,970) (29,953,630) (30,633,000) 

Rent Income – Non 
Dwellings 

(711,100) (714,530) (718,090) (721,790) 

Service Charges - 
Tenants 

(1,172,240) (1,198,990) (1,226,500) (1,239,890) 

Service Charges – 
Leaseholders 

(488,550) (500,770) (513,420) (526,520) 

Facility Charges (Water 
& Gas) 

(561,840) (590,180) (617,990) (647,130) 

Interest (3,600) (3,600) (3,600) (3,600) 

Other Income (81,230) (82,480) (83,780) (85,130) 

Recharge to General 
Fund 

(163,000) (163,000) (163,000) (163,000) 

Total Income  (31,786,010) (32,522,520) (33,280,010) (34,020,060) 

          

In Year Deficit / (Surplus) (852,260) (1,617,620) (217,590) (94,550) 

         

BALANCE brought 
forward 

(3,808,036) (4,660,296) (6,277,916) (6,495,506) 

BALANCE carried 
forward 

(4,660,296) (6,277,916) (6,495,506) (6,590,056) 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

155



16 
 

Average Rent & Service Charges    Appendix 2 
 

Description  No. 
units 

2013-14 
Total 
Weekly 
Charge 

2014-15 
Rent 

2014-15 
Service 
Charge 

2014-15 
Total 

Increase 
£ 

Bedsit bungalow 20 £98.36 £100.83 £2.57 £103.40 £5.04 
1 Bed bungalow 116 £108.63 £111.97 £2.17 £114.14 £5.51 
2 Bed bungalow 25 £124.22 £126.81 £3.38 £130.19 £5.97 
          
Bedsit flat 84 £85.33 £85.67 £3.87 £89.54 £4.21 
1 bed flat 1,222 £94.64 £95.98 £3.40 £99.38 £4.74 
2 bed flat 819 £107.53 £109.36 £3.90 £113.26 £5.73 
3 bed flat 45 £118.08 £119.77 £4.55 £124.32 £6.24 
  
1 bed Maisonette 

 
6 

  
£88.62 

 
£92.41 

 
£0.39 

 
£92.80 

 
£4.18 

2 bed Maisonette 53 £106.86 £108.94 £3.56 £112.50 £5.64 
3 bed Maisonette 
4 bed Maisonette 

46 
1 

£118.74 
£125.76 

£120.81 
£132.41 

 
 

£4.08 
£0.00 

 
 

£124.89 
£132.41 

 
 

£6.15 
£6.65 

 
 

 
2 bed Parlour House 

 
34 

 
£118.75 

 
£123.66 

 
£1.19 

 
£124.85 

 
£6.10 

3 bed Parlour House 543 £131.51 £136.47 £1.65 £138.12 £6.61 
4 bed Parlour House 57 £142.39 £147.21 £2.31 £149.52 £7.13 

5 & 6 bed Parlour House 
 
 

10 £151.80 
 

£158.05 
 
 

£1.14 
 
 

£159.19 
 
 

£7.39 
 
 

2 bed Non Parlour House 521 £115.74 £119.74 £1.94 £121.68 £5.94 
3 bed Non Parlour House 745 £126.77 £131.25 £2.07 £133.32 £6.55 
4 bed Non Parlour House 31 £140.60 £144.40 £2.92 £147.32 £6.72 
5,6 & 7 bed Parlour House  
 
 

 6 £154.35 £158.74 
 
 

£1.11 
 
 

£159.85 
 
 

£5.50 
 
 

Sheltered bedsit 55 £86.32 £87.42 £2.56 £89.98 £3.66 
Sheltered – other units 501 £93.08 £94.15 £3.08 £97.23 £4.15 
             
Total 4,940 £109.75 £112.43 £2.85 £115.28 £5.53 

 
 
The average charge during 2013-14 was £109.75 per week comprising £107.00 rent and 
£2.75 service charge compared to the budgeted £106.88 and £2.74 per week 
respectively. 
 
The rent increase for 2014-15 is based on the continuation of rent convergence, i.e. a 
maximum of Retail Prices Index (RPI) plus 0.5% plus £2 for any individual property. This 
yields an average rent of £112.43 and an average service charge of £2.85 per week, 
representing an average increase of 5.1% and 3.7% respectively.  

156



17 
 

Garages & parking space charges    Appendix 3 

 

 Current Weekly Rental 
 

2013-14 

Proposed Weekly Rental  
 

2014-15  

 £ £ 
Garages 14.05 14.05 
Car Spaces 9.16 9.16 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

157



18 
 

Facility Charges      Appendix 4 

 
Sheltered Block  Current average 

weekly facility 
charge (Heating) 

Proposed average 
weekly facility charge 
10% increase 
(Heating)  

 No. of 
Properties 

2013-2014 2014-2015 

Alma Court 30 12.08 13.29 

Belmont Lodge 30 12.05 13.26 

Boothman House 30 12.05 13.26 

Cornell House 30 12.10 13.31 

Durrant Court 27 12.05 13.26 

Edwin Ware 
Court 

30 10.15 11.17 

Goddard Court 30 12.10 13.31 

Grahame White 
House 

30 12.10 13.31 

Grange Court 30 10.10 11.11 

Harkett Court 30 12.05 13.26 

Harrow Weald 
Park 0 Bed 

12 8.20 9.02 

Harrow Weald 
Park 1 Bed 

19 11.00 12.10 

John Lamb Court 32 12.70 13.97 

Meadfield 30 12.10 13.31 

Sinclair House 27 12.10 13.31 

Tapley Court 26 12.05 13.26 

Thomas Hewlett 
House 

30 12.10 13.31 

Watkins House 43  12.67 13.94 

William Allen 
House 

29 10.95 12.05 

Resident 
Warden 
Accommodation 

11 16.35 17.99 

Other  
Non-Sheltered 

95 10.65 11.72 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

158



19 
 

 
Water Charges        Appendix 5 

Sheltered Block 
No.of 
flats 

Current Range 
Water Charge  

2013-2014 

Proposed Range 
Charge at 4% 

increase for 2014-
2015 

Amount 
of 

increase 

Average 
Charge 
2014-
2015 

% 
Increase 

Income 
per Week 
per Block 

2014-
2015 

    Lower Higher Lower Higher         

Alma Court 30 £4.24 £4.24 £4.41 £4.41 £0.17 £4.41 4.00% £132.30 

Belmont Lodge 30 £4.36 £4.36 £4.53 £4.53 £0.17 £4.53 4.00% £135.90 

Boothman House 30 £4.50 £4.50 £4.68 £4.68 £0.18 £4.68 4.00% £140.04 

Cornell House 30 £4.44 £4.63 £4.62 £4.82 £0.19 £4.72 4.00% £141.60 

Durrant Court 27 £4.24 £4.69 £4.41 £4.88 £0.19 £4.65 4.00% £125.55 

Edwin Ware Court 30 £3.77 £4.69 £3.92 £4.88 £0.17 £4.40 4.00% £132.00 

Goddard Court 30 £4.36 £4.36 £4.53 £4.53 £0.17 £4.53 4.00% £135.90 

Grahame White 
House 

30 £4.50 £4.50 £4.68 £4.68 £0.18 £4.68 
4.00% 

£140.40 

Grange Court 30 £3.58 £4.50 £3.72 £4.68 £0.16 £4.20 4.00% £126.00 

Harkett Court 30 £4.50 £4.50 £4.68 £4.68 £0.18 £4.68 4.00% £140.40 

Harrow Weald Park 31 £3.58 £4.81 £3.72 £5.00 £0.17 £4.36 4.00% £135.16 

John Lamb Court 32 £4.50 £4.50 £4.68 £4.68 £0.18 £4.68 4.00% £149.76 

Meadfield 30 £4.44 £4.63 £4.62 £4.82 £0.19 £4.72 4.00% £141.60 

Sinclair House 27 £4.24 £4.24 £4.41 £4.41 £0.17 £4.41 4.00% £119.07 

Tapley Court 26 £4.24 £4.50 £4.41 £4.68 £0.18 £4.55 4.00% £118.30 

Thomas Hewlett 
House 

30 £4.44 £4.44 £4.62 £4.62 £0.18 £4.62 
4.00% 

£138.60 

Watkins House 43 £3.77 £3.77 £3.92 £3.92 £0.15 £3.92 4.00% £168.56 

William Allen House 29 £3.58 £4.50 £3.72 £4.68 £0.16 £4.20 4.00% £121.80 

Total No.of 
Sheltered Flats 

545               £2,442.94 

Resident Warden 
Accommodation 

11 £6.20  £6.20 £6.45  £6.45 £0.25 £6.45 4.00% £70.95 

Total Sheltered 
Flats incl Warden 

556                 

Other Non-
Sheltered 

95 £4.44  £4.44 £4.62  £4.62 £0.18 £4.62 4.00% £438.90 

 
 
 
 
 

159



20 
 

Community Centres      Appendix 6 

Community Hall and 
Capacity 

 
Current 2013-14                           

 
Charges per first 3 hours 

block booking then 
subsequent hourly rate 

Proposed 2014-15 
 
 

Charges per hour letting 
4% Price Increase 

  
Evening 

Rate 
Daytime 

Rate 
Weekend 

Rate 
Evening 

Rate 
Daytime 

Rate 
Weekend 

Rate 

  £ £ £ £ £ £ 

Augustine Road [max 30] 20.80 10.40 31.20 21.63 10.82 32.45 
Marsh Road Hall [max 30] 20.80 10.40 31.20 21.63 10.82 32.45 
Brookside Hall [max 30] 20.80 10.40 31.20 21.63 10.82 32.45 
Woodlands Hall [max 60] 31.20 15.60 42.60 32.45 16.22 44.30 
Churchill Place [max 100] 41.60 18.70 52.00 43.26 19.45 54.08 
Kenmore Park [max 100] 41.60 18.70 52.00 43.26 19.45 54.08 
Pinner Hill Hall [max 100] 41.60 18.70 52.00 43.26 19.45 54.08 

Northolt Road [max 100] 41.60 18.70 52.00 43.26 19.45 54.08 

 
Terms & Conditions associated with Hall lets: 

• Lets to Tenants and Residents Associations are free, providing 4 weeks notice is 
provided. 

• Charges shown are exclusive of VAT at 20% and Insurance Premium at 7% 

• Day time rates are from 9.00am to 3.30pm  

• Commercial lets will be charged at above hourly rates plus 20%. 

• Registered Charities will receive a discount of 50% (9.00am to 3.30pm only). 

• Block Bookings of 6 months minimum will receive a 25% discount. 

• A refundable deposit of £100 against loss or damage will be required by all other 
users. 

Of the 11 community centres, there are a number of premises that are fully let and 
supported by lease agreements and therefore charges not levied in accordance with the 
above schedule.  These are: 

 - Methuen Road community centre is fully let to Flash Musicals Youth Theatre 
group on a lease agreement of £25,000 rent per annum. 
 - Stone Gardens hall is fully let as a nursery on a lease agreement of £10,000 
rent per annum. 
 - Northolt Road hall is partly let as a nursery on a lease agreement of £5,200 rent 
per annum. 
 - Churchill Place hall is partly let as a nursery on a lease agreement of £10,000 
rent per annum. 

 

160



21 
 

HRA Capital Programme     Appendix 7 

 
 
Budget Description  2014/15   2015/16   2016/17   2017/18  

   £   £   £   £  

Internal Works 
    

3,628,120  
    

3,928,120  
    

4,428,120  
    

4,228,120  

External Works 
    

1,586,450  
    

1,586,970  
    

1,671,490  
    

2,300,000  

M & E 
       

920,000  
       

920,000  
       

920,000  
       

920,000  

Garages 
          

61,500  
          

61,500  
          

61,500  
          

61,500  

Aids and Adaptations 
       

615,000  
       

615,000  
       

615,000  
       

615,000  

Capitalisation Responsive 
Repairs 

       
142,500  

       
142,500  

       
142,500  

       
142,500  

Capitalised Salaries 
       

317,000  
       

317,000  
       

317,000  
       

317,000  

Develop Wider Housing 
Initiatives Pot 

       
256,240  

       
256,240  

       
256,240  

       
555,000  

HRA Capital Investment 
    

7,526,810  
    

7,827,330  
    

8,411,850  
    

9,139,120  

Affordable Housing Programme 
    

2,000,000  
    

4,400,000      

Total HRA Capital Programme 
    

9,526,810  
  

12,227,330  
    

8,411,850  
    

9,139,120  

 

161



22 
 

 HRA Q2 Performance Data      Appendix 8 

Indicator
(cumulative for the year unless stated 

otherwise)

June 

actual / 

Q1

Q1 

target

Sept 

actual / 

Q2

Q2 

target
Current Assessment

Voids

Average time taken to re-let LA housing 

(days) (excludes times taken for major 

works) - per quarter [VFM PI]

25 18
15.23

(for Q2)
18 Significant improvement in Void turnaround time

Resident Services

LA rent collection and arrears: proportion 

of rent collected. (includes current tenant 

arrears b/f)
94.23% 94.0% 97.72% 95.0%

Above target collection rate been achieved 

inspite of ongoing welfare reform.

Current tenants arrears (£k) 441 440 496 440

Figure calculated immediately prior to direct 

debit run which would result in a credit of 

approximately £24k (£472).  Detailed analysis of 

the impact of spare room subsidy is ongoing and 

resources targeted at those cases require 

intensive support.

Leasehold Service Charge arrears (£k) 115K 142K 66K £110k
Further monthly reporting mechanisms to be 

agreed.

% of new tenants visited within 6 weeks 

of tenancy sign up - quarterly 100% 100% 96% 100%

89 new let visits due 1 not met. 11 Mutual 

exchange visits due 3 not met.  New tenancy 

visit process, as a result of the Tenant Scrutiny 

Review, should reduce instances of unmet visits.

Asset Management
Repairs completed in Target Time  - 

Priority 1 - emergency 
100% 96% 98.5% 96%

Repairs completed in Target Time  - 

Priority 2 -  urgent
99% 96% 98.3% 96%

Repairs completed in Target Time  - 

Priority 3 - non urgent
98% 96% 97.9% 96%

% of repairs completed at first visit 95% 90% 95.2% 90% performing above target

% of properties with current gas servicing 

certificates (CP12)
99.72% 100% 99.5% 100%

Council adaptations: average time from 

assessment to completion of work 

(weeks) quarterly performance
20 33 20 33

DFGs: average time taken from 

assessment to DFG approval date 

(weeks) quarterly performance
11 30 8 30

New Housing Initiatives
Number of affordable homes delivered 

(gross)  
63 60 74 68 On target to meet revised target

no of affordable family sized  rented 

homes completed
8 6 8 8 Revised target met.

Total no of social housing homes freed up 

- grants2move
0 - 29 -

Grants to Move scheme formally launched on 

30th September and applications are now being 

accepted.  2 pilot moves have been completed .  

A homeownership grant pilot is underway and 

the tenant is currently although the tenant is 

reporting problems in conveyancing. 

 Housing Scorecard 2013-14 

strong performance in delivery times and keeping 

average costs down

all PI's performing well.

 

 

162



 
 

1 
 

REPORT FOR: 

 

CABINET 

 

Date of Meeting: 

 

12 December  2013 

Subject: 

 

Calculation of  Council Tax Base for 2014 - 
2015 

Key Decision:  

 

YES 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Tom Whiting, Corporate Director of 
Resources 

Portfolio Holder: 

 

Councillor Tony Ferrari,  Portfolio Holder for 
Finance 
 

Exempt: 

 

No 

Decision subject to 

Call-in: 

 

Yes 

Enclosures: 

 

Appendix 1 – Calculation of Council Tax 
Base 2014-2015 

 
 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 

The Local Government Finance Act  (LGFA) 1992, as amended by the LGFA  
2003 & LGFA 2012, requires the Authority to formally calculate the Council Tax  
Base for 2014-2015 and pass this information to precepting authorities by 31  
January 2014. The tax base must be set between 1 December 2013 and 31  
January 2014.  
 

Recommendations:  
That Cabinet considers the information given in this report and agrees that :  
   

(a) The band D equivalent number of taxable properties is calculated 
 as shown in accordance with the Government regulations; 

 
(b) The provision for uncollectable amounts of Council Tax for 2014-2015 

Agenda Item 14
Pages 163 to 170

163



 be  agreed at 2.50% producing an expected collection rate of 97.50%. 
 

(c) Subject to (a) & (b) above, a Council Tax Base for 2014-2015 of 78,550 
Band D equivalent properties (being 80,565 x 97.50%) be approved, 
allowing for payment in lieu of Ministry of Defence properties. 

 

Reason:   
To fulfil the Council’s statutory obligation to set the Council Tax Base for 2014-
2015. 

 

 
 
 

Section 2 – Report 
 
1. Introduction  
 

1.1  The Local Government Finance Act 1992, as amended by the LGFA 
2003 & LGFA 2012, requires the Authority to calculate the Council Tax 
Base for 2014-2015 and pass this information by 31 January 2014 to 
precepting authorities.  The Tax Base must be set between the 1 
December and 31 January. 

 

1.2  The Council’s Tax Base has been calculated, according to the relevant 
procedures and guidance for 2014-2015, at 78,550 net properties. The 
Tax Base has two parts: 

 
(a) The number of taxable properties shown as ‘band D equivalents’ 

and 
 (b) The expected collection rate for the year. 
 
1.3 The calculation method is set out in the Local Authorities (Calculation of 

Council Tax Base) Regulations 1992, as amended.  The regulations 
require that calculations must be shown for each tax band as well as a 
total for all bands. The detailed calculation of the band D equivalent 
properties is shown at Appendix 1. For calculating the Tax Base, (and 
setting the Council Tax) properties in each of the eight valuation bands are 
given different weightings. These weightings are shown as a proportion of 
the band D value. These are shown below: 
 

 

Band   A    B   C    D      E     F    G   H 

Weighting 6/9   7/9  8/9    1    11/9 13/9 15/9   2 

 
 

164



 
2. Background  
 
2.1  The Regulations state that the calculation of the Tax Base must be based 

on the Valuation list produced by the Listing Officer of HM Revenue & 
Customs as it stands on 30 November in the year preceding that for 
which the relevant amount is calculated (i.e. at 30 November 2013 for 
the financial year 2014-2015). It must show actual numbers of properties 
at that date and allow for the effects of discounts and exemptions 
including the council tax support scheme discount (CTS). It must also 
show likely changes to bands, new properties, properties taken off the 
valuation list and likely changes to discounts, empty properties and 
exemptions for 2014-2015.  
 

2.2  For 2013-2014 the percentage collection rate used was 97.50%. For 
2014-2015 a budgeted collection rate of 97.50% is again being 
recommended. This is due to the fact that reduced council tax support is 
being awarded to eligible claimants under the localised council tax 
support scheme which will create collection challenges. 

 
2.3 The overall collection rate also takes into account the current economic 

climate, the expected  losses and also our historical success in achieving 
an eventual recovery rate of just over 98.5% over a period of 
approximately 36 months (although this is expected to be 1% lower in 
future because of the introduction of CTS). The expected collection rate 
is the percentage of Council Tax to be collected after estimating 
uncollectable amounts.  

 
2.4  This does not mean that collection efforts will stop once the budgeted 

collection levels have been reached, or that eventual losses will 
necessarily be 2.50%.  It is, however, essential that an adequate non-
collection allowance be made each year.  The Government recognises 
that no billing authority can collect every pound of Council Tax and that 
an element of collection will continue after the relevant year.  The 
legislation provides for non-collection to be compensated for by an 
element within the Council Tax Base itself. 

 

 Legal Implications 
 
2.5. The Council must legally agree the Council Tax Base for 2014-2015 by 

31 January 2014. 
 
2.6. Section 31B of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, as inserted by 

the Localism Act 2011, imposes a duty on Harrow, as a billing authority, 
to calculate its Council Tax by applying a formula laid down in that 
Section. The formula involves a figure for the Council Tax Base for the 
year, which must itself be calculated. 

 
2.7. The Local Authority (Calculation of Council Tax Base) (England) 

Regulations 2012 SI.2914, require a billing authority to use a given 
formula to calculate the Council Tax Base. This is the formula set out 
and followed in the appendix to this report. 

 

165



2.8 In respect of item Z, which relates to the authority’s council tax reduction 
scheme, the regulations allow for an estimate, rather than a defined 
formula. To arrive at the total value number of dwellings to be removed 
from the council tax base as a result of Harrows’ local council tax 
reduction scheme, Harrow has estimated the total amount of reductions 
granted in each band and divided that figure by the estimated council tax 
bill for the band.  

 
2.9. Legislation also imposes a duty on the Council to calculate the Council 

Tax Base within a prescribed period which is laid down in the 
Regulations as between 1 December and 31 January. 

 
3.0. Section 67 Local Government Finance Act 1992 was amended by 

section 84 of the Local Government Act 2003, (and more recently the 
Localism Act 2011), to enable Full Council to delegate the power to set 
the tax base to the Executive. The constitution was duly amended at full 
Council on 20 October 2005. 

 

 
Financial Implications 
This is a report of the Corporate Director of Resources and deals with 
financial matters throughout. The tax base of 78,550 will be reflected in the 
Council’s Revenue Budget for 2014-15. 

 
Performance Issues 
The Council Tax collection rate is no longer a national indicator but is 
monitored locally. The completion of the Council's statutory obligation to set a 
Council Tax Base as described contributes to a favourable audit opinion. 
 
Collection over the last three financial years has been as below and in the 
current year at quarter 2 stands at 56.76%. 
 

 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 

Council Tax collected % 97% 97.8% 97.7% 

 
Due to the introduction of localised council tax support from 1/4/2013, the 
overall collection rate has changed from 98.5% to 97.5% with effect from 
1/4/2013 which has been factored in to the overall tax base calculation. This is 
due to the fact that only 70% is expected to be collected from the £5.1m 
proportion of the council tax which relates to the additional amount due to be 
paid by working age claimants, many of whom are in receipt of income 
support or job seekers allowances. For the rest, and the large majority of 
council tax income, a collection rate of 98.5% is still expected and has been 
used in the taxbase. 
 

Environmental Impact 
None 
 

Risk Management Implications 
Whilst Officers have estimated the tax base as accurately as possible within 
the data available, there is a risk that either working age or pensioner claimant 

166



numbers rise above the estimates, potentially causing the scheme to 
overspend therefore reducing the tax take. 
 
Consideration should be given to leaving a surplus balance in the collection 
fund in future years. The potential “headroom” this surplus would provide 
could mitigate against in year variations to localised council tax support spend 
which may not have been factored in, therefore reducing or eliminating any 
potential deficit in the collection fund.   
 

Equalities implications 
None 
 

Corporate Priorities 
Agreeing the tax base allows the Council to set council tax levels which is a 
fundamental part of the Council’s budget process. Council Tax revenue is an 
essential part of the Council’s overall budget and helps to support corporate 
priorities. 
 

 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Dawn Calvert x  Chief Financial Officer 

  
Date: 12 November 2013 

   

 

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Paresh Mehta x  Monitoring Officer 

  
Date:  18 November 2013 

   

 
 

Section 4 – Performance Officer Clearance 
 

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Martin Randall x  Divisional Director 

  
Date: 12 November 2013 

  Strategic 
Commissioning 

 
 
 
 

167



Section 5 – Environmental Impact Officer 

Clearance 
 

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name:  Andrew Baker x  Corporate Director of  

  
Date: 12 November 2013 

  Environment and 
Enterprise 

 

Section 6 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 
 
 
Contact: Fern Silverio (Divisional Director – Collections & Housing Benefits) 

Tel: 020-8736-6818 / email: fern.silverio@harrow.gov.uk 
 

 

Background Papers:  
 

• The Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax Base) Regulations 1992, 
SI No.612 as amended, The Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax 
Base)(England) Regulations 2012, SI No.2914 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/2914/body/made 

• SI No.3012 of 2003, LGFA 1992, LGFA 2012, LGA 2003,  
http://legislation.data.gov.uk/uksi/2003/3012/made/data.htm?wrap=true 
 

 
Appendix 1 
 
Calculation of the Council Tax Base for 2014/15 
 
 
 

 

Call-In Waived by the 

Chairman of Overview 

and Scrutiny 

Committee 

 
 

  
NOT APPLICABLE 
 
 
[Call-in applies] 

 

 

168



Appendix 1:

 SI No. 2914 The Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax Base) (England) Regulations 2012

((H - Q + E + J) - Z) x (F divided by G)   

Line Band @ A B C D E F G H Total

Actual current properties

1 Dwellings on database 30/11/13 0 579 3,426 19,140 28,027 21,796 7,797 6,058 1,149 87,972

2 Exemptions (minus) 0 14 106 327 288 173 82 67 11 1,068

Disabled Reductions of Band:

3 Add to Lower Bands 0 3 27 173 255 102 55 16 0 631

4 Take from Higher Bands (minus) 0 0 3 27 173 255 102 55 16 631

5 Line 1-2+3-4 =  H 0 568 3,344 18,959 27,821 21,470 7,668 5,952 1,122 86,904

6 Number in H above Entitled to 

One 25% Discount  -340 -2,021 -7,480 -6,126 -4,169 -1,367 -843 -101 -22,447

7 Line 6 x 25% -85.00 -505.25 -1870.00 -1531.50 -1042.25 -341.75 -210.75 -25.25 -5611.75

8  Number in H above Entitled to 

Two 25% (50%) Discount 0 -1 -2 -12 -14 -11 -22 -13 -75

9 Line 8 X 50%  0.00 -0.50 -1.00 -6.00 -7.00 -5.50 -11.00 -6.50 -37.50

10 No in H above entitled to 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

50% discount

50% of above 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

11 No in H  above entitled to 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0% discount

0% of above 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

12 Total Discounts = Q -85.00 -505.75 -1871.00 -1537.50 -1049.25 -347.25 -221.75 -31.75 -5649.25

13 Line 5+ Line 12 0 483.00 2,838.25 17,088.00 26,283.50 20,420.75 7,320.75 5,730.25 1,090.25 81,254.75

No entitled to be charged 50% premium 2 1 13 14 18 4 7 2 61

Total Premiums = E 3.00 1.50 19.50 21.00 27.00 6.00 10.50 3.00 91.50

Estimated changes likely

14 * Properties Awaiting Banding  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

15 **New Properties 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

16  Line 14 + Line 15 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

17 Properties to be Deleted  -15 -56 -75 -88 -34 -19 -9 -4 -300

18 Known Errors in Valuation List 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

19 Line 17 + Line 18 0 -15 -56 -75 -88 -34 -19 -9 -4 -300

20  Line 16 + Line 19 0 -15 -56 -75 -88 -34 -19 -9 -4 -300

21 Assumed Exemptions on

Ratio of Line 2 to 1  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

22 Assumed Discounts on

Ratio of Line 12 to 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Changes to Status of Existing Properties:

23 Change in Discounts 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

24 Change in Exemptions   0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Expected appeals against bands:

25 Add to Lower Bands 5 28 44 31 19 14 4 0 145

26 Take from Higher Bands 0 -5 -28 -44 -31 -19 -14 -4 -145

27 Line 20+21+22+23+24+25+26 = J 0 -10 -33 -59 -101 -46 -24 -19 -8 -300

CTR Discount

Ttl Band reduction based on total moneta 0 -131 -1057 -3672 -3590 -1754 -352 -93 -3 -10652

Expected in year changes -1 -3 -8 -12 -9 -4 -1 0 -38

28 Total CTS Band Equivalent 0 -132 -1060 -3680 -3602 -1763 -356 -94 -3 -10690

Total CTR Discount = Z -132.00 -1060.00 -3680.00 -3602.00 -1763.00 -356.00 -94.00 -3.00 -10690.00

29 H - Q + E + J - Z 0.00 344.00 1746.75 13368.50 22601.50 18638.75 6946.75 5627.75 1082.25 70356.25

30 To calculate band equivalents 0.67 0.78 0.89 1.00 1.22 1.44 1.67 2.00

31 Band D Equivalent:Lines 29x30 0 229.33 1358.58 11883.11 22601.50 22780.69 10034.19 9379.58 2164.50 80431.50

32 Contributions in lieu of Class O 0.0 0.0 0.0 42.0 61.0 0.0 13.0 15.0 2.0 133

33 Band D equivalent for Taxbase calculation 80,565

34 Band D Equivalent for Taxbase Calculation 80565

35 Band D equivalent for Taxbase calculation after non-collection allowance (2.5%) applied 78550

Calculation of the Council Taxbase for 2014-2015

Before allowance for collection rate

Fern Silverio_GW:

Apply lower tax base & to cater for extra risk on collection - 2.5% rather than 1.5% to cater for extra BDP 

required re 30% non collection on CTS element & regarding Discounts & Exemptions changes
 

169



170

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

1 
 

REPORT FOR: 

 

CABINET 

 

Date of Meeting: 

 

12  December 2013 

Subject: 

 

Calculation of  Business Rates Income for 
2014 – 2015 

Key Decision:  

 

Yes 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Tom Whiting, Corporate Director of 
Resources 

Portfolio Holder: 

 

Councillor Toni Ferrari, Portfolio Holder for 
Finance 
 

Exempt: 

 

No 

Decision subject to 

Call-in: 

 

Yes 

Enclosures: 

 

 

 

None 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 

The Local Government Finance Act 1988 places a duty on the authority to 
calculate the business rates for the area annually as part of its budget setting 
process. 
 
Regulations require billing authorities to  formally calculate the estimated level of 
non domestic  rates (NDR) it anticipates to collect for 2014-2015 and pass this 
information to  the Secretary of State and precepting authorities by  31 January in 
the preceding year.   
 

Recommendations:  
That Cabinet considers the information given in this report and agrees that :  
   

Agenda Item 15
Pages 171 to 180

171



2 
 

1. The non domestic  rates estimates and calculations are calculated in 
accordance with the regulations as follows: 
 

  £m 

 Projected NDR Income 2014/15 49.618 

Less Payable to DCLG (50% Central Share) (24.809) 

Less  Payable to the Greater London Authority (20%) (9.924) 

Equals Amount to be retained by Harrow (30%) 14.885 

   

 
2. The above information is provided to the Secretary of State and GLA by 31 

January 2014. 
 

Reason:   
To fulfil the Council’s statutory obligation to provide estimates and calculations in 
relation to NDR for 2014-2015. 

 

 
 
 

Section 2 – Report 
 
1 Introduction  
 
1.1 The Local Government Finance Bill was introduced in December 2011 

and set out the Government’s intention to introduce a Business Rate 
Retention (BRR) scheme from 01 April 2013.  

 
1.2 The scheme provides for non-domestic rates collected by a billing 
 authority to be shared between it, its major precepting authorities and 
 central government. It also provides that certain sums are to be 
 treated as being outside the scheme.  These sums are retained in their 
 entirety by the billing authority (or by the billing authority and some, or 
 all, of its major preceptors).  
 
1.3 Subsequent amendments to the statutory framework require a billing 
 authority, before the beginning of a financial year, to forecast the 
 amount of business  rates that it will collect during the course of the 
 year and, from this, to make a number of allowable deductions in order 
 to arrive at a figure for its non-domestic rating income. The calculation 
 that Harrow makes before the start of the financial year determines 
 how much Harrow must pay to central government and its major 
 precepting authorities during the course of the year.   
 

172



3 
 

1.4 There is no change to the way business rates are calculated; these  
 continue to be set nationally. There is also no change to the existing 
 mandatory and discretionary reliefs available to eligible ratepayers. 
 
 
,    

2. Background  
 

2.1 Under the Local Government Finance Act 1988, as amended by the  
LGFA 2012, regulations set out detailed formulae for  the calculation of 
an annual estimated Business Rates. The starting point is the amount 
payable by businesses to the authority under s.43 and 45 of the 1988 
Act in the preceding year.  An estimate is then calculated taking into 
account adjustments for RPI, transitional protection payments, collection 
costs and disregarded amounts. At the end of each year the authority 
must arrange for calculations and amounts to be certified in accordance 
with arrangements set out by the Secretary of State.  

 
2.2 The above net resultant figure will then be divided by two. This will 

identify 50% to be paid to the Central Pool (Government). The other 50% 
will then be split 60/40 with the GLA, the 60% retained by Harrow 
equating to 30% of the overall total net yield.  

 
2.3 Throughout the year, the authority retains a fixed amount and pays a 

fixed amount to preceptors. Any difference between forecast amounts 
and final outturns will result in a surplus, or deficit on the billing 
authority’s Collection Fund.  Any such surplus or deficit is shared 
between the parties to the Pool and has to be taken into account as part 
of the future year’s budget process.  

 
 
 

2.4 Harrow’s NDR 2014/15 Tax Base 

 
2.5 The forecast in this report takes into account the latest data available 

including a list of all proposals outstanding (as provided by the Valuation 
Officer), an analysis of properties likely to be removed from the valuation 
list as well as an analysis of new potential properties coming into the list, 
an estimate of likely reliefs, reductions due to appeals and an estimate of 
likely losses due to some debts being uncollectable. 

 
2.6 The forecast is required to be formally notified to DCLG and preceptors. 

This is done by billing authorities having to complete a business rates 
return estimating the likely business rates. The return takes the form of a 
formal National Non-Domestic rates return 1 (NDR 1) and uses the data 
used for the Council’s Business Rates Tax Base estimate.   

 
2.7 The calculation of Harrow’s NDR income figure for 2014/15 and for the 

formal outturn is therefore as follows; 
 
 
 

 

173



4 
 

Gross Rates Yield: 
                Total Rateable value  x  NDR rate multiplier 

Less Mandatory Reliefs 

Less Discretionary Reliefs 

Less estimated losses on Collection 

Less Allowance for costs of collection (as set by DCLG 
formula) 

Plus or Minus Rate Retention Adjustments for: 
                 Change in Rateable Value due to growth or  
                 reduction in property numbers 
                 Adjustment due to Appeals                   

Net Business Rates Yield and base of the calculation of 
central and local shares 

174



5 
 

2.8         Table 1 

Projected NDR income calculation for 2014/15 –(using 
November 2013 data) 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Local Authority     Harrow     

    £m    

        

Gross Rateable value November 2013 128.912 a   

Small Business Rate Multiplier 0.462 b   

Inflation Assumption 3.20% c   

Business Rate Multiplier 2014/15 0.477 d b x c(+b) 

Notional gross yield figure 61.463 e a x d 

Losses due Small business rate relief  2.750 r   

Change in notional gross yield 2013/14 to 2014/15 103.2% g   

Projected small business rate relief 2014/15     2.838 h f x g 

Losses due to Empty property exemptions   1.900 i   

Change in notional gross yield 2013/14 to 2014/15 103.2% j   

Projected Empty property exemptions 2014/15   1.960 k i x j 

Mandatory relief   4.650 l   

Change in notional gross yield 2013/14 to 2014/15  103.2% m   

Projected Mandatory Relief 2014/15     4.799 n l x m 

Discretionary relief   0.59 o   

Change in notional gross yield 2013/14 to 2014/15  103.2% p   

Projected Discretionary Relief 2014/15     0.61 q o x p 

Cost of collection     0.254 r   

Projected contribution to the pool     51.551 s e-h-k-n-q-r 

Losses in collection 2%     1.031 t   

Losses on appeal 2.4%     0.902 u   

Losses due to Enterprise Zones     0.000 v   

Losses on Transitional Relief (net) (Ignore)     0.098 w     

Gains due to Renewable Energy schemes     0.000 x   

Gains due to New Developments     0.000 y   

Net contribution to the pool     49.618 z s- t-u 

        

Contribution to pool   49.618    

Less Central Share (50% to Government)   -24.809    

Less Fire Authority share   -0.496    

Less GLA Transport   -9.428    

NDR Income retained     14.885     

175



6 
 

 2.9 Legal Implications 
 
2.10 Schedule 7B of the Local Government Finance Act 1988, as amended, 

reserves the right for the Secretary of State to direct billing authorities to 
make calculations and supply information and in the absence of such a 
direction, to make regulations imposing similar requirement. Regulations 
require that on or before 31 January in the preceding year, billing 
authorities must estimate the amount of NDR income, calculate the 
amount of the central share, calculate the amount for each precepting 
authority’s share, estimate the amount of qualifying relief and notify the 
Secretary of State and relevant precepting authority of these estimates 
or calculations.  

 
2.11 The regulations contain detailed formulae for calculations. The Business 

Rates Tax Base has therefore been calculated according to the relevant 
formulae and guidance issued to date and is made up of the following; 

 

• Estimated Gross Business Rate Yield less 

• Adjustments for empty rate relief 

• Adjustments for small business rate relief 

• Adjustments for Mandatory Charity Relief 

• Adjustments for Discretionary Rate Relief 

• Adjustments for Transitional Relief 

• Adjustments for enterprise zones, new builds, renewable energy 
schemes, other deductions 

• Cost of collection 

• Losses on collection 

• Expected losses on appeals 
 

 

2.12 At present the regulations and legislation do not appear to require 
 decisions to be taken at a particular level within the council.  In the 
 absence of any specific statutory requirement as to decision making, it 
 is necessary to take account of the Functions and Responsibilities 
 Regulations 2000 which set out decisions which can and cannot be 
 taken by the Executive.   
 
2.13 Under the Council's constitution, approving the budget (including 
 setting the Council Tax) is reserved to full Council.  Budget is defined 
 as allocation of financial resources to different services and projects, 
 proposed contingency funds, setting the council tax including decisions 
 relating to the control of the Council's borrowing requirement, the 
 determination and control of its capital expenditure and the setting of 
 virement limits.  Certain financial decisions are also reserved to the 
 Executive, including fixing council tax base and level of council tax and 
 the financial strategy of the Council. Making estimations and 
 calculations in relation to NDR within prescribed formula is akin to 
 setting the Council Tax Base. It is therefore appropriate and proper that 
 the decision is taken by Cabinet under Harrow’s existing constitution.  

 
2.14 Financial Implications 

This is a report of the Corporate Director of Resources and deals with 
financial matters throughout. The retained amount for Business Rates 

176



7 
 

has been determined to be £14.885m is reflected in the Draft Revenue 
Budget for 2014-15. 

 

2.15 Performance Issues 
Although the likely NDR income figures above are being used to 
estimate actual NDR income for 2014/15 and, therefore, included as 
such in setting the 2014/15 budget, ultimately, it will be actual NDR 
income received that will be available to the authority. This may be less 
or more than the actual estimate and brings a certain amount of risk. 
 
In percentage terms the collection rates achieved over the last three 
financial years are as below and in the current year at quarter 2 is 
58.3%. 
 

 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 

Non-domestic rates collected % 96.4% 96.2% 95.4 

 
Officers ability to both forecast NDR income for budgeting purposes and 
monitor actual NDR income during the year will be critical in the process  
and in managing potential income pressures during the year.   

 
2.16 Environmental Impact 

None 
 

2.17 Risk Management Implications 
The authority needs certainty regarding the volatility in the rating list, 
however this cannot be guaranteed  
 

• As specific levels of Appeals cannot be anticipated,  

• Property demolitions may occur which were not anticipated, 

• There may be Valuation Officer review of assessments which give 
rise to reductions in rateable value, 

• Substantial backdated RV reductions may occur which were not 
anticipated, 

• Rating is “reactive”; appeals served now may not be considered 
and resolved for a number of years, 

• Large hereditaments could have a disproportionate effect on 
Harrow, for example, heavy industrial plants etc, whose 
assessments may be challenged on multiple occasions through 
the life of the Rating List. 

 
Apart from the above, other matters that may affect the bottom line 
business rates income are; 

• Losses on collection 

• Discretionary Rate Relief “top ups” 

• Discretionary Section 44a relief 

• Charitable Trusts 

• Rate audit and appeals by Harrow against property in its own 
portfolio 

• The issuing, or lack of issuing, completion notices.  
 

177



8 
 

 It should also be noted that a high in year collection percentage of 
business rates now becomes much more important than in previous 
years as the local authority will now have a direct vested interest in 
collecting as much business rates as it can to ensure it meets its own 
forecast on which the budget is based.  

 
2.18 Equalities implications 

None 

 
2.19  Corporate Priorities 

The Business Rates Baseline allows the Council to raise local funding 
which is fundamental in supporting all corporate priorities as Business 
Rates Retention is a key element of the Council’s overall budget. 

 

 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Dawn Calvert x  Chief Financial Officer 

  
Date: 12 November 2013 

   

 

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Paresh Mehta x  Monitoring Officer 

  
Date:  18 November 2013 

   

 

Section 4 – Performance Officer Clearance 
 

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Martin Randall x  Divisional Director 

  
Date: 12 November 2013 

  Strategic 
Commissioning 

 

Section 5 – Environmental Impact Officer 

Clearance 
 

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name:  Andrew Baker x  Corporate Director of  

  
Date: 12 November 2013 

  Environment and 
Enterprise 

 

178



9 
 

Section 6 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 
 
Contact: Fern Silverio – (Divisional Director, Collections & Housing Benefits) 

Tel: 020-8736-6818 / email: fern.silverio@Harrow.gov.uk 
 
 

Background Papers:  
 

• Government Guidance on Business Rates Retention 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/business-rates-retention-and-
the-local-government-finance-settlement-a-practitioners-guide 

• The Local Finance Act 1988 as amended by the LGFA 2012 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2012/17/enacted 

• Localism Act 2011 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/20/contents/enacted 
 

 

 

Call-In Waived by the 

Chairman of Overview 

and Scrutiny 

Committee 

 

  
NOT APPLICABLE 
 
 
[Call-in applies] 
 
 

 

 

179



180

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

REPORT FOR: 

 

CABINET 

 

Date: 

 

12 December 2013 

Subject: 

 

Draft Revenue Budget 2014/15 and 
Medium Term Financial Strategy 
2014-15 to 2016-17 

 

Key Decision:  

 

Yes 
 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Simon George, Director of Finance 
and Assurance 

Portfolio Holder: 

 

Councillor Tony Ferrari, Portfolio 
Holder for Finance 

Exempt: 

 

No 
 

Decision subject to 

Call-in: 

 

Yes 

Enclosures: 

 

Appendices listed below 
 

Appendices are attached as follows: 
 

No Appendix Page 
 

1 MTFS 2013/14 to 2016/17 as approved by 
Cabinet / Council February 2013 

6 

2 MTFS 2013/14 to 2016/17 as approved by 
Cabinet / Council– detailed investment / 
saving schedules (For information only) 

6 

3 MTFS 2013/14 to 2016/17 – Proposed 
changes to MTFS for member approval 
following budget re-fresh process.( These 
are the investments / savings that will be 
taken forward to set the council tax if 
approved by members) 

6 

Agenda Item 16
Pages 181 to 250

181



 

 

 

4 MTFS 2014/15 to 2016/17 – Proposed 
investments / savings for member approval 
following budget re-fresh process. (These 
are the investments / savings that will be 
taken forward to set the council tax if 
approved by members) 

7 

5 Draft Public Health Funding 2014/15 10 

6 Schools Budget 2014/15 12 

 
Note: the page numbers in the table above refer to the small page 
numbers (bottom right of page) on the report itself and not the large 
numbers (bottom middle of page) that run throughout the agenda pack. 
 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 

 
This report sets out the draft revenue budget for 2014-15 and medium term 
financial strategy (MTFS) for 2014-15 to 2016-17. The budget will return to 
Cabinet in February 2014 for final approval and recommendation to Council. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 

1) That Cabinet approves the draft budget as set out in appendix 3  for 
2014-15 and the MTFS for general consultation including an anticipated 
0% Council Tax increase 

2) That Cabinet notes the current remaining budget gaps of £19.481m in 
2015-16 and £18.612m in 2016/17.  

3) That Cabinet approves the draft Public Health budget for 2014/15 as set 
out in Appendix 5 

4) That Cabinet notes the statutory changes to schools funding for 
2014/15 and approves the proposed arrangements for the 2014/15 
school funding formula as set out in Appendix 6  

5) That Cabinet agrees the sum of £239,219 as Harrow’s contribution to 
the London Grant Scheme in 2014/15   

6) That Cabinet agree to the establishment of a capital financing risk 
reserve to allow for delays in capital receipts in the current financial 
year 

 
REASON:   
To ensure that the Council publishes a draft budget for 2014-15 
 

 

182



 

 

Section 2 – Report 
 

Current Financial Context 
1.1 In 2010 the Government’s funding settlement meant Local Government  

received the most challenging funding settlement in decades, resulting 
in a 28% cut to the Council’s controllable costs over the 4 years to 
2014/15, some £62m in Harrow’s case from 2010/11 levels of 
expenditure. This is on top of the £45m the Council has already saved 
before this, meaning that by 2015 the Council will have been making 
savings of over £10m a year for the last nine years. By and large 
Harrow has  demonstrated a successful track record in delivering these 
savings by: 

 ● Identifying efficiencies 
 ● Adopting a more commercial approach to contracting and 

procurement 
 ● Taking advantage of new technologies 
 ● Introducing new and innovative ways of service delivery 
 
1.2 The MTFS agreed by Cabinet and Council in February 2013 showed a 

balanced budget position for 2013/14 and 2014/15 with a budget gap of 
£15.693m and £14.236m for 2015/16 and 2016/17 respectively.   The 
MTFS included an indicative assumption that Council Tax would 
increase at 2% per annum.   

 
1.3 The draft budget set out in this report shows a refreshed MTFS with a 

number of changes requiring Cabinet approval.  The changes achieve 
a balanced budget position for 2014/15 with an estimated budget gap 
of £19.481m and £18.612m for 2015/16 and 2016/17 respectively.  In 
terms of Council Tax, the refreshed MTFS assumes a 0% increase 
from 2014/15 to 2016/17.    The estimated cost of a reduction of 1% in 
Council Tax is £930.5k.  

 
1.4 All councils, not just Harrow, continue to find themselves in a very 

uncertain and volatile situation with a significant number of external 
events, beyond the Council’s control, adversely impacting on funding 
and the nature of demand for Harrow services.  The economy is 
showing the early signs of recovery but this is not expected to lead to 
any change in the Government’s policy regarding funding levels to 
Local Government. This continues to create a very challenging 
environment for the very real role that local government plays in the 
local community and the positive impact that the Council can have on 
people’s quality of life.  This does mean that the Council will have to 
consider how to fund specific new projects requested by Members.   

 
1.5 The provisional grant settlement for 2014/15 is expected to be 

announced on 19 December 2013 with the final settlement in late 
January and the impact of the announcements on the draft budget will 
be reported to Cabinet in February 2014.   

 
 

183



 

 

External Environment  
2.1 The challenging environment the Council faces is caused by a number 

of external factors which the Council must make budgetary provision 
for in the MTFS.  The key external factors are summarised below along 
with the relevant MTFS adjustments: 

 
● Harrow is one of the lowest funded councils in London.  Earlier 

in the year London Councils estimated the reductions in formula 
grant for 2014/15.  Harrow’s reduction was estimated at £1m 
and this is adjusted for in the refreshed MTFS.    

 
● From April 2013, as a result of the change in the NNDR scheme, 

Council’s are allowed to keep 30% of increases in Business 
Rates.  Historically Harrow has not increased its tax base due to 
the trend of converting commercial property to domestic use.   

 
● The Government has announced Council Tax Freeze Grants 

over the last couple of years.  The MTFS agreed in February 
2013 assumed no such grant on account of the indicative 
assumption of a 2% Council Tax increase.  The MTFS for 
2014/15 to 2016/17 has been refreshed to reflect a 0% increase 
in Council Tax.  The impact of this assumption for three years is 
shown in table 2 below: 

 
 Table 2: Financial Impact of 0% Increase in Council Tax 

2014/15 to 2016/17  
 

Action 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 Total 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Cost of 0% 
increase in Council 
Tax 

1,861 1,861 1,861 5,583 

Receipt of Council 
Tax Grant – 
2014/15 

(1,055) 0 1,055 0 

Receipt of Council 
Tax Grant – 
2015/16 

 (1,055) 1,055 0 

Net Impact 806 806 3971 5,583 

(The numbers in this table are based on 2013/14 data and will be 
updated once the tax base is finally agreed and the grant settlement is 
received in December 2013.)  
 

 The following points explain the contents of table 2 above: 

• The estimated cost of a reduction of 1% in Council Tax is 
£930.5k 

• In 2014/15 the estimate CT freeze grant is £1.055m.  This 
will be received for two years only therefore comes out of 
the MTFS in 2016/17 

184



 

 

• In 2015/16 the estimate CT freeze grant is £1.055m.  This 
will be received for one year only therefore comes out of 
the MTFS in 2016/17 

• In 2016/17 there has been no indication of a CT freeze 
grant being received therefore no grant has been built into 
the MTFS. 

 
● From 1 April 2013 the responsibility for the Council Tax Support 

Scheme was transferred to the Council but with a 10% reduction 
in budget meaning Harrow had to save £3.8m to be able to fund 
the scheme in year one.  A report was taken to Cabinet in 
November recommending no amendments be made to Harrow’s 
support scheme for 2014/15 hence no adjustment have been 
made in the refreshed MTFS.   

 

• The Government are implementing the largest ever reform to the 
benefits system in an effort to save £18bn from the welfare bill. 
The changes are complex and the original MTFS included 
growth of £2m in 2013/14 to create a Welfare Reform 
contingency with £1m of the growth scheduled for removal in 
2015/16.  The anticipated pressures of welfare reform have not 
yet materialised as expected and this is reflected in the 
refreshed MTFS by the £2m growth being removed in 2014/15.  
This does however increase the level of potential risk as we 
cannot yet assess the full impact of welfare reform until it is fully 
implemented.  In additional the council is currently experiencing 
increased numbers of homelessness families which will increase 
this risk further.   

• The care and support spending round settlement announced the 
creation of a £3.8bn pooled health and social care budget from 
2015-16.  This is predicated on much better integration between 
health and social care, so that care is centred around the person 
rather than the service.  In the Spending Review 2013 an extra 
£200m was announced for 2014/15 to support integration.  The 
specific details of this funding and how it will be transferred to 
Local Authorities remains subject to confirmation.   

• The 2011 Census data shows there has been a 15% increase in 
population in the last 10 years with the biggest growth being in 
the birth rate with a 33% increase in 0-4 year olds increasing the 
demand for both school and nursery places.  For people aged 
over 80 years old the census showed an estimated increase of 
1000 people. The original MTFS allowed for adult demographic 
growth of £2.8m in 2013/14 and £2.6m in 2014/15.  In the 
refreshed MTFS a further £600k growth has been included for 
demographic growth within Adult Services.    

 

185



 

 

Financial Performance for 2012/13 and 2013/14 

3.1 In 2012/13 the Council under spent by £0.996m after a planned 
transfer to reserves of £9.808m as detailed below: 

 
MTFS Implementation cost      £4.849m 
Carry forward requests 12/13     £3.268m 
Business Risk       £1.691m 

          £9.808m 

3.2 In 2013/14 the Council budget includes £10m of investment and a 
challenging savings target of £22.4m.  The 2013/14 Quarter 2 Revenue 
Monitoring Report forecasts a net budget pressure of £2.61m on 
directorate budgets reducing to a pressure of £1.88m after accounting 
for corporate items.  The directorates continue to work on management 
actions to further reduce the forecast pressure by year end. 

 
 

2014/15 Budget Refresh Process 
 
4.1 The MTFS as approved by Cabinet / Council in February 2013 is 

detailed in Appendix 1.  The strategy covered the four year period 
2013/14 to 2016/17.  It showed a balanced budget position for 2013/14 
and 2014/15 and a budget gap of £15.693m and £14.236m for 2015/16 
and 2016/17 respectively.  The detailed investment and saving 
schedules supporting the approved MTFS are detailed in Appendix 2.  
A number of the narratives have been re-freshed.  The original MTFS 
narrative is shown in bold and the re-fresh amendments are shown in 
normal text.     

 
4.2 Officers were asked to review approved investments and savings for 

2013/14 and 2014/15 to ensure they are financially robust and 
deliverable and that they are in line with the current administrations 
policies of Cleaner, Safer and Fairer.  The refresh process has resulted 
in a total of 67 proposed changes and takes the budget gap for 
2014/15 to a small surplus of £24k.  The budget gaps for 2015/16 and 
2016/17 are £19.481m and £18.612m respectively.  The revised MTFS 
assumes a 0% increase in Council Tax over the three year period.  
These changes are summarised in table 2 below and shown in detail in 
Appendix 3.  

  
Table 2: MTFS Refresh – Proposed Changes for 2014/15 

 Children 
& 
Families 

Environment 
& Enterprise 

Community,  
Health & 
Wellbeing 

Resources Technical 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Unachievable 
savings 

300 1,490 2,357 460 0 

Re-profiled 
investments / 
savings 

0 456 0 (310) 0 

 

186



 

 

Agreed 
growth no 
longer 
required 

0 (726) 0 0 0 

New growth 800 855 867 150 0 

Substitute 
savings 

0 (1,010) 0 (280) 0 

Technical 
budget 
changes 

0 0 0 0 (5,433) 

TOTAL 1,100 1,065 3,224 20 (5,433) 

 
4.3.1 Appendix 4 details the investments and savings to the budget for 

2014/15 to 2016/17 after the MTFS refresh changes as detailed in 
appendix 3.   

 
Proposed Directorate Changes 
4.4 In total the proposed directorate changes add growth of £5.409m into 

the MTFS in 2014/15.  The impact is summarised in table 2 above and 
the details are shown in Appendix 3.  Further details are provided for 
the more significant items: 

 
 Children and Families 
 
● The unachievable savings value of £300k relates to procurement.  

Procurement savings of £690k were planned over 2 years.  Savings 
are being achieved on placements budgets through the work being 
undertaken with the West London Alliance.  SEN Transport is subject 
to a separate savings target of £641k over 2 years therefore there is 
limited scope for further savings to achieve the full target of £690k.   

 
● The growth of £800k covers two areas.  First growth of £300k is 

requested to cover an increase in demand for Special Needs transport.  
Between Autumn term 2012 and Autumn term 2013 the number of 
young people requiring transport increased by 45 at a cost of £145k.  If 
this trend continues the estimated demand pressure in 2014/15 is 
£300k.   

 
● Secondly growth of £500k has been allocated to cover the costs of an 

additional 12 Social Worker posts. 
 
 Environment and Enterprise  
 
● The unachievable savings value of £1.490m covers nine savings.  

Three of the savings which total £560k are proposed for removal in line 
with the current administrations priorities as detailed: 
● Returning parks to open space (£275k) 
● Review parks and cemeteries opening and locking and review 

specialist dog waste collection (£105k) 
● Introduction of Civic Centre staff car parking charges and other 

free car parks (£180k) 

187



 

 

 
● The proposal to re-profile involves moving the savings for efficiencies 

from the Towards Excellence programme (£375k) and Grounds 
maintenance: annualised hours (£81k) from 2014/15 to 2015/16. 

 
● The directorate are releasing previously agreed growth to go back into 

the MTFS.  There are three elements of growth no longer required the 
most significant being growth of £568k agreed for 20 minute free 
parking.   
   

● Seven bids for additional growth are proposed totalling £855k which 
are matched by substitute savings of £1.010m.  £700k of the substitute 
savings is proposing to re-align the budget for Parking Services income 
to reflect historical performance.  The other significant substitute saving 
is for £300k relating to a proposal to increase leisure centre parking 
income.   

 
● Between now and February 2014 a number of commercially sensitive 

issues are being resolved that may need to be accommodated within 
the final MTFS when it comes back to Cabinet in February.   

   
Community Health and Wellbeing 
 
● Within the twelve agreed savings proposed for removal there are three 

significant items, from the £14.5m savings agreed over the two year 
period 2013-14 and 2014-15.  The first is £500k to secure further 
earmarked investment from the PCT / CCG in Adult Social Care.  The 
NHS Transfer grant is budgeted at £3.535m in 2013/14.  Agreement on 
the s256 has now been reached and has resulted in the Council 
supporting the CCG STARRS service by £500k.  Whilst the transfer for 
2014-15 has yet to be agreed (and the grant is estimated to increase 
slightly to £3.636m), it is unlikely that the grant transfer will be 
significantly higher than the agreed 2013-14 position, hence the 
removal of this saving. The second relates to savings in older people’s 
integrated care for £800k.  Again this is related to funding negotiations 
with the CCG and their capacity to work with the Council to deliver the 
savings.    

 
● The third significant unachievable saving is the commercialisation of 

Hatch End pool, Harrow Arts Centre, Museum and Bannister stadium 
(£355k).  A commercialisation project has been set up to further 
investigate whether this saving can be delivered in the longer term.  

 
● There are three bids for additional growth the most significant being for 

£600k demographic growth in Adult Services, and is in addition to the 
current MTFS demographic growth.  The additional growth is as a 
result of an increasing number of referrals and increasing signs of 
complexity, an increasing number of cases moving into the borough 
and a significant increase in mental health referral rates.  Overall the 
CCG financial position is very serious and it is possible that there will 
be continued pressures experienced as a result, although the Council 
will continue to work constructively to ensure that no inappropriate 

188



 

 

costs are borne by Adult Social Care.  This will mean that the growth 
position will need to be continually monitored until the final budget is 
set.  

 
Resources 
 
● There are six unachievable savings are proposed for removal, the most 

significant being to withdraw the expansion of Legal Practice Shared 
Services (£200k). 

 
● The two growth bids are IT related.  £100k is proposed for the revenue 

implications of security enhancements required by Public Services 
Network (PSN) and £50k is proposed for the contractual increase for 
channel migration supplier costs.   

 
● The substitute saving of £280k is a new saving in relation to the current 

consultation process to delete the post of Chief Executive and 
associated business support. 

     
 
Proposed Technical Budget Changes 
4.5 In total the proposed technical budget changes create capacity of 

£5.433m in the MTFS for 2014/15.  The significant changes are 
detailed below: 

 
● Capital financing costs and investment income – Following a 

review additional capital financing costs of £910k and £700k are 
required in 2014/15 and 2015/16 respectively.  This is as a result to 
delays in capital receipts.  

 
● New Homes Bonus – In March 2013 the government announced the 

creation of the Local Growth Fund for LEP’s who will access funding 
from 2015.  Nationally the fund will amount to £2 billion in 2015/16 and 
£170m of this funding will come from the New Homes Bonus (NHB).  
London Councils have modelled what the NHB top slice will look like 
and their estimate for Harrow is £1.6m in 2015/16.  This has been 
reflected in the refreshed MTFS. 

 
● Education Support Grant  – The MTFS was based on £2.5m of ESG 

being received in 2013/14 with the grant reducing by £1m per annum 
over 2014/15 and 2015/16, leaving £500k in the 2016/17 base budget.   
These assumptions have been reviewed taking into account updated 
pupil numbers, estimated academy conversions and government 
announcements on funding reductions. In January 2013 DFE 
announced a £10m reduction in ESG between 13/14 and 14/15 and 
from 2015/16 the ESG will be reduced nationally by £200m with this 
funding being transferred to the creation of the Local Growth Fund for 
LEP’s. The MTFS has been refreshed to assume additional grant in 
14/15 but with grant reductions in 2015/16 and 2016/17.  By 2016/17 
there will be £300k left in the base budget. 

 

189



 

 

● Council Tax and CT Freeze Grant - The MTFS assumed an annual 
2% increase in Council Tax.   To freeze the Council Tax at 0% increase 
over the 3 year period 2014/15 to 2016/17 is estimated to cost £1.861m 
per annum.  A Council Tax freeze grant of £1.055m is assumed for 
2014/15 and 2015/16.  The financial implications of this are shown in 
table 1.    

 
● Formula Grant Reduction – A reduction in formula grant of £1m is 

estimated for 2014/15.  This is based on estimates from London 
Councils and will be finalised once the grant settlement is announced 
on 19 December. 

 
● Council Tax Base / Collection Fund – Additional funding of £1.519m 

has been assumed as a result of the increase in the council tax base 
as a result of a mixture of new properties and an under spend on the 
Council Tax Support Scheme.  A prudent increase of £100k has been 
assumed in the Council Tax base for 2015/16 and 2016/17 and this will 
be refreshed for the February Cabinet report using the agreed Council 
Tax base.   The Collection Fund is assumed to increase by £681k as a 
result of the additional collection of arrears, new properties coming on 
stream mid year and static growth on the Council Tax Support Scheme.  
. 

● Budget Planning Contingency - The contingency currently stands at 
£1.171m.  The MTFS planned to increase the contingency by £1.829m 
in 2014/15.  To achieve a balanced budget position the proposal is to 
not increase the contingency in 2014/15 and keep it at its 2013/14 
level.  A contingent figure in the region of £1m in the base budget is 
consistent with previous years.    

 
● Welfare Reform Contingency – In 2013/14 growth of £2m was built 

into the MTFS to fund anticipated pressures as a result of the 
governments Welfare Reforms.   The plan was to reduce the growth by 
£1m in 2015/16 to leave £1m in the base budget going forward.  The 
implementation of the Welfare Reform cost pressures have not 
materialised as expected.  To achieve a balanced budget for 2014/15 it 
is proposed to remove the Welfare Reform Contingency in full in 
2014/15.  There is a risk to this proposal, if anticipated costs start to 
materialise these will have to be contained within current resources.  

 
● Reduce inflation on goods and services - The current MTFS 

assumes inflation of 2% per annum on goods and services.  As at 
October RPI is 2.6% per the Office for National Statistics.  The 
proposal is to reduce inflation to 1.3% for the three years 2014/15 to 
2016/17 which creates £600k within the MTFS each year.  This 
proposal is a concern for the directorates and will require strong 
contract management to manage the reduction.  Officers will ensure 
this limited budget is prioritised in an efficient manner in order to reflect 
where price inflation does and does not occur.   

 
 

190



 

 

 Public Health Funding 2014/15 
 
5.1 A two year ring fenced grant allocation for Public Health was 

announced in January 2013 with Harrow allocated £9.146m for 2014-
15.  The DOH recently announced the extension of the ring fenced 
grant for a further year to 31st March 2016.  In setting the allocations, 
the DOH set a minimum of 2.8% and maximum of 10% growth in 
budgets for each year – 19 local authorities are at the minimum in 
2014-15 and 8 at the maximum. The increase for Harrow in 2014-15 is 
3.1%, marginally above the minimum increase, resulting in Harrow 
being the 2nd lowest spend per head of population over the 33 London 
boroughs.   

 
5.2 2013/14 has been the first year that Public Health team have operated 

within the Council and in agreement with Barnet Council, a joint team 
has been developed and is supported by a single Director of Public 
Health.  Given a number of uncertainties around liabilities and potential 
additional responsibilities, a prudent approach was taken in setting the 
commissioning intentions and a contingency was held to mitigate some 
of these risks whilst taking time to consider appropriately how best to 
utilise this funding to meet both public health and wider Council 
objectives.   

 
5.3 During this first year of operation a number of contracts have been 

reviewed and consolidated with existing Council contracts, and a 
programme of procurement will continue into 2014-15 to ensure that 
commissioned services provide value for money, meet public health 
outcomes and reflect the commitment to providing support to those 
most in need.  Appendix 4 details the level of funding proposed across 
both the mandatory and discretionary services and proposes additional 
investments in priority areas, a contingency and enables an 
unallocated amount of grant to be held for later allocation as 
appropriate.  

 
5.4 Cabinet are asked to approve the draft Public Health budget for 

2014/15 as detailed in Appendix 5.  Following approval of the draft 
budget the commissioning intentions will be presented to the Health 
and Wellbeing Board at its meeting in January 2014. 

 
 

Contingency 
 
6.1 The planned contingency within the budget for 2014/15 was £5m made 

up of £2m for Welfare Reform and £3m for budget planning.   Following 
the refresh process the proposed contingency for 2014/15 will be 
£1.171m.  This is a significant reduction and will mean directorates will 
have to monitor their budgets very tightly and pressures, as far as 
possible, will have to be contained within current resources The 
contingency is needed if, for example, decision makers decide not to 
implement proposals due to adverse equalities implications. 

 

191



 

 

Equality Impact Assessments 
 
7.1 All new service budget proposals and those previously approved which 

cover 2013/14 and 2014/15 are subject to an initial equalities impact 
assessment.  Full equalities impact assessments will be carried out on 
proposals where appropriate.  An equalities impact assessment will be 
carried out on the whole budget, when all proposals have been 
identified, to ensure that decision makers are aware of any overall 
impact on any particular protected group.   

 

London Boroughs Grants Scheme 
 
8.1 The London Boroughs Grants Committee proposed a scheme for 

London that cost London Boroughs £9m in 2013-14 compared to 
£11.5m in 2012-13.  This gave Harrow a saving of £74k in 2013-14.   

 
8.2 The Leaders Committee at London Councils met on 12 November 

2013 to propose contributions for 2014/15.  Harrow’s contribution is 
£239,219, a reduction of 9.3% on last year.  .   

 
8.3 Cabinet is asked to agree the sum of £239,219 as Harrow’s 

contribution to the London Grant Scheme in 2014/15. 
 

Proposals for General Reserves 
 
9.1 The detailed risk assessment of the budget will be updated for 

February cabinet. The Cabinet agreed the following reserves policy in 
February 2012: 

 
The risk assessment of the budget dictates the minimum level of 
general balances required. 
 
One of the calls on any under spend at the end of the year will be 
a contribution to general balances.  The value of the contribution 
will be determined with regard to the size of the under spend, the 
underlying strength of the balance sheet, the need to support the 
transformation programme, and other priorities. 
 
At the current time no amendments are required to the reserves policy. 
 

9.2 The value of non ear marked reserves as at 01 November 2013 is 
£8.646m.     

 
9.3 The schedule of property disposals is subject to delays dependent 

upon a mixture of issues including the disposals process and the 
change in market conditions.   To support managing this scenario 
Members are asked to agree to the establishment of a capital 
financing risk reserve to allow for delays in capital receipts.  

 
 

192



 

 

Schools Budget 2014/15 
 
10.1 The funding arrangements for the Dedicated Schools Grant and the 

Schools budget for 2014/15 are detailed in Appendix 6.  Cabinet are 
asked to note the statutory changes to schools funding for 2014/15 
and approve the proposed arrangements for the 2014/15 schools 
funding formula (as agreed by Schools Forum on 15 October 2013), 

 
 

Legal implications 

 
11.1 Decision makers should have due regard to the public sector equality 

duty in making their decisions. The equalities duties are continuing 
duties they are not duties to secure a particular outcome. The 
equalities impact will be revisited on each of the proposals as they are 
developed. Consideration of the duties should precede the decision. It 
is important that Cabinet has regard to the statutory grounds in the 
light of all available material such as consultation responses. The 
statutory grounds of the public sector equality duty are found at 
section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 and are as follows: 

 
A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due 
regard to the need to: 

(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other 
conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act; 

(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; 

(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 
Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity 
between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and 
persons who do not share it involves having due regard, in particular, 
to the need to: 

(a) remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a 
relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that 
characteristic; 

(b) take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic that are different from the needs of persons 
who do not share it; 

(c) encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to 
participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation by 
such persons is disproportionately low. 
The steps involved in meeting the needs of disabled persons that are 
different from the needs of persons who are not disabled include, in 
particular, steps to take account of disabled persons’ disabilities. 
Having due regard to the need to foster good relations between 
persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons 
who do not share it involves having due regard, in particular, to the 
need to: 

193



 

 

 
(a) Tackle prejudice, and 
(b) Promote understanding. 

Compliance with the duties in this section may involve treating some 
persons more favourably than others; but that is not to be taken as 
permitting conduct that would otherwise be prohibited by or under this 
Act.  The relevant protected characteristics are: 

• Age 

• Disability 

• Gender reassignment 

• Pregnancy and maternity 

• Race, 

• Religion or belief 

• Sex 

• Sexual orientation 

• Marriage and Civil partnership 
 
11.2 It is important that robust equalities impact assessments are completed 

and that consultation is done whilst the budget is in a formative stage 
prior to final approval in February 2014. 

 
11.3 The Council has a fiduciary duty to residents to set a balanced budget. 
 
 

 
Consultation 
 
12.1 As a matter of public law the duty to consult with regards to proposals 

to vary, reduce or withdraw services will arise in 3 circumstances: 

• Where there is a statutory requirement in the relevant legislative 
framework; 

• Where the practice has been to consult or where a policy 
document states the council will consult then the council must 
comply with its own practice or policy; and 

• Exceptionally, where the matter is so important that there is a 
legitimate expectation of consultation. 
 

12.2 Regardless of whether the Council has a duty to consult, if it chooses 
to consult, such consultation must be carried out fairly. In general, a 
consultation can only be considered as proper consultation if: 

• Comments are genuinely invited at the formative stage; 

• The consultation documents include sufficient information about  
the proposal to allow those being consulted to be properly 
informed and to give an informed response; 

• There is adequate time given to the consultees to consider the 
proposals; and 

• There is a mechanism for feeding back the comments and those 
comments are conscientiously taken into account by the 
decision maker / decision making body when making a final 
decision. 

194



 

 

 
 12.3 Finally there will be staff consultation about these proposals in line with 

the Council’s procedures. 
 

Financial Implications 
 
13.1 Financial matters are integral to this report. 

 
Performance Issues 
 
14.1 The in- year measurement of the Council is reported in the Strategic 

Performance Report.  The Corporate Plan, which will be developed 
alongside the Budget Report, will have measures within it which will set 
out how Council delivery in 2014/15 will be measured and this again 
will be reported through the Strategic Performance Report.   

 

Environmental Impact  
 
15.1 The environmental impact of the draft budget will be complex and the 

net position is not known at present. 
 

Risk Management Implications 

 
16.1 As part of the budget process the detailed budget risk register will be 

reviewed and updated.  This helps to test the robustness of the budget 
and support the reserves policy. 

 
Corporate Priorities 

 
17.1 The draft budget for 2014/15 supports delivery of the Council’s vision 

and priorities. 
 
 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 

 
 

   
On behalf of 

Name: Simon George x   Director of Finance and 
Assurance 

  
Date: 2 December 2013 

   

    
On behalf of 

Name: Jessica Farmer x  Monitoring Officer 

 
Date: 2 December 2013 

   
 

 
 

195



 

 

Section 4 – Performance Officer Clearance 
 

 
 

   
On behalf of 

Name: Alex Dewsnap x  Divisional Director 

  
Date:   30 November 2013 

  Strategic Commissioning 

 
 

Section 5 – Environmental Impact Officer 

Clearance 
 

 
 

   
On behalf of 

Name: Andrew Baker x  Corporate Director of 
Environment & Enterprise 

  
Date:  2 December 2013 

   

 
 

Section 6 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 
 
 

Contact: Dawn Calvert 
Head of Strategic Finance and Business. 
Email:  dawn.calvert@harrow.gov.uk 

 

Background Papers: 

• None  
 
 

 

Call-In Waived by the 

Chairman of Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee 

 

  
NOT APPLICABLE 
 
 
[Call-in applies] 
 

 

196



MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2013-14 to 2016-17 APPENDIX 1

(AS APPROVED BY CABINET / COUNCIL FEBRUARY 2013)

2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015/16 2016-17

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Budget Requirement Brought Forward 173,113 181,063 174,120 168,874

Capital Financing Costs 1,102 -743 -390 841

Grant Changes 11,914 642 475 -525

Other Technical Changes 4,557 1,235 2,279 3,289

Inflation 2,784 3,160 4,060 4,060

Transformation -2,234 -296 -140 0

Community Health and Wellbeing -2,255 -6,282 2,800 2,500

Children and Families -1,076 -1,672 413 413

Environment and Enterprise -4,469 -1,414 675 753

Resources -2,373 -1,573 275 -225

Total 7,950 -6,943 10,447 11,106

FUNDING GAP 0 0 -15,693 -14,236

Total Change in Budget Requirement 7,950 -6,943 -5,246 -3,130

Revised Budget Requirement 173,113 181,063 174,120 168,874 165,744

Collection Fund Deficit/-surplus -1,335 -1,045 -500 0 0

Revenue Support Grant -67,196 -52,100 -43,075 -36,282 -31,066

Top Up -20,154 -20,773 -20,773 -20,773

Retained Non Domestic Rates 0 -14,725 -14,872 -15,021 -15,171

Amount to be raised from Council Tax 104,582 93,039 94,900 96,798 98,734

Council Tax at Band D £1,186.55  £  1,210.28  £  1,234.49  £  1,259.18 £1,284.36

Increase in Council Tax (%) 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00

Tax Base 88,140 76,874 76,874 76,874 76,874

Collection rate 98.50% 97.50% 97.50% 97.50% 97.50%

Gross Tax Base 89,482 78,845 78,845 78,845 78,845

197



APPENDIX 1

198



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

T
E

C
H

N
IC

A
L

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
H

A
N

G
E

S

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7
2
0
1
3
-1

4
 

N
e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

C
a
p

it
a
l 
a
n

d
 I
n

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t

T
e
c
h
 0

0
1

C
a
p

it
a
l 
fi

n
a
n

c
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

 a
n

d
 i
n

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 

in
c
o

m
e

1
,1

0
2

-7
4
3

-3
9
0

8
4
1

T
o

ta
l 
C

a
p

it
a
l 
a
n

d
 I
n

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
C

h
a
n

g
e
s

1
,1

0
2

-7
4
3

-3
9
0

8
4
1

0

G
ra

n
t 

C
h

a
n

g
e
s

T
e
c
h
 0

0
2

N
e
w

 h
o

m
e
s
 b

o
n

u
s
 -

 T
o
p
 s

lic
e
 o

f 
N

e
w

 H
o
m

e
s
 

B
o
n
u
s
 t
o
 f

u
n
d
 L

E
P

 a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
d
 i
n
 C

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 

S
p
e
n
d
in

g
 R

e
v
ie

w
 (

C
S

R
) 

2
0
1
3

-1
1
4
6

-5
9
1

-5
2
5

-5
2
5

-2
,8

6
7

T
e
c
h
 0

0
3

S
S

C
F

 G
ra

n
t 

re
c
e
iv

e
d

 f
ro

m
 G

e
n

e
ra

l 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 (
G

L
A

) 
- 

re
d

u
c
ti

o
n

. 
G

ra
n
t 
n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

u
n
ri
n
g
fe

n
c
e
d

9
8

0

T
e
c
h
 0

0
4

C
o

u
n

c
il
 T

a
x
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 G

ra
n

t 
2
0
1
2
-1

3
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 -

 

o
n

e
 o

ff
 o

n
ly

2
,6

0
8

0

T
e
c
h
 0

0
5

P
C

T
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 v

ia
 s

2
5
6
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t.
 C

C
G

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 

v
ia

 s
2
5
6
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t.
 F

u
n
d
in

g
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 i
n
it
ia

lly
 b

y 

th
e
 g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
to

 H
e
a
lt
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 
-5

4
6

2
3
3

T
e
c
h
 0

0
6

G
ra

n
ts

 r
o

ll
e
d

 i
n

to
 F

o
rm

u
la

 G
ra

n
t.

 S
p
e
c
if
ic

 

g
ra

n
ts

 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 n
o
w

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 f

o
rm

u
la

 f
u
n
d
in

g
1
3
,7

1
4

0

T
e
c
h
 0

0
7

E
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 G
ra

n
t.

 N
e
w

 g
ra

n
t 
in

 r
e
la

ti
o
n
 

to
 L

o
c
a
l 
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 (
L
E

A
) 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
s
, 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 f

o
rm

u
la

 G
ra

n
t

-2
,5

0
0

1
,0

0
0

1
,0

0
0

-2
,5

0
0

T
e
c
h
 0

0
8

E
a
rl

y
 I
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 G

ra
n

t 
S

p
e
n

d
 T

ra
n

s
fe

rr
e
d

 t
o

 

D
e
d

ic
a
te

d
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 G

ra
n

t 
(D

S
G

)
-3

1
4

3
1
4

T
o

ta
l 
G

ra
n

t 
C

h
a
n

g
e
s

1
1
,9

1
4

6
4
2

4
7
5

-5
2
5

-5
,0

5
3

O
th

e
r 

T
e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
C

h
a
n

g
e
s

T
e
c
h
 0

1
2

F
re

e
d

o
m

 P
a
s
s
 L

e
v

y
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

. 
C

o
s
t 
o
f 

F
re

e
d
o
m

 

p
a
s
s
e
s
 c

h
a
rg

e
d
 t
o
 H

a
rr

o
w

 b
y 

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 (

T
fL

)
6
8
1

3
5
0

3
6
0

3
7
0

9
,6

6
2

P
ro

v
is

io
n

s
 a

n
d

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s

T
e
c
h
 0

1
3

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t

o
 i
n

s
u

ra
n

c
e
 p

ro
v

is
io

n
3
0
0

0
0

0
1
,7

3
0

C
a
p

it
a
li
s
a
ti

o
n

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
/r

e
c
h

a
rg

e
s
 s

tr
a
te

g
y

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

199



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

T
E

C
H

N
IC

A
L

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
H

A
N

G
E

S

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7
2
0
1
3
-1

4
 

N
e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

T
e
c
h
 0

1
4

R
e
d

u
c
e
 r

e
li
a
n

c
e
 o

n
 c

a
p

it
a
li
s
a
ti

o
n

9
8
6

1
4

0
0

1
4

M
is

c
e
ll
a
n

e
o

u
s

T
e
c
h
 0

1
5

P
ri

n
t 

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

C
o

s
ts

-r
e
v

e
rs

a
l 
o

f 
o

n
e
 o

ff
 

b
a
ll
o

o
n

 p
a
y
m

e
n

t 
a
ll
o

c
a
ti

o
n

 O
n
e
 o

ff
 c

o
s
t 
in

 2
0
1
2
-

1
3

-4
2
1

4
2
1

T
e
c
h
 0

1
6

P
in

n
e
r 

R
o

a
d

 c
o

s
ts

 p
ri

o
r 

to
 d

is
p

o
s
a
l 
- 

o
n

e
 o

ff
 

in
 2

0
1
2
-1

3
-1

0
1
0

T
e
c
h
 0

1
7

B
a
la

n
c
e
 o

n
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 C

o
s
t 

(S
S

C
) 

a
n

n
u

a
l 
re

v
ie

w
 -

 n
e
t 

c
h

a
rg

e
 t

o
 n

o
n

 g
e
n

e
ra

l 

fu
n

d
. 
C

o
s
t 
to

 g
e
n
e
ra

l 
fu

n
d
 o

f 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
 t
o
 H

R
A

.
1
5
0

1
5
0

3
,4

2
2

T
e
c
h
 0

1
8

B
u

d
g

e
t 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 c
o

n
ti

n
g

e
n

c
y

1
7
1

1
,8

2
9

3
0
0
0

3
0
0
0

1
7
1

T
e
c
h
 0

1
9

C
o

n
ti

n
g

e
n

c
y
 f

o
r 

W
e
lf

a
re

 R
e
fo

rm
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

p
re

s
s
u

re
s

2
,0

0
0

-1
0
0
0

2
,0

0
0

T
e
c
h
 0

2
0

S
a
v

in
g

 f
ro

m
 f

o
rm

u
la

 c
h

a
n

g
e
 o

n
 f

re
e
d

o
m

 

p
a
s
s
e
s
 -

 a
g

re
e
d

 a
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 c
o

u
n

c
il
s
 T

E
C

 i
n

 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 R

e
a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
o
s
ts

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
s
 g

iv
in

g
 H

a
rr

o
w

 a
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

c
o
s
ts

-1
0
8

-8
1

-8
1

9
,6

6
2

T
e
c
h
 0

2
1

U
ti

li
ty

 i
n

fl
a
ti

o
n

 -
 a

ll
o

c
a
ti

o
n

 i
n

 2
0
1
2
-1

3
 

o
v

e
rs

ta
te

d
-3

0
0

T
e
c
h
 0

2
2

R
e
d

u
n

d
a
n

c
y
 p

ro
v

is
io

n
1
,0

0
0

-1
,0

0
0

1
,0

0
0

T
o

ta
l 
O

th
e
r 

T
e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
C

h
a
n

g
e
s

4
,5

5
7

1
,2

3
5

2
,2

7
9

3
,2

8
9

2
8
,0

9
2

P
a
y
 a

n
d

 I
n

fl
a
ti

o
n

T
e
c
h
 0

2
3

P
a
y
 A

w
a
rd

 @
 1

%
 2

0
1
3
-1

4
 a

n
d

 2
0
1
4
-1

5
, 
th

e
n

 

2
%

 p
a

9
5
0

9
5
0

1
8
5
0

1
8
5
0

T
e
c
h
 0

2
4

E
m

p
lo

y
e
r'

s
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s
 @

 0
.2

5
%

 i
n

 

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
n

 0
.5

%
 p

.a
.

2
0
0

4
0
0

4
0
0

4
0
0

T
e
c
h
 0

2
5

In
fl

a
ti

o
n

 o
n

 g
o

o
d

s
 a

n
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 @

 1
.5

%
 i
n

 

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 a

n
d

 2
%

 p
.a

. 
fr

o
m

 2
0
1
4
-1

5
1
,3

6
0

1
,8

1
0

1
,8

1
0

1
,8

1
0

T
e
c
h
 0

2
6

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 
p

ro
v

is
io

n
 f

o
r 

e
le

c
tr

ic
it

y
 a

n
d

 g
a
s
 

p
ri

c
e
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
s

2
5
7

200



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

T
E

C
H

N
IC

A
L

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
H

A
N

G
E

S

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7
2
0
1
3
-1

4
 

N
e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

T
e
c
h
 0

2
7

E
x
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

R
P

I 
( 

2
.9

%
)o

n
 N

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

N
o

n
 D

o
m

e
s
ti

c
 R

a
te

s
 o

n
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 

a
b

o
v

e
 2

%
1
7

T
o

ta
l 
P

a
y
 a

n
d

 P
ri

c
e
 I
n

fl
a
ti

o
n

2
,7

8
4

3
,1

6
0

4
,0

6
0

4
,0

6
0

0

C
R

O
S

S
 C

U
T

T
IN

G
 T

R
A

N
S

F
O

R
M

A
T

IO
N

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E

T
e
c
h
 0

2
8

M
o

b
il
e
 a

n
d

 F
le

x
ib

le
 w

o
rk

in
g

 -
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

a
n

d
 r

u
n

n
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

9
6

2
4

T
e
c
h
 0

2
9

T
e
rm

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
. 

S
a
v
in

g
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 

re
n
e
g
o
ti
a
te

d
 t
e
rm

s
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 w

it
h
 s

ta
ff

.

-9
6
0

-3
2
0

-1
4
0

T
e
c
h
 0

3
0

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
li
s
a
ti

o
n

 p
ro

je
c
t.

 B
e
n

e
fi

ts
 

in
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 i
n

to
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 p
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

. 
 

1
0
0

T
e
c
h
 0

3
1

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
- 

C
a
te

g
o

ry
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
s
a
v

in
g

s
. 

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 t
e
rm

s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 s

u
p
p
lie

rs
. 
N

o
te

 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
a
llo

c
a
te

d
 t
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s

T
e
c
h
 0

3
2

A
g

e
n

c
y
 S

ta
ff

 -
 r

e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 i
n

 u
s
a
g

e
. 

N
o
te

 s
a
v
in

g
s
 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
a
llo

c
a
te

d
 t
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s

T
e
c
h
 0

3
3

S
ta

ff
in

g
 -

 V
a
c
a
n

c
y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t.
 I

n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 

th
e
 t
im

e
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 f

ill
 v

a
c
a
n
t 
p
o
s
ts

. 
N

o
te

 s
a
v
in

g
s
 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
a
llo

c
a
te

d
 t
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s

T
o

ta
l 
T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

-7
6
4

-2
9
6

-1
4
0

0
0

T
o

ta
l 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
1
9
5
9
3

3
9
9
8

6
2
8
4

7
6
6
5

2
3
0
3
9

201



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
'S

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 

N
e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

In
v

e
s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

C
F

 0
0
1

In
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 C
L

A
 (

C
h

il
d

re
n

 L
o

o
k
e
d

 A
ft

e
r)

 

p
la

c
e
m

e
n

t 
b

u
d

g
e
ts

 r
e
fl

e
c
ti

n
g

 g
ro

w
th

 i
n

 

c
h

il
d

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 c

h
a
n

g
in

g
 

d
e
m

o
g

ra
p

h
ic

1
7
8

1
7
8

1
7
8

1
7
8

6
,8

6
5

C
F

 0
0
2

In
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 C
W

D
 (

C
h

il
d

re
n

 w
it

h
 

D
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s
) 

c
li
e
n

t 
c
o

s
ts

 r
e
fl

e
c
ti

n
g

 g
ro

w
th

 

in
 c

h
il
d

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

8
2

8
2

8
2

8
2

1
,3

2
6

C
F

 0
0
3

In
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 s
ta

ff
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

 r
e
fl

e
c
ti

n
g

 

g
ro

w
th

 i
n

 c
h

il
d

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 c

h
a
n

g
in

g
 

d
e
m

o
g

ra
p

h
ic

1
5
3

1
5
3

1
5
3

1
5
3

8
,4

1
3

C
F

 0
0
4

L
o

s
s
 o

f 
Y

o
u

th
 J

u
s
ti

c
e
 B

o
a
rd

 f
u

n
d

in
g

9
0

1
0

4
9
6

C
F

 0
0
5

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
o

f 
d

u
ti

e
s
 f

ro
m

 Y
o
u
th

 J
u
s
ti
c
e
 B

o
a
rd

 

in
 r

e
s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

n
e
w

 d
u

ti
e
s
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 

o
n

 r
e
m

a
n

d

2
7
0

2
7
0

C
F

 0
0
6

S
p

e
c
ia

l 
E

d
u

c
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
N

e
e
d

s
 (

S
E

N
) 

p
o

s
t 

to
 

u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e
 n

e
w

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 d

u
ti

e
s

5
0

4
3
3

C
F

 0
0
7

Q
u

a
li
fi

e
d

 S
o

c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

e
r 

- 
R

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
&

 

R
e
te

n
ti

o
n

 M
a
rk

e
t 

S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

t
1
5
0

4
,8

5
2

C
F

 0
0
8

C
re

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

A
d

v
a
n

c
e
d

 P
ra

c
ti

ti
o

n
e
r 

S
o

c
ia

l 

W
o

rk
e
r 

(S
W

) 
p

o
s
ts

3
1
0

7
0

8
,4

1
3

C
F

 0
0
9

P
ri

n
c
ip

a
l 
S

o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

e
r 

ro
le

 -
 p

o
s
t-

M
u

n
ro

7
0

7
7
6

C
F

 0
1
0

H
e
a
lt

h
 C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r 
p

o
s
t 

a
t 

N
o

rt
h

w
ic

k
 

P
a
rk

 H
o

s
p

it
a
l 
(N

W
P

)
5
0

6
1
8

C
F

 0
1
1

Y
o

u
th

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

ro
p

o
s
a
ls

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

e
x
tr

a
 

s
u
m

m
e
r 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s

7
0

6
4
1

C
F

 0
1
2

P
ro

je
c
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
C

o
s
ts

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

S
p

e
c
ia

l 
N

e
e
d

s
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

, 
C

h
il
d

re
n

's
 

C
e
n

tr
e
 r

e
m

o
d

e
ll
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
e
v

e
lo

p
in

g
 n

e
w

 

tr
a
n

s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 p
ro

je
c
ts

9
7

-9
7

9
7

C
F

 0
1
4

S
h

o
rt

fa
ll
 i
n

 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 s

a
v

in
g

s
 f

ro
m

 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 m

o
d

e
l

1
8
5

3
,3

1
6

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

202



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
'S

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 

N
e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

C
F

 0
1
5

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 I
n

d
e
x
in

g
 S

c
a
n

n
in

g
 (

C
IS

) 

S
ta

ff
in

g
4
5

4
2
1

T
o

ta
l 
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

1
,8

0
0

3
9
6

4
1
3

4
1
3

3
6
,9

3
7

S
a
v

in
g

s

C
F

 0
1
6

In
te

g
ra

te
d

 C
h

il
d

re
n

's
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 -

 

R
e
m

a
in

in
g

 s
ta

ff
in

g
 s

a
v

in
g

s
 f

ro
m

 

re
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
n
 2

0
1
1
-1

2

-1
0
0

1
2
,0

3
3

C
F

 0
1
7

C
o

n
s
o

li
d

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

s
ta

ff
in

g
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 d
e
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
1
 

D
iv

is
io

n
a
l 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
p

o
s
t 

2
0
1
5
/1

6

-1
6
7

-1
4
8

2
,0

7
9

C
F

 0
1
8

D
e
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
H

e
a
d

 o
f 

E
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 &

 

S
c
h

o
o

l 
O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 
-5

0
-5

0
3
8
1

C
F

 0
1
9

R
e
c
o

n
fi

g
u

ra
ti

o
n

 o
f 

E
a
rl

y
 I
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e
 F

a
m

il
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

-1
5
0

-1
5
0

1
,9

5
4

C
F

 0
2
0

C
h

il
d

re
n

's
 C

e
n

tr
e
s
 r

e
m

o
d

e
ll
in

g
 t

o
 

re
c
o
n
fi
g
u
re

 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
o
ff

e
r

-3
7
3

-2
0
0

1
,3

7
3

C
F

 0
2
1

S
p

e
c
ia

l 
N

e
e
d

s
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 I
I 
- 

d
e
m

a
n

d
 

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 I
n

d
e
p

e
n

d
e
n

t 

T
ra

v
e
l 
T

ra
in

in
g

-5
6

-4
5

3
,3

8
3

C
F

 0
2
2

S
p

e
c
ia

l 
N

e
e
d

s
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 I
II
 -

 f
u

ll
 m

a
rk

e
t 

e
n

g
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 o

u
ts

o
u
rc

in
g
 o

f 
s
o
m

e
 

ro
u
te

s

-4
0

-5
0
0

3
,3

8
3

C
F

 0
2
3

In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

C
h

a
rg

in
g

 f
o

r 
n

o
n

 S
ta

tu
to

ry
 

E
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
P

s
y
c
h

o
lo

g
y
 t

o
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

-1
2
5

-9
0

5
2
1

C
F

 0
2
4

R
e
v

ie
w

 o
f 

s
e
m

i 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 
c
lo

s
u

re
 o

f 
H

o
n

e
y
p

o
t 

L
a
n

e

-4
1
0

6
2
5

C
F

 0
2
5

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
S

a
v

in
g

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

p
la

c
e
m

e
n

ts
-6

2
0

-7
0

1
8
,8

0
6

C
F

 0
2
6

S
a
v

in
g

s
 f

ro
m

 c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 b

u
d

g
e
ts

 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

o
n

n
e
x
io

n
s
, 
p

a
re

n
ti

n
g

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

, 

d
ru

g
s
 &

 a
lc

o
h

o
l 
a
n

d
 c

li
n

ic
 i
n

 a
 b

o
x

-8
3
5

-2
5
5

2
,8

7
0

203



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
'S

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 

N
e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

C
F

 0
2
7

R
e
c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
R

e
s
p

it
e
 C

a
re

 f
o

r 

C
W

D
 

-1
0
0

1
,3

2
6

C
F

 0
2
8

C
o

n
s
o

li
d

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

E
a
rl

y
 Y

e
a
rs

 t
ra

in
in

g
 

fu
n

c
ti

o
n

s
 -

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 

&
 s

ta
ff

in
g

-1
0
0

-5
0

1
5
0

C
F

 0
2
9

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 S

a
v

in
g

s
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 b

y
 

9
F

T
E

-2
6
0

1
,8

5
9

T
o

ta
l 
C

h
il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 F

a
m

il
ie

s
 S

a
v

in
g

s
-2

,8
7
6

-2
,0

6
8

0
0

5
0
,7

4
3

L
a
te

 S
a
v

in
g

s

C
F

 0
3
0

P
ri

c
e
s
 

-1
0
5

1
8
,8

0
6

C
F

 0
3
1

V
a
c
a
n

c
y
 R

a
te

 0
.5

%
 

-6
2

1
2
,4

0
0

C
F

 0
3
2

A
g

e
n

c
y
 s

a
v

in
g

s
-6

6
9
,0

4
4

C
F

 0
3
3

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
-5

2
1
8
,8

0
6

S
u

b
 t

o
ta

l
-2

8
5

0
0

0
5
9
,0

5
6

N
e
t 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 &
 F

a
m

il
ie

s
-1

,3
6
1

-1
,6

7
2

4
1
3

4
1
3

1
4
6
,7

3
6

204



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

 &
 E

N
T

E
R

P
R

IS
E

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 

N
e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

In
v

e
s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
&

E
0
0
1

P
u

b
li
c
 R

e
a
lm

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 (

P
R

S
) 

- 
V

e
h

ic
le

 

e
a
rl

y
 t

e
rm

in
a
ti

o
n

 p
a
y
m

e
n

ts
2
9
5

-2
9
5

2
,4

7
7

E
&

E
0
0
2

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 g
ro

w
th

1
6
3

-1
6
3

1
6
3

E
&

E
0
0
3

P
a
rk

in
g

 r
e
v

ie
w

 -
 2

0
 m

in
u
te

 f
re

e
 p

a
rk

in
g

2
6
1

3
0
7

-4
,4

4
8

E
&

E
0
0
4

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 
H

a
rr

o
w

 T
o

w
n

 C
e
n

tr
e
 c

le
a
n

in
g

 

fo
ll
o

w
in

g
 f

ro
m

 O
u

te
r 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 F
u

n
d

 2
 

(O
L

F
2
)

8
7

2
,0

4
6

E
&

E
0
0
5

C
C

T
V

 c
a
m

e
ra

 i
n

c
o

m
e
 d

e
c
li
n

e
7
0

5
6

4
5

E
&

E
0
0
6

C
R

C
 (

C
a
rb

o
n

 R
e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 C
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t)
/E

A
 

(E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
A

g
e
n

c
y
) 

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 c
o

s
t 

o
f 

C
R

C
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 

9
3

3
9
2

E
&

E
0
0
7

W
e
lf

a
re

 t
o

 w
o

rk
 X

c
it

e
: 

1
0
8

1
0
8

E
&

E
0
0
8

W
e
s
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 W
a
s
te

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 (
W

L
W

A
) 

L
e
v

y
 

1
,2

1
8

6
8
9

6
7
7

7
0
8

7
,9

6
0

E
&

E
0
0
9

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
re

la
te

d
 p

re
s
s
u

re
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

c
h

a
n

g
e
 i
n

 m
a
rk

e
t 

p
ri

c
e
 a

n
d

 p
ro

fi
t 

s
h

a
re

 

fo
r 

D
ry

 r
e
c
y
c
la

b
le

s
2
5
6

-7
9
5

E
&

E
0
1
0

M
a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
 o

f 
C

C
T

V
 c

a
m

e
ra

s
 

7
1

4
9
4

T
o

ta
l 
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

2
,5

5
2

6
0
8

7
3
3

7
5
3

8
,3

9
9

S
a
v

in
g

s

E
&

E
0
1
1

P
u

b
li
c
 R

e
a
lm

 I
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 M

o
d

e
l 

(P
R

IS
M

) 
e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
. 

 T
o
w

a
rd

s
 E

x
c
e
lle

n
c
e
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
ie

s
-1

,5
0
0

-3
5
0

1
1
,2

7
8

E
&

E
0
1
2

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
re

d
u

c
ti

o
n

s
 i
n

 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t
-1

0
0

-2
8
5

2
8
7

E
&

E
0
1
3

P
u

b
li
c
 R

e
a
lm

 P
o

s
t 

re
d

u
c
ti

o
n

s
. 

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 i
n
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
's

 

a
llo

tm
e
n
ts

-2
4

E
&

E
0
1
4

S
L

A
 I
n

c
o

m
e
 -

 H
R

A
, 
S

c
h

o
o

ls
 &

 O
th

e
r 

B
o

d
ie

s
. 
 I
n

c
re

a
s
e
d

 i
n

c
o

m
e
 f

ro
m

 r
e
v

is
e
d

 

S
L

A
 w

it
h

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
-1

9
3
9
2

E
&

E
0
1
5

T
e
x
ti

le
 r

e
c
y
c
li
n

g
-1

0
-7

9
5

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

205



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

 &
 E

N
T

E
R

P
R

IS
E

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 

N
e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

E
&

E
0
1
6

C
li
m

a
te

 C
h

a
n

g
e
 -

 F
le

x
ib

le
 r

e
ti

re
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 

c
o

n
s
u

m
a
b

le
s
 b

u
d

g
e
t

-3
1

-5
8

3
9
2

E
&

E
0
1
7

In
c
re

a
s
e
 I
n

c
o

m
e
 a

n
d

 r
e
n

ta
l 
fr

o
m

 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 E
s
ta

te
-8

0
-9

8
8

E
&

E
0
1
8

In
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 l
e
v

e
l 
o

f 
fe

e
s
 r

e
c
h

a
rg

e
d

 f
o

r 

a
d

a
p

ta
ti

o
n

s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

 u
s
in

g
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 o

r 

D
is

a
b

le
d

 F
a
c
il
it

ie
s
 G

ra
n

t 
(D

F
G

) 
fu

n
d

in
g

. 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 a

s
 u

s
u

a
l.
 

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

c
o
m

e
 f

o
r 

a
d
a
p
ta

ti
o
n
 w

o
rk

s
-7

5
0

3
8
8

E
&

E
0
1
9

E
s
ta

b
li
s
h

in
g

 t
h

e
 H

a
rr

o
w

 H
o

m
e
 

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
A

g
e
n

c
y
 a

s
 a

 s
ta

n
d

 a
lo

n
e
 

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

. 
T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 P
ro

je
c
t

-7
5

-7
5

3
8
8

E
&

E
0
2
0

In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

C
iv

ic
 C

e
n

tr
e
 s

ta
ff

 c
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g

 c
h

a
rg

e
s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

fr
e
e
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

s
-1

3
5

-4
5

-1
9
1

E
&

E
0
2
1

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 C

o
/F

M
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
 

(2
0
1
2
-1

3
 r

e
v

e
rs

a
l)

-1
0
0

1
4
5

E
&

E
0
2
2

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 C

o
/F

M
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
-2

5
1

2
,4

7
9

E
&

E
0
2
3

C
o

n
s
o

li
d

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

C
iv

ic
 C

e
n

tr
e
 

a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti

o
n

 t
o

 s
e
c
u

re
 u

ti
li
ty

 c
o

s
t 

s
a
v

in
g

s
. 
T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 P
ro

je
c
t

0
-1

2
2

-5
8

E
&

E
0
2
4

C
o

n
s
o

li
d

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

it
h

in
 

o
ld

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 E

n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

s
. 
T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 P
ro

je
c
t

-1
8
0

3
2
8

E
&

E
0
2
5

U
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 c
le

a
n

in
g

 o
f 

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 o

n
ly

 t
o

 t
h

e
 m

in
im

u
m

 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 f
o

r 
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 

c
o

m
p

li
a
n

c
e
. 

-1
0
0

1
,8

4
5

E
&

E
0
2
6

R
e
c
h

a
rg

e
 u

ti
li
ty

 c
o

s
ts

 f
o

r 
c
o

m
p

u
te

r 
ro

o
m

 

to
 C

a
p

it
a

-8
3

1
,8

4
5

E
&

E
0
2
7

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
-7

5
5
0
3

E
&

E
0
2
8

R
e
d

u
c
e
 h

ig
h

w
a
y
s
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
 b

u
d

g
e
t 

 
-2

7
3

2
,3

7
3

E
&

E
0
2
9

T
ra

ff
ic

 &
 H

ig
h

w
a
y
s

 p
o
s
t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
-2

5
1

3
8
1

206



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

 &
 E

N
T

E
R

P
R

IS
E

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 

N
e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

E
&

E
0
3
0

L
ic

e
n

s
in

g
 -

 s
c
o

p
e
 f

o
r 

a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 
in

c
o

m
e

-4
0

4
5
4

E
&

E
0
3
1

R
e
v

ie
w

 o
f 

lo
s
s
 m

a
k
in

g
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

s
-1

5
0

-1
,0

5
5

E
&

E
0
3
2

P
a
rk

in
g

 p
e
rm

it
 c

h
a
rg

e
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

-4
0

-1
,5

7
7

E
&

E
0
3
3

T
ra

d
in

g
 S

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d

 P
ro

c
e
e
d

s
 o

f 
C

ri
m

e
 

A
c
t 

s
a
v

in
g

s
 (

li
n

k
e
d

 t
o

 r
e
v

ie
w

 o
f 

S
L

A
 w

it
h

 

B
re

n
t 

tr
a
d

in
g

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
)

-5
0

-1
0
0

4
5
8

E
&

E
0
3
4

C
o

s
t 

re
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

m
a
in

ta
in

in
g

 p
a
rk

in
g

 

e
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t
-3

0
-1

,0
5
5

E
&

E
0
3
5

R
e
d

u
c
e
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

o
ff

-s
tr

e
e
t 

c
a
r 

p
a
rk

 

s
it

e
s
 a

n
d

 d
is

p
o

s
e
 o

f 
s
e
le

c
te

d
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

 

s
it

e
s

-1
0
0

E
&

E
0
3
6

S
o

ft
 M

a
rk

e
t 

te
s
ti

n
g

 o
f 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 a

n
im

a
l 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d

 r
e
v

ie
w

 o
f 

c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
a
n

im
a
l 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

-6
0

-8
9

E
&

E
0
3
7

R
e
v

ie
w

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

C
T

V
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 

ro
o

m
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 n

ig
h

t
-3

0
4
9
4

E
&

E
0
3
8

R
e
v

ie
w

 B
re

n
t-

H
a
rr

o
w

 T
ra

d
in

g
 S

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
 

c
o

n
s
o

rt
iu

m
 a

n
d

 /
 o

r 
p

ro
v

id
e
 T

ra
d

in
g

 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

n
 a

 r
e
d

u
c
e
d

 s
c
a
le

. 
-1

4
0

4
5
8

E
&

E
0
3
9

R
e
v

e
n

u
e
 m

a
x
im

is
a
ti

o
n

 -
 F

le
e
t 

s
p

o
n

s
o

rs
h

ip
: 

E
x
p

lo
re

 a
d

v
e
rt

is
e
m

e
n

t 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s
 f

o
r 

P
R

S
 f

le
e
t

-2
5

E
&

E
0
4
0

R
e
tu

rn
in

g
 P

a
rk

s
 t

o
 O

p
e
n

 S
p

a
c
e

-3
5
0

1
,1

3
7

E
&

E
0
4
1

G
ra

s
s
 V

e
rg

e
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
 r

e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

-1
6
5

E
&

E
0
4
2

G
ra

ff
it

i 
re

m
o

v
a
l 
re

d
u

c
e
 s

c
o

p
e

-5
2

2
,0

4
6

E
&

E
0
4
3

G
ro

u
n

d
s
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
: 

A
n

n
u

a
li
s
e
d

 h
o

u
rs

-8
0

-8
1

1
,1

3
7

E
&

E
0
4
4

R
e
d

u
c
e
 t

o
 a

 6
 w

e
e
k
ly

. 
 E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
ie

s
 i
n
 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
c
le

a
n
in

g
 c

y
c
le

-8
2

3
3
0

E
&

E
0
4
5

R
e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 i
n

 s
o

m
e
 n

o
n

 t
o

w
n

 c
e
n

tr
e
 

s
w

e
e
p

e
rs

-1
1
6

3
3
0

E
&

E
0
4
6

R
e
v

ie
w

 f
in

e
 t

u
rf

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 s

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
-2

9

E
&

E
0
4
7

R
e
v

ie
w

 l
e
v

e
l 
o

f 
P

a
rk

s
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

-3
5

1
,1

3
7

E
&

E
0
4
8

R
e
v

ie
w

 N
H

S
 t

o
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

c
li
n

ic
a
l 

c
o

ll
e
c
ti

o
n

s
-1

2
3
5

207



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

 &
 E

N
T

E
R

P
R

IS
E

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 

N
e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

E
&

E
0
4
9

R
e
v

ie
w

 o
n

 s
tr

e
e
t 

a
u

to
m

a
te

d
 p

u
b

li
c
 

c
o

n
v

e
n

ie
n

c
e
s

-8
0

6
5

E
&

E
0
5
0

R
e
v

ie
w

 p
a
rk

s
 a

n
d

 c
e
m

e
te

ri
e
s
 o

p
e
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 

lo
c
k
in

g
-7

0
1
,1

3
7

E
&

E
0
5
1

R
e
v

ie
w

 s
p

e
c
ia

li
s
t 

d
o

g
 w

a
s
te

 c
o

ll
e
c
ti

o
n

-3
5

1
,1

3
7

E
&

E
0
5
2

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 G

ro
u

n
d

s
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
, 
re

v
ie

w
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 L

e
v

e
l 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
fr

o
m

 A
p

ri
l 
2
0
1
3

-5
7

0

E
&

E
0
5
2

S
p

e
c
ia

l 
w

a
s
te

 c
o

ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 C
h

a
n

g
e
 

d
e
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 

-2
5

4
1

E
&

E
0
5
4

R
e
v

ie
w

 T
ra

d
e
 W

a
s
te

-2
2
0

5
2
6

E
&

E
0
5
5

P
R

IS
M

 g
ro

w
th

 a
n

d
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
 (

2
0
1
2
-1

3
 

re
v

e
rs

a
l)

-2
0
0

2
8
7

E
&

E
0
5
6

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
C

o
n

s
u

m
a
b

le
s
  

-1
0
0

2
8
7

E
&

E
0
5
7

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
- 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 R
e
v

ie
w

-3
5
0

2
,4

7
7

E
&

E
0
5
8

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
S

a
v

in
g

s
 -

 o
th

e
rs

-1
4
0

-2
7
3

1
1
,6

8
4

E
&

E
0
5
9

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 f

e
e
s
 i
n

c
o

m
e
 f

o
ll
o

w
in

g
 

c
h

a
n

g
e
 f

ro
m

 c
e
n

tr
a
l 
g

o
v

e
rn

m
e
n

t
-2

9
0

E
&

E
0
6
0

In
tr

o
d

u
c
e
 d

if
fe

re
n

ti
a
l 
c
h

a
rg

in
g

 p
o

li
c
y
 f

o
r 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
p

p
li
c
a
ti

o
n

s
 t

o
 p

ro
v

id
e
 f

o
r 

fa
s
t 

tr
a
c
k
 i
n

c
o

m
e
 g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
.

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

c
o
m

e
 f

ro
m

 p
re

-a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 

a
d
v
ic

e
.

-1
5

-3
3

E
&

E
0
6
1

R
e
s
id

u
a
l 
fr

o
m

 M
a
jo

r 
P

ro
je

c
ts

 b
u

d
g

e
t

-2
5

0

E
&

E
0
6
2

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
s
a
v

in
g

s
 o

n
 N

o
rt

h
g

a
te

 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t

-6
3
8
2

E
&

E
0
6
3

E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e
  
P

o
s
t 

D
e
le

ti
o

n
s
  

-1
,0

8
3

5
7
5

E
&

E
0
6
4

E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e
 C

o
n

s
u

m
a
b

le
s
  

-9
3

-5
9
0

E
&

E
0
6
5

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
- 

C
a
te

g
o

ry
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

s
a
v

in
g

s
-7

6
1
1
,6

8
4

E
&

E
0
6
6

A
g

e
n

c
y
 S

ta
ff

 -
 r

e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 i
n

 u
s
a
g

e
-1

6
0

1
8
,3

8
1

E
&

E
0
6
7

S
ta

ff
in

g
 -

 V
a
c
a
n

c
y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
-1

5
0

1
8
,3

8
1

T
o

ta
l 
E

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
&

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e
 S

a
v

in
g

s
-7

,4
9
0

-2
,0

2
2

-5
8

0

208



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

 &
 E

N
T

E
R

P
R

IS
E

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 

N
e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

N
e
t 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
&

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

-4
,9

3
8

-1
,4

1
4

6
7
5

7
5
3

209



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

, 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 A

N
D

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7
N

e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

In
v

e
s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

A
d

u
lt

s

C
H

W
0
0
1

D
e
m

o
g

ra
p

h
ic

 G
ro

w
th

. 
 C

o
s
ts

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 f

o
r 

e
lig

ib
le

 u
s
e
rs

2
,8

0
0

2
,6

0
0

2
,8

0
0

2
,5

0
0

2
9
,2

1
6

  
 

C
H

W
0
0
2

M
e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a
lt

h
 P

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s

5
0

3
,7

9
2

  
  
 

C
H

W
0
0
3

W
e
s
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 A
ll
ia

n
c
e
. 
 I

n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 s

u
b
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 f

e
e
s

1
0

6
2
2

  
  
  
  

H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 G

e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 (

H
G

F
)

C
H

W
0
0
4

H
o

m
e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s
 [

1
0
0
 f

a
m

il
ie

s
 &

 a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 B

&
B

 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi

t 
(H

B
) 

c
h

a
n

g
e
s
).

  
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f

ro
m

 2
0
1
2
-

1
3
 M

T
F

S
 a

s
s
u
m

e
d
 t
o
 a

ri
s
e
 f

ro
m

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 s

u
b
s
id

y 
fo

r 

B
&

B
 p

la
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 d

id
 n

o
t 
a
c
tu

a
lly

 m
a
te

ri
a
lis

e
.

-2
5
0

-2
5
0

C
H

W
0
0
5

H
o

m
e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s
. 

 G
ro

w
th

 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 o

f 

w
e
lf
a
re

 r
e
fo

rm
, 
in

 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
ta

ff
in

g
 a

n
d
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 n
o
w

 b
e
in

g
 i
n
c
u
rr

e
d
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 s
o
lu

ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 n

e
e
d
 

1
,0

0
0

-5
0
0

C
H

W
0
0
6

In
v

e
s
t 

to
 S

a
v

e
 i
n

 P
ri

v
a
te

 S
e
c
to

r 
L

e
a
s
in

g
 (

P
S

L
) 

In
c
e
n
ti
v
e
 p

a
ym

e
n
ts

 t
o
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 f

o
r 

e
n
te

ri
n
g
 m

e
d
iu

m
 

te
rm

 l
e
a
s
e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 o
n
 B

&
B

 s
h
o
w

n
 a

s
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 b

e
lo

w
.

2
8
9

-2
8
9

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 &

 C
u

lt
u

re

C
H

W
0
0
7

C
u

lt
u

ra
l 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 R

e
v

ie
w

 g
ro

w
th

 a
n

d
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
-1

5
0

6
4
3

C
H

W
0
0
8

L
o

n
d

o
n

 Y
o

u
th

 G
a
m

e
s

8
1
2

C
H

W
0
0
9

U
n

d
e
r 

O
n

e
 S

k
y

2
5

1
0
5

C
H

W
0
1
0

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
s
p

e
c
ia

li
s
t 

w
e
lf

a
re

 a
d

v
ic

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

9
0

-9
0

7
0
9

P
u

b
li
c
 H

e
a
lt

h

C
H

W
0
1
1

P
u

b
li
c
 H

e
a
lt

h
 T

ra
n

s
it

io
n

 c
o

s
ts

1
0
0

-1
0
0

8
0
0

T
o

ta
l 
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

3
,9

7
2

1
,3

7
1

2
,8

0
0

2
,5

0
0

S
a
v

in
g

s

A
d

u
lt

s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

C
H

W
0
1
2

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
- 

m
a
n

a
g

in
g

 i
n

fl
a
ti

o
n

-1
0
0

-2
,2

0
6

C
H

W
0
1
3

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
- 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
-1

5
0

-1
0
0

-2
,2

0
6

C
H

W
0
1
4

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
- 

H
o

m
e
 c

a
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

-9
0
0

6
,5

1
5

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

2
,8

7
3

210



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

, 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 A

N
D

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7
N

e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

C
H

W
0
1
5

W
e
s
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 A
ll
ia

n
c
e
 (

W
L

A
) 

J
o

in
t 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t:
 

A
p

p
ro

v
e
d

 P
ro

v
id

e
r 

C
re

d
it

io
n

 (
A

P
C

) 
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l 

C
a
re

-1
5
0

-1
5
0

9
,8

1
9

C
H

W
0
1
6

C
e
n

tr
a
l 
N

o
rt

h
 W

e
s
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 (
C

N
W

L
):

 M
e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a
lt

h
 

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s

-1
0
0

3
,7

9
2

C
H

W
0
1
7

V
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 S
e
c
to

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
. 

R
e
v
e
rs

a
l 
o
f 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

g
ro

w
th

-1
0
0

C
H

W
0
1
8

V
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 S
e
c
to

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
-2

0
0

C
H

W
0
1
9

R
e
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l 
C

a
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 R
e
v

ie
w

. 
 O

n
ly

 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 

c
o
m

p
le

x
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 t
o
 b

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
ts

.

-1
,5

5
0

-3
,0

0
0

C
H

W
0
2
0

In
v

e
s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 B

a
s
e
d

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

C
o
s
t 
o
f 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
n
o
t 
p
la

c
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs

 i
n
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re

.

7
7
5

1
,5

0
0

C
H

W
0
2
1

D
a
y
 C

a
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 R
e
v

ie
w

-3
0
0

-3
0
0

2
,2

1
0

C
H

W
0
2
2

P
u

rc
h

a
s
in

g
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

[c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 b

a
s
e
d

 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
].

  
M

a
rk

e
t 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

v
id

in
g
 g

re
a
te

r 

c
h
o
ic

e
 i
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 l
e
a
d
in

g
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 c

o
s
t.

-1
,0

0
0

C
H

W
0
2
3

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 S

ta
ff

. 
 R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
in

g
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
.

-3
0
0

C
H

W
0
2
4

S
h

a
re

 C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 t

e
a
m

 w
it

h
 a

n
o

th
e
r 

lo
c
a
l 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 a
n

d
/ 
o

r 
a
g

g
re

g
a
te

 w
it

h
in

 C
o

u
n

c
il
. 
 

O
ri
g
in

a
lly

 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
 t
h
e
s
e
s
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 a

 s
h
a
re

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 

to
 b

e
 e

x
p
lo

re
d
 b

u
t 
m

a
y
 b

e
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

d
 w

it
h
in

 w
id

e
r 

s
ta

ff
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 a

s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
. 
 

-1
0
4

C
H

W
0
2
5

S
h

a
ri

n
g

 o
f 

J
o

in
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a
m

 w
it

h
 a

n
o

th
e
r 

lo
c
a
l 
a
u

th
o

ri
ty

. 
O

ri
g
in

a
lly

 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
 t
h
e
s
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 

w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 a

 s
h
a
re

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 

w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b

e
 e

x
p
lo

re
d
 b

u
t 
m

a
y 

b
e
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

d
 w

it
h
in

 w
id

e
r 

s
ta

ff
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 a

s
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
. 

-9
3

C
H

W
0
2
6

R
e
a
b

le
m

e
n

t.
  
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

-9
0
0

6
,8

8
9

-1
,1

1
1

211



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

, 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 A

N
D

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7
N

e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

C
H

W
0
2
7

C
e
s
s
a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 f
o

r 
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 C
lu

b
s

-7
5

1
,4

4
2

C
H

W
0
2
8

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 P
e
o

p
le

 -
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 s

a
v

in
g

s
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 s

p
e
c
if

ic
 c

o
n

tr
a
c
ts

-1
,3

2
4

C
H

W
0
2
9

S
e
c
u

re
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

e
a
rm

a
rk

e
d

 i
n

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
fr

o
m

 

P
C

T
/C

C
G

 i
n

 A
d

u
lt

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

-5
0
0

-2
,2

0
6

C
H

W
0
3
0

D
e
c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 G

re
e
n

v
ie

w
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

-2
3
0

6
3
7

C
H

W
0
3
1

O
c
c
u

p
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
T

h
e
ra

p
y
. 

S
ta

ff
 t
im

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 

D
is

a
b
le

d
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 G

ra
n
t 
to

 b
e
 c

a
p
it
a
lis

e
d
.

-2
3
0

2
2
9

C
H

W
0
3
2

M
e
a
ls

 o
n

 W
h

e
e
ls

. 
 R

e
v
ie

w
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
.

-1
9
0

C
H

W
0
3
3

O
ld

e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

 I
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 C

a
re

. 
 C

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 

jo
in

tl
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

it
h
 H

e
a
lt
h
.

-8
0
0

C
H

W
0
3
4

L
a
te

 s
a
v

in
g

s
 -

 v
a
c
a
n

c
y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
-6

9
-2

,2
0
6

C
H

W
0
3
5

L
a
te

 s
a
v

in
g

s
 -

 a
g

e
n

c
y
 c

o
s
ts

-7
3

-2
,2

0
6

C
H

W
0
3
6

L
a
te

 s
a
v

in
g

s
 -

 r
e
d

u
c
e
d

 i
n

fl
a
ti

o
n

 a
ll
o

c
a
ti

o
n

-1
9
7

H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 (

H
G

F
)

C
H

W
0
3
7

H
o

u
s
in

g
 N

e
e
d

s
 -

 P
ri

v
a
te

 S
e
c
to

r 
L

e
a
s
in

g
 S

c
h

e
m

e
. 
 

In
c
o
m

e
 g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

-2
5

C
H

W
0
3
8

H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 R

e
v

ie
w

. 
 S

a
v
in

g
 i
n
 

s
ta

ff
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

-7
0

C
H

W
0
3
9

R
e
a
ll
o

c
a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

s
ta

ff
 t

im
e
 f

ro
m

 G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 (

G
F

) 

to
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 R

e
v

e
n

u
e
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t 
(H

R
A

) 
- 

to
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
m

a
n
d
s

-2
1
5

3
,8

9
7

C
H

W
0
4
0

D
e
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
v

a
c
a
n

t 
E

n
a
b

li
n

g
 P

ro
je

c
t 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

P
o

s
t

-3
6

2
2
4

C
H

W
0
4
1

In
v

e
s
t 

to
 S

a
v

e
 -

 c
a
s
h

 i
n

c
e
n

ti
v

e
s

. 
 U

s
e
d
 t
o
 f

re
e
 u

p
 

H
R

A
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 t
o
 h

o
u
s
e
 f

a
m

ili
e
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 w

a
it
in

g
 l
is

t.
 

S
a
v
in

g
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
 f

ro
m

 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 B

&
B

 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

.

-4
8

-4
8

C
H

W
0
4
2

A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 P

S
L

 a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti

o
n

. 
 B

&
B

 s
a
v
in

g
s
 

p
ro

je
c
te

d
 t
o
 a

ri
s
e
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
in

c
e
n
ti
v
e
 p

a
ym

e
n
ts

 t
o
 

la
n
d
lo

rd
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 s

p
e
n
d
 t
o
 s

a
v
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l.

-2
4
0

C
H

W
0
4
3

R
e
d

u
c
e
d

 c
o

s
ts

 a
t 

T
ra

v
e
ll
e
rs

 S
it

e
-1

0
1
3

C
H

W
0
4
4

L
a
te

 s
a
v

in
g

s
 -

 v
a
c
a
n

c
y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
-1

6

C
H

W
0
4
5

L
a
te

 s
a
v

in
g

s
 -

 a
g

e
n

c
y
 c

o
s
ts

-1
7

C
H

W
0
4
6

L
a
te

 s
a
v

in
g

s
 -

 r
e
d

u
c
e
d

 i
n

fl
a
ti

o
n

 a
ll
o

c
a
ti

o
n

-6
3
,8

9
7

3
,8

9
7

2
,8

7
3

212



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

, 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 A

N
D

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7
N

e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

C
H

W
0
4
7

E
m

p
ty

 H
o

m
e
s
 I
n

it
ia

ti
v

e
. 

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
b
ri
n
g
in

g
 e

m
p
ty

 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 b

a
c
k
 i
n
to

 u
s
e
.

-3
0
0

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 C
u

lt
u

re

C
H

W
0
4
8

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d

 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
p

ro
v

is
io

n

-4
8

-1
5

1
6
3

C
H

W
0
4
9

L
ib

ra
ri

e
s
 T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 2
 -

re
v

e
rs

a
l 
o

f 
o

n
e
 o

ff
 

in
v

e
s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 2
0
1
2
-1

3

-1
5
0

5
,3

8
5

C
H

W
0
5
0

L
ib

ra
ri

e
s
 T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 2
 I
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

fi
n
a
l 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

ro
u
n
d
 p

ro
fi
t 
s
h
a
re

 a
n
d
 s

h
o
rt

 t
e
rm

 u
s
e
 o

f 

C
iv

ic
 C

e
n
tr

e
 b

y
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r

-2
5

-7
1

5
,3

8
5

C
H

W
0
5
1

L
ib

ra
ry

 V
o

lu
n

te
e
rs

. 
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 b

y
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

.
-4

0

5
,3

8
5

C
H

W
0
5
2

C
o

m
b

in
e
 G

a
y
to

n
 &

 C
iv

ic
 C

e
n

tr
e
 L

ib
ra

ri
e
s

-7
5

1
,1

8
4

C
H

W
0
5
3

C
u

lt
u

ra
l 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 R

e
v

ie
w

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
 -

 s
a
v

in
g

s
 

s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 t

e
n

d
e
r 

w
it

h
 E

a
li
n

g
 &

 B
re

n
t

-2
0
0

-4
0
0

9
,3

8
5

C
H

W
0
5
4

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
-4

0
-7

7

C
H

W
0
5
5

R
e
d

u
c
e
 A

d
u

lt
 L

e
a
rn

in
g

 S
u

b
s
id

y
. 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 

fu
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 g

ra
n
t.

-7
3

-5
0

1
3
6

C
H

W
0
5
6

R
e
d

u
c
e
 s

u
b

s
id

y
 t

o
 h

a
rr

o
w

 y
o

u
n

g
 m

u
s
ic

ia
n

s
 

-2
8

-1
0

5
8

C
H

W
0
5
7

S
h

a
re

 r
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 C

o
h

e
s
io

n
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 C

o
u

n
c
il

-6
3

6
3

C
H

W
0
5
8

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
li
s
a
ti

o
n

 H
a
tc

h
 E

n
d

 P
o

o
l,
 A

rt
s
 C

e
n

tr
e
, 

M
u

s
e
u

m
 &

 B
a
n

n
is

te
r 

s
ta

d
iu

m
. 

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
lis

a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

je
c
t 
s
e
t 
u
p
 t
o
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

 t
h
e
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

te
rm

 

d
e
liv

e
ra

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
.

-1
1
7

-2
3
8

1
,1

4
2

C
H

W
0
5
9

R
e
v

ie
w

 m
a
in

 g
ra

n
ts

 b
u

d
g

e
t

-6
9

7
0
9

C
H

W
0
6
0

R
e
d

u
c
e
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
g

ra
n

ts
-4

0
1
0
4

C
H

W
0
6
1

O
n

e
 o

ff
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 f

o
r 

v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 

s
e
c
to

r

-4
0

7
0
9

C
H

W
0
6
2

D
e
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

o
s
t 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 f

e
s
ti

v
a
ls

-4
8

1
0
5

C
H

W
0
6
3

L
a
te

 s
a
v

in
g

s
 -

 v
a
c
a
n

c
y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
-2

5
5
,1

2
3

C
H

W
0
6
4

L
a
te

 s
a
v

in
g

s
 -

 a
g

e
n

c
y
 c

o
s
ts

-2
7

2
4

C
H

W
0
6
5

L
a
te

 s
a
v

in
g

s
 -

 r
e
d

u
c
e
d

 i
n

fl
a
ti

o
n

 a
ll
o

c
a
ti

o
n

-1
1

9
,3

8
5

213



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

, 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 A

N
D

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7
N

e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

P
u

b
li
c
 H

e
a
lt

h

C
H

W
0
6
6

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t

o
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o

f 
P

u
b

li
c
 H

e
a
lt

h
 (

D
P

H
) 

s
a
la

ry
 f

u
n

d
e
d

 b
y
 g

ra
n

t

-5
0

8
0
0

C
H

W
0
6
7

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t

o
 o

v
e
rh

e
a
d

s
 f

ro
m

 B
a
rn

e
t/

H
a
rr

o
w

 

P
u

b
li
c
 H

e
a
lt

h
. 

C
h
a
rg

e
 o

v
e
rh

e
a
d
 c

o
s
ts

 t
o
 g

ra
n
t.

-2
5
0

8
0
0

C
H

W
0
6
8

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

P
u

b
li
c
 H

e
a
lt

h
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
. 

F
u
n
d
in

g
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

re
v
e
n
u
e
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
.

-1
0
0

8
0
0

U
n

a
ll
o

c
a
te

d
 (

n
o

m
in

a
ll
y
 T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

)

C
H

W
0
6
9

L
a
te

 s
a
v

in
g

s
 -

 p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t
-1

6
7

T
o

ta
l 
C

H
W

 S
a
v

in
g

s
-6

,8
3
4

-7
,6

5
3

0
0

N
e
t 

C
H

W
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

-2
,8

6
2

-6
,2

8
2

2
,8

0
0

2
,5

0
0

214



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 

N
e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

In
v

e
s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

C
u

s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

R
E

S
0
0
1

W
e
b
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
&

 l
ic

e
n
c
e
s

1
0

6
5
8

R
E

S
0
0
2

IT
 &

 t
e
x
t 

a
le

rt
s
. 

C
o
s
ts

 t
o
 b

u
ild

 a
n
d
 e

n
a
b
le

 

a
le

rt
s
 t
o
 b

e
 s

e
n
t 
to

 c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 b
y 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 

H
a
rr

o
w

.

5
0

6
5
8

R
E

S
0
0
3

H
e
lp

li
n

e
 I
n

c
o

m
e
 s

h
o

rt
fa

ll
. 

R
e
a
lig

n
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
to

 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
in

c
o
m

e
 a

c
tu

a
lly

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
.

8
0

5
9
7

R
E

S
0
0
4

C
a
rd

 P
a
y
m

e
n

t 
S

y
s
te

m
. 

C
o
s
ts

 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

to
 s

e
c
u
re

ly
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 r

e
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 

c
a
rd

 p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

9
2

7
5
1

IT
 /
 P

ro
je

c
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
O

ff
ic

e
 (

P
M

O
)

R
E

S
0
0
5

B
T

P
 C

o
n

tr
a
c
t 

In
d

e
x
a
ti

o
n

. 
C

o
s
t 
o
f 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
in

c
re

a
s
e
s
 i
n
 e

x
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
2
%

.

6
0

3
0

1
1
,6

5
1

R
E

S
0
0
6

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
fr

o
m

 c
a
p

it
a
l 
- 

 M
ic

ro
s
o

ft
 a

n
n

u
a
l 

li
c
e
n

c
e
 c

o
s
ts

 m
o

re
 e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 t
h

a
n

 b
u

y
in

g
. 

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 c

o
s
ts

 o
f 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
lic

e
n
c
e
s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 

c
h
e
a
p
e
r 

th
a
n
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

lic
e
n
c
e
s
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 f

ro
m

 

c
a
p
it
a
l

8
8

1
1
,6

5
1

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g

R
E

S
0
0
7

L
o

c
a
l 
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 S
y
s
te

m
 L

ic
e
n

c
e
s
 a

n
d

 

R
u

n
n

in
g

 C
o

s
ts

1
8

1
8

R
E

S
0
0
8

R
e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 i
n

 D
A

T
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 d
u

e
 t

o
 P

C
T

 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

re
d

u
c
ti

o
n

s
 (

re
v

e
rs

a
l 
o

f 
o

n
e
 o

ff
 

g
ro

w
th

 i
n

 2
0
1
2
-1

3
)

-2
5

0

R
E

S
0
0
9

E
x
p

e
ri

a
n

 &
 L

IS
. 
A

d
d
it
io

n
 o

f 
n
e
w

 c
e
n
s
u
s
 d

a
ta

 

in
to

 L
IS

 s
y
s
te

m
 a

n
d
 u

p
d
a
te

 o
f 

E
x
p
e
ri
a
n
 

p
ro

fi
le

s
.

3
2
2

-2
5

1
7

R
E

S
0
1
0

R
e
fr

e
s
h

 o
f 

R
e
s
id

e
n

ts
 P

a
n

e
l.
  

R
e
fr

e
s
h
 o

f 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

.

1
0

-1
0

1
4

H
u

m
a
n

 R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
(H

R
D

)

R
E

S
0
1
1

C
a
s
h

ie
rs

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 R

e
s
il
ie

n
c
e
. 

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

s
ta

ff
in

g
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 m

o
re

 r
e
s
ili

e
n
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
.

5
0

7
5
1

R
E

S
0
1
2

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 s

a
v

in
g

s
 s

h
o

rt
fa

ll
2
0

2
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

215



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 

N
e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

R
E

S
0
1
3

In
c
re

a
s
e
d

 R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 i
n

 P
a
y
ro

ll
. 

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

s
ta

ff
in

g
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
u
to

 e
n
ro

lm
e
n
t.

3
5

5
4
5

R
E

S
0
1
4

R
e
d

u
c
e
d

 W
e
s
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 W
a
s
te

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 

(W
L

W
A

) 
S

L
A

 I
n

c
o

m
e
 t

o
 P

a
y
ro

ll
. 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

in
 S

L
A

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 a

s
 W

e
s
t 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 W

a
s
te

 

c
e
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 u

s
e
 H

a
rr

o
w

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

2
0

1
5

1
5

L
e
g

a
l 
a
n

d
 G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e

R
E

S
0
1
5

L
e
g

a
l 
E

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 o

f 
C

h
il
d

 p
ro

te
c
ti

o
n

. 

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
ta

ff
in

g
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 5
0
%

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 

c
h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 w

o
rk

1
2
0

1
,9

6
4

R
E

S
0
1
6

In
d

iv
id

u
a
l 
E

le
c
to

ra
l 
R

e
g

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

. 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 c

o
s
ts

1
0
0

-1
0
0

1
0
0

F
in

a
n

c
e

R
E

S
0
1
7

F
in

a
n

c
e
 T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 P
ro

je
c
t.

 O
n
e
 o

ff
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 c

o
s
ts

 f
o
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
.

2
0
0

-2
0
0

2
0
0

R
E

S
0
1
8

F
in

a
n

c
e
 -

 E
n

d
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 t

o
 W

L
W

A
. 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 S

L
A

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 a

s
 W

e
s
t 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 

W
a
s
te

 c
e
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 u

s
e
 H

a
rr

o
w

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

2
3

2
7

2
7

R
E

S
0
1
9

R
e
d

u
c
e
d

 S
c
h

o
o

ls
 S

L
A

 I
n

c
o

m
e
. 

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 

S
L
A

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o
 A

c
a
d
e
m

ie
s
 w

h
o
 a

re
 n

o
t 
u
s
in

g
 

H
a
rr

o
w

's
 s

e
rv

ic
e
.

2
0

-1
3
2

R
is

k
 A

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 F
ra

u
d

R
E

S
0
1
8

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d

it
 -

 l
o

s
s
 o

f 
in

c
o

m
e
 f

ro
m

 

e
n

d
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t

o
 W

L
W

A
. 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 S

L
A

 

in
c
o
m

e
 a

s
 W

e
s
t 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 W

a
s
te

 c
e
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 

u
s
e
 H

a
rr

o
w

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

1
7

4
0
9

C
o

ll
e
c
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 B
e
n

e
fi

ts

R
E

S
0
1
9

D
e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t 
o

f 
W

o
rk

 a
n

d
 P

e
n

s
io

n
s
 (

D
W

P
) 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi

t 
R

e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 i
n

 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

 G
ra

n
t.

 F
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 

in
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
U

n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
C

re
d
it
 a

d
m

in
is

te
re

d
 

b
y 

c
e
n
tr

a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t.

2
5
0

5
0
0

1
,6

6
0

216



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 

N
e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

R
E

S
0
2
0

L
o

s
s
 o

f 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi

ts
 O

v
e
rp

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 

In
c
o

m
e
 S

tr
e
a
m

. 
F

o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

U
n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
C

re
d
it
 a

d
m

in
is

te
re

d
 b

y
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 

g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t.
 

2
0
0

3
2
0

1
1
0

6
3
0

R
E

S
0
2
1

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 
S

ta
ff

-R
e
v

e
n

u
e
s
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 T

a
x
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 (
C

T
S

) 
c
o

ll
e
c
ti

o
n

. 
A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
ta

ff
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 l
o
c
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 
a
n
d
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
 o

f 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 t
o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 w
h
o
 h

a
d
 n

o
t 
p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 p
a
id

 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
.

1
5
0

1
,6

6
0

R
E

S
0
2
2

H
a
rr

o
w

 H
E

L
P

 s
c
h

e
m

e
. 

H
a
rd

s
h
ip

 f
u
n
d
 t
o
 

h
e
lp

 m
it
ig

a
te

 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 o
f 

W
e
lf
a
re

 R
e
fo

rm
.

1
0
0

4
5
7

R
E

S
0
2
3

P
u

b
li
c
 F

in
a
n

c
e
 I
n

it
ia

ti
v

e
 (

P
F

I)
  
G

ra
n

t 

R
e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

. 
E

n
d
in

g
 o

f 
g
ra

n
t 
in

 r
e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 P

F
I 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t.

3
8

4
3

4
3

R
E

S
0
2
4

D
W

P
 H

B
 R

e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 i
n

 A
d

m
in

 G
ra

n
t

2
9
8

1
1
9

1
,2

2
7

R
E

S
0
2
5

F
u

n
d

in
g

 f
o

r 
L

o
c
a
li
s
e
d

 C
T

B
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 &
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 (
re

v
e
rs

a
l 
o

f 
o

n
e
 o

ff
 

g
ro

w
th

 i
n

 2
0
1
2
-1

3
)

-1
0
0

0

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t

R
E

S
0
2
5

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
in

 P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
T

e
a
m

 t
o
 r

e
s
to

re
 

s
iz

e
 o

f 
te

a
m

 t
o
 t
h
a
t 
fo

r 
2
0
1
1
/1

2

1
4
0

1
,2

3
8

T
o

ta
l 
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

1
,6

1
7

3
9
6

7
9
5

1
1
0

S
a
v

in
g

s

C
u

s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

R
E

S
0
2
5

M
o

v
e
 l
a
n

d
lo

rd
s
 o

n
li
n

e
 w

it
h

 f
a
c
e
 t

o
 f

a
c
e
 

(F
2
F

) 
b

y
 a

p
p

o
in

tm
e
n

t 
o

n
ly

 o
n

 f
ix

e
d

 d
a
y
s
. 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 H

a
rr

o
w

 s
ta

ff
 s

a
v
in

g
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 m

o
v
in

g
 

in
te

ra
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 o

n
lin

e
.

-9
0

5
,4

7
5

R
E

S
0
2
6

R
e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 i
n

 s
ta

ff
 h

o
u

rs
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

d
e
m

a
n

d
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 f

e
w

e
r 

fu
ll
 t

im
e
 p

o
s
ts

-6
0

5
,4

7
5

217



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 

N
e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

R
E

S
0
2
7

U
s
e
 o

f 
A

rt
if

ic
ia

l 
In

te
ll
ig

e
n

c
e
 t

o
 d

iv
e
rt

 

s
w

it
c
h

b
o

a
rd

 c
a
ll
s
. 

R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 u

s
e
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
, 

in
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
3
-1

4
 w

it
h
 f

u
ll 

ye
a
r 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 

s
a
v
in

g
 i
n
 2

0
1
4
-1

5

-6
0

-6
0

5
,4

7
5

R
E

S
0
2
8

R
e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
R

e
c
e
p

ti
o

n
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 a

ll
 d

a
y
 

c
o

v
e
r.

 S
ta

ff
in

g
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 H

a
rr

o
w

.

-1
0

5
,4

7
5

R
E

S
0
2
9

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

c
h

a
n

n
e
l 
s
h

if
t 

th
ro

u
g

h
 r

o
ll
 o

u
t 

o
f 

M
y
 H

a
rr

o
w

 a
c
c
o

u
n

t.
 R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 s
ta

ff
in

g
 r

e
s
u
lt
in

g
 f

ro
m

 s
e
lf
 s

e
rv

e
 v

ia
 

M
H

A
, 
w

e
b
s
it
e
 a

n
d
 I
V

R

-6
0

-6
0

5
,4

7
5

R
E

S
0
3
0

C
lo

s
e
 F

2
F

 a
n

d
 T

e
le

p
h

o
n

y
 C

h
a
n

n
e
ls

 f
o

r 

P
u

b
li
c
 R

e
a
lm

 E
n

q
u

ir
ie

s
. 
O

v
e
r 

a
 3

 y
e
a
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
 c

lo
s
e
 f

a
c
e
 t
o
 f

a
c
e
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 
in

 A
c
c
e
s
s
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 f
o
r 

P
u
b
lic

 R
e
a
lm

 q
u
e
ri
e
s
 a

n
d
 m

ig
ra

te
 

to
 I
n
te

rn
e
t 
c
o
n
ta

c
t.

-3
0

-7
0

-5
0

5
,4

7
5

R
E

S
0
3
1

R
e
c
o

n
fi

g
u

re
 O

n
e
 S

to
p

 S
h

o
p

 t
o
 s

e
lf
-s

e
rv

e
 

a
re

a
 a

n
d
 c

lo
s
e
 F

2
F

 (
fa

c
e
 t
o
 f

a
c
e
) 

a
d
v
ic

e

-5
0

-1
0
0

-1
9
0

-1
0
0

5
,4

7
5

IT
 /
 P

ro
je

c
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
O

ff
ic

e
 (

P
M

O
) 

R
E

S
0
3
2

D
e
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
P

ro
je

c
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
r 

-4
8

4
0
5

R
E

S
0
3
3

D
a
ta

 c
e
n

tr
e
 t

o
 r

e
m

a
in

 a
t 

th
e
 C

iv
ic

 C
e
n

tr
e
. 

S
a
v
in

g
 o

n
 I
T

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
fr

o
m

 n
o
t 
m

o
v
in

g
 d

a
ta

 

c
e
n
tr

e
 t
o
 a

 r
e
m

o
te

 s
it
e
.

-2
5
0

1
1
,6

5
1

R
E

S
0
3
4

R
e
c
h

a
rg

e
 u

ti
li
ty

 c
o

s
ts

 f
o

r 
c
o

m
p

u
te

r 
ro

o
m

 

to
 C

a
p

it
a
. 

-9
5

1
1
,6

5
1

R
E

S
0
3
5

R
e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 i
n

 T
e
le

p
h

o
n

y
 C

o
s
ts

 u
ti

li
s
in

g
 

S
IP

 T
e
le

p
h
o
n
y 

m
o
v
e
d
 a

 c
h
e
a
p
e
r 

te
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
.

-2
0
0

1
5
3

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g

218



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 

N
e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

R
E

S
0
3
6

M
e
rg

e
r 

o
f 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 T

e
a
m

 

a
n

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 T

e
a
m

, 
re

d
u

c
in

g
 

s
ta

ff
in

g
. 

M
e
rg

in
g
 o

f 
tw

o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
p
o
s
ts

 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
in

g
 s

im
ila

r 
s
p
e
c
ia

lis
m

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

to
 o

n
e
 s

in
g
le

 B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 I
n
te

lli
g
e
n
c
e
 

te
a
m

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 n

e
w

 o
p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 

m
o
d
e
l 
(n

e
x
t 
s
a
v
in

g
).

 

-9
3

1
,3

8
1

R
E

S
0
3
7

D
e
le

te
 p

o
s
t 

o
f 

S
e
n

io
r 

P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
S

IM
S

. 

S
ta

ff
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
e
a
m

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 

th
e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 s

y
s
te

m
. 

-6
0

4
8
7

R
E

S
0
3
8

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
, 
R

e
s
e
a
rc

h
 &

 A
n

a
ly

s
is

 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 C

a
s
e
 a

n
d

 N
e
w

 O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 M

o
d

e
l 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
. 
A

g
g
re

g
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

p
o
s
ts

 u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
in

g
 s

im
ila

r 
s
p
e
c
ia

lis
m

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 o

n
e
 t
e
a
m

 w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 t
h
e
n
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 

to
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 s

a
v
in

g
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 a

 m
o
re

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
.

-1
3
2

-9
7

1
,3

8
1

R
E

S
0
3
9

M
e
rg

e
r 

o
f 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

in
to

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti

o
n

s
 t

e
a
m

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 s
ta

ff
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
1
F

T
E

 w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 s

e
e
 t
h
e
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 t
a
k
in

g
 t
h
e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 l
e
a
d
 f

o
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

fr
o
m

 0
1
/0

4
/1

3

-4
0

6
5
6

R
E

S
0
4
0

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti

o
n

s
 -

 r
e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 i
n

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
s

. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 r
e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

p
ri

c
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 

tw
o

 y
e
a
rs

 

a
g

re
e
d

 w
it

h
 W

e
s
tc

o
.

-4
6

-4
6

6
5
6

H
R

D

R
E

S
0
4
1

R
e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 i
n

 H
R

D
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
te

a
m

. 
P

o
s
t 

d
e
le

ti
o
n
.

-6
5

6
2
2

R
E

S
0
4
2

R
e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 i
n

 H
R

D
 p

o
s
ts

. 
D

e
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
2
 

p
o
s
ts

.

-7
5

-7
5

6
2
2

219



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 

N
e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

R
E

S
0
4
3

R
e
-n

e
g

o
ti

a
te

 L
e
a
rn

in
g

 &
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

(L
&

D
) 

 m
a
n

a
g

e
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 c

o
n

tr
a
c
t 

fe
e
s

-3
8

6
3

R
E

S
0
4
4

R
e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 i
n

 T
ra

d
e
 U

n
io

n
 (

T
U

) 
fa

c
il
it

y
 

b
u

d
g

e
t.

 R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 T
ra

d
e
 U

n
io

n
 s

ta
ff

in
g
.

-3
0

5
0

R
E

S
0
4
5

P
ri

n
t 

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

S
a
v

in
g

s
. 
L
e
tt
in

g
 o

f 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

fo
r 

p
ri
n
te

rs
 a

n
d
 p

h
o
c
o
p
ie

rs
 a

t 
lo

w
e
r 

c
o
s
t.

-3
5
0

-1
0
0

4
9
6

R
E

S
0
4
6

C
e
s
s
a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 

A
d

v
e
rt

is
in

g
. 
R

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 v

o
lu

m
e
 o

f 

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
a
d
v
e
rt

is
in

g
 i
n
 j
o
u
rn

a
ls

 a
n
d
 p

a
p
e
rs

 

a
n
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
in

te
rn

e
t 
a
d
v
e
rt

is
in

g
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 o

w
n
 s

it
e

-2
5

-7
5

-2
5

R
is

k
 A

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 F
ra

u
d

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 A

N
T

I-
F

R
A

U
D

 T
E

A
M

R
E

S
0
4
7

P
ro

c
e
e
d

s
 o

f 
C

ri
m

e
 A

c
t 

- 
p

u
rs

u
e
 r

e
c
o

v
e
ri

e
s
 

o
f 

fr
a
u

d
u

le
n

t 
g

a
in

s
 i
n

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it

h
 

B
re

n
t,

 p
lu

s
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a
l 
in

c
o

m
e
 r

e
c
o

v
e
ry

. 
 

-2
0

-1
9

4
4
7

IN
T

E
R

N
A

L
 A

U
D

IT

R
E

S
0
4
8

R
e
d

u
c
e
 c

o
-s

o
u

rc
in

g
 b

u
d

g
e
t.

 R
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 

u
s
e
 o

f 
e
x
te

rn
a
l 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 a

u
d
it
.

-1
6

3
5

R
E

S
0
4
9

D
e
le

te
 v

a
c
a
n

t 
p

o
s
t 

in
 a

u
d

it
-3

0
2
2
0

R
E

S
0
5
0

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 &

 S
A

F
E

T
Y

 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

R
E

S
0
5
1

D
e
le

te
 2

 p
o

s
ts

 i
n

 H
e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 S
a
fe

ty
.

-8
2

7
4

C
IV

IL
 C

O
N

T
IN

G
E

N
C

IE
S

 T
E

A
M

R
E

S
0
5
2

J
o

in
t 

w
o

rk
in

g
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

s
. 

S
h
a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 w

it
h
 a

n
o
th

e
r 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
.

-3
5

1
3
0

IN
S

U
R

A
N

C
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

R
E

S
0
5
3

R
e
d

u
c
e
d

 b
ro

k
e
r 

fe
e
s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 m

o
re

 i
n

-

h
o

u
s
e
 h

a
n

d
li
n

g
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
d

 i
n

c
o

m
e
 o

n
 

th
ir

d
 p

a
rt

y
 i
n

s
u

ra
n

c
e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s

-2
-3

2
3

220



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 

N
e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

R
E

S
0
5
4

F
u

tu
re

 t
ra

d
in

g
 w

it
h

 A
c
a
d

e
m

ie
s
. 

In
tr

o
d
u
c
e
 

c
h
a
rg

e
a
b
le

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 t
o
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ie
s
.

-2
5

-5
4
0

R
E

S
0
5
5

P
h

a
s
e
 2

 r
e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
, 
re

d
u

c
e
d

 a
s
s
is

ta
n

t 

p
o

s
t 

fr
o

m
 c

la
im

s
 h

a
n

d
li
n

g
 t

ra
n

s
fe

r 
to

 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 H

a
rr

o
w

 /
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

L
E

A
N

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
. 

S
ta

ff
in

g
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n

-2
0

8
2

R
E

S
0
5
6

R
e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

1
F

T
E

 A
n

ti
 F

ra
u

d
 I
n

v
e
s
ti

g
a
to

r 

P
o

s
t

-5
0

2
5
7

R
E

S
0
5
7

R
e
p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
O

c
c
u

p
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
H

e
a
lt

h
. 

R
e
le

t 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t.

-7
0

1
7
7

R
E

S
0
5
8

D
e
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

is
k
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
e
rv

ic
e

. 
D

e
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
o
s
t 
in

 2
0
1
3
.

-3
0

-3
0

1
7

R
E

S
0
5
9

C
ro

s
s
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 I
n

s
u

ra
n

c
e
 C

la
im

s
. 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 

c
o
s
t 
o
f 

in
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 c

la
im

s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

b
y 

b
e
tt
e
r 

ri
s
k
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.

-3
0

-7
0

6
2
0

R
E

S
0
6
0

R
e
d

u
c
e
d

 C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t

o
 I
n

s
u

ra
n

c
e
 

P
ro

v
is

io
n

. 
R

e
d
u
c
e
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 

in
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 c

la
im

s
 

a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

b
y 

b
e
tt
e
r 

ri
s
k
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.

-1
0
0

6
2
0

R
E

S
0
6
1

D
e
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
D

iv
is

io
n

a
l 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
p

o
s
t 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 

o
f 

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 r
e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re

-1
1
8

0

L
E

G
A

L
 A

N
D

 G
O

V
E

R
N

A
N

C
E

Le
g

a
l 

P
ra

ct
ic

e
 

R
E

S
0
6
2

L
e
g

a
l 
P

ra
c
ti

c
e
 s

ta
ff

in
g

-2
8

7
0

R
E

S
0
6
3

S
h

a
re

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
. 

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 

s
ta

ff
in

g
 o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 s

h
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 B

a
rn

e
t.

-7
5

1
,9

6
4

R
E

S
0
6
4

E
x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 o

f 
L

e
g

a
l 
P

ra
c
ti

c
e
 S

h
a
re

d
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
. 
E

x
p
a
n
d
 L

e
g
a
l 
s
h
a
re

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t
o
 a

n
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
p
a
rt

n
e
r.

 

-1
0
0

-1
0
0

-1
0
0

R
E

S
0
6
5

R
e

g
is

tr
a

rs
 

R
E

S
0
6
6

S
h

a
re

/r
e
d

u
c
e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
c
o

s
ts

 .
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 s

ta
ff

in
g

-7
5

1
,9

6
4

221



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 

N
e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

R
E

S
0
6
7

E
le

ct
io

n
s

R
E

S
0
6
8

E
-c

a
n

v
a
s
s
 P

ro
je

c
t.

 R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 s

ta
ff

in
g
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 e

le
c
tr

o
n
ic

 c
a
n
v
a
s
.

-2
0

-2
0

1
2
9

R
E

S
0
6
9

R
e
d

u
c
e
d

 N
u

m
b

e
r 

a
n

d
 F

re
q

u
e
n

c
y
 F

o
rm

a
l 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
s
. 

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 s

ta
ff

in
g
.

-3
0

-7
0

2
0
6

R
E

S
0
7
0

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 s

a
v

in
g

s
 i
n

 M
a
y
o

r'
s
 o

ff
ic

e
. 

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 s

ta
ff

in
g

-2
6

3
8

R
E

S
0
7
1

S
c
a
le

d
 B

a
c
k
 C

o
u

n
c
il
lo

r 
In

v
e
s
ti

g
a
ti

o
n

 

P
ro

c
e
s
s
. 
R

e
d
u
c
e
d
 s

ta
ff

in
g
.

-5
0

0

R
E

S
0
7
2

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t

o
 R

e
g

is
tr

a
rs

 F
e
e
 I
n

c
o

m
e
 T

a
rg

e
t.

 

In
c
o
m

e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
re

d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
-1

3
 t
o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 

a
c
tu

a
l 
re

c
e
iv

e
d
, 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

c
o
m

e
 t
o
 b

e
 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 f

ro
m

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
.

5
0

-1
0
0

-5
4

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 F
in

a
n

c
e

R
E

S
0
7
3

F
in

a
n

c
e
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
. 
 R

e
d
u
c
e
d
 s

ta
ff

 c
o
s
ts

.
-3

0
0

1
,7

9
3

R
E

S
0
7
4

A
u

d
it

 f
e
e
s
 r

e
d

u
c
e
d

 
-1

6
0

2
7
0

R
E

S
0
7
5

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

s
 g

ra
n

t 
s
c
h

e
m

e
 –

 

re
d

u
c
e
d

 l
e
v

y

-7
4

2
6
4

R
E

S
0
7
6

T
re

a
s
u

ry
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
- 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

 

in
v

e
s
tm

e
n

t 
in

c
o

m
e

-9
3
9

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t

C
o

ll
e
c
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 B
e
n

e
fi

ts

R
E

S
0
7
7

D
e
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
2
 F

T
E

 p
o

s
ts

 i
n

 R
e
v

e
n

u
e
s
 -

 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 T

a
x
 a

n
d

 N
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
N

o
n

 D
o

m
e
s
ti

c
 

R
a
te

s
 (

N
N

D
R

)

-6
0

8
0
4

R
E

S
0
7
8

D
e
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
4
 F

T
E

 p
o

s
ts

 i
n

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 

B
e
n

e
fi

ts

-1
4
0

1
,2

2
7

R
E

S
0
7
9

D
e
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
1
 p

o
s
t 

in
 P

a
rk

in
g

 B
a
c
k
 O

ff
ic

e
-2

5
3
0
3

R
E

S
0
8
0

S
ta

ff
 r

e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

s
 t

o
 m

a
tc

h
 D

W
P

 A
d

m
in

 

g
ra

n
t 

re
d

u
c
ti

o
n

-4
8

222



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 

N
e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

R
E

S
0
8
1

C
o

n
c
e
s
s
io

n
a
ry

 T
ra

v
e
l 
- 

C
h

a
n

g
e
s
 t

o
 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 (

T
F

L
) 

g
ra

n
t 

d
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

. 
R

e
a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
le

v
y
 c

o
s
ts

 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
s
.

-1
0
5

-1
0
2

9
,6

6
2

R
E

S
0
8
2

R
e
v

e
n

u
e
s
 S

ta
ff

in
g

 R
e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

s
-4

0
8
0
4

R
E

S
0
8
3

H
o

u
s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi

ts
 S

ta
ff

in
g

 R
e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

s
 a

s
 

B
e
n

e
fi

ts
 m

o
v

e
s
 t

o
 D

W
P

. 
R

e
d
u
c
e
d
 s

ta
ff

in
g
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 a

s
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
ts

 t
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 t
o
 

U
n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
C

re
d
it
 a

n
d
 i
s
 n

o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

a
d
m

in
is

te
re

d
 b

y
 H

a
rr

o
w

.

-1
2
5

-1
4
5

1
,2

2
7

R
E

S
0
8
4

W
it

h
d

ra
w

 D
is

c
re

ti
o

n
a
ry

 R
a
te

 R
e
li
e
f 

fr
o

m
 

C
h

a
ri

ty
 S

h
o

p
s
 i
n

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 a

n
d

 e
n

d
 i
n

 2
0
1
4
-

1
5

-2
5

-5
0

5
0

R
E

S
0
8
5

F
u

n
d

in
g

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

E
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y
 

R
e
li
e
f 

S
c
h

e
m

e
 f

ro
m

 G
ra

n
t.

 

-8
5

0

R
E

S
0
8
6

R
e
s
tr

ic
t 

th
e
 i
s
s
u

in
g

 o
f 

ta
x
i 
c
a
rd

s
 t

o
 o

n
ly

 

th
a
t 

w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 a

v
a
il
a
b

le
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 T

F
L

 

fu
n

d
in

g
. 
R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 t
o
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

.

-2
0
0

0

R
E

S
0
8
7

C
ro

s
s
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
 n

o
t 

d
e
li
v

e
re

d
 i
n

 

2
0
1
2
-1

3
. 
P

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c

ro
s
s
 c

u
tt
in

g
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
ie

s
 

in
 2

0
1
2
-1

3
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 n

o
t 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
e
d
.

2
1
5

0

L
a
te

 S
a
v

in
g

s

R
E

S
0
8
8

V
a
c
a
n

c
y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t.
 R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s

ta
ff

in
g
 

-1
4
8

4
0
,8

7
9

R
E

S
0
8
9

A
g

e
n

c
y
. 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 u

s
e
 o

f 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 s

ta
ff

 

c
o
m

b
in

e
d
 w

it
h
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 t
e
rm

s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il'

s
 a

g
e
n
c
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
r.

-1
5
7

4
0
,8

7
9

R
E

S
0
9
0

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t.
 A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
a
v
in

g
 f

ro
m

 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 c

a
te

g
o
ry

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.

-2
0
5

1
6
,8

5
0

R
E

S
0
9
1

In
fl

a
ti

o
n

. 
R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 i
n
fl
a
ti
o
n
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

b
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 s

u
p
p
lie

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

-8
6

1
6
,8

5
0

T
o

ta
l 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 S

a
v

in
g

s
-4

,5
0
4

-1
,9

6
9

-5
2
0

-3
3
5

223



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 

N
e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

N
e
t 

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

-2
,8

8
7

-1
,5

7
3

2
7
5

-2
2
5

224



M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 t
o

 2
0

1
6

-1
7

 
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 3

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s

 t
o

 M
T

F
S

 f
o

r 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
a

p
p

ro
v

a
l 

fo
ll

o
w

in
g

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

re
-f

re
s

h
 p

ro
c

e
s

s
 t

o
 b

e
 a

p
p

ro
v

e
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 f

in
a

l 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
c

a
lc

u
la

ti
o

n

It
e

m
 N

o
2

0
1

4
-1

5
2

0
1

5
-1

6
2

0
1

6
-1

7
2

0
1

3
-1

4
 N

e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

B
U

D
G

E
T

 G
A

P
 P

R
IO

R
 T

O
 R

E
F

R
E

S
H

0
1

5
,6

9
3

1
4

,2
3

6

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
 A

N
D

 F
A

M
IL

IE
S

U
n

a
c

h
ie

v
a

b
le

 s
a

v
in

g
s

C
F

 0
2

5
P

ro
c

u
re

m
e

n
t 

S
a

v
in

g
s

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 p

la
c

e
m

e
n

ts
3

0
0

0
0

1
8

,8
0

6

N
e

w
 G

ro
w

th

C
F

 0
0

1
 1

4
/1

5
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
1

2
 S

o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

e
r 

p
o

s
ts

. 
 G

ro
w

th
 o

f 
£

5
0

0
k
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 b

y
 L

e
a

d
e

r 
fo

r 
2

0
1

4
/1

5
.

5
0

0
0

0
2

5
4

2

C
F

 0
0

2
 1

4
/1

5
S

p
e

c
ia

l 
N

e
e

d
s
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 d
e

m
a

n
d

3
0

0
0

0
3

3
7

9

T
o

ta
l 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 F

a
m

il
ie

s
1

,1
0

0
0

0

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

 &
 E

N
T

E
R

P
R

IS
E

U
n

a
c

h
ie

v
a

b
le

 s
a

v
in

g
s

E
&

E
0

1
2

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

re
d

u
c

ti
o

n
s

 i
n

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

1
4

0
0

0
2

8
7

E
&

E
0

1
9

E
s

ta
b

li
s

h
in

g
 t

h
e

 H
a

rr
o

w
 H

o
m

e
 I

m
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
A

g
e

n
c

y
 a

s
 a

 s
ta

n
d

 a
lo

n
e

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
. 

T
ra

n
s

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 P
ro

je
c

t
1

5
0

0

0
3

8
8

E
&

E
0

2
0

In
tr

o
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

iv
ic

 C
e

n
tr

e
 s

ta
ff

 c
a

r 
p

a
rk

in
g

 c
h

a
rg

e
s

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
fr

e
e

 c
a

r 
p

a
rk

s
1

8
0

0
0

-1
9

1

E
&

E
0

2
5

U
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c

e
 a

n
d

 c
le

a
n

in
g

 o
f 

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 p
re

m
is

e
s

 o
n

ly
 t

o
 t

h
e

 m
in

im
u

m
 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 n
e

c
e

s
s

a
ry

 f
o

r 
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 c
o

m
p

li
a

n
c

e
. 

1
0

0
0

0
1

,8
4

5

E
&

E
0

3
1

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
lo

s
s

 m
a

k
in

g
 c

a
r 

p
a

rk
s

1
5

0
0

0
-1

,0
5

5

E
&

E
0

3
5

R
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
o

ff
-s

tr
e

e
t 

c
a

r 
p

a
rk

 s
it

e
s

 a
n

d
 d

is
p

o
s

e
 o

f 
s

e
le

c
te

d
 c

a
r 

p
a

rk
 s

it
e

s
1

0
0

0
0

-1
,0

4
6

E
&

E
0

4
0

R
e

tu
rn

in
g

 P
a

rk
s

 t
o

 O
p

e
n

 S
p

a
c

e
2

7
5

0
1

,1
3

7

E
&

E
0

5
0

 /
 5

1

R
e

v
ie

w
 p

a
rk

s
 a

n
d

 c
e

m
e

te
ri

e
s

 o
p

e
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 l

o
c

k
in

g
 a

n
d

 s
p

e
c

ia
li

s
t 

d
o

g
 w

a
s

te
 c

o
ll

e
c

ti
o

n
1

0
5

0

0
1

,1
3

7

E
&

E
0

5
9

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 f
e

e
s

 i
n

c
o

m
e

 f
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 f

ro
m

 c
e

n
tr

a
l 

g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t
2

9
0

0
0

3
3

3

R
e

 -
 p

ro
fi

le
d

 s
a

v
in

g
s

E
&

E
0

1
1

P
u

b
li

c
 R

e
a

lm
 I

n
te

g
ra

te
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 M

o
d

e
l 

(P
R

IS
M

) 
e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
. 

 T
o

w
a

rd
s
 E

x
c
e

lle
n

c
e

 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
3

7
5

-3
7

5

0
2

,4
7

7

E
&

E
0

4
3

G
ro

u
n

d
s

 m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c

e
: 

A
n

n
u

a
li

s
e

d
 h

o
u

rs
8

1
-8

1
0

1
,1

3
7

A
g

re
e

d
 g

ro
w

th
 n

o
 l

o
n

g
e

r 
re

q
u

ir
e

d

E
&

E
0

0
3

P
a

rk
in

g
 r

e
v

ie
w

 -
 2

0
 m

in
u

te
 f

re
e

 p
a

rk
in

g
-5

6
8

0
0

-4
,4

4
8

E
&

E
0

0
5

C
C

T
V

 c
a

m
e

ra
 i

n
c

o
m

e
 d

e
c

li
n

e
-7

0
1

4
1

1

E
&

E
0

0
6

C
R

C
 (

C
a

rb
o

n
 R

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 C

o
m

m
it

m
e

n
t)

/E
A

 (
E

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
A

g
e

n
c

y
) 

 i
n

c
re

a
s

e
 i

n
 c

o
s

t 
o

f 

C
R

C
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 

-8
8

0

0
3

9
2

N
e

w
 G

ro
w

th

225



It
e

m
 N

o
2

0
1

4
-1

5
2

0
1

5
-1

6
2

0
1

6
-1

7
2

0
1

3
-1

4
 N

e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

B
U

D
G

E
T

 G
A

P
 P

R
IO

R
 T

O
 R

E
F

R
E

S
H

0
1

5
,6

9
3

1
4

,2
3

6

E
&

E
 0

0
1

 1
4

/1
5

R
e

c
y

c
li

n
g

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 T
e

a
m

 -
 P

o
s
it
iv

e
, 

fr
ie

n
d

ly
 p

e
o

p
le

 d
re

s
s
e

d
 i
n

 a
 f

u
lly

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

b
ra

n
d

e
d

 

u
n

if
o

rm
, 

w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 r
e

fu
s
e

 c
re

w
s
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
, 

c
o

m
p

o
s
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 s
tr

e
e

t 
s
c
e

n
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 

a
c
ti
v
e

 i
n

te
ra

c
ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 p

u
b

lic
. 

A
 t

e
a

m
 o

f 
th

re
e

 p
lu

s
 m

a
te

ri
a

ls
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
fo

r 
p

u
b

lic
it
y
 e

tc
.-

 

£
1

2
5

,0
0

0
. 

M
a

y
 b

e
 s

e
lf
 f

in
a

n
c
in

g
 i
f 

th
e

y
 c

a
n

 d
iv

e
rt

 1
,0

0
0

 t
o

n
n

e
s
 o

f 
re

s
id

u
a

l 
w

a
s
te

 i
n

to
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 

s
tr

e
a

m
. 

T
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

th
e

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 w
ill

 a
llo

w
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 p

e
n

e
tr

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 

b
e

n
e

fi
ts

. 
 A

 s
u

s
ta

in
e

d
 p

u
b

lic
it
y
 c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

 t
o

 b
o

o
s
t 

o
u

r 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

. 
A

 t
a

rg
e

te
d

 

c
a

m
p

a
ig

n
 c

a
n

 m
o

v
e

 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 a

 5
0

%
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 r

a
te

, 
th

is
 m

a
y
 b

e
 s

e
lf
 f

in
a

n
c
in

g
 i
n

 

th
e

 l
o

n
g

 r
u

n
 i
f 

w
a

s
te

 i
s
 d

iv
e

rt
e

d
 f

ro
m

 l
a

n
d

fi
ll.

1
2

5
0

0
1

4
7

E
&

E
 0

0
2

 1
4

/1
5

S
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 S
h

o
p

p
in

g
 C

e
n

tr
e

s
 B

e
a

t 
S

w
e

e
p

in
g

 -
 R

e
in

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
h

ig
h

 v
is

ib
ili

ty
 w

e
e

k
e

n
d

 

s
tr

e
e

t 
c
le

a
n

s
in

g
 i
n

 s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 s
h

o
p

p
in

g
 c

e
n

tr
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 e

x
c
e

s
s
iv

e
 l
it
te

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 

c
o

m
p

la
in

t 
(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 R

a
y
n

e
rs

 L
a

n
e

, 
E

d
g

w
a

re
, 

S
o

u
th

 H
a

rr
o

w
 e

tc
) 

a
n

d
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 w

id
e

 r
a

p
id

 

re
s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
e

a
m

 a
t 

w
e

e
k
e

n
d

. 
 

T
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

th
e

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 w
ill

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 o
u

r 
h

ig
h

 s
tr

e
e

ts
 e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 v
it
a

lit
y
, 

im
p

ro
v
e

 o
u

r 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
s
c
o

re
 f

o
r 

lit
te

r 
(N

I 
1

9
5

) 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 d

ip
p

e
d

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r 

a
n

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 

p
u

b
lic

 s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 d

u
e

 t
o

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 e
x
c
e

s
s
iv

e
 w

e
e

k
e

n
d

 l
it
te

ri
n

g
. 

 W
e

e
k
e

n
d

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
 w

ill
 a

ls
o

 

e
a

s
e

 p
re

s
s
u

re
 o

n
 M

o
n

d
a

y
 m

o
rn

in
g

s
 a

s
 t

h
e

 c
a

tc
h

 u
p

 w
ill

 n
o

t 
b

e
 s

o
 g

re
a

t.
  

1
5

0
0

0
2

3
0

3

E
&

E
 0

0
3

 1
4

/1
5

S
tr

e
e

t 
c

le
a

n
s

in
g

 B
li

tz
 T

e
a

m
 -

 T
h

e
 t

e
a

m
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

ti
lis

e
d

 i
n

 r
e

s
p

o
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

, 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 C

h
a

m
p

io
n

 r
e

fe
rr

a
ls

, 
re

m
o

v
a

l 
o

f 
s
ig

n
a

l 
c
ri
m

e
, 

d
e

ta
il 

c
le

a
n

s
in

g
 o

f 
h

o
t 

s
p

o
ts

 a
n

d
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 v
o

lu
n

te
e

r 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
.

T
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

th
e

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 w
ill

 a
llo

w
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 s
tr

e
e

t 
c
le

a
n

s
in

g
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r,
 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
fe

a
r 

o
f 

c
ri
m

e
, 

im
p

ro
v
e

d
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 o
f 

v
o

lu
n

te
e

r 
w

o
rk

 

1
2

5
0

0
1

6
9

E
&

E
 0

0
4

 1
4

/1
5

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 C

h
a

m
p

io
n

s
 (

N
C

) 
- 

R
e

s
to

c
k
 p

u
b

lic
it
y
 a

n
d

 N
C

 a
p

p
a

re
l,
 r

e
-e

n
g

a
g

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 C

h
a

m
p

io
n

s
. 

 I
n

it
ia

te
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o

n
a

l 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
n

e
w

 c
h

a
m

p
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 

tr
a

in
in

g
.

T
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

th
e

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 w
ill

 a
llo

w
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 r
e

in
te

g
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 C

h
a

m
p

io
n

s
, 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 v
o

lu
n

te
e

ri
n

g
, 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
fe

a
r 

o
f 

c
ri
m

e
, 

im
p

ro
v
e

d
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 o
f 

v
o

lu
n

te
e

r 
w

o
rk

 
1

0
0

0
0

0

E
&

E
 0

0
5

 1
4

/1
5

P
a

rk
s

/G
ro

u
n

d
s

 B
li

tz
 T

e
a

m
 -

 T
h

e
 t

e
a

m
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

ti
lis

e
d

 i
n

 r
e

s
p

o
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

, 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 C

h
a

m
p

io
n

 a
n

d
 U

s
e

r 
G

ro
u

p
 r

e
fe

rr
a

ls
, 

re
m

o
v
a

l 
o

f 
s
ig

n
a

l 
c
ri
m

e
, 

d
e

ta
il 

m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

h
o

t 
s
p

o
ts

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

s
. 

T
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

th
e

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 w
ill

 

a
llo

w
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 s
tr

e
e

t 
c
le

a
n

s
in

g
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r,
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
fe

a
r 

o
f 

c
ri
m

e
, 

im
p

ro
v
e

d
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 o
f 

v
o

lu
n

te
e

r 
w

o
rk

.
1

2
5

0
0

1
7

6
2

E
&

E
 0

0
6

 1
4

/1
5

E
n

h
a

n
c

e
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
- 

E
n

g
a

g
e

 i
n

 C
ro

s
s
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

w
e

e
k
s
 o

f 
a

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

, 

e
s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 b

e
d

s
 i
n

 s
h

e
d

s
 a

n
d

 u
n

a
u

th
o

ri
s
e

d
 c

o
n

v
e

rs
io

n
s
; 

a
n

d
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 s

te
p

 

c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
a

c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 p
ro

-a
c
ti
v
e

 r
e

-e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 r
e

g
im

e
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 p

ro
c
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
c
ri
m

e
 a

n
d

 t
o

 a
c
c
e

le
ra

te
 t

h
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
ju

s
ti
c
e

 

th
ro

u
g

h
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 n
o

ti
c
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

s
e

c
u

ti
o

n
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
’ 
c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
. 

1
0

0
0

0
3

3
3

226



It
e

m
 N

o
2

0
1

4
-1

5
2

0
1

5
-1

6
2

0
1

6
-1

7
2

0
1

3
-1

4
 N

e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

B
U

D
G

E
T

 G
A

P
 P

R
IO

R
 T

O
 R

E
F

R
E

S
H

0
1

5
,6

9
3

1
4

,2
3

6

E
&

E
 0

0
7

 1
4

/1
5

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

tr
a

n
s

it
io

n
a

l 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
ro

le
s

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

p
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s
 -

 F
o

llo
w

in
g

 t
h

e
 r

e
c
e

n
t 

c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 a
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
, 

it
 i
s
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 t

o
 r

e
ta

in
 s

o
m

e
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

ro
le

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
e

 a
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 a

re
 f

u
lly

 

m
e

t.
1

3
0

0
0

1
8

5
4

3

S
u

b
s

ti
tu

te
 S

a
v

in
g

s

E
&

E
 0

0
8

 1
4

/1
5

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

a
li

g
n

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
P

a
rk

in
g

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 (
In

c
o

m
e

 r
e

-a
li

g
n

m
e

n
t,

  
n

o
 s

ta
ff

 i
m

p
a

c
t)

B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
h

is
to

ri
c
a

l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

, 
e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

p
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 t
ra

ff
ic

 o
ff

e
n

c
e

s
 f

o
r 

tr
a

ff
ic

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

re
a

s
o

n
s

 i
n

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

 r
e

c
o

v
e

re
d

 m
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 t

h
e

 b
u

d
g

e
te

d
 f

ig
u

re
. 

 T
h

e
 s

a
m

e
 

ra
te

 o
f 

re
c
o

v
e

ry
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 s
o

 f
a

r.
  

T
o

 p
ro

p
e

rl
y
 r

e
fl
e

c
t 

e
x
p

e
c
ta

ti
o

n
s
 

a
n

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

u
d

g
e

te
d

 f
ig

u
re

 f
o

r 
2

0
1

4
/1

5
 i
s
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e

d
. 

 

K
e

y
 r

is
k

s
:

1
. 

E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
re

s
u

lt
s
 i
n

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t

o
 b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 i
n

c
o

m
e

 a
re

 

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 o

v
e

r 
ti
m

e
. 

 

2
. 

T
h

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 c
a

n
 b

e
 a

d
v
e

rs
e

ly
 i
m

p
a

c
te

d
 b

y
 i
n

c
le

m
e

n
t 

w
e

a
th

e
r,

 t
e

c
h

n
ic

a
l 
a

n
d

 l
e

g
a

l 

is
s
u

e
s
. 

 

3
. 

P
o

lic
y
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s

-7
0

0
0

0

-4
,4

4
8

E
&

E
 0

0
9

 1
4

/1
5

T
e

x
ti

le
s

 R
e

c
y

c
li

n
g

 

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
in

c
o

m
e

 g
e

n
e

ra
te

d
 f

ro
m

 t
e

x
ti
le

s
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t.

-1
0

0
0

4
5

0

E
&

E
 0

1
0

 1
4

/1
5

In
c

re
a

s
e

 i
n

 i
n

c
o

m
e

 r
e

la
ti

n
g

 t
o

 l
e

is
u

re
 c

e
n

tr
e

 c
a

r 
p

a
rk

s

In
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 l
e

is
u

re
 c

e
n

tr
e

 p
a

rk
in

g
 i
n

c
o

m
e

-3
0

0
0

0
0

T
o

ta
l 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

&
 E

n
te

rp
ri

s
e

1
,0

6
5

-4
4

2
1

1

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

, 
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 A

N
D

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

U
n

a
c

h
ie

v
a

b
le

 s
a

v
in

g
s

A
d

u
lt

s
 

C
H

W
0

1
5

W
e

s
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 A
ll

ia
n

c
e

 (
W

L
A

) 
J

o
in

t 
P

ro
c

u
re

m
e

n
t:

 A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 P

ro
v

id
e

r 
C

re
d

it
io

n
 (

A
P

C
) 

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
C

a
re

5
0

0
0

9
,8

1
9

C
H

W
0

2
9

S
e

c
u

re
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
e

a
rm

a
rk

e
d

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
fr

o
m

 P
C

T
/C

C
G

 i
n

 A
d

u
lt

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

5
0

0
0

0
2

,2
0

6

C
H

W
0

3
3

O
ld

e
r 

P
e

o
p

le
 I

n
te

g
ra

te
d

 C
a

re
. 

 C
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
jo

in
tl
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

it
h

 H
e

a
lt
h

.
8

0
0

0
0

C
H

W
0

3
4

L
a

te
 s

a
v

in
g

s
 -

 v
a

c
a

n
c

y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
6

9
0

0

C
H

W
0

3
5

L
a

te
 s

a
v

in
g

s
 -

 a
g

e
n

c
y

 c
o

s
ts

7
3

0
0

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 a
n

d
 C

u
lt

u
re

C
H

W
0

5
0

L
ib

ra
ri

e
s

 T
ra

n
s

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 2
 I

m
p

a
c
t 

o
f 

fi
n

a
l 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

n
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

ro
u

n
d

 p
ro

fi
t 

s
h

a
re

 a
n

d
 s

h
o

rt
 

te
rm

 u
s
e

 o
f 

C
iv

ic
 C

e
n

tr
e

 b
y
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
to

r

1
4

1
-1

8
0

5
,3

8
5

C
H

W
0

5
4

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
1

3
9

0
0

C
H

W
0

5
7

S
h

a
re

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 C
o

h
e

s
io

n
 a

c
ro

s
s

 C
o

u
n

c
il

6
3

0
0

6
3

C
H

W
0

5
8

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
li

s
a

ti
o

n
 H

a
tc

h
 E

n
d

 P
o

o
l,

 A
rt

s
 C

e
n

tr
e

, 
M

u
s

e
u

m
 &

 B
a

n
n

is
te

r 
s

ta
d

iu
m

. 

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
lis

a
ti
o

n
 p

ro
je

c
t 

s
e

t 
u

p
 t

o
 i
n

v
e

s
ti
g

a
te

 t
h

e
 l
o

n
g

e
r 

te
rm

 d
e

liv
e

ra
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

th
e

s
e

 s
a

v
in

g
s
.

3
5

5
0

0
1

,1
4

2

C
H

W
0

6
9

L
a

te
 s

a
v

in
g

s
 -

 p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t
1

6
7

0
0

N
e

w
 G

ro
w

th

A
d

u
lt

s
 

227



It
e

m
 N

o
2

0
1

4
-1

5
2

0
1

5
-1

6
2

0
1

6
-1

7
2

0
1

3
-1

4
 N

e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

B
U

D
G

E
T

 G
A

P
 P

R
IO

R
 T

O
 R

E
F

R
E

S
H

0
1

5
,6

9
3

1
4

,2
3

6

C
H

W
0

0
1

 1
4

/1
5

D
e

m
o

g
ra

p
h

ic
 G

ro
w

th
. 

 C
o

s
ts

 a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 d

e
m

a
n

d
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

le
x
it
y
 f

o
r 

e
lig

ib
le

 

u
s
e

rs

6
0

0
0

0
2

9
,2

1
6

C
H

W
0

0
2

 1
4

/1
5

H
o

m
e

le
s

s
n

e
s

s
 [

1
0

0
 f

a
m

il
ie

s
 &

 a
n

ti
c

ip
a

te
d

 B
&

B
 H

B
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s

).
  

S
a

v
in

g
s
 f

ro
m

 2
0

1
2

-1
3

 M
T

F
S

 

a
s
s
u

m
e

d
 t

o
 a

ri
s
e

 f
ro

m
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 s

u
b

s
id

y
 f

o
r 

B
&

B
 p

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

 w
h

ic
h

 d
id

 n
o

t 
a

c
tu

a
lly

 

m
a

te
ri
a

lis
e

.

1
5

0
0

0
2

,8
7

3

C
H

W
0

0
3

 1
4

/1
5

H
a

tc
h

 E
n

d
 L

ib
ra

ry
 -

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

a
s
s
u

m
e

d
 a

 s
e

lf
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 m
o

d
e

l.
  

O
n

g
o

in
g

 d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h

 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r 
to

 f
in

a
lis

e
 s

ta
ff

in
g

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 f

o
r 

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

4
.

1
1

7
0

0

T
o

ta
l 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

, 
 H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 W

e
ll

b
e

in
g

3
,2

2
4

-1
8

0

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

U
n

a
c

h
ie

v
a

b
le

 S
a

v
in

g
s

R
E

S
0

4
1

R
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 i
n

 H
u

m
a

n
 R

e
s

o
u

rc
e

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

( 
H

R
D

) 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
te

a
m

. 
P

o
s
t 

d
e

le
ti
o

n
.

6
5

0
0

6
2

2

R
E

S
0

4
2

R
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 i
n

 H
R

D
 p

o
s

ts
. 
D

e
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
2

 p
o

s
ts

.
7

5
0

0
6

2
2

R
E

S
0

6
9

R
e

d
u

c
e

d
 N

u
m

b
e

r 
a

n
d

 F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y

 F
o

rm
a

l 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e

s
. 
R

e
d

u
c
e

d
 s

ta
ff

in
g

.
7

0
0

0
2

0
6

R
E

S
0

8
3

H
o

u
s

in
g

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

 S
ta

ff
in

g
 R

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
s

 a
s

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

 m
o

v
e

s
 t

o
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

W
o

rk
 a

n
d

 

P
e

n
s

io
n

s
 (

D
W

P
).

 R
e

d
u

c
e

d
 s

ta
ff

in
g

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 a

s
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi
ts

 t
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 t

o
 U

n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
C

re
d

it
 

a
n

d
 i
s
 n

o
 l
o

n
g

e
r 

a
d

m
in

is
te

re
d

 b
y
 H

a
rr

o
w

.

0
1

2
5

2
0

1
,2

2
7

R
E

S
0

8
4

W
it

h
d

ra
w

 D
is

c
re

ti
o

n
a

ry
 R

a
te

 R
e

li
e

f 
fr

o
m

 C
h

a
ri

ty
 S

h
o

p
s

 i
n

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 a
n

d
 e

n
d

 i
n

 2
0

1
4

-1
5

5
0

0

0
5

0

R
E

S
0

6
4

E
x

p
a

n
s

io
n

 o
f 

L
e

g
a

l 
P

ra
c

ti
c

e
 S

h
a

re
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
. 

E
x
p

a
n

d
 L

e
g

a
l 
s
h

a
re

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 t
o

 a
n

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 

p
a

rt
n

e
r.

 

2
0

0
0

0
-1

0
0

R
e

-p
ro

fi
le

d
 I

n
v

e
s

tm
e

n
t 

/ 
S

a
v

in
g

s

R
E

S
0

1
9

D
W

P
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi

t 
R

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 i

n
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
a

ti
o

n
 G

ra
n

t.
 F

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 

U
n

iv
e

rs
a

l 
C

re
d

it
 a

d
m

in
is

te
re

d
 b

y
 c

e
n

tr
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t.
 

-2
5

0
-2

5
0

5
0

0
1

,6
6

0

R
E

S
0

2
0

L
o

s
s

 o
f 

H
o

u
s

in
g

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

 O
v

e
rp

a
y

m
e

n
ts

 I
n

c
o

m
e

 S
tr

e
a

m
. 
F

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 

U
n

iv
e

rs
a

l 
C

re
d

it
 a

d
m

in
is

te
re

d
 b

y
 c

e
n

tr
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t.
 

-2
0

0
-1

2
0

2
1

0
6

3
0

R
E

S
0

7
8

D
e

le
ti

o
n

 o
f 

4
 F

T
E

 p
o

s
ts

 i
n

 H
o

u
s

in
g

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

1
4

0
-1

4
0

0
3

,1
1

7

N
e

w
 G

ro
w

th

R
E

S
 0

0
1

 1
4

/1
5

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
s
e

c
u

ri
ty

 e
n

h
a

n
c
e

m
e

n
ts

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 b

y
 P

u
b

lic
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 (
P

S
N

)
1

0
0

0
0

1
0

,3
3

2

R
E

S
 0

0
2

 1
4

/1
5

C
o

n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 f
o

r 
c
h

a
n

n
e

l 
m

ig
ra

ti
o

n
 s

u
p

p
lie

r 
c
o

s
ts

5
0

0
0

5
,4

2
9

S
u

b
s

ti
tu

te
 S

a
v

in
g

R
E

S
 0

0
3

 1
4

/1
5

T
o

 d
e

le
te

 t
h

e
 p

o
s
t 

o
f 

C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
-2

8
0

0
0

2
8

0

T
o

ta
l 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

2
0

-3
8

5
7

3
0

T
E

C
H

N
IC

A
L

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
H

A
N

G
E

S

T
e

c
h

 0
0

1
C

a
p

it
a

l 
fi

n
a

n
c

in
g

 c
o

s
ts

 a
n

d
 i

n
v

e
s

tm
e

n
t 

in
c

o
m

e
9

1
0

7
0

0
0

T
e

c
h

 0
0

2

N
e

w
 h

o
m

e
s

 b
o

n
u

s
 -

 T
o

p
 s

lic
e

 o
f 

N
e

w
 H

o
m

e
s
 B

o
n

u
s
 t

o
 f

u
n

d
 L

E
P

 a
n

n
o

u
n

c
e

d
 i
n

 

C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 S

p
e

n
d

in
g

 R
e

v
ie

w
 (

C
S

R
) 

2
0

1
3

0
1

6
0

0
1

8
0

-2
,8

6
7

T
e

c
h

 0
0

3
S

S
C

F
 G

ra
n

t 
re

c
e

iv
e

d
 f

ro
m

 G
re

a
te

r 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 (

G
L

A
) 

- 
re

d
u

c
ti

o
n

.
6

2
0

0
6

2

T
e

c
h

 0
0

5
P

C
T

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 v
ia

 s
2

5
6

 a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t.

 C
C

G
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 v

ia
 s

2
5

6
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t.
-2

3
3

0
0

 -
 

T
e

c
h

 0
0

7

E
d

u
c

a
ti

o
n

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 G
ra

n
t.

 N
e

w
 g

ra
n

t 
in

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 L

o
c
a

l 
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 (
L

E
A

) 
fu

n
c
ti
o

n
s
, 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 f
o

rm
u

la
 G

ra
n

t
-1

,5
0

0
5

0
0

2
0

0
-2

,5
0

0

T
e

c
h

 0
0

1
 1

4
/1

5
C

o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 F

re
e

z
e

 G
ra

n
t

-1
0

5
5

-1
0

5
5

2
1

1
0

0

T
e

c
h

 0
0

2
 1

4
/1

5
F

o
rm

u
la

 G
ra

n
t 

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 a

s
 i
n

d
ic

a
te

d
 i
n

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
3

 b
u

d
g

e
t

1
0

0
0

0
0

5
2

,1
0

0

228



It
e

m
 N

o
2

0
1

4
-1

5
2

0
1

5
-1

6
2

0
1

6
-1

7
2

0
1

3
-1

4
 N

e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

B
U

D
G

E
T

 G
A

P
 P

R
IO

R
 T

O
 R

E
F

R
E

S
H

0
1

5
,6

9
3

1
4

,2
3

6

T
e

c
h

 0
0

3
 1

4
/1

5

C
o

u
n

c
il 

T
a

x
 B

a
s
e

 t
o

 r
e

fl
e

c
t 

a
c
tu

a
l 
b

a
s
e

 f
o

r 
2

0
1

4
/1

5
 a

n
d

 p
ro

je
c
te

d
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 o
f 

0
.1

%
 i
n

 f
u

tu
re

 

y
e

a
rs

-1
5

1
9

-1
0

0
-1

0
0

9
3

,0
3

9

T
e

c
h

 0
0

4
 1

4
/1

5
C

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 F

u
n

d
-6

8
1

6
8

1
0

-1
,0

4
5

T
e

c
h

 0
0

5
 1

4
/1

5
C

o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 a
t 

0
%

 f
o

r 
2

0
1

4
/1

5
, 

2
0

1
5

/1
6

 a
n

d
 2

0
1

6
/1

7
1

8
6

1
1

8
6

1
1

8
6

1
0

T
e

c
h

 0
0

6
 1

4
/1

5

T
e

c
h

 0
1

8
B

u
d

g
e

t 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 c

o
n

ti
n

g
e

n
c

y
-1

,8
2

9
0

0
1

,1
7

1

T
e

c
h

 0
1

9
C

o
n

ti
n

g
e

n
c

y
 f

o
r 

W
e

lf
a

re
 R

e
fo

rm
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

p
re

s
s

u
re

s
-2

,0
0

0
1

0
0

0
0

2
,0

0
0

T
e

c
h

 0
2

5
In

fl
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 g

o
o

d
s

 a
n

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

 R
e

d
u

c
e

d
 f

ro
m

 2
%

 t
o

 1
.3

%
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
4

/1
5

 t
o

 2
0

1
6

/1
7

.
-6

0
0

-6
0

0
-6

0
0

 -
 

T
e

c
h

 0
2

9
T

e
rm

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s

. 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 r
e

n
e

g
o

ti
a

te
d

 t
e

rm
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 w

it
h

 s
ta

ff
.

1
5

1
4

6
-1

6
 -

 

T
o

ta
l 

T
e

c
h

n
ic

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
n

g
e

s
-5

,4
3

3
4

,6
3

3
3

,6
3

5

T
O

T
A

L
 A

D
J

U
S

T
M

E
N

T
S

-2
4

3
,7

8
8

4
,3

7
6

R
E

V
IS

E
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 G
A

P
-2

4
1

9
,4

8
1

1
8

,6
1

2

229



230

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  

4

M
T

F
S

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
 –

 P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 i
n

v
e
s
tm

e
n

ts
 /

 s
a
v
in

g
s
 

T
E

C
H

N
IC

A
L

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
H

A
N

G
E

S
C

a
te

g
o

ry

It
e

m
 N

o
2

0
1

4
-1

5
2

0
1

5
-1

6
2

0
1

6
-1

7
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
S

p
e

c
if

ic
In

it
ia

l 
F

u
ll

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

C
a

p
it

a
l 
a
n

d
 I

n
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t
T

e
c
h

 0
0
1

C
a

p
it

a
l 
fi

n
a

n
c

in
g

 c
o

s
ts

 a
n

d
 i

n
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

c
o

m
e

1
6
7

3
1
0

8
4
1

N
/A

 -
 t

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n
t

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

T
o

ta
l 
C

a
p

it
a

l 
a
n

d
 I

n
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
C

h
a

n
g

e
s

1
6
7

3
1
0

8
4
1

G
ra

n
t 

C
h

a
n

g
e

s

T
e

c
h

 0
0
2

N
e

w
 h

o
m

e
s
 b

o
n

u
s

 -
 T

o
p
 s

lic
e

 o
f 
N

e
w

 H
o
m

e
s
 B

o
n
u

s
 t

o
 f

u
n

d
 L

E
P

 a
n

n
o

u
n

c
e

d
 

in
 C

o
m

p
re

h
e

n
s
iv

e
 S

p
e
n

d
in

g
 R

e
v
ie

w
 (

C
S

R
) 

2
0

1
3

-5
9
1

1
,0

7
5

-3
4
5

N
/A

 -
 t

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n
t

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

T
e

c
h

 0
0
3

S
S

C
F

 G
ra

n
t 

re
c
e

iv
e

d
 f

ro
m

 G
L

A
 -

 r
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

. 
G

ra
n
t 

n
o

 l
o

n
g

e
r 

u
n

ri
n

g
fe

n
c
e

d
6
2

0
0

N
/A

 -
 t

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n
t

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

T
e

c
h

 0
0
7

E
d

u
c

a
ti

o
n

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 G
ra

n
t.

 N
e
w

 g
ra

n
t 

in
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 L

o
c
a

l 
E

d
u
c
a

ti
o

n
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 

(L
E

A
) 

fu
n

c
ti
o

n
s
, 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 f
o
rm

u
la

 G
ra

n
t

-5
0
0

1
,5

0
0

2
0
0

N
/A

 -
 t

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n
t

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

T
e

c
h

 0
0
1

 1
4
/1

5
C

o
u
n

c
il 

T
a

x
 F

re
e
z
e

 G
ra

n
t

-1
,0

5
5

-1
,0

5
5

2
,1

1
0

N
/A

 -
 t

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n
t

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

T
e

c
h

 0
0
2

 1
4
/1

5
F

o
rm

u
la

 G
ra

n
t 

re
d
u

c
ti
o

n
 a

s
 i
n

d
ic

a
te

d
 i
n

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

3
 b

u
d
g

e
t

1
,0

0
0

0
0

N
/A

 -
 t

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n
t

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

T
o

ta
l 
G

ra
n

t 
C

h
a

n
g

e
s

-1
,0

8
4

1
,5

2
0

1
,9

6
5

O
th

e
r 

T
e

c
h

n
ic

a
l 
C

h
a

n
g

e
s

T
e

c
h

 0
1
2

F
re

e
d

o
m

 P
a

s
s

 L
e

v
y
 i

n
c

re
a
s

e
. 

C
o
s
t 

o
f 

F
re

e
d

o
m

 p
a

s
s
e

s
 c

h
a
rg

e
d

 t
o
 H

a
rr

o
w

 b
y
 

T
fL

3
5
0

3
6
0

3
7
0

N
/A

 -
 t

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n
t

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

T
e

c
h

 0
0
3

 

1
4
/1

5

C
o

u
n

c
il 

T
a

x
 B

a
s
e

 t
o
 r

e
fl
e

c
t 

a
c
tu

a
l 
b
a

s
e

 f
o
r 

2
0

1
4

/1
5
 a

n
d
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 o
f 

0
.1

%
 i
n

 f
u
tu

re
 y

e
a
rs

-1
,5

1
9

-1
0
0

-1
0
0

N
/A

 -
 t

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n
t

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

T
e

c
h

 0
0
4

 

1
4
/1

5
C

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 F

u
n
d

-6
8
1

6
8
1

0
N

/A
 -

 t
e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n
t

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

T
e

c
h

 0
0
5

 

1
4
/1

5
C

o
u
n

c
il 

T
a

x
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 a
t 
0
%

 f
o
r 

2
0

1
4

/1
5
, 

2
0

1
5

/1
6
 a

n
d
 2

0
1
6

/1
7

1
,8

6
1

1
,8

6
1

1
,8

6
1

N
/A

 -
 t

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n
t

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

C
a

p
it

a
li
s
a

ti
o

n
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
/r

e
c
h

a
rg

e
s
 s

tr
a

te
g

y

T
e

c
h

 0
1
4

R
e

d
u

c
e
 r

e
li
a
n

c
e
 o

n
 c

a
p

it
a

li
s
a

ti
o

n
1
4

0
0

A
g

re
e
d

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

M
is

c
e
ll

a
n

e
o

u
s

T
e

c
h

 0
1
7

B
a

la
n

c
e
 o

n
 S

S
C

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
re

v
ie

w
 -

 n
e

t 
c
h

a
rg

e
 t

o
 n

o
n

 g
e

n
e

ra
l 
fu

n
d

. 
C

o
s
t 

to
 

g
e
n

e
ra

l 
fu

n
d
 o

f 
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
 t

o
 H

R
A

.
1
5
0

0
0

A
g

re
e
d

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

T
e

c
h

 0
1
8

B
u

d
g

e
t 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 c
o

n
ti

n
g

e
n

c
y

0
3
,0

0
0

3
,0

0
0

N
/A

 -
 t

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n
t

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

T
e

c
h

 0
1
9

C
o

n
ti

n
g

e
n

c
y
 f

o
r 

W
e

lf
a

re
 R

e
fo

rm
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

p
re

s
s

u
re

s
-2

,0
0
0

0
0

N
/A

 -
 t

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n
t

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

T
e

c
h

 0
2
0

S
a

v
in

g
 f

ro
m

 f
o

rm
u

la
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 o

n
 f

re
e
d

o
m

 p
a

s
s

e
s

 -
 a

g
re

e
d

 a
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 

c
o

u
n

c
il
s
 T

E
C

 i
n

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

 R
e

a
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
o

s
ts

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 L
o
n

d
o

n
 

b
o
ro

u
g

h
s
 g

iv
in

g
 H

a
rr

o
w

 a
 r

e
d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 c
o

s
ts

-1
0
8

-8
1

-8
1

A
g

re
e
d

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

T
e

c
h

 0
2
2

R
e

d
u

n
d

a
n

c
y
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

-1
,0

0
0

0
0

A
g

re
e
d

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

T
o

ta
l 
O

th
e

r 
T

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
C

h
a

n
g

e
s

-2
,9

3
3

5
,7

2
1

5
,0

5
0

P
a

y
 a

n
d

 I
n

fl
a
ti

o
n

T
e

c
h

 0
2
3

P
a

y
 A

w
a

rd
 @

 1
%

 2
0

1
3

-1
4
 a

n
d

 2
0

1
4

-1
5
, 

th
e

n
 2

%
 p

a
9
5
0

1
,8

5
0

1
,8

5
0

A
g

re
e
d

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

T
e

c
h

 0
2
4

E
m

p
lo

y
e

r'
s

 P
e

n
s

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

 @
 0

.5
%

 p
.a

.
4
0
0

4
0
0

4
0
0

A
g

re
e
d

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

T
e

c
h

 0
2
5

In
fl

a
ti

o
n

 o
n

 g
o

o
d

s
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 @

 1
.3

%
 p

.a
.

1
,2

1
0

1
,2

1
0

1
,2

1
0

N
/A

 -
 t

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n
t

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

T
o

ta
l 
P

a
y
 a

n
d

 P
ri

c
e

 I
n

fl
a
ti

o
n

2
,5

6
0

3
,4

6
0

3
,4

6
0

C
R

O
S

S
 C

U
T

T
IN

G
 T

R
A

N
S

F
O

R
M

A
T

IO
N

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E
T

e
c
h

 0
2
8

M
o

b
il

e
 a

n
d

 F
le

x
ib

le
 w

o
rk

in
g

 -
 i

m
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 r

u
n

n
in

g
 c

o
s

ts
2
4

0
0

A
g

re
e
d

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

T
e

c
h

 0
2
9

T
e

rm
s

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

d
it

io
n

s
. 

S
a

v
in

g
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 r
e

n
e

g
o

ti
a

te
d
 t

e
rm

s
 a

n
d
 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 w

it
h
 s

ta
ff

.
-1

6
9

-9
4

-1
6

N
/A

 -
 t

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n
t

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

E
Q

IA
P

ro
p

o
s

e
d

 M
T

F
S

C
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

o
n

231



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  

4

M
T

F
S

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
 –

 P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 i
n

v
e
s
tm

e
n

ts
 /

 s
a
v
in

g
s
 

T
E

C
H

N
IC

A
L

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
H

A
N

G
E

S
C

a
te

g
o

ry

It
e

m
 N

o
2

0
1

4
-1

5
2

0
1

5
-1

6
2

0
1

6
-1

7
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
S

p
e

c
if

ic
In

it
ia

l 
F

u
ll

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

E
Q

IA
P

ro
p

o
s

e
d

 M
T

F
S

C
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

o
n

T
o

ta
l 
T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
-1

4
5

-9
4

-1
6

T
o

ta
l 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
-1

4
3

5
1
0
9
1
7

1
1
3
0
0

232



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
4

M
T

F
S

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

 t
o

 2
0

1
6

/1
7

 –
 P

ro
p

o
s

e
d

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 /

 s
a

v
in

g
s

 
C

H
IL

D
R

E
N

'S
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

C
a

te
g

o
ry

It
e

m
 N

o
2

0
1

4
-1

5
2

0
1

5
-1

6
2

0
1

6
-1

7
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
S

p
e

c
if

ic
In

it
ia

l 
F

u
ll

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

C
F

 0
0

1
In

c
re

a
s

e
 i
n

 C
h

il
d

re
n

 L
o

o
k

e
d

 A
ft

e
r 

(C
L

A
) 

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 

b
u

d
g

e
ts

 r
e

fl
e

c
ti

n
g

 

g
ro

w
th

 i
n

 c
h

il
d

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 c

h
a

n
g

in
g

 d
e

m
o

g
ra

p
h

ic
1

7
8

1
7

8
1

7
8

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

Y
e

s
N

/A

C
F

 0
0

2
In

c
re

a
s

e
 i
n

 C
h

il
d

re
n

 w
it

h
 D

is
a

b
il
it

ie
s

 (
C

W
D

) 
c

li
e

n
t 

c
o

s
ts

 r
e

fl
e

c
ti

n
g

 g
ro

w
th

 

in
 c

h
il
d

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

8
2

8
2

8
2

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

Y
e

s
N

/A

C
F

 0
0

3
In

c
re

a
s

e
 i
n

 s
ta

ff
in

g
 c

o
s

ts
 r

e
fl

e
c

ti
n

g
 g

ro
w

th
 i
n

 c
h

il
d

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 

c
h

a
n

g
in

g
 d

e
m

o
g

ra
p

h
ic

1
5

3
1

5
3

1
5

3
A

g
re

e
d

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

Y
e

s
N

/A
Y

e
s

N
/A

C
F

 0
0

4
L

o
s

s
 o

f 
Y

o
u

th
 J

u
s

ti
c

e
 B

o
a

rd
 f

u
n

d
in

g
1

0
0

0
A

g
re

e
d

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
Y

e
s

C
F

 0
0

8
C

re
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
A

d
v
a

n
c

e
d

 P
ra

c
ti

ti
o

n
e

r 
S

o
c

ia
l 
W

o
rk

e
r 

p
o

s
ts

7
0

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

Y
e

s

C
F

 0
1

2
P

ro
je

c
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

C
o

s
ts

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 S

p
e

c
ia

l 
N

e
e

d
s

 T
ra

n
s

p
o

rt
, 
C

h
il
d

re
n

's
 

C
e

n
tr

e
 r

e
m

o
d

e
ll
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 n
e

w
 t

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

-9
7

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

Y
e

s
N

/A

C
F

 0
0

1
 

1
4

/1
5

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
1

2
 S

o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

e
r 

p
o

s
ts

. 
 G

ro
w

th
 o

f 
£

5
0

0
k
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 b

y
 

L
e

a
d

e
r 

fo
r 

2
0

1
4

/1
5

.
5

0
0

0
0

N
e

w
 g

ro
w

th
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

C
F

 0
0

2
 

1
4

/1
5

S
p

e
c
ia

l 
N

e
e

d
s
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 d
e

m
a

n
d

3
0

0
0

0
N

e
w

 g
ro

w
th

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

T
o

ta
l 
In

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

1
,1

9
6

4
1

3
4

1
3

S
a

v
in

g
s

C
F

 0
1

7
C

o
n

s
o

li
d

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

s
ta

ff
in

g
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 p

ro
p

o
s

e
d

 d
e

le
ti

o
n

 o
f 

1
 

D
iv

is
io

n
a

l 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
p

o
s

t 
2

0
1

5
/1

6
-1

4
8

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

N
/A

C
F

 0
1

8
D

e
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
H

e
a

d
 o

f 
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 &

 S
c

h
o

o
l 
O

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

 
-5

0
0

0
A

g
re

e
d

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
N

/A

C
F

 0
1

9
R

e
c

o
n

fi
g

u
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
E

a
rl

y
 I
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 F

a
m

il
ie

s
 F

ir
s

t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
-1

5
0

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

N
/A

C
F

 0
2

0
C

h
il
d

re
n

's
 C

e
n

tr
e

s
 r

e
m

o
d

e
ll
in

g
 t

o
 r

e
c
o

n
fi
g

u
re

 t
h

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
o

ff
e

r
-2

0
0

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
N

/A
Y

e
s

C
F

 0
2

1
S

p
e

c
ia

l 
N

e
e

d
s

 T
ra

n
s

p
o

rt
 I
I 
- 

d
e

m
a

n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

in
c

lu
d

in
g

 I
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 

T
ra

v
e

l 
T

ra
in

in
g

-4
5

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
N

/A
Y

e
s

C
F

 0
2

2
S

p
e

c
ia

l 
N

e
e

d
s

 T
ra

n
s

p
o

rt
 I
II
 -

 f
u

ll
 m

a
rk

e
t 

e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 o

u
ts

o
u

rc
in

g
 

o
f 

s
o

m
e

 r
o

u
te

s
-5

0
0

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
N

/A
Y

e
s

C
F

 0
2

3
In

tr
o

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

C
h

a
rg

in
g

 f
o

r 
n

o
n

 S
ta

tu
to

ry
 E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
P

s
y
c

h
o

lo
g

y
 t

o
 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
-9

0
0

0
A

g
re

e
d

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
N

/A

C
F

 0
2

4
R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
s

e
m

i 
s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 
c

lo
s

u
re

 o
f 

H
o

n
e

y
p

o
t 

L
a

n
e

-4
1

0
0

0
A

g
re

e
d

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

N
/A

Y
e

s

C
F

 0
2

5
P

ro
c

u
re

m
e

n
t 

S
a

v
in

g
s

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 p

la
c

e
m

e
n

ts
2

3
0

0
0

U
n

a
c
h

ie
v
a

b
le

 s
a

v
in

g
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

N
/A

C
F

 0
2

6
S

a
v
in

g
s

 f
ro

m
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 b

u
d

g
e

ts
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 c

o
n

n
e

x
io

n
s

, 
p

a
re

n
ti

n
g

 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

, 
d

ru
g

s
 &

 a
lc

o
h

o
l 
a

n
d

 c
li
n

ic
 i
n

 a
 b

o
x

-2
5

5
0

0
A

g
re

e
d

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
N

/A

C
F

 0
2

7
R

e
c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
R

e
s

p
it

e
 C

a
re

 f
o

r 
C

W
D

 
-1

0
0

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

N
/A

C
F

 0
2

8
C

o
n

s
o

li
d

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

E
a

rl
y
 Y

e
a

rs
 t

ra
in

in
g

 f
u

n
c

ti
o

n
s

 -
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 &
 s

ta
ff

in
g

-5
0

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

N
/A

T
o

ta
l 
C

h
il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 F

a
m

il
ie

s
 S

a
v
in

g
s

-1
,7

6
8

0
0

N
e

t 
C

h
il
d

re
n

 &
 F

a
m

il
ie

s
-5

7
2

4
1

3
4

1
3

E
Q

IA
P

ro
p

o
s

e
d

 M
T

F
S

C
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

o
n

233



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
4

M
T

F
S

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

 t
o

 2
0

1
6

/1
7

 –
 P

ro
p

o
s

e
d

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 /
 s

a
v
in

g
s

 
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
 &

 E
N

T
E

R
P

R
IS

E
C

a
te

g
o

ry

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1

4
-1

5
2
0
1

5
-1

6
2
0
1

6
-1

7
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
S

p
e
c
if

ic
In

it
ia

l 
F

u
ll

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
&

E
0
0
1

P
u

b
li
c
 R

e
a
lm

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

 (
P

R
S

) 
- 

V
e
h

ic
le

 e
a
rl

y
 t

e
rm

in
a
ti

o
n

 p
a
y
m

e
n

ts
-2

9
5

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

E
&

E
0
0
2

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 g
ro

w
th

-1
6
3

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

E
&

E
0
0
3

P
a
rk

in
g

 r
e
v
ie

w
 -

 2
0
 m

in
u
te

 f
re

e
 p

a
rk

in
g

-2
6
1

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 g
ro

w
th

 n
o
 

lo
n
g

e
r 

re
q
u

ir
e
d

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

E
&

E
0
0
5

C
C

T
V

 c
a
m

e
ra

 i
n

c
o

m
e
 d

e
c
li
n

e

0
7

0
5

6
A

g
re

e
d

 g
ro

w
th

 n
o
 

lo
n
g

e
r 

re
q
u

ir
e
d

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

E
&

E
0
0
6

C
R

C
 (

C
a
rb

o
n

 R
e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 C
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t)
/E

A
 (

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
A

g
e
n

c
y
) 

 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 c
o

s
t 

o
f 

C
R

C
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 

-8
8

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 g
ro

w
th

 n
o
 

lo
n
g

e
r 

re
q
u

ir
e
d

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

E
&

E
0
0
8

W
e
s
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 W
a
s
te

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 (
W

L
W

A
) 

L
e
v
y
 

6
8

9
6

7
7

7
0

8
A

g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

E
&

E
 0

0
1

 

1
4
/1

5

R
e
c
y
c
li
n

g
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 T

e
a
m

 -
 P

o
s
it
iv

e
, 
fr

ie
n
d

ly
 p

e
o

p
le

 d
re

s
s
e
d

 i
n
 a

 f
u
lly

 C
o
u
n

c
il 

b
ra

n
d

e
d
 u

n
if
o
rm

, 
w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 r

e
fu

s
e
 c

re
w

s
 t
o
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 r
e
c
y
c
lin

g
, 
c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
 

a
n
d

 s
tr

e
e
t 
s
c
e
n
e

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 a

c
ti
v
e
 i
n
te

ra
c
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 p

u
b

lic
. 
A

 t
e
a
m

 o
f 

th
re

e
 

p
lu

s
 m

a
te

ri
a
ls

 b
u
d

g
e
t 
fo

r 
p
u
b

lic
it
y
 e

tc
.-

 £
1
2

5
,0

0
0

. 
M

a
y
 b

e
 s

e
lf
 f
in

a
n

c
in

g
 i
f 
th

e
y
 

c
a
n
 d

iv
e
rt

 1
,0

0
0

 t
o
n
n

e
s
 o

f 
re

s
id

u
a

l 
w

a
s
te

 i
n
to

 r
e
c
y
c
lin

g
 s

tr
e
a
m

. 
T

h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 

o
f 

th
e
 f

u
n
d

in
g
 w

ill
 a

llo
w

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

d
 p

e
n

e
tr

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d

 b
e
n

e
fi
ts

. 
 

A
 s

u
s
ta

in
e
d

 p
u
b

lic
it
y
 c

a
m

p
a
ig

n
 t
o
 b

o
o

s
t 
o
u
r 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

. 
A

 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 

c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
 c

a
n
 m

o
v
e
 t
h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 a

 5
0
%

 r
e
c
y
c
lin

g
 r

a
te

, 
th

is
 m

a
y
 b

e
 s

e
lf
 

fi
n
a
n

c
in

g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
n
g

 r
u
n
 i
f 
w

a
s
te

 i
s
 d

iv
e
rt

e
d
 f

ro
m

 l
a
n
d

fi
ll.

1
2

5
0

0

N
e
w

 g
ro

w
th

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

E
&

E
 0

0
2

 

1
4
/1

5

S
e
c
o

n
d

a
ry

 S
h

o
p

p
in

g
 C

e
n

tr
e
s
 B

e
a
t 

S
w

e
e
p

in
g

 -
 R

e
in

tr
o
d
u

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
h
ig

h
 

v
is

ib
ili

ty
 w

e
e
k
e

n
d
 s

tr
e
e
t 
c
le

a
n

s
in

g
 i
n
 s

e
c
o
n

d
a
ry

 s
h
o
p

p
in

g
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 

s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 l
it
te

ri
n
g
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

p
la

in
t 
(i

n
c
lu

d
in

g
 R

a
y
n
e
rs

 L
a
n

e
, 

E
d
g
e

w
a
re

, 
S

o
u
th

 H
a
rr

o
w

 e
tc

) 
a
n
d

 b
o
ro

u
g
h
 w

id
e
 r

a
p
id

 r
e
s
p
o

n
s
e
 t
e
a
m

 a
t 

w
e
e
k
e

n
d
. 
 

T
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 f

u
n
d

in
g
 w

ill
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 o
u
r 

h
ig

h
 s

tr
e
e
ts

 e
c
o
n

o
m

ic
 v

it
a
lit

y
, 

im
p
ro

v
e
 o

u
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
s
c
o
re

 f
o
r 

lit
te

r 
(N

I 
1
9
5

) 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 d

ip
p
e

d
 

o
v
e
r 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

a
n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

u
b

lic
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 d

u
e

 t
o
 r

e
d
u

c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 e

x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 

w
e
e
k
e

n
d
 l
it
te

ri
n
g
. 
 W

e
e
k
e

n
d
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 e

a
s
e

 p
re

s
s
u
re

 o
n
 M

o
n
d

a
y
 

m
o
rn

in
g
s
 a

s
 t
h
e
 c

a
tc

h
 u

p
 w

ill
 n

o
t 
b
e
 s

o
 g

re
a
t.
  

1
5

0
0

0

N
e
w

 g
ro

w
th

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

E
&

E
 0

0
3

 

1
4
/1

5

S
tr

e
e
t 

c
le

a
n

s
in

g
 B

li
tz

 T
e
a
m

 -
 T

h
e
 t
e
a
m

 w
ill

 b
e
 u

ti
lis

e
d
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
o

n
d
in

g
 t
o
 

c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

, 
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u
rh

o
o
d
 C

h
a
m

p
io

n
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

, 
re

m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 

s
ig

n
a

l 
c
ri

m
e
, 
d
e
ta

il 

c
le

a
n

s
in

g
 o

f 
h
o
t 
s
p
o
ts

 a
n
d

 s
u
p
p

o
rt

in
g
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
.

T
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 f

u
n
d

in
g
 w

ill
 a

llo
w

 t
h
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 s

tr
e
e
t 
c
le

a
n

s
in

g
 

in
d
ic

a
to

r,
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 r
e
d
u

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
fe

a
r 

o
f 

c
ri

m
e
, 
im

p
ro

v
e
d

 c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 s
u
p
p

o
rt

 o
f 

v
o
lu

n
te

e
r 

w
o
rk

 

1
2

5
0

0

N
e
w

 g
ro

w
th

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

E
&

E
 0

0
4

 

1
4
/1

5

N
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

 C
h

a
m

p
io

n
s
 (

N
C

) 
- 

R
e
s
to

c
k
 p

u
b

lic
it
y
 a

n
d

 N
C

 a
p
p

a
re

l,
 r

e
-

e
n
g

a
g
e

 c
u
rr

e
n
t 
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u
rh

o
o
d
 C

h
a
m

p
io

n
s
. 
 I
n
it
ia

te
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o
n
a

l 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

n
e
w

 c
h
a
m

p
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
 t
ra

in
in

g
.

T
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 f

u
n
d

in
g
 w

ill
 a

llo
w

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
s
u
p
p

o
rt

 s
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 

re
in

te
g
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u
rh

o
o
d
 C

h
a
m

p
io

n
s
, 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
ri

n
g
, 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 r
e
d
u

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
fe

a
r 

o
f 

c
ri

m
e
, 
im

p
ro

v
e
d

 c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 

s
u
p
p

o
rt

 o
f 

v
o
lu

n
te

e
r 

w
o
rk

 

1
0

0
0

0

N
e
w

 g
ro

w
th

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

E
Q

IA
P

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 M
T

F
S

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

234



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
4

M
T

F
S

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

 t
o

 2
0

1
6

/1
7

 –
 P

ro
p

o
s

e
d

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 /
 s

a
v
in

g
s

 
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
 &

 E
N

T
E

R
P

R
IS

E
C

a
te

g
o

ry

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1

4
-1

5
2
0
1

5
-1

6
2
0
1

6
-1

7
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
S

p
e
c
if

ic
In

it
ia

l 
F

u
ll

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

E
Q

IA
P

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 M
T

F
S

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

E
&

E
 0

0
5

 

1
4
/1

5

P
a
rk

s
/G

ro
u

n
d

s
 B

li
tz

 T
e
a
m

 -
 T

h
e
 t
e
a
m

 w
ill

 b
e
 u

ti
lis

e
d
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
o

n
d
in

g
 t
o
 

c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

, 
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u
rh

o
o
d
 C

h
a
m

p
io

n
 a

n
d

 U
s
e
r 

G
ro

u
p

 r
e
fe

rr
a
ls

, 
re

m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 

s
ig

n
a

l 
c
ri

m
e
, 
d
e
ta

il 
m

a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e
 o

f 
h
o
t 
s
p
o
ts

 a
n
d

 s
u
p
p

o
rt

in
g
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
. 
T

h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 f

u
n
d

in
g
 w

ill
 a

llo
w

 t
h
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 s

tr
e
e
t 

c
le

a
n

s
in

g
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r,
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 r
e
d
u

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
fe

a
r 

o
f 

c
ri

m
e
, 
im

p
ro

v
e
d

 

c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 s
u
p
p

o
rt

 o
f 

v
o
lu

n
te

e
r 

w
o
rk

.

1
2

5
0

0

N
e
w

 g
ro

w
th

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

E
&

E
 0

0
6

 

1
4
/1

5

E
n

h
a
n

c
e
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
- 

E
n
g
a

g
e
 i
n
 C

ro
s
s
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

w
e
e
k
s
 o

f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
, 
e
s
p
e

c
ia

lly
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 b

e
d

s
 i
n
 s

h
e
d

s
 a

n
d

 u
n
a

u
th

o
ri

s
e
d
 c

o
n
v
e

rs
io

n
s
; 

a
n
d

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 s

te
p
 c

h
a
n

g
e
 i
n
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 p
ro

-a
c
ti
v
e
 r

e
-

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 r

e
g
im

e
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 e

n
g

a
g
e

m
e
n
t 
o
n
 

p
ro

c
e
e

d
s
 o

f 
c
ri

m
e
 a

n
d

 t
o
 a

c
c
e
le

ra
te

 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

ju
s
ti
c
e
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 

n
o
ti
c
e
s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

s
e
c
u

ti
o
n
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
o

n
s
e
 t
o
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
’ 
c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

. 

1
0

0
0

0

N
e
w

 g
ro

w
th

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

E
&

E
 0

0
7

 

1
4
/1

5

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 
tr

a
n

s
it

io
n

a
l 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
ro

le
s
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti

o
n

 

im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 
p

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s
 -

 F
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 r

e
c
e
n

t 
c
h
a
n

g
e
 i
n
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
, 
it
 i
s
 

n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
 t
o

 r
e

ta
in

 s
o

m
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
ro

le
s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

A
u

g
u

s
t 
2

0
1

4
 t
o

 

e
n
s
u

re
 t
h
e
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 p

ri
o
ri

ti
e
s
 a

re
 f

u
lly

 m
e
t.

1
3

0
0

0

N
e
w

 g
ro

w
th

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

T
o

ta
l 
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

7
3

7
7

4
7

7
6

4

S
a
v
in

g
s

E
&

E
0
1
1

P
u

b
li
c
 R

e
a
lm

 I
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 M

o
d

e
l 
(P

R
IS

M
) 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
. 

 T
o
w

a
rd

s
 

E
x
c
e
lle

n
c
e

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
ie

s
2

5
-3

7
5

0

R
e
-p

ro
fi
le

d
 s

a
v
in

g
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

E
&

E
0
1
2

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
re

d
u

c
ti

o
n

s
 i
n

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t
-1

4
5

0
0

U
n
a
c
h

ie
v
a
b

le
 s

a
v
in

g
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

E
&

E
0
1
3

P
u

b
li
c
 R

e
a
lm

 P
o

s
t 

re
d

u
c
ti

o
n

s
. 

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 i
n
 m

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d

 s
u
p
p

o
rt

 t
o
 

B
o
ro

u
g

h
's

 a
llo

tm
e
n
ts

-2
4

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

E
&

E
0
1
6

C
li
m

a
te

 C
h

a
n

g
e
 -

 F
le

x
ib

le
 r

e
ti

re
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 c

o
n

s
u

m
a
b

le
s
 b

u
d

g
e
t

-5
8

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

E
&

E
0
1
9

E
s
ta

b
li
s
h

in
g

 t
h

e
 H

a
rr

o
w

 H
o

m
e
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
A

g
e
n

c
y
 a

s
 a

 s
ta

n
d

 a
lo

n
e
 

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

. 
T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 P
ro

je
c
t

7
5

0
0

U
n
a
c
h

ie
v
a
b

le
 s

a
v
in

g
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

E
&

E
0
2
0

In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

C
iv

ic
 C

e
n

tr
e
 s

ta
ff

 c
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g

 c
h

a
rg

e
s

 a
n

d
 o

th
e
r 

fr
e
e
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

s

1
3

5
0

0

U
n
a
c
h

ie
v
a
b

le
 s

a
v
in

g
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

E
&

E
0
2
3

C
o

n
s
o

li
d

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

C
iv

ic
 C

e
n

tr
e
 a

c
c

o
m

m
o

d
a
ti

o
n

 t
o

 s
e
c

u
re

 u
ti

li
ty

 c
o

s
t 

s
a
v
in

g
s
. 
T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 P
ro

je
c
t

-1
2
2

-5
8

0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
N

/A
N

/A
Y

e
s

N
/A

E
&

E
0
2
5

U
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e

 m
a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 c
le

a
n

in
g

 o
f 

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 p
re

m
is

e
s

 o
n

ly
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

m
in

im
u

m
 s

ta
n

d
a
rd

 n
e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 f

o
r 

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 c

o
m

p
li
a
n

c
e
. 

1
0

0
0

0

U
n
a
c
h

ie
v
a
b

le
 s

a
v
in

g
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

E
&

E
0
3
1

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
lo

s
s
 m

a
k
in

g
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

s
1

5
0

0
0

U
n
a
c
h

ie
v
a
b

le
 s

a
v
in

g
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

E
&

E
0
3
3

T
ra

d
in

g
 S

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d

 P
ro

c
e
e

d
s
 o

f 
C

ri
m

e
 A

c
t 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 (

li
n

k
e
d

 t
o

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 

S
L

A
 w

it
h

 B
re

n
t 

tr
a
d

in
g

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
)

-1
0
0

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

E
&

E
0
3
9

R
e
v
e
n

u
e
 m

a
x
im

is
a
ti

o
n

 -
 F

le
e
t 

s
p

o
n

s
o

rs
h

ip
: 

E
x
p

lo
re

 a
d

v
e
rt

is
e
m

e
n

t 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s
 f

o
r 

P
R

S
 f

le
e
t

-2
5

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

E
&

E
0
4
0

R
e
tu

rn
in

g
 P

a
rk

s
 t

o
 O

p
e
n

 S
p

a
c
e

2
7

5
0

0
U

n
a
c
h

ie
v
a
b

le
 s

a
v
in

g
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

E
&

E
0
4
1

G
ra

s
s

 V
e
rg

e
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
 r

e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

-1
6
5

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

E
&

E
0
4
3

G
ro

u
n

d
s
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
: 

A
n

n
u

a
li
s
e
d

 h
o

u
rs

0
-8

1
0

R
e
-p

ro
fi
le

d
 s

a
v
in

g
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

E
&

E
0
4
6

R
e
v
ie

w
 f

in
e
 t

u
rf

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 s

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
-2

9
0

0
A

g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

E
&

E
0
5
0

 /
 

0
5

1

R
e
v
ie

w
 p

a
rk

s
 a

n
d

 c
e
m

e
te

ri
e
s
 o

p
e
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 l
o

c
k
in

g
 a

n
d

 s
p

e
c
ia

li
s
t 

d
o

g
 

w
a
s
te

 c
o

ll
e
c
ti

o
n

1
0

5
0

0
U

n
a
c
h

ie
v
a
b

le
 s

a
v
in

g
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

E
&

E
0
5
8

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 -

 o
th

e
rs

-2
7
3

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

235



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
4

M
T

F
S

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

 t
o

 2
0

1
6

/1
7

 –
 P

ro
p

o
s

e
d

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 /
 s

a
v
in

g
s

 
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
 &

 E
N

T
E

R
P

R
IS

E
C

a
te

g
o

ry

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1

4
-1

5
2
0
1

5
-1

6
2
0
1

6
-1

7
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
S

p
e
c
if

ic
In

it
ia

l 
F

u
ll

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

E
Q

IA
P

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 M
T

F
S

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

E
&

E
 0

0
8

 

1
4
/1

5

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e
a
li
g

n
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

P
a
rk

in
g

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

 (
In

c
o

m
e
 r

e
-a

li
g

n
m

e
n

t,
  
n

o
 s

ta
ff

 

im
p

a
c
t)

B
a
s
e
d

 o
n
 t
h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
h
is

to
ri

c
a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

, 
e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

p
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

 

tr
a
ff

ic
 o

ff
e
n
c
e

s
 f
o
r 

tr
a
ff

ic
 m

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 
re

a
s
o

n
s
 i
n
 2

0
1

2
/1

3
 r

e
c
o
v
e

re
d
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n

 

th
e
 b

u
d

g
e
te

d
 f

ig
u
re

. 
 T

h
e
 s

a
m

e
 r

a
te

 o
f 

re
c
o
v
e

ry
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 

2
0
1

3
/1

4
 s

o
 f

a
r.

  
T

o
 p

ro
p
e

rl
y
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
e
x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

u
d

g
e
te

d
 

fi
g
u
re

 f
o
r 

2
0
1

4
/1

5
 i
s
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d

e
d
. 
 

K
e
y
 r

is
k
s

:

1
. 
E

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
re

s
u
lt
s
 i
n
 c

h
a
n

g
e
s
 t
o
 b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

a
n
d

 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 r
e
d
u

c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 

in
c
o
m

e
 a

re
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 o

v
e
r 

ti
m

e
. 
 

2
. 
T

h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 c
a
n
 b

e
 a

d
v
e

rs
e
ly

 i
m

p
a
c
te

d
 b

y
 i
n
c
le

m
e
n
t 
w

e
a
th

e
r,

 t
e
c
h
n

ic
a
l 

a
n
d

 l
e
g
a

l 
is

s
u
e
s
. 
 

3
. 
P

o
lic

y
 c

h
a
n

g
e
s

-7
0
0

0
0

S
u
b
s
ti
tu

te
 s

a
v
in

g
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

E
&

E
 0

0
9

 

1
4
/1

5
T

e
x
ti

le
s
 R

e
c
y
c
li
n

g
 

A
d
d
it
io

n
a

l 
in

c
o
m

e
 g

e
n

e
ra

te
d
 f

ro
m

 t
e
x
ti
le

s
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t.

-1
0

0
0

S
u
b
s
ti
tu

te
 s

a
v
in

g
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

E
&

E
 0

1
0

 

1
4
/1

5

In
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 i
n

c
o

m
e
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 l
e
is

u
re

 c
e
n

tr
e
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

s

In
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 l
e
is

u
re

 c
e
n
tr

e
 p

a
rk

in
g
 i
n
c
o
m

e

-3
0
0

0
0

S
u
b
s
ti
tu

te
 s

a
v
in

g
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

T
o

ta
l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
&

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e
 S

a
v
in

g
s

-1
,0

8
6

-5
1
4

0

N
e
t 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
&

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

-3
4
9

2
3

3
7

6
4

236



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
4

M
T

F
S

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

 t
o

 2
0

1
6

/1
7

 –
 P

ro
p

o
s

e
d

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 /
 s

a
v
in

g
s

 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
, 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 A

N
D

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

C
a
te

g
o

ry

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1

4
-1

5
2
0
1

5
-1

6
2
0
1

6
-1

7
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
S

p
e
c
if

ic
In

it
ia

l 
F

u
ll

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

A
d

u
lt

s

C
H

W
0
0
1

D
e
m

o
g

ra
p

h
ic

 G
ro

w
th

. 
 C

o
s
ts

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

d
 d

e
m

a
n
d

 f
o
r 

e
lig

ib
le

 

u
s
e
rs

3
,2

0
0

2
,8

0
0

2
,5

0
0

G
ro

w
th

 a
g
re

e
d
 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
 /
 N

e
w

 

g
ro

w
th

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 G

e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 (

H
G

F
)

C
H

W
0
0
4

H
o

m
e
le

s
s

n
e
s
s

 [
1
0
0

 f
a
m

il
ie

s
 &

 a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 B

&
B

 H
B

 c
h

a
n

g
e
s
).

  
S

a
v
in

g
s
 

fr
o
m

 2
0
1

2
-1

3
 M

T
F

S
 a

s
s
u
m

e
d
 t
o
 a

ri
s
e
 f

ro
m

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

d
 s

u
b
s
id

y
 f
o
r 

B
&

B
 

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 d

id
 n

o
t 
a
c
tu

a
lly

 m
a
te

ri
a
lis

e
.

-1
0
0

0
0

U
n
a
c
h

ie
v
a
b

le
 s

a
v
in

g
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

C
H

W
0
0
5

H
o

m
e
le

s
s

n
e
s
s

. 
 G

ro
w

th
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g

e
s
 o

f 
w

e
lf
a
re

 r
e
fo

rm
, 
in

 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 

a
d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
s
ta

ff
in

g
 a

n
d

 a
d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
e
x
p
e
n

d
it
u
re

 n
o
w

 b
e
in

g
 i
n
c
u
rr

e
d
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
p
p

ro
p
ri

a
te

 s
o
lu

ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
h
o
u

s
in

g
 n

e
e

d
 

-5
0
0

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

C
H

W
0
0
6

In
v
e
s
t 

to
 S

a
v
e
 i
n

 P
ri

v
a
te

 S
e
c
to

r 
L

e
a
s

in
g

 (
P

S
L

) 
In

c
e
n

ti
v
e
 p

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 

la
n
d

lo
rd

s
 f

o
r 

e
n
te

ri
n
g
 m

e
d
iu

m
 t
e
rm

 l
e
a
s
e

 a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 

re
d
u

c
e
d
 e

x
p
e
n

d
it
u
re

 o
n
 B

&
B

 s
h
o
w

n
 a

s
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 b

e
lo

w
.

-2
8
9

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

Y
e
s

N
/A

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 &

 C
u

lt
u

re
N

/A

C
H

W
0
1
0

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
s
p

e
c
ia

li
s
t 

w
e
lf

a
re

 a
d

v
ic

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

-9
0

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

C
H

W
0
0
3

 

1
4
/1

5

H
a
tc

h
 E

n
d
 L

ib
ra

ry
 -

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
a
s
s
u
m

e
d
 a

 s
e
lf
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 m

o
d
e

l.
  
O

n
g
o

in
g
 

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
to

 f
in

a
lis

e
 s

ta
ff

in
g
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 f

o
r 

 A
p
ri

l 
2
0
1

4
.

1
1

7
0

0

N
e
w

 g
ro

w
th

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

P
u

b
li
c
 H

e
a
lt

h

C
H

W
0
1
1

P
u

b
li
c
 H

e
a
lt

h
 T

ra
n

s
it

io
n

 c
o

s
ts

-1
0
0

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

Y
e
s

T
o

ta
l 
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

2
,2

3
8

2
,8

0
0

2
,5

0
0

S
a
v
in

g
s

A
d

u
lt

s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

C
H

W
0
1
3

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
- 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
-1

0
0

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

C
H

W
0
1
5

W
e
s
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 A
ll
ia

n
c
e
 (

W
L

A
) 

J
o

in
t 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t:
 A

p
p

ro
v
e
d

 P
ro

v
id

e
r 

C
re

d
it

io
n

 (
A

P
C

) 
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l 
C

a
re

-1
0
0

0
0

U
n
a
c
h

ie
v
a
b

le
 s

a
v
in

g
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

C
H

W
0
1
7

V
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 S
e
c
to

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
. 

R
e
v
e
rs

a
l 
o
f 

2
0
1

2
/1

3
 g

ro
w

th
-1

0
0

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

C
H

W
0
1
8

V
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 S
e
c
to

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
-2

0
0

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

C
H

W
0
1
9

R
e
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l 
C

a
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 R
e
v
ie

w
. 
 O

n
ly

 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
c
o
m

p
le

x
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 t
o
 

b
e
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l 
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
ts

.

-3
,0

0
0

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

Y
e
s

C
H

W
0
2
0

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 B

a
s
e

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

. 
C

o
s
t 
o
f 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

s
 a

 

re
s
u
lt
 o

f 
n
o
t 
p
la

c
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 i
n
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l 
c
a
re

.

1
,5

0
0

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

C
H

W
0
2
1

D
a
y
 C

a
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 R
e
v
ie

w
-3

0
0

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

Y
e
s

C
H

W
0
2
2

P
u

rc
h

a
s
in

g
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

[c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 b

a
s
e

d
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
].

  
M

a
rk

e
t 
d
e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 g

re
a
te

r 
c
h
o
ic

e
 i
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 l
e
a
d

in
g
 t
o
 r

e
d
u

c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 c

o
s
t.

-1
,0

0
0

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

C
H

W
0
2
3

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 S

ta
ff

. 
 R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
in

g
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
.

-3
0
0

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

E
Q

IA
P

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 M
T

F
S

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

237



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
4

M
T

F
S

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

 t
o

 2
0

1
6

/1
7

 –
 P

ro
p

o
s

e
d

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 /
 s

a
v
in

g
s

 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
, 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 A

N
D

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

C
a
te

g
o

ry

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1

4
-1

5
2
0
1

5
-1

6
2
0
1

6
-1

7
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
S

p
e
c
if

ic
In

it
ia

l 
F

u
ll

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

E
Q

IA
P

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 M
T

F
S

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

C
H

W
0
2
4

S
h

a
re

 C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 t

e
a
m

 w
it

h
 a

n
o

th
e
r 

lo
c
a
l 
a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 a
n

d
/ 
o

r 
a
g

g
re

g
a
te

 

w
it

h
in

 C
o

u
n

c
il
. 
 O

ri
g
in

a
lly

 i
n
te

n
d

e
d
 t
h
e
s
e

s
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 

a
 s

h
a
re

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h

 w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e

 t
o
 b

e
 e

x
p
lo

re
d
 b

u
t 
m

a
y
 b

e
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 w
id

e
r 

s
ta

ff
 c

h
a
n

g
e
s
 a

s
 a

p
p

ro
p
ri

a
te

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
. 
 

-1
0
4

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

C
H

W
0
2
5

S
h

a
ri

n
g

 o
f 

J
o

in
t 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a
m

 w
it

h
 a

n
o

th
e
r 

lo
c
a
l 
a
u

th
o

ri
ty

. 
O

ri
g
in

a
lly

 

in
te

n
d

e
d
 t
h
e
s
e

 s
a
v
in

g
s
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 a

 s
h
a
re

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h

 

w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e

 t
o
 b

e
 e

x
p
lo

re
d
 b

u
t 
m

a
y
 b

e
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 w
id

e
r 

s
ta

ff
 

c
h
a
n

g
e
s
 a

s
 a

p
p

ro
p
ri

a
te

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
. 

-9
3

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

C
H

W
0
2
8

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 P
e
o

p
le

 -
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 s

p
e
c
if

ic
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

-1
,3

2
4

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

Y
e
s

C
H

W
0
2
9

S
e
c
u

re
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

e
a
rm

a
rk

e
d

 i
n

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
fr

o
m

 P
C

T
/C

C
G

 i
n

 A
d

u
lt

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

5
0

0
0

0

U
n
a
c
h

ie
v
a
b

le
 s

a
v
in

g
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

C
H

W
0
3
2

M
e
a
ls

 o
n

 W
h

e
e
ls

. 
 R

e
v
ie

w
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
.

-1
9
0

0
0

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

Y
e
s

C
H

W
0
3
4

L
a
te

 s
a
v
in

g
s
 -

 v
a
c
a

n
c
y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
6

9
0

0
U

n
a
c
h

ie
v
a
b

le
 s

a
v
in

g
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

C
H

W
0
3
5

L
a
te

 s
a
v
in

g
s
 -

 a
g

e
n

c
y
 c

o
s
ts

7
3

0
0

U
n
a
c
h

ie
v
a
b

le
 s

a
v
in

g
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

 (
H

G
F

)

C
H

W
0
3
7

H
o

u
s
in

g
 N

e
e
d

s
 -

 P
ri

v
a
te

 S
e
c
to

r 
L

e
a
s

in
g

 S
c
h

e
m

e
. 

 I
n
c
o
m

e
 g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o
n

-2
5

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

Y
e
s

N
/A

C
H

W
0
3
8

H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 R

e
v
ie

w
. 
 S

a
v
in

g
 i
n
 s

ta
ff

in
g
 c

o
s
ts

-7
0

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

C
H

W
0
4
1

In
v
e
s
t 

to
 S

a
v
e
 -

 c
a
s

h
 i
n

c
e
n

ti
v
e
s

. 
 U

s
e
d
 t
o
 f

re
e
 u

p
 H

R
A

 p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 t
o
 h

o
u

s
e
 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 w

a
it
in

g
 l
is

t.
 S

a
v
in

g
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
 f
ro

m
 r

e
d
u

c
e
d
 B

&
B

 e
x
p
e
n

d
it
u
re

.

-4
8

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

C
H

W
0
4
7

E
m

p
ty

 H
o

m
e
s
 I
n

it
ia

ti
v
e
. 
R

e
d
u

c
e
d
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a

ti
o
n
 a

s
 a

 

re
s
u
lt
 o

f 
b
ri

n
g
in

g
 e

m
p
ty

 p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 b

a
c
k
 i
n
to

 u
s
e
.

-3
0
0

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 C
u

lt
u

re

C
H

W
0
4
8

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
p

ro
v
is

io
n

-1
5

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

C
H

W
0
5
0

L
ib

ra
ri

e
s
 T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 2
 I
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

fi
n
a
l 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
n
e
g

o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

ro
u
n

d
 p

ro
fi
t 

s
h
a
re

 a
n
d

 s
h
o
rt

 t
e
rm

 u
s
e
 o

f 
C

iv
ic

 C
e
n
tr

e
 b

y
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r

7
0

-1
8

0

U
n
a
c
h

ie
v
a
b

le
 s

a
v
in

g
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

Y
e
s

C
H

W
0
5
1

L
ib

ra
ry

 V
o

lu
n

te
e
rs

. 
 S

u
p
p

o
rt

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 b
y
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

.
-4

0
0

0
A

g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

Y
e
s

C
H

W
0
5
3

C
u

lt
u

ra
l 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 R

e
v
ie

w
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
 -

 s
a
v
in

g
s
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 t

e
n

d
e
r 

w
it

h
 

E
a
li
n

g
 &

 B
re

n
t

-4
0
0

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

Y
e
s

C
H

W
0
5
4

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
6

2
0

0
U

n
a
c
h

ie
v
a
b

le
 s

a
v
in

g
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

C
H

W
0
5
5

R
e
d

u
c
e
 A

d
u

lt
 L

e
a
rn

in
g

 S
u

b
s
id

y
. 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 f

u
n
d

e
d
 b

y
 g

ra
n
t.

-5
0

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

Y
e
s

N
/A

C
H

W
0
5
6

R
e
d

u
c
e
 s

u
b

s
id

y
 t

o
 h

a
rr

o
w

 y
o

u
n

g
 m

u
s
ic

ia
n

s
 

-1
0

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

C
H

W
0
5
7

S
h

a
re

 r
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 C

o
h

e
s
io

n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 C

o
u

n
c
il

6
3

0
0

U
n
a
c
h

ie
v
a
b

le
 s

a
v
in

g
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

C
H

W
0
5
8

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
li
s
a
ti

o
n

 H
a
tc

h
 E

n
d

 P
o

o
l,
 A

rt
s
 C

e
n

tr
e
, 
M

u
s
e
u

m
 &

 B
a
n

n
is

te
r 

s
ta

d
iu

m
. 
C

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
lis

a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
je

c
t 
s
e
t 
u
p
 t
o
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

 t
h
e
 l
o
n
g

e
r 

te
rm

 

d
e
liv

e
ra

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e
s
e

 s
a
v
in

g
s
.

1
1

7
0

0
U

n
a
c
h

ie
v
a
b

le
 s

a
v
in

g
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

Y
e
s

N
/A

C
H

W
0
6
2

D
e
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

o
s
t 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 f

e
s
ti

v
a
ls

-4
8

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

Y
e
s

P
u

b
li
c
 H

e
a
lt

h

C
H

W
0
6
8

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

P
u

b
li
c
 H

e
a
lt

h
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
. 

F
u
n
d

in
g
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

re
v
e
n

u
e
 f

u
n
d

e
d
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

-1
0
0

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3

Y
e
s

N
/A

Y
e
s

N
/A

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

238



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
4

M
T

F
S

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

 t
o

 2
0

1
6

/1
7

 –
 P

ro
p

o
s

e
d

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 /
 s

a
v
in

g
s

 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
, 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 A

N
D

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

C
a
te

g
o

ry

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1

4
-1

5
2
0
1

5
-1

6
2
0
1

6
-1

7
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
S

p
e
c
if

ic
In

it
ia

l 
F

u
ll

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

E
Q

IA
P

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 M
T

F
S

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

C
H

W
0
6
9

L
a
te

 s
a
v
in

g
s
 -

 p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t
1

6
7

0
0

U
n
a
c
h

ie
v
a
b

le
 s

a
v
in

g
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

T
o

ta
l 
C

H
W

 S
a
v
in

g
s

-5
,2

9
6

-1
8

0

N
e
t 

C
H

W
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

-3
,0

5
8

2
,7

8
2

2
,5

0
0

239



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
4

M
T

F
S

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

 t
o

 2
0

1
6

/1
7

 –
 P

ro
p

o
s

e
d

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 /

 s
a

v
in

g
s

 
R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

C
a

te
g

o
ry

It
e

m
 N

o
2

0
1

4
-1

5
2

0
1

5
-1

6
2

0
1

6
-1

7
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
S

p
e

c
if

ic
In

it
ia

l 
F

u
ll

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

IT
 /
 P

ro
je

c
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

 (
P

M
O

)

R
E

S
0

0
5

B
T

P
 C

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

In
d

e
x

a
ti

o
n

. 
C

o
s
t 
o

f 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
in

c
re

a
s
e

s
 i
n

 e
x
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
2

%
.

3
0

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

R
E

S
 0

0
1

 

1
4

/1
5

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

s
e

c
u

ri
ty

 e
n

h
a

n
c
e

m
e

n
ts

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 b

y
 P

u
b

lic
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

N
e

tw
o

rk
 (

P
S

N
)

1
0

0
0

0

N
e

w
 g

ro
w

th
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

R
E

S
 0

0
2

 

1
4

/1
5

C
o

n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 f
o

r 
c
h

a
n

n
e

l 
m

ig
ra

ti
o

n
 s

u
p

p
lie

r 
c
o

s
ts

5
0

0
0

N
e

w
 g

ro
w

th
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

R
E

S
0

0
9

E
x

p
e

ri
a

n
 &

 L
IS

. 
A

d
d

it
io

n
 o

f 
n

e
w

 c
e

n
s
u

s
 d

a
ta

 i
n

to
 L

IS
 s

y
s
te

m
 a

n
d

 u
p

d
a

te
 o

f 

E
x
p

e
ri

a
n

 p
ro

fi
le

s
.

2
2

-2
5

0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

R
E

S
0

1
0

R
e

fr
e

s
h

 o
f 

R
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 P

a
n

e
l.
  

R
e

fr
e

s
h

 o
f 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

.
-1

0
0

0
A

g
re

e
d

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

H
u

m
a

n
 R

e
s

o
u

rc
e

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

(H
R

D
)

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

R
E

S
0

1
4

R
e

d
u

c
e

d
 W

e
s

t 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 W

a
s

te
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 (

W
L

W
A

) 
S

L
A

 I
n

c
o

m
e

 t
o

 P
a

y
ro

ll
. 

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 S
L

A
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 a
s
 W

e
s
t 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 W

a
s
te

 c
e

a
s
e

s
 t
o

 u
s
e

 H
a

rr
o

w
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
.

1
5

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

L
e

g
a

l 
a

n
d

 G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
N

/A
N

/A

R
E

S
0

1
6

In
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
E

le
c

to
ra

l 
R

e
g

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

. 
Im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 c

o
s
ts

-1
0

0
0

0
A

g
re

e
d

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

F
in

a
n

c
e

R
E

S
0

1
7

F
in

a
n

c
e

 T
ra

n
s

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 P
ro

je
c

t.
 O

n
e

 o
ff

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 c

o
s
ts

 f
o

r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
e

n
h

a
n

c
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

.

-2
0

0
0

0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

R
E

S
0

1
8

F
in

a
n

c
e

 -
 E

n
d

in
g

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 t

o
 W

L
W

A
. 
R

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 S
L

A
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 a
s
 W

e
s
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 W
a

s
te

 c
e

a
s
e

s
 t
o

 u
s
e

 H
a

rr
o

w
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

2
7

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

C
o

ll
e

c
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

R
E

S
0

1
9

D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
W

o
rk

 a
n

d
 P

e
n

s
io

n
s

 (
D

W
P

) 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi

t 
R

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 i
n

 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

 G
ra

n
t.

 F
o

llo
w

in
g

 t
h

e
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
U

n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
C

re
d

it
 

a
d

m
in

is
te

re
d

 b
y
 c

e
n

tr
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t.

0
2

5
0

5
0

0

R
e

-p
ro

fi
le

d
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

R
E

S
0

2
0

L
o

s
s

 o
f 

H
o

u
s

in
g

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

 O
v
e

rp
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 S
tr

e
a

m
. 

F
o

llo
w

in
g

 t
h

e
 

in
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
U

n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
C

re
d

it
 a

d
m

in
is

te
re

d
 b

y
 c

e
n

tr
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t.
 

0
2

0
0

3
2

0

R
e

 p
ro

fi
le

d
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

R
E

S
0

2
3

P
u

b
li
c

 F
in

a
n

c
e

 I
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

 (
P

F
I)

  
G

ra
n

t 
R

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
. 
E

n
d

in
g

 o
f 

g
ra

n
t 
in

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 

to
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 P

F
I 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t.

4
3

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

R
E

S
0

2
4

D
W

P
 H

B
 R

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 i
n

 A
d

m
in

 G
ra

n
t

1
1

9
0

0
A

g
re

e
d

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

T
o

ta
l 
In

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

9
6

4
2

5
8

2
0

S
a

v
in

g
s

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

R
E

S
0

2
7

U
s

e
 o

f 
A

rt
if

ic
ia

l 
In

te
ll
ig

e
n

c
e

 t
o

 d
iv

e
rt

 s
w

it
c

h
b

o
a

rd
 c

a
ll
s

. 
R

e
d

u
c
in

g
 u

s
e

 o
f 

s
ta

ff
, 
in

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
 i
n

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 w
it
h

 f
u

ll 
y
e

a
r 

im
p

a
c
t 
o

f 
s
a

v
in

g
 i
n

 2
0

1
4

-1
5

-6
0

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

Y
e

s

R
E

S
0

2
9

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

c
h

a
n

n
e

l 
s

h
if

t 
th

ro
u

g
h

 r
o

ll
 o

u
t 

o
f 

M
y
 H

a
rr

o
w

 a
c

c
o

u
n

t.
 R

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 

A
c
c
e

s
s
 H

a
rr

o
w

 s
ta

ff
in

g
 r

e
s
u

lt
in

g
 f

ro
m

 s
e

lf
 s

e
rv

e
 v

ia
 M

H
A

, 
w

e
b

s
it
e

 a
n

d
 I
V

R

-6
0

-6
0

0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

Y
e

s

R
E

S
0

3
0

C
lo

s
e

 F
a

c
e

 t
o

 F
a

c
e

 (
F

2
F

) 
a

n
d

 T
e

le
p

h
o

n
y
 C

h
a

n
n

e
ls

 f
o

r 
P

u
b

li
c

 R
e

a
lm

 

E
n

q
u

ir
ie

s
. 
O

v
e

r 
a

 3
 y

e
a

r 
p

e
ri

o
d

 c
lo

s
e

 f
a

c
e

 t
o

 f
a

c
e

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 
in

 A
c
c
e

s
s
 H

a
rr

o
w

 

fo
r 

P
u

b
lic

 R
e

a
lm

 q
u

e
ri

e
s
 a

n
d

 m
ig

ra
te

 t
o

 I
n

te
rn

e
t 
c
o

n
ta

c
t.

-3
0

-7
0

-5
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

Y
e

s

R
E

S
0

3
1

R
e

c
o

n
fi

g
u

re
 O

n
e

 S
to

p
 S

h
o

p
 t
o

 s
e

lf
-s

e
rv

e
 a

re
a

 a
n

d
 c

lo
s
e

 F
2

F
 (

fa
c
e

 t
o

 f
a

c
e

) 

a
d

v
ic

e

-1
0

0
-1

9
0

-1
0

0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

Y
e

s

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

E
Q

IA
P

ro
p

o
s

e
d

 M
T

F
S

C
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

o
n

240



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
4

M
T

F
S

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

 t
o

 2
0

1
6

/1
7

 –
 P

ro
p

o
s

e
d

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 /

 s
a

v
in

g
s

 
R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

C
a

te
g

o
ry

It
e

m
 N

o
2

0
1

4
-1

5
2

0
1

5
-1

6
2

0
1

6
-1

7
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
S

p
e

c
if

ic
In

it
ia

l 
F

u
ll

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

E
Q

IA
P

ro
p

o
s

e
d

 M
T

F
S

C
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

o
n

R
E

S
0

3
6

M
e

rg
e

r 
o

f 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 T
e

a
m

 a
n

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 T

e
a

m
, 

re
d

u
c

in
g

 s
ta

ff
in

g
. 
M

e
rg

in
g

 o
f 

tw
o

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
p

o
s
ts

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
in

g
 s

im
ila

r 

s
p

e
c
ia

lis
m

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

to
 o

n
e

 s
in

g
le

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 I
n

te
lli

g
e

n
c
e

 t
e

a
m

 a
n

d
 

th
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 o
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 m

o
d

e
l 
(n

e
x
t 
s
a

v
in

g
).

 

-9
3

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

Y
e

s

R
E

S
0

3
8

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
, 
R

e
s

e
a

rc
h

 &
 A

n
a

ly
s

is
 B

u
s

in
e

s
s

 C
a

s
e

 a
n

d
 N

e
w

 O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 

M
o

d
e

l 
S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
. 
A

g
g

re
g

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

o
s
ts

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
in

g
 s

im
ila

r 

s
p

e
c
ia

lis
m

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

to
 o

n
e

 t
e

a
m

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 t
h

e
n

 r
e

d
u

c
e

d
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
th

e
 

s
a

v
in

g
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 a
 m

o
re

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
.

-9
7

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

Y
e

s

R
E

S
0

4
0

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s

 -
 r

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 i
n

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
a

m
p

a
ig

n
s

. 
 T

h
is

 i
s

 a
 r

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 

in
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
tr

a
c

t 
p

ri
c

e
 f

o
r 

th
e

 n
e

x
t 

tw
o

 y
e

a
rs

 a
g

re
e

d
 w

it
h

 W
e

s
tc

o
.

-4
6

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

H
R

D

R
E

S
0

4
2

R
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 i
n

 H
R

D
 p

o
s

ts
. 
D

e
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
2

 p
o

s
ts

.
0

-7
5

0
U

n
a

c
h

ie
v
a

b
le

 s
a

v
in

g
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

Y
e

s

R
E

S
0

4
5

P
ri

n
t 

C
o

n
tr

a
c

t 
S

a
v
in

g
s

. 
L

e
tt
in

g
 o

f 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
fo

r 
p

ri
n

te
rs

 a
n

d
 p

h
o

c
o

p
ie

rs
 a

t 

lo
w

e
r 

c
o

s
t.

-1
0

0
0

0
A

g
re

e
d

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

Y
e

s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

R
E

S
0

4
6

C
e

s
s

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

E
x

te
rn

a
l 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
A

d
v
e

rt
is

in
g

. 
R

e
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
 v

o
lu

m
e

 o
f 

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
a

d
v
e

rt
is

in
g

 i
n

 j
o

u
rn

a
ls

 a
n

d
 p

a
p

e
rs

 a
n

d
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 

in
te

rn
e

t 

a
d

v
e

rt
is

in
g

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 o

w
n

 s
it
e

-7
5

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3

Y
e

s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 A

N
T

I-
F

R
A

U
D

 T
E

A
M

R
E

S
0

4
7

P
ro

c
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
C

ri
m

e
 A

c
t 

- 
p

u
rs

u
e

 r
e

c
o

v
e

ri
e

s
 o

f 
fr

a
u

d
u

le
n

t 
g

a
in

s
 i
n

 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it

h
 B

re
n

t,
 p

lu
s

 a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 
in

c
o

m
e

 r
e

c
o

v
e

ry
. 
 

-1
9

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

IN
T

E
R

N
A

L
 A

U
D

IT

R
E

S
0

4
8

R
e

d
u

c
e

 c
o

-s
o

u
rc

in
g

 b
u

d
g

e
t.

 R
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

e
x
te

rn
a

l 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 

s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 a
u

d
it
.

-1
6

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

IN
S

U
R

A
N

C
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

R
E

S
0

5
3

R
e

d
u

c
e

d
 b

ro
k

e
r 

fe
e

s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 m

o
re

 i
n

-h
o

u
s

e
 h

a
n

d
li
n

g
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
re

a
s

e
d

 

in
c

o
m

e
 o

n
 t

h
ir

d
 p

a
rt

y
 i
n

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 s
c

h
e

m
e

s

-3
0

0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

R
E

S
0

5
8

D
e

le
ti

o
n

 o
f 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 R
is

k
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 S

e
rv

ic
e

. 
D

e
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

o
s
t 

in
 2

0
1

3
.

-3
0

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

Y
e

s

R
E

S
0

5
9

C
ro

s
s

 C
o

u
n

c
il
 I
n

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 C
la

im
s

. 
R

e
d

u
c
e

 c
o

s
t 
o

f 
in

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 c
la

im
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

b
y
 b

e
tt
e

r 
ri

s
k
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t.

-7
0

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

R
E

S
0

6
0

R
e

d
u

c
e

d
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 t
o

 I
n

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 P
ro

v
is

io
n

. 
R

e
d

u
c
e

 c
o

s
t 
o

f 
in

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 

c
la

im
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

b
y
 b

e
tt
e

r 
ri

s
k
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t.

-1
0

0
0

0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

L
E

G
A

L
 A

N
D

 G
O

V
E

R
N

A
N

C
E

Le
g

a
l 

P
ra

ct
ic

e
 

R
E

S
0

6
4

E
x

p
a

n
s

io
n

 o
f 

L
e

g
a

l 
P

ra
c

ti
c

e
 S

h
a

re
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
. 

E
x
p

a
n

d
 L

e
g

a
l 
s
h

a
re

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 

to
 a

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
p

a
rt

n
e

r.
 

1
0

0
0

0
U

n
a

c
h

ie
v
a

b
le

 s
a

v
in

g

Y
e

s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

R
E

S
0

6
8

E
-c

a
n

v
a

s
s

 P
ro

je
c

t.
 R

e
d

u
c
e

d
 s

ta
ff

in
g

 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 e
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
 c

a
n

v
a

s
.

-2
0

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

R
E

S
0

7
2

In
c

re
a

s
e

 t
o

 R
e

g
is

tr
a

rs
 F

e
e

 I
n

c
o

m
e

 T
a

rg
e

t.
 I

n
c
o

m
e

 b
u

d
g

e
t 
re

d
u

c
e

d
 i
n

 2
0

1
2

-

1
3

 t
o

 r
e

fl
e

c
t 
a

c
tu

a
l 
re

c
e

iv
e

d
, 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
in

c
o

m
e

 t
o

 b
e

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 f

ro
m

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

.

-1
0

0
0

0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 F
in

a
n

c
e

R
E

S
0

7
3

F
in

a
n

c
e

 r
e

s
tr

u
c

tu
re

. 
 R

e
d

u
c
e

d
 s

ta
ff

 c
o

s
ts

.
-3

0
0

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

Y
e

s

C
o

ll
e

c
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

R
E

S
0

7
8

D
e

le
ti

o
n

 o
f 

4
 F

T
E

 p
o

s
ts

 i
n

 H
o

u
s

in
g

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

0
-1

4
0

0
R

e
p

ro
fi
le

d
 s

a
v
in

g
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

Y
e

s

R
E

S
0

8
0

S
ta

ff
 r

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
s

 t
o

 m
a

tc
h

 D
W

P
 A

d
m

in
 g

ra
n

t 
re

d
u

c
ti

o
n

-4
8

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

Y
e

s

241



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
4

M
T

F
S

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

 t
o

 2
0

1
6

/1
7

 –
 P

ro
p

o
s

e
d

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 /

 s
a

v
in

g
s

 
R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

C
a

te
g

o
ry

It
e

m
 N

o
2

0
1

4
-1

5
2

0
1

5
-1

6
2

0
1

6
-1

7
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
S

p
e

c
if

ic
In

it
ia

l 
F

u
ll

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

E
Q

IA
P

ro
p

o
s

e
d

 M
T

F
S

C
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

o
n

R
E

S
0

8
1

C
o

n
c

e
s

s
io

n
a

ry
 T

ra
v
e

l 
- 

C
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t

o
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 (

T
F

L
) 

g
ra

n
t 

d
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

. 
R

e
a

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
le

v
y
 c

o
s
ts

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

s
.

-1
0

2
0

0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

R
E

S
0

8
2

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
s

 S
ta

ff
in

g
 R

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
s

0
0

-4
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

Y
e

s

R
E

S
0

8
3

H
o

u
s

in
g

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

 S
ta

ff
in

g
 R

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
s

 a
s

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

 m
o

v
e

s
 t

o
 D

W
P

. 

R
e

d
u

c
e

d
 s

ta
ff

in
g

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 a

s
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi
ts

 t
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 t
o

 U
n

iv
e

rs
a

l 
C

re
d

it
 

a
n

d
 i
s
 n

o
 l
o

n
g

e
r 

a
d

m
in

is
te

re
d

 b
y
 H

a
rr

o
w

.

0
0

-1
2

5
U

n
a

c
h

ie
v
a

b
le

 s
a

v
in

g

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

R
E

S
 0

0
3

 

1
4

/1
5

T
o

 d
e

le
te

 t
h

e
 p

o
s
t 
o

f 
C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt

-2
8

0
0

0
S

u
b

s
ti
tu

te
 s

a
v
in

g
D

o
n

e
D

o
n

e
D

o
n

e
D

o
n

e

T
o

ta
l 
R

e
s

o
u

rc
e

s
 S

a
v
in

g
s

-1
,6

4
9

-5
3

5
-3

1
5

N
e

t 
R

e
s

o
u

rc
e

s
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

-1
,5

5
3

-1
1

0
5

0
5

242



Draft Public Health Funding 2014/15 APPENDIX 5

Mandatory Services

Sexual Health (incl Family Planning) 2,735,948

Health Checks 334,750

Supporting Child Health 687,820

3,758,518

Discretionary Services

Tobacco Control 228,500

Drug & Alcohol Misuse 2,175,156

Physical Activity 134,620

Other 495,873

3,034,149

Staffing & Support Costs

Staffing 1,121,496

Non-staffing 314,000

Overheads 270,525

1,706,021

New Investment 415,000

Contingency 312,500

Unallocated Grant 225,952

Total Expenditure 9,452,140

Funded by 

Department of Health Grant 9,146,000

MOPAC funding 56,140

Council funded 250,000

Total Income 9,452,140

243



244

This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

Appendix 6 
 
Schools Budget 2014-15 
 
 
1. Introduction 
 
The Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) is a ring fenced grant of which the 
majority is used to fund individual school budgets. It also funds certain central 
services provided by the local authority such as Early Years (private and 
voluntary sector nurseries) and fees for out of borough pupils at independent 
special schools. 
 
In March 2012 the DfE announced their intention to introduce a new school 
funding methodology with effect from April 2013. Schools budgets have been 
set for 2013-14 based on this new methodology which was reported to 
Cabinet on 13th December 2012. 
 
 
2. School Funding Reform 2014-15 
 
In 2014-15 the DSG will continue to be split into the following three blocks: 

• Schools Block 

• High Needs Block 

• Early Years Block 
 
The DfE issued the “2014-15 Revenue Funding Arrangements: Operational 
Information for Local Authorities” on 8th July 2013 to enable local authorities 
and their Schools Forums in planning the local implementation of the 
reformed funding system for 2014-15. 
 
The Formula Factors and changes since 2013-14 are shown at Table 1. At its 
meeting on 15th October 2013, Schools Forum agreed to retain the same 
factors for 2014-15 as used in 2013-14. 
 
Table 1 
 
Funding Formula Factors and changes since 2013-14 
 

Changes for 2014-15: Comment 

Pupil led funding (basic entitlement 
per pupil and other pupil led factors) 
Minimum level for pupil led funding 
set at 80 per cent 

No impact. Harrow already allocates 
over 90 per cent through these 
factors 

Age Weighted Values (Mandatory 
factor) 
Minimum AWPU values set at £2,000 
for primary and £3,000 for Key Stage 
3 and Key Stage 4 

No impact. Harrow exceeds these 
values 

Primary Prior Attainment Factor No impact. 

245



 2 

Early Years Foundation Stage Profile 
(EYFSP) Retained as prior attainment 
factor for primary schools 

Secondary Prior Attainment Factor 
Changed so that it now counts pupils 
achieving below Level 4 in Maths OR 
English instead of Maths AND 
English 

This has more than doubled the 
number of pupils counted in this 
calculation. This has increased the 
value of funding distributed through 
this factor by nearly £5m. It is 
proposed that the cash value per 
pupil should be reduced to fund this 
pressure. 

Deprivation (Mandatory) 
Factors retained. Can use Free 
School Meals (FSM) or Ever 6 FSM, 
and/or IDACI 

It is proposed to retain FSM. 

Scarcity Factor 
New for 2014-15 

At its meeting on 10th September 
2013 Schools Forum agreed that this 
factor is not relevant 

Looked After Children (LAC) 
Only one indicator rather than a 
choice of three. Any child who has 
spent a day or more in care 

No impact 

Pupil Mobility 
In 2014-15 this only applies to 
schools with more than 10% mobility 
and applies to pupils who were 
mobile in the last three years 

This has reduced the amount of 
funding distributed through this factor 
by just over £1m, affecting both 
sectors. It is proposed that the cash 
value per pupil should be increased to 
redistribute this reduction 

Lump Sum 
Maximum reduced to £175,000 and 
the value can be different for primary 
and secondary schools. Merging 
schools can keep 85% of two lump 
sums for the full financial year after 
amalgamation 

Harrow’s lump sum remains at 
£154,230. This will impact on one 
amalgamation which took place in 
Sept 2013. 

Schools with Falling Rolls 
Schools Forum can agree a top-slice 
of the Dedicated Schools Grant 
(DSG). Fund applies to Academies 
and maintained schools where places 
will be required in 2 to 3 years and 
schools are rated by OfSTED as good 
or outstanding 

No fund at present, unlikely to be 
required in 2014-15 

De-delegation 
No change. De-delegation reviewed 
each year 

Currently only £31,270 for Schools 
Support has been de-delegated for 
Trade Union duties. 

Minimum Funding Guarantee 
Remains at -1.5% per pupil. LAs can 
cap gains under the formula to fund 
the MFG 

It is proposed that a cap of 1% is 
applied to gains, in order to fund 
those schools whose funding 
reduction is below 1.5%. In 2013-14 

246



 3 

the cap on gains was set at 0.5%. 

 
 
The main changes since 2013-14 relate to the Secondary Prior Attainment 
Factor and Pupil Mobility. A consultation was issued to all maintained school 
and academy school head teachers in October 2013. This consultation closed 
on 8th November 2013. 
 
The consultation included three proposals: 
 

• adjust the per pupil funding for the Secondary Prior Attainment Factor 
in order that a similar level of funding be distributed through this factor 
as in 2013-14 

• adjust the per pupil funding for the Pupil Mobility Factor in order that a 
similar level of funding be distributed through this factor as in 2013-14 

• cap gains on schools whose budgets increase between years in order 
to fund those schools whose funding reduction is below 1.5%. 

 
The level of adjustment and capping will not be known until the DSG 
allocation for the Schools Block is announced for 2014-15. This is likely to be 
mid-December 2013.  
 
All high schools responded to the consultation and were in agreement with the 
proposals. No response was received from the primary sector. 
 
 
3. Setting Schools Budgets 2014-15 
 
The final 2014-15 Schools Block DSG is based on pupil numbers as recorded 
on October 2013 School Census, multiplied by a per pupil unit of funding. The 
per pupil unit of funding for 2014-15 remains the same as 2013-14 at 
£4,927.48. 
 
Based on provisional October 2013 census data, the forecast DSG for 2014-
15 for the Schools Block is £145m. It should be noted that at the time of 
writing (11th November 2013) not all of the academy high school census data 
had been returned to the LA from the DfE. Therefore, this calculation 
assumes that pupil numbers for 4 academy high schools remain the same as 
October 2012. However, this is unlikely and so the above figure can be 
indicative only. Under the current regulations the council continues to 
calculate the basis of the academy budgets through the Harrow Schools 
Funding Formula. The DfE then recoup the DSG in respect of the academy 
budgets and pass this funding onto academies directly.  
 
Schools will also receive the Pupil Premium in respect of pupils who have 
ever been eligible for Free School Meals (FSM) in the last six years. In 
2013/14 the rate for both eligible primary and secondary pupils is £900.  In 
2014/15 this increases to £1,300 per eligible primary pupil and £935 per 
eligible secondary pupil.  The pupil premium is a specific grant that the council 
has to passport onto schools. Schools can decide how they will use the 

247



 4 

additional funding to achieve improved outcomes for deprived children. On 1 
October 2013, Children’s Minister, Edward Timpson MP, announced a new 
‘pupil premium plus’ that will increase the funding for children in care at school 
to £1,900 per pupil from April 2014, an increase of £1,000 per pupil since 
2013-14. 
 
 
4. Central Services 
 
Services currently funded from centrally retained DSG are included in either 
the High Needs block or Early Years block where appropriate, with the 
remaining falling into the Schools Block. All the funding in the schools block 
has to be passed to schools apart from the following named exceptions which 
can still be retained but are frozen at 2012-13 levels: 
 

• Co-ordinated Admissions 

• Servicing of Schools Forum 
 
In addition, the following services will be delegated to schools: 
 

• Behaviour Support Services 

• Support to underperforming ethnic minority groups and bilingual 
learners 

• Trade Union Facilities Time 
 
Schools Forum has agreed to continue to de-delegate funding in respect of 
Trade Union Facilities Time. 
 
At its meeting in November 2013 Schools Forum will consider a request to 
create a ring fenced Growth Fund from the DSG in order to fund in year pupil 
growth. This is important for Harrow given the scale of additional classes 
identified through the Primary Expansion Programme. 
 

• Additional Class Funding 
 

Proposed to allocate £63,000 of revenue funding for each additional 
class to provide for staffing plus some equipment for the period 
September to March (this equates approximately to 7 months of the 
2014-15 reception per pupil funding). This will cover additional classes 
in both maintained and academy schools but not Free Schools. 

 
At this stage it is not proposed to allocate similar funding for the 
secondary sector. 

 

• Trigger Funding 
 

Proposed to provide additional funding where pupil numbers in the 
Secondary Sector on the January census exceed those recorded in the 
previous October, by 2%. The funding will be based on average per 
pupil funding, though it is proposed to cap this at £100,000. This will 

248



 5 

cover additional classes in both maintained and academy schools but 
not Free Schools. 

 
 
5. High Needs Block 
 
The high needs funding system has been designed to support a continuum of 
provision for pupils and students with special educational needs (SEN), 
learning difficulties and disabilities, from their early years to age 25. 
 
The following are funded from the High Needs Block: 
 

• Harrow Special Schools 

• Additional resourced provision in Harrow mainstream schools 

• Places in out of borough special schools and independent special 
schools 

• High Value Costed Statements in mainstream schools 

• Post-16 SEN expenditure including FE settings 

• SEN support services and support for inclusion 

• Alternative Provision including Pupil Referral Units and Education 
Other Than At School 

 
In 2013-14 high needs pupils are funded on a mixture of places and pupils, 
the “place-plus” approach. This will continue in 2014-15.  
 
There are continued concerns about the financial risks posed by the changes 
to the funding for SEN provision. The 2013-14 High Needs Block will form the 
basis of the 2014-15 baseline. The DfE have not confirmed how they will fund 
growth in the High Needs Block in future years. In guidance issued on 4th 
October 2013 the DfE state: 
 

“The total national high needs budget for the financial year 2014 to 
2015 has yet to be agreed and we are working on the expectation that 
resources will continue to be tight and increases in some allocations 
will need to be balanced by reductions in others”   

 
 
6. Early Years Block 
 

• 3 and 4 year old nursery entitlement 
 

Since 2004 all three and four year olds have been entitled to a free part 
time early education place. As in 2013-14 the funding for three and four 
year olds will be based on a per pupil amount of £4,320.96. Early years 
funding differs from main school funding because providers have to be 
funded for the pupil numbers that they actually have during the 
financial year, rather than on an earlier fixed data point. 

 
Therefore the allocation for the Early Years block will be updated in 
summer 2014 to reflect January 2014 Early Years Census data and 

249



 6 

then again at the end of the financial year to reflect January 2015 Early 
Years Census. 
 
Nursery settings are funded through the Early Years Single Funding 
Formula (EYSFF). In October 2013 Schools Forum agreed to a review 
of the EYSFF with a view to implementation of a revised formula from 
April 2015. 

 

• 2 year old nursery entitlement 
 

From September 2013 free entitlement became a statutory requirement 
for eligible two year olds. Local authorities’ allocations included a 
notional amount for statutory places and a notional amount for 
trajectory building, to be used to create places in preparation for 
provision of entitlement for 40% of two year olds from September 2014. 
In Harrow this totalled £2.304m as well as a capital allocation of £438k. 
 
The DfE is considering the most appropriate method for allocating 
funding to support the rise to 40% entitlement. 

 
 

250



 

 

REPORT FOR: 

 

CABINET 
 

Date of Meeting: 

 

12 December 2013 

Subject: 

 

Draft Capital Programme 2014-15 to 2017-18 

Key Decision: Yes  

  

Responsible Officer: 

 

Simon George, Director of Finance and 
Assurance  

Portfolio Holder: 

 

Councillor Tony Ferrari, Portfolio Holder for 
Finance 

Exempt: 

 

No 
 

Decision subject to 

Call-in: 

 

Yes  
 

Enclosures: 

 

Appendix 1 – Proposed  Capital Programme 
 

 
 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 
 
This report sets out the proposed capital programme for 2014-15 to 2017-18 
for consultation. 

 
Recommendations:  
Cabinet is requested to: approve the draft capital programme, as detailed 
within Appendix 1, for consultation, with the final version to be presented at 
the February meeting of Cabinet. 
 

Reason:  To enable the Council to have an approved capital programme for 
2014-15 to 2017-18 and to enable preparation work to be undertaken for 
future years. 
 

Agenda Item 17
Pages 251 to 272

251



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\3\0\AI00084030\$2zhzbwjb.doc 

Section 2 – Report 
 
Development of the Capital Programme 
 

1. This report sets out the Council’s proposals for Capital investment over 
the next four years.  These provide for a very substantial investment of £248m 
in infrastructure on General Fund and Housing Revenue Account services.   

2. The proposed capital programme has been prepared in the current 
climate of increased revenue pressures, reduced external funding from 
Central Government as well as current property market conditions which are 
still more difficult than they were at the start of the world economic crisis. This 
limits the scope to receive capital and s106 planning receipts. 

3. The existing capital programme is a one year detailed programme with 
an indicative envelope for the subsequent three years. In recognition of the 
need to plan ahead in relation to multi year programmes and to enable 
preparation work to be undertaken for future years’ projects the programme 
proposed covers four years. 
 
4. The approved Capital Strategy continues to provide a clear approach to 
Capital Programme development and requires the incorporation of the 
corporate priorities and alignment with the Council’s Asset Management Plans 
and Property Strategy, equalities and health and safety implications. The 
strategy thus results in a greater visibility and accountability of capital 
programme development. 
 
5. Service directorates were invited to bid for capital resources. A 
sophisticated ranking process was used in order to prioritise the capital bids 
received from departments against the available capital envelope. 
 
6. This ranking was then reviewed by a sub-group of the Capital Forum and 
the following amendments were made: 
 

• Council funding of £1.739m in respect of Social Care IT developments 
was reduced in anticipation of future govt grant announcements 

• A number of bids were scaled back to allow the overall programme to 
fit within budget. These were Street Lighting, highways, Leisure and 
libraries infrastructure, Parks buildings and corporate IT systems. 

• Two large items of capital were removed again to allow the overall 
programme to fit within budget (Replacement of Hatch End swimming 
pool and expenditure to develop the Harrow Arts Centre).   

This re-prioritisation was reviewed by the Corporate Strategy Board and lead 
members. 
 
7. As well as the pressures highlighted in the first paragraph, flexibility in 
the capital programme is also constrained by a number of factors: 

• Unavoidable spending requirements such as major repairs to the 
Council’s buildings and carriageway and footway resurfacing, 
and providing school places. 

252



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\3\0\AI00084030\$2zhzbwjb.doc 

• Restrictions in the way funding can be used e.g. ring fenced 
funding such as Transport for London and DfE grants for 
schools. 

• The availability of capital receipts 

• Limited capacity to fund borrowing. Although there are no 
specific limits to borrowing in order to fund capital expenditure, 
since the introduction of the prudential borrowing framework, 
Councils must however consider the revenue implications in the 
context of the overall revenue budget commitments in the 
medium term.  Proposals must be affordable and the revenue 
resources available to the Council have reduced and are 
anticipated to continue to do so in the medium term.   

 
8. The proposed capital programme includes provision in the following 
priority areas: 
 

• Cleaner: A borough where our streets are cleaned regularly and our parks 
and green spaces are places to enjoy. 

o Parks improvements 
o Green grid 
o Street trees 
o Parks buildings 
o Parks litter bins 
o Neighbourhood investment schemes 
o Flood defence 

 
• Safer: Work with police to make Harrow even safer 

o Improved street lighting 
o CCTV crime reduction cameras 

 
• Fairer: Harrow is a place where our hard working residents can bring up 
their families knowing they will have fair access to opportunity. 

o Primary and secondary school expansion programme 
o Disabled facilities grants 
o Renovation grants 
o Empty property grants and private sector initiatives  

 
 
• Other/Combination of priorities 

o Highways Improvements 
o Civic Centre modernisation and development 
o ICT infrastructure to facilitate a number of transformation projects, 

including mobile and flexible working 
o High priority major works to corporate buildings 
o Leisure and Libraries capital infrastructure 

 
The Summary Capital Programme is attached at Appendix 1.   
 

253



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\3\0\AI00084030\$2zhzbwjb.doc 

9. The gross value of the proposed General Fund programme is £61.7m for 
2014-15, with external funding of £45.4m and a net cost to the Council of 
£16.3m.   
 
 
Backlog Maintenance 

10. The Council has considerable backlog maintenance – the figures from 
the latest Asset Management Plan are as follows:  

• School buildings - £30m  
• Corporate, Education and Miscellaneous buildings - £11.3m 
• Highways – £150m 

 

The level of investment contained within this programme does not clear the 
full backlog. It should be noted that the Council cannot afford to fully address 
the backlog in the short-term, however, the Council will do at least what is 
necessary in order to comply with health and safety legislation. The 
programme does include projects which address some of the backlog and 
also the investment in the civic centre will free up buildings for disposal and 
hence remove some of the backlog maintenance requirement. 

Environment and Enterprise 

11. Despite the financial pressures the Council faces the proposed 
programme for Environment and Enterprise allows for a modest increase 
compared to 2013-14.  

12. This allocation allows for substantial highways works, to address some 
of the backlog, improvement to the ageing street lighting and drainage 
infrastructure. 

13. The programme also provides for investment in Parks improvements and 
Parks buildings and for the replacement of Parks litter bins. 

14. There is provision for a number of Carbon reduction schemes. Carbon 
reduction schemes result in savings in both energy costs and carbon costs. 

15. There is provision for a collaboration with GLA/TfL on a project to 
enhance the quality and safety of Harrow on the Hill station and bus station 
including provision of step free access. The Council contribution of £3.1m, 
mainly earmarked for 2017-18 but with early design costs in 2014/15, is aimed 
at (and conditional upon) levering in the significant investment required by 
GLA/TfL to deliver the project over a series of phases. 

 
Children’s Services 

16. Harrow is facing a significant pressure on places for both primary pupils 
and secondary pupils and also needs to expand its SEN provision. There is 
also a £30m maintenance backlog.  Provision for addressing the pupil place 
requirements in schools and commencing to address the maintenance 
backlog is included within the proposed programme.  

17. It is anticipated that the cost will be fully met from Government grant. 

18.  We have received grant or had funding confirmed by the DfE for £63m 
so far against the programme total expenditure of £73.7m.  It is anticipated 

254



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\3\0\AI00084030\$2zhzbwjb.doc 

that the balance will be met from future grant allocations of Basic Need and 
Capital Maintenance.  

 

Community, Health and Wellbeing 

19. The programme provides for a targeted programme of improvements to 
the Council’s leisure and library facilities. There will be ongoing contractual 
commitments around the replacement of Lifecycle gym equipment which will 
need to be included in future planning years. 

20. The Government’s reforms of Health and Social Care require significant 
investment in IT systems to support them. Provision for this has been 
included, with an assumption that 50% of the costs will be supported by grant. 
There is a further scheme not included in the draft programme which is still 
under consideration. Should the grant funding not be allocated as anticipated 
the schemes will be funded within overall available resources.   

21. Provision has been made for Disabled Facility Grants to provide 
adaptations for vulnerable residents. 

ICT Investment 

22. The Council outsourced the provision of IT services to Capita in 
November 2010.  The programme of work allows for improved disaster 
recovery, increased resilience, flexible working and a scaleable service. As 
part of this outsourcing there has been a significant capital investment in 
software and equipment. The capital investment under the contract has not 
progressed as rapidly as originally envisaged but is now anticipated to 
complete in 2013-14.   

23. The programme provides for further enhancement of systems and for 
refreshing the IT infrastructure and corporate systems. 
 

Capital Receipts 

24. The capital programme assumes a programme of property disposals that 
are expected to raise £12m in 2014-15, £12m in 2014-15 and thereafter £2m 
p.a. 

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 

25. The HRA Capital Programme is detailed in a separate report to Cabinet 
elsewhere on this agenda. 

Capital Funding 

26. The capital programme is funded from a number of sources. These 
include: 
 

• External Funding of the order of £44m in 2014-15, primarily from the 
DfE and Transport for London; 
• Borrowing; 
• Capital receipts; 
• s106 planning agreements in relation to specific schemes; 

255



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\3\0\AI00084030\$2zhzbwjb.doc 

• Direct Revenue Financing (Housing Revenue Account). 
 
It is anticipated that the General Fund programme will be financed as follows: 

Table 1: New borrowing requirement 

General Fund Programme     
2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18  

£m £m £m £m 

Planned spending 61.7 46.9 38.4 36.0 

External funding (45.4) (27.1) (21.3) (19.6) 

Capital Receipts (12.0) (12.0) (2.0) (2.0) 

Net Prudential Borrowing 4.30 7.80 15.10 14.40 

 

27. The revenue implications of this new borrowing, in the context of the 
Council’s treasury management activity, are set out in the table below. The 
revenue implications are factored in to the revenue budget report for 2014-15 
to 2016-17 being considered by Cabinet elsewhere on this agenda. The table 
below shows for each year what the full year’s effect of that year’s capital 
programme and capital receipts are. The table only includes the revenue 
effects of the programme that is proposed and excludes the revenue 
implications of previous years’ capital programmes.  It also excludes the 
impact of other changes to funding the existing programme e.g. interest rate 
changes. 
 
Table 2: Capital Financing Implications of Capital Programme 

 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 
 £000 £000 £000 £000 
MRP  214 431 1,988 
Interest  201 422 1,192 
Total 0 415 853 3,180 

 

28. The table above reflects the impact of the 2014-15 to 2017-18 
programmes to each financial year. There is no MRP impact in 2014-15 as 
MRP in relation to expenditure in 2014-15 does not commence until 2015-16. 
The Council as at 28th November had cash balances of £148m and as such it 
is very likely that for 2014-15 any borrowing would be made internally (That is 
to say from our own cash balances rather than taking on an additional 
external loan). 
  
There is no new planned borrowing in respect of the HRA programme. This is 
because under HRA Reform, the HRA is allowed to keep all of its net income 
rather than transferring some to the Government. This income will allow the 
HRA to maintain its capital programme without the need for further borrowing. 
In addition, the HRA will be at its “borrowing cap” so cannot borrow any more. 
These issues are more fully explained in the HRA budget report to this 
meeting. 
 

29. It should be noted that the capital financing costs are based on a number 
of assumptions about the level of capital expenditure, level of capital receipts, 
timing of any borrowing, interest rates, and use of the minimum revenue 
provision. The revenue budget reflects the best estimate based on these 
assumptions.  

256



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\3\0\AI00084030\$2zhzbwjb.doc 

 
Harrow's Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 

30. Harrow's CIL came into effect on 1st October 2013 and enables the 
Council to levy a charge on certain types of new development to help fund 
improvements to local infrastructure such as schools, transport, green spaces, 
health and leisure facilities. Harrow’s CIL is an additional levy on top of the 
London Mayor’s existing Crossrail CIL. The Harrow CIL is underpinned by the 
Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) which sets out the infrastructure required to 
enable investment and planned growth in the Borough. Against an 
infrastructure bill, estimated to be at least £150m, CIL is expected to account 
for circa £20-30m, depending upon the level development permitted and the 
ability of the development industry to bring new proposals forward. In this 
context, CIL is additional top-up funding, but is not the primary source of 
funding for infrastructure and, even with CIL funding, there will still remain a 
funding gap that requires choices and priorities to be made.  
 

31. To date, no firm arrangements have been made regarding the 
governance for spending CIL receipts. Based upon experience with tariffs 
previously, officers consider that the most transparent and appropriate means 
of managing infrastructure delivery in future, is through a single but expanded 
and dynamic IDP process that addresses the following requirements:  
 

• Long (10 year+) and short term (1-3 year) strategic infrastructure 
delivery programmes 

• A clear and transparent approval process for all infrastructure 
projects      

• Consultation with the community on infrastructure delivery (including 
the obligation to pass CIL to the local communities impacted by 
development) 

• Engagement with the development industry about priorities and 
capacity, including their potential role in assisting delivery 

• Effective monitoring of progress against the infrastructure plans and the 
effective implementation of the spatial vision for the borough set out in 
the adopted Local Plan  

 

32. Over the coming months, officers from Planning and Finance will work 
up options and approaches to the resolution of the many issues to do with the 
effective delivery of infrastructure in Harrow, and will engage members in 
these discussions before reporting back to Cabinet in Spring 2014. 
 
Harrow's Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) 
 

33. The IDP identifies the types and quantum of social, physical and 
environmental infrastructure required to support development and growth 
within the Borough to 2026, and sets this out in a detailed delivery plan. In 
particular it: 
 

§ Provides a benchmark of existing infrastructure provision, identifying 
how well existing needs are met; 

§ Identifies what new infrastructure is being planned as well as future 
infrastructure requirements to support existing population change as 

257



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\3\0\AI00084030\$2zhzbwjb.doc 

well as the new housing and employment growth planned for through 
the Council's Spatial Strategy; 

§ Provides an indication of the potential costs and means of funding the 
required infrastructure through public funding, developer contribution 
and other sources; 

§ Establishes responsibilities for delivery of individual projects, when and 
where infrastructure will be provided, and provides a basis for 
collaborative and effective working between stakeholders. 

 
34. The effectiveness of the IDP is in capturing Harrow's future infrastructure 
improvements and requirements in one place. As such, the IDP represents 
the beginning of a long-term (10 year) capital works programme for the 
Council, providing an overarching framework for the consideration of a 
coordinated programme of delivery across all service areas and rational basis 
for the evaluation and prioritisation of individual project bids for capital 
investment.  
 
35. The proposed capital programme for 2014-15 – 2017-18 will deliver a 
number of the infrastructure improvements identified in the IDP. Going 
forward, closer alignment of the capital programme to the delivery against the 
IDP will significantly aid in Council's communication of a clear and coherent 
picture around its strategic investment choices and decisions. 
 
36. However, it is not intended that the IDP be a static document, rather it 
will be subject to periodic review and updated as necessary to take account of 
improvements already delivered, new population projections, changes in 
demands for different infrastructure provision, development completions and 
changes in service delivery and/or service funding. Such information will 
routinely be feed-in from the various service areas, enabling the IDP to 
provide a 'top-down' approach to Council's strategic decision-making about its 
future investment in capital improvements alongside other funding initiatives 
and property disposals. 
 
Governance Structure For Delivery Of The Programme 

37. The processes and procedures implemented surrounding the 
governance of the capital programme have continued to be developed.  All 
capital projects are now included in VERTO, the Council’s project 
management system.   
 
38. Governance of the Capital Programme in 2013-14 will continue to 
include monitoring and review by Capital Forum on a monthly basis, with 
reporting to Cabinet at the end of each quarter. 

 
 

Options considered  

39.  These are as detailed in paragraph 6. 
 

Legal Implications 

40. Included in the body of the report. 
 

258



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\3\0\AI00084030\$2zhzbwjb.doc 

Financial Implications 

41. Financial matters are integral to the report. 
 
 

Performance Issues 

42. The capital programme proposed represents a significant investment by 
the Council in infrastructure.  This will have an impact on a range of 
performance indicators across the Council’s services. 
 
43. Monitoring of the approved programme, including Capital Forum, is 
ongoing and is essential for good financial management. As well as 
performing project assessments on completed projects it will be important to 
develop and track performance measures to ensure that the Council can 
evidence and demonstrate good value for money (VFM). 
 
44. Target for spend. It is proposed that a performance target is set of 90% 
of the approved budget for the programme being spent in 2014-15.  Having 
approved an investment programme it is important that the programme is then 
substantially delivered in the planned timeframe, in line with member priorities. 
 

Environmental Impact 

45. The Council adopted the climate change strategy in September 2009 
and set an annual target to reduce corporate and borough carbon emissions 
by 4% a year.  
 
46. Capital expenditure of this scale will have an environmental impact on 
the Council’s operations (and the wider borough). The investment carries the 
risk of increasing carbon emissions. Hence each proposed project is required 
to consider their respective carbon impacts and include measures to ensure 
that the above target is supported.  
 
47. Some of the projects will specifically support the strategy in terms of 
mitigation and adaptation. 
 
 

Risk Management Implications 

48. The individual schemes within the programme will either be incorporated 
within departmental registers or have individual registers. A significant 
consideration in developing the programme has been the risks arising from 
not keeping our infrastructure in good order.  Not doing so would lead to an 
increase in health and safety risks and additional costs in replacing assets 
when they deteriorate too much to repair. 
 

Equalities implications 

Was an Equality Impact Assessment carried out?  Yes 
 
49. One of the aims of the Capital Strategy is to ensure the responsible 
allocation of funding in line with the Council’s priorities and legislative 
requirements such as equalities legislation. Equalities implications form part of 

259



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\3\0\AI00084030\$2zhzbwjb.doc 

the way that the projects are prioritised.  The officer’s initial views are that no 
protected group is adversely effected by the proposals.  A number of the 
projects proposed in the programme will require full Equality Impact 
Assessments before they commence. Following consultation the impact will 
be further reviewed before the programme is finalised. 
  
50. Decision makers should have due regard to the public sector equality 
duty in making their decisions. Consideration of the duties should precede the 
decision. It is important that Cabinet has regard to the statutory grounds in the 
light of all available material such as material in the press and letters from 
residents. The statutory grounds of the public sector equality duty are found at 
section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 and are as follows: 
A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the 
need to: 

(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other 
conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act; 
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a 
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; 
(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it. 
The relevant protected characteristics are: 

• Age 

• Disability 

• Gender reassignment 

• Pregnancy and maternity 

• Race, 

• Religion or belief 

• Sex 

• Sexual orientation 

• Marriage and Civil partnership 
 
 
51. Consultation responses received on this draft programme will be taken 
into account in drafting the final EIA. 
 
 

 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 

 
 

   
 

Name: Simon George x  Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date: 2 December 2013 

   

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Jessica Farmer x  Monitoring Officer 
 
Date: 18 November 2013 

   
 

260



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\3\0\AI00084030\$2zhzbwjb.doc 

 
 

Section 4 – Performance Officer Clearance 
 

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Alex Dewsnap x  Divisional Director 
  
Date: 30 November 2013 

  Strategic 
Commissioning 

 
 

Section 5 – Environmental Impact Officer 

Clearance 
 

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Andrew Baker x  Corporate Director 
  
Date: 12 November 2013 

  (Environment & 
Enterprise) 

 

Section 6 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 
 

Contact:  Steve Tingle Email: steve.tingle@harrow.gov.uk 
 

Background Papers: Capital Strategy – annex 2 to Capital 
Programme report to Cabinet 9 Feb 2012  
http://www.harrow.gov.uk/www2/documents/b13986/Supplemental%20Agend
a%20Thursday%2009-Feb-2012%2019.30%20Cabinet.pdf?T=9 
 
 

Call-In Waived by the 

Chairman of Overview 

and Scrutiny 

Committee 

 

  
NOT APPLICABLE 
 
 
[Call-in applies] 
 

 

 

261



262

This page is intentionally left blank



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
C

a
p

it
a

l 
B

id
s
 2

0
1

4
/
1

5
 t

o
 2

0
1

7
/
1

8

P
ro

je
c
t 

T
it

le
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

G
ro

s
s

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l

F
u

n
d

in
g

£
0
0
0

N
e
t

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l

F
u

n
d

in
g

£
0
0
0

N
e
t

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l

F
u

n
d

in
g

£
0
0
0

N
e
t

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s

V
a
lu

e
 £

0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l

F
u

n
d

in
g

£
0
0
0

N
e
t

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

 A
N

D
 E

N
T

E
R

P
R

IS
E

F
lo

o
d
 D

e
fe

n
c
e
 2

0
1
4
 -

 2
0
1
8

C
h
a
n
g
in

g
 c

lim
a
te

 t
re

n
d
s
 c

le
a
rl
y
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 i
n
 a

n
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 s

e
v
e
re

 r
a
in

fa
ll 

e
v
e
n
ts

. 
It
 i
s
 e

s
s
e
n
ti
a
l,
 

b
o
th

 f
ro

m
 a

 l
e
g
is

la
ti
v
e
, 
s
a
fe

ty
 a

n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 p

e
rs

p
e
c
ti
v
e
, 
to

 i
n
v
e
s
t 
lo

n
g
-t

e
rm

 i
n
 

re
n
e
w

a
l 
o
f 
a
n
 a

g
e
in

g
 d

ra
in

a
g
e
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
. 

F
a
ilu

re
 t
o
 d

o
 s

o
 w

ill
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 l
ik

e
lih

o
o
d
 o

f 

fl
o
o
d
in

g
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

, 
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
.

3
0
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

W
a
s
te

 &
 R

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 2

0
1
4
 -

 2
0
1
8

T
h
e
 W

a
s
te

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
s
 a

 r
o
lli

n
g
 s

to
c
k
 o

f 

w
h
e
e
le

d
 b

in
s
 t
o
 r

e
p
la

c
e
 d

a
m

a
g
e
d
 a

n
d
 l
o
s
t 
2
4
0
 

lit
re

 w
h
e
e
le

d
 b

in
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
. 
B

in
s
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 d

a
m

a
g
e
d
 a

s
 t
h
e
y
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 

o
ld

e
r 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p

la
s
ti
c
 t
e
e
th

 w
h
ic

h
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 b

in
s
 

re
m

a
in

 o
n
 t
h
e
 h

o
is

t 
w

h
e
n
 l
if
te

d
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 w

e
a
k
e
r 

d
u
e
 t
o
 a

g
e
 d

e
te

ri
o
ra

ti
o
n
. 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 a

 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 b

in
s
 t
o
 n

e
w

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 o

n
c
e
 t
h
e
y
 a

re
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
.

2
0
0

2
0
0

2
0
0

2
0
0

2
0
0

2
0
0

2
0
0

2
0
0

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 2

0
1
4
 -

 2
0
1
8

W
it
h
 a

 c
u
rr

e
n
t 
g
ro

s
s
 r

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
c
o
s
t 
o
f 
o
v
e
r 

£
7
0
0
m

, 
th

e
 h

ig
h
w

a
y
 i
s
 H

a
rr

o
w

’s
 l
a
rg

e
s
t 
a
s
s
e
t,
 

w
it
h
 4

4
5
 l
a
n
e
 b

a
s
e
d
 k

m
 o

f 
n
o
n
-p

ri
n
c
ip

a
l 
ro

a
d
 

le
n
g
th

s
 a

n
d
 9

0
0
k
m

 o
f 
fo

o
tw

a
y
s
. 
T

h
e
 h

ig
h
w

a
y
 i
s
 

th
e
 c

ri
ti
c
a
l 
n
e
tw

o
rk

 t
h
a
t 
fa

c
ili

ta
te

s
 t
h
e
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
in

g
 

o
f 
th

e
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 s
y
s
te

m
 a

n
d
 u

lt
im

a
te

ly
, 
th

e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
. 
It
s
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
 a

ff
e
c
ts

 e
v
e
ry

 r
e
s
id

e
n
t,
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

n
d
 p

e
rs

o
n
 l
iv

in
g
 i
n
 o

r 
p
a
s
s
in

g
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
.

5
,5

0
0

5
,5

0
0

5
,5

0
0

5
,5

0
0

5
,5

0
0

5
,5

0
0

5
,5

0
0

5
,5

0
0

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 D

ra
in

a
g
e
 2

0
1
4
 -

 2
0
1
8

C
o
u
p
le

d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
in

 f
lo

o
d
 

d
e
fe

n
c
e
 w

o
rk

s
, 
s
u
b
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 h
ig

h
w

a
y
 d

ra
in

a
g
e
 a

t 

n
u
m

e
ro

u
s
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
-w

id
e
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 t
h
e
 

c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
fr

e
q
u
e
n
t 
h
ig

h
w

a
y
 f
lo

o
d
in

g
. 
H

a
rr

o
w

’s
 

h
ig

h
w

a
y
 d

ra
in

a
g
e
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 c
o
m

p
ri
s
e
s
 o

v
e
r 

2
0
,0

0
0
 

g
u
lli

e
s
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 1

0
0
k
m

 o
f 
b
e
lo

w
-g

ro
u
n
d
 

p
ip

e
d
 d

ra
in

s
, 
m

o
s
t 
o
f 
w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 b

u
ilt

 i
n
 t
h
e
 1

9
3
0
’s

 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
L
o
n
d
o
n
’s

 s
u
b
u
rb

s
.

2
2
5

2
2
5

2
2
5

2
2
5

2
2
5

2
2
5

2
2
5

2
2
5

C
a
p
it
a
l 
1
4
/1

5
-1

7
/1

8
 -

 T
F

L
 L

o
c
a
l 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 (

in
c
l 
C

P
Z

)

T
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 a
n
d
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 L
o
c
a
l 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

P
la

n
 (

L
IP

) 
o
v
e
r 

th
e
 f
o
u
r 

y
e
a
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
 f
ro

m
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
 -

2
0
1
7
/1

8
. 
T

fL
 p

ro
v
id

e
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
g
ra

n
t 
to

 f
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 L

IP
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t.
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 t
h
e
 L

IP
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 b

y
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
p
a
rk

in
g
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
.

2
,3

7
4

2
,0

7
4

3
0
0

2
,3

7
4

2
,0

7
4

3
0
0

2
,3

7
4

2
,0

7
4

3
0
0

2
,3

7
4

2
,0

7
4

3
0
0

2
0
1
7
/1

8
2
0
1
5
/1

6
2
0
1
6
/1

7
2
0
1
4
/1

5

1

263



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
C

a
p

it
a

l 
B

id
s
 2

0
1

4
/
1

5
 t

o
 2

0
1

7
/
1

8

P
ro

je
c
t 

T
it

le
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

G
ro

s
s

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l

F
u

n
d

in
g

£
0
0
0

N
e
t

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l

F
u

n
d

in
g

£
0
0
0

N
e
t

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l

F
u

n
d

in
g

£
0
0
0

N
e
t

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s

V
a
lu

e
 £

0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l

F
u

n
d

in
g

£
0
0
0

N
e
t

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

2
0
1
7
/1

8
2
0
1
5
/1

6
2
0
1
6
/1

7
2
0
1
4
/1

5

P
a
rk

s
 B

u
ild

in
g
s
 2

0
1
4
 -

 2
0
1
8

H
a
rr

o
w

’s
 b

u
ild

in
g
 a

s
s
e
ts

 i
n
 p

a
rk

s
 a

n
d
 o

p
e
n
 

s
p
a
c
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 s

u
ff
e
re

d
 f
ro

m
 u

n
d
e
r-

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t,
 

u
n
d
e
r-

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 u

n
d
e
r-

u
s
e
 f
o
r 

m
a
n
y
 

y
e
a
rs

. 
T

h
e
re

 a
re

 s
e
ri
o
u
s
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
s
a
fe

ty
 o

f 
a
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 f
a
ilu

re
 o

f 
e
le

c
tr

ic
a
l 
s
y
s
te

m
s
, 

w
a
te

r 
in

g
re

s
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 r

o
o
fs

 a
n
d
 a

s
b
e
s
to

s
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
.

2
0
0

2
0
0

2
0
0

2
0
0

2
0
0

2
0
0

2
0
0

2
0
0

P
a
rk

s
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 2
0
1
4
 -

 2
0
1
8

H
a
rr

o
w

’s
 p

a
rk

s
 a

n
d
 o

p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 a

re
 a

n
 a

g
e
in

g
 

a
s
s
e
t 
th

a
t 
h
a
v
e
 s

u
ff
e
re

d
 f
ro

m
 u

n
d
e
r-

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t,
 

u
n
d
e
r-

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
ti
a
l 
u
n
d
e
r-

u
s
e
 

fo
r 

m
a
n
y
 y

e
a
rs

. 
T

h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
p
a
rk

s
 

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
s
 r

e
a
c
h
in

g
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
it
s
 l
if
e
. 
T

h
is

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
s
 t
h
e
 w

o
rs

t 
a
re

a
s
 o

f 

d
e
te

ri
o
ra

ti
o
n
 t
o
 p

ro
te

c
t 
th

e
 p

a
rk

 a
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

a
fe

 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 u

s
e
 o

f 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 f
o
r 

u
s
e
rs

. 
H

a
rr

o
w

 i
s
 

a
lr
e
a
d
y
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 t
o
 p

a
rk

s
 r

e
n
e
w

a
l 
th

ro
u
g
h
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
. 

5
0
0

5
0
0

5
0
0

5
0
0

5
0
0

5
0
0

5
0
0

5
0
0

S
tr

e
e
t 
T

re
e
s
 2

0
1
4
 -

 2
0
1
8

D
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 t
re

e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
, 
u
n
d
e
rl
y
in

g
 

c
la

y
 s

o
il 

g
e
o
lo

g
y
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
tr

ic
te

d
 r

o
o
t 
z
o
n
e
 i
n
 

h
ig

h
w

a
y
 s

it
u
a
ti
o
n
s
 m

a
n
y
 t
re

e
s
 a

re
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 b

o
th

 

in
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
s
a
fe

ty
 a

n
d
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
d
a
m

a
g
e
 t
o
 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
. 
In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
, 
m

u
c
h
 o

f 
o
u
r 

tr
e
e
 s

to
c
k
 w

a
s
 

p
la

n
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 1

9
3
0
s
 a

n
d
 t
re

e
s
 o

f 
th

is
 a

g
e
 d

o
 n

o
t 

re
s
p
o
n
d
 w

e
ll 

to
 t
h
e
 s

tr
e
s
s
 o

f 
a
n
 u

rb
a
n
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
 p

la
c
in

g
 o

u
r 

tr
e
e
 s

to
c
k
 i
n
to

 a
 h

ig
h
e
r 

ri
s
k
 c

a
te

g
o
ry

.

5
0

5
0

5
0

5
0

5
0

5
0

5
0

5
0

S
tr

e
e
t 
L
ig

h
ti
n
g
 2

0
1
4
 -

 2
0
1
8

T
h
ro

u
g
h
 H

a
rr

o
w

’s
 H

ig
h
w

a
y
 A

s
s
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 (

H
A

M
P

),
 t
h
e
 a

s
s
e
t 
v
a
lu

e
 a

n
d
 l
ig

h
ti
n
g
 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
u
tu

re
 a

re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 

T
h
is

 h
e
lp

s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
s
s
e
t 
a
g
e
, 
c
o
n
d
it
io

n
 a

n
d
 

re
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
c
o
s
ts

, 
p
ro

v
id

in
g
 t
h
e
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
s
s
e
ts

 i
n
 d

e
te

rm
in

in
g
 

lig
h
ti
n
g
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
n
e
e
d
s
, 
b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

 s
e
t 
o
f 

w
e
ig

h
te

d
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 s
c
o
re

s
.

1
,5

0
0

1
,5

0
0

1
,5

0
0

1
,5

0
0

1
,5

0
0

1
,5

0
0

1
,5

0
0

1
,5

0
0

C
C

T
V

 C
ri
m

e
 R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 c

a
m

e
ra

s
 1

4
/1

5
C

o
s
t 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
a
m

e
ra

s
 o

n
 

s
tr

e
e
t 
fo

r 
c
ri
m

e
, 
d
is

o
rd

e
r 

a
n
d
 t
o
 a

 l
e
s
s
e
r 

e
x
te

n
t,
 

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
p
u
rp

o
s
e
s
.

5
7
5

5
7
5

0
0

0

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 A

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 1

4
/1

5
O

n
g
o
in

g
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
p
la

n
n
e
d
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 

C
iv

ic
 C

e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 O

ff
ic

e
 

A
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.

4
3
3

4
3
3

2
4
6

2
4
6

2
3
1

2
3
1

1
5
5

1
5
5

2

264



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
C

a
p

it
a

l 
B

id
s
 2

0
1

4
/
1

5
 t

o
 2

0
1

7
/
1

8

P
ro

je
c
t 

T
it

le
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

G
ro

s
s

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l

F
u

n
d

in
g

£
0
0
0

N
e
t

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l

F
u

n
d

in
g

£
0
0
0

N
e
t

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l

F
u

n
d

in
g

£
0
0
0

N
e
t

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s

V
a
lu

e
 £

0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l

F
u

n
d

in
g

£
0
0
0

N
e
t

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

2
0
1
7
/1

8
2
0
1
5
/1

6
2
0
1
6
/1

7
2
0
1
4
/1

5

H
ig

h
 P

ri
o
ri
ty

 P
la

n
n
e
d
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 1

4
/1

5
H

ig
h
 P

ri
o
ri
ty

 P
la

n
n
e
d
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 (

e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C

iv
ic

 

C
e
n
tr

e
).

 T
h
e
 o

u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 h

ig
h
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

C
o
n
d
it
io

n
 D

 (
lif

e
 

e
x
p
ir
e
d
 a

n
d
/o

r 
s
e
ri
o
u
s
 r

is
k
 o

f 
im

m
in

e
n
t 
fa

ilu
re

) 
is

 

o
v
e
r 

£
5
m

 f
o
r 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
, 
e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c

iv
ic

 c
e
n
tr

e
 c

o
m

p
le

x
. 
T

h
e
 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 s

to
c
k
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
 s

u
rv

e
y
.

4
3
0

4
3
0

5
7
0

5
7
0

7
0
0

7
0
0

2
7
5

2
7
5

C
a
rb

o
n
 R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 (

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
)

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o
 r

e
tr

o
fi
t 
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 w

it
h
 

e
n
e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s

3
0
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

C
a
rb

o
n
 R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 (

S
c
h
o
o
ls

)
In

s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 o

f 
e
n
e
rg

y
 s

a
v
in

g
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 

to
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 c

a
rb

o
n
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s

1
,0

0
0

1
,0

0
0

0
1
,0

0
0

1
,0

0
0

0
1
,0

0
0

1
,0

0
0

0
1
,0

0
0

1
,0

0
0

0

R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
P

a
rk

s
 L

it
te

r 
B

in
s
 2

0
1
4
 -

 

2
0
1
5

W
a
s
te

 b
in

s
 i
n
 P

a
rk

s
 a

re
 q

u
it
e
 a

g
e
d
, 
in

 v
e
ry

 p
o
o
r 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
 a

n
d
 a

re
 i
n
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
in

 n
u
m

b
e
rs

, 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
n
g
 t
o
w

a
rd

 d
e
b
ri
s
 s

tr
e
w

n
 i
n
 p

a
rk

 a
re

a
s
. 

T
h
e
 i
d
e
a
l 
s
iz

e
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 1

6
5
 l
it
re

s
 m

a
d
e
 o

f 
c
a
s
t 

ir
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

n
im

a
l 
p
ro

o
f,
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 f
ix

e
d
 f
o
r 

a
p
p
ro

x
. 
£
1
k
 e

a
c
h
. 
It
 i
s
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
4
0
0
 a

re
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 f
o
u
r 

y
e
a
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
.

1
0
0

1
0
0

1
0
0

1
0
0

1
0
0

1
0
0

1
0
0

1
0
0

G
re

e
n
 G

ri
d
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 -

 2
0
1
4
 -

 2
0
1
8

A
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 a

n
 u

m
b
re

lla
 f
o
r 

c
ro

s
s
 

C
o
u
n
c
il,

 m
u
lt
i 
p
a
rt

n
e
r 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 t
h
e
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
p
e
n
d
in

g
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 H

a
rr

o
w

s
 

G
re

e
n
 I
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
, 
a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 

s
p
a
ti
a
l 
v
is

io
n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 
in

 t
h
e
 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
p
la

n
.

3
4
3

1
4
3

2
0
0

3
4
3

1
4
3

2
0
0

3
4
3

1
4
3

2
0
0

3
4
3

1
4
3

2
0
0

H
a
rr

o
w

 o
n
 H

ill
 S

ta
ti
o
n

C
o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 T

fL
 o

n
 a

 p
ro

je
c
t 
to

 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 

q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
a
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

te
p
 f
re

e
 p

la
tf
o
rm

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 o
n
 t
h
e
 H

ill
 s

ta
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 b

u
s
 s

ta
ti
o
n
. 
T

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 l
e
v
e
rs

 i
n
 £

2
2
m

 o
f 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

b
y
 T

fL
.

1
0
0

1
0
0

2
,0

0
0

2
,0

0
0

0
1
2
,0

0
0

1
2
,0

0
0

0
1
1
,0

0
0

8
,0

0
0

3
,0

0
0

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 I
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
S

c
h
e
m

e
s

E
a
c
h
 w

a
rd

 i
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 w

it
h
 a

n
 e

q
u
a
l 
s
u
m

 w
h
ic

h
 

c
a
n
 b

e
 s

p
e
n
t 
b
y
 w

a
rd

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

 i
n
 a

 v
a
ri
e
ty

 o
f 

w
a
y
s
 o

n
 a

s
s
e
t 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.
 

2
1
0

2
1
0

2
1
0

2
1
0

2
1
0

2
1
0

2
1
0

2
1
0

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

 A
N

D
 E

N
T

E
R

P
R

IS
E

 T
O

T
A

L
1
4
,3

4
0

3
,2

1
7

1
1
,1

2
3

1
5
,6

1
8

5
,2

1
7

1
0
,4

0
1

2
5
,7

3
3

1
5
,2

1
7

1
0
,5

1
6

2
4
,2

3
2

1
1
,2

1
7

1
3
,0

1
5

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
 A

N
D

 F
A

M
IL

IE
S

S
c
h
o
o
l 
E

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

2
0
1
4
-1

6

T
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 
is

 t
h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 p

h
a
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 S

c
h
o
o
l 

E
x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
 t
h
e
 

p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
e
x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 o

f 
1
2
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

th
e
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
w

o
rk

s
. 
T

w
o
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 P

ri
o
ri
ty

 S
c
h
o
o
ls

 

B
u
ild

in
g
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 l
it
tl
e
 o

r 
n
o
 

b
u
d
g
e
t.
 T

h
e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 1

0
 a

re
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 u

s
in

g
 

B
a
s
ic

 N
e
e
d
 a

n
d
 T

a
rg

e
te

d
 B

a
s
ic

 N
e
e
d
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 E

F
A

. 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 d
e
a
d
lin

e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 

o
f 
th

e
 T

B
N

P
-f

u
n
d
e
d
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 o
f 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
.

1
3
,7

2
0

1
3
,7

2
0

0
7
,4

5
0

7
,4

5
0

0
0

0

3

265



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
C

a
p

it
a

l 
B

id
s
 2

0
1

4
/
1

5
 t

o
 2

0
1

7
/
1

8

P
ro

je
c
t 

T
it

le
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

G
ro

s
s

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l

F
u

n
d

in
g

£
0
0
0

N
e
t

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l

F
u

n
d

in
g

£
0
0
0

N
e
t

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l

F
u

n
d

in
g

£
0
0
0

N
e
t

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s

V
a
lu

e
 £

0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l

F
u

n
d

in
g

£
0
0
0

N
e
t

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

2
0
1
7
/1

8
2
0
1
5
/1

6
2
0
1
6
/1

7
2
0
1
4
/1

5

S
c
h
o
o
l 
E

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 P

h
a
s
e
 1

 

2
0
1
4
/1

5

T
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 
is

 t
h
e
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 f
ir
s
t 
p
h
a
s
e
 o

f 

th
e
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
E

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 c

o
m

p
ri
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 

p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
e
x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 o

f 
7
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

. 
T

h
re

e
 

o
f 
th

e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
re

 p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 P

ri
o
ri
ty

 S
c
h
o
o
l 

B
u
ild

in
g
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 

E
F

A
. 
O

f 
th

o
s
e
, 
tw

o
 w

e
re

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 o

u
ts

id
e
 t
h
e
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 
a
n
d
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
a
g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
m

 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 t
o
p
 u

p
 t
h
e
 g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
fu

n
d
e
d
 

p
ro

je
c
t 
if
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 
F

o
u
r 

o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
re

 

c
o
m

p
le

te
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 n
o
w

 o
n
ly

 t
h
re

e
 

re
m

a
in

in
g
 p

ro
je

c
ts

,

8
,3

7
0

8
,3

7
0

0
0

0
0

S
c
h
o
o
l 
E

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 P

h
a
s
e
 3

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

2
0
1
4
/1

6

T
h
e
 l
a
te

s
t 
ro

u
n
d
 o

f 
p
ro

je
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 s

h
o
w

in
g
 y

e
t 

a
n
o
th

e
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
in

a
l 
e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 

p
e
a
k
 i
n
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 n
u
m

b
e
rs

. 
T

h
e
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

 b
e
fo

re
 P

h
a
s
e
 3

 i
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 f
o
rw

a
rd

, 
b
u
t 

b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
p
ro

je
c
ti
o
n
 i
t 
w

o
u
ld

 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 a

 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

3
 e

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
s
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 a

re
 

lik
e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 e

x
p
e
n
s
iv

e
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
s
 a

s
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 

a
lr
e
a
d
y
 e

x
p
a
n
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 w
it
h
 s

im
p
le

r 

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
s
. 
W

it
h
o
u
t 
s
c
o
p
in

g
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

, 
a
n
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

 o
f 
£
2
.5

m
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 a

llo
w

e
d
 f
o
r 

e
a
c
h
 o

f 
3
 e

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
s
. 

3
0
0

3
0
0

0
3
,0

0
0

3
,0

0
0

0
3
,0

0
0

3
,0

0
0

0
1
,2

0
0

1
,2

0
0

0

 S
E

N
 E

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

S
E

N
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

u
n
d
e
r 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
S

E
B

 b
id

s
 w

e
re

 

m
a
d
e
 u

n
d
e
r 

T
B

N
P

, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
s
e
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
re

 n
o
w

 

lis
te

d
. 
It
 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 w

ill
 b

e
 t
h
e
 

e
x
te

n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

6
,6

0
0

6
,6

0
0

0
3
,6

0
0

3
,6

0
0

0
0

0

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
E

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
F

o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
g
ro

w
th

 i
n
 o

u
r 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
, 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 a
re

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 f
ilt

e
r 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

. 
S

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 

e
x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

u
n
d
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,
 b

u
t 

w
e
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
in

 t
w

o
 T

B
N

P
 b

id
s
 f
o
r 

s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 e
x
p
a
n
s
io

n
/n

e
w

 s
c
h
o
o
l,
 a

n
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 b

id
s
, 
s
o
m

e
 b

a
s
ic

 a
s
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
s
 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 a
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 e

n
ti
re

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 
T

h
is

 

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

s
s
u
m

in
g
 a

 f
in

a
l 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 

e
x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 o

f 
2
6
 f
o
rm

s
 o

f 
e
n
tr

y
, 
w

it
h
 8

5
%

 f
ilt

e
ri
n
g

9
,2

0
0

9
,2

0
0

0
4
,5

2
5

4
,5

2
5

0
5
0
0

5
0
0

0
5
,0

0
0

5
,0

0
0

0

4

266



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
C

a
p

it
a

l 
B

id
s
 2

0
1

4
/
1

5
 t

o
 2

0
1

7
/
1

8

P
ro

je
c
t 

T
it

le
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

G
ro

s
s

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l

F
u

n
d

in
g

£
0
0
0

N
e
t

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l

F
u

n
d

in
g

£
0
0
0

N
e
t

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l

F
u

n
d

in
g

£
0
0
0

N
e
t

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s

V
a
lu

e
 £

0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l

F
u

n
d

in
g

£
0
0
0

N
e
t

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

2
0
1
7
/1

8
2
0
1
5
/1

6
2
0
1
6
/1

7
2
0
1
4
/1

5

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 C
a
p
it
a
l 
M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

2
0
1
4
-1

8

F
o
u
r 

y
e
a
rs

 a
g
o
 a

 c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 o

f 
a
ll 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 r
e
v
e
a
le

d
 a

n
 £

8
5
m

 m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 b

a
c
k
lo

g
 

o
n
 o

u
r 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
p
re

m
is

e
s
. 
S

in
c
e
 t
h
e
n
, 
th

e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 

o
f 
o
u
r 

H
ig

h
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 h
a
v
e
 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
 a

c
a
d
e
m

y
 

s
ta

tu
s
, 
a
n
d
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
 o

f 
s
o
m

e
 o

f 
o
u
r 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 h
a
s
 l
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
m

 b
e
in

g
 a

c
c
e
p
te

d
 

o
n
 a

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o
r 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
re

b
u
ild

s
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 a
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
b
a
c
k
lo

g
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 i
n
 o

u
r 

re
m

a
in

in
g
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 a
n
d
 h

ig
h
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 w
h
ic

h
 n

e
e
d
s
 

to
 b

e
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t
ry

in
g
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
 

o
n
g
o
in

g
 p

ro
a
c
ti
v
e
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

1
,3

0
0

1
,3

0
0

0
1
,3

0
0

1
,3

0
0

0
1
,3

0
0

1
,3

0
0

0
1
,3

0
0

1
,3

0
0

0

B
u
lg

e
 C

la
s
s
e
s
 2

0
1
4
-1

8
 T

h
e
 p

u
p
il 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 i
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

 h
a
v
e
 r

is
e
n
 r

a
p
id

ly
 

in
 r

e
c
e
n
t 
y
e
a
r,

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 a

t 
p
ri
m

a
ry

 i
n
ta

k
e
 l
e
v
e
l.
 

T
h
is

 h
a
s
 g

iv
e
n
 r

is
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
E

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 c

o
v
e
re

d
 i
n
 o

th
e
r 

b
id

s
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 u
n
ti
l 
p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
tl
y
 e

x
p
a
n
d
e
d
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
re

 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

, 
th

e
 s

h
o
rt

 t
e
rm

 m
e
a
s
u
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 t
o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 '
b
u
lg

e
 c

la
s
s
e
s
' i

n
 m

u
lt
ip

le
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
c
ro

s
s
 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 a

re
 w

h
e
re

 a
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
fo

rm
 

o
f 
e
n
tr

y
 a

re
 p

la
c
e
d
 i
n
 a

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
y
e
a
r 

w
h
ic

h
 t
h
e
n
 

p
a
s
s
e
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
w

it
h
o
u
t 
b
e
in

g
 f
o
llo

w
e
d
 

b
y
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
la

s
s
e
s
. 

1
5
0

1
5
0

0
1
5
0

1
5
0

0
1
5
0

1
5
0

0
0

S
c
h
o
o
l 
A

m
a
lg

a
m

a
ti
o
n
s
 2

0
1
4
-1

6
H

a
rr

o
w

 h
a
s
 a

 p
o
lic

y
 t
o
 a

m
a
lg

a
m

a
te

 w
h
a
t 
w

a
s
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 k
n
o
w

n
 a

s
 f
ir
s
t 
a
n
d
 m

id
d
le

 (
n
o
w

 

s
o
m

e
ti
m

e
s
 k

n
o
w

n
 a

s
 i
n
fa

n
t 
a
n
d
 j
u
n
io

r)
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 t
o
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
it
h
 o

n
e
 s

e
t 
o
f 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
. 
W

h
e
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
m

a
lg

a
m

a
te

, 
it
 i
s
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 t
o
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
lly

 r
e
a
rr

a
n
g
e
 p

a
rt

s
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o
 a

llo
w

 i
te

m
 t
o
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 (

e
.g

. 
a
d
m

in
, 

re
c
e
p
ti
o
n
, 
e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 e
tc

).
 T

h
e
s
e
 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 a
re

 t
h
e
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
w

o
rk

s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 s

ix
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

 w
h
ic

h
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
 a

m
a
lg

a
m

a
ti
o
n
.

7
0
0

7
0
0

0
7
0
0

7
0
0

0
0

0

F
e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 S
tu

d
ie

s
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
A

s
 s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 r

e
v
e
a
l 
th

e
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 

n
e
e
d
e
d
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
e
x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

r 
S

E
N

 e
x
p
a
n
s
io

n
s
, 
it
 i
s
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 t
o
 

c
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
fe

a
s
ib

ili
ty

 s
tu

d
ie

s
 t
o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 o

u
tl
in

e
 c

o
s
ts

 b
e
fo

re
 w

e
 c

a
n
 a

s
c
e
rt

a
in

 

th
e
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
w

h
ic

h
 a

llo
w

s
 u

s
 t
o
 p

la
n
 

a
n
d
 b

id
 a

c
c
o
rd

in
g
ly

. 
T

h
is

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 i
s
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

fe
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 s
tu

d
ie

s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 i
n
 a

d
v
a
n
c
e
 

o
f 
s
p
e
c
if
ic

 p
ro

je
c
t 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 a
n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e
s
.

5
0

5
0

0
5
0

5
0

0
5
0

5
0

0
5
0

5
0

0

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
 &

 F
A

M
IL

IE
S

 T
O

T
A

L
4
0
,3

9
0

4
0
,3

9
0

0
2
0
,7

7
5

2
0
,7

7
5

0
5
,0

0
0

5
,0

0
0

0
7
,5

5
0

7
,5

5
0

0

5

267



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
C

a
p

it
a

l 
B

id
s
 2

0
1

4
/
1

5
 t

o
 2

0
1

7
/
1

8

P
ro

je
c
t 

T
it

le
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

G
ro

s
s

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l

F
u

n
d

in
g

£
0
0
0

N
e
t

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l

F
u

n
d

in
g

£
0
0
0

N
e
t

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l

F
u

n
d

in
g

£
0
0
0

N
e
t

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s

V
a
lu

e
 £

0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l

F
u

n
d

in
g

£
0
0
0

N
e
t

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

2
0
1
7
/1

8
2
0
1
5
/1

6
2
0
1
6
/1

7
2
0
1
4
/1

5

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

, 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 A

N
D

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

C
a
p
it
a
l 
to

 b
e
 i
n
v
e
s
te

d
 i
n
 a

 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 l
e
is

u
re

 

a
n
d
 l
ib

ra
ry

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
. 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 h
ig

h
 r

is
k
, 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 w

it
h
 H

a
rr

o
w

 L
e
is

u
re

 C
e
n
tr

e
, 
th

a
t 

fa
ilu

re
 t
o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 t
h
e
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 w

ill
 i
n
e
v
it
a
b
ly

 

le
a
d
 t
o
 a

 b
u
ild

in
g
 c

lo
s
u
re

 i
f 
a
 m

a
jo

r 
fa

u
lt
 o

c
c
u
rs

 

a
n
d
 b

e
 a

 r
is

k
 t
o
 l
e
is

u
re

 i
n
c
o
m

e
. 
T

h
e
 l
ib

ra
ri
e
s
' s

e
lf
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 k

io
s
k
s
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
fr

e
s
h
e
d
 b

y
 

2
0
1
6
-1

7
.

3
0
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

1
5
0

1
5
0

R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
s
p
o
rt

s
 p

it
c
h
e
s
 a

t 
B

a
n
n
is

te
r 

S
ta

d
iu

m

R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
p
o
rt

s
 p

it
c
h
e
s
 l
o
s
t 
fr

o
m

 K
o
d
a
k
 

s
it
e
 a

t 
B

a
n
n
is

te
r 

S
ta

d
iu

m
 t
o
 b

e
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 f
ro

m
 s

1
0
6
 

fr
o
m

 K
o
d
a
k
 s

it
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

1
,0

0
0

1
,0

0
0

0

R
e
fo

rm
 o

f 
S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 T

h
e
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
fu

n
d
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 D

iln
o
t 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 a

n
d
 

b
u
ild

 n
e
w

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 s

y
s
te

m
(s

) 
to

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

e
lf
-a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
to

o
ls

 t
o
 

m
it
ig

a
te

 t
h
e
 l
a
rg

e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 f
o
r 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
m

o
d
e
lli

n
g
.

2
5
0

1
2
5

1
2
5

5
7
5

2
8
8

2
8
7

4
7
5

2
3
8

2
3
7

1
2
5

6
3

6
2

R
e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 P

e
rs

o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n

T
h
e
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
is

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 

n
e
w

 a
n
d
 a

d
a
p
t 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 C

a
s
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

S
y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 o

n
lin

e
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 M
a
rk

e
tp

la
c
e
 

'M
y
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 e

P
u
rs

e
' t

o
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

 t
h
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
R

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
P

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
B

u
d
g
e
ts

.

0
2
5
0

2
5
0

2
5
0

2
5
0

0

In
te

g
ra

te
d
 H

e
a
lt
h
 M

o
d
e
l

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 H

e
a
lt
h
 N

3
 S

e
c
u
re

 

N
e
tw

o
rk

In
te

g
ra

ti
n
g
 I
T

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 (

M
O

S
A

IC
 a

n
d
 J

a
d
e
) 

to
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 c

a
re

 r
e
c
o
rd

 a
c
ro

s
s
 h

e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
b
u
ild

in
g
s
 (

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 o

r 
n
e
w

) 
to

 

a
llo

w
 t
h
e
 s

e
t 
u
p
 o

f 
s
h
a
re

d
 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 f
o
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 

IT
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
 m

o
v
e
 t
o
 2

4
/7

 

a
v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
c
a
re

 

2
5
0

1
2
5

1
2
5

5
0
0

2
5
0

2
5
0

5
0
0

2
5
0

2
5
0

5
0
0

2
5
0

2
5
0

C
a
re

rs
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 C

h
a
n
g
e
s

T
h
e
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
w

ill
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
 A

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 f
o
r 

In
fo

rm
a
l 
C

a
re

rs
 

a
n
d
 n

e
w

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 &

 A
d
v
ic

e
 o

n
-l
in

e
 s

y
s
te

m
s
.

A
n
 O

n
-l
in

e
 s

e
lf
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
s
y
s
te

m
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 s

c
a
le

 o
f 
d
e
m

a
n
d
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

1
0
0

5
0

5
0

1
0
0

5
0

5
0

1
0
0

5
0

5
0

0

6

268



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
C

a
p

it
a

l 
B

id
s
 2

0
1

4
/
1

5
 t

o
 2

0
1

7
/
1

8

P
ro

je
c
t 

T
it

le
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

G
ro

s
s

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l

F
u

n
d

in
g

£
0
0
0

N
e
t

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l

F
u

n
d

in
g

£
0
0
0

N
e
t

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l

F
u

n
d

in
g

£
0
0
0

N
e
t

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s

V
a
lu

e
 £

0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l

F
u

n
d

in
g

£
0
0
0

N
e
t

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

2
0
1
7
/1

8
2
0
1
5
/1

6
2
0
1
6
/1

7
2
0
1
4
/1

5

M
o
s
a
ic

 I
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 1

4
/1

5
 –

 A
d
u
lt
s
 a

n
d
 

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
h
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
th

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 
is

 t
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

C
o
re

lo
g
ic

’s
 n

e
x
t 
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 c

a
s
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
y
s
te

m
, 
M

o
s
a
ic

, 
re

p
la

c
in

g
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

-i
. 
T

h
e
 

p
ro

je
c
t 
w

ill
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 

re
e
n
g
in

e
e
ri
n
g
 a

c
ro

s
s
 b

o
th

 C
h
ild

re
n
's

 a
n
d
 A

d
u
lt
s
 

D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f,
 a

n
d
 

m
ig

ra
ti
o
n
 t
o
, 
M

o
s
a
ic

. 
F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
a
s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 

s
y
s
te

m
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 r

e
-d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 i
n
to

 

a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 r
e
tu

rn
s
.

2
5
0

2
5
0

0
0

0

E
m

p
ty

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 g

ra
n
t 
a
n
d
 p

ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
 t
o
 2

0
1
7
/1

8

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

 p
ro

je
c
t 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
fo

r 
a
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
o
f 
£
8
0
0
k
 

c
a
p
it
a
l 
fu

n
d
in

g
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 4

 y
e
a
r 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
 t
o
 

2
0
1
7
/1

8
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 (

£
2
0
0
k
 p

e
r 

a
n
n
u
m

).
 

£
1
5
0
k
 i
s
 r

e
q
u
e
s
te

d
 a

n
n
u
a
lly

 t
o
 b

ri
n
g
 

a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 2

5
 p

ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 
e
m

p
ty

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 

in
 H

a
rr

o
w

 b
a
c
k
 i
n
to

 u
s
e
 b

y
 o

ff
e
ri
n
g
 r

e
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 

g
ra

n
ts

 t
o
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 (

fo
r 

u
p
 t
o
 7

0
%

 o
f 
re

n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 

c
o
s
ts

) 
in

 e
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
 f
o
r 

n
o
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 r

ig
h
ts

 t
o
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il.

 T
h
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 h

o
u
s
e
 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 a

n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 i
n
 e

m
e
rg

e
n
c
y
 B

 

&
 B

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
 A

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

£
5
0
k
 p

.a
. 
is

 

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 f
o
r 

p
ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t
o
 p

re
v
e
n
t 
h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 s

a
v
e
 o

n
 

th
e
 B

 &
 B

 c
o
s
t.

2
0
0

2
0
0

2
0
0

2
0
0

2
0
0

2
0
0

2
0
0

2
0
0

D
F

G
 1

4
/1

5
D

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
a
d
a
p
ta

ti
o
n
s
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
, 
fo

r 
o
w

n
e
r 

o
c
c
u
p
ie

rs
, 
R

S
L
 a

n
d
 p

ri
v
a
te

 

te
n
a
n
ts

.

1
,5

0
0

5
1
0

9
9
0

1
,5

0
0

5
1
0

9
9
0

1
,5

0
0

5
1
0

9
9
0

1
,5

0
0

5
1
0

9
9
0

R
e
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 G

ra
n
ts

 1
4
/1

5
T

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 d

is
a
b
le

d
 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

g
ra

n
t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

7
0

7
0

7
0

7
0

7
0

7
0

7
0

7
0

Q
u
a
lit

y
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

P
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 D

e
m

e
n
ti
a

B
u
ild

in
g
 o

n
 t
h
e
 i
n
n
o
v
a
ti
v
e
 w

o
rk

 s
ta

rt
e
d
 a

t 

M
ilm

a
n
s
 t
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
a
im

s
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
  
d
e
m

e
n
ti
a
-

fr
ie

n
d
ly

 s
o
lu

ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 b

e
 i
n
te

ro
p
e
ra

b
le

 w
it
h
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
ie

s
, 
s
u
c
h
 a

s
 c

o
n
n
e
c
ti
v
it
y
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 i
n
fo

rm
a
l 
a
n
d
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 'f

o
rm

a
l' 

c
a
re

 

n
e
tw

o
rk

s
, 
s
u
c
h
 a

s
 t
e
le

c
a
re

.

1
5
0

1
5
0

5
0

5
0

5
0

5
0

5
0

5
0

In
-h

o
u
s
e
 R

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
E

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
ts

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
to

 m
a
in

ta
in

 t
h
e
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il'

s
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
re

s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
a
n
d
 d

a
y
 c

a
re

 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
.

1
0
0

1
0
0

1
0
0

1
0
0

1
0
0

1
0
0

1
0
0

1
0
0

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

, 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 A

N
D

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

 T
O

T
A

L
4
,1

7
0

1
,8

1
0

2
,3

6
0

3
,6

4
5

1
,0

9
8

2
,5

4
7

3
,5

4
5

1
,0

4
8

2
,4

9
7

0
2
,6

9
5

8
2
3

1
,8

7
2

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

IT
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 r

e
fr

e
s
h

R
e
fr

e
s
h
 o

f 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 I
T

 S
y
s
te

m
s
, 
S

A
P

 C
R

M
 

re
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
£
5
0
0
k
, 
1
6
-1

7
 E

x
c
h
a
n
g
e
 t
o
 S

a
a
S

 

£
7
5
0
k
, 
S

h
a
re

p
o
in

t 
to

 S
a
a
S

 £
2
5
0
k
. 
E

v
e
ry

 Y
e
a
r 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 I
T

 S
y
s
te

m
s
 £

5
0
0
k
 

1
,3

0
0

1
,3

0
0

5
0
0

5
0
0

1
,5

0
0

1
,5

0
0

5
0
0

5
0
0

IT
 E

n
d
 U

s
e
r 

H
a
rd

w
a
re

 R
e
fr

e
s
h

R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
re

m
a
in

in
g
 d

e
s
k
to

p
s
 w

it
h
 t
h
in

 

c
lie

n
ts

 w
h
e
re

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
 -

 £
1
2
5
k
 i
n
 1

4
-1

5
 t
h
e
n
 

ro
lli

n
g
 r

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
s
s
e
ts

 £
4
7
5
k
 p

a
.

1
2
5

1
2
5

4
7
5

4
7
5

4
7
5

4
7
5

4
7
5

4
7
5

IT
 I
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 R

e
fr

e
s
h

R
e
fr

e
s
h
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
: 
1
5
-1

6
 

W
A

N
 a

n
d
 T

e
le

p
h
o
n
y
, 
1
6
-1

7
 L

A
N

0
1
,1

0
0

1
,1

0
0

1
,3

0
0

1
,3

0
0

0

7

269



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
C

a
p

it
a

l 
B

id
s
 2

0
1

4
/
1

5
 t

o
 2

0
1

7
/
1

8

P
ro

je
c
t 

T
it

le
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

G
ro

s
s

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l

F
u

n
d

in
g

£
0
0
0

N
e
t

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l

F
u

n
d

in
g

£
0
0
0

N
e
t

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l

F
u

n
d

in
g

£
0
0
0

N
e
t

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s

V
a
lu

e
 £

0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l

F
u

n
d

in
g

£
0
0
0

N
e
t

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

2
0
1
7
/1

8
2
0
1
5
/1

6
2
0
1
6
/1

7
2
0
1
4
/1

5

IT
 B

T
P

 R
e
fr

e
s
h

R
e
fr

e
s
h
 o

f 
h
a
rd

w
a
re

 f
o
r 

p
a
s
t 
B

T
P

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 a
s
 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
p
ro

je
c
t 
c
o
s
t 
m

o
d
e
ls

. 
O

n
g
o
in

g
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 r
e
a
lis

e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

a
re

 d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
u
p
o
n
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 t
o
 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
.

2
1
3

2
1
3

0
3
0
0

3
0
0

0

M
in

e
rv

a
 T

ra
n
s
it
io

n
 C

o
s
ts

P
ro

je
c
t 
M

in
e
rv

a
 i
s
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
n
g
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

tr
a
n
s
fo

rm
in

g
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 f
o
r 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 

E
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 £

5
0
0
k
 o

n
 e

x
it
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 C

a
p
it
a
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

to
 a

c
q
u
ir
e
 a

s
s
e
ts

 a
t 
th

e
ir
 b

o
o
k
 v

a
lu

e
. 
C

o
s
ts

 o
f 

n
e
w

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 I
T

 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

y
s
te

m
s
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l.

0
5
0
0

5
0
0

0
0

0
0

IT
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

je
c
ts

O
n
g
o
in

g
 a

d
d
it
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t
h
e
 I
T

 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 b

y
 c

h
a
n
g
in

g
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
In

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

 t
h
is

 h
a
s
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 

s
e
c
u
ri
ty

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

, 
iP

a
d
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
, 

M
e
m

b
e
r'
s
 e

m
a
il 

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
, 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
w

if
e
  
e
tc

. 

E
v
o
lv

in
g
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

fu
tu

re
 y

e
a
rs

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

s
e
c
u
ri
ty

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
ro

u
n
d
 p

ro
te

c
ti
v
e
 

m
a
rk

in
g
,,
 s

y
s
te

m
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 s

y
s
te

m
 

s
e
g
re

g
a
ti
o
n
, 
a
n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 c

o
n
fe

re
n
c
in

g
 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 m

o
b
ile

 t
e
le

p
h
o
n
y
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 n
e
w

 

w
a
y
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
.

7
5
0

7
5
0

5
0
0

5
0
0

5
0
0

5
0
0

5
0
0

5
0
0

IT
 M

o
b
ile

 a
n
d
 F

le
x

M
o
b
ile

 a
n
d
 F

le
x
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 c

o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
o
n
 s

o
ft
w

a
re

 

a
n
d
 p

a
p
e
rl
e
s
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 o
f 

m
o
b
ile

 a
n
d
 f
le

x
ib

le
 w

o
rk

in
g
 a

lo
n
g
 w

it
h
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
tr

a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y
. 
T

h
e
 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n
 2

0
1
3
-1

4
. 
T

h
is

 

b
id

 i
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

o
ll 

o
u
t 
o
f 
th

o
s
e
 

s
y
s
te

m
 a

n
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 t
o
 u

s
e
rs

 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
w

o
 

y
e
a
rs

. 
T

h
e
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

h
a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
in

c
re

a
s
e
d
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 p

re
s
s
u
re

s

4
0
1

4
0
1

3
1
6

3
1
6

0
0

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
 T

O
T

A
L

2
,7

8
9

0
2
,7

8
9

3
,3

9
1

0
3
,3

9
1

4
,0

7
5

0
4
,0

7
5

1
,4

7
5

0
1
,4

7
5

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 B

ID
S

 T
O

T
A

L
6
1
,6

8
9

4
5
,4

1
7

1
6
,2

7
2

4
3
,4

2
9

2
7
,0

9
0

1
6
,3

3
9

3
8
,3

5
3

2
1
,2

6
5

1
7
,0

8
8

3
5
,9

5
2

1
9
,5

9
0

1
6
,3

6
2

H
O

U
S

IN
G

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

H
R

A
 1

4
/1

5
-1

7
/1

8
T

h
e
 f
ig

u
re

s
 a

re
 t
a
k
e
n
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 3

0
 y

e
a
r 

H
R

A
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
 w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 c

a
b
in

e
t 
o
n
 

2
0
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
3
. 
T

h
is

 d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 H

R
A

 i
s
 

in
 a

 s
o
u
n
d
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
p
o
s
it
io

n
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 

in
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
e
lf
 f
in

a
n
c
in

g
, 
a
n
d
 h

a
s
 s

u
ff
ic

ie
n
tl
y
 

s
tr

o
n
g
 r

e
v
e
n
u
e
 s

tr
e
a
m

s
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 b
o
th

 a
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

to
c
k
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 

b
u
ild

in
g
 n

e
w

 a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
. 
T

h
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

is
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 s

to
c
k
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
 

a
n
d
 e

n
s
u
re

s
 t
h
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 

7
,5

2
7

7
,5

2
7

7
,8

2
7

7
,8

2
7

8
,4

1
2

8
,4

1
2

9
,1

3
9

9
,1

3
9

8

270



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
C

a
p

it
a

l 
B

id
s
 2

0
1

4
/
1

5
 t

o
 2

0
1

7
/
1

8

P
ro

je
c
t 

T
it

le
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

G
ro

s
s

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l

F
u

n
d

in
g

£
0
0
0

N
e
t

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l

F
u

n
d

in
g

£
0
0
0

N
e
t

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l

F
u

n
d

in
g

£
0
0
0

N
e
t

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s

V
a
lu

e
 £

0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l

F
u

n
d

in
g

£
0
0
0

N
e
t

V
a
lu

e

£
0
0
0

2
0
1
7
/1

8
2
0
1
5
/1

6
2
0
1
6
/1

7
2
0
1
4
/1

5

A
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 H
o
u
s
in

g
2
,0

0
0

2
,0

0
0

4
,4

0
0

4
,4

0
0

0
0

H
R

A
 T

O
T

A
L

9
,5

2
7

0
9
,5

2
7

1
2
,2

2
7

0
1
2
,2

2
7

8
,4

1
2

0
8
,4

1
2

9
,1

3
9

0
9
,1

3
9

T
O

T
A

L
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

7
1
,2

1
6

4
5
,4

1
7

3
5
,3

2
6

6
7
,8

8
3

2
7
,0

9
0

4
0
,7

9
3

5
5
,1

7
7

2
1
,2

6
5

3
3
,9

1
2

5
4
,2

3
0

1
9
,5

9
0

3
4
,6

4
0

9

271



272

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

REPORT FOR: 

 

CABINET 

Date of Meeting: 

 

12 December 2013 

Subject: 

 

Revenue and Capital Monitoring for Quarter 2 as 
at 30 September 2013  

Key Decision:   Yes 
 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Simon George, Director of Finance and 
Assurance 

Portfolio Holder: 

 

Councillor Tony Ferrari, Portfolio Holder for  
Finance 
 

Exempt: 

 

No  

Decision subject to 

Call-in: 

No, as the decision is for noting only 

Enclosures: 

 

Appendix 1 - Revenue Directorates Summary 
Appendix 2 - MTFS Tracker 
Appendix 3 - Debt Management 

 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 

This report sets out the Council’s revenue and capital monitoring position as at 30 
September 2013: 
 
Recommendations:  

1. To note the revenue and capital forecast outturn position at the end of 
Quarter 2 (September 2013);  

 
2. To note the Capital virement detailed in paragraphs 49 to 50. 

 
Reason (for recommendation) 
To ensure that Cabinet is updated on the forecast revenue and capital financial 
position for 2013/14 and budget virements are agreed in line with Financial 
Regulations. 

 

Agenda Item 18
Pages 273 to 306

273



 

2 

Section 2 – Report 
 
Introduction 
 

1. The 2013-14 quarter 2 revenue financial monitoring is reporting a pressure to the revenue 
outturn position of £1.88m overspend.  This represents an adverse variance of 1.0% against 
the approved budget of £181.06m as summarised in the table below.  This is an improvement 
of £0.32m since quarter 1. 

 

Directorate 

Quarter 2 
Revenue 
Variance  

£m 

Quarter 1 
Revenue 
Variance  

£m 
Change    

£m 

Resources (0.18) 0.25 (0.43) 

Environment and Enterprise 0.80 0.72 0.08 

Community, Health & Wellbeing  1.18 0.66 0.52 

Children and Families  0.81 0.57 0.24 

Directorate Subtotal 2.61 2.20 0.41 

Corporate/Below the Line  (0.73) 0.00 (0.73) 

General Fund Total 1.88 2.20 (0.32) 

 
 

 
2. The main areas of the £1.88m variance are summarised below :- 

 

• Resources directorate – Customer services & legal savings behind schedule offset by 
savings on the Harrow Help scheme and pension augmentation costs 

• Environment and Enterprise directorate – Public realm services savings delayed due to the 
pause of the PRISM restructure, partially offset by additional parking income 

• Community, Health & Wellbeing – Vacancy, agency & procurement savings plans still 
being developed and the delayed decision on the outsourcing of library services 

• Children and Families – The Teachers’ Centre is facing pressure on achieving income 
targets and Targeted Services is experiencing  additional demand for placements & 
referrals 

 
3. Due to the challenging financial environment and the risks around service demands & delivery, 

directorates face a challenging time to manage and contain existing and  emerging issues.  
Management teams continue to take actions to mitigate these pressures which are monitored 
and reported in a timely way. 

 
Directorates’ Position 
 

4. The Quarter 2 forecast shows a potential net budget overspend of £2.61m on directorate 
budgets, and £1.88m overall after accounting for corporate items.  

 
RESOURCES–UNDER SPEND OF £0.18M 

5. At quarter 2, a forecast under spend of £181k is anticipated, a reduction of £431k from the 
quarter 1 forecast.  The key reasons for this are; 

 

274



 

 3 

• Under spend on Customer Services due to lower than anticipated take up on the Harrow 
Help Scheme (£231k). 

• Finance and Assurance under spend as a result of monthly pension augmentation 
payments being less than budgeted for (£100k). 

• HRD & Shared Services under spend as a result of delay in developing a corporate 
financial management learning and development programme. Approval for carry forward to 
2014-15 will be sought (£50k). 

• Legal & Governance overspend of £50k due to a delay in establishing an expanded 
practice resulting in the budgeted income not being realised in the current year (£100k), 
Mayoralty (£50k) offset by over recovery of Land charges income by £100k. £50k start-up 
costs to expand the practice to another borough were funded from MTFS implementation  

 
ENVIRONMENT AND ENTERPRISE – OVERSPEND £0.80M  

6. At Quarter 2, Environment & Enterprise are reporting a projected overspend of £800k, over the 
total net controllable budget of £23.6m.  This is an increase of £80k from the quarter 1 
forecast.   

7. The key reasons for this increase are; 

• £139k increase in the shortfall of planning and building fee income. 

• £100k increase in property services costs in relation to MTFS savings associated with 
minimum standard cleaning due to contract being re-tendered and no savings 
materialising. 

• £47k increase in Community safety costs associated with the additional staffing costs to 
achieve parking income. 
 

8. These increases are offset by; 

• £100k Directorate management overspend reported at Quarter 1 will be funded by one-off 
carry forwards from 2012-13 year end. 

• £105k Transformation monies in relation to opening & locking gates (£70k) and dog waste 
collection (£35k) have been agreed.  At Q1, these were reported as overspends.  

9. Unachieved MTFS savings [red rated] of £3,480k have been partly offset by additional forecast 
parking revenue £1,297k, vacancies held circa £500k and overachieved income including 
rents £99k, capital recharges £506k, recoverable expenses £85k and licences £90k. 

10. The budgets are being robustly monitored by the service and other opportunities are being 
explored in order to reduce the forecast further by the end of the financial year. 

 
COMMUNITY, HEALTH AND WELLBEING – OVERSPEND £1.18M 
 
Adult Services 

11. Adults Services are reporting a projected overspend of £154k against a net controllable budget 
of £56.235m.  This is an increase on quarter 1 of £14k.    Pressures of £0.5m have been 
identified around the achievement of the MTFS savings for Day Care and Residential Strategic 
Reviews, although the savings will be achieved in full over the two year period.   

 
12. There are still concerns about the values of the NHS transfer grant to be negotiated with the 

CCG. 
 
13. A significant part of the pressures in year are being alleviated by the early achievement of the 

14-15 Supporting People savings, together with a review of income on the Placement budget.  
The service is achieving a virtually balanced budget except for the late savings allocation. 
Those in relation to vacancy management and agency are proving difficult to achieve. 

 

275



 

 4 

14. The majority of Adults budgets are demand led and Harrow Council has a statutory duty to 
meet vulnerable adults’ needs.  It is therefore challenging to strike a balance between 
safeguarding adults against harm and abuse and balancing the budgets at the same time 
however. 

Community And Culture 

15. Community and Culture are reporting a projected overspend of £780k against a total net 
controllable budget of £4.437m. A significant part of the forecast overspend is due to the 
delayed decision making for outsourcing Library and Leisure services. The estimated impact of 
this is £545k in 2013/14. 

 
16. A request for an allocation from the Council’s general contingency will be made later in the 

year when the figure can be finalised following confirmation of the start date of the new 
contract. Other material pressures relate to; unachievable MTFS income targets at Harrow 
Arts Centre (£110k), unachievable MTFS savings against employee budgets across the 
Directorate (£113k), of which £52k relates to late corporate savings.  

 
Housing General Fund 

17. The Housing General fund is reporting a projected overspend of £9k against a total net 
controllable budget of £3,898k.  

18. B&B net expenditure is expected to be lower than budget despite a number of families 
reaching 101 as at 24 Sep 2013. The additional resources required for the procurement of 
Private Sector Lease agreements has been addressed following the realignment of £340k 
from B&B budgets agreed at period 04. 

 
19. Additional risks have been identified but not included in forecast outturn.   There remains 

uncertainty around the impact of the Welfare Reforms and the situation continues to be 
monitored  

 
20. Due to welfare reform, landlords are now very nervous about housing benefit dependant 

households, and there is increasing competition between councils who are offering large 
incentive payments.  We have now reached the point where we must now also offer more 
generous financial packages as the only way for us to effectively procure sufficient properties 
to stabilise and then reduce B&B use.   

 
Housing Revenue Account 
 

21. The forecast surplus for the year at quarter 2 is £633k which is £177k more than the budget.  
This is due mainly to lower than expected spend on the external decorations programme 
which will be delivered as part of the wider enveloping capital scheme. 

 

 
Revised 
Budget 

Forecast 
Outturn 

Quarter 
2 

Variance 

Quarter 
2 

Variance 

Quarter 
1 

Variance 

  £000 £000 £000 % £000 

Balance b/f -3,469 -3,175 294 -8 294 

(Surplus)/ 
Deficit -456 -633 -177 39 189 

Balance c/f -3,925 -3,808 117 -3 483 

  
Public Health 

22. It is likely that there will be larger than anticipated balances at the end of the financial year.  
Expenditure to date is lower than anticipated, largely due to delays in providers submitting 

276



 

 5 

invoices for payment as a result of contract finalisation but also staff vacancies, delays in 
commencing some of the investment projects, together with prudent assumptions made 
around contingencies and liabilities to avoid over committing the grant.   

 
23. These balances will be carried forward within specific Public Health reserves and will enable 

the funding of expenditure committed in 2013/14 and provide capacity for additional one-off 
projects to be delivered (subject to the relevant approvals).  

 
24. NHS England have recently announced the extension of the ring-fenced grant for a further 

year to 31st March 2016. A risk of approx. £115k remains around the payment of the legacy 
invoices – it is assumed that these will be funded nationally or by the CCG, although further 
guidance is awaited. 

Transformation 
25. (£229k) overspend - principally reflecting the additional procurement savings across the 

division notionally held in this area.  A number of projects are underway which it is hoped will 
enable this saving to be achieved but this will be monitored and reduced when the programme 
has been quantified with more certainty. 

 
CHILDREN & FAMILIES - OVERSPEND £0.81M 

26. As at period 6 the Children and Families Directorate is forecasting to be overspent by £815k 
on Council funded areas. The main areas of pressure are Childrens’ Placements £217k, Social 
Worker Staffing £111k, Teachers Centre shortfall of income £250k, Special Needs Transport 
£66k and Children with Disabilities clients and staffing £173k. The main movements from the 
previous period are increases in  pressures in Special Needs Transport of £66k, Children with 
Disabilities of £63k and Childrens’ Placements of £66k. 

 
CORPORATE BUDGETS  

Interest and Finance Charges  
27. We are currently estimating a £0.730m under spend largely attributable to savings on 

minimum revenue provision.  This is a result of the slippage that occurred on the 2012-13 
capital programme. 

 
Central Contingency  

28. The 2013/14 Central Contingency is £3.17m and is set aside to fund unforeseen pressures 
arising in-year.  To date directorates have identified potential draw downs of £960k from the 
contingency.   

 
Levies.   

29. These are forecast to be on budget.    
 
MTFS Implementation Tracker 
 

30. The 2013-14 budget includes approved MTFS net savings of £22.8m.  
 
31. Appendix 2 attached lists the position on implementation against all of the savings and 

growth included in 2013-14. Red rated savings items (those unlikely to be delivered in-year) 
in 2013-14 total £5.574m. The table below summarises the position across directorates for 
the savings items included. 

277



 

 6 

 

SAVINGS TRACKER SUMMARY 

  Resources 
Environment 
& Enterprise 

Community, 
Health and 
Wellbeing 

Children 
& 

Families Total 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Red 81 3,480 1,711 302 5,574 

Amber 1,821 925 1,285 478 4,509 

Green 2,602 3,085 3,711 2,381 11,779 

Total 4,504 7,490 6,707 3,161 21,862 

 
 

32. A number of the savings rated red, but not all, have an ongoing impact in 2014-15.  The 
MTFS refresh process will have addressed a number of these issues.  

 
33. Officers continue to work to deliver the MTFS savings.   

 
Inflation and Corporate Items 
 

34. The April 2013 pay award of 1% has been implemented and an inflation allocation of £925k 
has been made to service directorates.  

 
Carry Forwards and Earmarked Reserves 
 

35. The cabinet approved 2012-13 carry-forwards of £3.268m have been included within 
individual directorate budgets. 

36. Earmarked reserve balances including the Local Authority Area (LAA) Grant £339k and the 
Housing Benefit PFI grant £41k have been included within the directorate’s budgets. 

 
37. The balance on the Transformation and Priority Initiatives Fund (TPIF) brought forward from 

2012-13 was £1.117m.  The following draw downs against the fund have been approved: 
 

• £100k Welfare Reform 

• £100k Reversal of wilderness parks saving 

• £80k Rapid response cleansing and volunteer support service 

• £50k Neighbourhood champions scheme 

• £60k Rapid response parks maintenance service 

• £90k Community engagement recycling support team 

• £75k Beat sweeper support to secondary shopping areas 

• £70k Opening and locking gates in parks and cemeteries 

• £35k Dog waste collection 
 
In addition the following commitments had previously been made: 

• £300k Circles of Support 

• £154k Filling potholes 

 This leaves a balance of £3k on the fund. 

 Reserves and Provisions 

38. The Council must hold adequate provisions and reserves balances against known and 
anticipated events and in respect of its statutory duties as appropriate. General non earmarked 
balances stand at £8.646m.  All the provisions are reviewed on a quarterly basis.  As at 

278



 

 7 

quarter 2 the Council has adequate provisions in respect of Insurance, Litigation and 
Employment cases. 

Grants 

39. The balance on unringfenced grant has been increased by £168k due to additional Education 
grant to be received in 2013-14 and this has been included within the directorate’s budgets. 

Debt Management 

40. The latest position on Council Tax, NNDR and Housing Benefits bad debts provisions is 
included within Appendix 3. 

 
 

Capital Programme  

41. The 2013/14 capital programme agreed by Council in February 2013, adjusted for slippage 
from 2012/13 outturn and other budget movements totals £80.2m at Quarter 2. The revised 
budget as at Quarter 2 period includes £30.4m slippage from 2012/13 and additional grant 
funded expenditure of £0.6m. 

 
 

 £m % 
Total capital budget for the year       80.2  

Total spend forecast in the year             61.2 76 

Variance against the budget                    (19.0) (24) 

 

The main reasons for variances are as follows: 
 
Children and Families (6.77m) 

42. The programme is being reprofiled in line with the additional grant funding made available by 
DfE for the School expansion programme. 

 
Community, Health and Wellbeing (£2.05m) 

43. The largest element of this is slippage at Headstone Manor while the Heritage Lottery funding 
is confirmed (£850k).  MOSAIC implementation has been delayed due to delays in the release 
of software by the supplier (£350k).  Slippage is occurring on a number of other projects within 
the directorate. 

 
Resources (£1.64m) 

44. Spend is slipping to 2014-15 on a number of IT and BTP projects.  Some projects, e.g. Mobile 
and Flexible working had delayed starts, pending approval, SAP improvements has been 
delayed due to a change freezes while SAP is upgraded. The Waste hardware refresh has 
been deferred as the equipment does not need to be replaced yet.  

Environment and Enterprise (£1.30m) 

45. Harrow Card is no longer progressing (£460k). Pinner Park Farm has slippage of (£460k) and 
the Carbon Reduction Programme (175k). High Priority Plan Maintenance Corporate Property 
has a saving of  (£72k) as a result of escalating costs at the Harrow Arts Centre leading to the 
work being stopped. 

 
Housing revenue Account (0.611m) 

46. The variance reflects a number of minor unders and overs within the housing programme. 

279



 

 8 

 
Below the Line Items (£6.6m) 

47. The underspend of (£6.6m) represents budget not being required in respect of land 
acquisitions (£4.5m), potential BTP projects not being developed (£1.6m) and funding for the 
school expansion programme not being required from Harrow resources (£0.5m) as grant 
funding has been obtained from the DfE.  

 
The table on the next page shows the totals by directorate. 
 
 
 
 
 
Capital Programme 

Directorate 
Original 

Programme CFWD's 
Adjust 
ments 

TOTAL 
BUDGET Forecast 

Forecast 
Variance CFWD's 

                

Community, Health & Wellbeing 3,545 2,543 1,961 8,048 5,998 -2,050 2,050 

Children & Families 6,404 11,997 4,811 23,212 16,440 -6,772 6,772 

Environment & Enterprise 13,798 7,007 -348 20,456 19,154 -1,303 681 

Resources 5,390 8,059 0 13,449 11,814 -1,635 1,635 

                

TOTAL GENERAL FUND 29,137 29,605 6,424 65,166 53,406 -11,760 11,138 

                

HRA 7,634 757 0 8,390 7,779 -611 0 

                

TOTAL GENERAL FUND & 
HRA 

36,770 30,362 6,424 73,556 61,185 -12,371 11,138 

                

BELOW THE LINE ITEMS 12,411 0 -5,818 6,593 0 -6,593 0 

                

TOTAL CAPITAL 
PROGRAMME 

49,181 30,362 607 80,149 61,185 -18,964 11,138 

                

NOTE:               

General Fund Funding:               

Grant -8,747 -14,076 -4,961 -27,784 -21,356 6,428 -6,400 

Section 106   -427 -12 -439 -432 7 -8 

RCCO   -63 -47 -110 -47 63 -65 

Capital Receipt -12,000 0   -12,000 -2,575 0 0 

Borrowing -8,390 -15,039 -1,404 -24,833 -28,996 5,262 -4,666 

TOTAL GENERAL FUND -29,137 -29,605 -6,424 -65,166 -53,406 11,760 -11,138 

                

HRA Funding:               

Grant   -42   -42 -42 0 0 

DRF -7,633 -715   -8,348 -7,737 611 0 

TOTAL HRA -7,633 -757 0 -8,390 -7,779 611 0 

 
 

 
48. At this stage it is anticipated there will be no need to call on below the line items. 

280



 

 9 

Virement 

49. The following virement has been approved under delegated authority within the HRA capital 
programme: 

 
Transfer from             External decorations         -£133,510 
Transfer to                 Cyclical maintenance        +£133,510 

 
50. The reason for the virement is to ensure adequate funding for cyclical programme in 2013-14.  

External decorations are being delivered as part of the wider enveloping programme within 
HRA Capital schemes. 

 
 

 
Legal Implications 
 

51. There are none directly related to this report. 
 
Financial Implications 
 

52. Financial matters are integral to the report. 
 
Performance Issues 
 

53. Good financial performance is essential to achieving a balanced budget.  The financial 
performance is integrated with the strategic performance of the Council through quarterly 
Improvement Boards for each Directorate where the financial position is considered at the 
same time as performance against key projects, service KPIs (including customer data and 
complaints) and workforce. Monitoring of finance and performance is reported regularly to the 
Corporate Strategic Board and Cabinet and is also considered by the Council's Performance 
and Finance Scrutiny Sub- Committee. 

54. The overall projected percentage variance from the general fund revenue budget is 1.0% 
overspent, £1.876m.  Further detail at service level is shown in appendix 1.  

55. MTFS Implementation. Appendix 2 details progress on the investment and savings items 
approved as part of the 2013-14 budget. The overall position on savings is that 54% of the 
savings are RAG rated as green, 21% RAG rated amber and 25% RAG rated red. 

56. There is a performance target of 90% of the approved capital programme for 2013-14 being 
spent in year. The current projection is for spend excluding below the line items to be 83% of 
budget.  Actual to date is 19%, with a further 15% of purchase orders raised. 

57. Council Tax Collection. The collection rate is slightly below the target profile at 56.76% against 
a profile of 57%. This is a worse position by 0.8% than the same time last year when 57.56% 
was achieved. This reflects non or under payments by the 12,000 working age recipients of 
council tax support, who previously did not pay Council Tax.  The position is being monitored 
and recovery action taken as appropriate.  

58. Business Rates Collection. The collection rate is -2.62% below profile at 58.38%.  Payments 
have been delayed in relation to the properties included within the leisure and libraries 
contract.  This is pending finalisation of the charitable status of the new taxpayer and 
mandatory relief granted. 

 
Environmental Impact 
 

59. There are none directly related to this report. 

281



 

 10 

 
Risk Management Implications 
 

60. The risks to the council and how they are being managed are set out in the report:  
 
Risks included on Directorate risk registers? Yes 

 
Equalities Implications 
 

61. There are no direct equalities impacts arising from the decisions within this report.  
 
Corporate Priorities 
 

62. This report deals with Revenue and Capital monitoring which is key to delivering the Council’s 
corporate priorities. 

 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 

    
Name:  Simon George x  Chief Financial Officer 

  
Date: 2 December 2013 

   

   on behalf of the 

Name:  Jessica Farmer x  Monitoring Officer 

 
Date: 18 November 2013 
 

   
 

 

282



 

 11 

Section 4 – Performance Officer Clearance 
    

on behalf of the 

Name:  Alex Dewsnap x  Divisional Director Strategic 
Commissioning 

  
Date: 30 November 2013 

   

 

Section 5 – Environmental Impact Officer Clearance 
   on behalf of the 

Name:  Andrew Baker x  Corporate Director 

  
Date: 13 November 2013 

  (Environment & Enterprise) 

 

Section 6 - Contact Details and Background Papers 
 

Contact:  Dawn Calvert: dawn.calvert@harrow.gov.uk 

Background Papers: Agenda for Cabinet on Thursday 14 February 2013, 7.30 pm 

Agenda for Cabinet on Thursday 12 September 2012, 6.30pm 
 

Call-In Waived by the 

Chairman of Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee 

 

  
NOT APPLICABLE 
 
 
 
[Call –in does not apply to decisions 
that are for noting only] 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

283



Appendix 1: Revenue Directorates Summary 

 12

  Revised 
Budget 

Forecast 
Outturn 

Quarter  
2 

Variance 

Variance Quarter 
1 

variance 

  £000 £000 £000 % £000 

Resources           

Controllable Budget           

Director of Resources 944 1,051 106 11.3% (13) 

Customer Services 5,607 5,405 (202) (3.6%) 71 

Finance & Assurance 5,051 5,019 (32) (0.6%) (15) 

HRD & Shared Services (1,780) (1,813) (33) 1.9% 9 

Legal & Governance 1,360 1,410 50 3.7% 151 

Procurement (77) (64) 13 (16.3%) 90 

Strategic Commissioning 1,567 1,483 (84) (5.3%) (43) 

Total Controllable Budget 12,672 12,491 (181) (1.4%) 250 

Uncontrollable Budget 17,439 17,439 0 0.0% 0 
Total Directorate Budget 30,111 29,930 (181) (0.6%) 250 

            

Environment and Enterprise           
Controllable Budget           

Directorate Management 594 594 0 0.0% 100 

Community Safety (4,084) (4,956) (872) (21.4%) (919) 

Property & Infrastructure 8,722 8,716 (6) (0.1%) (162) 

Public Realm Services 17,896 19,303 1,407 7.9% 1,562 

Enterprise 451 722 271 60.1% 139 
Total Controllable Budget 23,579 24,379 800 3.4% 720 

Uncontrollable Budget 14,944 14,944 0 0.0% 0 
Total Directorate Budget 38,523 39,323 800 2.1% 720 

            

Community, Health and 
Wellbeing 

          

Controllable Budget           

Adult Services 56,235 56,389 154 0.3% 140 

Community and Culture 4,347 5,127 780 17.9% 380 

Housing General Fund 3,898 3,907 9 0.2% -93 

Public Health 626 626 0 0.0% 0 

Transformation 192 421 229 119.3% 228 

Total Controllable Budget 65,298 66,470 1,172 1.8% 655 

Uncontrollable Budget 13,137 13,137 0 0.0% 0 

Total Directorate Budget 78,435 79,607 1,172 1.5% 655 

            
Children and Families           

Controllable Budget           

Management & Business Support 

3,526 3,526 0 0.0% 0 

Early Intervention Services 5,160 5,132 (28) (0.5%) 0 

Targeted Services 16,503 16,831 328 2.0% 262 

Commissioning & Schools 2,857 3,133 276 9.7% 250 

Special Needs 7,925 8,164 239 3.0% 60 

Schools 37 37 0 0.0% 0 
Total Controllable Budget 36,008 36,823 815 2.3% 572 

Uncontrollable Budget 10,047 10,047 0 0.0% 0 

Total Directorate Budget 46,055 46,870 815 1.8% 572 

            

Total Directorate Budgets 193,124 195,730 2,606 1.3% 2,197 

            

Corporate Items -11511 -12241 -730 0% 0 

            

Total Budget Requirement 181,613 183,489 1,876 1.0% 2,197 

 
 

284



M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 I
M

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2

2
0

1
3

-1
4

2
0

1
3

-1
4

 

R
A

G
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

O
ff

ic
e

r 
L

e
a

d

£
0

0
0

S
ta

tu
s

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

W
e

b
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
&

 l
ic

e
n

c
e

s
1

0
G

O
n

 T
ra

c
k

J
o

n
a

th
a

n
 M

ilb
o

u
rn

IT
 &

 t
e

x
t 
a

le
rt

s
5

0
G

O
n

 T
ra

c
k

J
o

n
a

th
a

n
 M

ilb
o

u
rn

H
e

lp
lin

e
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 s
h

o
rt

fa
ll

8
0

G

O
n

 T
ra

c
k

J
o

n
a

th
a

n
 M

ilb
o

u
rn

C
a

rd
 P

a
y
m

e
n

t 
S

y
s
te

m
 

9
2

G
J
o

n
 T

u
rn

e
r

IT
 /
 P

M
O

B
T

P
 C

o
n

tr
a

c
t 
In

d
e

x
a

ti
o

n
6

0
G

R
a

h
im

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
fr

o
m

 c
a

p
it
a

l 
- 

 M
ic

ro
s
o

ft
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
lic

e
n

c
e

 

c
o

s
ts

 m
o

re
 e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 t
h

a
n

 b
u

y
in

g

8
8

A
A

c
tu

a
l 
c
o

s
ts

 u
n

k
n

o
w

n
 -

 C
a

p
it
a

 s
ti
ll 

in
 d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h

 

M
ic

ro
s
o

ft

R
a

h
im

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

L
o

c
a

l 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 S

y
s
te

m
 L

ic
e

n
c
e

s
 a

n
d

 R
u

n
n

in
g

 

C
o

s
ts

1
8

G
A

le
x
 D

e
w

s
n

a
p

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 D
A

T
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 d

u
e

 t
o

 P
C

T
 b

u
d

g
e

t 

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
s
 (

re
v
e

rs
a

l 
o

f 
o

n
e

 o
ff

 g
ro

w
th

 i
n

 2
0

1
2

-1
3

)

-2
5

G
A

le
x
 D

e
w

s
n

a
p

E
x
p

e
ri

a
n

 &
 L

IS
3

G
A

le
x
 D

e
w

s
n

a
p

R
e

fr
e

s
h

 o
f 

R
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 P

a
n

e
l

1
0

G
A

le
x
 D

e
w

s
n

a
p

H
R

D

C
a

s
h

ie
rs

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 R

e
s
ili

e
n

c
e

5
0

G
n

e
e

d
e

d
 a

n
d

 b
e

in
g

 u
s
e

d
F

e
rn

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 s

h
o

rt
fa

ll
2

0
G

J
o

n
 T

u
rn

e
r

In
c
re

a
s
e

d
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 i
n

 P
a

y
ro

ll
3

5
G

J
o

n
 T

u
rn

e
r

R
e

d
u

c
e

d
 W

L
W

A
 S

L
A

 I
n

c
o

m
e

 t
o

 P
a

y
ro

ll
2

0
A

P
o

s
it
io

n
 s

u
b

je
c
t 
to

 u
s
e

 o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 n

e
g

o
ti
a

te
d

J
o

n
 T

u
rn

e
r

L
e

g
a

l 
a

n
d

 G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c

e

L
e

g
a

l 
E

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 o

f 
C

h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
1

2
0

G
H

u
g

h

In
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
E

le
c
to

ra
l 
R

e
g

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
1

0
0

G
H

u
g

h

F
in

a
n

c
e

285



M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 I
M

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2

2
0

1
3

-1
4

2
0

1
3

-1
4

 

R
A

G
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

O
ff

ic
e

r 
L

e
a

d

£
0

0
0

S
ta

tu
s

F
in

a
n

c
e

 T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 P

ro
je

c
t

2
0

0
A

T
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 p

la
n

 s
ti
ll 

b
e

in
g

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

. 
 W

ill
 b

e
 d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
o

n
 

a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 
to

 c
a

rr
y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

s
 f

ro
m

 2
0

1
2

-1
3

, 
o

th
e

rw
is

e
 s

c
o

p
e

 

w
ill

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 r
e

d
u

c
e

d
.

S
im

o
n

 G
e

o
rg

e

F
in

a
n

c
e

 -
 E

n
d

in
g

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 t
o

 W
L

W
A

2
3

A
P

o
s
it
io

n
 s

u
b

je
c
t 
to

 u
s
e

 o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 n

e
g

o
ti
a

te
d

, 

ti
m

in
g

 a
s
 t
o

 e
n

d
 p

o
in

t 
c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 u

n
c
le

a
r

S
im

o
n

 G
e

o
rg

e

R
e

d
u

c
e

d
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 S

L
A

 I
n

c
o

m
e

2
0

G
S

im
o

n
 G

e
o

rg
e

R
is

k
 A

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 F
ra

u
d

In
te

rn
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 -

 l
o

s
s
 o

f 
in

c
o

m
e

 f
ro

m
 e

n
d

in
g

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 t
o

 W
L

W
A

1
7

G

N
o

 l
o

s
s
 o

f 
in

c
o

m
e

 a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 a

s
 W

L
W

A
 i
n

te
n

d
 t
o

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 

to
 u

s
e

 H
a

rr
o

w
 I
n

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d

it
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

 -
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 

in
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
a

g
re

e
in

g
 p

la
n

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

u
d

it
 d

a
y
s
.

S
u

s
a

n
 D

ix
s
o

n

C
o

ll
e

c
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
S

ta
ff

-R
e

v
e

n
u

e
s
 C

T
S

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
1

5
0

G
n

e
e

d
e

d
 a

n
d

 b
e

in
g

 u
s
e

d
 

F
e

rn

H
a

rr
o

w
 H

E
L

P
 s

c
h

e
m

e
1

0
0

G
n

e
e

d
e

d
 a

n
d

 b
e

in
g

 u
s
e

d
F

e
rn

P
F

I 
G

ra
n

t 
R

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
3

8
G

o
c
c
u

rr
e

d
 s

o
 n

e
e

d
e

d
 a

n
d

 b
e

in
g

 u
s
e

d
F

e
rn

D
W

P
 H

B
 R

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 A
d

m
in

 G
ra

n
t

2
9

8
G

D
W

P
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
a

n
n

o
u

n
c
e

m
e

n
t 
fo

r 
1

3
-1

4
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 s

u
b

s
id

y
 s

o
 

n
e

e
d

e
d

F
e

rn

F
u

n
d

in
g

 f
o

r 
L

o
c
a

lis
e

d
 C

T
B

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 &

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 (

re
v
e

rs
a

l 
o

f 
o

n
e

 o
ff

 g
ro

w
th

 i
n

 

2
0

1
2

-1
3

)

-1
0

0
G

O
n

e
 o

ff
 i
n

 1
2

/1
3

 o
n

ly
 s

o
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
re

m
o

v
e

d
 i
n

 1
3

/1
4

F
e

rn

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a

m
 t
o

 r
e

s
to

re
 s

iz
e

 

o
f 

te
a

m
 t
o

 t
h

a
t 
fo

r 
2

0
1

1
/1

2

1
4

0
A

N
e

w
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
e

d
 o

n
 h

a
s
 £

1
3

0
k
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
g

a
p

, 
p

lu
s
 

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
c
o

s
ts

 d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
o

n
 c

a
rr

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

.

T
e

rr
y
 B

re
w

e
r

T
o

ta
l 
In

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

1
,6

1
7

S
a

v
in

g
s

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

M
o

v
e

 l
a

n
d

lo
rd

s
 o

n
lin

e
 w

it
h

 F
2

F
 b

y
 a

p
p

o
in

tm
e

n
t 

o
n

ly
 o

n
 f

ix
e

d
 d

a
y
s

-9
0

G

O
n

 t
ra

c
k
 -

 A
p

p
o

in
tm

e
n

t 
s
y
s
te

m
 l
iv

e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

J
o

n
a

th
a

n
 M

ilb
o

u
rn

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 s
ta

ff
 h

o
u

rs
 t
o

 m
e

e
t 
d

e
m

a
n

d
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 

fe
w

e
r 

fu
ll 

ti
m

e
 p

o
s
ts

-6
0

G

O
n

 t
ra

c
k
 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 s
a

v
in

g
s

J
o

n
a

th
a

n
 M

ilb
o

u
rn

U
s
e

 o
f 

A
rt

if
ic

ia
l 
In

te
lli

g
e

n
c
e

 t
o

 d
iv

e
rt

 s
w

it
c
h

b
o

a
rd

 

c
a

lls

-6
0

G

O
n

 t
ra

c
k
 -

 P
ro

je
c
t 
liv

e

J
o

n
a

th
a

n
 M

ilb
o

u
rn

R
e

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
R

e
c
e

p
ti
o

n
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 a

ll 
d

a
y
 c

o
v
e

r
-1

0
G

O
n

 t
ra

c
k
 -

 c
o

m
p

le
te

J
o

n
a

th
a

n
 M

ilb
o

u
rn

286



M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 I
M

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2

2
0

1
3

-1
4

2
0

1
3

-1
4

 

R
A

G
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

O
ff

ic
e

r 
L

e
a

d

£
0

0
0

S
ta

tu
s

R
e

c
o

n
fi
g

u
re

 O
n

e
 S

to
p

 S
h

o
p

-5
0

G

O
n

 t
ra

c
k
 -

 A
p

p
o

in
tm

e
n

t 
s
y
s
te

m
 l
iv

e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

J
o

n
a

th
a

n
 M

ilb
o

u
rn

IT
 /
 P

M
O

D
e

le
ti
o

n
 o

f 
P

ro
je

c
t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

-4
8

G
R

a
h

im

D
a

ta
c
e

n
tr

e
 t
o

 r
e

m
a

in
 a

t 
th

e
 C

iv
ic

 C
e

n
tr

e
-2

5
0

G
R

a
h

im

R
e

c
h

a
rg

e
 u

ti
lit

y
 c

o
s
ts

 f
o

r 
c
o

m
p

u
te

r 
ro

o
m

 t
o

 

C
a

p
it
a

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 t
o

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

-9
5

A
S

a
v
in

g
 w

a
s
 o

v
e

rs
ta

te
d

 a
n

d
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 t
o

 r
e

p
la

c
e

 t
h

is
 i
te

m

R
a

h
im

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 T
e

le
p

h
o

n
y
 C

o
s
ts

 u
ti
lis

in
g

 S
IP

 
-2

0
0

A
O

v
e

rs
ta

te
d

 b
y
 £

5
0

k
. 
N

o
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
 f

ro
m

 C
a

p
it
a

 o
n

 

p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t

R
a

h
im

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

D
e

le
te

 p
o

s
t 
o

f 
S

e
n

io
r 

P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l 
S

IM
S

-6
0

G
d

e
liv

e
re

d
 

A
le

x
 D

e
w

s
n

a
p

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

, 
R

e
s
e

a
rc

h
 &

 A
n

a
ly

s
is

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

C
a

s
e

 a
n

d
 N

e
w

 O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 M

o
d

e
l 
S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g

-1
3

2
A

C
S

B
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t
h

e
 a

g
g

re
g

a
ti
o

n
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e

 a
t 
it
s
 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
 o

n
 2

7
th

 M
a

rc
h

. 
A

s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
is

 a
ff

e
c
ti
n

g
 p

o
lic

y
 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 w

ill
 n

o
w

 b
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 t
o

 c
o

in
c
id

e
 w

it
h

 a
 n

e
w

 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 M
a

y
 2

0
1

4
. 
T

h
e

re
fo

re
, 
th

e
 s

a
v
in

g
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

 w
ill

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 v
ia

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 i
n

 s
ta

ff
in

g
 

p
lu

s
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

 w
it
h

in
 t
h

e
 D

iv
is

io
n

, 
w

h
ic

h
 s

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 o

n
 

tr
a

c
k
. 
T

h
e

 £
9

7
k
 i
s
 o

n
 t
ra

c
k
 t
o

 b
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 a
lo

n
g

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 

£
9

3
k
 i
n

 l
in

e
 6

1
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
4

/1
5

 p
lu

s
 t
h

e
 s

tr
u

c
tu

ra
l 
b

u
d

g
e

t 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 t
o

 e
n

a
b

le
 t
h

e
 r

e
m

a
in

d
e

r 
o

f 
th

e
 £

1
3

2
k
 t
o

 

b
e

 t
a

k
e

n
 o

u
t 
o

f 
th

e
 b

a
s
e

 b
u

d
g

e
t 
o

n
 a

 p
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t 
b

a
s
is

 i
n

 

2
0

1
4

/1
5

. 
S

a
v
in

g
 i
s
 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 a
m

b
e

r 
o

n
ly

 o
n

 t
h

e
 b

a
s
is

 o
f 

th
e

 

s
tr

u
c
tu

ra
l 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 n

o
t 
b

e
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n

 y
e

a
r 

b
u

t 
th

e
re

 w
ill

 

b
e

 n
o

 a
d

v
e

rs
e

 b
u

d
g

e
t 
p

o
s
it
io

n
 d

u
e

 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 a

n
 

u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 D

iv
is

io
n

.

A
le

x
 D

e
w

s
n

a
p

M
e

rg
e

r 
o

f 
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

in
to

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
 t
e

a
m

-4
0

G

d
e

liv
e

re
d

 

A
le

x
 D

e
w

s
n

a
p

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
 -

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
a

m
p

a
ig

n
s
 

-4
6

G

d
e

liv
e

re
d

A
le

x
 D

e
w

s
n

a
p

H
R

D

287



M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 I
M

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2

2
0

1
3

-1
4

2
0

1
3

-1
4

 

R
A

G
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

O
ff

ic
e

r 
L

e
a

d

£
0

0
0

S
ta

tu
s

R
e

-n
e

g
o

ti
a

te
 L

&
D

 m
a

n
a

g
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
fe

e
s

-3
8

G

D
e

liv
e

re
d

L
e

s
le

y
 C

la
rk

e

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 T
U

 f
a

c
ili

ty
 b

u
d

g
e

t
-3

0
G

W
ill

 b
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

. 
 £

2
2

k
 p

e
r 

a
n

n
u

m
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 f
ro

m
 U

n
is

o
n

.
L

e
s
le

y
 C

la
rk

e

P
ri

n
t 
C

o
n

tr
a

c
t 
S

a
v
in

g
s

-3
5

0
A

S
ti
ll 

w
o

rk
in

g
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 r
o

llo
u

t 
a

n
d

 m
a

y
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 r
e

v
is

it
 b

u
d

g
e

ts
 

c
o

n
s
o

lid
a

te
d

.

J
o

n
 T

u
rn

e
r

C
e

s
s
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
E

x
te

rn
a

l 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
A

d
v
e

rt
is

in
g

-2
5

R
IO

B
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 o

p
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

p
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t)
 f

o
r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 i
n

 

2
0

1
4

/1
5

. 
 D

e
la

y
 p

u
ts

 a
t 
ri

s
k
 t
h

e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 i
n

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

L
e

s
le

y
 C

la
rk

e

R
is

k
 A

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 F
ra

u
d

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 A

N
T

I-
F

R
A

U
D

 T
E

A
M

P
ro

c
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
C

ri
m

e
 A

c
t 
- 

p
u

rs
u

e
 r

e
c
o

v
e

ri
e

s
 o

f 

fr
a

u
d

u
le

n
t 
g

a
in

s
 i
n

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h

 B
re

n
t,
 p

lu
s
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
in

c
o

m
e

 r
e

c
o

v
e

ry
 

-2
0

G

1
 F

T
E

 p
o

s
t 
s
a

v
in

g
 f

o
r 

1
3

/1
4

 a
m

o
u

n
ti
n

g
 t
o

 £
5

0
K

 p
lu

s
 

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 f
ro

m
 o

th
e

r 
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 i
n

  
1

3
/1

4
 &

 1
4

/1
5

.

J
u

s
ti
n

 P
h

ill
ip

s

IN
T

E
R

N
A

L
 A

U
D

IT

D
e

le
te

 v
a

c
a

n
t 
p

o
s
t 
in

 a
u

d
it

-3
0

G
P

o
s
t 
d

e
le

te
d

.
S

u
s
a

n
 D

ix
s
o

n

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 &

 S
A

F
E

T
Y

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

D
e

le
te

 2
 p

o
s
ts

 i
n

 H
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 S

a
fe

ty
 

-8
2

G
J
o

n
 T

u
rn

e
r

C
IV

IL
 C

O
N

T
IN

G
E

N
C

IE
S

 T
E

A
M

J
o

in
t 
w

o
rk

in
g

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

s
-3

5
G

1
 F

T
E

 p
o

s
t 
k
e

p
t 
v
a

c
a

n
t 
fo

r 
6

 m
o

n
th

s
 a

m
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 t
o

 £
1

7
k
, 

p
lu

s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 f
ro

m
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 S

L
A

 i
n

 1
3

/1
4

 o
f 

£
1

8
k
, 

g
iv

in
g

 t
o

ta
l 
o

f 
£

3
5

k
. 
T

h
e

re
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
in

g
 p

re
s
s
u

re
 i
n

 

2
0

1
4

/1
5

 a
s
 t
h

e
 S

u
n

G
a

rd
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 
c
a

n
 o

n
ly

 b
e

 c
a

n
c
e

lle
d

 i
n

 

A
u

g
u

s
t 
g

iv
in

g
 a

 6
-m

o
n

th
 n

o
ti
c
e

 p
e

ri
o

d
, 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 W

L
 B

C
 

A
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
is

 s
ti
ll 

in
 d

ra
ft

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 l
e

g
a

l 
te

a
m

s
. 

K
a

n
 G

ro
v
e

r

IN
S

U
R

A
N

C
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

R
e

d
u

c
e

d
 b

ro
k
e

r 
fe

e
s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 m
o

re
 i
n

-h
o

u
s
e

 

h
a

n
d

lin
g

 a
n

d
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 o
n

 t
h

ir
d

 p
a

rt
y
 

in
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 s
c
h

e
m

e
s

-2
G

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t 
th

ro
u

g
h

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 i
n

-h
o

u
s
e

 h
a

n
d

lin
g

 o
f 

m
o

to
r 

a
n

d
 

in
ju

ry
 c

la
im

s

K
a

re
n

 V
ic

k
e

ry

288



M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 I
M

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2

2
0

1
3

-1
4

2
0

1
3

-1
4

 

R
A

G
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

O
ff

ic
e

r 
L

e
a

d

£
0

0
0

S
ta

tu
s

F
u

tu
re

 t
ra

d
in

g
 w

it
h

 A
c
a

d
e

m
ie

s
-2

5
A

A
c
a

d
e

m
ie

s
 c

a
n

n
o

t 
b

e
n

e
fi
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 s

e
lf
-i

n
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 h
e

n
c
e

 t
h

e
 a

p
p

e
ti
te

 f
ro

m
 a

c
a

d
e

m
ie

s
 t
o

 

p
u

rc
h

a
s
e

 t
h

e
ir

 i
n

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 l
o

w
, 

h
o

w
e

v
e

r 
w

e
 a

re
 w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 I
n

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 

C
o

n
s
o

rt
iu

m
 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 p

ro
d

u
c
t 
s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 d
e

s
ig

n
e

d
 f

o
r 

a
c
a

d
e

m
ie

s

K
a

re
n

 V
ic

k
e

ry

P
h

a
s
e

 2
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
, 
re

d
u

c
e

d
 a

s
s
is

ta
n

t 
p

o
s
t 
fr

o
m

 

c
la

im
s
 h

a
n

d
lin

g
 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
to

 A
c
c
e

s
s
 H

a
rr

o
w

 /
 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
L

E
A

N
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s

-2
0

G

P
o

s
ts

 d
e

le
te

d
 i
n

 J
u

ly
 2

0
1

2

K
a

re
n

 V
ic

k
e

ry

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
1

F
T

E
 A

n
ti
 F

ra
u

d
 I
n

v
e

s
ti
g

a
to

r 
P

o
s
t

-5
0

G
J
u

s
ti
n

 P
h

ill
ip

s

R
e

p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
O

c
c
u

p
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

-7
0

G
d

e
liv

e
re

d
J
o

n
 T

u
rn

e
r

D
e

le
ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

is
k
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 

S
e

rv
ic

e

-3
0

G

O
n

 t
ra

c
k
 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 s
a

v
in

g

S
im

o
n

 G
e

o
rg

e

C
ro

s
s
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

In
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 C
la

im
s

-3
0

A
L

E
A

N
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
m

o
to

r 
c
la

im
s
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

d
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
 a

n
d

 

tr
e

e
 r

o
o

t 
p

ro
to

c
o

l 
is

 u
n

d
e

r 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t,
 h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
n

e
w

 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 m

a
y
 t
a

k
e

 t
im

e
 t
o

 e
m

b
e

d
 

K
a

re
n

 V
ic

k
e

ry

D
e

le
ti
o

n
 o

f 
D

iv
is

io
n

a
l 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
p

o
s
t 
a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 r
e

s
tr

u
c
tu

re

-1
1

8
G

d
e

liv
e

re
d

T
o

m
 W

h
it
in

g

L
E

G
A

L
 A

N
D

 G
O

V
E

R
N

A
N

C
E

Le
g

a
l 

P
ra

ct
ic

e
 

L
e

g
a

l 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 s
ta

ff
in

g
-2

8
G

H
u

g
h

S
h

a
re

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
-7

5
G

H
u

g
h

E
x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 o

f 
L

e
g

a
l 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 S
h

a
re

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 
-1

0
0

A
D

e
c
is

io
n

 b
y
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
p

a
rt

n
e

r 
d

e
la

y
e

d
 u

n
ti
l 
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r,

 w
ill

 

n
o

t 
d

e
liv

e
r 

s
a

v
in

g
 i
n

 1
3

-1
4

H
u

g
h

R
e

g
is

tr
a

rs
 

S
h

a
re

/r
e

d
u

c
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
c
o

s
ts

 
-7

5
G

H
u

g
h

E
le

ct
io

n
s

E
-c

a
n

v
a

s
s
 P

ro
je

c
t

-2
0

G
H

u
g

h

R
e

d
u

c
e

d
 N

u
m

b
e

r 
a

n
d

 F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y
 F

o
rm

a
l 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
s

-3
0

R
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
h

a
s
 n

o
t 
b

e
e

n
 r

e
a

c
h

e
d

 o
n

 r
e

d
u

c
in

g
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 a

n
d

 

h
e

n
c
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

. 

H
u

g
h

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 i
n

 M
a

y
o

r'
s
 o

ff
ic

e
-2

6
R

A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 
h

a
s
 n

o
t 
b

e
e

n
 r

e
a

c
h

e
d

 o
n

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

. 

H
u

g
h

S
c
a

le
d

 B
a

c
k
 C

o
u

n
c
ill

o
r 

In
v
e

s
ti
g

a
ti
o

n
 P

ro
c
e

s
s

-5
0

G
H

u
g

h

289



M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 I
M

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2

2
0

1
3

-1
4

2
0

1
3

-1
4

 

R
A

G
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

O
ff

ic
e

r 
L

e
a

d

£
0

0
0

S
ta

tu
s

In
c
re

a
s
e

 t
o

 R
e

g
is

tr
a

rs
 F

e
e

 I
n

c
o

m
e

 T
a

rg
e

t
5

0
A

G
re

e
n

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

, 
A

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4

-1
5

H
u

g
h

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 F
in

a
n

c
e

A
u

d
it
 f

e
e

s
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 

-1
6

0
G

c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t 
w

it
h

 f
e

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
fr

o
m

 a
u

d
it
o

rs
H

a
s
in

a
 S

h
a

h

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

s
 g

ra
n

t 
s
c
h

e
m

e
 –

 r
e

d
u

c
e

d
 l
e

v
y

-7
4

G

d
e

liv
e

re
d

S
te

v
e

 T
in

g
le

T
re

a
s
u

ry
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
- 

in
c
re

a
s
e

d
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 

in
c
o

m
e

-9
3

9
A

D
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
o

n
 i
n

te
re

s
t 
ra

te
s
. 
 T

h
e

s
e

 h
a

v
e

 m
o

v
e

d
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
u

s
 

s
in

c
e

 s
a

v
in

g
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
.

H
a

s
in

a
 S

h
a

h

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t

C
o

ll
e

c
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

D
e

le
ti
o

n
 o

f 
2

 F
T

E
 p

o
s
ts

 i
n

 R
e

v
e

n
u

e
s
 -

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

T
a

x
 a

n
d

 N
N

D
R

-6
0

G
F

e
rn

D
e

le
ti
o

n
 o

f 
1

 p
o

s
t 
in

 P
a

rk
in

g
 B

a
c
k
 O

ff
ic

e
-2

5
G

F
e

rn

C
o

n
c
e

s
s
io

n
a

ry
 T

ra
v
e

l 
- 

C
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t
o

 T
fL

 g
ra

n
t 

d
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n

-1
0

5
G

G
re

e
n

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

. 
 D

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
o

n
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
u

rr
e

n
t 
le

v
e

l 

o
f 

fu
n

d
in

g
 f

ro
m

 T
F

L
 a

n
d

 n
o

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

m
e

th
o

d
o

lo
g

y
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s

F
e

rn

W
it
h

d
ra

w
 D

is
c
re

ti
o

n
a

ry
 R

a
te

 R
e

lie
f 

fr
o

m
 C

h
a

ri
ty

 

S
h

o
p

s
 i
n

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 a
n

d
 e

n
d

 i
n

 2
0

1
4

-1
5

-2
5

G
N

o
t 
n

o
w

 s
to

p
p

in
g

 D
R

R
 a

lt
o

g
e

th
e

r 
b

u
t 
fu

n
d

in
g

 c
a

n
 s

ti
ll 

b
e

 

s
a

v
e

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 w

a
y
 i
t 
is

 a
c
c
o

u
n

te
d

 f
o

r 
u

n
d

e
r 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

R
a

te
s
 r

e
te

n
ti
o

n

F
e

rn

F
u

n
d

in
g

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
E

m
e

rg
e

n
c
y
 R

e
lie

f 

S
c
h

e
m

e
 f

ro
m

 G
ra

n
t

-8
5

G
F

e
rn

R
e

s
tr

ic
t 
th

e
 i
s
s
u

in
g

 o
f 

ta
x
i 
c
a

rd
s
 t
o

 o
n

ly
 t
h

a
t 

w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 T
F

L
 f

u
n

d
in

g

-2
0

0
G

F
e

rn

C
ro

s
s
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
 n

o
t 
d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n

 2
0

1
2

-

1
3

2
1

5
G

T
o

m
 W

h
it
in

g

L
a

te
 S

a
v
in

g
s

V
a

c
a

n
c
y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
-1

4
8

G
T

o
m

 W
h

it
in

g

A
g

e
n

c
y

-1
5

7
G

T
o

m
 W

h
it
in

g

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t
-2

0
5

G
T

o
m

 W
h

it
in

g

In
fl
a

ti
o

n
-8

6
G

In
fl
a

ti
o

n
 a

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
s
tr

ic
te

d
 t
o

 p
e

n
s
io

n
 a

u
g

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 

C
a

p
it
a

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
w

it
h

 a
 s

m
a

ll 
b

a
la

n
c
e

 h
e

ld
 o

n
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

d
ir

e
c
to

r'
s
 c

o
d

e
.

T
o

m
 W

h
it
in

g

£
1

6
0

k
 p

ro
 r

a
ta

 a
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 s

a
la

ri
e

s
 b

u
d

g
e

ts
. 
R

e
s
t 

c
o

n
ta

in
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 a

n
d

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

 a
s
 o

n
e

 o
ff

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 

o
n

 H
B

 p
a

y
m

e
n

t 
o

v
e

r 
re

c
o

v
e

ry
 a

n
d

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
g

ra
n

t.

290



M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 I
M

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2

2
0

1
3

-1
4

2
0

1
3

-1
4

 

R
A

G
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

O
ff

ic
e

r 
L

e
a

d

£
0

0
0

S
ta

tu
s

T
o

ta
l 
R

e
s

o
u

rc
e

s
 S

a
v
in

g
s

-4
,5

0
4

N
e

t 
R

e
s

o
u

rc
e

s
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

-2
,8

8
7

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

 A
N

D
 E

N
T

E
R

P
R

IS
E

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

P
R

S
 -

 V
e

h
ic

le
 e

a
rl

y
 t
e

rm
in

a
ti
o

n
 p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
2

9
5

G

T
h

e
 t
e

rm
in

a
ti
o

n
 c

o
s
ts

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

 a
t 
£

8
5

k
. 
 T

h
e

 

re
m

a
in

in
g

 b
a

la
n

c
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 u
s
e

 t
o

 o
ff

s
e

t 
re

v
e

n
u

e
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s
.

D
a

v
e

 C
o

rb
y
 /
 M

ic
k
 

W
y
n

n
e

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 g

ro
w

th
1

6
3

G
P

h
ili

p
 H

a
m

b
e

rg
e

r

P
a

rk
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
2

6
1

A

F
u

ll 
c
u

m
u

la
ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
u

p
 t
o

 1
4

/1
5

 c
a

n
 r

a
n

g
e

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 -

£
5

6
8

k
 i
f 

fr
e

e
 p

a
rk

in
g

 i
s
 n

o
t 
in

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
 t
o

 +
9

3
8

k
 i
f 

fr
e

e
 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i
s
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
 (

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
g

ro
w

th
 o

f 
+

£
3

7
0

k
),

 

d
e

p
e

n
d

a
n

t 
o

n
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 a
t 
c
a

b
in

e
t 
in

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r.

D
a

v
id

 E
a

g
le

s
h

a
m

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
H

a
rr

o
w

 T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
 c

le
a

n
in

g
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 f

ro
m

 O
L

F
2

8
7

G
O

n
g

o
in

g
 f

u
n

d
in

g
.

D
a

v
e

 C
o

rb
y
 /
 M

ic
k
 

W
y
n

n
e

C
R

C
/E

A
  
in

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 c
o

s
t 
o

f 
C

R
C

 s
c
h

e
m

e
9

3
G

A
n

d
re

w
 B

a
k
e

r

W
e

lf
a

re
 t
o

 w
o

rk
 X

c
it
e

: 
1

0
8

G
R

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
im

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
.

M
a

rk
 B

ill
in

g
to

n

W
L

W
A

 L
e

v
y
 

1
,2

1
8

A

R
is

k
 o

f 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
le

v
y
, 
p

o
s
s
ib

ly
 m

it
ig

a
te

d
 b

y
 l
o

w
e

r 
P

A
Y

T
 

to
n

n
a

g
e

s
 

A
la

n
 W

h
it
in

g

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
re

la
te

d
 p

re
s
s
u

re
s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 

m
a

rk
e

t 
p

ri
c
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
fi
t 
s
h

a
re

 f
o

r 
D

ry
 r

e
c
y
c
la

b
le

s
2

5
6

G

R
is

k
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
th

e
 g

ro
w

th
 i
s
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
d

e
p

e
n

d
a

n
t 
o

n
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

A
la

n
 W

h
it
in

g

M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

C
C

T
V

 c
a

m
e

ra
s
 

7
1

G
Im

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
A

n
d

y
 A

p
p

le
b

y

T
o

ta
l 
In

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

2
,5

5
2

S
a

v
in

g
s

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 
in

c
o

m
e

In
tr

o
d

u
c
e

 d
if
fe

re
n

ti
a

l 
c
h

a
rg

in
g

 p
o

lic
y
 f

o
r 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 f

o
r 

fa
s
t 
tr

a
c
k
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
-1

5
G

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
in

c
o

m
e

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 b

y
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
h

e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

p
re

-a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 a

d
v
ic

e
.

S
te

p
h

e
n

 K
e

lly

In
c
re

a
s
e

 I
n

c
o

m
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
n

ta
l 
fr

o
m

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

E
s
ta

te
-8

0
G

In
c
o

m
e

 l
e

a
s
e

 s
ig

n
e

d
.

P
h

ili
p

 L
o

v
e

la
n

d
-

C
o

o
p

e
r

291



M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 I
M

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2

2
0

1
3

-1
4

2
0

1
3

-1
4

 

R
A

G
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

O
ff

ic
e

r 
L

e
a

d

£
0

0
0

S
ta

tu
s

In
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
h

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
fe

e
s
 r

e
c
h

a
rg

e
d

 f
o

r 

a
d

a
p

ta
ti
o

n
s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 u

s
in

g
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

o
r 

D
F

G
 

fu
n

d
in

g
. 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

s
 u

s
u

a
l

-7
5

A

P
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 t
o

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 t
o

 b
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 f

e
e

s
 u

p
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

le
v
e

l 
o

f 
p

ri
v
a

te
 s

e
c
to

r 
p

ro
v
id

e
rs

, 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
th

is
 i
s
 n

o
t 
y
e

t 

a
g

re
e

d
 b

y
 H

o
u

s
in

g
. 
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 i
n

c
o

m
e

 f
o

r 

a
d

a
p

ta
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 g
e

n
e

ra
l,
 w

h
ic

h
 h

e
lp

s
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 

b
u

d
g

e
t.

A
n

d
y
 P

a
rs

o
n

s

In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

iv
ic

 C
e

n
tr

e
 s

ta
ff

 c
a

r 
p

a
rk

in
g

 

c
h

a
rg

e
s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

fr
e

e
 c

a
r 

p
a

rk
s

-1
3

5
R

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
ts

 p
re

p
a

re
d

 a
n

d
 E

Q
IA

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
, 

a
w

a
it
in

g
 a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
to

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
. 

A
n

d
y
 P

a
rs

o
n

s

L
ic

e
n

s
in

g
 -

 s
c
o

p
e

 f
o

r 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
in

c
o

m
e

-4
0

G
O

n
 t
a

rg
e

t,
 t
o

 b
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

F
in

la
y
 F

le
tt

S
L

A
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 -
 H

R
A

, 
S

c
h

o
o

ls
 &

 O
th

e
r 

B
o

d
ie

s
. 
 

In
c
re

a
s
e

d
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 f
ro

m
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 S
L

A
 w

it
h

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
-1

9
G

S
L

A
 s

ig
n

e
d

.

A
n

d
re

w
 B

a
k
e

r

T
e

x
ti
le

 r
e

c
y
c
lin

g
-1

0
G

N
e

w
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 
n

o
w

 s
ig

n
e

d
 w

it
h

 a
 b

e
tt
e

r 
p

ri
c
e

 p
e

r 
to

n
n

e
 a

s
 a

 

re
s
u

lt
 o

f 
fa

v
o

u
ra

b
le

 m
a

rk
e

t 
p

ri
c
e

s
 f

o
r 

te
x
ti
le

. 
O

n
 t
ra

c
k
 o

f 

a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
in

c
o

m
e

 s
u

b
je

c
t 
to

 a
c
tu

a
l 
to

n
n

a
g

e
.

A
n

d
re

w
 B

a
k
e

r

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L

 I
N

C
O

M
E

 T
O

T
A

L
-3

7
4

0
0

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

S
a

v
in

g
s

P
R

IS
M

 g
ro

w
th

 a
n

d
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
 (

2
0

1
2

-1
3

 

re
v
e

rs
a

l)
-2

0
0

G

1
2

/1
3

 g
ro

w
th

 b
u

d
g

e
t 
c
a

rr
ie

d
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 t
o

 m
a

tc
h

 r
e

p
h

a
s
in

g
 o

f 

p
ro

je
c
t 
s
p

e
n

d

P
h

ili
p

 H
a

m
b

e
rg

e
r

P
ro

p
e

rt
y
 C

o
/F

M
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
 (

2
0

1
2

-1
3

 

re
v
e

rs
a

l)
-1

0
0

G

T
h

e
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 f
o

rw
a

rd
 t
o

 1
3

/1
4

 t
o

 m
a

tc
h

 t
h

e
 

re
p

h
a

s
in

g
 o

f 
p

ro
je

c
t 
s
p

e
n

d
 (

th
e

 p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
IT

 b
u

ild
in

g
 

m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 s
y
s
te

m
).

A
n

d
y
 P

a
rs

o
n

s

T
o

w
a

rd
s
 E

x
c
e

lle
n

c
e

-1
,5

0
0

R

P
ro

je
c
t 
p

a
u

s
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
s
ta

rt
 m

e
a

n
s
 t
h

a
t 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
a

lis
e

d
 f

ro
m

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

4
. 
  

P
h

ili
p

 H
a

m
b

e
rg

e
r

P
ro

p
e

rt
y
 C

o
/F

M
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
-2

5
1

G

F
Y

E
 o

f 
P

h
a

s
e

 1
 P

ro
p

e
rt

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 -

 f
u

lly
 

d
e

liv
e

re
d

.

A
n

d
y
 P

a
rs

o
n

s

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
lo

s
s
 m

a
k
in

g
 c

a
r 

p
a

rk
s

-1
5

0
R

A
lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 
u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
 (

P
&

D
) 

to
 s

e
c
u

re
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 f
ro

m
 

a
lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 c
a

r 
p

a
rk

s
.

A
n

d
y
 A

p
p

le
b

y

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
-7

5
G

D
e

liv
e

re
d

.
C

a
ro

lin
e

 B
ru

c
e

P
a

rk
in

g
 p

e
rm

it
 c

h
a

rg
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

-4
0

G
O

n
 t
a

rg
e

t,
 t
o

 b
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

F
in

la
y
 F

le
tt

292



M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 I
M

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2

2
0

1
3

-1
4

2
0

1
3

-1
4

 

R
A

G
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

O
ff

ic
e

r 
L

e
a

d

£
0

0
0

S
ta

tu
s

R
e

tu
rn

in
g

 P
a

rk
s
 t
o

 O
p

e
n

 S
p

a
c
e

-3
5

0
R

C
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h

e
 r

e
c
e

n
t 
c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 

a
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
 -

 m
o

re
 f

o
rm

a
l 
m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 r
e

g
im

e
s
 

re
in

s
ta

te
d

 i
n

 m
o

s
t 
p

a
rk

s
 o

ri
g

in
a

lly
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 t
o

 b
e

c
o

m
in

g
 

n
a

tu
ra

lis
e

d
 a

re
a

s
. 

1
4

/1
5

 g
ro

w
th

 b
id

 p
re

p
a

re
d

. 
1

3
/1

4
 o

n
e

-o
ff

 £
1

0
0

K
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

fu
n

d
in

g
 c

o
n

fi
rm

e
d

 t
o

 r
e

in
s
ta

te
 s

e
rv

ic
e

.

D
a

v
e

 C
o

rb
y
 /
 M

ic
k
 

W
y
n

n
e

T
ra

d
in

g
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 a

n
d

 P
ro

c
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
C

ri
m

e
 A

c
t 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 (

lin
k
e

d
 t
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
S

L
A

 w
it
h

 B
re

n
t 

tr
a

d
in

g
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
)

-5
0

A

S
u

b
je

c
t 
to

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
p

ro
s
e

c
u

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
ri

m
in

a
l 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
, 
b

u
t 

lik
e

ly
 t
o

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

is
 y

e
a

r'
s
 s

a
v
in

g
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 c

a
s
e

s
. 

F
in

la
y
 F

le
tt

C
lim

a
te

 C
h

a
n

g
e

 -
 F

le
x
ib

le
 r

e
ti
re

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 

c
o

n
s
u

m
a

b
le

s
 b

u
d

g
e

t
-3

1
G

L
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 a

n
d

 i
s
 s

u
b

je
c
t 
to

 c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

m
e

n
t 
o

f 

p
h

a
s
e

d
 r

e
ti
re

m
e

n
t

A
n

d
re

w
 B

a
k
e

r

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 
C

o
n

s
u

m
a

b
le

s
  

-1
0

0
G

D
e

liv
e

re
d

.
A

L
L

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

-1
0

0
G

1
3

/1
4

 s
a

v
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
. 
A

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

s
 t
o

 b
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 t
o

 

re
a

lis
e

 1
4

/1
5

 s
a

v
in

g
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

M
T

F
S

 r
e

fr
e

s
h

.

P
h

ili
p

 H
a

m
b

e
rg

e
r

R
e

d
u

c
e

 h
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 b
u

d
g

e
t 
 

-2
7

3
G

D
e

liv
e

re
d

, 
b

y
 c

h
a

n
g

in
g

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
im

e
s
.

D
a

v
e

 M
a

s
te

rs

P
u

b
lic

 R
e

a
lm

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
  

-6
4

4
R

P
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 l
in

k
e

d
 t
o

 P
R

IS
M

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ra

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
s
o

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

s
e

 i
s
 u

n
lik

e
ly

 i
n

 1
3

/1
4

. 
A

ls
o

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 

th
e

 r
e

c
e

n
t 
c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 a
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
 -

 R
e

in
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 

s
w

e
e

p
in

g
 i
n

 s
o

m
e

 n
o

n
 t
o

w
n

 c
e

n
tr

e
s
, 
p

a
rk

s
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

, 

g
a

te
s
 l
o

c
k
in

g
 i
n

 p
a

rk
s
 &

 c
e

m
e

te
ri

e
s
 a

n
d

 d
o

g
 w

a
s
te

 

c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
. 
1

4
/1

5
 g

ro
w

th
 b

id
s
 p

re
p

a
re

d
. 
1

3
/1

4
 o

n
e

-o
ff

 

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

 t
o

 r
e

in
s
ta

te
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

D
a

v
e

 C
o

rb
y
 /
 M

ic
k
 

W
y
n

n
e

T
ra

ff
ic

 &
 H

ig
h

w
a

y
s
 p

o
s
t 
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
s

-2
5

1
G

D
e

liv
e

re
d

, 
b

y
 c

h
a

n
g

in
g

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
im

e
s

D
a

v
id

 E
a

g
le

s
h

a
m

C
o

n
s
o

lid
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 w

it
h

in
 o

ld
 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

s
. 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 P

ro
je

c
t

-1
8

0
G

S
ta

ff
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
n

d
 n

e
w

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 n

o
w

 

c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

. 
A

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 w

a
s
 d

e
la

y
e

d
, 
th

e
 s

ta
ff

 

c
o

s
ts

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 c
o

n
ta

in
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 b

u
d

g
e

ts
 o

f 
P

ro
p

e
rt

y
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
.

A
n

d
y
 P

a
rs

o
n

s

C
o

s
t 
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
m

a
in

ta
in

in
g

 p
a

rk
in

g
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t
-3

0
G

A
c
h

ie
v
e

d
.

A
n

d
y
 A

p
p

le
b

y

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 t
h

e
 H

a
rr

o
w

 H
o

m
e

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

A
g

e
n

c
y
 a

s
 a

 s
ta

n
d

 a
lo

n
e

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
. 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 P

ro
je

c
t

-7
5

R

N
o

t 
p

ro
c
e

e
d

in
g

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l.
 A

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 t
o

 b
e

 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

M
T

F
S

 r
e

fr
e

s
h

.

A
n

d
y
 P

a
rs

o
n

s

293



M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 I
M

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2

2
0

1
3

-1
4

2
0

1
3

-1
4

 

R
A

G
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

O
ff

ic
e

r 
L

e
a

d

£
0

0
0

S
ta

tu
s

S
o

ft
 M

a
rk

e
t 
te

s
ti
n

g
 o

f 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 a

n
im

a
l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

a
n

d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
a

n
im

a
l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s

-6
0

R
N

o
t 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
.

F
in

la
y
 F

le
tt

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

C
T

V
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
ro

o
m

 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 n

ig
h

t
-3

0
R

N
o

t 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 
A

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 s
a

v
in

g
 t
o

 b
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 M
T

F
S

 r
e

fr
e

s
h

.

F
in

la
y
 F

le
tt

R
e

v
ie

w
 B

re
n

t-
H

a
rr

o
w

 T
ra

d
in

g
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 

c
o

n
s
o

rt
iu

m
 a

n
d

 /
 o

r 
p

ro
v
id

e
 T

ra
d

in
g

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 

o
n

 a
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 s

c
a

le
. 

-1
4

0
A

N
o

 a
c
tu

a
ls

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

d
, 
a

w
a

it
in

g
 f

o
r 

c
o

n
fi
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 

a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t,
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 
to

 b
e

 o
n

 t
ra

c
k

F
in

la
y
 F

le
tt

R
e

v
ie

w
 T

ra
d

e
 W

a
s
te

-2
2

0
R

T
h

e
 o

p
ti
o

n
 t
o

 c
e

a
s
e

 t
ra

d
e

 w
a

s
te

 i
s
 n

o
t 
p

u
rs

u
e

d
, 
in

s
te

a
d

 

s
e

e
k
in

g
 t
o

 r
e

ta
in

 a
n

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

. 
 A

 d
e

ta
ile

d
 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

. 
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
re

in
s
ta

te
d

 i
n

 

1
3

/1
4

 t
o

 g
iv

e
 t
im

e
 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

, 
a

n
d

 d
e

liv
e

r 
a

 

p
h

a
s
e

d
 s

a
v
in

g
 i
n

 f
u

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

.

A
la

n
 W

h
it
in

g

U
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 c

le
a

n
in

g
 o

f 

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 o

n
ly

 t
o

 t
h

e
 m

in
im

u
m

 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
 f

o
r 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

. 
-1

0
0

R

T
h

e
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 s

a
v
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 r

e
-t

e
n

d
e

r 
o

f 
c
le

a
n

in
g

 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
d

id
 n

o
t 
m

a
te

ri
a

lis
e

. 
T

o
 a

d
o

p
t 
a

 c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 l
a

n
d

lo
rd

 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

, 
e

ff
o

rt
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d

e
 o

n
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

in
g

 a
lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 f

ro
m

 b
u

ild
in

g
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
g

g
re

g
a

ti
o

n
. 

A
n

d
y
 P

a
rs

o
n

s

T
O

T
A

L
 E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
 S

A
V

IN
G

S
-4

,9
5

0
0

E
N

T
E

R
P

R
IS

E
 S

A
V

IN
G

S
:

R
e

s
id

u
a

l 
fr

o
m

 M
a

jo
r 

P
ro

je
c
ts

 b
u

d
g

e
t

-2
5

G
D

e
liv

e
re

d
.

S
te

p
h

e
n

 K
e

lly

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 o

n
 N

o
rt

h
g

a
te

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t

-6
G

D
e

liv
e

re
d

.
S

te
p

h
e

n
 K

e
lly

E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

  
P

o
s
t 
D

e
le

ti
o

n
s
  

-1
,0

8
3

G
D

e
liv

e
re

d
.

S
te

p
h

e
n

 

K
e

lly
/C

a
ro

lin
e

 

B
ru

c
e

E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 C
o

n
s
u

m
a

b
le

s
  

-9
3

G
D

e
liv

e
re

d
.

S
te

p
h

e
n

 

K
e

lly
/P

L
C

C

T
O

T
A

L
 E

N
T

E
R

P
R

IS
E

 S
A

V
IN

G
S

-1
,2

0
7

0
0

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
 S

a
v
in

g
s
 -

 o
th

e
rs

-1
4

0
R

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
y
e

t 
to

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 p
o

s
s
ib

le
 t
a

rg
e

ts

V
e

n
e

ti
a

 R
e

id
-

B
a

p
ti
s
te

294



M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 I
M

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2

2
0

1
3

-1
4

2
0

1
3

-1
4

 

R
A

G
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

O
ff

ic
e

r 
L

e
a

d

£
0

0
0

S
ta

tu
s

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
- 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 R
e

v
ie

w
-3

5
0

A

D
o

V
 w

it
h

 F
R

A
IK

IN
 n

o
w

 s
ig

n
e

d
. 
P

a
rt

 y
e

a
r 

s
a

v
in

g
 £

3
1

9
K

 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 i
n

 1
3

/1
4

. 
£

2
6

3
K

 i
n

 E
&

E
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
t 
re

a
lis

e
d

 i
n

 

C
h

ild
re

n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
.

P
h

ili
p

 H
a

m
b

e
rg

e
r

E
x

is
ti

n
g

 p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
T

o
ta

l
-4

9
0

0

T
o

ta
l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 E

n
te

rp
ri

s
e

 S
a

v
in

g
s

-7
,0

2
1

0

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 
T

a
rg

e
ts

 R
e

a
ll
o

c
a

te
d

 C
ro

s
s

 C
o

u
n

c
il

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
- 

C
a

te
g

o
ry

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
s
a

v
in

g
s

-7
6

R
S

o
u

rc
e

 o
f 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 t
o

 b
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 

(P
a

u
l 
S

m
it
h

)

A
g

e
n

c
y
 S

ta
ff

 -
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 u
s
a

g
e

-1
6

0
A

S
a

v
in

g
s
 A

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 h

is
to

ri
c
a

l 

a
c
tu

a
ls

 t
h

a
t 
w

e
re

 h
ig

h
e

r 
d

u
e

 t
o

 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 a

n
d

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
M

T
F

S
 a

n
d

 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 

s
a

v
in

g
s
. 
 D

o
u

b
le

 c
o

u
n

t 
w

it
h

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 a

b
o

v
e

. 

A
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
ra

in
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
a

s
 m

u
c
h

 a
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 i
n

 1
3

/1
4

. 
It
 i
s
 

a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
s
a

v
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n

 1
4

/1
5

. 

P
h

ili
p

 H
a

m
b

e
rg

e
r

S
ta

ff
in

g
 -

 V
a

c
a

n
c
y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
-1

5
0

A

S
a

v
in

g
s
 A

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 h

is
to

ri
c
a

l 

a
c
tu

a
ls

 t
h

a
t 
w

e
re

 h
ig

h
e

r 
d

u
e

 t
o

 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 a

n
d

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
M

T
F

S
 a

n
d

 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 

s
a

v
in

g
s
. 
 D

o
u

b
le

 c
o

u
n

t 
w

it
h

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 a

b
o

v
e

. 

A
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
ra

in
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
a

s
 m

u
c
h

 a
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 i
n

 1
3

/1
4

. 
It
 i
s
 

a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
s
a

v
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n

 1
4

/1
5

. 

P
h

ili
p

 H
a

m
b

e
rg

e
r

R
e

c
h

a
rg

e
 u

ti
lit

y
 c

o
s
ts

 f
o

r 
c
o

m
p

u
te

r 
ro

o
m

 t
o

 

C
a

p
it
a

-8
3

G

N
e

w
 r

e
c
h

a
rg

e
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 b
e

 b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 a

c
tu

a
l 
u

ti
lit

y
 c

o
s
t.
 A

 

m
e

te
r 

to
 b

e
 i
n

s
ta

lle
d

 t
o

 m
e

a
s
u

re
 t
h

e
 c

o
n

s
u

m
p

ti
o

n
 

s
e

p
a

ra
te

ly
. 
C

a
p

it
a

 w
ill

 b
e

 i
n

v
o

ic
e

d
 o

n
c
e

 a
 g

o
o

d
 s

a
m

p
le

 o
f 

d
a

ta
 i
s
 o

b
ta

in
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
g

re
e

d
 w

it
h

 C
a

p
it
a

.

A
n

d
y
 P

a
rs

o
n

s

-4
6

9
0

N
e

t 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 E

n
te

rp
ri

s
e

-4
,9

3
8

0

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

, 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 A

N
D

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

295



M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 I
M

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2

2
0

1
3

-1
4

2
0

1
3

-1
4

 

R
A

G
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

O
ff

ic
e

r 
L

e
a

d

£
0

0
0

S
ta

tu
s

H
o

m
e

le
s
s
n

e
s
s
 [
1

0
0

 f
a

m
ili

e
s
 &

 a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 B

&
B

 

H
B

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
]

-2
5

0
A

£
1

5
0

k
 f

la
g

g
e

d
 u

p
 a

s
 u

n
a

c
h

ie
v
a

b
le

 i
n

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 a
n

d
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 m

a
d

e
 e

ls
e

w
h

e
re

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 p

a
n

e
l 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 t
o

 c
o

v
e

r 
th

is
 a

m
o

u
n

t.
 S

a
v
in

g
 t
h

e
n

 r
e

-i
n

s
ta

te
d

 b
y
 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

 d
u

e
 t
o

 d
e

la
y
 i
n

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
u

n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
c
re

d
it
, 

b
u

t 
s
ti
ll 

n
o

t 
c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
o

 b
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
a

b
le

 o
n

 a
 p

e
rm

a
n

e
n

t 

b
a

s
is

 b
y
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

, 
a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 i
t 
m

a
y
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
ra

b
le

 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

h
o

rt
 

te
rm

. 
 I
n

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 c
o

m
p

e
n

s
a

to
ry

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 a
v
o

id
 t
h

is
 

b
e

in
g

 o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

t.

J
o

n
 D

a
lt
o

n

H
o

m
e

le
s
s
n

e
s
s

1
,0

0
0

A
Im

p
a

c
t 
o

f 
w

e
lf
a

re
 r

e
fo

rm
 n

o
t 
y
e

t 
k
n

o
w

n
. 
W

e
 b

e
lie

v
e

 w
e

 c
a

n
 

m
e

e
t 
fr

o
m

 w
it
h

in
 t
h

e
s
e

 f
ig

u
re

s
, 
b

u
t 
d

e
la

y
 i
n

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

m
a

y
 r

e
s
u

lt
 i
n

 m
o

v
e

m
e

n
t 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 y

e
a

rs
.

J
o

n
 D

a
lt
o

n

In
v
e

s
t 
to

 S
a

v
e

 i
n

 P
S

L
2

8
9

A

D
u

e
 t
o

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

f 
w

e
lf
a

re
 r

e
fo

rm
, 
it
 h

a
s
 p

ro
v
e

n
 m

o
re

 

d
if
fi
c
u

lt
 t
h

a
n

 a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
o

 s
o

u
rc

e
 n

e
w

 p
ri

v
a

te
-s

e
c
to

r 

p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 t
o

 l
e

a
s
e

 a
s
 l
a

n
d

lo
rd

s
 a

re
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
ly

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
e

d
 

a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
fo

r 
lo

s
s
 o

f 
in

c
o

m
e

. 
T

h
is

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

 i
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 o

f 
b

e
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 i
t 
m

o
re

 a
tt
ra

c
ti
v
e

, 
b

u
t 
w

e
 

a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

 t
h

a
t 
w

e
 w

ill
 u

s
e

 t
h

is
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
b

y
 t
h

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

2
0

1
4

-1
5

. 
 J

o
n

 D
a

lt
o

n

H
o

u
s

in
g

 G
e

n
e

ra
l 
F

u
n

d
1

,0
3

9

D
e

m
o

g
ra

p
h

ic
 G

ro
w

th
2

,8
0

0

A

H
ig

h
 r

is
k
 d

e
m

a
n

d
-l

e
d

 b
u

d
g

e
t 
re

q
u

ir
in

g
 o

n
-g

o
in

g
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
; 

th
is

 e
x
c
lu

d
e

s
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
C

o
n

ti
n

u
in

g
 C

a
re

 s
h

if
ts

 w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 

a
s
s
u

m
e

d
 t
o

 b
e

 c
o

v
e

re
d

 b
y
 t
h

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 C

o
n

ti
n

g
e

n
c
y
.

V
is

v
a

 S
a

th
a

s
iv

a
m

M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 P
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
5

0

G

V
is

v
a

 S
a

th
a

s
iv

a
m

W
e

s
t 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 A

lli
a

n
c
e

1
0

G
C

h
ri

s
 G

re
e

n
w

a
y

A
d

u
lt

s
2

,8
6

0

C
u

lt
u

ra
l 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 R

e
v
ie

w
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
-1

5
0

G
G

ro
w

th
 i
n

 1
2

/1
3

 n
o

w
 r

e
v
e

rs
e

d
.

?

L
o

n
d

o
n

 Y
o

u
th

 G
a

m
e

s
8

G
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 a

g
re

e
d

 w
it
h

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 C
o

u
n

c
ils

.
?

U
n

d
e

r 
O

n
e

 S
k
y

2
5

G
P

la
n

s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 f
u

lly
 u

ti
lis

e
 t
h

is
 f

u
n

d
in

g
.

?

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 
w

e
lf
a

re
 a

d
v
ic

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
9

0
G

P
la

n
s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 f
u

lly
 u

ti
lis

e
 t
h

is
 f

u
n

d
in

g
.

?

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 &

 C
u

lt
u

re
-2

7

296



M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 I
M

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2

2
0

1
3

-1
4

2
0

1
3

-1
4

 

R
A

G
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

O
ff

ic
e

r 
L

e
a

d

£
0

0
0

S
ta

tu
s

T
o

ta
l 
In

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

3
,8

7
2

S
a

v
in

g
s

H
o

u
s
in

g
 N

e
e

d
s
 -

 P
ri

v
a

te
 S

e
c
to

r 
L

e
a

s
in

g
 S

c
h

e
m

e
G

J
o

n
 D

a
lt
o

n

H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 R

e
v
ie

w
G

P
a

rt
ia

l 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 (

c
.5

0
%

) 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
, 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
m

a
in

d
e

r 
s
ti
ll 

to
 

b
e

 f
o

u
n

d
. 
W

e
 b

e
lie

v
e

 i
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
th

is
.

A
lis

o
n

 P
e

g
g

/J
a

n
e

 

F
e

rn
le

y
/J

o
n

 

D
a

lt
o

n

R
e

a
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 t
im

e
 f

ro
m

 G
F

 t
o

 H
R

A
-2

1
5

G

A
lr

e
a

d
y
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d

A
lis

o
n

 P
e

g
g

/J
a

n
e

 

F
e

rn
le

y
/J

o
n

 

D
a

lt
o

n

D
e

le
ti
o

n
 o

f 
v
a

c
a

n
t 
E

n
a

b
lin

g
 P

ro
je

c
t 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

P
o

s
t

-3
6

G

P
o

s
t 
a

lr
e

a
d

y
 d

e
le

te
d

.

A
lis

o
n

 P
e

g
g

/J
a

n
e

 

F
e

rn
le

y

In
v
e

s
t 
to

 S
a

v
e

 -
 c

a
s
h

 i
n

c
e

n
ti
v
e

s
-4

8
G

C
a

s
h

 i
n

c
e

n
ti
v
e

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 n

o
w

 o
ff

ic
ia

lly
 l
a

u
n

c
h

e
d

 a
n

d
 h

ig
h

 

le
v
e

ls
 o

f 
in

te
re

s
t 
a

lr
e

a
d

y
 e

x
p

re
s
s
e

d
. 
W

e
 b

e
lie

v
e

 t
h

e
 t
o

ta
l 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 c

a
n

 b
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 b
y
 t
h

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

2
0

1
4

-1
5

.

J
o

n
 D

a
lt
o

n
/J

a
n

e
 

F
e

rn
le

y

A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 P

S
L

 a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
-2

4
0

A
D

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

f 
w

e
lf
a

re
 r

e
fo

rm
, 
it
 h

a
s
 p

ro
v
e

n
 m

o
re

 

d
if
fi
c
u

lt
 t
h

a
n

 a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
o

 s
o

u
rc

e
 n

e
w

 p
ri

v
a

te
-s

e
c
to

r 

p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 t
o

 l
e

a
s
e

 a
s
 l
a

n
d

lo
rd

s
 a

re
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
ly

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
e

d
 

a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
fo

r 
lo

s
s
 o

f 
in

c
o

m
e

. 
T

h
is

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

 i
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 o

f 
b

e
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 i
t 
m

o
re

 a
tt
ra

c
ti
v
e

, 
b

u
t 
w

e
 

a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

 t
h

a
t 
w

e
 w

ill
 g

e
n

e
ra

te
 t
h

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 b

y
 t
h

e
 

e
n

d
 o

f 
2

0
1

4
-1

5
. 
 

J
o

n
 D

a
lt
o

n

R
e

d
u

c
e

d
 c

o
s
ts

 a
t 
T

ra
v
e

lle
rs

 S
it
e

-1
0

G
T

o
n

i 
B

u
rk

e

L
a

te
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 -

 v
a

c
a

n
c
y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
-1

6
R

U
n

lik
e

ly
 t
o

 b
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 v
ia

 t
h

is
 r

o
u

te
 b

u
t 
e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 b
e

 

d
e

liv
e

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
c
o

m
p

e
n

s
a

to
ry

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

A
ll

L
a

te
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 -

 a
g

e
n

c
y
 c

o
s
ts

-1
7

R
U

n
lik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 v
ia

 t
h

is
 r

o
u

te
 b

u
t 
e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 b
e

 

d
e

liv
e

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
c
o

m
p

e
n

s
a

to
ry

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

A
ll

L
a

te
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 -

 r
e

d
u

c
e

d
 i
n

fl
a

ti
o

n
 a

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
-6

G

P
ro

b
a

b
ly

 c
o

n
ta

in
a

b
le

 b
u

t 
n

o
t 
y
e

t 
a

llo
c
a

te
d

 t
o

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 a
re

a
s
.

A
ll

297



M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 I
M

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2

2
0

1
3

-1
4

2
0

1
3

-1
4

 

R
A

G
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

O
ff

ic
e

r 
L

e
a

d

£
0

0
0

S
ta

tu
s

E
m

p
ty

 H
o

m
e

s
 I
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

G

B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 e

x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

, 
th

is
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
a

b
le

.

A
lis

o
n

 P
e

g
g

H
o

u
s

in
g

 G
e

n
e

ra
l 
F

u
n

d
-5

8
7

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
- 

m
a

n
a

g
in

g
 i
n

fl
a

ti
o

n
-1

0
0

G
A

c
h

ie
v
e

d
C

h
ri

s
 G

re
e

n
w

a
y

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
- 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
-1

5
0

G
A

c
h

ie
v
e

d
C

h
ri

s
 G

re
e

n
w

a
y

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
- 

H
o

m
e

 c
a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

-9
0

0

G

A
c
h

ie
v
e

d

V
is

v
a

 S
a

th
a

s
iv

a
m

 

/ 
C

h
ri

s
 G

re
e

n
w

a
y

W
L

A
 J

o
in

t 
P

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t:
 A

P
C

 R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
C

a
re

-1
5

0

G

U
n

c
e

rt
a

in
 t
h

a
t 
c
o

n
ti
n

u
in

g
 t
o

 p
la

c
e

 a
t 
A

P
C

 r
a

te
s
 w

ill
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
s
a

v
in

g
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 w

e
 b

e
lie

v
e

 i
t 
is

 l
ik

e
ly

 

g
iv

e
n

 t
h

e
 p

a
rt

-y
e

a
r 

e
ff

e
c
t 
o

f 
2

0
1

2
/1

3
 p

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
T

h
is

 

n
e

e
d

s
 t
o

 b
e

 m
o

n
it
o

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 y

e
a

r.

V
is

v
a

 S
a

th
a

s
iv

a
m

C
N

W
L

: 
M

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
-1

0
0

G
T

h
is

 s
a

v
in

g
 i
s
 d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
o

n
 C

N
W

L
 m

a
n

a
g

in
g

 w
it
h

in
 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
a

n
d

 c
o

n
ta

in
in

g
 a

n
y
 p

re
s
s
u

re
s
 t
h

a
t 
a

ri
s
e

 f
ro

m
 

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r.
 I
n

 a
d

d
it
io

n
, 
th

e
re

 a
re

 h
is

to
ri

c
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 

re
g

a
rd

in
g

 C
N

W
L

's
 a

b
ili

ty
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
e

n
v
e

lo
p

e
.

V
is

v
a

 S
a

th
a

s
iv

a
m

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
C

a
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 R
e

v
ie

w
-1

,5
5

0
R

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 B

a
s
e

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
7

7
5

R

D
a

y
 C

a
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 R
e

v
ie

w
-3

0
0

R
T

h
e

re
 a

re
 p

re
s
s
u

re
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
is

 s
a

v
in

g
 a

s
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 f
e

e
d

b
a

c
k
; 
In

 a
d

d
it
io

n
 s

ta
ff

 

n
o

ti
c
e

 p
e

ri
o

d
s
 e

tc
 w

ill
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 b
e

 f
a

c
to

re
d

 i
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

ti
m

e
s
c
a

le
s
 t
h

u
s
 d

e
la

y
in

g
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 d

a
te

 a
n

d
 

th
e

re
fo

re
 t
h

e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
; 
S

o
m

e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 t
o

 d
a

te
 h

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 h

a
v
e

 

b
e

e
n

 r
e

c
o

g
n

is
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 a

re
 d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 c

lo
s
u

re
 o

f 
B

e
n

tl
e

y
 D

a
y
 C

e
n

tr
e

 

b
y
 3

1
.1

2
.2

0
1

3

J
o

n
a

th
a

n
 P

ri
c
e

R
e

a
b

le
m

e
n

t
-9

0
0

G
P

la
n

s
 t
o

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

is
 a

re
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

, 
b

u
t 
w

ill
 n

e
e

d
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 a

lo
n

g
s
id

e
 o

th
e

r 
p

u
rc

h
a

s
in

g
 b

u
d

g
e

ts
 a

s
 t
h

e
s
e

 

c
a

n
 b

e
 v

e
ry

 v
o

la
ti
le

. 

J
o

n
a

th
a

n
 P

ri
c
e

C
e

s
s
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

u
n

d
in

g
 f

o
r 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 C
lu

b
s

-7
5

G
F

u
n

d
in

g
 f

o
r 

tr
a

n
s
p

o
rt

 s
to

p
p

e
d

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

J
o

n
a

th
a

n
 P

ri
c
e

J
o

n
a

th
a

n
 P

ri
c
e

It
 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
a

 n
e

w
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 b
y
 1

 

J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
4

 a
n

d
 3

/1
2

 m
th

s
 o

f 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 o

f 

298



M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 I
M

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2

2
0

1
3

-1
4

2
0

1
3

-1
4

 

R
A

G
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

O
ff

ic
e

r 
L

e
a

d

£
0

0
0

S
ta

tu
s

S
e

c
u

re
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
e

a
rm

a
rk

e
d

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
fr

o
m

 C
C

G
 

in
 A

d
u

lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

-5
0

0

A

D
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
o

n
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

C
G

 t
o

 a
g

re
e

 

th
a

t 
th

e
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
g

ra
n

t 
fu

n
d

in
g

 c
a

n
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a

n
 n

e
w

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

. 
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
a

 r
is

k
 a

ro
u

n
d

 

th
e

 o
n

g
o

in
g

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
s
h

ip
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

C
G

.

C
a

ro
l 
Y

a
rd

e

D
e

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 G

re
e

n
v
ie

w
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
-2

3
0

G

A
c
ti
o

n
e

d
 i
n

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

V
is

v
a

 S
a

th
a

s
iv

a
m

O
c
c
u

p
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
T

h
e

ra
p

y
-2

3
0

A
C

a
p

it
a

lis
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 c

o
s
ts

 m
a

y
 b

e
 a

 r
is

k
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 i
s
 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 w

it
h

 T
e

c
h

n
ic

a
l 
F

in
a

n
c
e

 t
o

 a
v
o

id
 

fu
tu

re
 a

u
d

it
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

.

V
is

v
a

 S
a

th
a

s
iv

a
m

L
a

te
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 -

 v
a

c
a

n
c
y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
-6

9

R
U

n
lik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 v
ia

 t
h

is
 r

o
u

te
 b

u
t 
e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 b
e

 

d
e

liv
e

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 

d
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 

A
ll

L
a

te
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 -

 a
g

e
n

c
y
 c

o
s
ts

-7
3

R
U

n
lik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 v
ia

 t
h

is
 r

o
u

te
 b

u
t 
e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 b
e

 

d
e

liv
e

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 

d
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 

A
ll

L
a

te
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 -

 r
e

d
u

c
e

d
 i
n

fl
a

ti
o

n
 a

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
-1

9
7

G
P

ro
b

a
b

ly
 c

o
n

ta
in

a
b

le
 b

u
t 
in

te
rl

in
k
e

d
 w

it
h

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 o
n

 

o
v
e

ra
ll 

p
u

rc
h

a
s
in

g
 b

u
d

g
e

t.

A
ll

A
d

u
lt

s
-4

,7
4

9

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 r

e
p

ro
v
is

io
n

-4
8

G
T

h
e

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 
s
a

la
ri

e
s
 b

u
d

g
e

ts
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 r
e

d
u

c
e

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 

s
a

v
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
.

L
ib

ra
ri

e
s
 T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 2

-2
5

G
T

h
is

 w
ill

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

o
u

ts
o

u
rc

in
g

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

je
c
t.

C
u

lt
u

ra
l 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 R

e
v
ie

w
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
 -

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 

s
u

b
je

c
t 
to

 t
e

n
d

e
r 

w
it
h

 E
a

lin
g

 &
 B

re
n

t
-2

0
0

A

It
 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 w
ill

 c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

 o
n

 1
/9

/1
3

. 
 

D
u

e
 t
o

 t
h

e
 l
a

te
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 

c
o

s
ts

 o
f 

e
x
te

n
d

in
g

 t
h

e
 L

e
is

u
re

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t,
 n

o
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

m
a

d
e

 i
n

 1
3

-1
4

 a
n

d
 a

t 
P

e
ri

o
d

 3
, 
a

 f
o

re
c
a

s
t 
o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 o

f 

£
2

2
9

k
 o

n
 L

ib
ra

ri
e

s
 a

n
d

 L
e

is
u

re
 i
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

. 
 A

d
d

it
io

n
a

lly
, 

s
o

m
e

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 f

o
r 

m
o

b
ili

s
a

ti
o

n
 c

o
s
ts

, 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 I
T

 c
o

s
ts

 i
.e

. 
u

n
c
o

u
p

lin
g

 t
h

e
 I
T

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

 

A
p

p
ro

x
im

a
te

 c
o

s
t 
fo

r 
th

is
 i
s
 £

1
4

5
k
. 
T

h
is

 c
o

s
t 
h

a
s
 n

o
t 
b

e
e

n
 

in
c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
v
e

n
u

e
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 a

t 
P

e
ri

o
d

 3
.

299



M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 I
M

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2

2
0

1
3

-1
4

2
0

1
3

-1
4

 

R
A

G
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

O
ff

ic
e

r 
L

e
a

d

£
0

0
0

S
ta

tu
s

R
e

d
u

c
e

 A
d

u
lt
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 S

u
b

s
id

y
-7

3

G
K

e
n

to
n

 L
e

a
rn

in
g

 C
e

n
tr

e
 h

a
v
e

 a
g

re
e

d
 t
o

 f
u

n
d

 t
h

e
 r

u
n

n
in

g
 

c
o

s
ts

 £
2

4
k
.

P
la

n
s
 a

re
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

r 
to

 b
e

 f
u

n
d

e
d

 

fr
o

m
 t
h

e
 g

ra
n

t 
fr

o
m

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

.

R
e

d
u

c
e

 s
u

b
s
id

y
 t
o

 h
a

rr
o

w
 y

o
u

n
g

 m
u

s
ic

ia
n

s
-2

8

G
A

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 i
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t
o

 H
a

rr
o

w
 Y

o
u

n
g

 M
u

s
ic

ia
n

s
; 

g
ra

n
t 
re

d
u

c
e

d
 b

y
 5

0
%

 i
n

 1
3

/1
4

.

S
h

a
re

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 C

o
h

e
s
io

n
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 C

o
u

n
c
il

-6
3

R
T

h
e

 s
a

v
in

g
 a

s
s
u

m
e

s
 t
h

e
 d

e
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
1

 F
T

E
 w

it
h

 e
ff

e
c
t 
fr

o
m

 

1
/4

/1
3

. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t
h

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 o

n
ly

 c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

d
 

a
n

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 n
o

ti
c
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
n

ly
 p

a
rt

 y
e

a
r 

e
ff

e
c
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 i
n

 1
3

/1
4

. 
 P

e
ri

o
d

 3
 a

s
s
u

m
e

s
 t
h

e
 p

o
s
t 
is

 d
e

le
te

d
 

3
0

/1
2

/1
3

. 
U

n
lik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
.

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
lis

a
ti
o

n
 H

a
tc

h
 E

n
d

 P
o

o
l,
 A

rt
s
 C

e
n

tr
e

, 

M
u

s
e

u
m

 &
 B

a
n

n
is

te
r 

s
ta

d
iu

m
-1

1
7

R

T
h

e
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 a

g
re

e
d

 b
y
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
, 
a

h
e

a
d

 o
f 

th
e

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
th

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e

 w
e

re
 e

x
tr

e
m

e
ly

 

c
h

a
lle

n
g

in
g

, 
a

n
d

 a
s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 n

o
t 
c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

c
h

ie
v
a

b
le

 f
o

r 

e
it
h

e
r 

th
e

 M
u

s
e

u
m

 [
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

lo
s
e

d
 u

n
ti
l 
p

o
te

n
ti
a

lly
 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4

 d
u

e
 t
o

 T
it
h

e
 B

a
rn

 w
o

rk
s
] 
o

r 
th

e
 A

rt
s
 C

e
n

tr
e

. 

A
 C

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

lis
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
je

c
t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 s

e
t 
u

p
 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
a

n
d

 i
n

d
ic

a
te

 t
h

a
t 
th

is
 s

a
v
in

g
 m

a
y
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
ra

b
le

 i
n

 a
 

lo
n

g
e

r 
ti
m

e
 f

ra
m

e
, 
re

q
u

ir
in

g
 c

o
m

p
e

n
s
a

to
ry

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 t
o

 b
e

 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

h
o

rt
e

r 
te

rm
.

R
e

v
ie

w
 m

a
in

 g
ra

n
ts

 b
u

d
g

e
t

-6
9

G
T

h
is

 r
e

d
u

c
e

s
 t
h

e
 S

L
A

 g
ra

n
t 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
b

y
 1

0
%

 t
o

 £
6

0
0

k
. 
 

G
ra

n
ts

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
llo

c
a

te
d

 f
o

r 
1

3
/1

4
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
.

R
e

d
u

c
e

 o
ff

ic
e

r 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
g

ra
n

ts
-4

0

A

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 2

 F
T

 s
ta

ff
 i
n

 1
.5

 P
T

 p
o

s
ts

. 
 O

n
e

 s
ta

ff
 

m
e

m
b

e
r 

m
a

y
 w

is
h

 t
o

 m
o

v
e

 t
o

 P
T

 w
o

rk
in

g
, 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
th

e
 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 o

n
 l
o

n
g

 t
e

rm
 s

ic
k
 l
e

a
v
e

. 
 I
f 

th
is

 d
o

e
s
 

n
o

t 
h

a
p

p
e

n
, 
a

 m
in

i 
re

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
. 
 P

e
ri

o
d

 3
 

p
re

s
u

m
e

s
 o

n
e

 s
ta

ff
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
w

ill
 b

e
 P

T
 f

ro
m

 1
/9

/1
3

.

O
n

e
 o

ff
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 f

o
r 

v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 

s
e

c
to

r
-4

0

G

G
ro

w
th

 i
n

 1
2

/1
3

 n
o

w
 r

e
v
e

rs
e

d

L
ib

ra
ri

e
s
 T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 2

 -
re

v
e

rs
a

l 
o

f 
o

n
e

 o
ff

 

in
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 2
0

1
2

-1
3

-1
5

0

G

G
ro

w
th

 i
n

 1
2

/1
3

 n
o

w
 r

e
v
e

rs
e

d

300



M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 I
M

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2

2
0

1
3

-1
4

2
0

1
3

-1
4

 

R
A

G
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

O
ff

ic
e

r 
L

e
a

d

£
0

0
0

S
ta

tu
s

C
o

m
b

in
e

 G
a

y
to

n
 &

 C
iv

ic
 C

e
n

tr
e

 L
ib

ra
ri

e
s

-7
5

A
D

e
la

y
 i
n

 H
is

to
ry

 L
ib

ra
ry

 t
o

 M
u

s
e

u
m

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

b
in

in
g

 G
a

y
to

n
 

a
n

d
 C

iv
ic

 C
e

n
tr

e
 L

ib
ra

ri
e

s
.

L
a

te
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 -

 v
a

c
a

n
c
y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
-2

5

R
U

n
lik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 v
ia

 t
h

is
 r

o
u

te
 g

iv
e

n
 l
o

w
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 

v
a

c
a

n
t 
p

o
s
ts

 b
u

t 
e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 b
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
c
o

m
p

e
n

s
a

to
ry

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 

d
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

L
a

te
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 -

 a
g

e
n

c
y
 c

o
s
ts

-2
7

R

U
n

lik
e

ly
 t
o

 b
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 v
ia

 t
h

is
 r

o
u

te
 g

iv
e

n
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 a

g
e

n
c
y
 

s
p

e
n

d
 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

 i
s
 l
o

w
e

r 
th

a
n

 t
h

e
 t
a

rg
e

t 
a

llo
c
a

te
d

. 
 

E
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 b
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
o

f 

c
o

m
p

e
n

s
a

to
ry

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

.

L
a

te
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 -

 r
e

d
u

c
e

d
 i
n

fl
a

ti
o

n
 a

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
-1

1
G

A
c
h

ie
v
e

d

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 &

 C
u

lt
u

re
-9

9
1

-1
5

0
G

P
u

b
li
c

 H
e

a
lt

h
-1

5
0

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
S

a
v
in

g
s

-2
2

9
R

P
la

n
s
 s

ti
ll 

to
 b

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

T
o

ta
l 
S

a
v
in

g
s

-6
,8

5
7

N
e

t
-2

,9
8

5

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
 &

 F
A

M
IL

IE
S

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

In
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 C
L

A
 p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 
b

u
d

g
e

ts
 r

e
fl
e

c
ti
n

g
 

g
ro

w
th

 i
n

 c
h

ild
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 c
h

a
n

g
in

g
 

d
e

m
o

g
ra

p
h

ic

1
7

8
G

M
C

In
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 C
W

D
 c

lie
n

t 
c
o

s
ts

 r
e

fl
e

c
ti
n

g
 g

ro
w

th
 i
n

 

c
h

ild
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
8

2
G

R
R

In
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 s
ta

ff
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

 r
e

fl
e

c
ti
n

g
 g

ro
w

th
 i
n

 

c
h

ild
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 c
h

a
n

g
in

g
 d

e
m

o
g

ra
p

h
ic

1
5

3
G

M
C

L
o

s
s
 o

f 
Y

o
u

th
 J

u
s
ti
c
e

 B
o

a
rd

 f
u

n
d

in
g

9
0

G
M

C

T
ra

n
s
fe

r
o

f
d

u
ti
e

s
in

re
s
p

e
c
t

o
f

n
e

w
d

u
ti
e

s
fo

r

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 o
n

 r
e

m
a

n
d

2
7

0
G

M
C

S
E

N
 p

o
s
t 
to

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 n
e

w
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 d
u

ti
e

s
5

0
G

R
R

Q
u

a
lif

ie
d

S
o

c
ia

l
W

o
rk

e
r

-
R

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t
&

R
e

te
n

ti
o

n
 M

a
rk

e
t 
S

u
p

p
le

m
e

n
t

1
5

0
G

M
C

301



M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 I
M

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2

2
0

1
3

-1
4

2
0

1
3

-1
4

 

R
A

G
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

O
ff

ic
e

r 
L

e
a

d

£
0

0
0

S
ta

tu
s

C
re

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
A

d
v
a

n
c
e

d
 P

ra
c
ti
ti
o

n
e

r 
S

W
 p

o
s
ts

3
1

0
G

M
C

P
ri

n
c
ip

a
l 
S

o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

e
r 

ro
le

 -
 p

o
s
t-

M
u

n
ro

7
0

G
C

D

H
e

a
lt
h

 C
o

-o
rd

in
a

to
r 

p
o

s
t 
a

t 
N

W
P

5
0

G
M

C

Y
o

u
th

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
7

0
G

R
S

/W
B

P
ro

je
c
t

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

C
o

s
ts

in
c
lu

d
in

g
S

N
T

,

C
h

ild
re

n
's

C
e

n
tr

e
re

m
o

d
e

lli
n

g
a

n
d

d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

n
e

w
 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

9
7

G

R
R

S
h

o
rt

fa
ll

in
ta

rg
e

te
d

s
a

v
in

g
s

fr
o

m
b

u
s
in

e
s
s

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 m
o

d
e

l
1

8
5

G
C

D

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 I
n

d
e

x
in

g
 S

c
a

n
n

in
g

 (
C

IS
) 

S
ta

ff
in

g
4

5
G

C
D

T
o

ta
l 
In

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t
1

,8
0

0

S
a

v
in

g
s

In
te

g
ra

te
d

 C
h

ild
re

n
's

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 -

 R
e

m
a

in
in

g
 

s
ta

ff
in

g
 s

a
v
in

g
s

-1
0

0
G

C
D

C
o

n
s
o

lid
a

ti
o

n
o

f
s
ta

ff
in

g
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
in

c
lu

d
in

g

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 d

e
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
1

 D
iv

is
io

n
a

l 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
p

o
s
t

-1
6

7
G

C
D

D
e

le
ti
o

n
 o

f 
H

e
a

d
 o

f 
E

S
S

O
-5

0
G

C
D

R
e

c
o

n
fi
g

u
ra

ti
o

n
o

f
E

a
rl

y
In

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
S

e
rv

ic
e

to

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 F

a
m

ili
e

s
 F

ir
s
t 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

-1
5

0
A

S
ta

ff
in

g
 n

o
t 
d

e
le

te
d

. 
S

a
v
in

g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 b

y
 T

ro
u

b
le

d
 F

a
m

ili
e

s
 

G
ra

n
t

R
S

/W
B

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 C
e

n
tr

e
s
 r

e
m

o
d

e
lli

n
g

-3
7

3
G

R
S

/W
B

S
p

e
c
ia

l
N

e
e

d
s

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

II
-

d
e

m
a

n
d

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

in
c
lu

d
in

g
In

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t
T

ra
v
e

l

T
ra

in
in

g

-5
6

G

R
R

S
p

e
c
ia

l
N

e
e

d
s

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

II
I

-
fu

ll
m

a
rk

e
t

e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

-4
0

G
R

R

In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o

n
o

f
C

h
a

rg
in

g
fo

r
n

o
n

S
ta

tu
to

ry

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
P

s
y
c
h

o
lo

g
y
 

-1
2

5
G

R
R

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
s
e

m
i 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
c
lo

s
u

re
 o

f 
H

o
n

e
y
p

o
t 
L

a
n

e
0

G
F

a
c
ili

ty
 t
o

 c
lo

s
e

 3
1

/1
0

/1
3

. 
E

a
rl

y
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
S

a
v
in

g
.

M
C

-1
2

0
G

P
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

 £
1

2
0

k
M

C

-1
5

5
G

A
llo

c
a

te
d

 t
o

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 £

1
5

5
k

-9
5

A
P

la
n

s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

, 
n

o
t 
y
e

t 
a

llo
c
a

te
d

 £
9

5
k

C
D

-2
5

0
R

N
o

 p
la

n
s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 £

2
5

0
k

C
D

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 p

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

302



M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 I
M

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2

2
0

1
3

-1
4

2
0

1
3

-1
4

 

R
A

G
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

O
ff

ic
e

r 
L

e
a

d

£
0

0
0

S
ta

tu
s

C
D

/R
S

/W
B

R
e

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
R

e
s
p

it
e

 C
a

re
 f

o
r 

C
W

D
 

0
G

R
R

C
o

n
s
o

lid
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
E

a
rl

y
 Y

e
a

rs
 t
ra

in
in

g
 f

u
n

c
ti
o

n
s

-1
0

0
G

C
D

/R
S

/W
B

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 S

a
v
in

g
s

-2
6

0
G

C
D

T
o

ta
l 
o

f 
C

h
il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 F

a
m

il
ie

s
 S

a
v
in

g
s

-2
,8

7
6

£
1

.9
2

m
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 S

A
V

IN
G

S
 -

 C
h

il
d

re
n

's
 

A
ll
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 

P
ri

c
e

s
 

-1
0

5
A

B
u

ilt
 i
n

to
 b

u
d

g
e

ts
. 
T

o
ta

l 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
fo

re
c
a

s
ti
n

g
 a

n
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
.

C
D

V
a

c
a

n
c
y
 R

a
te

 0
.5

%
 

-6
2

A
B

u
ilt

 i
n

to
 b

u
d

g
e

ts
. 
T

o
ta

l 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
fo

re
c
a

s
ti
n

g
 a

n
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
.

C
D

A
g

e
n

c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s

-6
6

A
B

u
ilt

 i
n

to
 b

u
d

g
e

ts
. 
T

o
ta

l 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
fo

re
c
a

s
ti
n

g
 a

n
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
.

C
D

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
-5

2
R

N
o

 p
la

n
s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
C

D

S
u

b
 t

o
ta

l
-2

8
5

N
e

t 
C

h
il
d

re
n

's
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
-1

,3
6

1

T
O

T
A

L
 A

L
L

 D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
A

T
E

S
-1

2
,1

7
1

S
a

v
in

g
s
 f

ro
m

 c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 b

u
d

g
e

ts
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

c
o

n
n

e
x
io

n
s
, 
p

a
re

n
ti
n

g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
, 
d

ru
g

s
 &

 a
lc

o
h

o
l 

a
n

d
 c

lin
ic

 i
n

 a
 b

o
x

-8
3

5
G

303



304

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3: Debt Management 
Council Tax 
Currently, bad debt provisions (BDP) of £3.493m exist [£3.849m- £0.356k; w/offs done 
01/04/13-30/09/13] for Council Tax against a potential BDP of £3.433m for debts accrued to 31 
March 2013.  
 
COUNCIL TAX 
 

Arrears as at 
1

st
 of April 

Arrears as at 
Qtr 2 

BDP  BDP as at Qtr 2 

 £000 £000 % £000 

Pre 2010-2011  2,041 1,785 100 1,785 

2011-2012  1,128 872 75 654 

2012-2013 2,688 1,657 60 994 

Total 5,857 4,314  3,433 

 
National Non Domestic Rates (NNDR) 
Currently, bad debt provisions of £1.95m [£2.2m- £0.248k; w/offs done 01/04/13 to 30/09/13] 
exist for business rates (NNDR) against a potential BDP of £1.840m. Under Business Rates 
retention, the effect on the local authority is 30% of any surplus or deficit. 
 
 
NATIONAL NON DOMESTIC 
RATES (NNDR) 

Arrears as at 1
st
 

of April 
Arrears as at 

Qtr 2 
BDP  BDPas at Qtr 2 

 £000 £000 % £000 

Pre 2012-2013 750 610 100 610 

2012-2013 2,320 1,641 75 1,230 

Total 3,070 2,251  1,840 

 
Council Tax and Business Rates Court Cost 
Currently, bad debt provisions (BDP) of £710k (CT £620k+ NDR £90k) exists for Court Costs 
against a potential BDP of £1.0m.  From previous years trends, this amount of provision will 
be adequate and in line with our overall provisions policy. 
 
Court Cost Arrears as at 

1
st
 of April 

Arrears as at 
Qtr 2 

BDP  BDP as at Qtr 2 

 £000 £000 % £000 

Pre 2011-2012 605 511 100 511 

2012-2013 453 337 75 253 

2013-2014 0 507 50 254 

Total 1,058 1,355  1,018 

 

305



Appendix 3: Debt Management 
Housing Benefits 

Currently, bad debt provisions of £3.157m [£3.258m - £0.101k w/offs 1/4/13 to 30/09/13] 
exist for Housing Benefit overpayment debt against a potential BDP of £4.076m (£2,795 + 
£1,281 = £4.076m).  The under provision is anticipated to be funded from improved collection 
on overpayments although there is a potential risk that there may be a balance that will need 
to be met from revenue.  
  
Housing Benefit 
DEBTORS 

Outstand as at 
1

st
 of April 

Outstand as at 
Qtr 2 

BDP  BDP as at Qtr 2 

 £000 £000 % £000 

Pre 2011-2012 1,169 1,011 100 1,011 

2011-2012  822 787 100 787 

2012-2013 1,529 898 50 449 

2013-2014 0 1,370 40 548 

Totals 3,520 4,066  2,795 

     
 

 
Housing Benefit 
LIVE CASES 

Outstand as at 
1

st
 of April 

Outstand as at 
Qtr 2 

BDP  BDP as at Qtr 2 

 £000 £000 % £000 

Pre 2011-2012 241 162 100 162 

2011-2012  492 366 75 275 

2012-2013 1,451 858 50 429 

2013-2014 0 1,037 40 415 

Totals 2,184 2,423  1,281 

     

 
 
 
 
 

306



 

REPORT FOR: 

 

CABINET 

Date: 12 December 2013 

Subject: Collection Fund 2013-2014 
 

Key Decision:   Yes 
 
 

Responsible Officer: Simon George, Director of Finance and 
Assurance 
 

Portfolio Holder: Councillor Tony Ferrari, Portfolio Holder 
for Finance 
 

Exempt: No  
 

Decision subject to 

Call-in: 

 

Yes 

Enclosures: Nil  

 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 

This report sets out the estimated financial position on the Collection Fund as at 
31 March 2014 and how it is shared amongst the constituent precepting bodies 
and Central Government. 
 
Recommendations 

Cabinet is asked to: 

(a) Note an estimated surplus of £2,095,937 on the Collection Fund as 
at 31 March 2014 of which £1,676,274 is the Harrow share; and 

(b) Agree that an amount of £1,676,274 be transferred to the General 
Fund in 2014-15. 

 
Reason (for recommendation) 
To report to Cabinet on the Council’s statutory obligation to make an estimate of 
the surplus or deficit on the Collection Fund by 15 January 2014. Approval to the 
recommendations set out is a major part of the annual budget review process.  

Agenda Item 19
Pages 307 to 312

307



 
 

 

Section 2 – Report 
 
Executive Summary 
 
1. The Collection Fund account reflects the statutory requirements for the Council 

to maintain a separate Fund, in relation to the operation of the Business Rates 
Retention Scheme (BRRS) and Council Tax. The Fund records all the 
transactions for billing in respect of Non Domestic Rates (NDR) and Council tax, 
exemptions and discounts granted, provision for bad debts and appeals and 
payments to the precept authorities Greater London Authority (GLA), Council’s 
own demand and Central Government. 

 
2. At the end of each year the surplus/deficit on the Fund is subsequently borne by, 

or distributed to, the billing authority (i.e. Harrow), the preceptor (i.e. GLA) and 
Central Government.  The estimated financial position on the Collection Fund as 
at 31 March 2014 and the share of surplus for each stakeholders are 
summarised below:-  

 

 Council Tax 
(Table 1a) 

BRRS  
(Table 2a) 

Total 

 % £m % £m £m 

Harrow Council 79.977 1.676 30.000 0 1.676 

Greater London Authority 20.023 0.420 20.000 0 0.420 

Central Government   50.000 0 0 

  2.096  0 2.096 

 
Council Tax 
3. There are mainly four factors in the calculation of the estimated surplus/deficit on 

Council Tax:- 

• Surplus or deficit brought forward from the previous financial year; 

• Change in the gross income;  

• Change in the expenditure in relation to discounts, exemptions and Local 
Council Tax Support Scheme; and  

• Increase or Decrease in the level of bad debt provision (BDP).  
 
Table 1a 

Forecast

£m

Gross Yield 121.536

Losses in Collection & Increase in Bad Debt Provision -2.914

Prior Year's Adjustment -0.194

Net Income 118.428

Precepts

Harrow Council -93.039

Greater London Authority -23.293

Total Precepts -116.332

Estimated Surplus/(Deficit) 2.096  
 

308



 
4. The collection rate for 2013-14 is slightly below profile resulting mainly from the 

Council Tax Support Scheme (CTSS) which has impacted approximately 12,000 
working age people who have previously not had to pay council tax or received a 
reduction have now been asked to pay towards their council tax bill.  The arrears 
position for these debts is being monitored and recovery processes are in place 
to ensure compliance with payment plans.  The table below summarises the total 
arrears position as at 30th November 2013 along with the provision requirement. 

 
Table 1b 

Arrears as at 

30 November 

2013 BDP

BDP 

requirement

£m % £m

Pre 2010-2011 1.691 100 1.691

2011-2012 0.890 75 0.668

2012-2013 1.581 60 0.949

Total 4.162 3.308

 

Business Rates Retention Scheme 

5. In previous years business rates were collected by the local authority and paid 
into the National Non Domestic Rating Pool. The Authority received an NNDR 
grant as part of the Revenue support settlement process. From the 1st April 
2013 the BRRS was introduced as part of the move to localise and stimulate 
business growth at a local level. Under the BRRS the Authority pays 50% of its 
business rates income to Central government, 20% to GLA and retains the 
remaining 30%. 

 
6. There are mainly two factors in the calculation of the estimated surplus/deficit on 

BRRS:- 

• Change in the gross income; and 

• Increase or Decrease in the level of bad debt provision (BDP).  
 
Table 2a 

Forecast

£m

Gross Yield 51.992

Cost of Collection -0.255

Losses in Collection & Increase in Bad Debt Provision -1.408

Losses on Appeals -1.246

Net Income 49.083

Precepts

Central Government 50% -24.541

Greater London Authority 20% -9.817

Retained by Harrow 30% -14.725

Total Precepts -49.083

Estimated Surplus/(Deficit) 0.000  
 
7. The table below shows the aged analysis of the debt as at 30 November 2013.  

The collection rate is slightly below the profile as the Council’s predominant 
ratepayers are Small Medium Enterprises (SME), who are still being affected by 

309



 
the economic climate which is having an impact on their ability to pay.  Although 
recovery action is taking place, longer time is being given to tax payers to clear 
the debt which in turn will support small businesses.  
 
Table 2b 

Arrears as at 

30 November 

2013 BDP

BDP 

requirement

£m % £m

Pre 2012-2013 0.554 100 0.554

2012-2013 1.487 100 1.487

Total 2.041 2.041

 
Legal Implications 
8. Section 50 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 requires this calculation 

to be completed as part of the budget setting process. 

 
Financial Implications 
9. Financial matters are integral to the report. 
 

Performance Issues 
10. There are risks in achieving the collection target due to economic climate and 

the new Council Tax Support Scheme.  Performance data is shown in the 
separate reports on Calculation of Council Tax Base for 2014 – 2015 and 
Calculation of Business Rates Income for 2014 – 2015 on the Cabinet agenda. 

 

Environmental Impact 
11. There are none directly related to this report.   

 
Risk Management Implications 
12. In the current economic climate there is a risk that the Council’s collection 

performance could decline.  This would have an adverse impact on the 
Collection Fund financial position.  

• Risk included on Directorate risk register? Yes 

• Separate risk register in place? No  
 

Equalities Impact 
13. There are no direct equalities impacts arising from the decisions within this 

report.  
 

Corporate Priorities 
14. This report deals with the Collection Fund which is a key part of the budget 

setting process and therefore helps deliver the Council’s vision and priorities. 
 
 

310



 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 

    

Name:  Simon George x  Chief Financial Officer 

  

Date:   14 November 2013 

   

    

Name:  Matthew Adams x  on behalf of the  

 

Date:   2 December 2013 

  Monitoring Officer 
 

 

Section 4 – Performance Officer Clearance 
 

    

Name:  Martin Randall x  on behalf of the 

 

Date:  14 November 2013 

  Divisional Director Strategic 
Commissioning  

 

Section 5 – Environmental Impact Officer 

Clearance 
 

    

Name:  Saeed Atlas x  on behalf of the  

 

Date:  15 November 2013 

  Corporate Director of Environment 
and Enterprise 

 

Section 6 - Contact Details and Background Papers 
 

Contact:   Hasina Shah (Head of Technical Finance and Accountancy) 

hasina.shah@harrow.gov.uk,  
Tel:  0208 424 1573  
 
 
 

Background Papers:  
• The Local Authorities (Funds) (England) Regulations 1992 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1992/14/contents 

 

• The Non-Domestic Rating (Rates Retention) Regulations 2013 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2013/9780111532959/conten
ts 

 

311



 

• Statement of Accounts 2012/13 

http://search.harrow.gov.uk/search.aspx?pckid=1809526021&ai
d=365691&sw=STATEMENT+OF+ACCOUNTS 

 
 

 

Call-In Waived by the 

Chairman of Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee 
 

  
NOT APPLICABLE 
 
 
[Call –in applies] 
 
 

 
 

 

312



 

REPORT FOR: 

 

CABINET 

Date: 

 

12 December 2013 

Subject: 

 

Treasury Management Strategy Statement and 
Annual Investment Strategy – Mid-year Review 
2013/14 
 

Key Decision:   No 
 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Simon George, Director of Finance and 
Assurance 

Portfolio Holder: 

 

Councillor Tony Ferrari, Portfolio Holder for 
Finance 

Exempt: No  
 

Decision subject to 

Call-in: 

 

Yes, except for the recommendation to Council 

Enclosures: 

 

Appendix 1 -  Counterparty Policy 
Appendix 2 – Prudential Indicators 
 

 
 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 
 

This report sets out the mid-year review of treasury management activities for 
2013/14.   
 

Recommendations: 
 
That the Cabinet: 
(a) Note the half year treasury management activity for 2013/14. 
(b) Recommend that the Governance, Audit and Risk Management 

Committee consider and review the report. 
(c) Recommend to the Council that the minimum credit criterion for The Royal 

Bank of Scotland be amended from F1 to F2 as discussed in paragraphs 
5.2 and 5.3 below. 

 
Reason: (for recommendation)  
(a) To promote effective financial management and comply with the Local 

Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) Regulations 2003 and other 
relevant guidance. 

(b) To keep Cabinet Members informed of treasury management activities 
and performance. 

 

 

Agenda Item 20
Pages 313 to 330

313



 

Section 2 – Report 
 
1. Background 

 
1.1 The Council operates a balanced budget, which broadly means cash raised 

during the year will meet its cash expenditure. 
  
1.2 Part of the treasury management operation ensures that this cash flow is 

adequately planned, with surplus monies being invested with low risk 
counterparties, providing adequate liquidity initially before considering 
optimising investment return. 

 
1.3 The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding 

of the Council’s capital programme.  The programme provides a guide to the 
borrowing needs of the Council, essentially the longer term cash flow 
planning, to ensure the Council can meet its capital spending operations.  
This management of longer term cash may involve arranging long or short 
term loans, or using longer term cash flow surpluses, and on occasion any 
borrowings previously made may be restructured to meet Council risk or cost 
objectives.  

 
1.4 Accordingly, treasury management is defined as: 

 
“The management of the local authority’s investments and cash flows, its 
banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective 
control of the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of 
optimum performance consistent with those risks.” 

 

 
2. Introduction 
 
 
2.1 The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code 

of Practice on Treasury Management (revised 2011) has been adopted by the 
Council. 

 
2.2 The primary requirements of the Code are as follows:  

1. Creation and maintenance of a Treasury Management Policy Statement 
which sets out the policies and objectives of the Council’s treasury 
management activities. 

2. Creation and maintenance of Treasury Management Practices which set 
out the manner in which the Council will seek to achieve those policies and 
objectives. 

3. Receipt by the full Council of an annual Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement - including the Annual Investment Strategy and Minimum 
Revenue Provision Policy - for the year ahead, a Mid-year Review Report 
and an Annual Report (stewardship report) covering activities during the 
previous year. 

4. Delegation by the Council of responsibilities for implementing and 
monitoring treasury management policies and practices and for the 
execution and administration of treasury management decisions. 

314



 

5. Delegation by the Council of the role of scrutiny of treasury management 
strategy and policies to a specific named body.  For the Council the 
delegated body is the Governance, Audit and Risk Management 
Committee.  

2.3 This mid-year report has been prepared in compliance with CIPFA’s Code of 
Practice on Treasury Management, and covers the following: 

 

• Forecast outturn position 

• Economic update for the 2013/14 financial year to 30 September 2013; 

• Review of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual 
Investment Strategy; 

• Capital expenditure ; 

• Review of the investment portfolio for 2013/14; 

• Review of the borrowing strategy for 2013/14; 

• Review of any debt rescheduling undertaken during 2013/14; 

• Review of compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits for 2013/14. 

 
 

3. Forecast outturn Position 
 
3.1 There is a forecast net underspend of £730,000 on the capital financing and 

investment income budget resulting from a forecast underspend on minimum 
revenue provision due to slippage on the 2012-13 capital programme as 
detailed in the table below: 

 

 Latest 
Budget 

Forecast 
Outturn 

Variation 

 £000 £000 £000 % 

Cost of Borrowing 8,481 8,484 0 0.0 

Investment Income -1,572 -1,572 0 0.0 

Minimum Revenue Provision 13,234 12,504 -730 -5.5 

     

Total 20,143 19,355 -730 -3.6 

4.   Economic update for the 2013/14 financial year to 30 September 2013 

4.1 This commentary has been provided by the Council’s Treasury Management 
Advisers, Capita Asset Services 

4.2 Economic performance to date 

During 2013/14 economic indicators suggest that the economy is recovering, 
albeit from a low level.   After avoiding recession in the first quarter of 2013, 
with a 0.3% quarterly expansion the economy grew 0.7% in Q2.  There have 
been signs of renewed vigour in household spending in the summer, with a 
further pick-up in retail sales, mortgages, house prices and new car 
registrations.  

315



 

The strengthening in economic growth appears to have supported the labour 
market, with employment rising at a modest pace and strong enough to 
reduce the level of unemployment further.  Pay growth also rebounded 
strongly in April, though this was mostly driven by high earners delaying 
bonuses until after April’s cut in the top rate of income tax. Excluding 
bonuses, earnings rose by just 1.0% year on year, well below the rate of 
inflation at 2.7% in August, causing continuing pressure on households’ 
disposable income. 

The Bank of England extended its Funding for Lending Scheme (FLS) into 
2015 and sharpened the incentives for banks to extend more business 
funding, particularly to small and medium size enterprises. To date, the 
mortgage market still appears to have been the biggest beneficiary from the 
scheme, with mortgage interest rates falling further to new lows. Together with 
the Government’s Help to Buy scheme, which provides equity loans to credit-
constrained borrowers, this is helping to boost demand in the housing market. 
Mortgage approvals by high street banks have risen as have house prices, 
although they are still well down from the boom years pre 2008.  

Turning to the fiscal situation, the public borrowing figures continued to be 
distorted by a number of one-off factors. On an underlying basis, borrowing in 
Q2 started to come down, but only slowly, as Government expenditure cuts 
took effect and economic growth started to show through in a small increase 
in tax receipts. The 2013 Spending Review, covering only 2015/16, made no 
changes to the headline Government spending plan, and monetary policy was 
unchanged in advance of the new Bank of England Governor, Mark Carney, 
arriving.  Bank Rate remained at 0.5% and quantitative easing also stayed at 
£375bn.  In August, the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) provided forward 
guidance that Bank Rate is unlikely to change until unemployment first falls to 
7%, which was not expected until mid 2016. However, 7% is only a point at 
which the MPC will review Bank Rate, not necessarily take action to change it.  
The three months to July average unemployment rate was 7.7%. 

Consumer Price Index inflation (MPC target of 2.0%), fell marginally from a 
peak of 2.9% in June to 2.7% in August. The Bank of England expects 
inflation to fall back to 2.0% in 2015. 

Financial markets sold off sharply following comments from Ben Bernanke 
(the US Federal Reserve Board Chairman) in June that suggested the 
Federal Reserve. may ‘taper’ its asset purchases earlier than anticipated. The 
resulting rise in US Treasury yields was replicated in the UK. Equity prices fell 
initially too, as the Federal Reserve purchasing of bonds has served to 
underpin investor moves into equities out of low yielding bonds.  However, as 
the market moves to realign its expectations, bond yields and equities are 
likely to rise further in expectation of a continuing economic recovery.  
Increases in payroll figures have shown further improvement, helping to pull 
the unemployment rate down from a high of 8.1% to 7.3%, and continuing 
house price rises have helped more households to escape from negative 
equity. In September, the Federal Reserve surprised financial markets by not 
starting tapering as it felt the run of economic data in recent months had been 
too weak to warrant taking early action.  Bond yields fell sharply as a result, 
though it still only remains a matter of time until tapering does start. 

316



 

Tensions in the Eurozone eased over the second quarter, but there remained 
a number of triggers for a renewed flare-up.  Economic survey data improved 
consistently over the first half of the year, pointing to a return to growth in Q2, 
so ending six quarters of Eurozone recession. 

4.3 Outlook for the next six months of 2013/14 

Economic forecasting remains difficult with so many external influences 
weighing on the UK. Volatility in bond yields is likely during 2013/14 as 
investor fears and confidence ebb and flow between favouring more risky 
assets i.e. equities, and safer bonds.   Downside risks to UK gilt yields and 
PWLB rates include: 

• A return to weak economic growth in the US, UK and China causing major 
disappointment to investor and market expectations 

• The potential for a significant increase in negative reactions of populaces 
in Eurozone countries against austerity programmes, especially in 
countries with very high unemployment rates e.g. Greece and Spain, 
which face huge challenges in engineering economic growth to correct 
their budget deficits on a sustainable basis. 

• The Italian political situation is frail and unstable: the coalition government 
fell on 29 September. 

• Problems in other Eurozone heavily indebted countries (e.g. Cyprus and 
Portugal) which could also generate safe haven flows into UK gilts. 

• Monetary policy action failing to stimulate sustainable growth in western 
economies, especially the Eurozone and Japan. 

• Weak growth or recession in the UK’s main trading partners - the EU and 
US, depressing economic recovery in the UK. 

• Geopolitical risks e.g. Syria, Iran, North Korea, which could trigger safe 
haven flows back into bonds 

Upside risks to UK gilt yields and PWLB rates, especially for longer term 
PWLB rates include: - 

• UK inflation being significantly higher than in the wider EU and US, 
causing an increase in the inflation premium inherent to gilt yields. 

• Increased investor confidence that sustainable robust world economic 
growth is firmly expected, together with a reduction or end of QE 
operations in the US, causing a further flow of funds out of bonds into 
equities. 

• A reversal of Sterling’s safe-haven status on a sustainable improvement in 
financial stresses in the Eurozone. 

• In the longer term - a reversal of quantitative easing in the UK; this could 
initially be implemented by allowing gilts held by the Bank to mature 
without reinvesting in new purchases, followed later by outright sale of gilts 
currently held. 

• Further downgrading by credit rating agencies of the creditworthiness and 
credit rating of UK Government debt, consequent upon repeated failure to 
achieve fiscal correction targets and sustained recovery of economic 
growth, causing the ratio of total Government debt to GDP to rise to levels 
that provoke major concern. 

The overall balance of risks to economic recovery in the UK is now weighted 
to the upside after five months of robust good news on the economy. 

317



 

However, only time will tell just how long this period of strong economic 
growth will last, and it remains exposed to vulnerabilities in a number of key 
areas.  The longer run trend is for gilt yields and PWLB rates to rise, due to 
the high volume of gilt issuance in the UK, and of bond issuance in other 
major western countries.  Near-term, there is some residual risk of further 
quantitative easing if there is a dip in strong growth or if the MPC were to 
decide to take action to combat the market’s expectations of an early first 
increase in Bank Rate. If the MPC does takes action to do more QE in order 
to reverse the rapid increase in market rates, especially in gilt yields and 
interest rates up to 10 years, such action could cause gilt yields and PWLB 
rates over the next year or two to significantly undershoot the forecasts in the 
table below.  The tension in the US over passing a Federal budget for the new 
financial year starting on 1 October and raising the debt ceiling in mid October 
could also see bond yields temporarily dip until agreement is reached 
between the opposing Republican and Democrat sides. Conversely, the 
eventual start of tapering by the Federal Reserve will cause bond yields to 
rise. 

4.4 Interest rate forecasts  

 

(The Capita Assets Services forecasts above are for PWLB certainty rates.)  

Expectations for the first change in Bank Rate in the UK are now dependent 
on how to forecast when unemployment is likely to fall to 7%.  Financial 
markets have taken a very contrary view to the MPC and have aggressively 
raised short term interest rates and gilt yields due to their view that the 
strength of economic recovery is now so rapid that unemployment will fall 
much faster than the Bank of England forecasts.  They therefore expect the 
first increase in Bank Rate to be in Q4 of 2014.  There is much latitude to 
disagree with this view as the economic downturn since 2008 was remarkable 
for the way in which unemployment did not rise to anywhere near the extent 
likely, unlike in previous recessions.  This meant that labour was retained, 
productivity fell and now, as the MPC expects, there is major potential for 
unemployment to fall only slowly as existing labour levels are worked more 
intensively and productivity rises back up again.  The size of the work force is 
also expected to increase relatively rapidly and there are many currently self 
employed or part time employed workers who are seeking full time 
employment.  Capita Asset Services take the view that the unemployment 
rate is not likely to come down as quickly as the financial markets are 
currently expecting and that the MPC view is more realistic.  The prospects for 
any increase in Bank Rate before 2016 are therefore seen as being limited. 
However, some forecasters are forecasting that even the Bank of England 
forecast is too optimistic as to when the 7% level will be reached and so do 
not expect the first increase in Bank Rate until spring 2017. 

 

318



 

5.  Review of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual 
Investment Strategy 

 
 

5.1 The Council approved a Treasury Management Strategy Statement for 
2013/14 on 14 February 2013, which complies with the Chartered Institute of 
Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury 
Management (2011) and Prudential Code for Capital Finance. 

 
5.2   Included within the Treasury Management Strategy Statement are the 

minimum credit criteria for the measure of credit worthiness of institutions 
used as counterparties. For the UK nationalised banks (RBS and 
Lloyds/HBOS) the minimum short term criterion is F1 as defined by Fitch 
Ratings. RBS still retains this rating but both the other agencies to which the 
Council refers, Moody’s and Standard and Poor’s, now rate RBS below that 
level. Were Fitch to follow the same line the Council would not be able to use 
RBS as a counterparty. As the Treasury Management Strategy Statement 
allows the Council to invest up to 50% of its cash balances with RBS this 
would severely restrict its ability to manage these balances. The view of the 
Council’s Treasury Management Adviser, Capita, is that so long as RBS 
remains largely in the ownership of the Government and taxpayer (currently 
82%) there is little risk to its future viability and that it would be appropriate 
for it to be retained on the Council’s counterparty list. 

 
5.3 The Cabinet is therefore asked to recommend to Council that the Treasury 

Management Strategy Statement be amended to allow for RBS to remain as 
a counterparty subject to its Short-term rating being at Fitch F2 or above,  

 
6. Capital expenditure 
 
6.1 The table below shows the original budget for 2013-14 as adjusted for “carry 

forwards” and other items and the forecast outturn. 
 

Service “Adjusted” 
budget 

Forecast outturn Variance 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Community Health and Wellbeing 8,048 5,998 -2,050 

Children and Families 23,212 16,440 -6,772 

Environment and Enterprise 20,457 19,154 -1,303 

Resources 13,449 11,814 -1,635 

Total General Fund 65,166 53,406 -11,760 

Housing Revenue Account 8,390 7,779 -611 

    

General Fund funding    

Grants 27,784 21,356 -6,428 

Section 106 439 432 -7 

RCCO 110 47 -63 

Capital Receipts 12,000 2,575 -9,425 

Borrowing 24,833 28,996 4,163 

Total 65,166 53,406 -11,760 

HRA funding    

Grants 42 42 0 

Direct Revenue Funding 8,348 7,737 -611 

Total 8,390 7,779 -611 

319



 

 
 
6.2 The most significant variance is due to the re-profiling of the Children and 

Families programme in line with the additional grant funding made available by 
the DfE for the school expansion programme. 

 
6.3 At present the whole of the capital programme reliant on borrowing can be 

financed from internal resources. 
 
7. Review of the investment portfolio for 2013-14 
 
7.1 In summary, the Council’s debt and investment position as at 30 September 

2013 was as follows: 
 

 31 March 
2013  

Average 
Rate 

Average 
Life yrs 

30 Sept  
2013  

Average 
Rate 

Average Life 
yrs 

 £M % Yrs £M % Yrs 

Fixed Rate Funding        

  -  PWLB 218.5 4.09 38.2 218.5 4.09                                                            37.7 

  -  Market 131.8 4.65 34.4 131.8 4.65 34.1 

Total Debt 350.3 4.30 36.8 350.3 4.30 36.3 

Investments:       

  -  In-House 103.2 1.83 276 days 140.8 1.47  188 days 

Total Investments 
103.2 

 
140.8  

 
7.2 The Council manages its investments in-house and invests with the 

institutions listed in the approved lending list for up to the approved periods. 
The Council permits investments for a range of periods from overnight to 
three years, dependent on the Council’s cash flows, its interest rate view and 
the interest rates on offer, although the average duration is less than a year. 

 
7.3 A total of £140.8m (£112.3 million as at Sept 2012) investments were placed 

on deposit as at 30 September 2013.  
 
7.4 The table below sets out the position as at 30 September 2013. 
 

 2012/13 2013/14 
 Sept 2012 March 2013 Sept 2013 

 £m % £m % £m % 

Specified Investments       

Banks  19.9 17.7 0.1 0.1 10.1 7.2 

Building Societies 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Money Market Funds 24.6 21.9 0.0 0.0 1.6 1.1 

Non –Specified Investments       

Banks 59.8 53.3 98.1 95.1 104.1 73.9 

Building Societies 8.0 7.1 5.0 4.8 5.0 3.6 

Enhanced Money Market Funds 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 20.0 14.2 

Total 112.3 100.0 103.2 100.0 140.8 100.0 

 
         Specified investments are those with such low risk that the possibility of loss 

of principal is negligible and non-specified investments are all other assets. 
 

320



 

7.5    A more detailed analysis of the investment portfolio as at 30 September 
2013 is shown in appendix 1.   

 
7.6   The credit ratings of the main UK banks were lowered in the last quarter of, 

2011.  Prior to that all the counterparties in use as at September 2011 
achieved the credit quality to be classified as the more secure “specified 
investments” and only those investments with a maturity of over 12 months 
were classed as “non specified”. 

 
7.7   Following the changes to credit ratings at the end of 2011, only one bank in 

use meets the criteria for specified investments, Svenska Handelsbanken, 
with all the others are non specified. 

 
7.8   Cabinet and Council (February 2012) (supported by GARMC) agreed to  

lower the long term and short term threshold for non specified investments.  
This enabled continued use of Lloyds, RBS, Barclays and Nationwide as 
counterparties.  Although Santander continues to meet the same criteria, on 
the advice of Sector it has been suspended as a counterparty.   

 
7.9   With the fall in UK base rates in 2008/09 from 5% to 0.5%, the yield on offer 

for short term investments plunged.  Although base rates have not changed 
subsequently the interest rates being paid on investments have declined 
further in the last year as UK monetary policy has been to provide cheap 
funding to banks.  Interest rates for money market and call accounts have 
fallen to as low as 0.3%.  For much of 2013, Lloyds and RBS have paid 
significantly higher rates than the other banks.  Combined with the longer 
maturities permitted for these two banks, they attracted most new deposits 
in the year. 

 
7.10 The impact of the changes in credit ratings and counterparty limits has meant 

that there are very few banks and building societies in the portfolio and, at 30 
September 2013 investments were only outstanding with the following 
institutions: 

 
             Lloyds Bank Plc ( including Bank of Scotland Plc) 
             The Royal Bank of Scotland Plc 
             Nationwide Building Society 
             Svenska Handelsbanken AB 
             Ignis Short Duration Cash Fund 
             Insight Liquidity Plus 
             Deutsche Bank AG London  
             Fidelity Instant Cash Fund 
 
7.11  During the first half year of 2013-14 the most significant investment 

decisions taken were: 
 
         Dominating use of Lloyds and The Royal Bank of Scotland which, at 30 

September, accounted for 48% and 26% of the portfolio respectively. The 
Lloyds percentage allocation has subsequently been reduced to prepare for 
the reduction in overall balances which is likely to occur in the last three 
months of the year.  

 
         Initial investment of £10m each in the enhanced money market funds 

managed by Ignis and Insight. 
 

321



 

7.12   Overall, the Council remains a cautious investor placing security and 
liquidity considerations ahead of income generation.  As mentioned above, 
many banks and buildings societies in which the Council safely invested for 
many years have been removed from the counterparty list and maximum 
maturities have been reduced from 5 years to 3 years (Lloyds and RBS) 
and 3 months for all other counterparties.  These changes have restricted 
the opportunity to add value to the short term investment portfolio.  The 
policy will be kept under review. 

 
7.13    The performance of the investment portfolio is benchmarked on a quarterly 

basis by Sector both against their risk adjusted model and the returns from 
other local authorities.  As at 30 September 2013, the average yield on the 
portfolio of 1.47% which placed the Council in the top 10% of the average 
average for the 180 local authorities monitored by the Council’s cash 
management adviser. This return compares favourably with the average 3 
month Libid rate of 0.38%. The reasons for this relatively good performance 
are that the Council invests heavily in the part nationalised banks and not at 
all with Government institutions, it has a significant proportion of its funds in 
longer maturities and it placed some deposits before the recent interest 
rates decline. 

 
 
8.      Review of the borrowing strategy for 2013/14 
 
8.1   Total long term debt of £350.3m at September 2013 is made up of £131.8m 

bank loans and £218.5m PWLB loans.  The current borrowing strategy is to 
use internal balances to fund capital expenditure rather than take on new 
borrowing. 

 
8.2   The table below analyses the maturity profile of borrowing.  Two methods to 

record the maturity of lender option borrower option (LOBO) loans are 
shown. The lenders of LOBOs are permitted to reset interest rates five years 
after advancing the loan (and annually thereafter) such that the loans may 
have to be repaid sooner than the permitted life if rates are increased. In 
total there are LOBO loans outstanding of £83.8 million.  The table shows 
LOBO’s using both their final maturity (LHS) and also using the earliest date 
that the interest rate can be changed as the final maturity (RHS). 

 
  upper 

limit 
lower 
limit 

LOBO final 
maturity 

 LOBO interest 
reset date 

Maturity structure of borrowing 
at 30 September 2013 % % £m % £m % 

under 1 year  20 0 16.0 4.5% 49.8 14.2% 
1 year and within 2 years 20 0 0.0 0.0% 0.0 0.0% 
2 years and within 5 years 30 0 10.0 2.9% 60.0 17.1% 
5 years and within 10 years 40 10 27.0 7.7% 27.0 7.7% 
10 years and above 90 30 297.3 84.9% 213.5 61.0% 

Total     350.3 100.0% 350.3 100.0% 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

322



 

9.  Review of any debt rescheduling undertaken during 2013/14 
 
9.1  In view of the debt profile, interest rates being paid and the potential cost of 

re-payment no rescheduling has been recommended during the current 
year.  

10. Review of compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits for 2013/14. 

 
10.1 Appendix 2 compares the expected outturn for the prudential indicators  with 

2012-13 and that approved by the February 2013 Council.   
 
 
SECTION 3 - FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
11. Financial matters are integral to the report. 
 
SECTION 4 - PERFORMANCE ISSUES 
 
12. The Council meets the requirement of the CIPFA Code of Practice for 

Treasury Management and therefore is able to demonstrate best practice for 
Treasury Management.  The report above demonstrates how value for money 
has been achieved by maximising investment income and minimising 
borrowing costs, while complying with the Code and Council Policy.  
 

SECTION 5 - ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 

13. There is no environmental impact.  
 

SECTION 6 - RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 

14. Risk included on Directorate risk register? Yes 
 
15. Separate risk register in place? No 
 
16. Under the current economic climate there is a risk that the Council could lose    

its deposits due to failure of a counterparty. 
 
SECTION 7 – EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
17. There is no direct equalities impact. 
 
SECTION 8 – CORPORATE PRIORITIES 
 
18. This report deals with Treasury Management activity and the Prudential Code 

which underpin the delivery of the Council’s priorities. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

323



 

Section 9 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 

   on behalf of Chief 
Financial 

Name: Dawn Calvert  x  Officer 
  
Date:    19 November 2013 

   

   on behalf of Monitoring 
Name: Caroline Eccles x  Officer 
 
Date:   19 November 2013 

   
 

 

Section 10 – Performance Officer Clearance 
 

   on behalf of Divisional 
Name: Martin Randall x  Director, Strategic  

 
Date:   15 November 2013 

  Commissioning 

 
Section 11 – Environmental Impact Officer Clearance 
 
    

on behalf of the 

Name: Andrew Baker x  Corporate Director 
  
Date:    29 November 2013 

  (Environment & 
Enterprise) 

 

Section 12: Contact Details and Background Papers 
 
Contact: Ian Talbot (Treasury & Pension Fund Manager)   

Tel: 020 8424 1450 
Email: ian.talbot@harrow.gov.uk 

 

Background Papers:  Report “Treasury Management Strategy Statement, 

Prudential Indicators and Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy and Strategy 
2013/14” to Cabinet on 14 February 2013 

http://www.harrow.gov.uk/www2/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=249
&MId=61076&Ver=4 

 

 

Call-In Waived by the 

Chairman of Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee 

 
 

  
NOT APPLICABLE 
 
 
[Call-in applies, except for the 
recommendation to Council] 
 

 

324



APPENDIX 1 
Counterparty Policy 

 
 
The counterparty policy for investments is reviewed annually and approved by both 
Cabinet and Council, the latest review being in February 2013.  The table below 
identifies the banks in use against the appropriate counterparty criteria as at 30 
September 2013.   
 
Investment instruments identified for use in the financial year are listed below under the 
‘Specified’ and ‘Non-Specified’ Investments categories. 
 
Counterparty limits are approved by the Section 151 Officer in accordance with the 
Council’s Treasury Management Practices.   
 
Specified investments are considered low risk and relate to funds invested for up to one 
year.  Non-Specified investments sometimes offer the prospect of higher returns but 
carry a higher risk and may have a maturity beyond one year.  All investments and 
borrowing are sterling denominated. 
 
All credit ratings will be monitored in house with the help of Capita (Sector) who alert the 
Council to changes in Fitch ratings through its creditworthiness service.  
 
If a downgrade results in the counterparty no longer meeting the Council’s minimum 
criteria, its further use as an investment will be withdrawn immediately. 
 
 
Specified Investments 
 
All such investments will have maturities up to a maximum of 1 year, meeting the 
minimum rating criteria where applicable.  The instruments and criteria to be used are set 
out in the table below. 
 

     
Instrument Minimum 

Credit Criteria 

Max. 

maturity 

period  Counterparties 

30.09.2013 
Balances 

£m 

Debt Management Agency Deposit 

Facility 

Government 

backed 12 
months N/A 0.0 

Term deposits – other LAs Local Authority 

issue 12 
months N/A 0.0 

AA- Long Term 12 
months 

Svenska 
Handelsbanken 10.1 

F1+Short-term     

2 Support     

AA- Viability     

Term deposits – banks and building 

societies 

AAA Sovereign       

Money Market Funds AAA daily 2 funds 1.6 

Total Specified Investments       11.7 

325



Non Specified Investments 
     

     

  Minimum 

Credit Criteria 

Max. 

maturity 
Year -end 

Counterparties 
30.09.2013  

£'m 

A Long Term Nationwide BS 5.0 

F1 Short-term    

1 Support    

A Viability    

Term deposits – banks and building 

societies 

UK or AAA 

Sovereign 

3 months 

    

F1 Short-term  Lloyds/HBoS 67.4 UK nationalised Banks [RBS & Lloyds 

/ HBOS] 1 Support  

36 

months 
RBS 36.7 

F1 Short term    0.0 

A Long Term    

Callable Deposits 

1 Support 

3 months 

    

Enhanced cash funds AAA daily 2 funds 20.0 

Total Non Specified Investments       129.1 

Total Investments       140.8 

 
 
New Investments from 1st April 2013 
 
Listed below are the longer term investment transactions made in the year.  Daily 
liquidity deals are not separately quantified. 
 

Month Bank  Value period 
Interest 

rate  

       

Apr-13 Lloyds  £5m 12 months 1.10%  

Apr-13 Lloyds  £5m 12 months 1.10%  

May-13 Lloyds  £5m 12 months 1.10%  

May-13 Lloyds  £5m 12 months 1.05%  

Jul-13 Lloyds  £5m 12 months 1.01%  

Aug-13 Lloyds £5m 24 months 1.16%  

       

       

       

       

various Svenska   35 day notice 
0.45% increasing to 
0.60% 

daily 
 
Money market fd  daily average 0.35% 

daily 
 
RBS deposit a/c  daily 

0.65% 
reducing to 

0.50%  

 
 

326



 APPENDIX 2 
Prudential Indicators 

 
 
Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream 
 

 2012/13 2013/14 2013/14 

  

Actual Approved Forecast 
Out-turn 

     

Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream       

Non - HRA 11.55% 12.51% 12.99% 

HRA  47.76% 47.67% 46.05% 

 
These ratios consider the affordability of capital expenditure by comparing net interest costs 
and depreciation with net revenues.  A ratio that increases indicates that capital costs take a 
larger share of resources.    
 
The General Fund ratio is higher than approved budget resulting from finance charges on 
lease liability.  The HRA has a favourable variance due to a minor increase in forecast rental 
income. 
 
Net Borrowing Requirement 
 

 2012/13 2013/14 2013/14 

  

Actual Approved Forecast 
Out-turn 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 

Net borrowing requirement        

brought forward 1 April 294,681 274,232 273,284 

carried forward 31 March 273,284 280,908 242,557 

In year borrowing requirement -21,397 6,676 -30,727 

 
 
The net borrowing requirement looks at the change in debt less investment balances.  The 
reduction of £30.7m is due mainly to income receivable in advance of spend for the Children 
and Families capital programme and other forecast underspends in the capital programme. 
 
Capital Financing Requirement 
 

 2012/13 2013/14 2013/14 

  

Actual Approved Forecast 
Out-turn 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 

Capital Financing Requirement as at 31 March       

Non – HRA 251,788 264,487 266,260 

HRA  149,574 149,614 149,546 

Total  401,362 414,101 415,806 

        
Annual change in CFR        

Non – HRA -1,281 5,286 14,472 

HRA  -40 0 -28 

Total -1,321 5,286 14,444 

 

327



The Capital Financing Requirement is the historic outstanding capital expenditure that has not 
been allocated to revenue.  It is essentially a measure of the Council’s underlying borrowing 
need.  Any capital expenditure that is not funded from revenue increases the CFR.  The value 
of finance leases is included.  The value is greater than the outstanding borrowing (including 
finance leases) of £375 million, indicating the level of cash generated by revenue balances. 
 
The increase in the year represents net new capital expenditure funded by borrowing less 
MRP. 
 
Incremental Impact of capital Investment Decisions 
 

 2012/13 2013/14 2013/14 

  

actual Approved Forecast 
Out-turn 

  £ £ £ 

Incremental impact of capital investment decisions     

Increase in Council Tax (Band D) per annum   17.20  20.59  20.59 

Increase in average housing rent per week 16.11 -2.39 -2.00 

 
The incremental ratios identify the impact of the cost of debt and depreciation (MRP) linked to 
new capital borrowing on Council Tax and rents.  A high or growing ratio would suggest that 
Council Tax or rents will have to increase to fund the capital expenditure programme.  The 
ratio ignores the favourable impact of assets that have become fully depreciated and drop out 
of the MRP charge. 
 
 
Ratio of Net to Gross Borrowing 
 

 2012/13 2013/14 2013/14 

  

Actual Approved Forecast 
Out-turn 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 

Net to Gross Debt Limit       

Gross borrowing 369,216 360,357 360,357 

Net borrowing 273,284 280,908 242,557 

Net debt percentage 74% 78% 67% 

Minimum ratio   75% 75% 

 
This indicator is designed to highlight borrowing in advance of needs, when large investment 
cash balances are carried relative to debt.  The ratio was expected to increase as cash 
balances were expected to reduce to fund the capital programme. However, as discussed 
above forecast underspends in the capital programme and the receipt of income in advance of 
spend is forecast top cause the ratio to fall. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

328



 
Borrowing and Investment Limits 
 

 2012/13 2013/14 2013/14 

  

Actual Approved Forecast 
Out-turn 

  £m £m £m 

Authorised Limit for external debt        

Borrowing and finance leases 372 414 415 

        

Operational Boundary for external debt       

Borrowing 350 352 352 

Other long term liabilities 22 23 23 

Total 372 375 375 

Upper limit for fixed interest rate exposure       

Net principal re fixed rate borrowing 350 352 352 

Upper limit for variable rate exposure       

Net principal re variable rate borrowing 0 0 0 

Upper limit for principal sums invested over 364 days 25 25 25 

 
The approved operational boundary for debt is based on actual debt at the start of the year 
plus the net projected capital expenditure in the year.  The authorised limit is based on CFR 
balances and includes an allowance for delayed capital receipts.  Total borrowing is within 
both limits during the year.  Investments with greater than 12 months to maturity of £20m are 
within the £25m limit. 
 
 
 
 
 

329



330

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

REPORT FOR: 

 

CABINET 

 

Date of Meeting: 

 

12 December 2013 

Subject: 

 

Procurement of Banking Services 

Key Decision:  

 

No 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Simon George, Director of Finance and 
Assurance 
Terry Brewer, Divisional Director 
Commercial, Contracts and Procurement 
 

Portfolio Holder: 

 

Councillor Tony Ferrari, Portfolio Holder for 
Finance 

Exempt: 

 

No except for Appendix 1 which is exempt 
from publication under paragraph 3, Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 
1972 (as amended) as it contains information 
relating to the financial or business affairs of 
any particular person (including the authority 
holding that information) 
 

Decision subject to 

Call-in: 

 

No 

Enclosures: 

 

Appendix 1 exempt (Part 2 only) 

 

Agenda Item 21
Pages 331 to 336

331



 

 
 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 
This report sets out the project management and procurement tender process 
undertaken for the provision of banking services. 

 
Recommendation:  
 

1. That Cabinet notes this report and takes it into account appendix 1 
in part 2 of the agenda in making a decision in respect of the supply 
of banking services for the term of five years beginning on 1 April 
2014 and ending on 31 March 2019 with an option to extend for a 
period of up to a further two years to 31 March 2021.  

2. That Royal Bank of Scotland be awarded the contract for the supply 
of banking services for the term of five years beginning on 1 April 
2014 and ending on 31 March 2019 with an option to extend for a 
period of up to a further two years to 31 March 2021. 

 

Reason:  (For recommendation) 
 
The Council’s current banking contract is due to expire in March 2014. In 
compliance with the Council’s Standing Orders an open tendering procedure 
has been followed and, based on the results, a recommendation is made to 
award the contract to the most economically advantageous tender. 
 
 

Section 2 – Report 
 

Introduction 
 
1. In order to conduct its financial affairs in a proper and efficient manner it is 

essential for the Council to procure banking services from an appropriate 
provider. Competitive tenders for the service must be invited at reasonable 
intervals and in accordance with the Council’s Standing Orders and 
procurement regulations. 

 

Options considered 
 
2. Since the procurement of banking services is essential to the Council’s 

ability to carry out its functions the option to do nothing was not 
considered.  

 

332



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\3\9\AI00084934\$vor35icd.doc 

3. The option to conduct an open tendering exercise was used because the 
market for the provision of the full range of banking services is already 
very restricted. 

 
Procurement process 
 
4.   The Council followed an open one stage tender process targeting 

suppliers within the banking sector. Following the publication of an Official 
Journal of the European Union (OJEU) notice three financial organisations 
tendered for the service. They were all given access to the specification 
via the E-tendering system to enable them to fully understand the 
requirements. 

 
5. A specification was prepared by Focus on Banking, a broker contracted to 

the Council, and the Council’s Treasury and Pension Fund Manager.  
 
6. The Council’s incumbent provider of banking services is The Royal Bank 

of Scotland whose current contract ends on 31 March 2014. 
 

 
Tender stage 
 
7.   The tender evaluation criteria were set as follows: 

 

Price – 50% 

Estimated Price over the contract period will be based on the proposed 
tariffs applied to the indicative transaction volumes plus the Council’s 
estimated cost of moving bank (which will depend on the implementation 
proposals). Responses provided to the pricing questionnaire will also be 
used to adjust the overall price for comparison purposes.  

Quality - 50% 

(broken down further into the following sub-criteria)  

Branch Network (based on responses to questions at 2.2 of 
the response document) 

10% 

Basic service requirements (based on responses to questions 
at 2.3 of the response document) 

10% 

Relationship Management & Innovation (based on responses 
to questions at 2.4 of the response document) 

7% 

Internet Banking Service (based on responses to questions at 
2.5 of the response document) 

8% 

Implementation (based on responses to questions at 2.6 of 
the response document) 

10% 

Sustainability 5% 

 
8.   The three bids were evaluated by Focus on Banking and the Council’s 

Treasury and Pensions Manager and the results of the evaluation are 
shown in appendix 1 in Part 2 of the agenda. 

 
 
 

333



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\3\9\AI00084934\$vor35icd.doc 

Transfer of Undertakings Protection of Employment (TUPE) 
 
9.  TUPE does not apply to this contract. 
 

Next steps 
 
10. Subject to Cabinet approval, Legal Services will prepare the contract   

documentation for sealing by the Council and will issue the contract to 
Royal Bank of Scotland with a view to commencement on 1 April 2014. 

 

Section 3 - Legal Implications 
 
11. Subject to Cabinet approval, the contract documentation will incorporate 

all the legal requirements. 

 

Section 4 Section 4 Section 4 Section 4 ----    Financial ImpliFinancial ImpliFinancial ImpliFinancial Implicationscationscationscations    
 
12. Detailed implications are given in appendix 1 on Part 2 of the agenda. 
 
13. Sufficient provision will be made within the revenue budget for the 

potential seven years’ costs arising from the recommendation.   
 

Section 5 Section 5 Section 5 Section 5 ----    Performance IssuesPerformance IssuesPerformance IssuesPerformance Issues        

    
14. In addition to complying with its competitive pricing structure the 

successful tenderer will be expected to provide a good level of service 
across the full range of its activities including: branch network; resolution 
of transaction queries; relationship management; service level agreement; 
management of quality of service delivery; innovation; training; reliability. 

 

Section 6 Section 6 Section 6 Section 6 ----    Environmental ImpactEnvironmental ImpactEnvironmental ImpactEnvironmental Impact        
 
15. There are no significant environmental impacts arising from this proposal. 
 

    

Section 7 Section 7 Section 7 Section 7 –––– Risk Manag Risk Manag Risk Manag Risk Management Implications ement Implications ement Implications ement Implications     

 
16. The risk associated with the banking services will be incorporated within 

the legal contract document.  

 

Section 8 Section 8 Section 8 Section 8 ----    Equalities implicationsEqualities implicationsEqualities implicationsEqualities implications    
 
17. Equalities issues were considered and integrated into this tender process. 
 

    

    

334



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\3\9\AI00084934\$vor35icd.doc 

SectionSectionSectionSection 9  9  9  9 ----    Corporate Corporate Corporate Corporate PrioritiesPrioritiesPrioritiesPriorities    
 
18. This report deals with the Council’s banking services which are key to 

delivering the Council’s corporate priorities of a cleaner, safer and fairer 
Harrow. 

 
 

SectionSectionSectionSection 10 10 10 10    ---- Statutory Officer Clearance Statutory Officer Clearance Statutory Officer Clearance Statutory Officer Clearance 

   on behalf of the 

Name:  Dawn Calvert x  Chief Financial Officer 

  
Date: 18  November 2013 

   

   on behalf of the 

Name:  Paresh Mehta x  Monitoring Officer 

 
Date: 18 November 2013 
 

   
 

 

Section 11 – Performance Officer Clearance 
    

Divisional Director, 

Name:  Alex Dewsnap 

 
x 

 Strategic  

Date: 28 October 2013 
 

  Commissioning 

 

Section 12 – Environmental Impact Officer 

Clearance 
   on behalf of the 

Name:  Andrew Baker x  Corporate Director 

  
Date: 28 October 2013 

  (Environment & 
Enterprise) 

 

Section 13 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 
 
 

Contact:  Ian Talbot (Treasury and Pension Fund Manager) 
Tel: 020-8424-1450 
Email: ian.talbot@harrow.gov.uk 
 
 

Background Papers: None 
 
 

335



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\3\9\AI00084934\$vor35icd.doc 

 

Call-In Waived by the 

Chairman of Overview 

and Scrutiny 

Committee 

 

  
NOT APPLICABLE 
 
 
[Call-in applies] 
 
 

 

 

336



 
 

 

REPORT FOR: 

 

CABINET 

 

Date of Meeting: 

 

12 December 2013 

Subject: 

 

Strategic Performance Report – Quarter 2 

Key Decision:  

 

No 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Tom Whiting, Corporate Director of 
Resources 
 

Portfolio Holder: 

 

Councillor Paul Osborn, Portfolio Holder for 
Communications, Performance and 
Resources 
 

Exempt: 

 

No 

Decision subject to 

Call-in: 

 

Yes 

Enclosures: 

 

Appendix 1 – Strategic Performance Report 

 
 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 

 
This report summarises Council and service performance for Quarter 2 
against key measures and draws attention to areas requiring action. 

 
Recommendations:  
That 

1. Portfolio Holders continue working with officers to achieve 
improvement against identified key challenges; 

2. Cabinet note the report and identify any changes it wishes to see in 
future reports 

 

Agenda Item 22
Pages 337 to 370

337



 

Reasons:  (For recommendation) 
 
1&2: To enable Cabinet to be informed of performance against key measures 
and to identify and assign corrective action where necessary. 
 
 

 

Section 2 – Report 
 
Introductory paragraph 
 
Cabinet on 9 September 2004 agreed to sit in the role of Performance Board 
on a quarterly basis and to receive the Strategic Performance Report. The 
report helps members to monitor progress against the Council’s vision and 
corporate priorities and identify corrective action where necessary. 
 

Reporting Format 
 
The Strategic Performance Report helps Members assess progress against 
the Corporate Plan for 2013-15. 
 
The Corporate Scorecard, which forms part of this report, places an increased 
emphasis on outcomes for the resident and service user, i.e. what benefit or 
difference they will experience. Since outcomes may change relatively slowly 
over time, more of the measures are annual or even biennial and therefore 
not updated each quarter. For simplicity, these are shown only in the quarter 
in which they become available.  
 
The report at Appendix 1 provides the following content: 
 
 Council wide progress in the Quarter  
 

Summaries of - 

• Council-wide and Directorate progress in the Quarter  

• Progress with major projects in the Transformation Programme 

• Progress against the Council’s Equality Objectives (from quarter 2) 

 
 Performance Summary for each Corporate Priority (as originally 

established in the Corporate Plan) and the Efficient and Effective 
Organisation perspective 

 

• Summary for key performance indicators on the Corporate Scorecard 
 

338



 

• An analysis of progress against each red indicator in the “key 
challenges” section  

 
 Corporate Scorecard in full 
 
 

Options considered 
 
None. 
 

Legal Implications 
 
None specific. 
 

Financial Implications 
 
The Financial Implications are set out in the Appendix to the report. 
 

Performance Issues 
 
The report deals in detail with performance issues. 
 

Environmental Impact 
 
There are no direct environmental implications arising from this report. 
However, each of the projects referred to in the report will have some 
environmental impact and this should be assessed to ensure that any 
decisions, taken in response to this report, do not have a negative impact on 
the environment and, where possible, positively contribute towards the 
Council’s climate change strategy. 
 

Risk Management Implications 
 
The risks arising from the Performance Report will be measured through the 
Council’s Corporate Risk Register. 
 

Equalities implications 
 
Any decisions driven by the actions taken in response to this report will need 
to be assessed through an Equalities Impact Assessment. 
 

Corporate Priorities 
 
The report deals with the delivery of all Corporate Priorities. 
 
 

339



 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Steve Tingle x  Chief Financial Officer 

  
Date:  13 November 2013  

   

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name:  Matthew Adams x  Monitoring Officer 

 
Date:  29 November 2013  

   
 

 
 

Section 4 – Performance Officer Clearance 
 

 
 

   
 

Name Alex Dewsnap x  Divisional Director 

  
Date:  11 November 2013 

  Strategic 
Commissioning 

 
 

Section 5 – Environmental Impact Officer 

Clearance 
 

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name Andrew Baker x  Corporate Director 

  
Date:  12 November 2013 

  (Environment & 
Enterprise) 

 

Section 6 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 
 
 

Contact:  Martin Randall, Senior Professional, Corporate 
Performance and Planning, Business Intelligence, 020 8424 1815 
 
 

Background Papers:  
 
Corporate Plan 2013-15 
 

340



 

 

Call-In Waived by the 

Chairman of Overview 

and Scrutiny 

Committee 

 
 

  
NOT APPLICABLE 
 
 
[Call-in applies] 

 

 

341



342

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1

Strategic Performance Report – Quarter 2, 2013/14 

Council-wide progress 

Financial Position

Revenue at Quarter 2
The Period 6 returns indicate a potential net budget overspend of £2.606m on Directorate 
budgets, and £1.876m overall after including corporate items.  This represents a 1.0% 
adverse variance against the approved budget of £181.1m.  This is an improvement on the 
net position of £321k since quarter 1. The table below sets out the summary position and 
changes since quarter 1.

Revised 
budget

Forecast 
outturn

Quarter 
2

variance

Variance Quarter 
1

variance

£000 £000 £000 % £000

30,111 29,930 (181) (0.6%) 250

Environment and Enterprise 2.1%

Community, Health and 
Wellbeing 78,435 79,607 1,172 1.5% 655

Children and Families 46,055 46,870 815 1.8% 572

Total Directorate Budgets 193,124 195,730 2,606 0 2,197

Corporate Items -11511 -12241 -730 0% 0

Total Budget Requirement 181,613 183,489 1,876 1.0% 2,197

There has been a £730k saving on capital financing cost arising out of the underspend on 
the 2012-13 capital programme.  Resources Directorate has improved by £431k as a 
result of savings on pension augmentation payments to former employees, a reduction in 
take up of the Harrow Help scheme and additional Land Charges income.  This has more 
than offset the increases in the other service directorates.

Capital at Quarter 2
The capital programme budget for 2013/14 is £80.2m, this includes budgets agreed at 
February 2013 Council, budget movements agreed by Cabinet up to June 2013 and the 
budget slippage from 2012/13. The forecast outturn is £61.2m, which indicates a (£19.0m)
variance against the adjusted budget, the details are outlined below. 

£m %
Total capital budget for the year       80.2

Total spend forecast in the year             61.2 76

Variance against the budget                    (19.0) (24)

The main reasons for variances are explained in the financial monitoring report that 
appears elsewhere on the Cabinet agenda. 

1343



Community, Health and Wellbeing  

In Adult Social Care Services, quarter 2 saw the successful launch of My Community 
ePurse (MCeP), a pioneering approach to personalisation using new technology to 
support an outcome focussed approach to Personal Budgets.  Harrow is the first local 
authority in the country to offer a solution that addresses concerns raised by the Audit 
Commission whilst improving the quality of services and the safety of the individual and 
there is considerable interest from other authorities. 

Some seven projects, three supported by innovation funding, are running under the 
Integrated Care Programme, which promotes closer working with the NHS. This includes 
a successful pioneer bid as part of a North West London Partnership. 

Extensive consultations have taken place with Adult Day Service users and their families, 
community groups and the voluntary sector in relation to proposed changes to the 
Neighbourhood Resource Centres. A review has been carried out of residential 
accommodation requirements for clients with Learning Disabilities. Performance across 
Adults indicators has been strong in the quarter, particularly on service users with a cash 
budget where Harrow’s performance was provisionally ranked 2nd and 4th in London and 
nationally. This is reflected in higher satisfaction levels from clients in this group. The 
outcome of an imminent Safeguarding Peer Review will be reported next cycle. 

Although numbers are growing we are still maintaining relatively low levels of 
homelessness, with prevention of homelessness in 90% of cases and containment of 
statutory homelessness. However, the anticipated impacts from welfare reform are 
impacting on the numbers of families in Bed and Breakfast. The Grants to Move scheme 
has been launched and the first moves completed, with secure tenants vacating their 
homes with a cash grant to enable them to relocate into the private rented sector.

Following the adoption of a new strategic housing vision and supporting policies a package 
of measures is being progressed to target our limited supply of social housing more 
effectively and increase housing opportunities, such as the Hidden Homes initiative for 
affordable housing on sites within our housing estates. Negotiations continue with British 
Gas on the proposed contract to improve energy efficiency of the Council’s housing stock 
through the Energy Company Obligation (ECO) grant funding, with over £7m of 
investment identified so far. 

Both the libraries and leisure management contracts commenced on 1 September, with 
library staff transferring to the new employer. Improvement works have already started at 
the Leisure Centre. A Libraries Action Plan has been drawn up by the contractor which 
includes building and service improvements and is currently under review. The Great Barn 
renovation project is covered under Transformation Programme below. The Adult 
Community and Family Learning (ACFL) Service has undergone an Ofsted inspection 
during October. Inspectors were complimentary about the service and the formal report 
has rated the service as ‘Good’ in all areas.

Results for Harrow in the nationally reported public health outcomes are generally good 
across a range of measures.

2344



Children and Families 

The Children and Families Directorate is continuing with its work to improve the service 
quality and outcomes for children and families under its improvement plan, entitled the 
Child’s Journey. The improvement plan takes into account self-evaluation, quality 
assurance activity (including external evaluation, staff and user feedback) and service 
improvement priorities and is supported by strengthened commissioning of local services, 
both internally and externally provided.

Ofsted has introduced a new and tougher inspection regime for inspections of children’s 
social care from Autumn 2013.  Inspections are unannounced and look in depth at child 
protection, looked after children and care leavers, plus preventative and early intervention 
work. In her Annual Report of 2012-13, Ofsted’s National Director of Social Care noted 
factors that had been associated with poor inspection results, including changes in 
leadership, increasing demand due to changing demography, budget reductions, 
organisational restructuring and poor co-operation from partners. 

There have been significant management changes in Targeted Services (which includes 
social care) since the 2012 inspection including the Divisional Director, service managers 
and team managers.  Experienced postholders are now in place.  Achieving a stable social 
care workforce remains a challenge – a national shortage of experienced social workers 
means the service relies on agency staff and also has a significant number of newly 
qualified social workers. This, coupled with the increase in demand for services – referrals 
to the service have doubled following the review of thresholds that was recommended at 
the last inspection – has led to significant pressure to manage caseloads. Although there 
has been a significant strengthening of quality assurance work, there is still some way to 
go to achieve consistent, high-quality casework with a clear focus on outcomes. These 
challenges and progress against them have been openly discussed at the Improvement 
Board.

Figures for re-referrals and numbers of child protection plans lasting over two years are 
significantly improved and show that intervention thresholds are now appropriate and 
interventions are having a positive impact on children and families.  Timeliness of 
assessments remains a challenge following changes from August 2013 to conform with 
Munro report recommendations. The adjustment of thresholds produced a substantial 
increase in the number of assessments required, while recruitment and retention of skilled 
social work staff has been difficult. However, the rate of assessments, numbers of children 
subject to child protection plans and children looked after (CLA) are now more in line with 
similar authorities. Completion of CLA health assessments had been improving and a 
temporary setback has been addressed and a review of the protocol between partners 
initiated. Timeliness of reviews of CLA and placement stability have also improved. Data 
on young people who have left Council care also shows some improvement but this 
remains an area for attention.

In Early Intervention services, the Attendance Intervention Model (AIM) has gone live 
from September 2013 and helps schools and the local authority to tackle the problem of 
frequently absent pupils. Some 189 summer events across the Borough attracted about 
1,750 young people, of whom 39% were known to Children and Families. A wide range of 
activities included opportunities for some young people to develop their portfolios of skills 
and experience.

3345



The Youth Justice Plan was approved by Cabinet in October 2013 and sets priorities for 
the future. Performance data to March 2013 shows a 50% drop in first-time entrants to the 
youth justice system in Harrow, demonstrating the effectiveness of partnership activity. 
Reoffending and custody rates remain priorities for improvement. Rates of young 
offenders in education, employment or training are broadly in line with comparators but 
remain a priority.

Harrow’s level of good and outstanding schools remains among the best in England at 
92% (October 2013). The pupil population in Harrow is increasing and is projected to 
continue to do so. In September 2013, an additional 17 reception classes opened,
including eight permanent expansions. A report on phase 2 of the primary and special 
school expansion programme was made to Cabinet in November 2013 and the Secondary 
School Place Planning Strategy was presented at the same time.

Work on the Families First project is covered under Transformation Programme, below.

Environment and Enterprise

The Towards Excellence project continues to move forward and is covered under 
Transformation Programme, below. Following re-investment in the Public Realm service, 
additional street cleansing and grounds maintenance activity has been put in hand, 
including extended hours and more weekend cover, and has already made a noticeable 
difference. 

The Neighbourhood Champions scheme has been relaunched, with a fresh recruitment 
drive. Additional support will be offered to volunteers and training for 250 new Champions 
is scheduled before Christmas. Specialist training will be offered to those who wish to 
focus on particular interest areas, e.g. waste, highways, parks, transport, fire, crime.

Positive indications have been received from the GLA over the Council’s bid for funding for 
the “mini Holland” cycling initiative.

Progress is continuing with a number of warmer homes and carbon reduction projects 
to a value of over £500K, largely externally funded. A further project is expected to attract 
nearly £2.8m in grant. 

In economic development, quarter 2 saw 393 businesses supported through two major 
business events in Harrow town centre and the annual Business Expo at the Civic Centre.
The Council received the Department for Communities and Local Government award
for supporting small and medium-sized businesses and making it easy for local 
entrepreneurs to bid for local government business. The Council also won the Federation 
of Business award for The Best Small Business Friendly Council for Procurement.

The Council has adopted the Heart of Harrow Area Action Plan and the Site Allocations 
and Development Management Policies Development Plan Documents, providing Harrow 
with a comprehensive, up to date Local Plan against which to determine what is, and is 
not, “sustainable development” in the borough. The Community Infrastructure Levy was 
adopted by Council in September.

A number of new infrastructure and development projects have also been brought 
forward in this quarter including work with other directorates on the £29m school funding 

4346



programme and the Hidden Homes programme. The quarter also saw planning permission 
granted for 819 (net) new homes, including on the RNOH and the Colart sites. 

Total crime is down 11% in the financial year to date: in particular, residential burglary has 
fallen significantly and is the best performance in London. Serious violent crime has 
increased markedly over the same period last year and police are applying additional 
resources to the problem. Harrow is nonetheless high performing in London, with only four 
other boroughs having lower figures.  

Resources

The number of MyHarrow accounts has now exceeded 45,000 (37,000 at quarter 1) and
the proportion of web forms and web visits as a proportion of overall contact has increased 
to 69%, reflecting the increasing use of self service by customers. The introduction of
Artificial Intelligence to replace the Council switchboard will support this trend.

Customer satisfaction with the One Stop Shop remains high at 95% despite reducing the 
“drop-in” service. Waiting times have increased to 4mins37secs, but are well within a
tighter target of 10 minutes. Resolution of enquiries at the first point of contact has risen to 
meet target at 90%. The average cost per transaction in Access Harrow is £0.72 against 
a target of £0.80. 

Transformation Programme 
This section provides progress updates on phase 2 of the Council’s Transformation 
Programme. 

Mobile & Flexible Working – The project aims to deliver a tried and tested, scalable 
flexible working solution that will meet the Council’s changing needs in the future. The 
Communications Plan has been developed for October to December. Housing are 
currently testing “thin client” technology as they move into Civic 1. Initial activities for 
implementing Sharepoint file storage and sharing have commenced.

Civic Centre Consolidation – This project aims to optimise the Council's asset utilisation 
of the Civic Centre site, reduce revenue cost of current facilities and help to meet carbon 
reduction targets, by consolidating into Civic 1. It is integrated with the Mobile & Flexible 
Working project. Phase 1 of the Housing move completed with Housing Reception now in 
Access Harrow.  Feasibility study for Civic 7 (Library) has been received. Quotes have 
been received for 4th Floor, North Wing refurbishment and the order has been raised for 
asbestos works to the 4th Floor, East Wing.  Works to female toilets on 1st Floor, North 
wing are in progress.

Families First – The Early Intervention Service in Children & Families is continuing to lead 
on implementation of the Families First project. The service has worked with 120 high 
need families under this programme (which is known nationally as ‘Troubled Families’) 
during 2012-13. The project refresh is ongoing, though there are some challenges to 
recruit additional resource. The project has engaged a counselling resource aimed at 
families and young people; demand for this service is currently high. Our reward grant 
claim is for 41 families which is broadly in line with the national average (claiming for 10% 
of families overall). The project is still working with c. 150 families but we expect these 
numbers to increase significantly once the additional key workers are in place.

5347



Towards Excellence – The former PRISM
1

project has been incorporated into “Towards 
Excellence”, a wider Environment & Enterprise programme. An organisational structure 
consultation was completed during quarter 2 and a role profile consultation concluded on 
3 October. All role profiles have been evaluated, managers have been appointed and the 
rest of the restructure will be complete by the end of December.

Cultural Strategy Review Delivery Phase – This project will implement the actions from 
the Future of Cultural Services Review as approved at Cabinet in January 2012. 
Libraries and leisure contracts started 1 September with staff transferred to new 
employers. The Parent company of the library contractor has changed to Carillion but the 
contract is unaffected by this change. The first joint Partnership Board was held with new 
contractors, Brent and Ealing, and the contract management processes are underway.  

A planning application for the Great Barn (Tithe Barn) has been submitted. A further 
meeting with Heritage Lottery Fund mentors raised no issues. Capital bids for Harrow Arts 
Centre and Bannister Stadium are in preparation.

Parking Review – This project comprises a review of parking charges across the 
Borough. A statutory consultation on the proposed parking charges was undertaken in 
July/August. The Portfolio Holder approved the proposal on 16 September with some 
minor revisions. The revised charges are now being implemented.

Cashless Parking (RingGo) – This project is for the introduction of a Cashless Parking 
System in Harrow car parks, on-street Pay and Display, Resident and Visitor Permits and 
the Council is actively moving to reduce the amount of cash manually handled across the 
organisation. The integration between IT systems is still being worked on which has led to 
some delay in allocating incoming payments. The estimated start date for e-permits is the
end of December. 

Property Review – This project focuses on rationalising property assets across the 
Borough, optimising the use of assets and delivering better value for money. A two year
disposals programme was approved by Cabinet in October 2013.  

Town Centre Regeneration including Outer London Fund 2 – The project involves an 
integrated programme of public realm infrastructure improvements to enhance the vitality 
and viability of Harrow town centre and sustain its Metropolitan Centre status. 

o St Ann’s Road - all specialist paving materials have now been delivered with a
detailed programme to completion. Easement with St George’s Centre has now 
been signed and this now allows installation of street lighting in Clarendon Road.
Trees arrived on site in the first week of November. 

o Greenhill Way Disabled Parking - On the assumption that disabled parking bays are 
being relocated to Greenhill Way, several options for Havelock Place South are 
being considered.

o Havelock Place Service Road Improvements - The initial proposal shows planting 
more trees, new seating (to utilise granite benches in stock) and upgrading 
outdating paving to granite paving to match St Ann’s Road.

1
Public Realm Integrated Service Management  

6348



o Lowlands Recreational Ground - The project is largely continuing to programme 
with Harrow Engineers working closely with the project Architects, Adam & 
Sutherland.

o Kymberley and Clarendon Scheme - The scheme is currently on target for January 
start with completion programmed in March 2014.

Local Development Framework – This project comprises delivery of the statutory 
development plan (LDF) for Harrow. It includes technical studies and the Infrastructure 
Delivery Plan required to ensure the statutory development plan framework prepared by 
Harrow is found to be "sound". The purpose of the study is to identify the social and 
physical infrastructure and services crucial to the implementation of the spatial strategy set 
out in the Harrow Core Strategy. All Development Plan Documents are now completed, 
save for West London Waste Plan. 

Special Needs Transport 3 – This project will provide new services for customers and 
greater levels of independence to enable demand and cost to be managed for the current 
and medium-term. Consultation with users, staff, partners and trade unions is complete.
The project has been altered to accommodate requirements of users and proposals 
provided by Unison and a new policy has been drafted for consultation with users. Cabinet 
in September 2013 agreed to outsource a smaller proportion than previously modelled,
with a further report to be made later. 

Payment Card Industry (PCI) – This project concerns the implementation of the Capita 
Payment Management System to deliver compliance against the Payment Card Industry 
Data Security Standards. The project has achieved its objectives, the new system is 
functioning and the project will be formally closed once snagging issues have been 
resolved. 

Project Minerva – This project aims to determine the options available for Harrow Council 
for the ongoing provision of back office and support services from 2015/16 and onwards 
and develop a recommendation to be taken to Corporate Strategic Board and Members. 
This will include determining the future provision of IT (due to the expiration of the current 
Capita contract in October 2015) and an assessment as to whether SAP is the best
system to support the organisation.  The Client Engagement Plan has been approved and 
dates have been set up. 

IT Transformation – This programme continues to be behind its original schedule but 
revised dates agreed at a meeting with Capita’s Chief Executive are being achieved.  New 
equipment is being rolled out to users. The programme is still being delivered at a fixed 
price.

Transforming Financial Management – The project is making good progress, with a 
number of new staff in post and the new structure implemented from September. An 
exercise has started on reducing the number of active cost centres and reviewing the 
number and roles of budget managers.

Corporate Equality Objectives

In April 2012, Cabinet adopted eight Equality Objectives which set out the direction the 
authority wants to progress with regard to reducing inequality and improving services 

7349



against which progress can be measured through improvement boards. The summary 
below provides a snapshot of our progress for this quarter. 

Objective 1 – Deliver services which are accessible and welcoming to all 
communities and are capable of responding to the different needs and aspirations 
our customers have
Performance is on track against most measures, with particularly good performance for 
outcomes from reablement, meaning that a higher than target number of clients did not 
need ongoing social care, and the number of wheelchair accessible homes achieved. 

Objective 2 - Improve opportunities for vulnerable young people through our 
corporate parenting role and through individual support 
Good progress is being made against most targets and we are doing well against our 
target of 3% of young people aged between 16-18 who are not in Education, Employment 
or Training (NEET)

Objective 3 – Minimise the impact on health inequalities and deprivation in the 
Borough through partnership working 
The target for increasing health and wellbeing measured by the percentage of people 
participating in physical activity has been exceeded.  

Objective 4 - Support local businesses and residents in times of economic hardship 
There continue to be proportionately lower numbers of JSA claimants in Harrow than the 
average of London as a whole. We are on target for adults with learning disabilities in 
employment and we‘ve provided business growth support to 393 (target of 500) business 
so far. 

Objective 5 – Protect vulnerable people from the harmful impact of crime, anti-social 
behaviour and abuse 
The performance against this objective is good, although we can improve on the number 
of neighbourhood champions recruited.   

Objective 6 - Minimise the impact of budget cuts on equality groups (protected 
characteristics) 
All cabinet reports are subject to an EqIA, and EqIA Quality Assurance Group has been 
established to review all completed EqIAs supporting Cabinet Reports. Directorates have 
developed annual EqIA programmes. 

Objective 7 – Celebrate the diversity of Harrow so the Borough is an increasingly 
cohesive place where people from all communities get on well together 
77% agreed and 17% disagreed that people get on well together in their local area 
(Involvement Tracker, November 2012). We are on target to support ten community 
events. 

Objective 8 - Develop a workforce that feels valued, respected and is reflective of 
the diverse communities we serves 
Our performance (54.84%) exceeds the target (50%) for women in the top 5% of earners. 
The other measures need improving which we are looking into. 

8350



Corporate Priority: Supporting and protecting people who are most in 
need

Performance Measures 

Performance measures 2012/13

Q2 Q1 Q2

Child Protection Plan for 2nd or subsequent time (within 2 years of last plan) Revised 

2013/14
HG HG

First time entrants to Youth Justice System (rate per 100,000 of 10-17 population) 12 

month rolling period
A HG HG

Note 1

Care leavers not in education, employment or training at 19 New in 

2013/14

The extent to which those with services for 12+ months (personalisation and LTT) 

had their care needs reviewed during the year A HG LG

Percentage of children with Child Protection Plan for over two years Revised 

2013/14
HG HG

%age of children with Child Protection Plan seen by Lead Social Worker within 

timescales specified within the plan

New in 

2013/14

Stability of placements of Children Looked After
HR HG HG

Repeat referrals to Children's Social Care (within 12 months) Revised 

2013/14
HG HG

Timeliness of assessments, percentage completed in 45 working days (year to date)
Note 4 A LR

Performance measures 2012/13

Q2 Q1 Q2

The percentage difference between Harrow and the rest of London in respect of JSA 

claimants
HR LR HR

Number of affordable homes delivered (gross) 
HG HG HG

Number of affordable family homes completed New in 

2013/14
HG LG

Total number of households to whom we have accepted a full homeless duty
HG HG HG

2013/14

A. Ensuring the most vulnerable children, young people and adults are appropriately cared for, safeguarding 

them from harm and abuse

B. Families and individuals most in need are helped to access affordable housing, find employment and get 

out of or avoid poverty

2013/14

Note 2

Note 3

9351



Performance measures 2012/13

Q2 Q1 Q2

Reablement - % of clients who do not receive ongoing social care following a 

reablement service
HG HG HG

Percentage of social care users taking up cash payment option (direct payment or 

personal budget) (of all clients and carers with substantial services). HR HG LG

Percentage of social care users who receive self-directed support (of all clients and 

carers with substantial services)
HG HG A

Council adaptations: average time taken from assessment to completion of works 

(weeks)
HG HG HG

Disabled Facilities Grants: average time taken from assessment to Disabled 

Facilities Grant approval (weeks)
HG HG HG

Performance measures 2012/13

Q2 Q1 Q2

Performance measures 2012/13

Q2 Q1 Q2

Percentage of mothers who are totally or partially breastfeeding at 6-8 week check. New in 

2013/14
HG Note 5

Number of smoking quitters New in 

2013/14
HR Note 5

Number of eligible people receiving health checks New in 

2013/14
HR Note 5

The percentage of individuals leaving treatment drug-free and not returning to 

treatment within 6 months

New in 

2013/14

Performance measures 2012/13

Q2 Q1 Q2

Children Looked After: rate of permanent exclusions as percentage of Harrow 

Children Looked After population 
HG HG HG

Children Looked After: rate of fixed term exclusions as percentage of Harrow 

Children Looked After population 
HR HG HG

Percentage of sessions absent from school amongst school age Children Looked 

After, in school year to date 
HG HG HG

Termly rate of Permanent Exclusions as percentage of Harrow school population 

(Not reported in Q1)
HR

Termly, 

not Q1
HG

Termly rate of Fixed Term Exclusions as percentage Harrow school population (Not 

reported in Q1)
LR

Termly, 

not Q1
HG

Termly rate of overall absence in primary schools (Not reported in Q1)
HG

Termly, 

not Q1
HG

Termly rate of overall absence rate in secondary schools (Not reported in Q1)
HG

Termly, 

not Q1
HR

E. Maintain life expectancy in the borough, but reduce the health inequalities gap

F. Reduce the gap between educational attainment of the more vulnerable and disadvantaged groups of 

young people and the general child population

2013/14

2013/14

Adult Mental Health client data is included in relevant indicators in tables A and C. We are working with partners to 

develop further measures in this area.

2013/14

2013/14

Note 6

C. Harrow residents are supported to live as independently as possible 

D. Preventing, managing and improving mental health, particularly of young children and teenagers

10352



Legend

HG High Green Has exceeded target by 5% or more

LG Low Green Has met or exceeded target by up to 5%

A Amber Just below target but not more than 5% below

LR Low Red Between 5 and 10% below target

HR High Red More than 10% below target

Note 1 Latest figure available is for the period April 2012 to March 2013.

Note 2 New measure. Provisional target is to be in the upper quartile for London. 2013/14 to be 
the baseline year.

Note 3 New measure. CP visits indicator remains under development.  System supplier, 
Corelogic, is working on a system change to enable this data to be extracted from 
Framework-i, this is now expected during Q3. In the meantime, a weekly report is 
produced for all children in need, children looked after and child protection cases which 
shows days since last visit to the child.  

Note 4 New National Indicator from Q2 2013/14, Q1 data “back filled” to correspond. Replaces 
old indicator of Initial Assessments completed within 35 days.

Note 5 These measures report one quarter behind. So, Q1 data published in this Q2 report. Q2 
data will be available at Q3.

Note 6 Confirmed data from NDTMS
1

will be released mid November.

Summary of key challenges

Timeliness of assessments, percentage completed in 45 working days (year to date)

This is a new Indicator; a single assessment replaced the Initial & Core Assessments from 
April. 1045 of 1243 Assessments were completed within 45 working days (year to date). 
Teams have been reconfigured so that the social worker who carries out the assessment 
continues with longer term work (if required), which is a new way of working for some staff
and has corresponded with increasing referrals. An additional 24 social workers have been 
recruited to deal with this demand but meeting timescales and achieving the required 
quality of assessments remains a challenge.

The percentage difference between Harrow and the rest of London in respect of JSA 
claimants

Whilst unemployment continues to fall in Harrow, it is falling faster in the rest of London. 
We are on track to meet our targets for Xcite – which are challenging, the fall in 
unemployment is welcome, but in order to improve on position with rest of London we 
need to continue to promote job growth. Most workless residents are low skilled, who tend 
not to commute far, because of high travel costs, low wages and childcare, therefore 
continued push on regeneration programmes to create more local jobs is needed. 

Number of smoking quitters

Upon review of the Harrow Stop Smoking Service Quarter 1 performance, if the key issues 
(finance and staffing) related to the service can be rectified within a reasonable timeframe, 
we will be able to get the service back on track. With the co-ordinator of the service being 
able to dedicate 100% of her time to her everyday role we will be able to increase 
promotion of the service and therefore awareness within the local community. More time 
will be given to supporting Pharmacy and GP service providers to ensure a quality and 
effective service is delivered.

1
National Drug Treatment Monitoring System

11353



Number of eligible people receiving health checks
It is planned to develop GP engagement programme, outreach service and recruit external 
providers to improve Health Check performances.  This is a strategy that other Local 
Authorities have already successfully tested.   We are confident that delivering these 
measures in Q3 and Q4 will allow us to meet the targets by March 2014.  

Termly rate of overall absence rate in secondary schools

A more challenging target has been set, which has resulted in a high red rag status for this 
indicator. The new Attendance Intervention Model (AIM), which was piloted last year, is 
now being rolled out across all schools (including Academies). It is likely to have a positive 
impact on attendance overall.

12354



Corporate Priority: Keeping neighbourhoods clean, green and safe

Performance Measures

Performance measures 2012/13

Q2 Q1 Q2

Improved street and environmental cleanliness, litter
HR HR HR

Improved street and environmental cleanliness, graffiti
HR HR HR

Performance measures 2012/13

Q2 Q1 Q2

Performance measures 2012/13

Q2 Q1 Q2

Number of residential burglaries
LG HG HG

Rate of proven re-offending by young offenders
HG A HR

Note 1

First time entrants to Youth Justice System (rate per 100,000 of 10-17 population)
A HG HG

Note 2

The percentage of individuals leaving treatment drug-free and not returning to 

treatment within 6 months

New in 

2013/14

New in 

2013/14
Note 3

Repeat incidents of domestic violence
HG R R

Note 4

Percentage of food establishments compliant with food hygiene law 
LR LR LR

Percentage of street lights functioning [NB reports 1 quarter in arrears] New from 

Q3
LG LG

Note 5

Average time taken to repair street lights (days) [NB reports 1 quarter in arrears] New from 

Q3
HG HG

Note 5

2013/14

A. The Council, residents & businesses work together to keep Harrow’s streets, buildings and open spaces 

clear of litter, fly-tipping and vandalism

B. Encourage greater volunteering and behaviour change so residents make a greater contribution to looking 

after the local environment

2013/14

2013/14

C. Reduce the fear of crime and incidences of anti-social behaviour so people in Harrow feel safe

Number of active park user groups, will be reported annually

13355



Performance measures 2012/13

Q2 Q1 Q2

Residual household waste per household (kg) [NB reports 1 quarter in arrears]
LG HG HG

Note 5

Percentage of household waste sent for reuse, recycling and composting [NB reports 

1 quarter in arrears]
LR LR LG

Note 5

Greenhouse gas emissions: '000s of litres of fuel used by Council vehicles
Note 6

2013/14

D. The Council, residents and businesses work together to reduce energy and water consumption, flood risk, 

improve air quality and increase recycling

Legend

HG High Green Has exceeded target by 5% or more

LG Low Green Has met or exceeded target by up to 5%

A Amber Just below target but not more than 5% below

LR Low Red Between 5 and 10% below target

HR High Red More than 10% below target

Note 1 Latest figure available, from the Police, is for the offending cohort October 2010 to 
September 2011.

Note 2 Latest figure available is for the period April 2012 to March 2013.

Note 3 Confirmed data from NDTMS
1

Note 4

will be released mid November.

As from 2013/14 target is a range as opposed to a single figure. Accordingly a 3 RAG 
status is applied.

Note 5 Latest figure available is for Q1 2013/14

Note 6 2013/14 to be the baseline year for the target.

Summary of key challenges

Improved street and environmental cleanliness – litter and graffiti

The NI 195 scores show a deterioration in performance this quarter. Litter (NI 195a) in 
particular has gone up from 7% in tranche 1 to 14% in tranche 2 (the survey is conducted 
in 3 tranches during the year) against a target of 6%. 

These scores reflect the impact of the MTFS2 savings. This is the first tranche of 
inspections that has incorporated the full effect of a six weekly cleansing cycle, the 
reduced coverage to shopping areas, industrial areas and recreational areas, and the 
results reflect the extended cleansing cycle that was being undertaken at the time of the 
inspection - this trend should be reversed with the recent investment into the service. In 
terms of graffiti, we are adversely affected by the amount of graffiti on private property 
which, although we are not responsible for removing it, does negatively impact on our 
score – the measure is defined to include any graffiti or fly-posting visible from the transect 
area.

Rate of proven re-offending by young offenders

The measure represents a rolling 12 month cohort of all young people who received a 
disposal or were released from custody. The cohort is then tracked for 12 months. Overall 
the number of disposals has dropped due to reduced first time entrants; however the 
number of reoffenders has remained stable meaning that they now make a larger 
proportion of the offending population. 

1
National Drug Treatment Monitoring System

2
Medium Term Financial Strategy 

14356



Repeat incidents of domestic violence (NI 32)
Seventy-five cases were discussed at MARAC3 in Q2, the highest number of cases 
discussed in any quarter in Harrow. The number of repeat referrals, 11, was only 
marginally above the average for the last two years. The combination of a very high 
number of cases discussed, with a relative average number of repeat referrals, created a 
low repeat victimisation rate. A low repeat victimisation rate should usually be seen as a 
positive development.

Percentage of food establishments which are compliant with food hygiene law 

Quarterly figures continue to hover around the 70% compliance mark. As mentioned in 
previous reports, new premises added to the database and not inspected this year are 
considered "non compliant".  The service proposes to record two measures in future: the 
current figure (all premises, inspected or not), and the percentage compliant out of those 
inspected, which will give an indication of the actual situation experienced by inspectors 
and an overall view of food hygiene compliance in Harrow.

3
Multi Agency Risk Assessment Conference

15357



Corporate Priority: United and involved communities

Performance Measures

Performance measures 2012/13

Q2 Q1 Q2

Participation in cultural services (composite measure) New in 

2013/14
A LR

Performance measures 2012/13

Q2 Q1 Q2

Percentage of 3rd party contract spend placed with local organisations New in 

2013/14

Performance measures 2012/13

Q2 Q1 Q2

Percentage who agree the Council takes account of residents’ views when making 

decisions, Involvement Tracker (bi-annual)
Bi-annual LG Note 2

Percentage who feel that they can influence decisions affecting their local area, 

Involvement Tracker (bi-annual)
Bi-annual LR Note 2

Performance measures 2012/13

Q2 Q1 Q2

Equality of service provision (Adults)
G G G

The proportion of measures supporting the Corporate Equality Objectives that are 

achieved/on target

New in 

2013/14

%age of new starters who completed the mandatory Equality & Diversity e-learning 

module within 6 months [of commencing employment]

New in 

2013/14
HR

2013/14

2013/14

2013/14

Note 1

A. Increase participation in art, sport, leisure and cultural activities

2013/14

Note 3

B. Encourage a diverse range of voluntary, community and third sector organisations capable of providing 

local public services and optimising social capital in Harrow

C. Harrow residents feel they can have their say on the issues that matter most to them. They are involved in 

the development and scrutiny of services, are well informed and make a positive contribution to their 

community

D. Diversity is celebrated and people from all backgrounds feel they are respected, treated fairly and get on 

well together

Legend

HG High Green Has exceeded target by 5% or more

LG Low Green Has met or exceeded target by up to 5%

A Amber Just below target but not more than 5% below

LR Low Red Between 5 and 10% below target

HR High Red More than 10% below target

Note 1 2013/14 to be the baseline year for the target.

Note 2 Involvement Tracker is bi-annual and will next report in Q3

Note 3 New measure. 

16358



Summary of key challenges 

Participation in cultural services (composite measure)

This is a new measure which is a composite of visitor indicators for HAC, the museum, the 
leisure centre and libraries.  All services are seasonally affected and Q2 can be a quiet 
period. However the museum achieved above target visitors for the month. It is likely that 
overall visitor figures will be affected this year by the transition of leisure operators and the 
new library contract and the reduction of service delivery from the Museum from Q4.

Percentage of new starters who completed the mandatory Equality & Diversity e-
learning module within 6 months of commencing employment.

In April 2013 there were 41 new permanent starters within Directorates. Within the first 6 
months of starting their employment, only one completed the e-learning module. As a 
consequence, we will be working with Directorates to ensure that managers are aware that 
this mandatory e-learning must be completed by all new starters.

17359



Corporate Priority: Supporting our town centre, our local shopping 
centres and businesses

Performance Measures

Performance measures 2012/13

Q2 Q1 Q2

Vacancy rates in Town Centre
LG LR LR

Percentage of 3rd party contract spend placed with local organisations New in 

2013/14

Care leavers not in education, employment or training at 19 New in 

2013/14

Performance measures 2012/13

Q2 Q1 Q2

Number of affordable homes delivered (gross)
HG HG HG

No of empty private sector properties brought back into use, using Council, West 

London and HCA grant funds
HG LG HG

Performance measures 2012/13

Q2 Q1 Q2

16 to 18 year olds who are not in education, employment or training (NEET) 
HG HG HG

B. New housing and employment opportunities will be created, new and existing businesses will be able to 

grow and expand in the borough and there will be opportunities for investment in new social infrastructure

C. Residents are supported to have the necessary skills and education to be able to access employment, 

apprenticeships or training opportunities

2013/14

2013/14

Note 2

A. Harrow residents and businesses benefit from local economic prosperity, investment and growth in the 

borough

2013/14

Note 1

Legend

HG High Green Has exceeded target by 5% or more

LG Low Green Has met or exceeded target by up to 5%

A Amber Just below target but not more than 5% below

LR Low Red Between 5 and 10% below target

HR High Red More than 10% below target

Note 1 2013/14 to be the baseline year for the target.

Note 2 New measure. Provisional target is to be in the upper quartile for London. 2013/14 to be 
the baseline year.

Summary of key challenges 

Vacancy rates in Town Centre 

8.8% against a target of 8.3%. Frankie and Benny’s will be opening soon, reducing the 
vacancy rate by 0.76%. 

18360



Efficient and Effective Organisation

Performance Measures

Performance measures 2012/13

Q2 Q1 Q2

Customer enquiries that should not have been necessary (percentage) 
HR LR HR

The proportion of enquiries that were resolved at the first point of contact 
A A LG

Average cost per transaction (£) (Access Harrow)
HG HG HG

Tenant satisfaction with the housing repair and maintenance service (%) 
Note 1 A

Total debt collected, at year to date, as a % of total debt raised
HR HR LG

Average debtor days, per quarter
HG HG HG

Percentage of Council Tax collected
LG LG A

Variation in business rate yield New in 

2013/14
LG HR

Percentage of non-domestic rates collected
A A A

Time taken to process housing benefit and council tax benefit new claims and 

change events (days) 
HG A HG

Proportion of web forms and web visits as a percentage of overall contact 
LG A A

Staff sickness - average days per FTE excluding schools
Note 2 HR HR

Workforce with IPAD in last 12 months
LR HR LR

Accident Incident Rate AIR (no. of accidents x 100,000)/average number employed 

during the period

New in 

2013/14
HR HG

Reportable Injury Frequency Rate IFR (no. of RIDDOR incidents x 100,000)/no. of 

hours worked

New in 

2013/14
LR HG

2013/14

Legend

HG High Green Has exceeded target by 5% or more

LG Low Green Has met or exceeded target by up to 5%

A Amber Just below target but not more than 5% below

LR Low Red Between 5 and 10% below target

HR High Red More than 10% below target

Note 1 No survey carried out in Q1 2013/14.

Note 2 No target for this measure until Q1 2013/14

19361



Summary of key challenges

Customer enquiries that should not have been necessary (percentage)

The level of avoidable contact has risen sharply within Council Tax and Housing Repairs 
with customers chasing updates.  Work is ongoing with the service areas to improve.

Variation in business rate yield

Harrow's 30% proportion of the business rates take was calculated as £14.725m for 
2013/14. As at 30/9/2013 it is £14.87m, an increase of £150k or just under 2.5% beneficial 
increase. However this does not account for rateable value reductions which have been 
offset against growth which will result in higher growth once contingency estimates 
recalculated at the end of the year.

Staff sickness - average days per FTE excluding schools

Overall performance (including schools) is unchanged since Q1.  However the 
performance excluding Schools has further declined.  A plan for improving this was agreed 
at CSB in October.

Workforce with IPAD in last 12 months

Performance has risen significantly since Q1.  HRD Business Partners are continuing to 
work with Directorates to improve performance.

20362



Supporting and protecting people who are most in need
Full Scorecard: Quarter 2 2013/14

A. Ensuring the most vulnerable children, young people and adults are appropriately cared for, safeguarding them from harm and abuse

Performance measures

Good = Target Actual RAG 

Status

Target Actual RAG 

Status

Target Actual RAG 

Status
Child Protection Plan for 2nd or subsequent time (within 2 years of last plan) Lower

6% 4.2% HG 6% 2.0% HG

First time entrants to Youth Justice System (rate per 100,000 of 10-17 population) 12 month rolling 

period

Lower
125 127 A 114 106 HG 106 62 HG

Care leavers not in education, employment or training at 19 Lower
34.6% 31.8%

The extent to which those with services for 12+ months (personalisation and LTT) had their care 

needs reviewed during the year 

Higher
95% 94.9% A 85% 94.10% HG 85% 88.80% LG

Percentage of children with Child Protection Plan for over two years Lower
6% 4% HG 6% 4.5% HG

%age of children with Child Protection Plan seen by Lead Social Worker within timescales specified 

within the plan

Higher
100% 100%

Stability of placements of Children Looked After Lower
4% 6.90% HR 2% 0.50% HG 11% 3.00% HG

Repeat referrals to Children's Social Care (within 12 months) Lower
15% 14.1% HG 15% 11.5% HG

Timeliness of assessments, percentage completed in 45 working days (year to date) Higher

90% 87.7% A 90% 84.0% LR

B. Families and individuals most in need are helped to access affordable housing, find employment and get out of or avoid poverty

Performance measures

Good = Target Actual RAG 

Status

Target Actual RAG 

Status

Target Actual RAG 

Status
The percentage difference between Harrow and the rest of London in respect of JSA claimants Higher

1.6% 1.4% HR 1.6% 1.5% LR 1.6% 1.3% HR

Number of affordable homes delivered (gross) Higher
130 183 HG 60 63 HG 68 74 HG

Number of affordable family homes completed Higher
6 8 HG 8 8 LG

Total number of households to whom we have accepted a full homeless duty Lower 65 55 HG 45 33 HG 85 73 HG

Revised 2013/14

New in 2013/14

New National Indicator from Q2 

2013/14

Q1 2013/14 Q2 2013/14

Q2 2013/14

Q2 2012/13

Q2 2012/13 Q1 2013/14

Revised 2013/14

New in 2013/14

Revised 2013/14

New in 2013/14

363



Supporting and protecting people who are most in need
Full Scorecard: Quarter 2 2013/14

C. Harrow residents are supported to live as independently as possible

Performance measures

Good = Target Actual RAG 

Status

Target Actual RAG 

Status

Target Actual RAG 

Status
Reablement - % of clients who do not receive ongoing social care following a reablement service Higher

72% 81.2% HG 70% 89.7% HG 70% 89.0% HG

Percentage of social care users taking up cash payment option (direct payment or personal budget) 

(of all clients and carers with substantial services).

Higher
26% 21.5% HR 32% 37.2% HG 38.0% 38.1% LG

Percentage of social care users who receive self-directed support (of all clients and carers with 

substantial services)

Higher
57% 61.4% HG 70% 84.7% HG 82.0% 79.6% A

Council adaptations: average time taken from assessment to completion of works (weeks) Lower
35 22 HG 33 20 HG 33 20 HG

Disabled Facilities Grants: average time taken from assessment to Disabled Facilities Grant 

approval (weeks)

Lower
35 15 HG 30 11 HG 30 8 HG

D. Preventing, managing and improving mental health, particularly of young children and teenagers

Performance measures

Good = Target Actual RAG 

Status

Target Actual RAG 

Status

Target Actual RAG 

Status

E. Maintain life expectancy in the borough, but reduce the health inequalities gap

Performance measures

Good = Target Actual RAG 

Status

Target Actual RAG 

Status

Target Actual RAG 

Status
Percentage of mothers who are totally or partially breastfeeding at 6-8 week check. Higher

69% 72.9% HG 69%

Number of smoking quitters Higher
300 172 HR 180

Number of eligible people receiving health checks Higher
1,650 810 HR 1,650

The percentage of individuals leaving treatment drug-free and not returning to treatment within 6 

months

Higher
23.6% 24.1%

New in 2013/14

New in 2013/14

New in 2013/14

Adult Mental Health client data is included in relevant indicators in tables A and C. We are working with partners to develop further measures in this area.

New in 2013/14

Q2 2013/14

Q2 2013/14

Q2 2012/13 Q1 2013/14

Q2 2012/13 Q1 2013/14

Q2 2012/13 Q1 2013/14 Q2 2013/14

364



Supporting and protecting people who are most in need
Full Scorecard: Quarter 2 2013/14

Performance measures

Good = Target Actual RAG 

Status

Target Actual RAG 

Status

Target Actual RAG 

Status
Children Looked After: rate of permanent exclusions as percentage of Harrow Children Looked 

After population 

Lower
0% 0% HG 0% 0% HG 0% 0% HG

Children Looked After: rate of fixed term exclusions as percentage of Harrow Children Looked After 

population 

Lower
1.00% 2.90% HR 12% 10.0% HG 12% 2.0% HG

Percentage of sessions absent from school amongst school age Children Looked After, in school 

year to date 

Lower
12.0% 6.6% HG 10% 9.5% HG 10% 6.1% HG

Termly rate of Permanent Exclusions as percentage of Harrow school population (Not reported in 

Q1)

Lower
0.03% 0.05% HR 0.04% 0.03% HG

Termly rate of Fixed Term Exclusions as percentage Harrow school population (Not reported in Q1) Lower
0.78% 0.83% LR 0.85% 0.73% HG

Termly rate of overall absence in primary schools (Not reported in Q1) Lower
5.6% 4.42% HG 4.50% 4.11% HG

Termly rate of overall absence rate in secondary schools (Not reported in Q1) Lower
6.7% 5.40% HG 5.00% 6.10% HR

Termly, not Q1

Termly, not Q1

Termly, not Q1

Termly, not Q1

F. Reduce the gap between educational attainment of the more vulnerable and disadvantaged groups of young people and the general child population

Q2 2013/14Q2 2012/13 Q1 2013/14

365



Keeping neighbourhoods clean, green and safe
Full Scorecard: Quarter 2 2013/14

A. The Council, residents & businesses work together to keep Harrow’s streets, buildings and open spaces clear of litter, fly-tipping and vandalism

Performance measures

Good = Target Actual RAG 

Status

Target Actual RAG 

Status

Target Actual RAG 

Status
Improved street and environmental cleanliness, litter Lower

6% 7% HR 6% 7% HR 6% 14% HR

Improved street and environmental cleanliness, graffiti Lower
3% 7% HR 3% 6% HR 3% 8% HR

B. Encourage greater volunteering and behaviour change so residents make a greater contribution to looking after the local environment

Performance measures

Good = Target Actual RAG 

Status

Target Actual RAG 

Status

Target Actual RAG 

Status

C. Reduce the fear of crime and incidences of anti-social behaviour so people in Harrow feel safe

Performance measures

Good = Target Actual RAG 

Status

Target Actual RAG 

Status

Target Actual RAG 

Status
Number of residential burglaries Lower

375 374 LG 425 339 HG 344 278 HG

Rate of proven re-offending by young offenders Lower
33.4% 30.9% HG 33.0% 33.5% A 33.5% 44.0% HR

First time entrants to Youth Justice System (rate per 100,000 of 10-17 population) Lower
125 127 A 114 106 HG 106 62 HG

The percentage of individuals leaving treatment drug-free and not returning to treatment within 6 

months

Higher

23.6% 24.1%

Repeat incidents of domestic violence
25% 13% HG 28%-40% 15% R 28%-40% 15% R

Percentage of food establishments compliant with food hygiene law Higher
76% 71% LR 76% 71% LR 76% 70% LR

Percentage of street lights functioning [NB reports 1 quarter in arrears] Higher New from 

Q3

New from 

Q3

New from 

Q3
99% 99.4% LG 99% 99.6% LG

Average time taken to repair street lights (days) [NB reports 1 quarter in arrears] Lower New from 

Q3

New from 

Q3

New from 

Q3
3 1.45 HG 3 1.90 HG

New in 2013/14

Nimber of active park user groups will be reported annually

Q2 2012/13 Q1 2013/14 Q2 2013/14

Q2 2013/14Q2 2012/13 Q1 2013/14

Q2 2013/14Q2 2012/13 Q1 2013/14

366



Keeping neighbourhoods clean, green and safe
Full Scorecard: Quarter 2 2013/14

Performance measures

Good = Target Actual RAG 

Status

Target Actual RAG 

Status

Target Actual RAG 

Status
Residual household waste per household (kg) [NB reports 1 quarter in arrears] Lower

135 129 LG 135 126 HG 135 124 HG

Percentage of household waste sent for reuse, recycling and composting [NB reports 1 quarter in 

arrears]

Higher
50% 47% LR 50% 45% LR 50% 52% LG

Greenhouse gas emissions: '000s of litres of fuel used by Council vehicles Lower
190 172

D. The Council, residents and businesses work together to reduce energy and water consumption, flood risk, improve air quality and increase recycling

Q2 2013/14Q2 2012/13 Q1 2013/14

367



United and involved communities
Full Scorecard: Quarter 2 2013/14

A. Increase participation in art, sport, leisure and cultural activities

Performance measures

Good = Target Actual RAG 

Status

Target Actual RAG 

Status

Target Actual RAG 

Status
Participation in cultural services (composite measure) Higher

666,500 634,527 A 646,255 601,827 LR

Performance measures

Good = Target Actual RAG 

Status

Target Actual RAG 

Status

Target Actual RAG 

Status
Percentage of 3rd party contract spend placed with local organisations Higher

16% 10.6%

Performance measures

Good = Target Actual RAG 

Status

Target Actual RAG 

Status

Target Actual RAG 

Status
Percentage who agree the Council takes account of residents’ views when making decisions, 

Involvement Tracker (bi-annual)

Higher
Bi-annual Bi-annual Bi-annual 30% 31% LG Bi-annual Bi-annual Bi-annual

Percentage who feel that they can influence decisions affecting their local area, Involvement 

Tracker (bi-annual)

Higher
Bi-annual Bi-annual Bi-annual 31% 28% LR Bi-annual Bi-annual Bi-annual

D. Diversity is celebrated and people from all backgrounds feel they are respected, treated fairly and get on well together

Performance measures

Good = Target Actual RAG 

Status

Target Actual RAG 

Status

Target Actual RAG 

Status
Equality of service provision (Adults)

- 0.9 - 1.1 1.01 G 0.9 - 1.1 1.00 G 0.9 - 1.1 0.99 G

The proportion of measures supporting the Corporate Equality Objectives that are achieved/on 

target

Higher
85% 85%

%age of new starters who completed the mandatory Equality & Diversity e-learning module within 6 

months [of commencing employment]

Higher
100% 100% 3% HRNew in 2013/14

B. Encourage a diverse range of voluntary, community and third sector organisations capable of providing local public services and optimising social capital in 

C. Harrow residents feel they can have their say on the issues that matter most to them. They are involved in the development and scrutiny of services, are well 

informed and make a positive contribution to their community

New in 2013/14

New in 2013/14

Q2 2013/14Q2 2012/13 Q1 2013/14

Q2 2013/14Q2 2012/13 Q1 2013/14

Q2 2013/14Q2 2012/13 Q1 2013/14

New in 2013/14

Q2 2012/13 Q1 2013/14 Q2 2013/14

368



Supporting our town centre, our local shopping centres and businesses
Full Scorecard: Quarter 2 2013/14

A. Harrow residents and businesses benefit from local economic prosperity, investment and growth in the borough

Performance measures

Good = Target Actual RAG 

Status

Target Actual RAG 

Status

Target Actual RAG 

Status
Vacancy rates in Town Centre Lower

8.3% 8.1% LG 8.3% 8.9% LR 8.30% 8.8% LR

Percentage of 3rd party contract spend placed with local organisations Higher
16% 10.6%

Care leavers not in education, employment or training at 19 Lower
34.6% 31.8%

Performance measures

Good = Target Actual RAG 

Status

Target Actual RAG 

Status

Target Actual RAG 

Status
Number of affordable homes delivered (gross) Higher

130 183 HG 60 63 HG 68 74 HG

No of empty private sector properties brought back into use, using Council, West London and HCA 

grant funds

Higher
100 113 HG 5 5 LG 20 23 HG

C. Residents are supported to have the necessary skills and education to be able to access employment, apprenticeships or training opportunities

Performance measures

Good = Target Actual RAG 

Status

Target Actual RAG 

Status

Target Actual RAG 

Status
16 to 18 year olds who are not in education, employment or training (NEET) Lower

3.6% 3.4% HG 3.5% 1.9% HG 3.5% 1.9% HG

New in 2013/14

New in 2013/14

B. New housing and employment opportunities will be created, new and existing businesses will be able to grow and expand in the borough and there will be 

opportunities for investment in new social infrastructure

Q2 2013/14

Q2 2012/13 Q1 2013/14 Q2 2013/14

Q2 2012/13 Q1 2013/14

Q2 2012/13 Q1 2013/14 Q2 2013/14

369



Efficient and Effective Organisation

Full Scorecard: Quarter 2 2013/14

Performance measures

Good = Target Actual RAG 

Status

Target Actual RAG 

Status

Target Actual RAG 

Status

Customer enquiries that should not have been necessary (percentage) Lower 18% 21% HR 17% 18% LR 17% 20% HR

The proportion of enquiries that were resolved at the first point of contact Higher 90% 89% A 90% 87% A 90% 90% LG

Average cost per transaction (£) (Access Harrow) Lower £1.00 £0.94 HG £0.80 £0.68 HG £0.80 £0.72 HG

Tenant satisfaction with the housing repair and maintenance service (%) Higher 95% 90% 90% 88% A

Total debt collected, at year to date, as a % of total debt raised Higher 75% 56% HR 70% 60% HR 70% 71% LG

Average debtor days, per quarter Lower 60 35 HG 60 38 HG 60 26 HG

Percentage of Council Tax collected Higher 57.5% 57.56% LG 30% 30.12% LG 57% 56.56% A

Variation in business rate yield Higher 2.5% 2.5% LG 2.5% 1.01% HR

Percentage of non-domestic rates collected Higher 61% 59.81% A 35% 34.29% A 61% 58.29% A

Time taken to process housing benefit and council tax benefit new claims and change events 

(days) 

Lower 9.00 6.54 HG 11 11.08 A 11 10.08 HG

Proportion of web forms and web visits as a percentage of overall contact Higher 60% 62% LG 70% 68.8% A 70% 69% A

Workforce with IPAD in last 12 months Higher 95% 90% LR 95% 68% HR 95% 86% LR

Accident Incident Rate AIR (no. of accidents x 100,000)/average number employed during the 

period

Lower 1,472 1,635 HR 1,355 16.00% HG

Reportable Injury Frequency Rate IFR (no. of RIDDOR incidents x 100,000)/no. of hours worked Lower 1.2 1.3 LR 0.5 0.00% HG

New in 2013/14

New in 2013/14

New in 2013/14

Q2 2012/13 Q1 2013/14 Q2 2013/14

370



Agenda Item 25
Pages 371 to 372

371

Document is Restricted



372

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	21 November - Minutes

	7 Key Decision Schedule - December 2013 to February 2014
	8 Progress on Scrutiny Projects
	9 School Expansion Programme
	Appendix 1

	10 Stanmore and Edgware Conservation Areas Supplementary Planning Document
	Appendix 1 - consultation responses

	11 Locally Listed Buildings Supplementary Planning Document
	Appendix 1 Response to consultation on LLB SPD
	Appendix 2 - Rec from LDF Panel

	12 Authority Monitoring Report
	13 Draft HRA Budget 2014-15, draft MTFS 2015-16 to 2017-18, draft HRA Capital Budget 2014-15 to 2017-18
	14 Calculation of Council Tax Base for 2014-2015
	Tax Base Appendix 1

	15 Calculation of  Business Rates Income for 2014 - 2015
	16 Draft Revenue Budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy 2014-15 to 2017-18
	Appendix 1 MTFS 2013-14 to 2016-17 Final
	Appendix 2 MTFS Detailed investment saving schedules FINAL
	Appendix 3 MTFS proposed changes to MTFS for member approval FINAL
	Appendix 4 Proposed MTFS
	Appendix 5 Draft Public Health Funding FINAL
	Appendix 6 School Budget 2014-15 FINAL

	17 Draft Capital Programme 2014-15 to 2017-18
	Capital Bids Summary cabinet

	18 Revenue and Capital Monitoring for Quarter 2 as at 30 September 2013
	Appendix 2 - MTFS Implementation
	App 3 - Revenue and Capital Monitoring Qtr 2

	19 Collection Fund 2013-14
	20 Half Year 2013/14 Treasury Management Activity
	TM - Appendix 1 Counterparty
	TM - Appendix 2 Prudential Indicators

	21 Procurement of Banking Services
	22 Strategic Performance Report - Quarter 2
	SPR Q2 2013-14 Appendix 1

	25 Procurement of Banking Services

